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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Moxpay, 20th February, 1928.

Ordered,—That the Immigration Act and regulations thereunder, and the
general subject of Immigration, including the work of the Department of Immi-
gration and Colonization, be referred to the Committee on Agriculture and
Colonization for consideration and report.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk “of the House.
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REPORT

SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE AND
COLONIZATION REPORT

House or CoMMONS,
WepNESDAY, June 6, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization begs leave
to present its Tenth Report as follows:—

Pursuant to an Order of Reference dated Monday, February 20, 1928, your
Committee took into its consideration the Immigration Act and Regulations
thereunder, and the general subject of immigration, including the work of the
Department of Immigration and Colonization.

Your Committee has held thirty-six sittings and has called before it the
following twenty-nine witnesses, namely:—

Hon. Robert Forke, Minister of Immigration and Colonization.

W. J. Egan, Deputy Minister of Immigration.

A. L. Jolliffe, Commissioner, Department of Immigration.

Dr. J. A. Amyot, Deputy Minister, Department of Health.

Dr. D. A. Clark, Assistant Deputy Minister, Department of Health.

W. J. Black, Director of Colonization, Canadian Na_tmnal Railways.

J. 8. Dennis, Director of Colonization, Canadian Pacific Railway Company.

J. N. K. Macalister, Assistant Director of Colonization, Canadian Pacific

Railway Company. x -
Sir Henry Thornton, President, Canadian National Railways.
E. W. Beatty, President, Canadian Pacific Railway Company.
Canon Vernon, Church of England.
Canon Burd, Church of England, Saskatchewan Synod. &
Miss Gertrude Childs, Secretary of the Social Welfare Commission of
Winnipeg.

Sir Joseph Flavelle, Toronto.

Albert Chamberlain, President, British Welcome and Welfare League of
Toronto. ‘

Hugh Farthing, Representative of the British Empire League of Canada.

Professor H. Barton, Dean of the Faculty of Agriculture, McGill.

Hon. George Langley, Regina. A

Miss M. E. Mackie, former Immigration and Colonization worker.

C. A. Magrath, Toronto.

Col. James Stibbard, of the British Permanent Forces.

Col. T. R. Tudge, of the Salvation Army.

Staff-Captain Owen Culshaw, of the Salvation Army.

M. J. Coldwell, Regina.

Hon. Mr. Manion, M.P.

Hon. E. J. McMurray, Winnipeg.

M. N. Campbell, M.P.

Lieut.-Col Cecil G. Williams, of the Navy League. .

George H. Corbett, representing several Social Service Welfare Societies of

Montreal.

In addition to hearing the foregoing witnesses your Committee took under
consideration resolutions and petitions submitted by various organizations
throughout the country.

.
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Your Committee begs leave to report its conclusions and recommendations
as follows, namely:—

CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH CITIZENS OF VARIOUS COUNTRIES
ARE ADMITTED TO CANADA

The Committee is convinced that there is considerable misapprehension
and lack of information regarding conditions on which persons from different
parts of the world are admitted to Canada. In order to remove this misappre-
hension and to have a clear background on which to base any recommendation,
the Committee gives the following brief summary.

British.

1. All British subjects from the United Kingdom or from any of the British
Dominions are eligible to enter Canada, provided they are sound mentally and
physically and in a position to maintain themselves until employment can be
secured.

No passport is required.

The passage rate for immigrants from the British Isles generally is $91.25.

2. British agricultural workers are specially encouraged by the establish-
ment of a low rate of £9.73 at the instance of the Canadian Government,

3. British domestic workers are also provided for at the same rate as agri-
cultural workers and in special cases even this small amount is advanced as a
loan. .

4. Families of British agricultural workers who have already emigrated to
Canada are given the benefit of the special rate of $9.73 for adults and free
passage to all children under seventeen. In this case, also, loans are made in
special cases to provide for the transportation of such families.

5. British children over fourteen and under seventeen who are brought into
Canada under the auspices of certain juvenile societies, have their passages
paid; and an additional amount is paid to such societies to cover the railroad
fares and incidental expenses of such children.

6. British boys over fourteen and under seventeen years of age, emigrating
to Canada to approved farm homes, receive free passage to their destination.

Northern European Countries—(Norway, Sweden, Denmark, Finland, Germany,
Switzerland, Holland, Belgium and France)

Any subjects or citizens of these countries are eligible for entry to Canada
provided they are sound mentally and physically and are in a position to main-
tain themselves until employment can be secured.

These people are required to have passports.

The average minimum ocean rate is approximately $120.

No special rate or assistance of any kind is given by the Canadian Govern-
ment to subjects or citizens of these countries.

Central and Southern European Countries—(Austria, Hungary, Poland, Rou-
mania, Lithuania, Esthonia, Latvia, Bulgaria, Jugo-Slavia, Czecho-
Slovakia)

Only agricultural workers, domestic servants or those within a prescribed
degree of relationship to residents already legally admitted to Canada are per-
mitted to come in from these countries. Special exceptions may be made in
cases in which the Minister of Immigration is satisfied that their labour or ser-
vice is required in Canada.
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These people are required to have passports.

The average minimum ocean rate is approximately $135.

No special rate or assistance of any kind is given by the Canadian Govern-
ment to subjects or citizens of these countries.

Unaited States.

All citizens of the United States are eligible to emigrate to Canada provided
they are sound mentally and physically and in a position to maintain themselves
until employment can be secured.

No passport is required.

From the above it will be seen that emigrants from the United Kingdom
stand in a specially favourable position as compared with emigrants from Con-
tinental countries, not only with regard to general passage rates but particularly
with respect to the very greatly reduced rates given to agricultural and domestic
workers from the United Kingdom.

For the further encouragement of British immigration the following Schemes
for land settlement should be noted:—

3,000 Family Scheme

British families have been brought out to Canada at a special steamship
rate, and are located by the Canadian Government on vacant soldier settle-
ment lands. The British Government supplies to each such family a maximum
of 1,500 cash for stock and equipment. All repayments are made by the settler
for the price of the farm and for the stock and equipment loan, in equal yearly
instalments, during a period of twenty-five years at the low interest rate of 5
per cent. The Canadian Government provides additional assistance by way of
selection, settlement and supervision, free of charge.

British-Dominion-Provincial Land Settlement Scheme

Under this Scheme the Provincial Government provides the farm. The Brit-
ish Government supplies $1,500 for stock and equipment. The Canadian Gov-
ernment recruits the settler and provides settlement and supervision, free of
charge, and, in addition, shares on a 50-50 basis any loss on account of stock and
equipment. In the event of the default of a settler within the first two years
the loss of interest on account of the purchase price of the land is shared on the
following basis:—

Per cent.
Provincial GoOVernment. it ¢ wiwwsn e stk sbe A3 v w0
Dominion 3 iy e st e e Lol e N i
British it e e A sl ek i e et

_ This Scheme has already been adopted by two of the Provinces and negotia-
tions are now being carried on with another province.

Training and Placement of British Boys in Farm Homes

Selected boys are given free passage from the United Kingdom to Canada,
and institutions known as “training farms” are established by several provinces
for receiving these British boys and distributing them among approved farm
homes. The Dominion and Provincial Governments each contribute $10 per boy
towards the operation of the farm, and the British Government makes a grant of
$20 for the same purpose.

Land Settlement for British Boys.

The object is to establish on farms of their own, British boys who have come
to Canada, and who have acquired the necessary experience in farm work, and
who have each saved $500. Under this Scheme the British Government loans
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$1,250, the Dominion Government $1,000, the Provincial Government $250 and
these loans, with the boy’s savings, aggregate $3,000 which is available for his
settlement on the farm.

To indicate the importance of this work the British and Canadian Govern-
ments have entered into an agreement to spend $5,000,000 during the next ten
years in making such loans.

As illustrating the special efforts put forward to encourage British immigra-
tion, the evidence shows that the Canadian Department of Immigration spends
in this work $16.67 for each British immigrant as compared with an average cost
of 11 cents per head for immigrants from the Continental countries.

The Committee heard evidence in detail respecting the organization of the
Department of Immigration and concerning all phases of its activities as carried
on both separately and in conjunction with many governmental and voluntary
organizations, and in relation thereto the Committee makes the following recom-
mendation and suggestions.

Federal Responsibility.

In the opinion of the Committee the responsibility and control of the selec-
tion of immigrants, no matter by whom recruited must rest solely and exclusively
with the Government of Canada.

Provincial Co-operation.

The Committee recommends that special efforts be now made to extend the
field of activity of the Provincial Authorities particularly in the matter of place-
ment, settlement and supervision of immigrants, and that, with this in view, the
Federal Government consider contributing to defray the cost of Provincial co-
operation for that purpose.

Medical Examination

There have been complaints about the new system of medical inspection
under which Canadian doctors conduct the medical examination of prospective
immigrants in the United Kingdom. It appears that this new system was
inaugurated as a result of representations made to the Department of Immi-
gration by steamship companies, by Provincial Governments, by the Dominion
Council of Health, and by other Social Service Organizations.

Several reasons were urged in favour of the change:

1. Great hardship was imposed on the immigrant who had been passed
by the medical inspectors in the United Kingdom and then upon
coming to Canada was subsequently rejected on arrival or after
admission.

2. A large number of deportations have taken place on account of the
mental or physical unfitness of those who had been passed as mentally
and physically fit before leaving the United Kingdom.

3. The proportions of immigrants committed to mental institutions in
Canada has been excessive.

The new system affords free medical examination of prospective immigrants
by Canadian doctors before they take passage for Canada. Twenty-one Cana-
dian doctors and forty-five Roster doctors are conducting medical inspection
in the British Isles, and there are 332 centres where medical examinations are
conducted, and, in addition, special provisions are made for medical examina-
tion in isolated communities.
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On the Continent there are seven Canadian doctors whose work is con-
fined to examining all emigrants at the continental ports of embarkation.
Previous to this examination by Canadian doctors the Continental emigrant
is subjected to a medical examination near his home under the auspices of the
steamship company. Quarantine, fumigation and other precautions are exacted
at the Continental ports of embarkation in addition to the medical examination
by the Canadian doctor,

The suggestion was made that the volume of emigration from the British
Isles to Canada wes being reduced by the new medical arrangement, but the
evidence shows that there has been a greater decrease in emigration from the
British Isles to the other Overseas Dominions and to the United States.

The committee was impressed with the fact that the medical officers to
whom is entrusted the medical examination of intending emigrants have a
serious responsibility to Canada, not only to the Federal government but also
to the provinces. It is their duty to ascertain that intending emigrants are
physically and mentally fit to take their places and do their share as Canadian
citizens. In this connection, and more particularly with regard to emigration
from the Continent of Europe the Committee quotes the resolution passed by
the Social Service Council of Canada at its meeting recently held in Montreal
as follows: :

“The Social Service Council of Canada having in mind the burden now
laid on the various provinces of Canada in providing for the idiots and the
inszne, and the unfortunate results of admission into this country of the moron
and feeble minded, desires to urge upon the Federal government a continued
and strict adherence to the provisions of the Immigration Act, in order that the
dgor may not be open for the entrance of these types of prohibited undesir-
ables.”

Owing to the present arrangements a considerable amotnt of misunder-
standing and dissatisfaction has arisen during the transition period. Certain
objections were mentioned by witnesses, some of which have already been
remedied. The present system of medical examination in the British Isles
was inaugurated primarily for the benefit and protection of the British immi-
grant. ‘The Department of Immigration and the Department of Health should,
1t is considered, make the most exhaustive efforts to see that the new system
1s perfected so as to eliminate, as far as possible, inconvenience, delay and
expense to the prospective immigrant, and to dispel the idea that there is any
ntention, on the part of the Canadian government, to restrict or hinder the
coming to Canada of British subjects. For this purpose the committee recom-
mends that the present system would be improved and that it would obviate
delay and inconvenience to the prospective emigrant, especiclly those who
reside in the rural districts of the British Isles if the examinations were made
by Bl‘l_tlSh locql doctors paid by, and under the supervision and control of, the
Canadu_m medical authorities, who should be located at convenient centres of
population.

SPECTAL PASSAGE RATES FOR BRITISH SETTLERS
1. ’Teen Age.

The Qommitteg approves of all previous efforts to promote and encourage
‘teen age immigration from Great Britain and recommends that the zge limit
for boy imigrants be extended to boys 14 to 19 years of age, both inclusive.

2. Domestics.

That the arrangements now in effect for the movement of domestics from
the United Kingdom to Canada be continued.
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3. Family Re-union.

That messures be taken to extend the assisted passage privileges to the
families of immigrants from Great Britain who are now in Canada and who
have so far established themselves as to have a reasonable prospect of being
able to support their families in this country.

4. Reduction in Ocean Rates for all British Immigrants.

That measures be taken at zn early date to arrange a conference between
the Federal and British Governments and the Atlantic Steamship Companies
with the objeet of obtaining a reduction in ocean rates to British immigrants
to approximately £10.

Railway Rates for Canadian Landseekers

The committee also recommends that measures be taken to ascertain
whether the railways will restore the Home Seekers rates in effect prior to the
war, making such rates effective East bound as well as West bound.

Land Settlement

1. The committee having heard the evidence in connection with the experi-
ment of the 3,000 Family Settlement Scheme, now almost completed, recom-
mends that time be given to test this form of land settlement before embarking
upon extended schemes of this character.

2. The committee approves of the extension to other provinces of the tri-
partite agreement with the British, Federal and Provincial governments for the
encouragement of Land Settlement by the British immigrant.

3. The committee recommends, subject to the completion of satisfactory
arrangements with governments of the provinces, that assistange equal to that
given by the British government to British emigrant boys be extended by the
government of Canada to the Canadian youth who are trained in agriculture.

Letters of Assurance of Employment. (“Permits”—so called)

Your committee recommends that letters of assurance of employment shall
state the names, addresses, occupations and nationality of the persons to be
admitted and that an annual return be made by the Minister of Immigration
to parliament within thirty days of its meeting, giving particulars of all such
letters, showing the names of persons so admitted, their addresses, occupation
and nationality, the names and addresses of the persons who made the applica-
tion for each such admission and of any other person who endorsed or made
favourable representations in support of such application.

RAILWAYS’ CONTINENTAL AGREEMENT

There was in the evidence, considerable criticism of certain features of
the Railways’ Agreement. The Committee has some doubt as to the desirability
of giving to the Railways special authority to recruit immigrants, but as certain
restrictions were imposed in connection with the renewal of the Agreement in
October, 1927, the Committee is of the opinion that, in order to ascertain the
results of its operation under the new conditions, the present Agreement might
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be continued according to its terms, but with this exception—that the system
of nominations of immigrants from non-preferred countries under the Railways’
Agreement should be confined forthwith to the following degrees of relationship:
father or mother, husband or wife, son or daughter, brother or sister—of any
individual who is now engaged in farming in Canada, and further that the
existing Railways’ Agreement should not be renewed in its present form.

INCREASING EMPLOYMENT

Your committee would also recommend that the government make an
intensive and comprehensive study of the possibilities of increasing industrial
and agricultural development in Canada with a view to attracting capital and
providing wider and increased opportunities for employment not only for our
own people, but for prospective immigrants,

Your Committee recommends that 1,500 copies in English and 500 copies
in French of the minutes of evidence and of this report, be printed in Blue
Book form, and that standing order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

A copy of the Minutes of Procedure and Evidence is appended hereto for
information of the House.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

W. F. KAY,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Hcuse oF COMMONS,
TH=urspAY, March 8, 1928.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay, the chairman, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Arthurs, Bancroft, Benoit, Bouchard,
Boys, Brown, Cahan, Campbell, Carmichael, Casgrain, Charters, Coote, Desco-
teaux, Donnelly, Dubue, Edwards, Forke, Garland (Bow River), Garland
(Carleton), Glen, Guthrie, Kay, Lucas, McGibbon, McMillan, McPhee, McRae,
Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Ross, Senn, Sinclair (Wellington North), Spence,
Stewart, Stirling, Tolmie, Totzke.

Preceding the consideration of the Order of the Day, it was moved by
Mzr. Millar and the motion carried that the committee again take under con-
sideration on Thursday, the 15th inst., the subject order of reference—the
grading and inspection of wheat,—protein content,—provided that the attend-
ance of Dr. Birchard of Winnipeg may be secured for that date.

The committee then proceeded to the consideration of the subject order of
reference, viz:—

That the Immigration Act and Regulations thereunder and the general
subject of Immigration, including the work of the Department of Immigration
and Colonization be referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Colonization
for consideration and report.

The order and method of procedure to be followed by the committee in its
- consideration of this subject was discussed at some length but nothing definite
was formulated.

Mr. W. J. Egan, deputy minister of Immigration and Colonization, was
then called, sworn and examined and instructed to appear for further examina-
tion at the next meeting.

The meeting then adjourned till Tuesdéy, March 13, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or Comaons,
Turspay, March 13, 1928

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding,

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Bancroft, Bouchard, Boys, Brown,
Campbell, Carmichael, Casgrain, Charters, Coote, Descoteaux, Donnelly, Duff
Edwards, Forke, Garland (Bow River), Garland (Carleton), Glen, Guthriei
Hodgins, Kay, Lucas, McMillan, McPhee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Senn,
Sinclair (Queens), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Tolmie, Totzke, Young.

xiil
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On the opening of proceedings discussion took place as to the propriety of
submitting the evidence of witnesses to such witnesses before having same
printed, and also as to having witnesses sworn.

The committee decided to have the witnesses sworn.

Dr. J. A. Amyot, deputy minister of the Department of Health, was called,
sworn and examined.

The committee decided that Mr. W. J. Egan, deputy minister of Immigra-
tion and Colonization, be called for further examination at the next meeting.

The committee then adjourned till Wednesday, March 14, at 11 am.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMmMONS,
WebNESDAY, March 14, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Bancroft, Benoit, Bowen, Cahan,
Carmichael, Casgrain, Charters, Descoteaux, Donnelly, Duff, Edwards, Fansher,
Forke, Garland (Carleton), Glen, Guthrie, Kay, Lucas, McGibbon, MecKen-
zie, McPhee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Seguin, Senn, Sinclair (Queens),
Sinclair (Wellington North), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Tolmie, Totzke,
Vallance, Young.

The subject of reference, namely, Immigration Inquiry, was again taken
under consideration.

Mr. W. J. Egan, deputy minister of the Department of Immigration and
Colonization, having been previously sworn, was called and examined.

On the conclusion of the examination of the witness, Mr. Cahan moved,
seconded by Mr. Stewart, that Mr. Black, Colonization Agent of the Canadian
National Railways, and Mr. Dennis of the Canadian Pacific Railway, or their
respective assistants be summoned to attend and give evidence before the com-
mittee on Tuesday, the 20th, and Wednesday, the 21st, days of March. The
motion carried.

Mr. Millar submitted that it should be understood that the committee
would take under consideration the subject of reference, the Grading and
Inspection of Wheat, on Thursday, the 22nd inst., and that the Chief Grain
I}x:spector of the Board of Grain Commissioners be summoned to attend at
that date.

_The committee then adjourned to take up the further consideration of the
subject respecting Immigration on Tuesday, the 20th inst., at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Commaittee.
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House or Commons,
WepNESDAY, March 21, 1928.

The commitiee was called to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Arthurs, Bancroft, Bowen, Boys, Brown,
Cahan, Carmichael, Casgrain, Charters, Descoteaux, Dubue, Donnelly, Edwards,
Fansher, Forke, Garland (Carleton), Garland (Bow River), Glen, Guthrie,
Kay, Lanctot, Lucas, McKenzie, McMillan, McPhee, Millar, Motherwell,
Ralston, Rowe, Senn, Sinclair (Queens), Sinclair (Wellington North), Spence,
Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Tolmie, Totzke, Young.

Before taking under consideration the subject set for the Order of the
Day, Mr. Millar called the attention of the committec to the printed evidence
of the witness Dr. F. J. Birchard taken before the committee on March 15th,
and stated that the witness desired to make certain extensive corrections and
revision of his evidence which would involve the reprinting of the same.

Mlj. Millar then moved that the evidence of Dr. Birchard of March 15th
be reprinted as corrected and revised by the witness. The motion carried.

gmt'The committee then took under consideration again the subject of Immi-
ation.

i Mr. W. J. Egan, deputy-minister of Immigration and Colonization, was
en‘ called before the committee and submitted to examination by several
members of the committee. The witness then retired.

ol Mr. J. N. K Macalister, Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
-olonization and Development of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company,
having been duly summoned appeared before the committee, was sworn and

lll?vsinngl been examined, retired to appear again on Friday, the 23rd inst., at

o It was decidgd that witnesses Mr. Macalister and Mr. W. J. Black,
Irector of Colonization of the Canadian National Railways, should be sum-

irﬁgi?ed to appear before the committee at its next meeting on Friday, the 23rd

ot T,‘he committee then adjourned for the further consideration of this sub-
Ject till Friday, the 23rd inst., at 11 am.

A. A. FRASER;-
Clerk of Committee.

House or CommoNs,
Turspay, March 27, 1928,

The committee came to order at 11 a.m. Mr. Kay presiding.

; Members present: Messrs. Baneroft, Bouchard, Bowen, Boys, Cahan, Car-
michael, Casgrain, Charters, Coote, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Garland (Bow
River), Glen, Kay, Lanctdt, Lucas, McKenzie, McMillan, Millar, Moaran,
Motherwell, Ralston, Rowe, Senn, Sinclair (Queens), Spence, Spotton, Tolmie,
Totzke, Young. : ’

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigré‘,ion.
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Mr. J. N. K. Macalister was recalled, examined and retired, to appear again
at the next meeting.

The witness filed certain sample copies of advertisements used by the Cana-
dian Pacific Railway Company Colonization Department in Great Britain.

The committee then adjourned till Wednesday, March 28, 1928.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMMONS,
WepNESDAY, March 28, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Bowen, Boys, Brown, Cahan, Car-
michael, Charters; Edwards, Forke, Glen, Hodgins, Kay, Lucas, McGibbon,
McKenzie, McPhee, Millar, Ralston, Sinclair (Queens), Sinclair (Wellington
North), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Totzke.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of immigration.

Discussion as to the subsequent order of proceedings of the Committee,
took place and action was deferred till after the Easter recess.

Mr. J. N. K. Macalister was recalled, examined and retired.
Witness discharged.

Discussion took place as to the date of the next sitting of the Committee
and on motion of Mr. Ralston, adopted, the chairman was instructed to report
to the House recommending that the Committee be given leave to sit while
the House is in session. The date of the next sitting of the Committee was
left to the Chairman and Mr. Ralston. '

It was subsequently decided to convene the Committee for Friday the 30th
March at 11 a.m., Mr. W. J. Black, director of the Colonization Department
of the Canadian National Railways to attend.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Commaittee.

House or CoMMONS,
Frmay, March 30, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding. .

Members present: Messrs Bancroft, Benoit, Boulanger, Bowen, Boys,
Brown, Cahan, Campbell, Carmichael, Casgrain, Coote, Descoteaux, Donnelly,
Edwards, Forke, Garland (Bow River), Glen, Kay, Lucas, McKenzie, McPhee,
Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Rowe, Senn, Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Tolmie,
Totzke, Young.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.
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Dr. W. J. Black, Director of Colonization, Canadian National Railways,
was called, sworn, examined and retired.

Mr. W. J. Egan, Deputy Minister of Immigration and Colonization filed a
statement of “ Immigration under the auspites of the Scottish Immigrant Aid
Society, showing movement and cost from the first April, 1922, to the end of
November, 1927.”

A motion by Mr. Cahan, that the Chairman report to the House recommend-
ing the reduction of the quorum of the committee from twenty to twelve mem-
bers, was carried. ;

The commitee adjourned till Thursday April 12th, at 11 a.m., when Mr.
Black will again attend.
A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMMONS,
Fripay, April 13, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m. Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Cahan, Carmichael, Casgrain, Don-
nelly (Dubue, Fansher, Forke, Glen, Kay, Lucas, McMillan, McPhee, Millar,
Motherwell, Ralston, Senn, Sinclair (Queens), Spence, Spotton, Vallance.

The subject of Immigration was again taken under consideration.

Dr. W. J. Black was recalled, examined and retired.

Witness discharged.

Mr. Cahan moved, seconded by Mr. Stewart that the following named
persons be requested to attend before the committee, at dates to be arranged,
to give their views on the subject under consideration; Sir Joseph Flavelle, Sir
Henry Thornton, E. W. Beatty—Carried. -

Mr. Raltson moved, seconded by Mr. McMillan that a sub-committee of
five members, to be named by the chairman, be appointed to consider all com-
munications addressed f(l) the committee and to report thereon—Carried.

Subsequently the chairman named the following members of the\commit-tee
to constitute the said sub-commuttee, viz.: Messrs. Cahan, Ralston, Edwards,
Glen and Garland (Bow River).

The committee then adjourned at the call of the chair.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Commattee.
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House or CoMMONS,
TwrUrsDAY, April 19, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m. Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Baneroft, Benoit, Bouchard, Cahan,
Campbell, Carmichael, Charters, Coote, Donnelly, Dutbuc, Edwards, Forke,
Garland (Bow River), Glen, Jacobs, Kay, Lucas, McGibbon, McKenzie, Mec-
Millan, McPhee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Rowe, Sinclair (Queens), Sinclair
(Wellington North), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Totzke, Tummon, Val-
lance, Young.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration,

Sir Henry Thornton, president of the Canadian National Railways was
called, examined and retired.

Mr. Glen chairman of the sub-committee on communications and witnesses
presented a report of the said committee recommending that the followmg per-
sons be summoned to appear before the committee, viz:—

Colonel Tudge, of the Salvation Army,; Montreal.

Albert Chamberlain, president of The British Welcome and Welfare League,
Toronto.

Canon Burd, of the Anglican Synod of Saskatchewan, Prince Albert.
A representative of the Canadian Legion.

On motion of Mr. Cahan the recommendations of the sub-committee as
contained in the said report was concurred in.

The committee then adjourned till Friday, April 20, at 11 o'clock.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMMONS,
WebpNEsDAY, April 25, 1928.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Brown, Boulanger, Cahan, Campbell,
Charters Coote, Donnelly, Dubuc, Forke Garland (Bow River), Glen Jacobs,
Kay, Mlllar Motherwell Ralston, Spence, Spotton, Stirling, Vallance Young

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Mr. E. W. Beatty, president of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company, was
called before the committee, examined and retired.

The chairman of the sub-committee on correspondence and witnesses reported
that this committee had considered a large file of correspondence addressed to
the committee by Locals of the National Association of Canada and that as no
request had been made by the said Association to be heard viva voce, that the
said correspondence as received would be submitted to the committee for con-
sideration.

The report of the sub-committee was concurred in.
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Mr. Garland moved, seconded by Mr. Glen, that Mr. M. J. Coldwell of
Regina be summoned to appear before the committee to give evidence in réspect
to the alleged abuse of the permit system.

Motion carried.

Mr. Campbell moved, seconded by Mr. Garland that the United Farmers
of Manitoba, Saskatehewan, and Alberta, respectively, be advised that if they

wish to have a roplesentah\e appear before the committee such representative
will be heard.

Motion carried.

Mr. Cahan moved, seconded by Mr. Jacobs, that Mr. C. A. Magrath, chair-
man of the Ontario Hy dro Commission, be 1nv1ted to attend before the com-~
mittee.

Motion carried,

The committee adjourned till Thursday, April 26th, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMMONS
THURsDAY, April 26, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Arthurs, Bancroft, Boulanger, Brown, Campbell,
Charters, Donnelly, Dubuc, Forke, Garland (Bow River), Glen, Kay, Lucas,
McKenzie, McMillan, McPhee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Sinclair (Queens).
Sinclair (Wellington North), Spotton, Stewart, Totzke.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Canon Walter Burd, of Prince Albert, Saskatchewan, was called, sworn and
examined.

At one o’clock the committee adjourned till four p.m.

The committee reconvened at four o’clock in the afternoon and the witness
of the morning, Canon Burd, was again called to the stand. The witness having
concluded his evidence at six o’clock was discharged.

Motion by Mr. Boulanger, seconded by Mr. Spotton, that Dr. H. Barton,
Dean of Macdonald Agricultural College, be requested to appear before the
committee, was carried.

Members present at the afternoon sitting: Messrs. Arthurs, Bancroft, Brown,
Cahan, Donnelly, Dubue, Boulanger, Fansher, Forke, Garland (Bow Rlver),
Glen, Kay, Lucas, McPhee Millar, Ralston, Rowe, Spotton, Totzke, Vallance,
Young

The committee adjourned at the call of the chair.

A. A FRASER
Clerk of Committee.
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Houske or CoMMONS,
Tuespay, May 1, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m. Mr, Kay presiding.

Members present; Messrs. Anderson, Arthurs, Bancroft, Benoit, Boulanger,
Carmichael, Casgrain, Charters, Coote, Donnelly, Edwards, Fransher, Forke,
Glen, Kay, Lanctot, Lucas, MeGibbon, McKenzie, McMillan, McPhee, Millar,
Motherwell, Ralston, Ross, Rowe, Senn, Stewart, Stirling, Totzke, Tummon,
Vallance, Young.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Canon Vernon of Montreal, representing the Church of England Synod,
was called, examined and retired.

Sir Joseph Flavelle, of Toronto, was called, examined and retired.

On motion of Mr. Young it was decided to advise the Hon. George Langley,
of Regina, Saskatchewan, that the committee desire his attendance on Tuesday
next.

It being now one o’clock the committee adjourned till four o’clock in the
afternoon.

The meeting came to order at 4 o’clock, Mr. Kay in the chair.

Members present: Messrs. Arthurs, Bancroft, Boulanger, Brown, Car-
michael, Coote, Donnelly, Forke, Glen, Kay, McKenzie, Ralston, Stewart,
Totzke, Vallance, Young.

Miss Gertrude Childs, Secretary of the Social Welfare Commission of Win-
nipeg, was called, examined and retired.

The committee adjourned till Wednesday, May 2nd.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or COMMst,
WebNEspAY, May 2, 1928.

The Committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Boulanger, Brown, Campbell, Car-
michael, Donnelly, Fansher, Forke, Glen, Kay, Lucas, McKenzie, McMillan,
Millar, Ralston, Vallance.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Albert Chamberlain, president of the British Welcome and Welfare League
of Toronto, appeared before the Committee, was examined and retired.

It being one o’clock the Committee then adjourned till four o’clock in the
afternoon.
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The Committee reconvened at four p.m., Mr. Kay in the chair.

Members present: Messrs. Arthurs, Campbell, Coote, Donnelly, Fansher,
Forke, Glen, Kay, Lucas, Maybee, Rowe, Sinclair (Wellington North), Spotton,
Vallance.

Hugh Farthing of Calgary, representative of the Dominion Command of
the British Empire Service League in Canada, appeared before the Committee,
was examined and retired.

The Committee then adjourned till Thursday at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or ComMONS,
THURSDAY, May 3, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Boulanger, Bowen, Boys, Brown,
Cahan, Campbell, Carmichael, Coote, Donnelly, Fansher, Forks, Glen, Kay,
Lanctot, Lucas, McKenzie, Maybee, Ralston, Rowe, Sinclair (Wellington
§0rth), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Tolmie, Totzke, Tummon, Vallance,

oung,. '

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.
C. A. Magrath, of Toronto, was called, examined, and retired.

~John 8. Dennis, Director of Immigration and Colonization of the Cana-
dian Pacific Railway Company, was then called and examined.

At one o'clock the Committee adjourned till four o’clock in the afternoon
when the last witness of the morning was to continue his evidence.

At four o’clock, p.m., the Committee reconvened and Mr. Dennis was
recalled to the stand and his examination completed. The witness then retired.

Colonel James Stibbard of the British Permanent Force, bqin.g. present
was invited to address the Committee and explained the scheme initiated by
him in England to train, in agricultural pursuits, the men of the Permanent
Force, as they are discharged from time to time, with the_obJect and intent
of fitting them for colonization work in the overseas Dominions.

Mr. Glen, chairman of the subcommittee on correspondence and witnesses
presented a further report of the said Committee, recommending that the
following named witnesses be called:—

Miss Esther Mackie, Montreal.

Professor Tate, McGill University.

A representative of the Prisoners’ Welfare Association.
A representative of the Navy League of Canada.
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The said subeommittee further recommended that no further witnesses
other than departmental be called or heard after Wednesday, the ninth inst.

The recommendations of the said subcommittee were concurred in.
The Committee then adjourned till Friday, May 4th, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMMONS,
Friday, May 4, 1928.

The Committee came to order at 11 am. Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs Arthurs, Bancroft, Brown, Cahan, Charters,
Coote, Donnelly, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Glen, Kay, Lucas, McKenzie, McMil-
lan, Millar, Ralston, Sinclair (Wellington North), Spence, Spotton, Stewart,
Stirling, Tummon, Vallance.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

H. Barton, Professor of Agriculture, Macdonald College, McGill Univer-
sity, was called, examined and retired.

Motion by Mr. Coote that the Department of Immigration produce and
file with the Clerk of the Committee, the file respecting John MecGrann and
family, was agreed to.

The Committee then adjourned till Monday, May 7, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

Hotse oF CoMMONS, :
Tuespay, May 8, 1928.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Brown, in the absence of
Mr. Kay, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Boys, Brown, Cahan, Carmichael,
Campbell, Charters, Coote, Donnelly, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Glen, McKenzie,
McPhee, Millar, Ralston, Rowe, Spence, Stewart, Totzke, Vallance.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration

The Hon. George Laz'lgley, of Regina, appeared before the committee and
was examined.

It being one o’clock, the committee adjourned till four p.m.
The committee reconvened at four o’clock.

Mr. Langley was recalled, was further examined and retired.
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Miss Esther Mackie, of Montreal, formerly engaged in immigration and
colonization work, was called before the committee, examined and retired.

Members present: Messrs. Boulanger, Brown, Coote, Donnelly, Dubue,
Fansher, Forke, Glen, Lucag, Ralston, Stewart, Totzke, Vallance.

The committee adjourned at six o’clock p.m. till Wednesday at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Commattee.

House oF CoMMONS,
WepNEspAY, May 9, 1928.

The Committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Brown, in the absence of Mr.
Kay, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Bancroft, Brown, Cahan, Campbell,
Coote, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Garland (Carleton), Glen, Jacobs, Lucas,
McMillan, McPhee, Motherwell, Ralston, Rowe, Sinclair (Wellington North),
Spotton, Spence, Vallance.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

; Colonel T. R. Tudge of the Salvation Army was called, examined and
retired.

Staff Captain Owen Culshaw of the Salvation Army was then called and was
under examination at one o’clock when the committee adjourned till four p.m.

Moved by Mr. Coote that the sub-committee consider the advisability of
calling Mr. Coldwell of Regina, Mr. Lynch of the Department of the Interior,
Ottawa, and Superintendents of Asylums for the Insane in the several provinces,
as witnesses.

Motion carried.

Mr. Edwards gave notice of motion that the committee concludes the taking
of evidence this week, except as to calling witnesses from the Department of
Immigration.

The committee then adjourned till four p.m.
The committee reconvened at four o’clock.

~ Mr. Culshaw was recalled and at six o’clock his examination not being
finished he was requested to appear again to-morrow at 11 a.m.

The chairman read a telegram from the President of the United Farmers
of Canada, Saskatchewan Section, submittting to the committee a resolution
passed in convention, defining the attitude of the United Farmers on the immi-
gration question.

The committee ordered that such resolution be printed in the record.

Members present at the afternoon sittting: Bancroft, Brown, Cahan, Camp-
bell, Coote, Edwards, Forke, Glen, Lucas, McPhee, Totzke, Vallance.

The committee adjourned till 11 a.m., Thursday, May 10th.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.
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House or CoMMONS,
TauUrspAY, May 10, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr, Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Brown, Cahan, Carmichael, Charters,
Donnelly, Dubue, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Glen, Kay, McGibbon, McPhee,
Maybee, Millar, Ralston, Ross, Spotton, Stirling, Vallance, Young.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Mr. Glen, chairman of the sub-committee on correspondence and witnesses,
reported to the committee,

(a) that an official of the National Resources Branch of the Department
of the Interior would be in attendance to give evidence on the question of
available lands for settlement;

(b) that Dr. Amyot, deputy minister, and Dr. Clark, assistant deputy
minister of the Department of Health, were in attendance to give evidence.

(c) that further witnesses, if so desired, should be nominated by the com-
mittee and that the sub-committee be discharged.

The report of the sub-committee was adopted.

By the consent of the committee the motion of Mr. Edwards standing on the
order paper was withdrawn.

After discussion as to calling further witnesses generally and the calling of
Mr. M. J. Coldwell of Regina, in particular, Mr. Carmichael moved that the
committee favours the calling of Mr. Coldwell but that action in that regard be
deferred till after the departmental officials had been heard.

After discussion, Mr. Cahan moved in amendment that Mr. Coldwell be
summoned to attend forthwith.

The motion by Mr. Cahan by way of amendment was carried.

Mr. Millar introduced the subject of the production by him and the filing
and printing in the record, of certain documents or extracts therefrom, in respect
to the subject of reference,—Wheat Grading—On motion by Mr. Vallance it
was decided that Mr. Millar could only get such documents on the record as
evidence by appearing as a witness before the committee and then and there
producing such documents.

Mr. Culshaw was recalled, examined and retired.
Witness discharged.

Dr. Clark, assistant deputy minister, department of Health, was called
and was under examination when the committee adjourned at one o’clock.

The committee reconvened at four o’clock.
Dr. Clark was called, examined and retired.

Mr. J. W. Egan, deputy minister of Immigration was then called, examined
and retired.

The committee adjourned till 11 a.m., Friday, May 11th.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.
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House or CoMMONS,
Fripay, May 11, 1928.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Brown, in the absence of
Mr. Kay, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Boulanger, Brown, Carmichael, Coote,
Donnelly, Dubue, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Garland (Bow River), Garland
(Carleton), Glen, Lucas, McKenzie, McMillan, McPhee, Maybee, Millar,
Ralston, Sinclair (Queens), Sinclair (Wellington North), Tolmie, Totzke.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Mr. Boulanger requested that a certain petition addressed to the Hon. the
Minister of Justice and a memorandum submitted therewith, be referred to the
committee and that the same (in abbreviated form) be printed in the record.

The committee agreed.

Mr. A. L. Jolliffe, Commissioner, Department of Immigration and Coloniza-
tion, was called, examined and retired.

The chairman read to the meeting a telegram addressed to the clerk by
Mr. W. J. Coldwell, who had been summoned to attend before the committee
on Tuesday next.

After full discussion of the situation as developed by the reply of Mr. Cold-
well, it was moved by Mr. Bancroft, seconded by Mr. Glen, that the clerk be
instructed to telegraph Mr. Coldwell that his reply was not acceptable and that
he would be expected to attend before the committee at a later date if so
required.

Motion carried.

The committee decided to again take under consideration the subject of
Wheat Grading on Monday next and the subject of Immigration on Tuesday
next. ;

The committee"then adjourned till Monday, May 14, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House oF CoMMONS, :
TurspAy, May 15, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Bancroft, Brown, Cahan, Campbell,
Carmichael, Charters, Coote, Donnelly, Edwards, Fansher, Eorke, Garland
(Carleton), Glen, Kay, Lucas, McGibbon, McKenzie, McMillan, MpPheg,
Maybee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Rowe, Sinclair (Queens), Sinclair
(Wellington North), Spence, Stewart, Stirling, Tolmie, Vallance.

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

The chairman directed the attention of the committee to the Minutes of
Proceedings of Friday, May 11, 1928, wherein was recorded a motion that the
clerk be instructed to telegraph Mr. Coldwell of Regina, that his reply to a
summons to attend before the committee on Tuesday the fifteenth instant was
not acceptable to the committee and that he would be expected to attend at a
later date if so required.
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The chairman informed the committee that the clerk had telegraphed Mr.
Coldwell, pursuant to the directions of the committee as in the said motion con-
tained and that subsequently upon instructions of the acting chairman had sent
a telegram directing Mr. Coldwell to attend before the committee on Tuesday,
the fifteenth instant.

The chairman stated that Mr. Coldwell was present and, in view of what
had transpired, if the committee wished him to take the stand it would be
necessary to adopt a motion to that effect.

Thereupon Mr. Forke moved that Mr. Coldwell be called.
Motion carried.

During the course of the examination of the witness, the witness was asked
to name a certain person referred to by him in his evidence and upon the witness
demurring and claiming he should be given protection before being required to
answer, the chairman ruled that the committee could not limit nor extend the
protection which by rule of Parliament was afforded witnesses before committees
of the House; that the witness could not excuse himself from answering any
proper question and that the question then put was a proper one.

It being one o’clock the committee adjourned till Wednesday, May 16th, at
11 a.m., when the witness Coldwell would appear for further examination.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House or CoMmMONSs,
WepNespAYy May 16, 1928.
Members present: Messrs. Anderson, Bancroft, Benoit, Boys, Brown, Cahan,
Campbell, Carmichael, Coote, Donnelly, Edwards, Forke, Glen, Jacobs, Kay,

Lucas, McGibbon, McKenzie, McPhee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Ross,
Totzke, Vallance, Young.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m. Mr, Kay presiding.

The chairman directed the attention of the committee to the fact that the
Conservative party was in caucus this morning and that the customary practice
under such circumstances was for committees not to proceed to business,

After discussion the committee decided to adjourn.

Prior to adjournment Mr. Cahan moved that Hen. E. J. McMurray of
Winnipeg be summoned to attend before the committee.

The committee agreed that the motion of Mr. Cahan be put and the chair-
man putting the question the motion carried.

The committee then adjourned till 4 p.m. -
The committee re-convened at 4 o’clock, Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs, Boys, Brown, Campbell, Carmichael, Coote,
Edwards, Fansher, Garland (Carleton), Glen, Jacobs, Kay, Lucas, McGibbon,
McKenzie, McPhee, Millar, Ralston, Rowe, Sinclair (Queens), Sinclair (Wel-
lington North), Spence, Stewart, Forke, Stirling, Totzke, Young.
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By consent the Hon. Mr. Manion M.P., read a prepared statement relative
to the use of his name by witness Coldwell at a previous meeting.

Mr. M. J. Coldwell was recalled, examined and retired.

Witness discharged.

Hon. Mr. Forke, Minister of the Department of Immigration and Coloniza-
tion, appeared before the committee, was sworn, examined and retired.

On motion of Mr. Edwards a file of correspondence and exhibits received
by the clerk from witness Owen Culshaw was ordered filed and printed on the
record.

The committee adjourned sine die.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of the Commiattee.

House or CoMMONS,
Fripay, May 18, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Brown, Cahan, Campbell, Carmichael,
Coote, Donnelly, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Garland (Bow River), Garland
(Carleton), Glen, Jacobs, Kay, Lucas, McKenzie, McPhee, Motherwell, Ralston,
Senn, Sinelair (Wellington North), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Totzke, Vallance,
Young..

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Mr. Garland (Bow River) gave notice of motion that the court records of
the case of Rex vs. Alexander be brought before the committee.

Mr. Cahan moved that Mr. Egan, deputy Minister of Immigration be
re-called.

Motion carried.

Mr. Egan was called, examined and retired.

The chairman read a telegram from Mr. E. J. McMurray of Winnipeg,
advising that he would appear before the committee on Tuesday, the 22nd
instant, as required by summons duly sent him.

The committee adjourned till Tuesday, May 22nd, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.
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House or CoMMONS,
Turespay, May 22, 1928.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present:—Messrs., Baneroft, Boys, Brown, Cahan, Campbell,
Coote, Donnelly, Dubuc, Edwards Fansher, Forke, Garland (Bow River),
Garland (Carleton), Glen, Guthrie, Jacobs Kay, Lucas MeGibbon, McKenzie,
McMillan, McPhee, Maybee, M]llar Motherwell Ralston Senn Smclau‘
(Queens), Sinclair (Wellington North), Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling,
Tolmie, Totzke, Vallance, Young.

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.
E. J. McMugrray was called, sworn, examined and retired.
Witness discharged.

Mr. Campbell, M.P., rose to a question of privilege in respect tc a certain
newspaper article wherein he was reported as having made certain statements
in respect to immigration matters. Mr. Campbell stated to the committee that
the article in question had mis-reported him and gave the correct version.

On motion of Mr. Boys, Mr. Campbell was then called before the com-
mittee as a witness, was sworn, examined and retired.

W. J. Egan, deputy minister of Immigration, was then called, examined
and retired.

Mr. Fansher gave notice of motion that, a sub-committee to draft a report,
be appointed at the next meeting of the committee.

Mr. Lucas moved, seconded by Mr. Edwards, that a Mr. Kennedy be
called as a witness. Motion lost.

Mr. Fansher moved that the proper officer of the Supreme Court of
Ontario be supoened to attend and produce the court record and all exhlblts
filed in the case of Rex vs. Alexander.

Motion carried.
The committee adjourned till Wednesday, May 23, at 11 a.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Cler:k of Committee.

House or CoMMONS,
WEDNESDAY, May 23, 1928.

The Committee eame to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Arthurs, Bancroft, Boulanger, Brown, Cahan,
Campbell, Carmichael, Coote, Donnelly, Dubue, Edwards, Fansher, Forke,
Garland (Bow River), Garland (Carleton), Glen, Guthrie, Kay, Lucas,
MecGibbon, MceMillan, Maybee, Millar, Mctherwell, Ralston, Stewart, Stirling,
Tolmie, Totzke, Vallance, Young.

The Committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Discussion took place respecting editorials appearing in several news-
papers, critical of the proceedings of the Committee.
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Followed discussion at length respecting a telegram in the possession of
and referred to by a member of the Committee, at a previous sitting.

Mr. Boys moved that S. Kolchin of Winnipeg, named in the telegram in
question, be summoned to appear before the Committee.
Motion carried.

Mr. Boys moved that the person who signed the telegram in question be
summoned to appear before the Committee. After discussion of the motion
the same was, by consent, withdrawn.

g Mr. Edwards moved that the telegram in question be produced and
éncludod in the record. After discussion the motion, by consent, was with-
rawn.

Mr. Garland (Carleton) rose to a point of order, questioning the relevancy
of remarks being then made by another member.
The chairman ruled that the point of order was not well taken.

Mzr. Coote read a Resolution of the United Farmers of Alberta, and by the
consent of the Committee, the same was read into the record.

Mr. Cahan moved that Orders in Council, P.C. 183, P.C. 642, and P.C. 534
be produced and filed.

Motion carried.

Mr. Fansher, pursuant to notice given, moved that a sub-committee be
appointed to draft a report and submit same to the Committee for its considera-
tion; the members of the said sub-committee to be as follows, namely: Messrs.

Kay, Stewart, Glen, Boulanger, Donnelly, Cahan, McGibbon, Edwards, and
Carmichael.

Motion carried.

The Committee then adjourned at the call of the chair.

A. A. Fraser,
Clerk of Committee.

Housk or CoaMmONS, -
Tuespay, May 29, 1928.

The meeting came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Arthurs, Bancroft, Boulanger, Boys, Brown,
Cahan, Campbell, Carmichael, Charters, Coote, Edwards, Forke, Garland (Bow
River), Garland (Carleton), Glen, Kay, Lucas, McKenzie, McMillan, McPhee,
Maybee, Millar, Motherwell, Ralston, Sinclair, Sinelair, Stewart, Tolmie, Totzke,
Vallance, Young.

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

The chairman read a report prepared by the clerk, in the matter of the wit-
ness S. Kolchin. The committee decided that the summons to S. Kolchin be

cancelled.
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The chairman then read a report from the clerk in the matter of Rex vs.
Alexander when the committee decided that no further action be taken in this
matter other than by filing and printing into the record the documents referred
to in the said report.

W. J. Egan was then called and stated that he produced the list of names
of members of Parliament and others and the numbers of letters of admittance
credited to each for the period from April, 1926 to April 1928, inclusive.

Before the witness was permitted to read the said list Mr. Edwards moved
that an additional list dating back to be prepared by the witness. After
discussion Mr. Edwards asked that the motion stand until the list now produced
be read. The motion stood by consent.

Mr. Egan then read the list by him produced.

Discussion followed.

Mr. Cahan moved that the correspondence, if any, on the departmental files
in the matter of S. Kolchin, be produced.

Motion carried.

The committee adjourned till 4 p.m. when Bill 188, An Act to amend the
Canada Grain Act, will be considered.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.

House oF CoMMONS,
WepxEespay, May 30, 1928.

The committee came to order at 11 a.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bancroft, Brown, Campbell, Carmichazl, Don-
nelly, Dubue, Edwards, Fansher, Forke, Glen, Kay, McKenzie, Maybee, Millar,
%ﬂoﬁherwell, Ralston, Sinclair, Spence, Spotton, Stewart, Stirling, Totzke,

allance.

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.

Mr. Edwards renewed the motion standing on the order paper, in his name,
with a certain amendment thereto.

The motion as moved and now put; that the department file a list of
letters of admission issued and the names of the sponsors thereto, dating back
to the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1920.

Motion ecarried.
W. J. Egan was again called, examined and retired.

The committee adjourned till four o’clock, p.m.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.
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House or COMMONS,
WepNESDAY, May 30, 1928.
The committee came to order at four o’clock p.m., Mr. Kay presiding.

Members present: Messrs., Boulanger, Brown, Donnelly, Edwards, Fansher,
TForke, Glen, Kay, Lucas, McPhee, Ralston, Ross, Stewart, Young.

The committee again took under consideration the subject of Immigration.
W. J. Egan was again called, examined and retired.
Witness discharged.

Mr. Glen moved that the taking of evidence be now deemed concluded and
that the committee meet to-morrow morning at 11 o’clock, for discussion, in
camera.

Motion carried.

A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House orF CoMMONS,
TaurspAY, March 8, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The CuamrMAN: The reference made to us is in the following terms:—

That the Immigration Act and Regulations thereunder, and the
general subject of immigration, including the work of the Department of
Immigration and Colonization be referred to the Committee on Agricul-
ture and Colonization for consideration and report.

What is your pleasure as to how we will take this reference up?

Hon. Mr. Ratston: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest, if I might, that while
the matter of the Reference itself is very brief, the resolution, it seems to me,
Involves at the same time a good msny phases. I understand there was some-
thing said the other day about having some sort of agenda so that members
would know that on a certain day a certain subject would be coming up. There
?mght.‘be some phases in which one member would be interested and some phases
in which another member would be interested; and it would assist the admin-
1stration of the department if something like that could be arrived at. Perhaps
a sub-committee, or some members of the committee, could take that up with
you, Mr. Chairman. It seems to me that would be a good way to proceed.

I do feel that some general intimation ought to be made to the officials of
the Immigration Department as to the way in which this matter will be con-
ducted. That is to say, we have had a certain amount of talk in the newspapers,
and a little talk in the House of Commons, regarding matters affecting the Immi-
gration Department; some suggestion of suspicion and all that sort of thing—and
if this is.to be conducted more or less—if I may put it without trying to use too
strong a phrase—as an inquisition I think that the officials of the department
ought to be told that in order that they may govern themselves accordingly.
It is one thing to have officials of the department before you and ask them to
co-operate with you and give the fullest suggestions in connection with matters
of improvement and policy, and it is quite another thing to have them before
you for the purpose of seeing whether or not they can be trapped, and whether
charges can be laid against them; and it seems to me that the officials of this
department should have some intimation as to whether this is more or less a
round table conference, in order to ascertain what the policy and operation of
the department is with the idea of improving it, if improvement is necessary;
or whether, as I said before, it is an investigation into the good faith of the
officials who have been running the department. I suggest that only because
I think it is only fair to them. We do not have to be lawyers to know that
people are not guilty until they are proved so. But, on the other hand, our
sense of fair play tells us that when you ask people to disclose in the fullest
possible way what their opinions and ideas are they want to know that they
are going into an atmosphere of co-operation and general confidence, which I
think probably does exist and will exist in connection with this committee.
But I do feel that some intimation should be made to these gentlemen so that
they will know exactly the atmosphere in which they find themselves. Let me

65927—3 1
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gay this, that as far as I am concerned, and as far as the government is con-
cerned, the fullest possible scope will be given. There is no idea of limiting
the thing in any way, shape or form; but it is due these officials, I think that
some intimation should be made in order, as I say, that they may know exactly
the atmosphere in which they are placed. My own suggestion, if I may put it,
would be that——

Mr. Caman: The honourable gentleman was not here the other day, when
the concensus of the committee certainly was that we should ask the officials of
the department to give us a general word picture of the organization, work and
operation of the department; to state what their difficulties were so far as they
found them, and to put before us a general picture of the work of immigration
in all its important ramifications, and then if anyone wants to bring up later
any particular matter or grievance why there would be ample opportunity to
do so. But we, who are members of this committee representing the side of the
House which I represent, wish to face it as a great national matter and avoid,
as far as we can, the discussion of immaterial and incidental matters. I think
the general concensus of everyone was that we should ask the officials to give a
broad outline of their work and operation, and that after we had heard that,
after the agreements and contracts had been brought down, after the instructions
which were outstanding to immigration agents were brought down, then we
would be able, perhaps, to proceed with a more definite agenda. But we are
dealing with a national problem now. We hope to deal with it as such, and
we hope to avoid anything petty. We wish to know the immigration agencies,
the agreements with the railways, with the immigration associations, if there are
any agreements outstanding; we wish to have a general outline of the whole
system, and, after that, we can resolve upon some definite agenda.

Hon. Mr. Rarston: My honourable friend did not quite catch me. What
I had in mind was whether the officials could come here feeling that they would
sit in a round table conference in order to give information.

Mr. Cagan: That is what we wish. ;

Hon. Mr. Rauston: Not under suspicion of bad faith.

Mr. Cauax: I have never heard any suggestion of that.

Hon. Mr. Rarston: There has been something said in the press.

Mr. Canan: We have no such desire.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Mr. Chairman, I do not know whether I gathered the
purport of what the Honourable Minister of National Defence intended to
convey, but it strikes me that the first thing to do is to lay a foundation, as
was suggested at the last meeting, to get the instructions given to the various
agents of the government in whatever countries they are in. We are not in a
position to estimate whether they are doing the work until we know what their
instructions are, and what are the contracts with transportation companies and
with various organizations engaged in immigration work. I think we can
get, that this morning from the deputy minister who is here. First of all, we
want this general information. The officers of the department are officers
of this country. We will co-operate with them, of course, and we will expect
their co-operation in bringing out all the information that we can possibly
get in regard to immigration work. But it seems to me that as officers of the
department, it is inevitable that they should submit to questions which per-
haps will look to them ecritical. It is not the idea of this committee, I take it,
to put anybody on the rack; the idea is to get information. There should be
no limit whatever to what any person on this committee may see fit to ask
of the officials of the department. They are officials of the Dominion of Can-
ada, and must give all the information required of them, and I assume, to
start with, that they will be willing to do so, no matter how critical it may be.
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Hon. Mr. Ratston: I said that the fullest information was, of course,
available. I was only talking of the officials themselves. Nobody can deny
that the officials can be put on the rack and asked any question, and they
must answer any question. The files of the department are wide open. I was
only talking of the spirit and attitude towards the officials. There is one
critical attitude that can be taken, and the committee can be as critical as it
desires, and that is for the good of the country: the attitude that the depart-
ment have been wrong in this connection, or that this or that is a wrong inter-
pretation of the law, or something like that. Then there is criticism on the
ground of bad faith and things of that sort.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Yes, that is alright.

Hon. Mr. Ratstox: I take it that there is no suggestion of bad faith, but
that we are to get information for the improvement of the policy and admin-
istration of the department. I think that that information is due to the
officials more for the reason, as my honourable friend, Dr. Edwards says, that
they must answer any questions put to them. They cannot plead privilege
and things of that sort, but I think the committee should be careful to estab-
lish an atmosphere which would bring with it the very best results.

Mr. McGmeBon: It strikes me that this is a rather peculiar introduction
of this subject. Surely the minister is not trying to suggest that this com-
mittee is prejudicial to the officials, or anything of the kind. I do not know
why he makes such a statement.

Hon. Mr. Ravston: Because in the House and in the country the word
“ suspicion ” has been constantly used.

Mr. McGisBon: We are not responsible for the newspapers.
i Hon. Mr. Rauston: It is not only the newspapers, but in the House as
well.

Hon. Mr. Forke: I do not intend to take any prominent part in this unless
I have to. But I want to say that as far as I am personally concerned, I will
do everything T can to facilitate the work of the committee and give it all the
information that is possible. Personally, I am as much interested as any
member of this committee with regard to criticisms. Some of them in the
House have been perfectly legitimate and alright. I can take my medicine.
Some of them have not been very kind sometimes, but they have not hurt
very much. After all; I have nothing to hide; bring it all out.

Mr. McGisson: It goes with the job.

Hon. Mr. Forgr: But I do hope that when this committee ends its delib-
erations they will be able to give me some concrete advice that will help me
in administering the department of Immigration and Colonization. I want
to tell you gentlemen that there has not been a speech made in the House of
Commons that I have not watched for some constructive thought, that would

help me in my work. Now, I do not want to speak in a derogatory sense,
but I haven’t got any.

W. J. EcaN, Deputy Minister of Immigration, called and sworn:—

Mr. Caman: I would suggest that Mr. Egan be asked to give us a gen-
eral statement of the organization and operation of the Immigration department
in about, the same spirit as he would give it to a new minister coming in, who
knew_nothmg about the department at all, and did not know what the general
machinery and operations of the department are.

Wirness: This is'a fairly large order. I just don’t know how quite to
approach the proposition as suggested. I feel that I should not in any way
assert a policy; I think that a declaration of policy should come from the min-
ister. If T am allowed to pass over the policy proposition, then I can review the
work of the department, and perhaps start in with British immigration. Out-

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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side of general policy, but more or less connected with it, our work, owing to the
conditions that prevail both on the Continent and here—on the Continent it
was an after-war effect, and it was to some extent here—our work was entirely
directional. That is the only part I will touch on policy.

Mr. Caman: Give us a statement of the organization of your department
here, and then of your general organization as it extends into Great Britain, as
it extends i in the United States and other countries, so that we may see Wha.t
the machinery of the department is.

Wirness: Just in a general way? You do not expect me to get down to
the actual details in each branch of service?

Mr. Cauan: No, we want a general view of the whole organization.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: Just take your Canadian organization, Mr. Egan, and
then go into the United States and Britain.

Hon. Mr. Forke: Begin with the organization down at the Jackson Build-
ing and work out from that.

Wirness: Our organization in the department of Immigration has its head-
quarters here in Ottawa. The organization here is for the purpose, naturally, of
conducting and carrying out the policy of the government in connection with
immigration. We have under our immediate supervision here for the work a
commissioner of colonization, a commissioner of immigration, and three divis-
ional commissioners throughout Canada, each handling a section of Canada
in-as-far as the administration of the Act is concerned. Ce

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Will you name those three commissioners, and the sections they operate
in?—A. Yes. Commissioner Fraser for the Eastern division; Commissioner
Jolliffe, for the Western division; and Commissioner Skinner, for the Pacific
division.

Q. Which is the Eastern division; how far does it go?—A, I would have
to refer to documents to give you the exact line. It is just this side of Winnipeg,
The Western division works from that immediate point east of Winnipeg to a
few miles inside of British Columbia. The Pacific division works from that
particular point to the coast.

By Mr. Totzke:

Q. Where are these commissioners situated?—A. In Ottawa, Winnipeg and
Vancouver. At headquarters here we have the Commissioner of Immigration
and the Commissioner of Colonization. We have the superintendent of the
Women’s Branch and the superintendent of the Juvenile branch. The Com-
missioner of Immigration has the supervision of the three divisional commis-
sioners; he checks up their particular work in-as-far as the Act requires. The
supermtendent of the Women’s branch has in her care the pla.cement of women
coming under our direction for domestic service.

Hon. Mr. StewArT: Give her name.

The Wrirness: Miss Burnham, and Mr. Smart is the superintendent of
the Juvenile branch. The superintendent of juvenile immigration has the whole
of that work under his care with, of course, a number of inspectors who make
their regular visits, of inquiry in connection Wlth juveniles who have been placed
in the country. AAs far as we are concerned in a general way, in Canada within
the last four years, realizing that the Soldiers’ Settlement Board had within its
body men of experience who could do a certain work, more particularly in con-
nection with directional work, and has a land settlement branch—part of their
work is in connection with the possibilities of settling the people in their particu-
lar areas as well as the after care in seeing that they are placed if they are out
of work—British immigrants who come under the assisted passage. There is so
much to speak of that one does not know where to stop or begin in connection

Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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with the work here. So many people forget, when speaking of the Immigration
department and its cost, that we have our far-flung borders, from coast to coast,
our immigration officials who, naturally, are there, in a great measure, for
the prevention of illegal entry, and have nothing to do whatsoever with the
expense of encouraging immigration or the placing of immigrants.

Then, of course there are the ports for the receiving of the people at
Halifax, St. John, Quebec city, Montreal to some extent, and the Pacific division
so far as the seaports are concerned.

Arising from our work here, we carry on also the supervision of our
American work from Ottawa. We have in the United States some seventeen
offices divided into as many districts. This work is carried on in a very thorough
way, and is supervised by Mr. W. R. Little, who superintends the American
field as well as acting as commissioner of Colonization here. We make regular
visits of inspection to our offices and supervise their work and the distribution of
literature. Our officers are not known as immigration agents, but are “informa-
tion Bureaus” in the United States. .

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Does Mr. Little communicate with the seventeen agencies that you have
in the United States, or have you one man over these seventeen in the United
States?—A. No, he communicates with them and visits them regularly.

Q. Each one?—A. Yes, each one; some not so often as others. Then, they
have a conference once a year, a meeting of the officers from Headquarters as
well as Mr. Little.

Q. Will you place in the hands of the committee, a little later on, the
divisions in the United States, where they are located, and the names of the
men who are engaged there, please?—A. Yes, gladly, sir.

(See productions at page 738 post.)

Q. You can hand that in any time this week?—A. Yes, sir. Our work in
the United States is naturally a different work to what it is in other fields. We
carry on not so much with lectures, but with inquiries. We carry on a very big
advertizing campaign and our follow-up system is as thorough as we know how
to make it. We can tell you the prospective immigrant in any given district.
And there are times that prospective immigrants are interviewed, far beyond
the results of advertizing and publicity of any kind. We have our officers make
a canvass of the possibilities in that immediate environment for people moving
into Canada, and we follow them up with publicity, both direct and indirect.
I might cover it in that very short way and then go to the United Kingdom.

In the United Kingdom we have altogether twenty-one officers. I have a
little review here. As far as the United Kingdom is concerned there are ten
agencies in the British Isles for the sole purpose of obtaining British immigrants.
Competent agents are in charge of these offices. They are all Canadians now.
In eight of the offices we have, in addition to the agents, Grade No. 1, or assistant
agents. Attached to these agencies we, also, have eight women officers whose
duty it is to interview and select suitable household workers for employment in
Canada. We have, therefore, approximately 30 officers of Canadian training
who are competent to interview and select immigrants who receive the reduced
passage rates, and who are coming to Canada under the Empire Settlement
Scheme. Our total organization in the United Kingdom comprises 137 officials.

We advertise in the United Kingdom in 453 news-papers and journals; that
is in Great Britain and Ireland.

In regard to Exhibitions, last year Emigration agents attended 108 agricul-
tural shows. At these exhibitions Canadian agricultural products were dis-
played and over 250,000 pieces of literature were distributed.

We have motor vans in the British Isles. During the year, the officials in
charge of the motor vans distributed over 78,000 pieces of literature; there we

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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specialize wherever possible with school children of fairly good age, so that they
may become interested in our literature. Our officers delivered lectures last year
in the smaller towns and villages in good agricultural districts in the United
Kingdom and Northern Ireland. They gave 244 lectures. Lantern slides are
used by the agents at these lectures. We distributed all told in the old country
over a half million pieces of literature. Last year alone, outside of our advertis-
ing, we secured, either direct or indirect, for publicity purposes space for 1,354
items.

In connection with our work in the old country a great deal of time was
devoted to the selection of 3,000 families under what is called the “3,000 Family
Scheme”. Would you like the details as to what that scheme is? The Canadian
government provided the farms with suitable buildings at reasonable cost and
the British government advanced $1,500 for stock and equipment. This scheme
expired on the 1st of July last year; but not having been completed as to the
full 3,000 families it has been renewed, and we are carrying on this year.

Part of our work in the old country is securing farm laborers as well as
domestic servants, and in that connection the Oversea Settlement Department
of the British government have co-operated in various schemes of assisted pass-
age. I have information in connection with that, but I presume it is better to
have it brought out on any questions that may be asked of officials.

By Mr. Millar:

Q. In connection with the 3,000 family scheme, does the Canadian govern-
ment become responsible for the repayment of any of this loan by the British
government?—A. Yes, the Canadian government undertook collection of that
loan of $1,500 after these people are under way.

Q. I asked if the Canadian government became responsible for the repay-
ment of this money?—A. Not responsible in any way. They undertook the
collection only.

Hon. Mr. Forke: Don't they share fifty-fifty of the loss?

The Wrrness: Should any loss oceur in connection with these advances—
for instance, the $1,500 may go for stock and equipment and there may be a
little loss in four years—the British and Canadian governments share fifty-fifty
per cent on those losses, should they occur.

Mr. Caman: Can you tell us what other agencies and associations co-operate
with the Immigration department in England? Is there any relation to the
Salvation Army; or any relation to the Barnado children scheme; or any relation
to any other agency or association?

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that if my honourable
friend will allow Mr. Egan to finish, then we can deal with all these agencies.

The Wirtness: Would you care to have the details in connection with the
Empire Settlement Scheme. Tt is pretty well known to every gentleman in the
room, but would you like to have it reviewed?

Mr. GarLaxp (Bow River): I suggest that yeu complete the organization
first.

The Wrirness: On the continent we have a number of officers situated, at
Rotterdam, at Paris. ..

Hon. Mr. Forke: You did not explain about Mr. Bruce Walker being the
head of the whole thing.

The Wrrness: No, I did not. In connection with the old country agencies,
Mr. Bruce Walker is the director of all overseas work with Headquarters in
London. All of these officers that T mention are, of course, under his immediate
supervision. We have also an assistant to the director, and included in the 137.
QOut, of that number is the Headquarters staff at London. Mr. Bruce Walker
supervises and superintends the work of these men, and travels from post to

Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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post. We have inaugurated, in reference to these offices within the last few years,
a system which gives us perfect control, as far as an inquiry from any individual
who may be interested in the possibilities of moving to this country is concerned,
and we have our follow-up system and our check-back books of the system if
the immigrant has made up his mind not to come. We would be glad to go into
details and show how an effort is made to secure from the old country as many
immigrants as we possibly can.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Would you also, Mr. Egan, at your convenience—not necessarily now—
give us the names and locations of those agencies in the United Kingdom?—
A. In the United Kingdom and on the continent too? :(See productions at page
739 post).

Q. And on the continent?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Totzke:

Q. Are the medical examiners included in this list?—A. No, entirely outside.
At a certain season of the year, Soldiers’ Settlement men go over in connection
with the selection of families and the final test of the families for settlement
here, for the last four or five years. As far as the continent is concerned, one
hears a great deal about what we should do in the type of propaganda in certain
countries. As a matter of fact, there is only one country on the whole continent,
Holland, where we are allowed to carry on propaganda. I started to name the
various agencies. There is Paris, Rotterdam, Riga, Danzig, Antwerp, and oune
other which I ferget for the moment. We keep a complete record of all immi-
grants and the amount of money they are carrying, and the country of origin.
We do not carry on general publicity there. The purpose of our officers is to
visa the passports of the incoming immigrants {rom the continent. They must
be coming in under certain conditions of employment and labour that have been
approved of.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Would your instructions to the agents on the continent be identical with
those given to the agencies in the United Kingdom?—A. No, they are different
entirely.

Q. I would ask also that the instructions to the United States and
the agents in the various countries be also put in the record—A. (See
Productions at page 748 post). There are non-preferred countries and preferred
countries. Arising out of the decision of the government some six years ago,
an order .in council was passed which permitted only those of the agricultural
type to come from anywhere on the continent. In a very short time, through
the request of certain interests it was felt (it was never made public that one
was called a preferred country and another was called a non-preferred country)
it was more or less understood between the parties who were interested in the
emigration of people from the continent, that particular Order in Council which
required people of the agricultural type only, to come from the continent was
more or less inoperative for the time being in-so-far as Holland, Belgium, France
and Switzerland were concerned; also the Scandinavian countries. Within the
last year and a half Germany has been brought in. Any man coming from these
countries may come into the country if he is mentally and physically fit and able
to look after himself. We have as near as possible the open door. Below
the German line on the continent are what is termed the non-preferred countries.
We have no agent in the interior; our agents are at the ports only for the purpose
of visaing the documents and examining the man before he leaves that section
of Europe to come to Canada. We carry on no propaganda in those countries.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Are those discriminations made by Order in Council or by departmental
instructions?—A. That is as to the dropping of certain countries?

Q. Yes?—A. Not by Order in Council; no.

Q. Would you please give us copies of the instructions in that respect?—
A. Yes, I would be glad to. It was with the Canadian interests, the Canadian
National Railways and the Canadian Pacific Railway, that we worked out the
proposition termed the non-preferred countries, not including Italy. Italy is not
in the railway agreement. We are co-operating with the railways for the secur-
ing of emigrants for farm placement here, the undertaking of the railways being
to recruit the suitable type, and place them at agricultural work in Canada.

Q. Would you please give us copies of the agreements which you have with
the railways?—A. Yes, I would be glad to. I presume that the agreement
for this year is quite sufficient?

Q. I suppose it is the same as last year?—A. No, it is not.

Q. Perhaps we might have both?—A. Yes. (See Productions at page 732
post.) This year’s agreement with the railways is different in this respect, that
the previous agreement allowed the railways to function for government in-as-far
as type was concerned. The emigrants were recruited by them and not by any
booking agent or anything of that kind. They, the Railways, appointed a
man with Canadian experience responsible to the president of his railway for
this particular work. So they were the Railway selection officers, and having
selected a type they gave him a certificate which up to this year was a warrant
without question that this man was of the physical type with the natural farming
ability and experience to do farming in this country. This year that does not
exist. He is recruited as yet by the railway representative in a particular
country and brought forward and checked by our officer this year as to his
suitability for that particular work here. That is the difference between last
year’s agreement and that of this year. :

Hon. Mr. RaLston: One of the members of the committee mentioned medi-
cal examiners and asked if they were included in that organization. I do not
know whether that comes in appropriately or not. I think you had better explain
your organization with regard to medical inspection.

The Wrrxess: I am afraid I have come entirely unprepared from the
point of view of expounding in detail. T did not know what was required of
me to-day, and I am afraid I have only covered the matter in a very very general
way. If I may, I would suggest an open meeting; questions asked will bring you
more details, after I have covered all this information, and perhaps give me some
angles to start out on.

Mr. Caran: You are doing well.

The WirNess: Thank you.

Hon. Mr. Forke: The railways are still bound to select the same type. Our
officer looks them over. J

The Wrrness: I thought, perhaps, T would leave that until we give them
copies. That is what I had in the back of my mind when I was covering that.
I have just gone over our organization as it exists as far as its far-flung points
are concerned. : .

Mr. Gervais: Has the department an organization in the United States?

The Wrirness: Yes, I covered that in the earlier part of my talk. We
have seventeen different agencies in the United States. This year more particu-
larly; in fact, entirely as far as the medical examination is concerned, it all
came about on account of the Empire Settlement assisted passage. We used
over there the roster doctors, and the department of Health sent over twa
doctors to check the work of the roster doctors—in their medical examinations.

Mr. W, J. Bgan.]
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Each year since I have been in charge of the department, and previously,
there has been considerable and continued pressure from many interests in
Canada for medical examination. One of the strongest reasons was that rather
than turn people back from the ports of entry in Canada it would be much
better that they should be examined on the continent, at the continental ports
and within the United Kingdom; and that was established this year—the
medical services in co-operation, of course, with the department of Health.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: If I may interrupt, I think you ought to make one
point clear to the committee. You spoke of the medical health organization as
though it were part of your organization. I think you should make it clear
that it is a different organization over which you have no control. Explain to
the committee the difference between the Health department and your depart-
ment.

The Wirness: In answer to the request in reference to the department of
Health, perhaps I had better cover that. It is clearly and distinctly understood
that we have no control over the medical services or over their work; that is
entirely with the department of Health of Canada. Here are some of the
reasons which brought about the necessity for the medical examination. At
the Federal-Provincial Immigration Conference of November, 1923, more care-
ful medical inspection and the desirability of doing this prior to sailing, was
repeatedly stressed by Provincial delegates. May I say that that conference
teok place five months after I took charge of the department. I was particu-
larly impressed with what the representative of each province throughout
Canada had to tell me in connection with their provineial public charges as a
result of people not being healthy, and who had left either the old country or the
continent and had settled in their various provinces. This is covered by this
note from the various provinces from time to time, complaining that the cost
of maintenance of those who, after being admitted to Canada as immigrants,
later became charges in provincial institutions for causes existant at the time
of entry. Similar complaints have ben received from many municipalities and
from hospitals.

A resolution was passed at the Social Service Council of the Church of
England in November, 1922, urging inspection overseas. Similar action has
been taken by other Social Service agencies. ;

_The Hamilton Chamber of Commerce, in July, 1925, passed a resolution
calling for medical inspection prior to sailing.

The Native Sons of Canada and Canadian Daughters’ Leagues, two years
ago, adopted a similar resolution.

The Province of Quebec, by order in council of April, 1927, approved of a
resol.ution adopted by the Dominion Council of Health, which calls for the
medical examination of all immigrants prior to sailing. :

An appeal was received from the Nova Scotia government in November,
1926, asking for examination prior to sailing. ]

Editorials have appeared from time to time in leading Canadian papers
strongly recommending inspection abroad. The Canadian Council of Agncql-
ture, which is affiliated with the United Farmers of Alberta, Manitoba, Ontario,
end Quebec, the United Grain Growers, Limited, and the Grain Growers’ Guide,
wrote in October last.

The Canadian Council of Agriculture then goes on with the details, and so
on. I could give you many other resolutions; these are not all we have by any
means.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :
: Q. When was the medical inspection adopted?—A. The first of February,
928.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Q. Have you in your hands the names of the doctors?—A. No, that is
under the Department of Health.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Have you the instructions issued to them?—A. No; that would be
entirely under the Department of Health.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. Who is the executive—not the political executive?—A. Doctor Amyot,

the Deputy Minister.
Q. Residing in Ottawa?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Anderson (Halton):

Q. May 1 ask if the Department of Immigration is not responsible for the
acceptance of these doctors?—A. Not in any shape, form or manner, sir.

_ Q. You have nothing whatever to do with that?—A. No, nothing what-
ever.

Q. Nor with the origination of the policy?—A. Not with the origination
of the policy. The first call for medical inspection was when we assumed the
liability in connection with assisted passages; we wanted to make sure that
the people who were securing assisted passages were in the best of health.
It was then the examination regarding health was inaugurated. Many bodies
have been memorializing us for years in regard to the medical inspection;
I have only quoted a very few.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. The appropriation for the paymenf of these doctors comes under—A.
The Department of Health.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Do I understand that no responsible official of the government is respon-
sible for the policies laid down in this examination? Is it left to deputy min-
isters and ministers who are not responsible to parliament or anybody else?—
A. No, of course not. The deputy ministers consult with their ministers. As
a matter of fact, at the conference in connection with it, both the Minister of
Immigration and the Minister of Health attended when we were discussing
the whole proposition—on more than one occasion.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. Who would be responsible for making out the schedule? I think that
is what Dr. McGibbons means. Who would be responsible for making out the
schedule which has to be filled in by the intending immigrant?—A. There is
no schedule filled out by the intending immigrant as far as health is con-
cerned, in any shape, form or manner.

By Mr. McGibbon: :

Q. There must be some instructions laid down to those medical men.—
A. Yes.

Q. Who is responsible for those?—A. The Minister of Health, of course,
working in co-operation with us. We have one of our officers now on the
other side. Having heard so many stories as to how it was not working, we
have one of our own officers there. We believe that the Department of Health
has worked out a very fine system, and one that will work to the best advan-
tage of everybody, but we wanted to make doubly sure, and we sent one of our
officers there to check up and report to us.

DMr, W, J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Brown:

Q. You say that no immigrant will fill out a schedule of questions?—A.
Not as regarding medical questions.

Q. It has been stated some 90 questions had to be answered.—A. That I do
not know. That is romance to me, so far. The Department of Health might be
able to answer that.

Hon. Mr. Forkr: It is in regard to those people seeking assisted passage.

The Wirness: Ah, yes; that has nothing to do with his health.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. There is no one paper which asks so many questions. There are three
sets of papers for different individuals coming under different schemes, and
if you multiply them all together you will get approximately that number,
but no one man has to fill out anything like that number?—A. I was cover-
ing it entirely from the Health point of view. 3

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. May we have a copy of the instructions issued to the medical men?—
A. T have no authority over that, but I presume the Department of Health
will be glad to let you have it. We can give you copies of instructions to our
officials in regard to certain examinations.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
, Q. We will have the officers of the Department of Health here, and they
may be examined?—A. I have covered this, I know, in a very inadequate and
polczir way. I am not in very good shape, as I have been suffering from a severe
cold—

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. While we are on the matter of health: you mentioned the roster doctors,
and then went on to describe what the situation is now. What do you mean
by a “roster doctor?” What do they do? By whom are they instructed? If
any change was made, what was that change? The roster doctors were British
doctors?—A. Yes, British registered doctors organized by the Old Country
government in connection with some of their requirements. They were first
recognized by Australia and New Zealand in connection with immigrants going
to those countries. It is a body organized in the Old Country in connection
with some of their particular insurance and other requirements of the Old
Country laws. When we saw the necessity for a medical examination, we
selected a certain number of doctors out of this roster doctor program to make
the medical examinations required in connection with all receiving assisted
passage to Canada—either loan or assisted passage, according to the various
phases it went, through from the beginning of the Empire settlement. These
doctors are now only used in a limited way, in outlying places, to save the
people having to travel too far. I would much prefer to have the Department
of Health tell you, in connection with their system and their organization,
what it means. I may tell you offhand that all this story about loss of days
is not a fact. There are few who have to travel more than six to ten miles, and
outside of that distance we work with the roster doctors in certain districts
to prevent the difficulties which some people said existed.

Q. The Act which you administer provides for certain physical require-
ments?—A. Yes.

Q. And says that a person shall not be physically defective, and shall not
have tuberculosis and certain contagious diseases?—A. Yes.

Q. It is the examination for those which is handed over by you to the
Department of Health?—A. Yes. Before our medical officers were appointed
overseas that examination took place at the port of debarkation, and very often

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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caused a great deal of inconvenience and suffering to people who had to return.
I much prefer to have the Department of Health explain what the percentage
of rejections was.

Q. Your department is the one which has to say whether the people are
physically fit, under the Act, and in order to make certain about that you asked
the duty to be performed by the Department of Health?—A. Yes. In the
past it has been performed at the port of entry, but is now undertaken by the
doctors in the Old Country.

Q. Was it done then by the Department of Health?—A. Yes, at Quebec
Halifax and St. John.

By Mr. McGibbon: .

Q. Part of that work is still being done by the roster doctors?—A. Only
in remote districts.

Q. ¥You said over six to eight miles?—A. I said that the examination by
an actual Canadian doctor very seldom means more than six to ten miles’
travel for anybody. When it is beyond that point the Medical Department
have arranged with the roster doctors in certain districts to make the examina-
tions at a special fee for the benefit of the people who desire to emigrate. The
Department of Health will explain that more in detail.

Q. That means they are still doing a large portion of the work?—A. No
sir, not a large portion, but a very limited portion.

Q. I cannot reconcile those two statements.—A. Perhaps you will, if I
point this out; there are 334 places of examination by these eighteen Canadian |
doctors in the British Isles, which are visited regularly by these doctors.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. Mr. Egan, I think you might make it a little plainer if it is understood
that the immigrant is.never landed until he is landed on Canadian soil, and all
these examinations on the other side are really for the protection of the immi-
grant, so that he will not come across the ocean and be sent back. That is
the point of all these examinations. I do not like to interfere—

Mr. Causan: You will be given ample opportunity to make a statement,
later.

Hon. Mr. Forke: I do not like to see a point missed.

Mr. Cauan: We will not miss many points before we are through.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Before leaving that subject, what arrangement is made for the exam-
ination of immigrants who are not assisted in any way?—A. Every immigrant
must be examined before being admitted to Canada.

Q. Where?—A. In the British Isles——in one of these 334 places.

By Mr. Anderson (Halton):

Q. Are they re-examined in Canada?—A. I understand there will be a
cursory examination. The Department of Health will be glad to explain that
to you in detail. I have covered my submission to you in a very,,very brief
way, but I am prepared to answer any questions which you may put to me.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Mr. Egan, if you have finished that, in order that we may understand
your relations with other agencies, would you please state any associations, such
as the Salvation Army and others, with whom you have relationship in the matter
of immigration?—A. Our annual report will practically give you all the details
in that respect. (Report to be distributed to the members of the Commaittee.)

[Mr., W. J. Egan.]
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Mgz. Epwarps (Frontenac): If Mr. Cahan will permit me I weuld like to
ask one question,
Mg. Caman: Certainly.

By Mr. Edwards (Fronteﬁac):

Q. Mr. Egan, suppose you get an inquiry in the United States from a person
who wants to come to Canada; what 1s your procedure with regard to that
person? He makes his application to one of our agents?—A. Yes; it may come
in answer to an advertisement.

Q. Will you follow that fellow across to this side? What is done with him?
Supposing, for instance, he said he wanted to go to Manitoba?—A. If he
expressed a desire, or an interest, in Manitoba with our agent, our agent would
immediately make arrangements with him in connection with the time best
for him to move, and would give him what is called by us a “directional cer-
tificate”, which is a linen-backed proposition, and would direct him to an officer
of the Land Settlement Branch, with whom he would advise in connection with
placement. We would give him some information. If he had already spoken of
Manitoba, the chances are ten to one he would speak of some given district.
He may have come to us because a neighbour, already settled in Manitoba in a
given district, had written to him, and he may have all the information he
requires in that respect; but for guidance on the way in, we give him this
particular certificate, which lands him in this district. Then he comes under
the care of our officers, who are prepared to help him in every way they can.

Q. That is, when he gets to the border he has the privilege of meeting with
your officer at, say, Winnipeg or Toronto, and having the benefit of his advice?
—A. Exactly.

Q. That is as far as you go with him?—A. Yes—Oh, we will go farther
with him; it depends on what he wants afterwards. Our officer will report
back the result of the interview, and what he has done with him, and where he
has been located.

Q. Let us say a man at Winnipeg, for instance, has signified a desire to go on
the land in Manitoba: your officers take him and place him?—A. If he comes to
them, yes.

Q. You place him on the land?—A. It often happens that we do. We
submit to him that,some given district has some certain possibilities, and he
comes to us in connection with them, and we are glad to advise him that we
believe he can do very well under these circumstances. But we find that the
average man coming up from the United States has some forerunner idea of what
will satisfy him best in any given district in the western country, and outside of
that we go into this directional work as to how he may best handle his household
effects, and so forth. There is not very much to it, but we often have to, and do,
direct him to the actual land. Then, of course, the report comes back to us as to
his placement, and where he is placed through the Land Settlement Branch.

Q. Do your records contain any information as to how many have come from
the United States to Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. And have been placed in each province——on the land and otherwise?—
A. That I do not know; no, not “otherwise”; only on the land. Our records
show their desire for land placement, but as to the actual placements, or whether
they are there at the moment, we do not know.

Q. Do your records show the desire for placement in each province?—A.
That I cannot answer at the moment; I will have to look it up. Mr. Blair, do
you remember off-hand whether we record that in that way?

Mr. Brair: We have the record of their declared destinations, taken at the
border first; then we have the record in the Land Settlement Branch of those
actually located.

The Wirness: We have not compiled any statistics as to their placements.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Supposing a man comes in and simply says, “I want to go to Canada”;
what directions do you give him as to where he shall go, and how he shall be
placed?—A. What direction will our agent give him?

Q. Yes.—A. Our agent will first of all sit in with him to find out what he has
been doing in the past, and what kind of farming he has been carrying on;
how much money he has in hand, and get an idea of what he would like to do
in Canada; find out if he has any of our literature of Canada, and so forth. It
will depend entirely on the man’s development and frame of mind and knowledge
of Canada what the procedure be from then on. If he is very indefinite, we will
give him a certain amount of literature, such as the atlases of western and
castern Canada, and will leave those with him to read, and we give him certain
pamphlets. Once he has expressed a wish to go in a certain way, then we let
kim go through with it.

By Mr. Lucas:
Q. Is there any medical examination in regard to the Americans coming
in?—A. No, sir, there is not.

By Mr. Brown (Lisgar):

Q. In regard to the man in the United States who might want to come to
Canada, and who knew perfectly well where he wanted to go, and what he
wanted to do, is there any supervision, or restriction, imposed upon him, apart
from coming in contact with your agents?—A. No restriction whatsoever,

Q. No supervision, unless they ask for it?—A. Oh, no.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. How does that apply to those from the United Kingdom? Supposing
a man over there is willing to pay his own way to come across here; how do
you distinguish him from the ordinary passenger?—A. He is distinguished by
his declaration, as to whether he is coming to remain in Canada, when he
would be an immigrant, or if he is a tourist. It is a different proposition.

Q. They all have to make a declaration?—A. Oh, yes.

Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): I want to thank Mr. Cahan for allowing me
to interrupt.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. I renew my question. I would like to know the relations of the
Immigration Department with the various agencies that are spoken of in the
press, such as the Barnardo Home, the Salvation Army. I would like to
know whether there are contracts with them. If so, I would like a general
explanation of the situation, and then have the contracts produced. (See Pro-
duction at page 754 post)—A. May I make a very short general explanation?

Q. Certainly.—A. And following your suggestion we shall submit to you
a full list of the names, and just what our work is. We have relations with
various interests in juvenile immigration, of which there is a full list in the
Annual Report. We have relations with the two national railways, in connec-
tion with immigration from the United Kingdom, in so far as experienced and
inexperienced farm settlers are concerned. Then, we have relationships with
such bodies as the Church of England, the Continuing Presbyterian Church,
the United Church, and other churches. Our relationship with them is to
co-operate fully so that they may carry out their particular work in settlement,
for their particular purpose in this country. We lend our aid in every way
we possibly can. We co-operate after they have made their selection, as to
the assisted passage. We have had a great deal more desire on account of the
cheaper transportation, the assisted passage, than we had in the past. I would
be glad to submit a full list to you of just what it means in each case.

Mr. W. J. Egan.]



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 15

Q. And in so far as you have any contractual relations with them, I would
like the contract?—A. We have no contracts with any of them that I know
of; it is more of an arrangement and understanding.

Q. An arrangement of what kind?—A. It is not really a contract with the
railway; it is an understanding, and written instructions that they may go so
far, and do so much, et cetera. They have not undertaken to do so much
here at this particular end, and so on. I would be very glad to submit all
of this to you.

Hon. Mr. Forke: It is really a letter between myself and the President
of the C.P.R.

The Wirness: That is with regard to the Continent, sir; we are dealing
with England.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Do these various agencies, to which you have referred, and with which
you have no contractual relation, come in under your settlement scheme, or are
they confined to that exclusively; or does it relate also to general immigration,
outside of the assisted passage?—A. I have yet to find that they are interested
in anything but assisted passage. They do not, in any way, come in under the
Three Thousand Family Settlement Scheme, nor do I see any possibility of their
entering. Their work is generally—if I may presume to say so—on behalf of
their respective churches. I have talked with them about it—the carrying on
of selective immigration for the bettering of their own forces within Canada.
That is the sum and substance of their arrangement. They ask us to co-operate
with them and help them to select, and we do assist where we are satisfied with
the people they nominate to come in under this scheme.

Q. Does the matter of assisted passage refer exclusively, in all your opera-
tions, to those who are coming in for land settlement, as farmers, farm labourers,
or domestic servants?—A. Entirely, sir; nothing else.

By Mr. Coote:
Q. Have you any sort of an arrangement with the Scottish Immigrant Aid
Society ?—A. That is one of the institutions, yes, sir.

_ Q. Will you see that the contracts, or whatever papers you have in connec-
tion ;vith that, are brought down?—A. Yes, sir. (See Productions at page
post.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q. Will you explain to the Committee just what is involved in the reduced
passages, to whom it applies, to what class of people it applies, and how they
come to Canada?—A. (Reads): >

Reduced rates for British Immigrants

Migrants from the United Kingdom, who are household workers, or
who are coming to Canada to earn their livelihood on the land, are now
given the following reduced rates to the points mentioned:—

Halifax; St JohnlorQuebees v il ovdlio i, & G0l 357 £20970s,
NMontrealusaat, sininisoy was Hilw aoiesh hen sagend (030 0
Sl OTONGOs £ st L 3 10
Winnipegae sy aibibet sditn Sans ool u 4 10
Regina, Moose Jaw and Saskatoon.. .. .. 5 0
Calgary or Edmonton:. .. .« .. .s 8 10
Vancouver.. .. .. 8 0

This agreement is in effect for two years, and expires on the 31st

December, 1928.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Under the Assisted Passage Agreement the Department of Immi-
gration 3

(a) Recruits and selects immigrants; (b) collects loans which may
be advanced when necessary to families and household workers;

I may say, in connection with this low rate, that we make no loans now, except
in exceptional cases. We will assume that a really genuine domestic servant
is going to Regina, and has not got the £5. She is thoroughly sound in every
way, but she has only got £3. We loan her the £2 to help her to come. Or
perhaps a family cannot pay the full fare for their adults over seventeen. We
will help them if they have not got sufficient money, rather than take that
which might inconvenience them, as far as their actual settlement is concerned.
We then collect it from them. That is on a fifty-fifty basis with the Old Country
government, Both on the loan and on the collection.

(¢) Receives and finds placement on the land for migrants;

(d) Makes adequate arrangements for household workers to be per-
sonally conducted on out-going vessels, to be met on arrival by women
officers, and to find them suitable employment. Apart from the agree-
ment, the Department of Immigration also provides accommodation at
government hostels or institutions, where the Department defrays the cost
of from 24-28 hours board and lodging.

(e) Guarantees employment for household workers at standard wages.

The Dominion Government, in the ‘first instance, makes all grants
and loans under the said scheme, but receives from the British government
a refund of grants on a fifty-fifty basis, as well as the sum which the
British government has agreed to pay on account of the reduced rate. The
allocation of expenditure under the reduced rate is as follows:—

Department of Immigration.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. £3.10.0
Steamship (Companies.nd 46wl dab serusen i s 1i@0.0
£7.10.0
British, Governmefiby ,= 4% 5w, Y gL NI TS 0T 1050
£15. 00

The Department has undertaken to give aftercare for a period of five
years. The average of this expenditure is estimated at £6 per head. The
British government agreed to equate in cash against this expenditure an
estimated average of £6. It is, therefore, the equation in cash by the
Briéi;h government on account of aftercare which has reduced the rate
to £2.

Aftercare is defined as follows:—

(a) Securing employment for the migrants and directing to destina-
tion;

(b) visiting the migrant during the first year, and at least annually
thereafter, for a period of five years from the date of settlement;

(c) hearing and dealing with any complaints regarding wages or treat-
ment;

(d) investigating grievances and, where necessary, finding alternative
employment;

(e) “Developing” the migrant, with a view to his subsequent settle-
ment, on a farm.

Under the Assisted Passage Agreement, assistance is given towards
the cost of passages to persons, male and female, provided that they are:—

IMr. W. J. Egan.]
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(a) Accompanied overseas, in the case of married men, by their wives
and children; and, in the case of widowers or widows, by their children;

(b) have been nominated by the Dominion Government, or its agents,
or by British subjects resident in Canada;

(¢) have been nominated by any Provincial Government in Canada,
or its agents, or by any organization approved for this purpose who have
entered into an agreement;

(d) are migrating to settle upon the land, or are women approved
as household workers;

(e) Have been otherwise approved as suitable settlers before sailing
by Secretary of State, acting through a representative of the Oversea
Settlement Committee.

Where considered necessary and advisable, loans, to be shared
equally by the British government and the Dominion government, may be
made to the migrant in the following cases:—

(@) Migrants accepted under any Family Settlement Scheme, and
families proceeding under this agreement, a loan up to the amount pay-
able by the migrant;

(b) household workers—a loan up to the amount of the difference
between the minimum ocean rate and the migrant’s contribution to the
ultimate destination prescribed in this schedule, provided that such loan
shall not exceed £6;

Children. For children the assistance takes the form of a free grant
of the total cost of transportation, provided that:—

(1) They have not reached their seventeenth birthday before the first
day of April of the financial year in which they sailed.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Is there any minimum age in regard to juvenile immigration?—A. The
maximum is seventeen years. There is no minimum, if they are coming with
the families.

Q. If they are not?—A. Yes, there is.

Q. What is it?>—A. A minimum of fourteen years. We do not accept them
under fourteen years; fourteen to seventeen.

Hon. Mr. Forkr:" We do not pay the grant.

The Witnsss: That is what I mean. This grant, that I am speaking of, is
not applicable to those under fourteen years.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. Perhaps I do not make myself clear? In regard to juvenile immigration,
there are organizations, like the British Immigration Colonization Organization,
bringing boys out?—A. Yes.

Q. Is there any minimum age for such a class of immigration?—A. Fourteen,
sir; from fourteen up.

Q. Then, children under fourteen cannot come to this country?—A. No,
unless they are coming with their parents.

Q. How long has that been in effect?—A. Just about three years.

By Mr. McGibbon: '

Q. What was the object of introducing that regulation?—A. The reason
for introducing it was owing to the very strong propaganda in Canada from many
social interests. The second reason was the Margaret Bondfield Report, in
connection with children under fourteen years. _

Q. That does not give the reason, that only gives the cause—A. I would
be very glad to secure the Maragaret Bondfield Report and quote to you that

65927—4 [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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particular section, and the decision of the Government. As a matter of fact,
there were a great many details in connection with it, and quite a number of dis-
cussions at the time. This was three years ago, but I would be very glad to
go over it, in answer to this, at any time you wish later on.

Q. Surely the Department has some idea as to why they exclude these
children, other than the fact that it was asked for? It must have been asked
for on certain grounds?—A. You are asking me the reason. I would ask your
indulgence to allow me to submit it to you in writing, just why the decision
was made. In the rough, without dotting the I’s and placing the commas, it was
because the children were being exploited in a general way. It was because they
were not as happy under fourteen, as they were over fourteen. That, in a
general way, was the reason.

By Mr. McMillan:

Q. It was because of the contents of the Margaret Bondfield report?—A.
That is what brought it about in a general way. We had, of course, from what
had been submitted to us in Canada, been considering what we might do. Could
we exact a closer examination of the children? Could we establish a certain num-
ber of children placed under our own supervision and the societies’ prospective
placement of children? We had been discussing it from many angles. You are
asking me to go back three years. Actually, in the final result, it was this
report from the mother, so to speak, of the British children, which brought
about our decision; there is no question about that.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Is it not a fact, that the full passage applies only to between the ages
of fourteen and seventeen?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the decision of the government, to make these passages free, was
in order to encourage that class of immigration?—A. Absolutely.

Q. But it was felt that a child, unaccompanied by its parents, under that
age, would not come under that provision of free passage? They are not
barred from Canada?—A. Oh, no, they may come. There is nothing to prevent
them if they are in good health, but they do not come under this $80 and $100
grant.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Is that covered by an Order in Council, or by departmental instructions,
this discrimination against children under fourteen?—A. As far as the grant
is concerned, the instructions come by Order in Council. :

Q. But it only applies to the Empire Settlement Scheme?—A. No, not neces-
sarily. Before the Empire Settlement Scheme was underway, there were grants
for juvenile immigration by the government.

Q. That took place under instructions of the Department?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And not by Order in Council?—A. Yes, by Order in Council.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. Perhaps I was to blame in the way I put my question. You are con-
sidering one phase of it, and I have in mind another. Is there any minimum
age for children coming to Canada, not by assisted passage, or anything of
the kind? Suppose thie parents of a boy twelve years of age gave him the money
to come to Canada, is he allowed to come?—A. If he is coming to somebody
here who would take care of him.

{ ?Q. Suppose he wanted to come to this country?—A. A boy twelve years of
age?

Q. Are they excluded under fourteen years of age?—A. They are excluded
under fourteen years of age in connection with the society placements.
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Q. I do not care about society placements, leave the assisted passages, and
all the rest out of it. My question is: is there a minimum age limit on immi-
grants coming into this country?—A. No, there is no minimum age limit on
immigrants coming into the country. But, if I were an officer, I would not
accept a child of twelve coming in on his own, to make his own way.

Q. Well, then, there are restrictions, you would not let him in?—A. I would
not call it a restriction; I do not know that you could term it a restriction. A
boy of twelve, making his way to the docks and getting on board ship, that does
not——

Q. My point is this: they are not allowed to come in under fourteen years.
—A. Without coming to somebody’s care?

Q. Yes—A. No, sir.

Q. With their parents, they are?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. Or on the juvenile scheme, on the assisted passage scheme, they are
allowed to come in. Take children who do not come under the assisted pass-
age, or the juvenile scheme. Is there any minimum age limit? In other words,
could people in England send a boy over here thirteen years of age, to some
friends in Canada?—A. No, sir, there is no minimum.

Hon. Mr. Forkr: I think the point they want to get at is, that if people
paid their full fare, and if there was some one to take care of them after they
got here, could they come here under fourteen years of age?

The Wirxess: That would be up to you to decide, sir. We have not had
it put up to us.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Is it not a fact that they are at present excluded?—A. Only those
coming under this particular assistance. As I suggested a while ago, I have yet
to have any of these people suggest that they should come and pay their fare.

Q. Supposing that I find a placement in Canada for a child under fourteen
years of age from Great Britain, by what authority would you exclude that
child?—A. I would not exclude that child, but I would not give you $80 assist-
ance.

Q. Dr. Edwards’ question was outside of the Empire plan altogether.
I understood you to say that you do not allow in children under four-
teen years of age, even although they pay, outside of the Empire Settlement
plan?—A. As soon as Dr. Edwards added “coming to their friends” I said,
“yes” at once. That child could come, of course.

By Mr. McMillan:
Q. If you know the destination of a child under fourteen you allow it to
come in?—A. Yes, under those circumstances, and being nominated to a friend
or parent.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. If you knew the destination of a child under fourteen then you would
allow it to.come in?—A. Under these circumstances of his being nominated to
a friend or parent and coming in under any society up to now; but seeking this
particular grant; no.

Hon. Mr. Forke: In any particular case, be it one or a dozen, if his case is
referred to me I take it upon myself to say whether a child should come in or
whether he should stay out. I look upon the Immigration Department as being
the guardian of the people who come to the country.

Mr. Caman: I will ask, since the Minister is going on the stand, by what
authority he is making that assertion?

[Mr. W. 7. Egan.]
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Hon. Mr. Forge: 1 have authority under that (indicating). And, Mr,
Chairman, I object to this gentleman finding fault with me. I have just as
much right as any gentleman in the room to ask a question.

Mr. Caman: Ask a question, but don’t make a statement.

Hon. Mr. Forgr: If I ean give assistance to my deputy in making a state-
ment I am going to do so.

Mr. Brown (Lisgar): I think the feeling is that we do not have to have
recourse to the procedure of the law courts. I think the committee wants
information and it wants the information from any source. I think that should
be the general attitude of the committee and we should not be too closely handi-
capped by the technicalities of law courts.

* Mr. McGiseon: We have that information. The Minister says he would
let them in. I would infer from that that they could not get in without his con-
sent.

The Wirness: So much would depend. Take your section 8 of the Act. I
suppose when you ask the question, of course, you mean provided they com-
plied with section 3.

By Mr. Millar:

Q. Those restrictions in regard to minors are the same as the minors from
Europe?—A. We have no movement of that kind from Europe.

Q. They are forbidden from Europe altogether?—A. We have no such
movement. May I make that clear. We have heard so much of it in an insinuat-
ing way in the columns and the articles one reads on immigration. There is no
$80 assistance and no assisted passage in any way, shape, form, or manner,
from the continent.

Q. This discussion is largely coneerning those who are not assisted as well
as those assisted?—-A. What I was quoting for the information of the committee
was just what we do for children in connection with the assistance which we
grant. I was giving you the details for children, and why the assistance takes
that form. I was going on to explain why that assistance was given and to whom.
I think I had arrived at Number 2:

They are proceeding as members of families with parents or other
approved guardians or are proceeding to join their parents or other
approved guardians or relations.

That is children coming to an approved guardian; nominated by their parents
to an approved guardian, or nominated by their nearest relatives to an approved
guardian; but that does not bring in the point you are raising.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
4 Q. My point was simply this: Is a good, healthy, vigorous looking lad of
13 years 11 months excluded?—A. Of course, there is always the border line to
any regulation.

Q. Make it 13 years and 10 months if you like, or 13 years and 9 months.
Many boys of that age or younger are making their living. Now, that boy is
sent by friends from the old land. He says, “I want to go to Canada.” Would
you let him in?—A. Not on his own. I would not if I were an officer.

By Mr. Cahan:
. Q. By what authority would you exclude him?—A. He is liable to become a
publi¢ charge.

Q. I am asking you under what Statute or Order in Council do you find
that you can exercise that discretion?—A. Under the Act, sir, as being liable to
become a public charge.
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Q. It is on that ground?—A. Yes, naturally; a boy of 13 making his way
in Canada— ;

Q. Would you exclude him in every case?—A. Well, in every case? Prac-
tically in every case coming on his own. It has never been put up to us before
in that way. I do not know of any that are trying to come. But on the general
grounds of administration I would say yes; that a boy like that would be the
exception if he would do well.

By Mr. Brown (Lisgar) :

Q. Are you not considering questions that are only likely to arise in a very
few cases. In the case of such a boy as Dr. Edwards has described, you would
exclude him under the clause you have quoted if he was entirely on his own; but
in the case of parents sending such a boy to Canada and directing him to certain
persons who would assume responsibility for him, would you exercise discretion
in the matter?—A. Absolutely. We do it every day, sir.

By Mr. Coote:
Q. You have authority under Section 3 of the Act?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Bancroft:

Q. Where are there any institutions in Canada that do employ and are
allowed to employ children of 13 years of age?—A. Institutions in Canada? I
do not know, sir, I do not know of any myself.

Number 3 reads:-—

They are proceeding with the consent of their parents or guardians
to a home approved by the Dominion government.

Number 4 reads:—

They are proceeding under a scheme approved by the Secretary of
State and the Dominion Government. The expenses of the transportation
of children shall be shared equally by the Secretary of State and the
Dominion Government.

This is entirely in relation to where we assist jointly with the old country govern-
ment. There are other details. There is one more paragraph in connection with
assisted passage, and this concerns children proceeding to Canada under the
auspices of a voluntary society:—-

Assistance is given at the rate of $80 per head towards the cost of
transportation of children coming to Canada under the auspices of a recog-
nized voluntary society and the rate is $100 per head to children destined
to points west of the Province of Ontario.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. What is the emigrant’s age?—A. Fourteen:—

The ocean fare has been fixed at £11.10 so that the voluntary
society obtains a certain amount for administration expenses.

Then, the number of societies and so on. I would be glad to give them. They

can be secured out of the report. Does that cover what you were after, Mr. -

Stewart?
Mr. STEWART: Yes.

By Mr. Cahan: ,
Q. May I ask a question? Dealing with the whole question of land settle-

ment and colonization from the Atlantic to the Pacific, is there any other scheme
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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or project under which land settlement is favoured or assisted or promoted
except under the Empire Settlement Scheme?—A. You mean by the government?
By the department?

Q. Yes?—A. No other scheme I know of. Of course, there is your Soldiers’
Settlement proposition.

Q. That is for our own soldiers?—A. Yes.

Q. But I want to get a general view in my own mind, that in-as-far as
the settlement of this new country goes the Empire Settlement Scheme is the
only instrument of government for the promotion of land settlement and coloni-
zation in Canada for emigrants from abroad?—A. For emigrants from the United
Kingdom?

Q. Yes?—A. Yes.

Q. Or from France or any other country ?—A. There is no settlement scheme
beyond this: that we direct and help to place people to advantage who may
come. For instance, only three years ago, entirely outside of the 3,000 family
scheme we undertook to place—pardon me if I do not have the exact figures—
let us call it 400 families. Perhaps that is too many—about 200 families from
the old country who had fifty pounds in hand of their own. We would give them
the assisted passage and we would place them on farms. That was one move-
ment. We had another movement of people for a better style of farm, We are
continually working out schemes, But after working out the scheme for the
200 families—if T am right in the 200—we found the answer to that call was
very small. :

On the continent five years ago we said to the railways whom we looked
upon as our co-operating units on the continent, that if they found 1,000 families
with $400 in hand and a eertain number of families with $800 in hand, we would
place these people, under the department, to advantage on farms after bringing
them here and giving them some idea of the country, and after a few months
sell them a particular farm under certain terms and so on. The response to that
at the time was very limited. But may I say this, that you will find, of course,
as time goes on and conditions are settling in the old country we will get a great
many more people with a little more money in hand than we got three or four
years ago. _

Q. They would be coming under the Empire Settlement Scheme?—A. No,
not under the Empire Settlement Scheme. This is from the old country only.

Q. From Great Britain, under the Empire Settlement Scheme?—A. In this
instance? For example, the offer to place 200 families with fifty pounds, they
would come under the Empire Settlement Scheme at no cost to the old country
except their help in the assisted passage of these people; but no cost to them for
settlement.

Q. Then I understand that outside of the Empire Settlement, there is some
scheme—I use that in its proper sense—whereby you do assist those coming in
to settle on the land by assisting them in respect of their passage?—A. Nothing,
nothing whatsoever, in any shape or form. We assist them when they are
here to select the right land out of a certain number of lots that we hawve to offer
them, and place them. ]

Q. With reference to those who have come in and whom you are endeavour-
ing to assist?—A. We tell them on the other side what they are coming to. There
is a full description of a certain number of farms in a certain section of the
" country in which these people may be placed. These descriptions were given in
these cases to both railways, and we divided the number between the two rail-
ways. We gave them an allotment. If it was one thousand in the first case, we
gave them five hundred each. It may have been more than that. ‘We gave them
all the particulars of the type of settler; that is, people must have so much money
in hand. If I remember well it was $400 in hand to be placed with the railways -
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to be handed to us in connection with our care of them, such as buying cattle,
sheep and chickens and supervising that particular work until they were
settled.

Q. Now, one other question. Outside of the settlement of farmers and farm
labourers and domestic servants, is there any other way under the law and
under the Orders in Counecil in which persons may come in from continental
countries, preferred or otherwise, for the purpose of carrying on any undertaking
in this country other than farm labour or domestic service? For instance, sup-
pose a Belgian wishes to come in to prosecute an undertaking in this country.
It may be the manufacture of cotton or of silk or worsted or some other under-
taking; how does he get into the country under the law as it now stands?—A.
From Germany upon the continent, including your Scandinavian countries, any
citizen of good health, being mentally and physically fit, with enough money
—we do not lay down any schedule, but he must give us some assurance that he is
able to look after himself in any project he undertakes.

Q. I accept that statement. But tell me where under the law you find any
authority for that? I have looked through it in vain. I understand that that
Order in Council—?—A. 183.

Q. Yes, 183: “From and after the 15th February, 1923, and until other-
wise ordered, the landing in Canada of immigrants of all classes and occupa-
tions, is hereby prohibited, except as hereinafter provided.” Then it goes on
to show that he must show to the satisfaction of the Immigration Department
that he is a bona fide agriculturist entering Canada to farm and has sufficient
means to begin farming in Canada. (2) A bona fide farm labourer entering
Canada to follow that occupation and has reasonable assurance of employment.
(3) A female domestic servant entering Canada to follow that occupation and
has reasonable assurance of employment”; and then it goes on to the wife
and child, the United States citizen and the British subject. An-d'then “_ ()
A person who has satisfied the minister that his labour or service is required
in Canada.” Now, must a man of fortune who wishes to undertake some indus-
trial occupation here, concerning whose financial standing there is no doubt,
who can pass the medical examinations, must he apply to you and satisfy you
that his labour or service is required in Canada before he is allowed to enter?
—A. Not if he comes from anywhere on the continent from Germany up.

Q. How do you work that out? Where is the authority; where is the
loophole under which that comes in?—A. The authority or loophole I tried to
explain in the earlier part of my talk in reference to the Continent. In 183,
which is part of it, it prevented people from coming in unless they were coming
to sure employment, etc. The man you describe would have no difficulty in
coming in, just by submitting the facts to the immigration officer, and he would
pass them on to the director for approval. I am not positive for how 101_1g, but
Regulation 183 had only been in force a few months. We were working on
the immigration question. There were the Canadian Pacific and the Cana-
dian National at that time—the transportation companies. May I explain
that within a few months of my taking charge I recommended to my minister
that for the future—I am digressing from your question for the moment; _I
want to make the thing clear—where we were in a position to place certain
numbers of people, that no more would we grant or allot to ocean transpc.)r.ta-
tion companies a given quota for a given purpose. From then on, the position
was that the allotment would be divided between the two Canadian national
interests, the Canadian National and the Canadian Pacific. This is the explana-
tion of what was done in connection with Belgium and France and Holland,
Switzerland and the Scandinavian countries—rather than suggest that these
countries were named by Order in Council as preferred. I think it would be
just as well that this should be just among ourselves here.
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Q. Let us have the real facts?—A. From an international point of view
it should not be stated that some countries are preferred as against others. I
am giving all the facts. I am making a suggestion that perhaps it should not
be broadcast. It was decided that it should not be an Order in Council naming
one preferred country from another. But with all the national institutions co-
operating with us it was natural—it is completely understood now, of course—
without any Order in Council, without any agreement, but just in a general
understanding and in a general way.

Q. Then it is an understanding outside the law, as I understand it?—A.
Yes and no.

Q. Outside the law. For instance, let me give you an example. I have
a number of relatives living in France. They are of French nationality; some
of them young men of fortune who might come in here, and who are experts
in electrical development, experts in mechanical developrhent, experts in other
respects. How can I bring those young men in here, and under what clause of
the law can I bring them in, except this, that I have to apply to you and satisfy
you that their services at the time are actually required in Canada?—A. I
quite agree and admit that as far as you are concerned if you are reading the
law only and not seeking for any further information. ...

Q. I understand that your department must act under the law?—A. Yes,
that is quite right, and the Order in Council is part and parcel of the law; but
this was a definite understanding as between the department and those interests
that these countries would not be called upon—of course, as far as a person
satisfying the authorities that his labour is required in Canada, may I suggest
that that was put in 183 only two years ago on April 8, 1926.

Q. Yes?—A. And it was to cover the countries below the line, that we
were not operating this particular section under—if I make myself clear.

Q. If it is neeessary for the private information of the committee, could
we have in writing a statement of the immigrants allowed into the country out-
side of the law and outside of the Orders in Council?—A. You have it now.
Any man is allowed into the country who is in good health physically and men-
tally, has a proper passport, and is able to take care of himself, if coming from
what are known as preferred countries.

Q. Under these circumstances?—A. Yes; unless something happens. He-
may come from anywhere from Germany up, sir, into this country. He must
have his passport viséd. ,

Q. I assume he has his passport and is coming. I would like to know
under what authority you admit him. I think I should be able to look at the
law of the country and see what immigrants are allowed in without having to
inquire about concessions made to Germany or Norway or Sweden, France, or
Belgium. I think we should have a clear expression in regard to that and an
understanding. If it is not within the law, then there should be some way of
bringing it within the law.

The CuamrvaN: I would suggest that Mr. Egan answer that question at
the next meeting. It is one o’clock. o ¥at

The Committee adjourned until Tuesday, March 13.
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House or CoMMONS,
WepNEspaYy, March 14, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The Committee proceeded with the consideration of the Immigration Act
and Regulations, and the general subject of immigration.

W. J. Ecan recalled:

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Just before you commence, Mr. Egan, in order to connect with a matter
which perhaps should have been taken up yesterday with Doctor Amyot, can
you tell us by what authority the appointment of these medical officers was
placed under the Department of Health? Is there any section in the Act
governing that, or was it done by order in council, or how was it done?—
A. Placed under the Department? They are not under the Department. They
work in co-operation with the Department, carrying out for us that which
the Act calls for in connection with the inspection of immigrants coming in,
50 that they may advise as to their capacity or ability to pass under certain
medical conditions, for which the Act provides.

Q. My question was, Mr. Egan, is there any section in the Act—your
Immigration Act or any other Act—or was it by order in council that these
medical officers were appointed by the Department of Health, to come under
the Department of Health?—A. There is nothing in the Act of which I know
at the moment, but remembering the evidence yesterday I rather think it was
by order in council.

Q. Am I right in saying that you require these medical inspectors?—A. Yes.

Q. And your Department would make a requisition on the Department of
Health for the appointment of such inspectors?—A. Yes, that is right.

Mr. Caman: May we have before us these orders in council which author-
ize the Department of Health to perform the inspection service for-the Immi-
gration Department.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. What I understood was that the Act required certain physical qualifi-
cations in intending or proposed immigrants; that your Department asked the
Department of Health to make these examinations? Is that right?—A. You
mean in this last appointment?

Q. No, the general practice.—A. No. In other days, before the Department
of Health was organized, the Department of Immigration had its own officers
of health, but what happened actually on the organization of the Department
of Health and any order in council connecting them with the Department of
Immigration, I know nothing of. _

Q. Some time came at least when the Department of Health were asked
to perform the inspection service for the Department of Immigration?—A. They
have been doing that work at all times, sir.
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Q. I thought you said, at one time there was no Department of Health?—
A. No; we had our own medical men there. The Chief Medical Officer of the
Department of Immigration was taken over by the Department of Health.

Q. When was that done?—A. That was before my coming in to the De-
partment of Immigration.

Q. Have you any idea at all>—A. Perhaps someone here would know.
It may be in the Act of the Department of Health.

Q. Would you find that out?—A. Yes.

Q. When did the Department of Health take up the inspection service for
the Department of Immigration and under what authority? Was it simply a
letter asking for it, or an order in council?—A. I may say that as far as I am
concerned, since I have been in charge of the Department, and because the
practice was established, 1 have always consulted with them in connection with
medical affairs, suggesting, perhaps, that for the better despatch of passengers
we ought to have one more doctor here, or two more doctors there, and so on.

Q. And they have been under the Department of Health?—A. Under the
Department of Health.

Q. When did you take over?—A. October, 1923. :

Q. Would you make a note to see if there is any documentary authority,
either by letter, orders in council or otherwise, when the change was made,
whereby the Department of Health took on this inspectional service?—A. Yes.
(Bee productions at pages 756, 759 post.)

Q. Now, with regard to these medical officers who have been appointed
comparatively recently in England, you spoke as if they were appointed by the
Department of Health. They are, in reality, under the Civil Service Commis-
sion?—A. Entirely.

Mr. Cagax: We want the orders in council governing the whole matter of
inspection. (See productions at pages 756, 759 post.)

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :
Q. Has your department ever overridden the decisions of the medical officers?
—A. The decisions of the medical officers are either approved or negatived by a
Board of Jnquiry and not by the officers of the department.

(At this point Mr. Kay, Chairman, left the chair, which was assumed by
Hon. Mr. Sinclair, Acting Chairman.)

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Who is on the Board of Inquiry?—A. It depends on the port. There
may be three, or five, or there may be seven, or the officer may be on the Board
alone.

: g) Medical men or civilians?—A. No, the medical officers report to these
oards.

Q. Has this Board of Inquiry ever overridden the decision of the medical
officers?—A. They find according to the evidence.

Q. T asked you if they have ever overridden the decisions of the medical
officers?—A. Not that I know of.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. The Board takes the evidence of the medieal officers?—A. Yes.:

Q. And all the other evidence relating to the case, and decides whether or
not the immigrant shall be deported or allowed to enter?—A. Yes; they make
their recommendation, and that is always submitted to the department, whether
the finding is for or against the immigrant making the application, or who has
been rejected by the Board of Inquiry. :
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Hon. Mr. Rauston: Mr. Cahan asked for any orders in council havin
regard to inspection. I would suggest that we have in pamphlet form al
the orders in council well back, so as to get the history of these regulations, not
only about inspections, but also admissions as well.

Mr, Caman: May I ask a question to clear up in my mind some matters
which were dealt with previously?

The Acting CAIRMAN: Go ahead, sir.

By Myr. Cahan:

Q. Can you give us approximately the number of immigrants who have
come in from the continent during the last several years, year by year?—A. I
cannot give you this year, but I can for a number of years previously, but this
year’s statistics I have not with me.

Q. It will suit my purpose if you will give me that information for a number
of years back. I want to get an idea of the flow of immigration from the conti-
nent.—A. From, say, 19217
b Q. Yes, give me the number coming in since 1921.—A. From the British

sles—

Q. No, just from the continent.—A. From the continent only, sir? 1921,
26,156; 1922, 21,634; 1923, 16,372; 1924, 55,120; 1925, 42,366; 1926, 39,717;
1927, 72,588,

Q. Now, Mr. Egan, could you divide that, and tell us in each year how many
of those came in as farmers or farm labourers, how many came in as domestic
servants, and how many came in for other purposes?—A. Yes, I think so. Not
for the several years, but I can have that prepared and submit it to you.

Q. Have you it for any one year?—A. Yes, for 1926 and 1927. It is not
divided as to continental, but the entire total. The statement of immigrants
via ocean ports—

Q. If you have not the exact figures they can be submitted later, but can
you give me the proportion which came in for farmers and farm labourers and
for domestic servants?—A. Out of the total immigration in 1926 and 1927 of
122,966—

Q. I am speaking only as from the continent now. A. I cannot give you
the separate figures.

Q. Is it possible’to obtain them?—A. Yes, I can obtain them for you for
each of those years, if you wish.

Q. I simply wanted to ascertain clearly the number of those immigrants
from the continent who came in as farmers and farm labourers and those who
came in as domestics, and the remainder who came in for mechanical, mining
or other purposes. )

The Acting CHAIRMAN: Do you want this statement filed as an exhibit
in the evidence, or just tabled before the Committee?

Mr. Caman: I would like to have it produced at the next sitting.
The Acting CHAIRMAN: Put upon the table?
Mr. CasaN: Yes.

Mr, McGiseox: Could we not have it printed as part of the evidence,
Mr. Cahan, so that it will be available to everybody?

The Wirness: I will be glad to furnish that.
(See production at page 766 post.)

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. I would like to ask to what extent has the government, in evolving
its immigration policy, worked with the various railway companies, those
companies which are so deeply interested in immigration? Are you working
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together under the present policy, and was that evolved by conference with
the railways, or only just laid out by the government?—A. At the moment,
do you mean?

Q. Yes, your present policy in vogue now.—A. The railways and the
department do confer together before the beginning of each year’s program
as to just how they shall work for that particular year. This year you will
find in the evidence which has been submitted the eontract with the railways,
and exactly what it means. I can define it for you. I am presuming that you
want to know the history of the arrangement between the railways and gov-
ernment.

Q. Yes, as to how much collaboration and how many conferences you
have had.—A. The railway agreement is an arrangement entered into in
September, 1925, between the Immigration Department and the two Canadian
railway systems for the purpose of recruiting, transporting, and placing in
Canada agricultural families, farm labourers, domestic servants, and so forth,
from all parts of Europe. The agreement covers, at the present moment,—
originally it included Germany, which has since withdrawn—the countries Poland,
Czecho-Slovakia, Austria, Hungary, Jugo-Slovakia, Latvia, Roumania, the Free
State of Danzig, Lithuania, Esthonia and Russia. Germany, as I said, was in
at the beginning, but has since withdrawn.

Under the agreement, the railways undertake to place in the European
states mentioned and covered by the agreement, special representatives, who
work on a salary basis and have no direct interest in the sale of tickets, and
do not act as booking agents. I want to make that perfectly clear. It was
definitely understood in that arrangement that these men going over for the
railways would be men of Canadian experience, not necessarily Canadian born,
but men with Canadian experience and a knowledge of the fields where they
were going to place these farmers or farm labourers, and they were selected for
the purpose of representing the executives of their companies rather than the
transportation end, in the selection of type, because in the first period of the
railway agreement they were the selectors of type, and the officials of the
government simply accepted the certificates, unless it were a very, very glar-
ing case, of which there were very few. Out of 30,000 handled in one year, our
officers of necessity rejected 132 all told. The certificate issued by these par-
ticular officers was accepted by the departmental official who was on the con-
tinent for the purpose of visaing the passports of the prospective immigrants to
Canada. These certificates simply certified that he was fit for the particular
task to which he was coming. The certificate is known as an occupational
certificate. This is issued by the special representatives to persons belonging
to, or supposed to belong to, one or other of the classes of farm labourers,
farmers, or domestic servants. The immigrant presents himself, with his pass-
port, and occupational certificate, to the Canadian Immigration Officer in
Europe. Our offices are established at various points, such as Antwerp, Rotter-
dam, Hamburg, Danzig, and Riga. On the arrival of the immigrant in Can-
ada, the railway issuing the certificate is called upon to place that immigrant
in agricultural employment. I think that covers the point, with the excep-
tion of the renewed agreement, which is already on the file.

Q. What is the method of handling your settlers when you land them on
this side? Do you recognize the necessity of colonization in the immigration
policy?—A. Yes, our whole work is directed in that respect.

Q. What is the ratio between the actual amount expended on colonization
and the actual amount expended in administration of the Department at the
present time?—A. I would have to work that out for you, sir. '

Q. Could we have that?—A. Yes, sir. (See production at page 762 post.)
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By Mr. McGibbon:
Q. Do the railways take any part in your colonization?—A. They have
their own colonization branches, yes, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. Has anything been done, in any way, to implement the Clarendon
Report?—A. You mean, extending the Three Thousand Family Settlement
Scheme?

Q. Yes? Has any arrangement been made with British Columbia, or
Alberta, with regard to carrying that out in any way?—A. You mean, the con-
tinuing of the colonization scheme?

Q. I understand, when Lord Clarendon went through British Columbia, he
made the statement that there was room in northern British Columbia, alone,
in the territory he traversed, for ten thousand families. Has anything been
done in the way of carrying that out; has anything been done with a view to
settling those lands under these conditions?—A. That is a matter of policy, and
I shall have to leave that, if I may be permitted, to the Minister to answer.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. I am not a member of this Committee, but T would like to ask a question.
This railway agreement is, in effect, an agreement, between the Department and
the railways?—A. Yes, but with this difference. This year the Minister has
decided, and the arrangement is made by separate letters written by the Minister
himself to the Presidents of the railways, that the movement must be a checking
of placements, and that the function of government returns to the Canadian Gov-
ernment Offices on the Continent, and that the certificate is not accepted as a
guarantee that that man is of the type suitable for farm work.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. I notice in the printed proceedings of March 8th, that we have the rail-
way agreement on page 30. The one that you are referring to does not seem to
be printed here. Has that been signed?—A. You mean this year’s, sir?

Q. Yes.—A. I have not gone over this; I have just seen it.

Q. On page 30 is the agreement of 1925. Does it cover 1926, too?—A. I
have not read this.

Q. I do not see any agreement such as you are referring to in your answer
to Mr. Heaps; has that agreement been signed?--A. Yes.

Q. T think that should be part of the record—A. All right, sir. (See produc-
tion at page 732 post.)

By Mr. Heaps: "

Q. How many immigrants were brought out under the previous agreements
with the railway companies?—A. By each railway? :

Q. The aggregate by both?—A. I will be glad to supply that to the Com-
' mittee. (See productions at page post.)

Q. After these immigrants came into the country, does the Department
keep any record of what became of them?—A. In some cases we have attempted
to, and in other cases we could not. :

Q. Have you any record of how many stayed here in the country, and how
many did not?—A. No. We can give you some idea of those who remained,
of those whom we found here when we investigated. It was a business proposi-
tion between three interests. There were a great many complaints that the
thing was not working to advantage, and others were commending it to the
highest heaven. We carried on a part inquiry. We did not cover every case,
but we covered certain sections of the country. We wanted to find out what
they were doing and how they were getting along, and we have that in evidence.
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Q. 1 wonder if you would mind letting us have that information?—A. The
information in reference to our investigation of the railway placements, is that
what you mean?

Q. Yes—A. And the continuity of these people on the land? (See produc-
tions at page 764 post.)

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Is it true that, in the years during which the agreement with the railway
companies was in force, the bulk of the immigration from the Continent came in
under, and in pursuance of, the railway agreements?—A. Undoubtedly, sir.

Q. And after they came in, had you any system requiring a report from those
immigrants when they settled? I presume that you saw that they did settle
on the land?—A. Oh, no. The immigrants that were brought in by the rail-
ways, sir, were taken care of by the railways.

Q. They were to be taken care of under the Land Settlement Scheme, or to go
on farms, or as farm labourers, were they not?—A. Oh, yes, as farm labourers;
most of them as farm labourers.

Q. Have you any system of inspection by which you can check up whether
the railway companies fulfil the terms of their contract by giving them farm
employment?—A. Yes, we have checked it up, sir.

Q. That all of them go on the farm?—A. We have checked that up. They
do not, all go on the farms.

Q. They do not?—A. No, sir.
¥ Q. Under the agreements, they were to go on the farms, were they not?—A.

es, Sir.

Q. What proportion of them did not go on the farms?—A. We can only give
you that proportion of those who were investigated.

Q. Have you no system whereby you can check up, by reports, concerning
individual settlers, whether they go on the farms and continue on the farms?—A.
Yes. As far as settlement is concerned, that is an entirely different proposition
to the farm labour proposition. ~TUnder our own Continental scheme, or the
railways’, we can give you all of the data, as far as the settlers proper are
concerned. y

Q. But the bulk of them, you say, were farm labourers?—A. Yes, or sup-
posed to be.

Q. I will put it another way. What precautions have you taken, as a
department, to prevent the Continental immigrant from coming in as a farm
labourer, under the terms of the agreements with the two railways, and then
going into other occupations and swelling competition?

An Hon. MemBer: That is impossible.
Q. I do not know anything of any impossibilities; anything is possible. But
I am asking what precautions you are taking?—A. Dep_artmentally, you are

referring to now? ! .
Q. Departmentally—by which you insure that those coming in as farm

labourers shall actually enter upon and continue in the work upon the farms; °

what precautions have you taken?—A. By having an investigation made from
time to time, in given districts, and the names supplied by the railways of their
placements. We exact the placement address from the railways, of the people
that they are bringing in from the Continent, but we do not investigate every
address or every name that they give us. We do investigate quite a number of
them, and we have a very complete report in connection with last year, and the
year before. ;

By Mr. McGibbon:
Q. What percentage of them have left the farms or farm occupations?—A.
I have it tabulated, those we accepted. I can give you that without very much
trouble; that is all in evidence on my file.
Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Q. When you make these solicitations in Europe, is there an understanding
that these people are to remain in this country ?—A. Absolutely.

Q. For any length of time?—A. We have stressed it. If he is of the agri-
cultural type—this is the principle that I have laid down: if we can keep him
at farm work for a year or two, we can make him realize the advantage of
remaining in Canada at farm work. I usually insist upon a twelve months’
agreement of employment. I am speaking from the departmental point of view.
That is what we lay down, that there must be at least a twelve months’ engage-
ment.

Q. Is that the minimum length of time that they are supposed to stay in this
country ?—A. That is the minimum, as far as we are concerned.

Q. After twelve months they are at liberty to go where they like?—A. As
a matter of fact, they are at liberty to go where they like after they land.

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:
Q. A man may come in as a farm labourer, under a twelve months’ agree-
ment, and you have no control over the man if he desires to change his employ-
ment a month after he gets here?—A. None whatsoever.

Q. He may work in Saskatchewan, and then move to some other province?
—A. That is quite right.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. Taking the three prairie provinces, could you give us a statement cover-
ing the period between the two censuses, in the five year period?—A. That is
only three years? -

Q. In the three prairie provinces. Tell us the number that went into those
three prairie provinces, as farm labourers, and approximately how many
remained as farm labourers?—A. I will be very glad to give you that, to the best
advantage I can. I will give you that from everything we have in the shape
of evidence, accumulated in respect of our investigation. (See productions at
page 764 post appendix.)

Q. T am not asking this by way of ecriticism, but I just want to see the
number that come in as farm labourers and then go out in to other general
occupations, or go across the border?—A. It is because they have not been
living up to their contracts with the railways, and with the Government. I
made it my business to broach this to the Continental Governments, that the
best way of protecting their nationals was to see that only the right kind of
men received passports for that particular kind of work in this country. I
told them that the railways were our two national institutions, and were pre-
pared to stand by their agreement to give them labour. These men do not,
and will not remain at farm work. This was submitted to the Minister, and
he has renewed the agreement this year with the distinet understanding that
he may stop it at any minute, if they are not fulfilling the letter of their con-
tract, or the people that they are bringing out are not fulfilling their contract.
Furthermore, our officers can say, “yes, this man is qualified to go,” or “this
man is not qualified to go.”

Q. I am not criticizing—A. I am just trying to explain.

Q. I am endeavouring to ascertain whether the railway companies, who
have brought in the bulk of the immigrants from the Continent, are really com-
plying with the spirit of their agreement. That is what I am endeavouring
to find out. I understand that the spirit of their agreement was that they
were to bring in immigrants as farm labourers, from the Continent, and that
they must insure their entering farm employment, and continuing on the farm.
Is that not the spirit?—A. That is the spirit, sir.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



32 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Q. I want to know what means have been taken to check up the railway
companies to see that they have carried out the spirit of their agreement. It
seems 1o me that there should be some supervision by the Department.—A. We
have, to a certain extent only. We have not attempted to follow thirty thou-
sand people coming in in one year, or thirty-five thousand in another.
We have reported to the railways that we were dissatisfied with this
particular movement, or that particular movement, and we know that
they have endeavoured to secure these people. I have even had railway
officials come to me and ask me if I would not deport, I think it was some Jugo-
Slaves, because they would not go on the land. Of course, I had no right to
deport them because they would not go on the land, if they were able to llook
after themselves after they got here. I could not help them out in that respect.
I quite understand, sir, that it is not a tone of criticism, nor am I defending
anything, I am just trying to explain as fully as I possibly can.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. It is well understood, from the propaganda or advertising that you do
on the Continent, as well as in Great Britain, that the general policy of this
government, and of the governments for many years past, has been to favour
particularly those who are going on the land, or coming out as domestic
servants. Those are the classes which were specially favoured as immigrants
to this country. That knowledge would be generally disseminated, and those
anxious to come out from the Continent of Europe would recognize the fact
that farmers, or those going on the land, or domestic servants, would have a
more favourable reception, and they would classify themselves as farmers, or
intending farmers, or domestic servants. I notice in the report of the Minister
of Immigration that you have the immigrants classified according to occupa-
tion?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are those occupations given at the offices on the Continent, and in
England, or are they classified, according to occupation, after they got here?—
i&. No, the declaration of their profession or vocation was taken before they
eft. :

Q. I notice that for the year 1926, reading from the Annual Report, out
of a total immigration of 96,064, you have, in the farm classes, 48,000, which
includes males, females, and children. So that, before they started from the
other side, nearly half of them were known to be of the specially favoured
farm class?—A. Is that taken from the total figures?

Q. Yes. It is on page 9, of the Report on Immigration and Colonization
for the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1926. The total is 96,064, and under
the heads of farming classes, including males, females, and children, there is
48,000; about half, you see. Then there are other classifications, taken before
they start. There were others, who represented themselves, and were accepted
byAthg Government, as mechanics, artisans, and people of other occupations?
—A. Yes.

Q. And were accepted as such?—A. Yes.

Q. Although the general policy is to favour those going on the land, only
about half got on the land, according to the figures for that year?—A. First
of all, we do not advertise on the Continent, in any shape, form or manner,
except to a certain extent in Holland. There is no advertising by the Govern-
ment anywhere on the Continent, but we do guarantee to any continental,
coming as a farm labourer, if he comes under our particular auspices, and is
willing to work on the farm, that we will find him work on the farm. Quite a
number of these people have come in under other vocations in life, there is no
question about that. They have been admitted, but not necessarily from the
railway agreement countries. They may have come from Germany; they may
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have come from France, Switzerland, or the Scandanavian countries. Those
people are permitted to come as long as they are in good health, mentally and
physically.

Q. You would not restrict the number coming from the Continent, for
instance, if they were of what you might call the farm type, or the class who
were liable to be?-—A. They have to be coming to assured employment.

Q. That is, on the Continent?—A. Oh, yes. They must show us a sure
employment that they are coming to, or we assure it to them.

Q. Do I understand that they must be nominated by friends or relatives
here?—A. Not necessarily. We do have considerable nominations by relatives
illere, but the countries under the railway agreements, they secure labour for

hem.

Q. What about those who come from outside of the railway agreements,
on their own?—A. From countries covered by the railway agreements?

Q. From any part of Europe?—A. You see, from Germany up, any man
may come.

Q. Take from Germany down?—A. From Germany down, then he cannot
come into this country unless he shows he is coming to assured employment.
ge shows that on the other side, at the port, and it must be satisfactory evidence

us.

Q. What proportion of those who were settled on the land, under the
Soldiers’ Land Settlement Scheme, have remained there?—A. I would only be
speaking from memory. I would prefer to give you the exact figures. (See
productions at page 764 post.) :

By Mr. Brown (Lisgar):

Q. What kind of evidence would you accept to show that he was coming
to assured employment?—A. He would have to show our officer on the other
side, first of all—coming to employment as a farm labourer?

Q. Yes.—A. The first view of the man is, “Is he a farm labourer; is he
physically fit for farm labour?” Then his documents, if he is not coming in
under our auspices or the railways. “What correspondence have you had with
anybody in Canada to show that you have assured employment?”’ Our officer
would look over that correspondence, and if he was satisfied that it was genuine,
he would pass him as a prospective farm labourer. If he were not satisfied,
he would hold Him until we investigated, perhaps here.

Q. Do the railway companies, or your Department, enter into any arrange-
ment with individual farmers, or farmers’ organizations, regarding the employ-
ment? What part has the farmer employer in this arrangement?—A. Many
farmer employers in Canada nominate individuals from the Continent, as well
as, under the Empire Settlement Scheme, from England. The railways make a
canvass, I understand, of all the districts in Canada, and secure employment,
we will say, of a Norwegian with a Norwegian, or a Jugo-Slavian with a Jugo-
Slavian, if such a thing exists in the case of farmers in this country.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. I have just been reading this agreement with the railways. I think it
would make it a little clearer if you would amplify your remarks in this regard.
This agreement reads as follows:

. And whereas the Parties of the Second Part——that is the railway
companies—by reason of their special interest in the early settlement of
available unoccupied lands and their transportation facilities by land
and sea are specially qualified to procure, select and settle immigrants
of the classes mentioned, and have the necessary organization for that
purpose.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Do I understand that, up to the time of the agreement of this year, you have
permitted the railway companies to do the inviting and to certify as to the
vocational fitness for prospective employment of these settlers?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is provided for in Section 1, which authorizes the railway
companies to invite persons, who are citizens or residents of the country referred
to, to emigrate to Canada, and settle them in Canada as agriculturalists, agri-
cultural workers and domestic servants. Would not the answer to Mr. Brown’s
question be, so far as those who are brought in by the railways are concerned,
that you accept the railways’ certificate?—A. What we call the occupational
certificate.

Q. The railways’ certificate?—A. Yes.

Q. That is, the railways say, “This man is a farm labourer, and a qualified
farm labourer,” and they say they have employment for him, and you let him
in, or you have let him in under this agreement?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which covered a period of two years?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the Department does not exercise any special supervision over
them?—A. Did not.

Q. Except to check up, as you told Mr. Cahan?—A. No supervision, except
to check up.

Q. You really constituted the railway companies as your immigration
agents on the other side?—A. The whole scheme of the railway agreement was
to incorporate the two national railways—I will not say as co-operators, but
there ought to be co-operation as between two national institutions. That was
the whole purpose of the railway agreement. They were already established
on the Continent, and, of necessity, being national institutions in Canada,
would do it conscientiously, thoroughly and with every view of protecting
Canada, and the incoming immigrant.

Q. And is it true, generally speaking, that you accepted the investigations
of the railway companies, and their certificate with regard to occupation and
employment?—A. For one year. There were one hundred and sixty-three that
we had to turn back, where there was some heart trouble, or lung trouble, and
that kind of thing. We could not accept the certificate in those cases.

Q. And the changes you have made this year will allow the Minister to
refuse anybody, even though he has a certificate?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Millar:

Q. In the years immediately following 1921, was there any falling off in
the percentage of British immigrants coming to Canada, as compared with
those from the Continent? If there was, do you know of any change in policy,
or a change in administration, or anything of that nature, that would be wholly
or in part responsible for that changed percentage?—A. There has, undoubtedly,
been a falling off in general British immigration. .

Q. In the years immediately following 1921?—A. Yes. You are asking
the question as far as immigration to Canada is concerned?

Q. Yes—A. I would like to qualify my answer by saying that the emigra-
tion from England, to anywhere within the Dominions, has fallen off. If there
has been an increased continental immigration, it is due to the railway agree-
ments. It was a pretty well balanced proposition right through, until the
railway agreements came in. There is no question about it, the railway agree-
ments have helped to bring in a greater number of continental people. This
does not necessarily apply to those from below Germany, because Germany
has been making some very steady progress in the past two years, as far as
immigration is concerned.
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By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Mr. Millar asked if the falling off was due to any change in policy ?—
A. It cannot be due to any change in policy, because we have done everything
we possibly could to induce the British emigrant to come to this country. If
he is a farm labourer, we have gone as far as to bring him over and place him
on the farm. We have guaranteed to place any number. There is co-operation
between the railways and ourselves, so far as British farm labour is concerned.
We have given them quotas which they have never been able to fill, because
they cannot get the required material in the old country; they cannot induce
them to leave. We, ourselves, have tried in every way, with our settlement
schemes, and our special rates.

Q. Following Mr. Millar’s question, and along the very same lines, what
restriction is placed upon, say, a single man without farm experience, coming
from Great Britain to this country? What percentage do you permit to come,
or what restrictions do you place on them to prevent them from coming?—
A. From Great Britain?

Q. Yes?—A. We do not prevent a single man coming from Great Britain,
when he is mentally and physically fit. ;

Q. I have in my hand a hand-book on the Dominion of Canada issued
by the British Government, acting in co-operation or collaboration with this
government. This reads as follows:—

Single men, without farming experience, and going on the land in
Canada, provided they are nominated by friends or relatives in Canada
for definite agricultural employment.

(A limited number of suitable single men between ’ghe ages of 20
and 35 years, without farming experience, may be nominated by the
Canadian Government.)

There is a limitation, and I would like to have it explained?—A. There is a
limitation, insofar as the £2 help is concerned. We have even given a quota,
an undertaking, I am afraid, far beyond our possibilities of placements of
inexperienced help, to come under the £2 rate. This refers entirely to the
Empire Settlement Scheme.

Q. That is under the assisted passage?—A. Under the assisted passage.
Now, our quota for inexperienced help, is much bigger this year. We ha\{e
been making progress, and have secured from a great number of people their
preparedness and willingness to take the inexperienced British farmer; there-
fore, we have been able to increase the ratio from year to year as time went
on.

Q. That is the reason for the limitation in the number of these suitable
young men, without farming experience? That is, it is the inability to place
them here in Canada?—A. Yes, to place the inexperienced.

By Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw) :

Q. At one time, was there not a restriction placed on people coming from
the British Isles, and from the continent as well, as to the amount of money
they must have, and if there was, on what date was it put on, and on what
date was it taken off?—A. Yes, undoubtedly there was a restriction. There
was a restriction of $250, as far as the Britishers were concerned.

Q. In what year was that put on?—A. I have copies of the orders in
council here. In 1920 P.C. 2930 of the 29th of November, 1920, suspended
between that date and the 31st of March, 1921, P.C. 294, so far as it related
to mechanics and artisans, skilled and unskilled labour. During the period of
suspension the mechanics and artisans were required to have $250; the heads
of families, $250; other members of the family over 18, $125, and those between
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five and eighteen years, $50. This was extended indefinitely on the 19th of
March, 1921, and carried on under P.C. 2668, as amended and the occupational
test only was applied to the Britishers on the 9th of May, 1922,

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Was there any money test before 1921?7—A. Yes, there was a $25
money test previous to that date.
Q. On everybody in Great Britain?—A. Yes, on everybody excepting
the agriculturist.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. I would like to go back to the question asked by Colonel Ralston in
connection with the agreement with the railway companies. Rightly or
wrongly there is an impression throughout the country that the railway com-
panies are introducing citizens into this country and leaving them. Now, the
agreement, which I see on page 31 of the printed proceedings of March 8,
provides

agree further to transport to the countries whence they emigrated all
immigrants brought by them to Canada under the agreement, who,
refusing to engage in agriculture, agriculture labour, or domestic service
in Canada, shall become public charges, within the period of one year
from the date of their admission to Canada.

I would like to know, Mr. Egan, if any effort has been made by your depart-
ment, or through you, with the railway companies to keep track of these
immigrants after they are brought in? Is that feasible?—A. No, that is not
a feasible proposition. You cannot begin to keep track of them.

Q. Is there any question of expense involved in that?—A. Of course, there
would be an immense expense in trying to follow up practically a fading pro-
position, and if you try to follow it to a positive conclusion you would have to
send an officer, say, to Winnipeg, to check back on a carload or a trainload,
and that officer would realize within twelve hours that probably half the train-
load were coming back east, or a carload was coming back east, and he would
have to engage temporary officials to follow these people up. The thing is an
impossible proposition. ;

Q. Then it really amounts to this, Mr. Egan, that immigrants brought into
this country by the transportation companies—after the year has expired, the
railways are freed from all responsibility so far as these immigrants are con-
cerned?—A. Yes. That particular clause does not impose any responsibility
on them whatsoever.

By Mr. Vallance:

Q. Following up Mr. Millar’s question: Are there not other reasons for the
condition he mentioned? Take, for instance, Australia and New Zealand, which
were bidding for British immigration from 1921 on. I know, from my own
personal knowledge, that great numbers were going from Scotland to Australia
and New Zealand, rather than to Canada.—A. You mean from the Empire
settlement?

Q. From any source.—A. There was, as you know, at a certain period an
extreme and terrific propaganda against Canada in the British press. We tried
to combat the proposition, and have to a very large extent succeeded by giving
the facts. One of the very first things we did was to ask and receive from the
London Times and the Manchester Guardian their promise that they would give
us a chance to tell our story in the next column of the same issue containing what
they considered news. I happened to be over there digging into things, and I
said to the editors, “I do not ask you not to publish that which you consider
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news, but do give us a chance within the Empire to tell our story in the next
column of the same issue.” That has progressed considerably, and we are having
a great deal of propaganda spreading out which has stopped it. Then there 1
a different, atmosphere since Mr. Baldwin’s coming, and even previous to his
coming. There is no doubt that the £11 rate, under the Empire Settlement,
to Australia, is bound to have an effect upon the fibre of any average boy in
these three Isles, who must of necessity have a touch of the sea in him. They
carry him over to Australia for £11. The United Kingdom pays £11, and the
Australian government pays another £11 to take him to Australia for a six weeks’
trip. That is a £33 rate to Australia for six weeks. The transportation of that
immigrant to Canada, under modern conditions of “ getting together ” insists
upon extracting £18-10/ to bring that man over on a seven days’ trip to this
country, and my contention is—1I hope I am not getting into a question of policy
now; I am only giving an expression of opinion-—that in the assisted passage
you are doing wrong, and that it ought to be a flat rate and a reasonable flat
rate to let these men come from the United Kingdom, because there are many
good men in the United Kingdom who see the other chaps, with the £2 rate,
whom he knows are not going to farm when they get here, and who are sitting
back with their families and will not squander £18-10/, perhaps five times over,
and if all that money were given in some way—Ilent, not given—to establish the
Hﬁ?n from the overseas dominions, it would, in my opinion, be much more
effective. -

By Mr. Glen:
Q. Are there more Britishers going to Australia and New Zealand than to
Canﬁda?—A. No, it is very much the other way. I think I have something here
on that.

Discussion followed.

The Wirness: In answer to Mr. Glen’s question, I may say I should have
with me the figures. I do not seem to find them, but I can bring them in later.
(See productions at page 765 post.) However, let me answer the question in
this way. Immigration from the United Kingdom is more than one-half of the
total immigration within the Empire from England; that is, we are always more
than South Africa, New Zealand and Ausiralia combined, with the exception of
one three months’ period some five of six years ago, and that three months’
period was grasped upon for insinuation purposes and propaganda purposes. It
1s not, true. There are more people coming from the Old Country to settle in
_Canada than to all the others combined. For example, if the total were 52,000,
gl womllld mean 27,000 or 28,000 to Canada, and the balance divided amongst

e others.

By Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw) : A

Q. There have been insinuations made that the Department was not doing
all it could to get British immigration. You stated there had been a money
restriction. That money restriction was taken off by the Department?—A. Yes,
in 1922.

Q. Since that time it has been easier for people to come from England than
it was before?—A. Undoubtedly. If you take a mechanic and his family, assum-
ing he had a family of five, it would be somewhere around $1,000 which he had
to have in hand before he could move. That was under former conditions. We
have done everything we can to make immigration easier for the Britishers—out-
side of the farmers, who are still up against this £18-10/ fare.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. I understood that bulk nominationg are allowed up to May of this year.
Will you explain what that means?—A. From Canada for the United Kingdom?
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Q. Yes.—A. Of course, of necessity, we must limit these nominations to
the possibilities of placement according to the time of year. The bulk proposi-
tion is this: that a given society, railway or church, as for instance the United
Church, which is moving 150 men, would not be allowed bulk nominations for
any body of men unless they gave us the positive place of placement, and that
applies to any institution undertaking to place men.

Q. Why is it limited to May of this year?—A. On account of past experi-
ence. If you bring in too many people, particularly the inexperienced farm
helpers, say, in the middle of June when the farmers are sitting tight and
waiting for something to happen—

Q. That is annual limitation for the first five or six months?—A. Tt is all
right to get them in here when the farmer needs them in the early Spring and
early Summer, so that he may carry them over the busy time and give them the
experience of the harvest, and so on.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Are the restrictions more strict now than before?—A. No, there is no
restriction whatsoever for a Britisher coming into Canada, except as to his
mental and physical condition.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. In 1921 you were not connected with the Department?—A. No.

Q. Is it not a fact that the reason for the restriction being placed then was
the abnormal unemployment situation in Canada?—A. That I do not know; I
presume $0. :

Q. It seems to me that is the reason, because immigration always has some-
thing to do with unemployment in a country. In 1921 we had a very abnormal
unemployment situation, and if people did not come here it was because of that
abnormal unemployment situation, and I think the government of that day
was correct in putting on those restrictions.—A. T am only answering questions.

By Mr. Brown: >

Q. Mr. Egan, there has been a great deal of criticism voiced throughout
the country in regard to persons coming from Great Britain. In your opinion,
is there not a good deal of confusion in the minds of people by their failing to
distinguish between assisted passages and those who come without assistance?—
A. There is no question about that.

Q. Then I understand that people coming from Great Britain who are able
to pay their own way out, and able and willing to engage in any occupation
whatever can come in without any restriction?—A. They can come, and are com-
ing, to this country in larger numbers than to any other Dominion in the Empire.

Q. The restrictions apply only to those who are coming on assisted passages
or on reduced fares?—A. The only restriction is, they must be of a certain type.

Q. The restrictions apply only, however, to those who are getting assistance
in some way in their passage?—A. That is all—mothing else.

Q. That should be kept very clearly before this country?—A. It should be
—and a great many other things. If I may go back to the question you, your-
self, asked yesterday, I think, about the bow-legged lady—

Q. No, that was Mr. Millar—A. It was asked by some member of the
Committee. I may say that I have seen in black and white the story about the
bow-legged lady and the reasons given why she was not allowed into this country,
and you would be shocked and surprised if you saw what I saw. The bow-
legged woman was not kept out of Canada, but it was found that she was a
ricket girl when she was young, and until we had the doctor’s certificate that
this would not interfere with her earning her living and making her own way,
she was admitted. I may say that she was admitted within two weeks after
the story appeared.
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By Mr. Spotton:

Q. I have not bothered you with any questions so far. You have my
sympathy for the bombardment from all sides, and I have been impressed with
your desire to give full information, and T wish to congratulate you. There was,
however, one thing that was not quite clear. I take it that you said that there
was a kind of systematic propaganda in the British Isles to dissuade people
from coming to Canada. I have not heard of it. What was the nature of it
and by whom was it conducted? I refer to the campaign in England which you
thought militated against the British coming here.—A. Let me explain that.
In 1922 and 1923 it was acknowledged by all those who were in touch with affairs
in the Old Country that this was more particularly an attack on Canada in
connection with the Grand Trunk, and the feeling that we were not keeping our
pledges, and Canada was this and Canada was that. This attack was bound
more or less to have its effect. It would only require going over the files to
understand that. That condition has been commented upon in the Old Country
press, but it has altered considerably. There was also and always a preparedness
to tell the most fantastic tales by the most fantastic people. We told the facts
to a great many of the papers, and in a number of them, although not all by
any means, the answer of the department or the answer of government was on
the back pages somewhere. There must have been some intention, when we
were not given the same space on the front page as was given to those fantastic
stories. Ours were always boiled down.

Q. It was newspaper propaganda?—A. Yes, entirely. It was more of a
financial proposition.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Yesterday we had with us the Deputy Minister of Health and in reply
to a question I put to him, he said that not only were the immigrants, who
came in under any assisted scheme, subject to medical inspection in Great
Britain, but also any immigrant coming to Canada of his own wvolition, or
otherwise. Is that correct?—A. If he is coming as an immigrant, yes.

Q. And if he is coming on his own?—A. As an immigrant?

Q. Yes—A. To settle in Canada?

Q. Yes.—A. He must be medically examined.

Q. Where?—A. In one of the 334 places nominated by the Department of
Health for that examination.

Q. Then why make the distinction regarding a man from Great Britain,
when you admit a man from Italy, we will say, who does not come through a
port where you have medical officers, and he is examined in Canada?—A. The
evidence in regard to Italy was not quite sound yesterday. We have not had
from Italy via the ports of New York or Boston 18 people in 18 months. We
do not admit them via any of these ports. They may come up to Paris or
Antwerp or Rotterdam and have their passports vised by a Canadian officer.

Q. What about South Africa or Australia?—A. In what way?

Q. As to immigrants from Great Britain. What is the disparity as between
Britain and Australia and New Zealand?—A. There is none. A man from
Australia would have to be examined at the port at which he entered. We have
perhaps one in a year, but we have a number of people travelling, who do not
come in as immigrants.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. There is an impression around the country that an immigrant coming
from Great Britain has to go through a very rigid examination, that they have
to be stripped and go through the examination like that for insurance, but, on
the other hand, when they come from the Continent, they are given but a very
cursory examination—just looked at and passed on; they do not have to strip
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or anything of that kind.—A. A great deal of that arose from a certain letter
appearing in the Times. There is no truth about a stripped examination. There
is no question but if a doctor comes across a man whom he can tell at once
has certain indications of, we will say, a venereal disease, he will stand him
aside and strip him, or if he thinks he has tuberculosis he will stand him aside
and strip him, but there is no such thing as a stripped examination in that sense
of the word. As far as the Continent is concerned, it is true that often on the
Continent, as far as the Canadian medical examinations are concerned, they
may not be as thorough as they are on the British Isles for prospective British
settlers, but Mr. Continental coming from nine-tenths of the parts of Europe
to settle in Canada goes through something far more rigid. He is stripped and
stripped and stripped again. He goes through a delousing process, not only
is he stripped but he goes through a cleaning and bathing and fumigating
process—his clothing receiving the same treatment—and he is kept under
observation for two or three days, and he comes to our doctors, and I think
you will agree that under those circumstances they can pass him very freely.
Furthermore, the transportation companies are liable to certain charges if they
bring people to our shores who are not fit, and there is no doubt that the trans-
portation companies are working inland and refusing to move people without
some investigation by their own medical men. To what extent that exists, I
do not know, but I know this, that there is a direct reaction and a direct appli-
cation on the part of friends here on behalf of people coming from certain
parts of the Continent. They say, “Your Canadian doctor has rejected him,”
and we immediately ask, “Where was he rejected;” “At such a place,” and I
know at once it is a mistake because we have no Canadian doctors there. "It
is the doctors of the transportation company who are called by these good
people “Canadian doctors.” The immigrant is going through all kinds of
examinations before he reaches Canada as compared with the Britishers.

By Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw):

Q. The question of men in Great Britain being examined there, and the
men on the Continent not being examined, is rather interesting. To my mind
that is not a restriction; it is a convenience for the immigrant to be examined
overseas and to be told there that perhaps he cannot enter Canada. That cer-
tainly is a convenience to him. If he comes from some part of Europe and is
not examined, arrives on this side and is then turned back if he cannot pass
the examination, it would be a very great inconvenience to him. I do not
think it is any restriction at all to have a man examined in England before he
leaves there. It seems to me it is a convenience to him which is not given to
Europeans. He must leave his home country and come over here before he
can be examined.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. We have many men coming over on business, in every walk of life, to
locate here, and it seems to me it is unreasonable that these men should have
to go to any doctors, whether Canadian or any other doctors, when they are
perfectly healthy and know that they are, and are perfectly good citizens. It
also seems unreasonable for them to have to mix up with a bunch of others
who perhaps are not in the same condition, before they can be allowed to come
to Canada, when a man from another country can come in without any restric-
tion at all.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. I think Mr. Arthurs’ question is based on a misunderstanding of what
you said. I want to get this clearly in my mind. Supposing I am a Scotch
farmer and intend to settle in Canada. I have money enough to buy my ticket
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and I look all right to the fellow at the gangplank. Do I have to go to a
doctor on the other side—A. Yes, you would not get your permit for sailing
unless you did—since the 14th of February.

Q. Everybody who sails to Canada intending to settle—A. In Canada?
We have not yet drawn a line between a man with a million dollars or a
hundred thousand and a man who has not a cent. They must all do the same.

By Mvr. Vallance:

Q. Following up Colonel Ralston’s question: take a Scotch immigrant,
paying his own way. When does he receive his examination? Supposing I
decide to come to Canada, and I go to the agent of the C.P.R. in Scotland, and
say, “I want a ticket to Winnipeg,” and they sell me one——A. Not now.
They will advise you to take the examination.

Q. That is quite recent?—A. Since the 14th of February.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Following that up: supposing a man from Scotland is over here and his
wife and family are in Scotland. They are very loathe to go through this
examination there; they cannot possibly see any reason why they should be
treated differently than a man, for instance, from South Africa or any other
place, as I mentioned before, and they cannot see why they cannot be examined
when they arrive in Canada and not be subjected to what they consider a
certain indignity—I do not say it is an indignity—they do not see why one who
is able to come here on his own should go through all this formality the same
as those coming over on assisted passages.—A. The medical examination and
all that you have in your Act is passed by parliament, and it is a convenience
to have this examination at home. Supposing, for instance, this good lady
had some contagious disease of which she knew nothing, and it was discovered
by our officer at Quebec and we had to return her. Would it not have been
better to examine her on the other side?

Q. If she had no disease she would not look at it from that point of view.
—A. I do not agree with you. That is not the general expression of opinion
from over there. We know it has been suggested and it is possible there may
be some who object, but generally speaking that is not the impression.

Q. Just follow that up. Supposing this lady wanted to come in, and she
had some disease and she said, “I am going to Australia via Montreal”’—simply
a tourist in Canada—and her ticket read to Vancouver. What action would your
1(i(;:part-ment; take in that case?—A. With a contagious disease she cannot go

rough.

Q. I am not talking about a contagious disease, I am talking about any
disability that might otherwise bar her?—A. There are no other disabilities
that would bar her.

Q. There are no other disabilities that would bar a tourist?—A. Or an
immigrant, sir.

Q. You have spoken about the man who settles here, and sends for his
Scoteh wife. She is not debarred from coming in if she has a physical disability,
where he is already settled and can look after her, as explained yesterday, as
long as it is not contagious or mental. She is admitted into the country to
the care of her husband.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Did I understand you to say, that a man of means, coming from Great
Britain to settle in Canada, would have to go through a medical examination,
while a man of means from the Continent does not have to go through one?—
A. Oh, no.
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Q. You said that a man of means, coming to settle in Canada from Great
Britain, has to go through a medical examination, while the man of means,
coming from the Continent to settle in Canada, does not have to go through
a medical examination?—A. No. The man that is coming to settle in Canada
must be medically examined.

Q. Whether he has means or not?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Supposing this man of means sails from a port other than a port where
you have doctors; what happens?—A. The transportation companies will advise
him that he cannot get into Canada without having his medical certificate.

Q. He might sail on a small ship.—A. Then he would, of necessity, be
examined at the port here.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. I asked you the other day to have the instructions that were issued
to these medical officers produced; I do not see them here—A. I am sorry if
I overlooked anything.

Q. That naturally follows upon the admission that you have made this
morning, that there is practically no medical examination at all; it is only a
farce. No man could be properly examined with his clothes on, and everything
of that kind. Are they examined or not, or is this whele thing a farce? Are
we keeping twenty or twenty-five doctors over in Europe simply doing routine
work, and passing them on their face value? Do you mean to tell this Com-
mittee that an immigrant is admitted to this country by an examination which
does not include a chest examination, a heart examination, or an inspection
of the surface of the body? Do you just look at him and pass him on? Is
that what we are paying an army of doctors for over in Europe? The whole
thing seems to be a farce.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: 1 think, in fairness to the witness, our honourable
friend should have been here yesterday to question the medical officer. My
honourable friend will admit that it is not a question that a layman can answer.
We have the medieal men here, and be glad to bring them back again to allow
my honourable friend to question them. But to ask the witness, who is a
layman, a question as to what a medical examination consists of, I submit, Mr.
Chairman, is unfair.

Mr. McGieeon: I submit, Mr. Chairman, that even the Minister of the
Interior knows, and every layman knows, that you cannot look at a man with his
clothes on and tell whether he has tuberculosis, or whether he has a disease of the
heart.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: With all deference to my good friend, when we
had a medical man on the stand, he was the proper man to ask about medical
examination. My hon. friend will admit at once that he has a very great
advantage over a layman. I merely suggest that it is not a question that a
layman could answer.

Mr. McGreBon: Unfortunately, I am on two important committees, both
meeting at the same hour every day. This is a matter of policy. The Deputy
Minister has made a statement of fact, and it is surely up to the Department to
say whether they are going to have a condition of that kind, or not. It is not
a question of medical evidence; it is a question of fact and procedure.

Hon. Mr. StewarT: I still maintain that my hon. friend could have been
here yesterday, when he could have ascertained definitely from the medical
officer as to how the medical examination was conducted. He went fairly fully
into those details. I submit that it is not a fair question to ask the Deputy Min-
ister of Immigration, who is a layman, whether or not, in his opinion, these
examinations are sufficient.
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By Mr. Sinclair (Wellington North) :

Q. I have a party in my riding who came out under the Three Thousand
Family Scheme. I cannot give the name, but the Minister has the letter. This
party was accepted, and he sold out his holdings in the Old Country. The
allotment had been taken out, and he could not come. They left him over until
the next year. He had no work to do, and he said, “ What am I going to do?”
The Immigration Agent told him that he could come himself, and the family
could come next spring, which he did. He worked here all summer with the
understanding that he would get his money back. He cannot get it, and the
Minister tells me that he is not eligible. The Immigration Agent in the Old
Country promised that man that he would get it, and 1 think it is up to this
Immigration Department to give it to him. It is only a matter of $90. This
man is a Scotchman, and you know, we cannot have too many Scotchmen here.
—A. I cannot answer that definitely, without having the whole file before me.
The first thing to establish, with all due respect to your Scotch friends, is that a
promise of that kind was made.

o Q. ?The man who made the promise does not deny it?—A. He does not
eny it?

Q. He is in the office on the other side now.—A. He has no business to make
a promise like that. There are three parties to this; there is the transportation
company, the Old Country Government, and ourselves. The Old Country
Government, more than ourselves, protest at doing any back action stuff of
that kind. They have their Auditor General—I do not think he is called the
Auditor General there; I think he is called the Treasurer—and they refuse to
pay out any of that money after a man has left. There is our difficulty. The
Inspector making that promise ought to pay it himself.

By Mr. Spotton:

Q. In the business world a firm must make good any representations of their
agents, or managers, or superintendents. When your representative admits
that he did that, surely the business directors of Canada will stand behind
him. You should not evade what a business firm could not evade in a court
of this land. If your agent makes a mistake—he is your agent, you have
appointed him, you trained and educated him—he is your representative, and
you have to stand behind him.—A. Up to a point, that is a good argument.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. I was unavoidably absent during the early part of the discussion to-
day. The last time you were on the stand you made a distinction regarding
European immigration. You described a certain line. As I understand it,
your proposition was that any man coming from above the so-called line was at
liberty to come into Canada on his own, with no assistance from the Canadian
Government, provided he was not a criminal, and was physically fit?—A. Yes.

Q. Below the supposed line, there was a distinction. A man was only
accepted from that part of Europe, or North Africa, as the case may be,
provided he was coming for farm employment, or as a domestic. I am given to
understand that there were a certain number admitted from below the line, who
were not, domestics, and who were not, or did not claim to be going upon the
farms?—A. Yes.

Q. When you come before the Committee again, would you come supplied
with the information as to the number of men who have been admitted during
the last three years?—A. You mean, non-farmers?

Q. Who were non-farmers, or not domestic servants, and who came from
tgat portion of Europe lying south of the line?—A. I will be very glad to do
that.
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Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw): For the last fifteen years.

Mr. ArrHURs: 1 will accept that amendment. Also why they were
admitted, so far as classes may be concerned. I want to know if there is any
particular reason for allowing them in. I do not think it is in your power to
give us that for fifteen years, as I do not think the regulations were in exist-
ence at that time. (See productions at page 766 post.)

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain) :

Q. Regarding the regulations of the immigration officer, in connection
with immigrants from different parts of Europe, some of them have spoken
to me that they were rigidly examined, had to show their money, and all the
rest of it, at the port of entry, while others did not have to go through any
such examination, If that is the case, would the immigrant, who went through
this examination at the port of entry, be examined as to his physical condi-
tion, and his monetary position prior to coming to the Canadian port? I think
that is a matter that should be cleared up?—A. Any immigrant coming from
the Continent, must be vizaed by the Canadian officer on the Continent,
and, of necessity, if he were in that class—I forget just what it is,
but we will assume, for the minute, that it is Roumania—he must bring $250
from his country of origin. I would have to look up the Order in Council
to give you the exact rating. We have found by experience that, although
he may have $250, or perhaps more, when examined by our officer on the
Continent, he does not have it when he arrives in Canada. That is why the
second examination is held, in that respect, to make sure he has it coming in.

Q. Is there any different regulation for the man who is coming over as
an agriculturalist, and for the man who is coming over who has not had agricul-
tural experience, who is a tradesman of some sort, or a mechanic, and who
had not been nominated by someone in Canada? Would he have to have
more money than the man who was nominated, and coming over to a friend,
or some other person, who was providing him with a job immediately he
landed?—A. There is no specified money nomination for the immigrant from
the continent. He must satisfy us that he is able to look after himself, and
care for himself when he comes here. If he satisfies our officer that he can
do that, he is admitted to the country. Speaking of tradesmen, or farmers
coming to assured employment, it depends on the time of the year. If a man
were coming in October, we will say, from France, and was a mechanic, or
a machinist of some kind, I would require that he should have more money
than if he were coming in in the spring of the year, when he would be more
likely to secure a position within a week or two, rather than in the fall, when,
perhaps, it would be more difficult. He needs something to carry him over,
and tide him over.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Regulations have been in force right along describing who shall be
barred, since 1912 or 1913?—A. Since 1910.

Q. The information asked for by Mr. Arthurs covers a ten-year period?

Mr. ArtHURS: 1 was only asking for a three-year period.

Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw): Mr. Arthurs can ask for three years, but I am
asking for fifteen years. Ten years is enough, as far as I am concerned, but
I do not think you can limit it to three years. "

The Wirness: It is understood that what I am bringing to you is the
declared occupation of that person. I am bringing you the figures, as we have
them on our records of admission. If you want me to cover the exceptions—
we will take the $250 period, when it applied to everybody, in 1920 or 1921—
it would mean going into thousands and thousands of files.
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By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. I understand that, up to a comparatively recent period, a man who
came in with $250 in his possession could come in for any employment, practi-
cally. That regulation has been changed. That is why I mentioned three
years. I do not care whether it is three, five or ten years, but I want to know
how these men come in who are not farm employees, or who do not pretend
to be, or are not domestic servants, and on whose volition they were allowed
to enter Canada, and how many were admitted?

Hon. Mr. Rarston: I suggest that we also want to know how it was that
those who did not possess the $250 qualification came into Canada.

Mr. ArtrHURS: I have no objection to that at all.

% The Wirness: That will mean pulling out thousands and thousands of
es.

Mr. Arraurs: I do not think the Minister of National Defence knows just
how far his suggestion goes. 1 can give you one case in point. I had a case up
in my riding of a man who came in under the $250 money clause, or rather
started to come in during the war. He arrived at Ellis Island, New York,
from Italy. Between the time that he had left Italy, and the time he arrived
at’ Ellis Island, Italian money had dropped down, so that he did not have
anything like $250, although he had a very large sum when he left Italy.
This man’s friends wired a thousand dollars, or some large sum, to Ellis Island,
but the Americans refused to accept it. This shows how the $250 regulation
worked out, and how difficult it would be for the Department to follow it out.
I assume that the deputy will have great difficulty in that regard, and, so far
as I am concerned, I am willing to limit myself to a three, five, six, or any
number of years. Since 1921, I think, would be about fair.

The Wrrness: There would be three tables. Colonel Ralston has sug-
gested ten years; Mr. Ross suggested fifteen. Am I to bring three tables?

Mr. ArtHURS: I want to know the number who came in contrary to the
ordinary regulations, regardless of whether it is above or below the line. The
number who came, contrary to the ordinary regulations of the Department either .
from above or below the line.

Mr. Caman: It is close to one o’clock, and I think we might adjourn the
examination of Mr. Egan. I would like to have the motion which I moved,
seconded by the Hon. Mr. Stewart, put before the meeting.

Witness retired.
Motion agreed to.
The Committee adjourned until Thursday, March 15, at 11 a.m.
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House oF CoMMONS,
WepNEspAY, March 21, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock A.M., the¢ Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

W. J. Ecax, recalled:

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Mr. Egan, can you tell the committee at the present time as to how and
by whom the distinction is made between preferred and non-preferred con-
tinental countries? Is it done by order in council, or is it done by administrative
orders?—A. It is not done by order in council. It was a practice carried on after
the change in 1922 to the occupational certificates. As a matter of fact, before
the amendment in 1922 removing from the monied and other requirements
which brought about the change by dropping the money and bringing in the
occupational qualification, it had been decided to carry on the practice of admit-
ting people from preferred countries. There is considerable correspondence in
connection with it in evidence on the file showing that was actually the principle
which was to be kept in practice.

Q. It not having been done by order in council, then I suppose it was done
by order of the Minister of Immigration?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. It was not a practice established by you as deputy, or some of the
officials?—A. No, sir.

Q. It was a practice established by the executive head of the department,
the Minister of Immigration?—A. That is correct, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

- Q. And it appears in that pamphlet which you issued that, in practice,
certain countries of Europe are preferred countries?—A. To which pamphlet
do you refer?

& Q. The pamphlet you issued in reference to immigration matters.—A.
= ;

Q. This was not done without anybody knowing it?—A. No, it has been
in practice. There are two references to it, sir, in this pamphlet and I shall
have to take the time to go over the pamphlet to find them.

Q. I think it is in reference to regulation.—A. Yes. In that pamphlet
published a year and a half ago and distributed throughout the country. Before
being produced in pamphlet form and distributed,” a series of articles had
appeared in the Canadian press from one end of Canada to the other. Speaking
of the regulation in one part of that booklet, we say:

A general regulation P.C. 183 known as the occupational test provides
for the admission of persons of certain occupations and of others of cer-
tain relationships. The occupations are farmers, farm labourers and
house workers. The relationships are wife and unmarried children;
parents and unmarried brothers and sisters of any person legally resident
in Canada.

Exceptions to this general rule are made in the case of British sub-
jects entering Canada from Great Britain and Northern Ireland, the
Irish Free State, Newfoundland, Australia, New Zealand, the Union of

[Mr. W. J. Egan.l



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 47

South Africa and the United States of America. Exceptions are also
made in the case of United States citizens entering Canada from the
United States and, in practice, of citizens of certain countries of north-
western Europe. All immigrants must be coming to assured employ-
ment or have sufficient means to maintain themselves until employment
is secured.

So you see it was in practice. I made that statement in this particular
pamphlet. ,

Q. That refers to what we are speaking of as preferred countries?—A.
Yes, exactly.

Q. How long has that practice been in force—approximately?—A. To my
knowledge, since 1910. I say 1910 because I am thinking of a casual review
of the files four years ago, but positively since 1918, 1919, 1920, 1921, 1922, —
right along.

Q. I mean the practice with regard to treating certain countries in the
northern part of Ilurope differently from other parts of Europe further south.—
A. It has been in practice to my mind all the time.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Or only since 1923?—A. Oh no, sir. As I said at the beginning, I re-
member distinctly seeing some correspondence from the Minister, confidential
and otherwise, to the old country, in fact, to the High Commissioner. This was
before the amendment came into force, pointing out that certain countries
would be and were considered preferred in that respect.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. How could they be preferred when it was only a monetary test?—
A. They might not have the money.

Q. They were admitted anyway?—A. They were very often admitted when
they did not have the money; they may have been living in certain countries,
not their own, and not have the proper passports.

Q. That money test is made by order-in-council?—A. Yes.

Q. How could the Minister go behind the order-in-council?—A. It was a
practice in vogue, and he did it, and not in any isolated cases at all, but in
hundreds of cases. It was done all the time.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. That is when the monetary test was in vogue?—A. Yes.
B Q. There were two requirements previous to the order-in-council of 1922?—
. Yes.
Q. One monetary test and the other a passport regulation?—A. Yes.
Q. And you tell us the practice was to disregard the money test some-
times, or the passport regulations, particularly in connection with the countries
of northern Europe?—A. Yes, all countries in Europe.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Can you tell us anything with regard to Australia and New Zealand
bringing in foreigners from Europe?—A. Only in a general way.

Q. Do they allow all classes to come in, or what are their regulations?—
A. T cannot answer you specifically or positively, but I know in a general way
they do not allow general immigration of that kind, only under very guarded
conditions and for certain districts at certain times.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. Have you been able to prepare the statistical statement which you
promised, showing in recent years the number of immigrants coming from
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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continental countries, the number engaged in farm settlement or farm labour,
those coming in as domestic servants, and the other category, those coming
in for other service?—A. It is a tremendous task, sir, but it will be completed

some time to-day.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Have you any information showing how the immigrants are looked after
in Australia? Have they any difficulties in caring for their immigrants who
do not find work— —A. Oh, yes.

Q. Will you give us that information?—A. I may make this statement that
they are having a great deal of difficulty, and thousands of their people are
bombarding our Trade Commissioner’s office in Australia, with the idea of
making their way to Canada, if they possibly can, because they are having
difficulties there. I am speaking from documents I have seen recently.

The witness retired.

n o e —
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House or CoMMONS,
TrurspAY, May 10, 1928.

W. J. Ecan called.

Witness:

In the evidence which I gave at the beginning of the review by the Com-
mittee in connection with the medical examination, I cited some of the reasons
which brought about the present arrangement. On one occasion, on page 405,
No. 14 of the Minutes dated Thursday, May 3rd, 1928, Mr. Vallance asked the
following question:

As a great colonization body—either of the transportation com-
panies being great colonizers—were you or any members of your organi-
zation now engaged in the recruiting of British colonists asked to express
an opinion regarding the regulation or regulations before they were put
into force; that is, when the department issues a new regulation is there
any co-operation between the bodies interested in immigration? Are
you asked for your opinion as to the regulations, or does the department
simply create the regulations and just hand them to you without any
consideration on your part?

Colonel Dennis replied as follows:

As regards the existing regulations, myself or any member of the
department were not consulted with regard to that, before they were
promulgated. Our first notice of them was in the official receipt of them
after they had been put in force by the department.

I am not questioning Colonel Dennis’s answer, but I feel that the Commit-
tee would like to have the history of a little more than the cases I cited, in con-
nection with the present organization, and I am handing to you for your con-
sideration this letter, dated at Montreal, July 23, 1925, addressed to W. J. Egan,
Esq., Deputy Minister, Department of Immigration and Colonization, Ottawa,
Ont., signed by William Ballantyne, Steamship General Passenger Agent, Cana-
dian Pacific Railway; L. 8. Tobin, Passenger Manager, White Star and White
Star-Dominion Line, and F. J. McClure, Passenger Manager, Cunard and
Anchor-Donaldson Lines, which reads as follows: .

IMMIGRATION

The steps taken recently by the United States Government Immigra-
tion Department, to place Civil and Medical Inspectors in Europe for
the complete inspection of aliens destined to the Umtqd States, i8
undoubtedly familiar to you, and the Canadian Port Steamship Lines have
watched with interest this progressive measure on the part of the U. S.
Government. 1

This is not a new subject to you, as the matter was fully discussed
with the Minister of Immigration and Officers of the Department some
vears ago, when your Department decided to send Civil Inspectors to a
number of the ports in Europe to assist in the inspection of immigrants to
Canada. At that time, a complete inspection both medical and civil was
stressed by the Steamship Lines, but there were then difficulties of provid-
ing the medical inspection abroad. '

65927—6 [Mr, V.J. Eganl
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Now that the United States Government has embarked on this plan,
beginning with Great Britain and the Irish Free State, it is urged by the
Canadian Port Steamship Lines that Canada take advantage of this
decision, and consider a similar inspection, starting with Great Britain and
the Irish Free State.

It is thought that steps might be taken immediately to obtain a report
of the working of the U.S. Government inspections, which were commenced
on the 20th inst. at London, Liverpool, Southampton, Glasgow, Belfast,
Dublin and Cobh, and that probably the Department of Public Health, to
which a copy of this communication is being sent, may see the advisability
of sending one of their officers to investigate the matter, and report to the
Deputy Minister his findings.

We are sure that you realize the importance and value of this forward
step, as a help to immigration for Canada, and undoubtedly in time the
plan can be extended to the other European countries. With this plan in
effect for U.S. destined passengers landing at Canadian ports it would
undoubtedly reflect unfavourably and eause adverse criticism on the part

* of Canadian destined passengers who are obliged to undergo inspection
and consequent detention.

The Lines respectfully urge that this matter be considered with a view
to placing it in effect for Canada for the next season of Immigration.

That is signed by the three parties I have already named.

By Mr. Vallanced:
Q. What date is that—A. July 23rd, 1925.

By the Acting Chairman:

Q. You considered when you put this new regulation into effect that you
were acting in harmony with the wishes of those men representing the transporta-
tion companies?—A. Absolutely. I am just going to submit something further,
to show you that.

The next point.— (Reading):

DePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, OTTAWA

Orrawa, May 9, 1927.
Memorandum :

A conference was held in the Deputy Minister’s Office on the 7th
instant, to discuss medical inspection overseas. The following were
present: :

Department of Immigration and Colonization: Hon. Robert Forke,
Mr. W. J. Egan, Mr. F. C. Blair, Mr. A. L. Jolliffe.
Department of Health: Dr. D. A. Clark, Dr. J. D. Page, Dr. H. D.
Jeffs.

Canadian Pacific Railway: Mr. Walter Maughan, Mr. W. G.
Annable, Mr. J. N. K. Macalister.

Swedish American Line: Arne Holquist.

French Line: A. Labelle.

Holland America Line: Fred M. Vaz.

North German Lloyd: P. Stenz, J. Eykman. .

White Star Line: H. Bjorklund.

Canadian National: J.'S. McGowan, A. A. Gardiner.

Cunard, Anchor and Anchor-Donaldson Lines: F. J. McClure,
A. Randles.

Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Civil inspection was not discussed in any way. An announcemenf
was made to the transportation companies of what had been decided
upon and the companies were asked for their views. The general feel-
ing of the meeting seemed to be that the Government has in this matter
taken a very important step. A good many questions were asked as to
how medical inspection would be carried out. Dr. Jeffs explained that
in the British Isles it is proposed to issue an Identification Card to
those examined, which Identification Card will be valid for three months.
On the Continent the medical examination is to take place just prior to
sailing. The question was asked about the application of this new
arrangement to Scandinavian countries and we replied that nothing has
yet been decided upon there, but the matter is under advisement.

Dr. Jeffs explained what his Department had in mind regarding
the number of officers and the methods of inspection. He stated that
one officer would be at the district headquarters and that in the more
important distriects two travelling officers would be available and that
these would follow a fixed circuit of inspectional points, so that with the
three months period in which examination might take place, there would

be comparatively little need for any person to travel any distance to
see the medical officer.

The steamship companies promise their heartiest co-operation in
making the new arrangement effective and it is understood the new
arrangement will come into effect when the Department of Health is
able to secure the appointment of qualified officers.

(Sgd.) F. C. BLAIR,
Assistant Deputy Mainister.

Now, this is my own memorandum, just an aid so as to give you the
sequence when you are giving consideration to your report. (Reading):

Medical inspection by roster doctors had not proved satisfactory.
A considerable number of British migrants who had received a clear
medical certificate from roster doctors were still certified at ports of
entry by Canadian medical examiners as mentally defective, afflicted
with infectious diseases such as tuberculosis, ete., serious organic disease
and other physical defects. In many cases the administration of the
law involved serious hardship.

The main reasons for the new system of medical inspection may
be summarized as follows:—

(1) To conduct a medical inspection as near the home of the
migrant as possible so that families particularly might be assured
before breaking up their homes that there would be no question
regarding their entry to Canada instead of being rejected at the
Canadian port of entry and subject to the humiliation of being
deported to their former homes, after having expended their slender
savings in transportation and probably with little prospect of secur-
ing employment.

(2) The roster doctor charged $2.50 for examination. This
means that 50,000 migrants would contribute $125,000 to British
doctors. It was considered that this examination should be a free
service by Canadian Government doctors so that these migrants
vcvouldd be in possession of the above amount upon their arrival in

anada. :
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(3) Many complaints have been submitted to the Department by
provincial and municipal authorities and other public bodies against the
former system of medical inspection which involved not only examination
by roster doctors but also line inspection at the ports of entry which
necessarily did not contribute a reasonably thorough medical inspection.

And I beg to submit another memorandum to you, regarding bearing of medical
examination on cancellations, I am bringing that in here, because there has
been so muech talk about cancellations on account of medical examination
established overseas. (Reading):

It has been suggested in the course of the inquiry that the high
percentage of intending migrants who cancel their applications is due
to the present system of medical inspection and difficulties attendant
thereon. ,

Since record is not maintained of prospects which are not brought
to successful conclusion, the suggestion must be in the nature of a
generalization which cannot be met by statistical record. The Depart-

 ment knows, however, its experience in cases which are completed and

subsequently cancelled after much trouble and money has been expended,
and there is no evidence to date to support the argument that this year’s
cancellations are on a higher pro rate basis than other preceding years
when the roster doctor examination was in force. It is too early, how-
ever, to make a fair comparison from figures, as cancellations are not
in general notified to Ottawa until later on when the -London staff has
time to deal with business not of an immediate pressing nature.

Below will be found some figures relating to the question of cancel-
lation, which will demonstrate that this is an unfortunate circumstance
incidental to all immigration activity. It is, in point of fact, one of the
most disheartening features of the work to those engaged upon it. In the
month of March last the London office dealt with 473 applications for
inclusion wunder the 3,000 Family Scheme. Forty-seven of these cases
were rejected by the Canadian or British authorities. = Forty-seven either
withdrew or were transferred to other schemes, and a balance of 379
were actually approved. These 379 cases had been the subject of at
least one interview in each case by a Departmental Official, and probably
two. Their papers had been completed by the agencies in the provinces,
despatched to London, reviewed and approved by a Senior Official of
the Department, specially posted in London for the purpose, and vet on
completion of all this work there were 30 subsequent cancellations,
whereas only 4 were rejected by the medical authorities. Thus, out of a
total of 473 cases dealt with there was a net approval of 345.

Under what is known as the 3,000 Family Scheme, inaugurated in
1925, there have been 3,830 cases approved by both governments, and of
these 854, or 22-3 per cent, have withdrawn after approval. A short
statement showing the approvals and cancellations by years since the
inception of this scheme is attached. It will be noted that these with-
drawals have no relation whatever to the system of medical examination
whether by roster doctor or departmental official, and it would be quite
impossible to enumerate the reasons for them which are spread over a
field of almost every possible variety.

In sailings under the railway quotas last year the London office issued
for the two companies a total of 5,137 warrants. Seven hundred and
seventy-one of these warrants were subsequently cancelled because the
persons concerned withdrew for some reason or another. Here again
there is no question of medical examination or of the difficulty attendant

Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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thereon, because these 771 warrants were actually issued and the cases
ready for sailing, medical examination being complete. This was under
the roster system.

Similarly, from January 1, 1927, to December 31, 1927, there were
despatched to London for development there 2,276 nominations made by
residents of Canada for residents of Great Britain. Presumably a nomin-
ation is not made from Canada without some knowledge on the part of
the person residing in Great Britain that such a nomination is going to
be made. In almost every case probably the nomination has arisen at
the instance of the person residing in Great Britain, and yet of the 2,276
nominations that were despatched to England in the period under review
636 had to be cancelled because of some change in the intention of the
prospective migrants. In addition to the 636 there were 223 rejected
for civil or medical reasons.

It will be noted that with the exception of the figures given above
regarding the Family Scheme for the month of March, 1928, all other
figures relate to the period in which the Roster doctor examination was
in vogue. For the first four months of the year 1928 under the Depart-
mental examination 1,290 nominations have been referred to London,
and of these we have so far received record only of cancellations or
rejections in 222 cases. There is nothing, therefore, in these figures to
support the belief that the percentage of cancellations is higher this year
than it was last, but from the figures as quoted above it will readily be
seen that cancellation by migrants of their intention to proceed to Canada
will always take place on a considerable scale by the conditions of
medical inspection ever so favourable.

3,000 BRITISH FAMILY SETTLEMENT SCHEME

APPLICATIONS APPROVED BY YEARS

Applications

Cancelled
prior Percentage
Years Approved tosailing cancelled
10950 ad, Serdl APET: Maatiars sttt TIhath S 710 244 34.4
U267 AN WY L B ARSI LR A, ol AR 1,420 378 26.6
MQOT il el si bt abis s b i TaliaIeae oo 1,298 176 13.6
) P I RN IR R R S A P g e ar SRR 402 56 13.9

Totalsks. Hatkant #it. Bositd, alis 8 3,830 854 2213

By Mr. Donnelly :

Q. Do you investigate these cases that do not come to find out the reason
why ?—A. Not particularly unless the officer is going through the district. But,
as a rule, they will tell you “Oh, we made up our minds not to go,” or some other
reason. As a rule they do not give you the real information. Our agents do
report on it from time to time.

Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned until 11 o’clock a.m., May 11, 1928.
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House or CoMMONS,
Fripay, May 18, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

W. J. Ecan recalled.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. Mr. Egan, you are familiar with section 4 of the Immigration Act?—
A. T know it.
© Q.1 will read it. (Reading):

4. (1) The Minister may issue a written permit authorizing any
person to enter Canada, or having entered or landed in Canada to remain
therein without being subject to the provisions of this Act. Such permit
shall be in the form A of the schedule to this Act, and shall be expressed
to be in force for a specified period only, but it may at any time be
extended or cancelled by the Minister in writing. Such extension or
cancellation shall be in the form AA of the schedule to this Act.

(2) A return of all such permits with particulars and names there-
for, issued during the year, shall be made by the Minister to Parliament
within thirty days of its meeting.

That is the only section, is it not, of the Act or of the regulations which
refers to the permission to enter Canada under a permit.—A. Yes.

Q. We had evidence in regard to the so-called permits which have other-
wise been described as “Letters of permission to enter Canada,” having been
issued by the Department of Immigration. Those letters of admission, famil-
iarly known in ordinary parlance as “permits” are, I understand, issued under
P.C. 183, an order in council of the 31st of January, 1923?—A. Yes sir.

Q. And the special clause under which they are issued is No. 7 of that
order in council, which reads as follows: “A person who has satisfied the
Minister that his labour or service is required in Canada” may be admitted?
That is a special clause under which the so-called permits may be issued?—
A. That is the special clause under which these letters of admission admit
people who are not covered under sections 2 and 3 of P.C. 183.

Now, I want to get this clear before the Committee. This P.C. 183 of
the 31st day of January, 1923, reads as follows:—

From and after the 15th of February, 1923, and until otherwise
ordered, the landing in Canada of immigrants of all classes and occu-
pations is hereby prohibited, except as hereinafter provided:—

The immigration officer in charge may notwithstanding the pro-
visions of P.C. 23 of the 7th of January, 1914, permit to land in Canada
any immigrant who otherwise complies with the provisions of the
Immigration Act, if it is shown to his satisfaction that such immigrant
is—

(1) A bona fide agriculturist entering Canada to farm and has
sufficient means to begin farming in Canada.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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(2) A bona fide farm labourer entering Canada to follow that
occupation and has reasonable assurance of employment.

(3) A female domestic servant entering Canada to follow that
occupation and has reasonable assurance of employment.

(4) The wife or child under 18 years of age, of any person legally
admitted to and resident in Canada, who is in a position to receive
and care for his dependents.

No. 5 is for the special admission of United States citizens, and No. 6 is for
the admission of British subjects from the British Dominions, and then No. 7
is as I have read, “A person who has satisfied the Minister that his labour
or service is required in Canada.” Can you point out to me any other clause
in P.C. 183 or any other order in council under which these special letters of
admission may possibly be authorized by the Minister or the Deputy Minister,
or by the immigration official in charge?—A. No, I can not.

Q. And with regard to this so-called application for permits which are appli-
cations for letters of admissions: those are all made to your department under
P.C. 183, clause 7?7—A. The applications are not made under P.C. 183; the
applications are made in general, but we apply P.C. 183 to them.

Q. That answers my question, and if the applicants knew the law they
would be informed that the application could only be granted to prospective
immigrants as coming under clause 7, “ A person who has satisfied the Minister
that his labour or service is required in Canada ”"?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, with regard to the applications which are granted by the issue of
letters of admission under that section: a list of them is not laid before Parlia-
ment at each session?—A. No, sir.

Q. Those letters of admission, as I understand from the evidence given by
the present Minister, are always issued by you as Deputy Minister?—A. Not
issued by me. I instruct the Divisional Commissioner to issue them.

Q. They are issued then, as I understand it, under your instructions, but
the specific letter of admission is signed by one of your subordinate officers?—
A. The Divisional Commissioner.

Q. In Canada how many divisional commissioners are there who issue such
letters?—A. Three.

Q. What are their names and where are they located?—A. Mr. Fraser in
the eastern division, Mr. Gellay in Winnipeg, and Mr. Skinner in Vancouver.

Q. Mr. Fraser in the eastern division has his office with you?—A. In Ottawa.

Q. Now, when these officers issue such letters of admission—I will adhere to
that for the purpose of preventing any misunderstanding—do they not return
duplicate copies of those letters of admission to be filed in your office at Ottawa?
—A. Oh, yes, from the other divisions.

Q. From the other divisions?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. So that during each month, as such letters of admission are issued by
the divisional commissioner, copies thereof, or duplicates thereof, are returned
and filed with your department?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Therefore, you have knowledge in your department of the number of
such letters of admission issued from month to month?—A. Yes, sir. Well, not
from month to month. May I explain, that I have quarterly returns submitted
to me, that is, of the total number, but one could trace up the record from
month to month. However, I have not that on file here.

Q. In any questions which I ask you, Mr. Egan, you are quite at liberty
to give any reasonable explanation you may have. I simply want to get at the
facts?—A. Yes, I understand.

Q. Now, in each case, that is, before the Division Commissioner grants
such a letter of admission, he is assumed to have made inquiry and have reported
that the labour or service of the prospective immigrant is required in Canada?—

Mr. W. J. Egan.!
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A. No, sir. There is no letter issued under section 7 unless I have had an
investigation made of the conditions surrounding the application, the original
entry of the applicant if he is from overseas, or an investigation of the home
conditions, or, in other words, the establishment of the possibility of receiving,
or of investigating the labour to which he is being brought, taking into con-
sideration that the people who want to employ this man from overseas must
fully realize that we can give it no consideration if the man is, in any way,
going to affect the labour conditions of that vieinity—

Q. Well, then, I understand, Mr. Egan— —A. Will you allow me to finish?
Beyond that, I do issue letters under section 7—I suppose it is almost infra dig—
where a member of Parliament—that is, of course, within the last two years
under the instructions of this report—assumes responsibility. We issue these
without an investigation, but only where a man of standing, we will say, a man
of character, has submitted his request, and if prepared to assume responsibility
to us for the claims submitted, and all that has been suggested in the application,
as being genuine. In that case, that is beyond my investigation.

Q. You can make your observations after answering my question. There-
fore, you, as Deputy Minister of Immigration in the first place assume respon-
sibility with respect to investigation of every prospective immigrant coming in
under clause 7, except those who are recommended to you by certain persons of
standing?—A. Yes. :

Q. Now, that departmental practice of admitting prospective immigrants
on the representation of some person of standing, without special inquiry by
you, or by your officers on your behalf, has been in vogue for what length of
time?—A. Well, under section 7, since it came into force.

Q. It came into force on the 2Ist of January, 1923, and then it was
amended—.—A. Clause 7 came in in April of 1926, sir.

Q. Clause 7 came in in April, 19267—A. Yes, sir, under 534.

Q. As published in the regulations, I see no amendment of 1926. I would
like to have that definite. Just fix the date?—A. April 8th, 1926.

Q. April 8th, 1926?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Just so as to make it clear, that Section, or Clause 7 of Order 183 came
into operation by an amending order passed in 1926, on what date?—A.
April 8th.

By Mr. Spotton:
Q). What is the number?—A. 534.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. That 534 amendment has not been published?—A. Unfortunately, it
has just been embodied here.

Q. Well, that answers my purpose. What is the date again?—A. April
8th, sir, 1926.

Hon. Mr. Rauston: I think eight was amended too.

Mr. Caman: I am just interested in this, and I do not want to get off it.
Perhaps I might ask whether the Deputy Minister has a copy of that Order
in Couneil, and if he will lay it on the table.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Now, Mr. Egan, since April 8th, 1926, I understand from you that
under Clause 7 which says, “A person who has satisfied the Minister that his
labour or service is required in Canada,” a certain number of proposed immi-
grants have been named or nominated to your department by persons other
than officials of your department?—A. Yes.

Q. And on the responsibility of the nominating parties, your department
has issued the letters of admission?—A. Yes, sir.
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By Mr. Jacobs:

Q. In every case, Mr. Egan?—A. You mean all of those letters?

Q. Yes?—A. No, no.—

Q. The witness is conveying the impression that in every case where this
party has been nominated, the applicant has been permitted to come in. Is
that a fact, Mr. Egan?—A. That was not what I intended to convey. I think
the question was different to that. That was not the quesion you asked.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Now, Mr. Egan, I will give you, in a moment ample opportunity to
explain. Among the persons who have been deemed by your department as
worthy of credence, and as having responsibility in such matters, are members
of Parliament, who have made such nominations?—A. Yes.

Q. When nominations have been made by others than members of Parlia-
ment, have you granted letters of admission on such nominations in every case,
or have you made them subject to further inquiry on your behalf through
your officials?—A. Always, unless—and not always even in the case of the
member of Parliament or anybody of standing—and by that I do not mean
any exalted person, I mean some reputable person; it may be anybody, it may
be a magistrate or it may be the mayor of a town—

Q. I am confining my immediate question to the nominations made by
those other than members of Parliament?—A. Are they granted at once, do
you mean, without investigation?

Q. Well, do you make, or cause to be made on your behalf, as Deputy
Minister and Chief Executive of the department, an inquiry into the fitness
of these persons who are so nominated?—A. Always.

Q. So that with regard to nominations, and to nominations made by out-
side parties since April 8th, 1926, you as the permanent executive of the depart-
ment assume full responsibility for the inquiry made, and for the finding that
this person’s labour or service is required in Canada?—A. Oh, no, not by any
means.

Q. Well, then, how do you distinguish in the matter of responsibility—
and I am not including members of Parliament at the moment—persons of
standing and integrity and responsibility throughout the country who make
those nominations, and your own esecutive responsibility in granting the
letters of admission? Do you assume responsibility?—A. When I said, “Oh,
no,” I understood you to ask if I undertook responsibility for all admitted
under Section 7, because I was the Chief Executive Officer; in so far as I have
handled them direct, without other instructions from my Minister, yes.

Q. Oh, well, that is fair?>—A. I do, I come to the conclusion that what a
man submits to me is a fair proposition. However, I very seldom say “yes”
at once to anybody, because I want to investigate the record to start with. But,
I come to a conclusion, we will assume, when a member of Parliament—one
hates to name a district, because one might be coupling some one, but call it
Hell’s Corners, if you wish, or something else of that kind; a member of Parlia-
ment comes in and he says to me, “ Mr. Egan, there is a Greek restaurant keeper
In my town. He has been there for twenty years. He is a naturalized citizen
of the country; his business has grown to some importance. I am just trying
to think of one case now. His sister, older than himself, remained in Greece.
She has died, and her husband is dead, and there is a boy there whom he would
like to have with him. He has promised in his communications to his sister on
the other side, that he would like to have her boy. And, he will say to me, that
1s, the member of Parliament, now, I know whereof I speak, this is genuine. I
look up the records first of all, getting the name of the ship that he came on,
because a member of Parliament is liable to be deceived by some one. So I
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look up the record to see when he came into the country, and if he came into
the country legally. I do that before accepting a proposition of that kind, from
a member of Parliament, or the mayor of a municipality.

Q. All right, just a moment though, Mr. Egan. My mind is a single
acting sort of mind. I am coming down to members of Parliament, but I am
dealing now with responsible citizens other than members of Parliament who
make nominations for proposed admission of immigrants to your department.
In those cases, I understand you to say that despite the fact that the nomination
has been made by a person of standing and responsibility, you make some
inquiry ?—A. I must make an inquiry if he is some one coming from the Old
Country, that is, if the friend or relative, we will say, is from Roumania, then I
must satisfy myself that he entered the country legally. We look up our own
records. He must tell us the ship he came in on, and then we follow it up.

Q. Now, dealing with that, you make some investigation from your own
records?—A. Yes, as to the legal entry of the applicant.

Q. As to the legal entry of the applicant?—A. Yes.

Q. But, as to the representations that the labour or service of this proposed
immigrant is required in Canada, for that you trust the representations made
by the person domiciled here, whom you regard as being of standing and
responsibility?—A. It is very hard to say, because it is only flashing across
my mind now, and I am only trying to give you an approximate figure, but I
do not suppose, in the last two years it would be fifty individuals that I have
not investigated the conditions surrounding and sent an officer out to investigate,
to make inquiry, to my mind, perhaps the mayor of the municipality or the
magistrate of a city who happens to know some one, or something of that kind.

Q. That gives an explanation. Now, we are dealing with those persons who
have been nominated by persons of standing and responsibility, domiciled in this
country, other than members of Parliament; I am dealing with those?—A. If I
may be permitted, I would like to make it clear, it is not a nomination, it is a
relation of the man overseas who does the nominating, and he is the individual
who assumes responsibility for it; he does not do the nominating.

Q. Let us get some other word that is not doubtful. The matter is brought
to the attention of the department first, usually by some person in this country?
—A. Yes.

Q. That person brings to your department a document, usually in writing?
—A. Yes, brings the application, but not always; he comes in, tells his story and
takes away two application forms, and I tell him to get them filled up.

Q. Then in the course of making out these so-called applications a docu-
ment is sent in written by the applicant?—A. No. That document is signed
by a relative of the party in Montreal or Winnipeg, or wherever you wish. The
man who sponsors it writes a separate letter to me.

Q. Is there any doubt about the meaning of the word “ nomination,” when
I deal with those who sponsor the application?—A. No; I cannot at least see
any side lines to it at all.

Q. Now, with regard to all applications which have been made to your
department since April 8, 1926, and which you have granted under clause 7
of the Order in Council to which I have referred, you in every case assume
responsibility for the admission of those who have been sponsored by those
other than members of Parliament, do you not?—A. Yes, that is, for those
that are issued, not for all applications.

Q. I am dealing with those letters of admission; in each of those cases
you have made either by yourself, through your officers or through these
sponsors, an enquiry which satisfied you that the service of this applicant was
required in Canada, under that subsection?—A. Yes, those I have mentioned.

Q. Coming down, you say that of that class sponsored by representative
parties through members of Parliament—you have since this Order in Counci
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came into force on April 8, 1926, admitted about fifty applicants, in which
you made no special enquiry yourself?—A. While I said fifty, of course I am
just giving you an approximate figure; it may be sixty, it may be forty. I
cannot visualize anything beyond fifty of that kind.

Q. 1 am not trying to confuse you at all?—A. I know that, sir.

Q. Now, with regard to the other class, do I understand from your previous
statement that you accept members of Parliament as sponsors for applicants?
—A. At times.

Q. At times?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you confine such sponsorship to one particular party, or do you
accept as such sponsors members of Parliament on both sides of the House?—
A. 1 never play favourites, sir.

Q. I understand from that, that you accept members of Parliament as
members of Parliament without regard to political affiliation?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you met in practice, in the administration of your department,
or has your minister approved any practice whereby a certain number of these
permits would be granted to prospective immigrants when sponsored by a
member of Parliament, as to the number which each member of Parliament
would be allowed to sponsor?—A. No, sir, not quite in the way you have put it.

Q. All right, put it in your own way?—A. Of necessity, with our Act as
it is, this thing is so large that you would have to spread out a little to make
it clearly understood; but let me put it in this way: this is more or less a con-
cession to meet certain conditions which must inevitably occur where you have
people coming to a certain stage of life when they are prepared to do some-
thing for their people on the other side, and you have to meet it, no matter
what your law is, up to a point, and we are directed in section 7— yet you do
not want it to become too big an avenue for anything and everything that is
submitted, because your immigration policy is bringing enough, and some claim
oo much, through these particular channels. Therefore if I were to answer
the question the way it comes to me—I want to make this clear, that on the
evidence I have that comes to me for each individual case sponsored by
members of Parliament—you take a member of Parliament for a certain dis-
trict, he will have within his particular constituency perhaps twenty thousand
or twenty-five thousand of certain people in a given city. Of necessity he is
going to be burdened more with that particular type of man than the man
In a country constituency, and he will press individual cases, because he is
pressed. But I have tried to keep it within bounds, within my own judgment,
without setting up any quota proposition or anything of that kind, or numbers,
and I have had to say, “ No, you have gone far enough, because if you get
your particular people here somebody else will be making an enquiry,” and
& man may come two or three days during the session of parliament, particu- -
lar.Iy if he is in the eastern division. In that way only has it approached any-
thing like along the lines you are suggesting. \

Q. That is, that there is no quota for individual members of parliament?
—A. Oh no, absolutely not.

Q. Now, with regard to these applications which are sponsored by members
of parliament, do you or your officers on your behalf make any investigation
other than the representations made by members of parliament to you with
regard to whether or not the labour or service of such applicant is required in
Canada?—A. I do not quite get your meaning; for those I accept a sponsor
for—is that what you mean?

Q. Certain applications are made?—A. Yes.

Q. Sponsored by members of parliament?—A. Yes.

. Q. In regard to those which are sponsored by members of parliament, what
Is the extent of the personal inquiry which you make or which you cause to
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be made on your behalf, by your officials, into the representations made by
the member, and as to whether the labour or service of this particular applicant
is required in Canada?—A. So much will depend upon the type of application.
As members of parliament have told me very often, I was quite restrictive
because I did not accept their word at once for their sponsoring of the conditions
surrounding them. I told them that I thought that while I had no doubt as to
what they had submitted, my experience was that they were not always told
the truth by applicants, and that I felt I must make an inquiry.

Q. Is it more general in such cases, dealing with those sponsored by mem-
bers of parliament—is it more general that you make an inquiry than that you
do not?—A. Yes, I would say so, that is, with some members of parliament.

Q. You would regard some more than others?—A. No, sir. Do not put it
in that way at all, because that is not what I mean to say at all. There are
some members of parliament who bring me more individual cases, because
their constituencies are so constituted that of necessity they are pressed to
bring more.

Q. That is to say, you have with some members of parliament found more
pressing demands from their constituents than other members of parliament?
—A. T%at is the story they tell me.

Q. In those cases in which the applications are sponsored by members of
parliament, do you in each case bring the matter of the granting of letters of
admission to the notice of and secure the approval of the Minister or Acting
Minister of the Department, or do you deal with them on your own responsi-
bility?—A. Under section 7, you mean, sir?

Q. Yes?—A. Under the authority of the Minister, who has given the
instructions of which I have a copy here, I deal with it. One cannot say I
deal with them all. The Minister may submit it, but very seldom; he usually
sends them to me.

Q. Have you specific instructions from the Minister of your Department
with regard to dealing with these applications?—A. Yes.

Q. May I have it filed, and may I see it?—A. Yes. (Reads):

OctoBer 19, 1926.

Memorandum :—
Mr. W. J. Ecan.

I have given careful consideration to the question of entry by permits
and, also, to the question of quotas as arranged in the past.

I am of the opinion that the regulation, P.C. 183, as extended by the
amending Order in Council P.C. 534, will give all the latitude required
for Canada’s needs in respect to labour.

There will, of course, be exceptions from time to time, but these
are to be granted by the Minister or Deputy Minister to members of
parliament only and are to be limited to cases within their respective
constituencies. Furthermore, the member must assume responsibility for
the same. .

In brief our policy for the future will be:—

1. No quotas.

2. Permits to be issued to members of parliament only for cases

within their respective constituencies and only when the mem-
bers accept responsibility for the genuine character of the same.

(Signed) RoBerT FORKE,
Mnaster.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Q. Now, with regard to this document containing the instructions of the
Minister of October 19th, 1926, if I understand you correctly it refers solely
and exclusively to the granting of permits, so-called, or to letters of admis-
sion, as we now call them?—A. Yes.

Q. To applicants who are sponsored by members of parliament?—A. Yes.

Q. In that letter-—may I look at it, please?—A. Surely.

Q. In that letter, which is signed by ‘“Robert Forke ”, the Minister, there
is this reference:—

I have given careful consideration to the question of entry by per-
mits and, also, to the question of quotas as arranged in the past.

To what does the Minister there refer—‘“‘quotas as arranged in the past”?—
A. Some years ago before I came into the Department, at the request of—I
cannot think of his name at the moment—an explorer, well known in Geneva—
Nansen—who had submitted to the Minister of the time, a statement of the
conditions surrounding Russian Jews—members of Jewry—who were fugitives
to Roumania. He, put up an appeal, on behalf of the League of Nations, that
something should be done to bring a certain number of these people here and
have them established, providing Jewry on its own undertaking would assume
the responsibility for their after-care under any and all conditions; and that
‘quota was established and that can be the only quota or any particular renewal
of it at the time that the Minister refers to.

Q. And there was a quota with regard to the admission, or as to the num-
ber or proportion that might be admitted?—A. No, this was just in that one
particular case of fugitives from Roumania.

Q. Now, with that explanation, this letter states that these permits—
letters of application-—are to be granted by the Minister or the Deputy Min-
ister to members of Parliament only and are to be limited to cases within their
respective constituencies?—A. Yes.

Q. Since the date of this letter, October 19th, 1926, when members of
Parliament have sponsored an applicant for admission, have you regarded
such sponsorship as determining your position giving approval to such admis-
sion?—A. Not always. !

Q. In a large number of cases you would, I suppose?—A. Well, yes. Yes,
and no. With some members, as I told you before, not because they were of
any less merit, but because the conditions surrounding them would, what shall I
say, mean the entry of too many people of that particular kind, into the
country and into city life.

Q. You have referred to that before, that it was because they had more
of that type of constituents than the other members. Now, with regard to the
granting of letters of admission sponsored by members of Parliament, how
many such letters of admission have been granted, sponsored by members
of Parliament, since October, 1926?—A. Mr. Coote asked that I submit the
same information and I have got it ready. May this be included now, Mr.
Coote? Tt is a statement of admissions authorized by P.C. 534, Section 7,
which provides for the admission of a person who has satisfied the Minister
that his labour or service is required in Canada: from June, 1926, to June,
1927, inclusive 2,184. Since then I have had quarterly reports submitted.
From July, 1927, to September, 1927, 430. From October, 1927, to December,
1927, 290. From January, 1928, to March, 1928, 157.

Q. Have you the total?—A. T can add it up in a minute. 3,061.

By Mr. Spence:

Q. Would that number include those entitled to come in, such as fathers,
motl}erz and brothers?—A. No, that is under Section 7, where there are labourers
required.
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By Mr. Cahan:

Q. That is, the letter of Mr. Forke is dated October 19th, 1926, and you
have given the number of admissions from June, 1926 to March, 1928 and your
total 1s 3,061 7—A. Yes.

Q. Now, just in order that we may not misunderstand each other; this state-
ment which you have just submitted is headed: “Statement of Admissions
Authorized Under P.C. 534, Section 7, which provides for the admission of a
person who has satisfied the Minister that his labour or services is required in
Canada.” And therefore the number of 3,061 comprises the total number that
were admitted whether sponsored by a member of Parliament or not, and admis-
sions under Clause 7 of P.C. 1837—A. Yes.

Q. So that members of Parliament are not responsible for the whole 3,061?
—A. Well, no they are not.

Q. I did not hear your answer.—A. No, they are not.

Q. Did you make it known generally to- members of Parliament that
applicants would receive letters of admission on their sponsorship since this
letter of October 19th, 1926 was received by you?—A. No,.sir. Only as each
member approached me; the point there being that he had to assume respon-
sibility for what he submitted and it did not require any special advertising.

Q. Has it been drawn to your attention by complaint or notice of any
nature, that members of Parliament were alleged to have used or exercised
this discretion for the purpose of obtaining monetary consideration for their
intervention in this matter?—A. I have heard that rumour.

Q. Have you received any letters at your Department making that com-
plaint?—A. About members of Parliament?

Q. Yes.—A. No, sir.

Q. Have you, in respect of the administration of this branch, may I call it,
of Immigration Service, had any reason to believe or suspect that members of
Parliament were sponsoring admissions for the purpose of gain?—A. No, sir,
I have never had any such thought in my mind.

Q. When members of Parliament have sponsored an application, is it in
respect of a specific application which then or thereupon is submitted to you
signed by the applicant for admission?—A. Yes, sir, practically in every case
so far as I am concerned.

Q. When you grant letters of admission in response to such written appli-
cations signed by a member, how do you dispose of it, or how do you deliver,
and to whom do you deliver the letter of admission granted?—A. Are you
still speaking of the member of Parliament?

Q. No, the question is general—A. In some cases, and in most cases—no, I
must put it this way: more of the members of Parliament than the outside
individuals ask that I shall send the letter of admission—which is really only
evidence that there is assured employment here, for the benefit of the officers
overseas—they ask that it be sent direct to the applicant more often than anyone
else; and otherwise I direct it to the member or to the Mayor, or to the individual
who has sponsored the application.

Q. In respect to applications sponsored by members of Parliament, is his
sponsorship noted on the application in any way?—A. Absolutely, sir.

Q. It is?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that the letter of admission would contain as well the name of the
member of Parliament who sponsored the granting of that admission?—A. No,
sir, not the sponsor; but he receives a letter from us when we enclose the
Divisional Commissioner’s letter of admission to that particular individual, he
receives a letter from us telling him of his responsibility in connection with it,
which more often than not covers a letter which he has sent assuming these
responsibilities and telling of his own investigation into the matter.
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Q. Now, Mr. Egan, how many of these 3,061 letters of admission granted
under Clause 7, since June, 1926, have been granted and sponsored by members
of Parliament?—A. That I cannot tell you at the moment, but if you will take
my estimate of fifty off—or make it one hundred—I cannot tell you, I will have
to look it up.

Q. I do not press for an answer now, but I think it might be as well that we
should know.—A. How many were given to the members of Parliament?

Q. No, how many of these letters of admission to the number of 3,061,
w.'e}k;e sponsored by members of Parliament?—A. What are the figures there,
sir

Q. 3,061.—A. Oh, I would say 2,900.

Q. 2,900?7—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. Could you give an estimate as to how that number is divided pro-
vineially?—A. No, sir.
Q. You could not do that? I suppose a careful going over your records
would give that? I would not expect it off-hand.—A. Well, if I pulled all the
files and dug into it, I could, yes, sir.. .

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Could you give an estimate of how many members of Parliament got
those 2,900?—A. No, the nearest I can give to that is, that out of curiosity of
my own, at one time I kept track and probably 145 members.

2 Q. That is during the period from June, 1926?—A. Yes, under this clause.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. Did your curiosity extend to the point of ascertaining who was highest
in the competition and who was lowest?—A. No, I simply kept track of the
members who were making inquiries of that kind and it spread to about 145.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Now in order that we may have another view of this, will you tell us
when you came to office as Deputy Minister?—A. On October 11th, 1923.

Q. During the three years, or less than three years, from October 1923 to
June, 1926, did this same practice obtain of members of Parliament sponsor-
ing applications for admission, or was the letter of October 19th, 1926, some-
thing of an innovation?—A. It was an innovation in so far as it confined it
practically to members of Parliament. May I explain, in case there is any
question as to why I moved away from the members of Parliament and per-
haps rented it to fifty or sixty or seventy other individuals; it was that I
consulted with my Minister and pointed out that very often a County Judge
or some one of that class, would write in and we would have, I thought, to lean
in that direction if the records were perfect, and as far as we were concerned
the innovation was in confining it to members of Parliament.

Q. Then I understand that this letter of the Hon. Mr. Forke of October
19, 1926, was intended to convey this sponsorship to Members of Parliament
for the admission of applicants under clause 7?7—A. Yes, the real object being
to have somebody of standing assume responsibility without our undertaking
the tremendous expense of carrying on investigations, because we felt we were
getting enough continental people without.

Q. And did you, when applications were made by other parties, advise
them that letters of admission would only be granted when sponsored by Mem-
bers of Parliament?—A. So much would depend on the applicant. We had too
much respect for Members of Parliament to inflict on them some of the people
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coming to me, and I simply said “No” to them. If some one of standing, like
the Mayor of a town, for instance, would come to me I would tell him “ This
proposition is extremely limited; we are keeping it down for a very specific
reason; however, if you will see your Member of Parliament or your friend
in Parliament, or your prospective friend in Parliament, and he sponsors it,
I shall be very glad to give it the consideration that he would give it.”

Q. As a matter of fact, Mr. Egan, you know that a general notice to the
public that Members of Parliament were exercising their discretion in this
matter issued directly or indirectly from your Department, did it not?—A.
Yes sir, I knew of that.

Q. Then I am correct in assuming that since October 19th, 1926, the
responsibility of sponsoring admissions under clause 7 has rested upon Mem-
bers of Parliament in respect of such applications as were made by those
resident or domiciled in their electoral districts?>—A. Yes sir.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards {Frontenac):

Q. The term “Members of Parliament” has been used. I would like to
ask if in using the term “ Members of Parliament” and “being restricted to
Members of Parliament” you mean those who are presently Members of
Parliament, or those who have been Members of Parliament in the past, and
also do you include in that number who have the special right—if I may say—
to make representation or act as sponsors, defeated candidates or those who
aspired to be Members of Parliament?—A. Yes, that is why I figured a little
higher than the first fifty in making the deduction of the first 186. I took the
stand, provided he was not making too many inquiries, that he was a repre-
sentative citizen of a section of a particular constituency, having been a candi-
date for parliament. By the way, occasionally I consider Senators as Members
of Parliament in that sense, where they have come in and made certain repre-
sentations.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Does the phrase “ sponsored by Members of Parliament to the number
of 3,061 ” include the sponsorship of Members of Parliament at the time,
defeated candidates at the previous election, and also in some cases those who
have been Members of Parliament in times past, but are not now?—A. No,
not those who have been Members of Parliament in times past. Well, I say
“No”; I can not really say “ No” because there were perhaps two or three or
four. I always refer them to the present sitting Member irrespective of what
side he is on. There is a sort of Free Masonry amongst you—

Q. Supposing a defeated candidate— —A. Ah, yes; a defeated candidate,
yes.

Q. —in my constituency should sponsor an admission; do you refer it to
me?—A. No. I thought you meant to former Members of Parliament.

Q. But if he were defeated at the last election in the constituency you
regard him as still a sort of distributor of patronage in that constituency?—
.% Y&;, but I am afraid he thinks I limit him a little too much. Most of
them do. : }

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

i YQ. He is included in those whom you recognize as responsible sponsors?—
. Yes.

Mr. Jacoss: He would fall under the heading of “a man of outstand-
ing ability ”?
Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): With the accent on the “out ”.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Have you prepared a statement showing the number of applicants to
whom letters of admission were issued which are sponsored by each Member
of Parliament respectively since October 19th, 1926?—A. Issued under my
instructions?—A. No.

Q. They are all issued under your ‘instructions?—A. Oh no.

Q. Let me get at this phase of it. I understood you to say that since
October 19th, 1926, all of those 3,061 were granted letters of admission under
your instructions, in this sense, that whether they were approved by the Min-
ister or not— —A. Ah, yes; if you include that, yes.

Q. They were issued by you?—A. Yes.

Q. What proportion of them, or what number of these 3,061 do you decline
to take responsibility for, and say that that responsibility rests with the
Minister?—A. Do I decline to take responsibility? You mean the instructions
he gives me regarding issuing them? We will presume that my Minister sees
very few of them. Occasionally he will just say “You had better grant this
to this individual ”. It would not be more than five or six times since we have
been in office together. He might simply say “You had better let this go
through ”. It was something I knew nothing of, and it came to him and he
simply submitted it to me.

Q. Well, take the number then where the Minister has made the initial
representation to you, you issue the letter of admission, solely and exclusively
on the responsibility of the Minister?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you do not make any prolonged investigation, or inquiry, as to
whether a proposed immigrant meets with the conditions of Clause 77—
A. Always. For the protection of my Minister, when he does instruct in that
way, no matter who my Minister may be, if he sends me an application of that
kind, and suggests or mstruct that it be granted, for his protection, I look up
my records, and if perchance the case is not one as represented to him, then I
advise him to that effect.

Q. Well, now, I will return to my question. Have you prepared a state-
ment with respect to these 3,061 persons, as to who sponsored each application,
and as to the number which each individual sponsored or assumed sponsorship
for?—A. I have not anything that I could submit now. I could prepare some-
thing of that kind.

Mr. Caman: Well, personally, it rests with the Committee, but I think
we are getting on so far that it would be wise to prepare that and leave it to
the Committee to dispose of.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Have you yourself been approached with offers of monetary considera-
tion for the issuance of such letters of Admission?—A. Have I been approached?

Q. Yes?—A. No, sir.

Q. Well, I will ask you the other question. Have you ever received any
monetary consideration personally, in respect of that?—A. No, sir. Not one
cent of any kind.

Q. I am asking that question, Mr. Egan, not with the idea of offending you
at all?—A. That is all right. Let me take some responsibility now. Not under
any circumstances; no one in our Department, that is, all my officers who
come under my direct control, my chief officers. It is a crime, a calumny,
the way gossip goes around under certain conditions, and there is nothing in
1t whatsoever, in any way, shape, form or manner.

Q. You are absolutely convinced that neither your senior or subordinate
officials, of any class or distinction, are receiving monetary considerations in
respect of those permits or letters of Admission?—A. None whatsoever.
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By Mr. Carmichael:

Q. T would like to move, arising out of what Mr. Cahan stated, that the
witness prepare a statement showing the names of members of parliament, or
defeated eandidates implicated in the issuance of the 3,061.—A. Why implicated?

Mr. CarmicHAEL: I did not mean anything by that.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Just add “ others ” too.

Mr. CarmicuaeL: The names of all those connected with the sponsoring
of the 3,061 permits, and the numbers of permits obtained by each.

The CuAamrMAN: Is it the pleasure of the Committee to adopt the motion?

Carried.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. I am going to ask one or two questions. It will not take very long. In
view, or in regard to the special privilege which has been given to members of
parliament, and the people of Canada, those to whom you refer in sponsoring
these applications for admission to the country, in some cases the representation
is made direct to the Minister, and he would exercise his judgment, or perhaps
submit the matter for your further consideration?—A. Both ways, yes.

Q. You have three Commissioners, one representing the East, one at
Winnipeg, and one at Vancouver?-—A. Yes.

Q. Do those Commissioners assume the responsibility in their several dis-
tricts, or to make it more specific— —A. No, sir. Anything under Section 7
must come to me from any Division.

Q. That is, the Commissioner at Vancouver, or at Winnipeg would have
to forward to you?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. He could not, on his own responsibility accept any number of appli-
cations?—A. No, sir.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. There is one point I would like to clear up. Do any of your Commis-
sioners ever issue these letters of Admission, leaving the name of the applicant
blank?—A. Under no circumstances,

Q. In every case then, before a letter of Admission goes out, the actual
name of the applicant must be inserted in that letter?—A. His name and his
age, and the crest stamp of the Department, and the Divisional Commissioner,
etc. There is no such thing—that is another thing that has been going the
rounds here, Mr. Garland, that we hand out fifty blank forms at a time to
John Jones, or someone else—

Q. There is no truth whatever then, in the rumour to that effect?—A.
No, sir.

By Mr. Carmichael:

Q. There is another point, Mr. Egan, I did not get quite clear. I under-
stood you to state that each of the three Commissioners may issue letters of
admission?—A. No. I say that I instruct the three Commissioners. Let us
presume that the application is from Saskatchewan, and that it has been
approved of. I give him instructions that it should be carried out. I forward
those instructions to him. I forward those instructions to the Commissioner
in charge of the three Divisional Commissioners, and he forwards the instrue-
tions to the Divisional Commissioner, at Winnipeg, say, to issue such and-
such a letter, under such and such a date for such and such a reason, and he
issues the letter then—

Q. That is, the Commissioner at Winnipeg?—A. The Divisional 'Commis-
sioner issues the letter of which we receive a copy at once.
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Q. In the 3,061, the number issued, is there included in that number letters
that may have been 1ssued by other Commissioners outside of Ottawa?—A.
Oh, that is the whole thing.

Q. That includes them all?—A. Oh, yes, yes.

By Mr. Lucas:
Q. Mr. Egan, I believe that P.C. 183 was issued in 1923, was it not?—A.
Yes, sir, 31st January, 1923. ;
Q. In Clause 7 there it states:—
A person who has satisfied the minister that his labour or service
is required in Canada.

That is, it allows any person to enter who is required for service here in Can-
ada?—A. Any person who has satisfied the minister.

Q. Yes, any person who has satisfied the minister?—A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Caman: That clause was only inserted in 1926, according to the
evidence.

Mr. Lucas: No, I think that was part of the order in 1923, was it not?

Wirness: No, sir. April 8th, 1926.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Well, according to the book here, it says that was part of the order of
1923, and it was amended in 1926?—A. That was the amendment of 1926.
I will produce the copy of the Order in Council for you.

Hon. Mr. Forkr: 183 is the amendment of 534.

Wirness: Yes, that is the way to put it. No, 642 was the amendment
on the 31st day of January, 1923. I have not the dates here, but 534 is
included. Let me see if I can trace it for you.

Hon. Mr. ForkEe: 534 was the relationship, and 183 includes Clause 7.

Wirness: Just a minute, I will see if I can trace it. Mr. Little, would
you be good enough to tell me if No. 534 issued—

Mr. Lirrue: That was the amendment.

Wirness: Yes, that is right; that was the amendment, April 8th, 1926.

Mr. Lucas: I have the book here, and I would like to have this matter
cleared up in my own mind.

By Mr. Lucas: s

Q. PIC. 183 is the 31st day of January, 1923?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it gives this list of instructions here, and clauses, in which is
Clause 7?—A. Yes. As explained to Mr. Cahan, that No. 7 only came into
P.C. 183 on April 8th, 1926.

Q. Well, then according to that, this P.C. 183 was not in effect then till
April, 1926?—A. Oh, no. It has been in effect since the 31st January, 1923.
Q. But the amendment?—A. That came into effect April 8th, 1926.

Q. The point I am getting at is this, that Clause 7 was in effect, or was
not in effect till the amendment took place?—A. Clause 7 was not there at
all. That was added to P.C. 183 by 534.

Q. It does not so state here?—A. No, it does not. I noticed that when
Mr. Cahan was speaking.

~ Q. I would like to ask the minister to explain what were the conditions
prior to 1923 when order 183 was issued?—A. I will be glad to give you the
explanation of that again, but you will find it in the Appendix No. 3 where
I have given the returns showing the reason. The practice before that was
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ministerial action actually, rather than Order in Council, on account of the
desire not to mention in any Order in Council that one country was preferred
to another. “The principle of preferred countries, or preference of nationals
was embodied in the following Orders in Council:”

I am reading from observations dated March 22nd, 1928:

Occupational Regulation

P.C. 717, dated 9th of May, 1922, —occupational regulation.

P.C. 183, dated 31st of January, 1923,—rescinded P.C. 717, occupa-
tional regulations.

P.C. 642, dated 11th of April, 1923,—amended P.C. 183, occupational

regulation.
Passport Regulation

P.C. 1041, dated 12th of May, 1922.

P.C. 185, dated 31st January, 1925, rescinded P.C. 1041.

Preferred countries under the above regulations were limited entirely
to the British Isles, self-governing Dominions, Newfoundland, and the
United States of America. It was considered that the extension of pre-
ferred countries, or a designation of preferred countries in Europe by
Order in Council—which would mean discrimination of certain European
countries—would create a hostile feeling towards Canada on the part of
the Governments and nationalz of non-preferred countries from which
Canada desires only farmers, farm labourers and household workers.

At a conference with the transportation companies it was, therefore,
decided to designate preferred countries, not by Order in Council but
by ministerial action. Ministerial action of this kind has been taken at
different times since the 4th of May, 1910, the date on which the present
Immigration Aet was passed, e.g., the money qualification was not
enforced in the case of a British immigrant who was in good health and
for whom work could be found. In the same way, the money qualifi-
cation was not enforced in the case of immigrants who could not comply
with the money qualification or the non-continuous journey  regulation,
who were of a desirable type, sound in mind and body, and coming to
Canada to earn their livelihood on the land. Immigrants of other than
the classes defined by the Orders in Council have been admitted from
non-preferred countries provided they were coming to relatives or
friends already established in Canada.

It was in that connection that whatever admissions were allowed previous to
April 8th, 1926, people of that kind came from the continent.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Members of Parliament, or other persons of high standing— —A. Please
do not. I qualified that. I did not say “high-standing”. I did not say any-
thing of the kind. I said, members of Parliament or people of standing, and
I distinctly stated that I did not mean by that people with any particular light
on them, or that they had a bunch of money, or anything of that character.

Q. Mr. Egan, please understand I am not trying to infer anything?—A. I
did not say “high-standing” and I would rather it did not go into the record.

Q. Members of Parliament and persons of standing, prior to 1926— —A.
April 8th, 1926, yes.

Q. Were they permitted to make application for those coming in?—A. Were
they permitted?

Yes, to sponsor them?—A. Did I sponsor them?
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Q. No, no. Were those people we have just been discussing a short while
ago permitted to sponsor them, or did sponsor their application, that is, the
number you gave?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did this condition obtain prior to April 8, 1926?—A. You mean, was
it in practice?

Q. Yes?—A. Under ministeral action?

Q. Yes?—A. Yes.

Q. For how long a period?—A. Well, ever since I have been in the Depart-
ment, and long before; probably about eighteen years, if I can connect the
different sections of the Aet together.

By Mr. Bancroft:

Q. There have been some rumours regarding bogus permits, that certain
unscrupulous persons had obtained what purported to be a copy of the letter of
entry and were having it printed and sold to those who were anxious to get
relatives and friends into the country; do you know anything about that?—A.
Yes, I do. While we get a good many kicks and abuse, you will be glad to know
that not one of those passed in our offices; they were detected at once, and as
soon as a case came to our notice we immediately took action with the Mounted
Police, and they are working in certain directions. I would rather not go any
{)arther with it, because they have not been able to lay their hands on any-

ody.

Q. Do you know how general that practice was; were there many cases
of that kind or how many attempted to come in on those bogus permits?—
A. T could perhaps tell you. I am speaking from memory only. Perhaps
fifteen were in evidence at one or two of our offices on the Continent. The first
was detected, and the word went back that they were no good, that they could
not come in, and that was the end of it.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. How do you protect yourself or the department? Suppose somebody
makes an application for, say, Mr. Spaghetti, to come into Canada; how do you
know whether it is Mr. Spaghetti that comes in or Mr. Vermicelli?—A. What
do you mean?

Q. You have to have a photograph taken?—A. Yes.

Q. How do you check that up, in that case?—A. If he is a British subject,
he has to have a medical card. It is exactly the same situation in Mr. Spaghetti’s
case. The bearer of that document is double-checked, for either Mr. Spaghetti
or Mr. Vermicelli. It is double-checked in so far as the Italian Consul here
must vouch for it; he must give a receipt for it, and he forwards it to the
Old Country, or sends it to the—perhaps I should not call them Cantons,
In Italy, but to the district and the government advises the man that this
particular document is there for him, and the passport with the photograph is
visaed, and signed.

By Mr. Bancroft:

Q. Returning again to the bogus permits, can you tell us whether any
prosecutions have taken place?—A. Yes, I have advice that one man has been
arrested or detained. The police have taken action in one direction, and they
hope to take action in the regular way.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Perhaps the Committee has a wrong idea about the instructions Mr.
Cahan has referred to. He inadvertently referred to special privileges to mem-
bers of Parliament. Take the applications sponsored by members of parliament,

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



70 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

were the instructions of Mr. Forke not restrictive of the practice that had pre-
viously existed?—A. Absolutely. 1 explained to Mr. Cahan that the whole
purpose Mr. Forke had in view was to hold it down to a limitation. That was
his object, that our other avenues were big enough without spreading the section
through in any particular way. That was the whole object of Mr. Forke.

Q. It was not conferring any speeial privileges on members of parliament?—
A. No, indeed; it was giving them lots of trouble.

Q. Previous to Mr. Forke’s administration, members of parliament had
been sponsoring applications?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. And this meant that they took full responsibility for it?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. I understand that the number of letters of admission you gave included
the period from the month of October, 1926, to the present time?—A. From
June to the present time.

Q. From June to the present time?—A. Yes.

Q. I understand there would be another period from April, 1923, which
I understand was the date of P.C. 183; am I right in that?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you know the number from April, 1923, to April, 1926?—A. No. I
only know this number because it was a change, and we wanted to see how far
it was going to go. We wanted to keep tab, in other words, as much as possible,
on the increased number of continental immigrants coming in. Previous to
that it was a general filing system which would mean pulling to pieces every
file in the Department.

Q. I gather from what you said that as Mr. Forke’s instruction was
restrictive in its operation, the number of letters of admission for the period
before that, to which I have just referred, would be greater per year or per
month, we might say, than for the period from April, 1926, to the present
time?—A. That I cannot say very definitely, because after all you know some-
thing of the continentals, do you not? You msut have met some of them
in your practice, sir.

Q. I have?—A. They are as steadfast as can be, when they have it in their
minds that they want their particular relative to come to live with them, par-
ticularly if they can afford it, and they have gone into that as they did in the
past, and the member of parliament is loaded with the task of trying to get it
for them. Answering the question, I do not think it would be larger than before,
because we were always holding them down.

3 QY But the scope of responsibility was wider before April, 1926, than now?
—A. Yes.

Q. It was restricted to members of parliament, senators and defeated candi-
dates?—A. Yes.

Q. Before that it was wider in its application?—A. Yes; that is true.

Q. One would think that if there was any difference the number would
probably have been greater?—A. The members of Parliament were not in as
large numbers as now, due to the fact that it applies to them only.

Q. I think you have made it clear already, but I want to be sure of it; you
made it plain that members of Parliament had no special privileges at any time
except as indicated?—A. Except that when they wrote to me about a particular
case I would write back and say, “ If you are prepared to assume the responsi-
bility,” or if not give the information required.

By Mr. Jacobs: ~
ab Q. When was Germany put on the preferred list?—A. About a year and a
alf ago. :
Q. Austria is not on the preferred list?>—A. No.
Q. None of the Balkan States is on the preferred list?—A. No.
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Q. When you made a list of the preferred and non-preferred countries
you did not have in mind any of the countries that fought with the Allies or
against them?—A. I did not make the list. It was made before I came in.

Q. You said about a year and a half ago?—A. No, you asked me about
Germany. Germany was put on about a year and a half ago. You asked me
when she was put on the list. That is why I put it in that way.

Q. What other countries were put on the list when Germany was put on?—
A. None.

Q. That was the only one?—A. Yes. ,

Q. She had sat on the penitential bench for five years before she was
permitted to come in?—A. That is your version of it.

Q. Do you say you were not considering Austria?—A. I would not say we
were not considering it. While one feels that in Austria they are just of the
same type as the Germans, if you find them from the country districts you will
probably give them some consideration; yet the actual facts are that Austria
18 very, very limited as far as men physically fit or with farm labour experience
is concerned. It is more a matter of city life with them.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. That is a matter of policy?—A. It is a matter of policy and I need not
have explained that.

By Mr. Jacobs:

Q. Roumania is not on the list?—A. No.

Q. It would be very much easier for me, as a member of parliament, if they
were on the preferred list?—A. And a much tougher proposition for Canada
generally.

Q. I consider they are quite as good as Germans?—A. I am suggesting that
beczi)use there is not that organization in those countries below the line that there
is ahove.

Q. Organization of what kind?—A. Of the people generally. However,
this is a part of policy, so that I will not go any farther with it than that.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: As the Minister has suggested it as a matter of policy,
and as he has been on the stand already, perhaps he will answer the question
%s to whether the government intends to widen the door and admit Austria and

oumania.

Mr. Jacoss: I would not be so bold as to suggest to Mr. Forke any question
of poliey. .

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: I am bold enough to ask him whether he has any sug-
gestions of policy along that line to make.

X The Cmamman: I think we had better continue with the witness on the
stand.

Hon. Mr. Forge: This is not the proper place to make them.
Hon. Mr. Epwarps: I don’t know that it is not.
Hon. Mr. Forxe: I am not making any declarations of that kind.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: The witness objected to answering anything which
might appear to be a matter of policy, and you asserted at once that you would
announce matters of policy at the proper time. I thought perhaps you would
take the Committee into your confidence and tell us whether you propose to
open the door and make Austria and Roumania preferred countries, as well as
IC_%Iermaamy. If you do not wish to do it here, you can say it on the floor of the

ouse.
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By Mr. Millar:

Q. Would this be a correct inference, that prior to April 8, 1926, this
practice of issuing permits was generally increasing; that it was a growing
practice?—A. I suppose it was growing right along; that is, continental immi-
gration was growing in Canada, and that was one of the reasons why the Minister
came to this conclusion. It was growing, so that we were having too much to do,
but I do not think the numbers granted were very much different.

Q. But it was a growing practice?—A. The demand on us was very great.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Would it be right to say that this change that was made in April, 1926,
was a case of “ passing the buck ” on to the members instead of the Depart-
ment?—A. I suppose it works out in that way, but we had no intention to
do that.

Q. I would like to ask you, would you care to give us your opinion as to
whether this is the best way of deciding whether these people should get admis-
sion or not? Could there not be a better way found than to require members
of parliament to sponsor them?—A. We do not require them to. If he volun-
teers, and he does not make too many applications, we accept of necessity.
You know the merits of the case, whether he is a member of parliament or not,
and whether it is a case deserving of immediate attention or not.

Q. I do not think that statement is quite correct, Mr. Egan, particularly
in regard to those men who live in very large constituencies. It seems to me
that your Department might find a better way of checking up the number of
applicants, to see whether they really are entitled to get letters of admission.
I am just trying to get your opinion?—A. As a matter of fact we do.

Q. Had you any way of checking up on these applications to see whether
they were really entitled?—A. Well, as a matter of fact I had. When it comes
to a large city constituency, as a matter of fact every member of a large city
constituency knows that he is simply submitting something to me that I am
going to have investigated. There may be the odd exception.

Q. I am looking ahead to the time when this Committee will have to
approve & report and I think it is advisable that you should consider very care-
fully the question of making some change in regard to the issuing of letters of
admission, and that is the reason why I am trying to get your opinion as to
whether there could not be a better way of assuring yourself of the facts in
connection with these cases than requiring these people to get their members
of Parliament to endorse them?—A. Every time someone speaks to me of a
better way, I can say that there are several better ways. One better way
would be not to have Section 7 in there at all. I do not think it is feasible,
because there are certain conditions which make it impracticable. Another
better way would be, perhaps—as we have talked it over, the Minister and
myself and the officials of the Department—to put some sort of stamp on the
proposition; but every time you talk of bettering the way along lines anything
like that, unless it is some restrictive measure, or confined to a certain district,
you are immediately talking to me about increasing my estimates, because it
costs a tremendous lot of money to investigate these cases. :

Q. Do you not think that they should be investigated by someone?—A.
I insist upon investigating them.

Hon. Mr. RaustoN: I submit that is a matter for the Committee, rather
than for Mr. Egan, with all deference to Mr. Coote. Mr. Egan is telling us
what takes place, and if that is not satisfactory to Parliament or the Govern-
ment, then it is up to this Committee to recommend a remedy, rather than
for the Deputy Minister.
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By Mr. Coote:

Q. I do not want to question that principle. I have been asking Mr. Egan

in regard to this matter, because I think he has been more closely connected
with the work of the Immigration Department than anyone else, and knows
more about the difficulties and knows more about the character of the people
who come in under this particular Section that we are talking about, probably,
than anyone else, and I thought that so far as I am personally concerned I
would like very much to have his opinion. I am only going to ask him this
one question in regard to the matter and he does not need to answer it if he
considers it is out of his jurisdiction. Would you consider that it might be a
good policy for us to require these people to go before a County Court Judge
and get a recommendation from him for this admission, and take it out of
the hands of members of Parliament?—A. Well, T have been accused of intro-
ducing restrictive measures galore in this country in asking an assurance, and
it seems to me that would be going to the extreme limit. However, that is for
you gentlemen to decide and not for me.
. (3 Could you tell us something in regard to these 3,061 people that came
In, in that stated period, as to what their nationality is? Would that be any
more difficult when you are making that report?—A. Oh, yes, it would take
weeks to get the nationality. I have only kept track of the number.

Q. Could you yourself briefly now tell us just what nationality it refers to
particularly, the people that come under that Section?—A. That privilege, yes,
I would say for a while Italians, Hebrews, Greeks, and a very small number of
Armenians.

By Mr. Jacobs:

Q. Were there any Poles?—A. The Poles come in under another agreement.
There are some Poles. That is the Hebrew, you see; the Russian Hebrew, or at
least the Polish Hebrew.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. When you say Italians, does that mean coming from the whole of Italy,
including some of the northern portions that have lately come into Italy, or not?
—A. No, I could not tell you. I would say that most of them were southern
Italians, Most of them. But quite a number come in from the north, or were
coming. They are not coming now.

Q. Some of the people from Northern Italy come in under what are called
the non-preferred?—A. No, sir.

By Mr. Boys: : :

Q. Mr. Egan, was any investigation or search of any kind made to ascertain
the number of letters of Admission between April, 1923 and April, 1926?—A. No,
sir.

Q. There is nothing on file at all?—A. No, sir, not that I know of. I could
make inquiries and see if anything of that kind has been done. I came in in
October, 1923 and I was in the midst of that particular work on account of
certain conditions at Ellis Island and other places of that kind, I kept fairly
close observation but did not make any record. :

Q. Since this inquiry has started searches have been made to get certain
information and I thought possibly some effort had been made to get what I
am after. You say, none.—A. None that I know of.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Would that be difficult to ascertain?—A. Yes, I would say that if you
want that ascertained it would take three months with ten to twenty employees
working constantly.
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Q. Does that mean that the number is so large that it would take that
long?—A. No, it means that we have hundreds of thousands of files and we
would have to search every file to secure it.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. The letters of Admission go on the file of the particular immigrant, do
they 7—A. Yes.

Q. And that is the reason that you would have that difficulty, you would
have to draw all these individual files?—A. Do you mean previous to that?

Q. Yes—A. Oh, yes. We would have to draw every file. We do not indi-
cate that it is a letter of Admission. It is a file under a man’s name.

Q. The letter of Admission is only evidence of the fitness?—A. Nothing
more or less, and if he conforms to that, it exonerates him from nothing in the
Act, except that it is an evidence that assured employment is in Canada for him.
In every other respect he must fulfil the requirements of the Act.

Q. Since that time that they came in under these permits, how many
immigrants came into Canada?—A. Offhand, about 135,000 a year. An average
of 135 to 150 thousand a year.

Q. During that time there would be 150 to 200 thousand immigrants?—-
A. Yes, sir, more than that in the two years. I am taking the calendar year,
the twelve months.

By Mr. Boys: ,

Q. I understand that no list was kept; for instance, when an application
comes from someone for a letter of Admission and it goes through, the letter
of Admission is given to the applicant, or some person in his behalf and a copy
is put on the file of that particular individual?—A. Yes.

Q. Is there any separate list of those letters of Admission kept from time
to time as they are issued?—A. Yes, only since September, I think, 1927.

Q. Then, as you say, you cannot get this other information in any way
without going through all the files?—A. I would have to pull all my files.

By Mr. McPhee:

Q. Mr. Egan, in connection with those people who come under these letters
of admission, do they have to comply with all the requirements of the Immi-
gration Act?’—A. Yes, every one of them. The letter is merely this, that our
agent, who vises passports on the other side—that man without that letter would
be asked “what is your assurance of employment?”’ And unless he has some-
thing to show he would not get by, but with this letter it simply enables him
' {,o come providing he can conform to the Act, and all of that is mentioned in the

etter.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You say you make investigations into each case submitted by members
of Parliament? Is the investigation that you make intended for the protection
of the members of Parliament?—A. Oh, absolutely. That is understood. ,

Q. And not intended as a reflection on him?—A. None whatsoever. It is
as a protection for himself.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Mr. Cahan asked Mr. Egan whether he had any complaint from the
Department of members of Parliament making money out of permits. I think
he said “No” to that. I would like to know if any complaints have ever come
to this Department of any one at all making money out of these permits?—A.
Yes. I can only remember one case definitely, but I am quite sure that there
are two. In this case the applicant himself submitted to our Local Agent that a
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solicitor—who was far removed from Parliament and had never been near
it in any shape, form or manner—was asking for a certain sum of money for this
particular letter which had been procured. So we immediately cancelled it.
There were two cases but I have only one in mind clearly. So we immediately
cancelled that first letter and sent a letter {o the man who had been good enough
to protest to us about what this man was doing. I have often thought after-
wards that that was perhaps a little Irish impetuosity, because I may not be a
judge of what a lawyer should charge for his services that he renders to that
individual; but at the same time, the charge seemed to me so high for the service
I considered was rendered, that I jumped to that conclusion and choked him off
and gave the Italian the permit asked. It was an Italian, in this case.

Q. Would you have any objection to telling the Committee the amount that
he stated?—A. I cannot remember that now, but I know that it was so high that
I acted in the way I have stated.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. One other thing. I think I understand it, but I think there is a mis-
apprehension to some extent right in this building as well as in the country. We
are constantly referring to “permits”. As far as I can understand there is no
such thing as permits.—A. There is such a thing, but that is reported to the
House. Section 4. That provides for someone who is already in Canada, who
has arrived on our shores and is allowed to remain. He may have been a ship’s
deserter and has not legally entered into the country. That is a permit.

Q. But I mean for an entry in the first instance?—A. You mean, what form
does this letter take?

Q. No, no. What I want to clear up if I can is what I think appears to be
a misapprehension.

Mr. Caman: Were you here in the early part of my examination of Mr.
Egan, Mr. Boys?

Mr. Boys: I was not here during all of your examination.

Mr. Caman: I spent several minutes in dealing with the different sections
as you are now doing.

Mr. Boys: But am I not right in this that there is really no such thing
as a permit?

Hon. Mr. Rarston: Form A of the Aect, I think is the form. There is
such a thing as a permit; it is Form A in the Act and has to do with Section 4.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Is there a copy of an admission to be filed before the Committee?—A.
In the department? No. But I will be glad to read you one if you wish.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. Take these 3,061. None of those are permits at all?—A. No, sir, they
are letters of admission. Just a matter of identity and an assurance to our
officer overseas that the man carrying this letter, if he fulfils the contract of
the law, in other words the Act and its requirements, has assurance of employ-
ment or proper settlement in Canada. That is all it is.

_ Q. Why not call them now what they ought to be called, letters of admis-
sion?—A. They are really, sir; they have been called permits all this morning,
but they are really letters of assurance of employment.

Q. Have they ever been issued in numbers? For instance, does any one
man ever get twenty, thirty or fifty>—A. Not from me.

] Q. And in every case the name of the individual, with other information
istgontained in that letter of admission?—A. Oh, yes. These are all separate
etters.
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Q. I have heard this question and you may as well clear it up, that men
have gone and asked for fifty or one hundred permits, is the way it is gen-
erally put. Call them, if you like, letters of admission. No such practice
has obtained during your time of office?—A. No, sir, nor ever, do I believe;
positively not; nor ever, do I believe.

Q. Nor have they been issued in blank, either permits or letters of admis-
sion?—A. That is impossible. My system is such that that is impossible.

The CaamMAN: The Committee is adjourned.
Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Mr. Chairman, I presume Mr. Egan will come again?
The CuamrMAN: He is always with us.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Because there are other matters we want to question
him about.

The Cramman: He is always here. We will meet again on Tuesday.

Witness retired.

- The Committee adjourned until Tuesday, May 22, at 11 a.m.
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House or CoMMONS,
Tuespay, May 22, 1928.

W. J. Ecan recalled.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Was there an official at one time in the Department, since you were
Deputy Minister, by the name of Joe Featherston?—A. Yes.

Q. Was he transferred to China?—A. I came into the Department on
October 11th. He was promoted to the post of Commissioner of the Chinese
Immigration on October 12th.

Q. Was there any report around at the time that he had been too liberal
in issuing permits or obtaining the issuing of permits for Jews coming into this
country?—A. I had heard rumours to that effect. I made it my business to
know Mr. Featherston before he left. Taking charge, and with my good
impression of him, I made up my mind to dig in just a little further, and I
am as convinced as that I am standing here that Joe Featherston was on the
square in every sense of the word and never at any time took any money for
anything that he may had done in his capacity at that time as Acting Secretary
or something of that nature.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:
Q. Is he alive now?—A. Mr. Featherston is dead.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. I had a slight acquaintanceship with him and my impression of him
was as you have indicated. I am not suggesting that Mr. Featherston himself
made any money in the trafficking in permits, but my question was, was he
considered to be too liberal in dealing with or forwarding permits or applica-
tions made for the admission of Jews into this country, and had that anything
to do with his transfer as a Commissioner to China?—A. As to having any-
thing to do with it, being too liberal, and so forth, I just heard, as you suggest,
rumours that he had not necessarily granted them himself, but he had encour-
aged perhaps a certain number coming who might, under other circumstances,
have not come. As to that being any reason for his promotion to the position,
far from it; it was because of his very special ability that he was promoted
to this particular post. That is not an understanding, but is an actual fact in
answer to a direct question by myself.

Q. As a matter of fact, as far as your knowledge is concerned, was there
about that time or before or since that time any especially vigorous efforts on
the part of certain people to get a large number of Jews admitted into the
Cg}lllntry—A. There is a constant hammering from one end of Canada to the
other.

Q. Was it especially vigourous at that time?—A. Not so far as I was
concerned.

Q. In so far as the Department was concerned?—A. In so far as the
Department was concerned, I would say not. As I told you before on the stand
I naturally went through my files for years and years back and the only
special movement I saw—I am speaking from memory entirely—was some four
or five years before. Outside of that it was the usual member, for instance,
asking on behalf of Jacob Cohen, whom he knows in his town and has known
for twenty years, if he cannot bring his sister or the son of his sister, or some
one of that kind, into Canada. It was all usual.
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Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Egan, known to you that certain parties in this
country were very active—very active—in promoting the immigration into
Canada of Polish and Russian Jews and Jews of other countries, and were very
insistent on having these people admitted?—A. Yes, the Jewry itself had
formed its own association with its branches to take up the work outside of
the individual appeals on behalf of other Hebrews.

Q. Do you know of any organization or firm in Canada with banking
arrangements at Antwerp or elsewhere on the continent, who provided money
for the Jews so they could show they had a certain amount of money when
coming in, and that organization was such that this money was handled over
and over again; that is to say, that the company organized for the purpose of
getting Jews admitted into Canada would supply them with funds so that they
could show they were not penniless or destitute or likely to be so, and that the
money, after they had got it, was handed back to the firm or organization and
used over again for the admission of others? Was there anything along that
line known or suspected as having taken place in this connection?—A. Years
ago. There is nothing to my knowledge within the last five or six years because
the monetary qualifications were not required, but years ago when they were
required, and the immigrant had to have a certain amount of money, the sub-
agents of steamship companies, ticket agents and so forth, would loan money
at a certain rate.

Q. May I ask further? Was there any assumption or ground for the
suspicion or belief that where these organizations were actively engaged in this
work and advancing the money, they would advance, say, $100, or any other
amount, so that the immigrant could show that he had money when he came
into Canada and that the organization exacted from the immigrant several
times the amount of money they had advanced to him in order to show that he
was not likely to become a public charge, and in that way made a considerable
sum of money? Have you any ground for suspicions along that line?—A. No,
because my mind would be disabused of that at once. You are speaking of
Hebrews coming in. With all due respect to the smart appearing one on this
side (indicating) I know of nothing to discount the inherent qualities of the
Hebrew to hang on to his own, and why he should pay two or three times the
amount he borrowed is beyond me. The hard-up fellow perhaps did pay $15
or $20 for that $100, but if he had $100 himself he would have no necessity
to borrow for that purpose, although, as a matter of fact, it was $250 which
was required. '

Q. I suppose the Hebrews, like people of another nationality whom I could
mention, might refrain from making money out of his own as long as he could
make it out of somebody else, but when the other well ran dry he might go so
far as to make it out of his own.—A. He did in that case make it out of his own,
but I cannot understand him paying $200 for a $100 loan, because if he had the
$200 to borrow that $100 with, he could have come along without borrowing.

Q. But it is possible that they might place him under an application and
give him a certain length of time in which to pay back not merely the $100
but $200 or $300 more?—A. They would have an awful time collecting it from
him when he got here.

Q. I grant you that it would be a congenial occupation to try to collect
it?—A. T think from what I know of the type of men about whom you are
speaking that it would be C.O.D. for what he was getting, and they would take
no chances on waiting.

Q. I have asked these questions because in the short time I occupied the
position of Minister of Immigration I was assailed right and left by those who
were anxious to get these people in and were none too particular as to whether
the regulations were followed or not.—A. I think perhaps it has taken on a
different atmosphere. I think it was the Jewish Immigration Aid Society
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which probably overcame some part of what you suggested, acting on behalf of
their own people, and there has been nothing of the kind in evidence in recent
years.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. Since you have been Deputy Minister has the illegal securing of permits
by any official in your Department been called into question?—A. There is no
such thing as the illegal procuring of permits.

Q. They cannot be illegally procured from the Department?—A. It is
impossible, as far as the Department is concerned, anything in the shape of a
letter of assurance of employment must come through me.

Q. Has your attention ever been directed to any alleged forgeries of permits?
—A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell the Committee to what extent, whether it was serious, and
what steps you took?—A. I gave evidence on that last week. There came before
us evidence that certain people had forged our documents, that is, forged the
signature, and had had printed and engraved letters similar to ours, and typed
similar to ours. Every one in evidence was blocked by our officials on the other
side; not one of them got through. When the first one came to my attention
I immediately handed it over to the Mounted Police and one man is under
detention now, and we are hoping to get others in connection with it.

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain) :

Q. Have you any knowledge of a case which came up in the Supreme Court
of Ontario at the city of Ottawa in October, 1925, with regard to five permits
which were alleged to have been found on one of the witnesses together with
receipts covering a large amount of money?—A. No, I have no knowledge at all.
As a matter of fact that case is not of alleged permits. This man was securing
illegal naturalization papers.

Q. I have here in my hand the Ottawa Citizen of February 13th, 1928, and
there is a letter on the editorial page, part of which is as follows.

The CuarrmAN: Is that a letter or an editorial?

Mr. Fansuer (Last Mountain): It is a letter on the editorial page. It
deals with a court case. I would like to ask Mr. Egan some questions about it,
and I do not think I can state it any better than it is given here. It reads:

In the Spring Assizes of the Supreme Court of Ontario, held in March,
1925, in Ottawa, the pockets of one of the witnesses were searched by the
order of the court and in his pockets were found five immigrant permits
issued to an agent of Hamilton, Ontario, on representations made by a
member of the House from Hamilton. Money receipts were also found
in the pockets of this foreigner amounting to $2,350 paid. by this man
to the agent mentioned for these five permits.

These permits were kept by the court and also the receipts and can
be seen in the Osgoode Hall at any time. (See file Rex vs. Alexander
No. 10, page 82.) '

The Wrrxess: That is another case entirely to the one Mr. Garland (Bow
River) was referring.  (To Mr. Garland, Bow River) That is a Toronto
case. In that case, may I say now that it was not passports; it was naturaliza-
tion papers which they had secured illegally. (To Mr. Fansher, Last Mountain)
I have never read the report, but I understand from people who have spoken
to me about it that the evidence was given and the Judge saw fit not to find
that these parties had taken money in an illegal way. I am not speaking with
absolute positiveness, but I think that was the particular verdict at that par-
ticular time. As to this gentleman getting the permits from us: not to my
knowledge, because I had him on my blacklist the third day I was in the Depart-
ment, and anybody who is on my blacklist will tell you how easy it is to get

permits.
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By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Why did you put him on the blacklist?—A. Because he wag a shipping
agent and used to go out and canvass certain interests. He went to the United
States and came back and told us a lot of lies about the people having relatives
in Canada, and having lied to us once, I would not believe him any further. If
a man has a letter of assurance from us it has been issued in a legal way on the
responsibility of somebody, but that is the weakness of the whole proposition.
I do not care who the somebody of responsibility is, if it be a Member of
Parliament or anybody else, if you would hand these to the relatives direct it
would be all right, but if you hand them to anybody else then trouble begins.

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain) :

Q. This case was heard in the City. Would there be anybody in a position
to verify this statement or deny it, or give us any light on this particular matter?
—A. T do not just follow you— .

Q. Whether these permits were secured in the regular way, and nothing
irregular in them at all?—A. Let me tell you this. You can take $1,000,000,
if you have it, and bet it against one cent that no man secured from us at any
time since October 11, anything illegally nor did he pay one cent of money to
the Department or a Departmental official in so far as they surround me and are
directly responsible to me. I will take my oath upon that.

Q. I quite understand that. We understand there have been passports
forged— —A.. In the Old Country, yes.

Q. And we understand from evidence previously given that some people
have tried to forge documents which never went through the Immigration
Department at all; that is, these documents which were found in the pockets of
the man mentioned in the letter in the newspaper, documents which have never
been in the Immigration Department. That is the point I want to bring out.
—A. That I do not know.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:
Q. They were not given to Alexander direct?—A. That is another case,
sir; this is the Hamilton case.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. This case to which Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain) has referred: was
that ever brought to your attention before?—A. As I stated a few moments
ago, somebody spoke to me about having read something similar to this, but
I never took any further notice of it.

By Mr. Arthurs:
Q. Have you a solicitor in your Department?—A. No, sir. We always .
go to the Department of Justice when we need legal help. (Reads):

REVEREND CANON BURD’S EVIDENCE

On pages Nos. 269 and 270 of the Eleventh Meeting of the Com-
mittee on Agriculture and Colonization, there is a reference by Reverend
Canon Burd to a statement—so it is called—by His Lordship Bishop
Lloyd, Saskatchewan. This statement was left with the Committee as
evidence and it reads as follows:—

Having pointed out to Mr. Stewart, who then had charge of
Immigration, the unfair discrimination on the part of his depart-
ment in favour of Roman Catholic immigration projects, Mr. Stewart
was very nice about it and said they did not want to be unfair and
were quite willing to do for the Church of England as much as for
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the Romanists. I then outlined what I wanted, viz., the cost of one
Church of England representative divided between two men and Mr.
Stewart agreed.

In February of 1925 I put the whole project before the Executive
Committee of the Diocese of Saskatchewan, and they passed a
resolution, that we approve of the immigration proposals outlined
by the Bishop.

These proposals were for two men, one to stay in England and
collect the settlers, and one to travel backward and forward and find
and place the people in this diocese. The Synod to pay the stipend
of $100 a month each and the department to find the expenses not to
exceed a like amount.

About the end of Mareh, I left for the Old Country calling in on
Mr. Stewart to tell him that the Synod had agreed to the arrange-
ment.  We discussed the matter again and I gave the Minister
the name of the first man, Mr. Harding, then in England. I then
Wﬁent on to St. John to sail for England to put the arrangement into
effect.

A certain official, when he heard what I was going to do sug-
gested that it would be better to get the agreement with the depart-
ment in writing.

On that I wired Mr. Stewart to confirm the agreement for two
men and received a reply just as my vessel sailed, that the department
found they had overdrawn their appropriation.

The Synod paid the three months’ stipend to Mr. Harding for
holding back from another appointment on my cable from Ottawa
telling him we wanted him for immigration work.

I have suspected since that the wire came from Mr. Egan and
not from Mr. Stewart. Therefore, I was greatly rejoiced when Mr.
Forke took charge of the Department of Immigration.

I thing the Department of Immigration, at least from its British
side, would be far more efficient if Mr. Egan were moved to some other
department.

(Signed) Georce Extox Liroyp,
Bishop of Saskatchewan.

Within one minute of my return to the office after this particular
session of the Committee I instructed one of the officials under me to
search for any file connected-with Bishop Lloyd and endeavour to locate
either the memorandum of instructions to the Assistant Deputy Minister
or myself regarding an arrangement with Bishop Lloyd and the Minister,
or Acting Minister, and if in evidence to bring the file to me for observa-
tion. I also told the official in question to look for a copy of any telegram
or any dictation in connection with the same to Bishop Lloyd, addressed
to His Lordship at St. John, N.B. Within fifteen minutes the official
brought me the file and stated, “ Mr. Egan, there is nothing on file of such
a nature,” and, as he had the file in his hand, T went over it personally.
My search of the file simply confirmed what the official stated to me.

This is the record of the departmental files in regard to Bishop
Lloyd’s suspicion. As for myself, I want to state most positively and
emphatically that I knew, or know, nothing of such an arrangement and
knew or know nothing whatsoever of the telegram referred to.

Now in reference to the last paragraph of Bishop Lloyd’s letter or
memorandum,—

I think the Department of Immigration, at least from its British
side, would be far more efficient if Mr. Egan were moved to some other
department.

65027—8 [Mr. W. J. Egan!]
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you would not expeet me to make any apology for being a member of the
Catholic Church, or a loyal subjeet of His Majesty, the King, and my
appreciation of my oath of office, but I do think the information to which
the Committee are entitled should be submitted. I am going to submit
cold facts and not argument.

From the day I went into the Department I have never decided
on any recommendation to my Minister as regards what may be termed
actual schemes of immigration or their operation—that is methods to
be adopted in their working out—without a round table conference with
my chief officials, none of whom ean be accused of being anti-British
or anti-Protestant. The purpose of our conference is to thrash out the
pros and cons of any schemes submitted, either by myself or by any of
my officials. Finally cur conclusions are nearly always unanimous and
our findings are always based on the Act we have to administer, keep-
ing Canada and the welfare of the immigrant in the foreground. If,
perchance, we cannot come to an unanimous conclusion, then, the views
of two sides, or perhaps three, are submitted to the Minister who may
hear them separately or collectively. In addition may I say that the
Minister has established a practice of holding a conference of Depart-
mental officials in his office every Monday morning at ten o’clock to
discuss what he may have to offer or any question that any of the
officials may submit to him.

So that the Committee may further appreciate the value of the
Bishop’s conclusion, I will read extracts from a memorandum submitted
to my Minister on May 8th, 1924, seven months after I took charge of
the Department.

Listen to this, and compare it with the suggestion that I am anti-British.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. As a matter of fact, Mr. Egan, his lordship did not accuse you of being
anti-British. That is your inference from his words?—A. What else could
he mean when he says, “I think the Department of Immigration, at least from
its British side, would be far more efficient if Mr. Egan were moved to some
other Department”? I ask you in all fairness if my conclusion is an unfair
one.

Let me refer to my memorandum to the Minister, the Honourable Mr.
Robb, of May 8th, 1924—

Within the first two weeks of my taking charge of the Department,
every moment I had to spare was devoted to consideration of the real
object of immigration and colonization, which must mean the placing
of permanent settlers on the land.

Our first thought is, of course, for people from the Old Country, that is,
Great Britain or Ireland, coming to Canada in any number.

We have, as you know, already made considerable progress through
the medium of the Empire Settlement Scheme and its much freer action
this year, in conjunction with our Land Settlement Branch, which means
using the offices of the Soldier Settlement Board throughout Canada.

As to the placing of permament settlers on the land, our first thought
is, of course, for people from the Old Country, that is, either the United
Kingdom or Ireland, and our experience with our more than liberal
Empire Settlement Scheme policy proves that it is difficult to secure
such settlers in any number. Within the last two weeks, after our suc-
cessful placing of the Hebrideans, I had several chats with Major
Barnett, which resulted in our sending a cable to our director in Lon-
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don, offering to place on the land from Nova Scotia to British Columbia
one hundred and sixty-five families with fifty pounds in their possession.
So far the answer is that there are seven only of these families in sight,
but, coupled with this cabled information is a query asking if we could
place forty families—mostly from Northern Scotland, but without
funds, This is a proof that means must be provided by which they
can be settled; that is, provided with a few horses, cows, poultry and
implements.

Australia has realized that, while the Empire Settlement Scheme
of assisted passages did stimulate immigration, it did not stimulate
land settlement, and they have organized a scheme of money loaning
to the settler in which they share with the Empire Settlement authori-
ties.

As you know, I have all along claimed that Canada, on account
of its geographical position, is a positive asset to the Old Country, and
then of course there are many reasons why it is a real, prospective new
homeland to sc many from the United Kingdom, and I am convinced
that it would not be a difficult task to persuade the Overseas Settle-
ment Board to enter into agreements with Canada on an entirely dif-
ferent basis to that followed in the case of Australia and with the Cana-
dian National Railways this year; some agreement which would meet
our special requirements in this country and at the same time not
involve the Imperial Government in any greater loss than it is taking
in its arrangement with Australia.

Canada has a great advantage over the other Dominions in that it
has a large amount of Crown Lands that can be used in negotiating
agreements with the Imperial Government. In New Brunswick, Quebec,
Ontario and Northern British Columbia these lands are adjacent to
main lines of the Canadian National Railways, and are in sections where
seasonable employment at lumbering and mining is available. In the
prairie provinces the free lands are owned by the Federal Government
and are also close to the railway in most cases.

If we urge upon the Imperial Government that Canada will con-
tribute land for settlement provided the Imperial Government will con-
tribute three hundred pounds per settler, which it has already expressed
its willingness to do, we should undertake entirely the administrative
cost, including supervisory and advisory assistance to settlers after
location, and as a guarantee of our good faith, we should undertake to
carry and to repay to the Imperial Government one-half the loss that may
be involved by that Government arising from settlement: The very
improvements made would always be our guarantee re no loss.

Since I knew of vour decision to sail to the Old Country in July next,
and taking into consideration the stand taken by Mr. Thomas, the
Colonial Secretary of the new Government in England, I have become
convinced that the near future is the opportune time for us to put over
in a settlement arrangement something that no other Dominion or
interest has been able to accomplish, and I would ask you to please give
this matter your consideration, and make an endeavour while in the Old
Country, so that all the details required may be in evidence.

I would recommend that arrangements be made for Major Barnett
to proceed to the Old Country just when it would suit you best on your
trip, as he is—as you know—so familiar with all the details regarding
land, etc. He and T have discussed from time to time just what would
be essential for real land settlement in Canada, and I believe that, even
if we do not succeed in an endeavour of this kind, it is worth the attempt,
and T would respectfully ask for your opinion in reference to all that

I have submitted.
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That, gentlemen, is part of my evidence; I should like to go farther. We,
of the Department, are receiving continually letters criticising the religious
complexion of administration officials. As I told you before, I make no apology
for being a member of the Catholic Church, and I think it is fair to the Com-
mittee and to the people of Canada at large that I should read the following
memorandum:

Religious Complezion of the Whole Personnel of ‘he Department.

I think it will be agreed that the shortest way to dispose of any
statements or insinuations which have been made or appeared in many
parts of Canada (and of which a number of the Committee are awa;‘e)
regarding religious discrimination in connection with the administration
of the Department, is to present the following facts:—

A compilation made last September showed that the total number of
regular officers was 941 of which 629 were non-Roman Catholic and 312
were Roman Catholie. The following is a summary of the non-Roman
Catholic and Roman Catholic officials.

Roman Catholics at Head Office ,

Deputy Minister,
Accountant,
Minister’s Private Secretary.

Non-Roman Catholics at Head Office

Minister of Immigration,

Assistant Deputy Minister,

Commissioner of Colonization,
Commissioner of Immigration,

Division Commissioner of Immigration,
Assistant Division Commissioner of Immigration,
Travelling Immigration Inspector,
Assistant, Travelling Immigration Inspector,
Director of Publicity,

Assistant Director of Publicity,

Supervisor, Women’s Branch,

Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration,
Statistician,

Supervisor of Personnel,

Head of the Registration Branch.

In Canada, outside of Ottawa, we have two distriet Commissioner-
ships, one at Winnipeg and one at Vancouver. One of these is filled
by a Roman Catholic and the other by a non-Roman Catholic. We have
Immigration Agents at Halifax, St. John, Quebec, Montreal, Toronto and
Victoria. Three of these agents are Roman Catholics, the other three
non-Roman Catholie.

In the United States we have sixteen agents and four assistant agents.
Only three of these are Roman Catholic.

-In the British Isles we have ten agents, a number of assistant agents
and also eight women officers. All the agents but one, all the assistant
agents and all the women officers but one, are non-Roman Catholic.
The Director in London who is in charge of the work in the British Isles
and on the Continent, is a non-Roman Catholic. The Assistant Director
is a Roman Catholic. - All the other principal officers under the Director
i London are non-Roman Catholic. .
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On the Continent of Europe we have eight Inspectors. Either three
or four of these are non-Roman Catholic, the balance being Roman
Catholie.

I want to make it clear that the whole of my statement is not a
defence of any kind because no man should be discounted or maligned
in any position of life because he happens to be of any particular religious
persuasion.

I felt that the Committee should have this as evidence from me. I should
like, with your permission, Mr. Chairman, to give the Committee a few facts in
connection with Federal and Provincial co-operation. This will include a clear
statement of the various schemes that are working and in prospect. (Reading):

Realizing the importance of close co-operation between Dominion and
Provincial Governments, the Federal Department has on various occasions
invited the provinces to meet the Department for discussion of immi-
gration problems and policies.

Federal-Provincial co-operation has had a varied history, covering
a considerable period, both in Canada and abroad. In Canada this co-
operation has been associated principally with placement of farm labour
and houseworkers. The Province of Ontario, for example, has annually
brought in many farm workers, both single and married, and many house-
workers. Co-operation between the Dominion and the Province in this
work begins overseas with recruitment and inspection. The inspection
of houseworkers before sailing is almost entirely undertaken by women
officers of the Federal Government. Co-operation is continued through
the assisted passage scheme, and, on arrival in Canada, by women officers
of the Federal Government, who meet the newcomers and look after
them until they arrive at destination, when the houseworkers as well as
farm workers are placed under the auspices of the Provincial Government.
This work is supplementary to the general recruiting and placing of farm
labour and houseworkers in Ontario undertaken by the Federal Govern-
ment. In the Eastern Townships of Quebec the placement of farm labour
is undertaken largely by an organization which receives Provincial support
as well as Federal recognition and assistance. Examples might be given
of similar co-operation between the Federal Department and other prov-
inces. An important angle of this co-operation has been developed along
the line of schemes for establishing British boys in Canada.

There are joint Agreements between the British Government, the
Dominion Government and several Provincial Governments for the re-
ception, distribution, placements and short training, if necessary, of
British boys. Agreements have already been completed with the Pro-
vineial Government, of Ontario and the Provincial Government of Mani-
toba. Negotiations are also completed for similar Agreements with the
Provincial Governments of Nova Scotia and New Brunswick.

The main provisions of these Agreements may be summarized as follows:—

1. The pfbvincial Government supplies the farm.
2. The cost of operation is shared on the following basis:—

Provineial: Government. s .l ioieo e 25%
Dominion:Government.. .. .. .. ol 25%

50%
British Government. . .. ... d ol oo o 50%

The contribution on account of operation is on the basis of the
number of boys brought forward, i.e., the Provincial Government con-
tributes $10, the Dominion Government $10, and the British Govern-

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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ment $20 per boy. This means that 250 boys there is available a con-
tribution of $10,000 or for 500 boys the contribution of $20,000 for
operation. These Provincial Headquarter centres are situated as fol-
lows:—

Nova Scotia.—Negotiations pending.

New Brunswick.—The Cossar Farm at Lower Gagetown has been
designated by the Province as the Provincial centre in the Province of
New Brunswick.

Quebee.—The British Immigration and Colonization Association who
place boys in the Eastern Townships and in Eastern Ontario have a farm
on the Island of Montreal.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. That is for boys from fourteen years up?—A. Fourteen to seventeen.
I might explain about Quebec, the British immigration and colonization, the
Government and ourselves, that we have assistance there.

Q. Do you give any assistance in maintaining that organization in Mont-
real?—A. No, only towards the clearing house and the handling of the boy
on the farm. (Reading):

Ontario.—The Ontario Government have a Provincial Farm known
as Vimy Ridge which, T understand, extends to about 400 acres in West-
ern Ontario.

Manitoba.—For the time being, the Manitoba Agricultural College
is the reception and distributing centre for the Province of Manitoba.

Children
For children other than those migrating under the auspices of Volun-
tary Societies and including those destined to Provincial centres, the
assistance takes the form of a free agent of the total cost of transporta-
tion provided that—

(i) they have not reached their seventeenth birthday before the first
day of April of the financial year in which they sail.

(ii) They are proceeding as members of families with parents or
other approved guardians or are proceeding to join their parents
or other approved guardians or relations.

(iii) They are proceeding with the consent of their parents or
guardians to a home approved by the Dominion Government, or

(iv) they are proceeding under a scheme approved by the Secretary
of State and the Dominion Government. The expenses of the
transportation of children shall be shared equally by the Secre-
tary of State and the Dominion Government.

The two Provincial centres now in operation brought out last

calendar year the following number of boys:—

British Immigration and Colonization Association. . 798
Provincial Government of Ontario—Vimy Ridge.- .. 409
1,207

New Brunswick.—Cossar Farm was formerly operated under the
same conditions as a Juvenile Society, but arrangements have been
made to designate the Cossar Farm as a Provincial centre. We do not
know how many boys will be brought out, but there will be a number.

Manitoba.—The Provincial Government has decided to wutilize the
Manitoba Agricultural College as a Provincial training centre and has
gliwed an order for 100 boys who are now being recruited in the British

sles.
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Boys who come out under Provincial auspices are placed in employ-
ment with farmers who are selected by the Provincial Government at the
standard wage of the district with free board and lodging. The Pro-
vineial Government is responsible for the boys’ welfare for three years
after their arrival and giving after care so that the boys can gain the
experience needed to enable them to become farmers on their own
account.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Do I understand the provincial government assumes the responsibility
for them?—A. Of placing. We always check back, from the juvenile point of
view, but they do the placing.

Q. Do you have officials who regularly visit them?—A. Yes.

Q. Are they officers of the Federal Government?—A. They are officers
of the Federal Government.

Q. The responsibility ends when the boy is placed?—A. Well, the boy
always has a home to go to, on the training farm.

Q. Apart from that, if he is satisfactorily placed, they do not visit?—A.
No, we report to them or they report to us if there is anything unsatisfactory,
otherwise we just carry on.

SPECIAL SCHEMES FOR TRAINING BRITISH BOYS

Alberta. Agricultural Training Schools.—For boys and young men
aged 17 to 25 years who have the sum of £50 at their disposal. Free
training in all branches of farming is given during the winter months at
one of the agricultural schools established by the Alberta Government,
the student paying about £6 per month for board and lodging. The
students are then placed in employment for the summer season with
farmers selected by the Provinecial Government of Alberta and the
Department of Immigration at the standard wage of the district plus
board and lodging, in order that practical experience of farm work may
be gained. At the end of the summer the students are encouraged to
return to the agricultural school for a second winter’s free training; the
student, as before, paying about £6 per month for his maintenance.
When a thorough knowledge of Canadian farming methods has been
gained, those who wish to start farming on their own account will be
advised and assisted by the Alberta Government’s agricultural experts.
Students travel to Alberta at a reduced rate of about £5 10s.

Ontario. Guelph Agricultural College.— (Affiliated to-Toronto Uni-
versity.)—Fifty places at this College are available each iyear for
British youths aged 17 years and upwards at a fee of approximately 50
guineas per annum. The course of tuition is for either two or four years,
and is designed to give youths of good education a thorough grounding
in the theory and practice of Canadian farming. Students attend college
from September till April, and for this period the fees cover the expenses
of instruetion, maintenance, books, etc. During the spring and summer,
employment 1s found for the students with farmers in Ontario, from
whom they receive wages and board and lodging while gaining exper-
ience of practical farm work.

Montreal. Macdonald Agricultural College. (Incorporated with
MecGill University) . —Boys from public or secondary schools, of 17 years
of age and upwards, are given a two years’ course of training in agri-
culture at Macdonald College. Tuition is free of cost, and the total
expenses for board and lodging, laboratory fees, subscriptions, games,
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ete., are approximately £40 per annum. From 1st April to 31st October
the students do practical work on farms selected by the college authori-
ties, reeeiving a minimum wage of 10s. per week with board and lodging.
A superintendent appointed by the college is in touch with the boys
during this period. From 1st November to 31st March theoretical and
practical training is given in the college, to which a farm of 500 acres
is attached. During the second year facilities for specializing are pro-
vided.
BOYS LAND SETTLEMENT SCHEME

The Provincial reception and distributing centre is regarded as the
first step to the ultimate settlement of British boys.

Under date of the 1st of July, 1927, the Department concluded an
Agreement with the British Government for the settlement of British

boys.

The following is a summary of the main provisions of the Agree-
ment:—

A. The Agreement is applicable solely to boys from the United
Kingdom,

(a) who (i) have proceeded to Canada since the date of the Empire
Settlement Act, ie. 31 May, 1922, provided that preference
shall be given to settlers who have been trained at the Provin-
cial Headquarters Farms,

(ii) have attained their 14th but not their 17th birthday at
the time of their arrival in Canada,

(iii) have not come to Canada with their parents or to join
their parents in Canada;

(b) who have reached their 21st but not their 25th birthday at the
date of application for assistance under this Agreement;

(¢) who are in possession of savings amounting to approximat%ly
$500;

(d) who have acquired the necessary experience of farm work in
Canada by working as agricultural labourers for wages or in
such other manner as the Dominion Government may consider
sufficient provided that the Dominion Government shall be
satisfied that the applicants are industrious, economical and
capable of managing a farm;

(e) in respect of whom a Provincial Government makes a cash
contribution of not exceeding $250 per settler.

The Dominion Government has undertaken all the administrative
functions under the Scheme and to give all necessary expert advice and
assistance to settlers. Applicants who qualify under the Scheme will
receive a total advance of $2,500 as follows:—

Biitish ‘Governmentys 1 AWVQYL 743 o 09RIEE 1,260
Dominion Government.. .. .. .. .. .. .. 1,000
Provincial Government.. .. .. .. .. .. .. . 250

$ 2,500
Applicant’s savings.. .. . . 500

$ 3,000
By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. Is the $250 a provincial loan?—A. Yes. It is a loan. I might explain
right here that we are moving forward with the idea of having more provinces,
perhaps, come in a little more rapidly towards making our loan $1,250, and not
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anything from the provinces, but the provinces to do the administering, that
is, the collections and so forth, and I think that is going to meet with very good
results,
The total cash advances to be made under this Agreement are as
follows:—

(1) During the year 1928-29.. .. .. ..... $ 300,000

(i) During the year 1929-30.. .. .. .. .. 400,000
(iii) Each of the years 1930-31 to 1936-37.. 700,000

or a total advance of.. ; $ 4,300,000
Plue DOVR T BAVIDES .« ot Vo st roess (5 st s 860,000
Wptal . wiic. $ 5,160,000

Under this Agreement cash advances will be made to settlers during
the period from the 1st of April, 1928, until the 31st of March, 1937, for
the purchase of farms or land holdings or for improvements thereto and
of stock and equipment.

All advances to settlers are repayable with interest amortized at
the rate of 5 per cent per annum in twenty equal annual payments.

The Provincial Governments of Ontario, New Brunswick and Nova
Scotia have agreed to participate in the Boys’ Land Settlement Scheme.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Mr. Egan, that total of so many millions, it is on the basis as outlined
before; it is not all Canadian?—A. No, half and half.

Q. Provincial and British?—A. Yes, I think it will make it, as far as cash
advances are concerned, entirely Federal and British, the provinces taking the
administratien and collection, ete.

Here is another scheme, of which I will give you the evidence. It is the
New Brumswick Land Settlement Scheme:

There is a tri-party Agreement between the British Government, the
Dominion Government and the Provincial Government for the settlement
of 500 families in the Province of New Brunswick between the first of
March, 1928 and the 31st of March, 1934.

The main provision of the New Brunswick Land Settlement Agree-
ment may be summarized as follows:

A. The Department of Immigration agrees—

(a) to recruit and select the families: :

(b) to arrange for the transportation under whatever Passage Agree-
ment may be in force:

(¢) to make adequate arrangements, in co-operation with the Prov-
incial Government, for the reception and settlement of families
on arrival:

(d) to supervise settlement and give expert advice on the manage-
ment of the farms. :

The Provincial Government agrees—

(a) to provide 500 improved farms suitable for the occupation of
British families:

(b) to assist in finding suitable employment for adult members of
the families:

(¢) to sell the improved farms to the settlers at cost price, under an
Agreement of Sale, repayment being arranged on a 25-year
amortization basis with interest at 5 per cent annum.

(d) to ﬁssist the Department of Immigration in all settlement
work. ‘

[Mr. W. J. Egan.}
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The total advances of all descriptions under the Agreement is not to
exceed $5,100 in the case of any one settler, but will not likely approach
this figure.

The British Government advances $1,500 for stock and equipment,
seed, feed and other similar purchases for the settlers or for providing him
with initial operating expenses and, where necessary, subsistence, and to
meet the initial payments due from the settlers on account of improved
farms purchased by the Provincial Government provided that the initial
payment shall not for any one settler exceed ten per centum of the value
of his improved farms or a sum of three hundred dollars.

The British and Dominion Governments share all loss on account of
stock and equipment.

Any loss incurred on account of the interest on the price of a farm
during the first two years as the result of the failure of a settler shall be
shared as follows:

The Dominion Government.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ..256%
The Provincial Government.. .. .. .. .. .. . o0 ..20%
The British Government.. . ;. voviioe or wio on i < 80%

This is not complete, but it will be in evidence next year, I think. Perhaps
1 had better not mention that until it is an actual fact.

The CramrMAN: Is that all?

Wirxess: That is all of this particular memorandum. I have other memo-
randa, if you wish to hear it now.

t'The CuAamMAN: It is nearly one o’clock now. We will hear Mr. Fansher’s
motion.

Mr. Fanster (Last Mountain) : This is my motion; that the proper officer
of the Court be subpoenaed to attend and produce the Court record and all
exhibits in the case of Rex v Alexander.

Motion agreed to.

By Mr. Vallance:

Q. I would like to get this information in the report of the sitting of this
committee to-day, Mr. Egan. I do not think it will take very long to answer
the question. At the beginning of your statement to-day you gave the religious
denominations of those at the head of the Department. While I was out West
there was a rumour quite prevalent there that I think should be answered to-
day, if possible, while we are on this question. The rumour was this; would
vou, Mr. Egan, if you can, tell the committee just how much truth there is in
this rumour which is current in the West, that a number of Roman Catholic
priests are to-day receiving transportation over the Canadian National Rail-
ways System; do you know anything about that?—A. Yes. We have had a
good many inquiries along that line ourselves, Mr. Vallance. I made enquiries
of the Canadian National Railways, and I find that there are forty clergymen
travelling on passes for colonization work; twenty-seven of them are non-
Catholic and thirteen are Roman Catholics. I think the name of the man who is
spreading that stuff around is Maloney.

By Mr. Lucas: ‘

Q. Along that line, I think it would be well to have these rumours cleared
up. I received a letter from a gentleman out West in which he stated that there
was a rumour that the doctors who are now employed in Great Britain were
mostly Catholics. This morning you gave an account of the officials of the
Department, and if you would just clear up this matter, that would settle it?—
A. You will have to refer that to the Department of Health; I know nothing
of it whatsoever.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. This privilege which you speak of as being possessed by forty clergymen,
was it not extended to those specially engaged in repatriation work also?—
A. No. These are forty the C.N.R. are supposed to have. We have had many
letters from some institution and some from individuals, who have said they
heard it. I am very glad Mr. Vallance has mentioned it. In reference to
repatriation work, in the past both railways have included them.

Q. They are not in the territories they are moving in?—A. No.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. You brought up the question of Canon Burd’s evidence, in which he
read a letter from Bishop Lloyd?—A. Yes.

Q. Bishop Lloyd did not accuse you of sending that telegram, but it was his
suspicion. I understand you deny having sent that telegram?—A. Absolutely.

Q. Which I accept?—A. Not only do I deny it—

Q. That does not mean that there was no telegram sent to Bishop Lloyd?—
A. No. Iwasonly clearing up the suspicion, so far as I am concerned, of having
sent it. I even asked my officials to look for a possible dictation of that kind
on the file.

Mr. Lucas: In Bishop Lloyd’s letter I think he stated that he had had a
suspicion that the former Minister, the Honourable Mr. Stewart, had sent it;
perhaps Mr. Stewart can give us some information as to whether he sent that
telegram or not?

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. When was the authority of the repatriation agents dispensed with?—
A. At the end of 1927.

Hon. Mr. StewarT: I could not give the information at the moment. I
had a good many conversations with Bishop Lloyd. A telegram may have
been sent by somebody. I will have it looked up.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Egan, that the doctors were appointed by the Civil
Service Commission?—A. That is my understanding of the evidence given by
Dr. Amyot and Dr. Clark.

(Discussion followed).

The Committee adjourned until 11 a.m., Wednesday, May 23, 1928.
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House or COMMONS,
Tugespay, May 29, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The CuAlRMAN: At our last meeting it was decided to eall Mr. Kolchin,
of Winnipeg. 1 have here a report from Mr. Fraser, Clerk of the Committee,
in regard to this matter. This reads:—

The Committee by motion of date May 23rd ordered that S. Kolchin,
of Winnipeg, be summoned to appear before the Committee.

Pursuant thereto I wired Kolchin on May 25th a formal summons
to attend before the Committee on Tuesday, the 29th instant.

Kolchin replied by wire of the same date that he would come if pro-
vided with the necessary funds.

I arranged transportation for him and advised him to that effect
on the 26th inst. and that he must obey the summons.

Kolchin replied: “ Transportation received. Have slight cold;
intend to leave in the morning if not worse.”

Later on the same day, consequent, as I understood, upon the receipt
by you of a telegram from E. J. MeMurray, I acted on your instructions
and wired Kolchin postponing the date for his appearance before the
Committee.

I have also received the following telegram from Mr. McMurray:—

Upon returning to Winnipeg have checked over ledgers and find
that S. Kolchin paid to senior member of Wilton, MecMurray, Lamont
and Company on April fifteenth twenty-two, seventy-five dollars for legal
work in connection with application made for admission four relatives
Vekna, Ionkel, Beluta and Iosif Koltchynsky. The mother granted per-
mission, others refused; she being old could not come alone. Account
was not closed in Wilton, McMurray’s books but transferred to new firm
in which I have no interest. My staff preparing information to be given
Committee, did not discover this owing to this transfer. These matters
were entered under respective names throughout various ledgers of these
firms. Do not know Kolchin personally, never met him, never saw him
to my knowledge, never had any dealings with him. The evidence given
coupled with this explanation shows fully all my transactions in these
matters. My books open to investigation any person Committee desires
to name. Writing.

Upon receipt of that telegram, a few members of the Committee were
consulted, and it seemed to be the impression that it would be as well to post-
pone Mr. Kolchin’s appearance until the Committee decided again whether they
needed him or not. I took that action, and now it is for the Committee to say
whether they think it is still desirable to summon Mr. Kolchin. I have a letter
from Mr. McMurray very much along the same line as the telegram.

Hon. Mr. Rarston: I think we should have the letter as well.
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The CuaRMAN: It reads as follows:—

McMvugrray, McMurraY & GRESCHUK
WinnNipEG, CANADA, May 25, 1928.

W. F. Kay, B.C.L..,, M.P,,
House of Commons,
Ottawa, Canada.

DEeAr Sir,—I wired you to-day, upon my return to Winnipeg, where I
investigated the information asked for by Mr. Cahan.

You will remember that I informed the Committee that I was a
member of the firm of Wilton, McMurray, Lamont, McMurray, Ritchie
& Portigal during the year 1922; that I was not a member of the sub-
sequent firms, and after coming back in the fall of 1925 I started in for
myself, and in the fall of 1926 I formed a new firm which has continued
during 1927 and this year.

The names which I gave to the Committee were names connected
with the firms in which I was interested. My investigation shows that
Kolchin, or Koltchynsky, on the 15th of April, 1922, paid into the firm
of Wilton, McMurray & Company, $75 in connection with the applica-
tion he was making for admission of four relatives that he wanted
brought to this country. The money was paid, so I am advised, purely
as a legal fee. The mother was allowed to come but the other three were
rejected, and the mother being old decided not to come as she could not
travel alone. '

I do not know Mr. Kolchin personally and never had any business
dealings with him, and never saw the man in my life to my knowledge,
and knew absolutely nothing of the transaction.

The account was not closed in 1922, but the books show it was
transferred to the new firm, in which I had no interest at the time of

* the adjustment, and hence I did not have this information.

I regret very much that I did not postpone my examination at
Ottawa and wire and get the particulars so that I could have given the
whole matter in person to the Committee, but I trust that this explan-
ation will clear this matter. I might add that my books are open to
'{,he inspection of any person whom the Committee might desire to name
1ere.

I again repeat my statement, that I never trafficked in any shape
or form in connection with immigration permits.

Yours truly,
(Signed) E. J. McMURRAY.

What action does the committee wish to take?

Hon. Mr. StewarT: Mr. Chairman, you consulted with me about the matter
and I made it my business to see a few members of the committee and ask them
what the opinion would be in regard to delaying calling this witness until the
committee met again, as he did not seem to have any material evidence after
the receipt of Mr. McMurray’s telegram, because all he would do before the
committee would be to say that he had paid his money into the firm, and that
we now know from the telegram. As far as I am concerned, I would suggest that
the witness is not material, and that he be not brought before the committee.

The CmarMaN: Is that agreeable to the committee?

Severar, MEMBERs: Carried.

. Mr. Bovs: I would not like to say that his evidence is “not material”, but
n view of what we have, I would think it was not necessary.
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The CramMan: Shall we withdraw the summons to Mr. Kolchin?

Severar, MEmBERs: Carried.

Mr. Canaxn: I would like to move that Mr. Egan be asked to produce before
the committee the correspondence relating to the admission of these parties
mentioned in Mr. McMurray’s letter.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: I will second that motion.

The CrHARMAN: Is it the pleasure of the Committee to adopt the motion?

(Motion agreed to).

The CuamrMan: Now, in cennection with the Rex vs. Alexander matter.
Here is another report from the Clerk of the committee:

House or CoMMONS,
CoMMITTEES BRANCH,
May 29, 1928.
W. F. Kay, M.P,,
Chairman.

DEAr Sir:—
Re Rex vs. Alexander files.

I beg to report action taken in the above matter, as follows:

The Committee by motion of May 22nd ordered that the proper
officer of the court be summoned to attend and produce the record and
exhibits filed in this case. .

This action was taken as a result of a letter that appeared in the
press stating that there is on the court files five immigrant permits issued
to an agent of Hamilton, Ontario, on representations made by a member
of the House from Hamilton, and receipts amounting to $2,350 paid to
the agent for these five permits.

Before issuing a summons duces tecum I ascertained that the papers
had been transmitted from Ottawa to Toronto. I obtained a list of the
exhibits which had been filed at the trial at Ottawa, and as such list did
not indicate that any of the documents referred to in the newspaper report
were on file, I wired Toronto agents to search the file of exhibits at
Osgoode Hall and advise me if same contained any permits or letters
purporting to have been issued or signed by the Department or any officer
thereof, or receipts for money.

After search my agents sent me a list of the exhibits on file (18 in
number) together with a copy of exhibit No. 10. They advised me that
there were no permits, receipts or departmental letters, other than Exhibit
No. 10.

It appeared from the information to hand that the exhibits filed in
this case, other than possibly No. 10, were of no concern to the Com-
mittee and pending action on this report I deferred summoning the clerk
of records from Toronto.

Attached hereto is the list of exhibits and the copy of Exhibit No. 10.

I should also report that I examined the Departmental file covering
the case of Mirakian referred to in Exhibit, No. 10 and there is nothing
on that file to conneet up the allegation of the five permits and receipts
for money, nor can the Department officials, upon inquiry made of them,
throw any light on the matter.

Yours very truly,

(Signed) A. A. FRASER,
Clerk of Committee.
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Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): What is exhibit No. 10?
Hon. Mr. Rarston: Have you a list of the exhibits there?
The CuamrMmAN: Yes. I will read the list. (Reading)—

“Rex vs. Alexander—Trial at Ottawa, March 25, 1925.
Exhibit

1. Blank petition for naturalization.

2. Certificate of Naturalization, Garabed Mirakian, January 28, 1915.

3. Certificate of Naturalization to Mihran Garabed Mirakian, No. 8315,
November 30, 1923, cancelled and revoked.

4. Letter from Alexander to
August 29, 1923.

5. Letter from Alexander to
September 29, 1923.

6. Passport.

7. Letter from Shekter to Under-Secretary, January 21, 1924.

8. Letter in Turkish.

9. Certificate of Naturalization.

10. Letter from Stewart.

12. Petition for naturalization of Mihran G. Mirakian.

13. Receipt from Mihran dated November 30, 1923, for certificate of
naturalization No. 8315.

14. Letter from R. R. Forbes to Alexander, May 22, 1923.

15. Letter from J.S.F. to Alexander, March 13, 1924, reference to Egan.

16. U.S. Immigration letter, March 22, 1924, to Alexander.

17. U.S. Immigration letter, July 2, 1923.

18. Letter to R. R. Forbes.

“ DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION & COLONIZATION
No. 131958 Im.
Orrawa, March 10, 1925.

Dear Mr. STEWART:

I am in receipt of your letter of the 4th ult., with reference to the
application of Garabed Mirakian for the admission to Canada of Kalust
Mirakian and his wife Sarah, who were rejected at Paris,

In reply I beg to advise you that the Director of European Emigra-
tion in London has been advised to allow the above named to come for-
ward. I am returning herewith the documents enclosed with your letter.

Yours very truly,

J. S. FrAsEg,
Div. Commissioner.
Enec.

T. J. Stewart, Esq., M.P.,
House of Commons, Ottawa.”
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Houske or CoMMONS,
Ortawa, March 12, 1925,
GaraBep MIrakIAN, Esq.,
30 Case Street, Hamilton.

My dear Sir:

I am in receipt of a letter from J. S. Fraser, Divisional Commissioner
of Immigration, Ottawa, a copy of which is enclosed herewith.

You will see by the last clause that they have consented to allow the
person named to come forward.

Hoping this will be satisfactory, I remain,

Yours truly,

J. T. STEWART.

Envelope franked
by T.J.S.

Then I have a letter here from Messrs. Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt, the agents to
whom Mr. Fraser wrote, which reads:

OsrLer, HoskiN & HARCOURT :
ToroNTO, 2, 25th May, 1928.

A. A. Fraser, Esq.,
Clerk of Immigration Committee,
House of Commons,
Ottawa, Ontario.

DEear Sir—We did not receive your wire of the 23rd inst. until six
o’clock on the afternoon of the 23rd and it was then too late to obtain
access to the records at Osgoode Hall in the case of Rex versus Alexander.
On Wednesday evening we attended on Clarence Bell, the Registrar cf
the Appellate Division, and with him endeavoured to obtain access to
Osgoode Hall but through the absence of certain caretakers and officials
who had access to the vaults in which these documents were deposited,
we were unable to examine the same and the same situation prevailed
yesterday, the 24th of May, this being a legal holiday, and we wired
you yesterday to this effect. Frit

This morning we examined the documents in question and found that
two of the Exhibits, namely the passport and Certificate of Naturaliza-
tion, had been returned to the owner. All the other Exhibits were either
certificates of naturalization or petitions, letters or other naturalization
papers, a list of which we enclose herewith. The only letter signed by
an officer of the Department of Immigration was attached to a letter
from T. J. Stewart to Garibed Mirakian which, together with the
envelope addressed to Mirakian and franked by T. J. S., is Exhibit 10,
and we enclose herewith a copy of Mr. Stewart’s letter and also a copy
of the departmental letter to Mr. Stewart which is attached thereto. We
wired you to-day advising you as to this and enclose herewith confirma-
tion copy of our wire. If there is any further information which you
require on this matter we will endeavour to obtain and forward the same
to you. :

Yours truly,

(Signed)  Osrer, HoskiN & HARCOURT.
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Is there any further action to be taken with regard to this matter? Shall
we recall Mr. Egan?

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): Mr. Chairman, I understood the matter
to which you have just referred is a matter of court record in the city of Ottawa?

The CuarMAN: No; the papers are all in Osgoode Hall.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): The action took place in the courts here?

The CuAamMAN: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Epwagps (Frontenac): In that, if I understood correctly, certain
documents were found on his person and were produccd as evidence in the court,
to the effect that a certain large sum of money was involved in the bringing in of
these immigrants. In view of the fact that that matter was brought out under
oath at the court here, why could we not have them placed on our records?

The Cramman: So far as I understand, you are basing your statement on
a newspaper report. What was read to the Committee was a newspaper report.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): But I understood that the newspaper
reporter took down the evidence, and his statement was from the evidence given
on oath at the court?

Mr. Boys: If I remember rightly, it was a letter which appeared in the
Ottawa Citizen over somebody’s signature, and I also recall that the person who
wrote the letter made the statement that the pockets of the witness were
examined in court, and five so-called permits were found upon him, and also a
recommendation from a member from Hamilton. Now it appears that apart
from the letter written by Mr. Stewart, the files, as searched by the agents in
Toronto, would indicate there is no foundation whatever for the statement made
in the letter read to the Committee with the exception of the one letter from
Mr. Stewart. I regret that my memory is not extremely accurate, and T would
ask Mr. Fansher to read the letter again.

The Cuamman: It is in the records of the committee. We will have it
read again.

Mr. ArraURs: Would it not be possible to get the stenographic report
of this trial so that we would have all the evidence before us? Although the
eﬁhlbltQ might not be as mentioned in the letter, the evidence might be along
that line.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: I do not know very much about court procedure, but
there is no doubt that a receipt for money would be an’exhibit?
Mr. Caman: The letter appears on page 683 of the proceedings.
Mr. Boys: Will the clerk read it to us?
Crerx or CommrrTeE: (reading) :—
In the Spring Assizes of the Supreme Court of Ontario, held in March,
1925, in Ottawa, the pockets of one of the witnesses were searched by the
order of the court and in his pockets were found five immigrant permits
issued to an agent of Hamilton, Ontario, on representations made by a
member of the House from Hamilton. Money receipts were also found
in the pockets of this foreigner amounting to $2,350 paid by this man
to the agent mentioned for these five permits.
These permits were kept by the eourt and also the receipts and can
be seen in the Osgoode Hall at any time. (See file Rex vs. Alexander
No. 10, page 82.)

The signature does not appear here. I do not know whether it was in the news-
baper report or not.

Hon. Mr. Ratston: T understand that exhibits which have been listed by
this firm of lawyers in Toronto were exhibits with regard to passports and

naturalization and not permits at all.
85927—9
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Mr. Boys: There is a certain file referred to in the letter and I understand
the agents in Toronto searched this file, and there is no such matter on the
file as was referred to in that letter. I think it is only fair to a former member
of this House, who is now dead, that the public should understand that the
letter which appeared in the Ottawa Citizen is without foundation, and the
file does not show any five permits from the late T. J. Stewart, of Hamilton.

Hon. Mr. Rarston: I noticed that the exhibits jumped from No. 10 to No.
12. I was waiting to hear what exhibit No. 11 was. I heard afterwards that
the certificate of naturalization and the passports had been returned to the
owner and I assume those were the exhibits which were not there. The case
seems to have been about passports and naturalization and not about permits.

Mr. Boys: There is a very important bit of evidence which has come from
Mr. Egan, who says that, as a matter of fact, the man who wrote this letter in
the Citizen went to jail. I think we need not worry further about him.

Mr. Coore: I presume this file will be open for inspection to any member
of the committee, if they think there are any points to be cleared up, and it
can be brought up again.

The CuamRMAN: Yes,

W. J. Ecax recalled.

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: I propose submitting to the
Committee a list of members, giving the number of letters of assurance of employ-
ment following each name, and I want to make myself perfectly clear before
submitting it. First, I have gone back to April 20th, from the time we put
into operation clause 7, and not from June 1st. Secondly, I do this with some
fear and trembling not knowing exactly what my rights are, but I want it
definitely understood, if I may say so, that I am not submitting the names of
members of my own free will. It was at the command of the Committee. All
of these letters of admission—or rather, letters of assurance of employment—
were granted legally either by the Minister or by myself, and I personally want
it understood that I am submitting these names at the command of the Com-
mittee. I do not want any member to blame me for having submitted this,
because those he has secured were secured legally.

Mr. Boys: There is no reason why any member should blame you, because
everything that was done was done quite legally.

The Wirness: 1 feel that way, sir.

Mr. Seexce: You were asked to prepare the list by the Committee, and
you cannot be blamed for doing it.

The Wirxess: The third point is for the benefit of those who may know
something about the list later on. Some of you will be in great alarm because
of your understanding of the proposition. Let me put it this way: some members
will have, for instance, “ 17" as granted opposite their names. They, as they
know it, will think they have secured only three or four letters of that kind, but
the seventeen they are given credit for is because those three or four may have
been men with families, and as they think they have received only three or four
permits and 1 announce them as having received seventeen, they may question
it. The “37” has been converted into “ 17” because they represent seventeen
immigrants coming into the country, seventeen individuals, and we keep our
records in that way. :

Mr. Boys: Would the letter not state whom he wanted admitted?

The Wirness: We named them in the letter to the immigrant, but it wouid
appear as only one letter to him. For instance, if an application were made for
a man and he had a wife and four children, our records would show six admis-

ons.
- [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Mr. Bovs: Would he not be cognizant of the total number?
The Wirxess: Yes, but I do not think the average member will read it
that way.

Discussion, at length, took place.

Mr. Faxsner (Last Mountain): I would like to call the attention of the
Committee to a court proceeding in Calgary where it was brought out that a
certain man had been asked to go into a lawyer’s office and there sign five appli-
cations for engaging farm labour. He had no intention of accepting those who
were brought into the country and who would be thrown upon the industrial
world. It is these things which have aroused suspicion and not what Mr. Brown
has mentioned at all.

The Wirxess: May I just interject a word there? In connection with the
point brought out by Mr. Fansher, I would say that that is the one thing I have
been fighting all the time. That is one of the things I had hoped would be
gained by the operation of the railway agreement. The steamship agents do go
mto the back country and for a fee get men to pretend they want certain indi-
viduals to come in as farmers. That is positive, and that we have been fighting
tooth and nail from the beginning, and once you have this restrictive measure
of confining it to that railway agreement, if the transportation companies live
up to it, it will help materially. I have continually recommended that none but
relatives of people on the land be allowed to nominate. It is now only a matter
of $2 or $5 for a farmer or somebody who has somebody in hand whom he wants
to bring over. I do not think there is very much ‘““boodle,” as we termed it in
my younger days, but I do think it is for friends or relatives in the United
States, who want to bring these immigrants in because they cannot get them;
into the States.

Mr. ¥Fansuer (Last Mountain): I know that the Department has been
fighting these things, but the public know of them, and I think, in fairness to the
Immigration Department, it should be cleaned up, and I do not see how you can
clean it up unless you go back of February, 1925.

The Wrrness: You can clean it up if Parliament gives me instructions that

no application shall be accepted for Continental immigrants unless coming from
their relatives.

The witness reads:—

The following is a statement of persons on whose behalf letters to facilitate
entry were issued on recommendation of Members of Parliament, etc., for the
period April, 1926, to April, 1928, inclusive. -

Col. J. Arthurs, MP.. .. ..%. 278 Bowen, B AW N e e s 2
DRV Atiger] VIR G 5 M e b UL st e S0 VR dettel” B MUPL o 3
R. K. Anderson, MP.. .. .. .. .. 1 Beaubien; A Iy 'MP.. o0 vl . o 85
A. Amirkanian, Brantford.. .. 23 Berger, Samuel, Ottawa.. .. .. .. .. 1
Armstrong, J. E, MP.. .. .. ... & Blatehfiord sl MP Gt mrea. 2
Hon, P Baland,., | 5 it i otk SEIOY Beatibien. HoneiC P i el peoiviad
Blady: JVO. MPM- gssias e 1 Boudreau, Lucien, ML.A.. .. 21
Batiorofty ‘L -Pos MiP .. R0 00, (& oeeagl  Beistol, Senator Bl o0 s, e ke coni &
Bell, Thomas, MP.. .. .. .. .. .. 2  Chevrier, E. R. E, MP.. .. .. .. 47
Rettez, Arthur, M.P.. .. 1 Clhiinahieil sy T~ VEP T SN S50 1
Black, Hon. W. A.. .. 1 Casgrain, Pierre, MP.. .. .. .. .. 14
Boys, W ALMVEP, -7 e 981 SClothnra e T DL MR SR P e
Boulanger, O. L., MP., .. . Mt @gsedden, Dy ' F H . e it e h e A0
Bothwell, C. E., M.P.. 2 Cannon, Hon. Lucien.. .. .. .. 4
Boivin, P. E,, M.P.. G C@Hanin,  How, J2 e ci ity 4
Blanchard, §., MP.. .. .. . 2 Campbell, M. N, MP.. . 1

ell, Leslie G, MP.. .. . 97" Cpher, J5;, Montmeall ~° oot ot ot cech
Benoit, A. J., MP.. .. SNl (1o U= o] A B0 = e i e
Bell, G. W., MP.. ... G Glisbow By MPr, . ray (il Aouayg

65027—03 [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Deslisle, M. S, MP ., .. .. ..
Deslauriers, Dr., M.P..

Dhbue, o BIR v 388837R 305
Dunning, Hon. Chas.. .. .. .. .. ..
Peiis, Dr. Axthiiy, MP.. .. .0 oo %

Denis, J. J., MP..

Duff, Wm MPy. 1
Dickson, W. G., Toronw
dear(h A. M, MP..
Elliott, Hon. J.'C..
Euler, 'Hon. W. D..

deards Gordon C, MP

Ellenson, E. M.. ..
Exsenrberg. E; T oronto. .
Fiset, Sir Fugcne MP.

Montaine, Dr. J. E., MP_ "........

Fraser, W. A., Trenton.. ..
ermmn A& Joo 9 32
Forke, Robert MP..

Guthne, Hon. Hugh
Gordon, Hon.

i o o o

Cruerin, o IR A S R adnln B

Gott, J., MP..
Goulet A, MP.. ..
Geary, Co! G. R M.P

German, J. C. M Toronto. s

Goodiscm, T. W.. MP
Girouard, Mr.,

T OF SIELRRER S

Germian, Wi M MEP .o FO0NA

Gardiner, Robt.,, MP.. .. .. ..
Gervais, Theodore, MP.. .. ..
Goldfield, B., Ottawa. .

s abie e

Garfunkel Mr Toronto.. .. ..

Hatfield, Hon PrE. o« SIAY A
Harris, Joseph MR Ts ndits deds .
Hali, Dr. W, A, MP... . Frvid

Heafps 3R RE . .
Hall, T. F,, KC Cobourg
Heemm Hon. Pet'er

Hanson, R. B, MP.. .. v vuive ..

Howard, Chas. B, MP..
Hay, F. W., MP..

Harding, R. o KC “Toronto. .

Hocken, H. C.,

Homuth, Carl MPP o Syl gl

Harmer, Senator.
Hepburn, Mr.,
Hervey, General, contractor .

T S e o A

Hunt, J. J., Hamilton.. .. .. .. .. ..
Irwin, F. H. M., Toronto.. .. .. ..

Jacobs S. W. MP..
Johnston 4y G Toront;o
Jelliff, L. H., M.P..
ng, Hon. J. H.. ..
Kay, William, MP..
Kaiser, Dr. T. E,, MP..
Karam. 8., Obbawa

Kerwin, P., Guelph..

Laflamme, L iy 7 oA
Lacombe, L., MP..
Lan;ctot e M. cag g AxT %
Larpomte Hon. Ernest..

Maleolm, MP ’ k

Lapierre, E. A., M.P.. -

Lawson, Dr. Sni}[rle, Toronto.. o e

Lucas, W. T.
Leshe, Howard Mmtaba
Lennox, Col. Herbert d iz M.P

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Lawson, J. E., Toronto..
Lepofsky, 8., Ottawa..
Melntosh, C. R., M.P..
McCoig, Senator Ny B s
MeClenaghan, Stewart, Ottawa.
McGibbon, Dr. Peter.. ..
MacDoma]d, Hon. E. M.. 4
MeDonald, Finlay, M.P..
McMaster, A. R., K.C,,
MeLean, M., M.P.

Murray, Hon. E'J..
Mercier, J. A., M.P..

Morin, Rene, '‘MP.. ..
Murphy & Donald Toronto. .
Malcolm, J., M.P., Hon..
McPh-aiI, Agnes, MP..
Manion, Hon. Dr..
Maloney, Dr.

McPhee, G. W., M.P..

Murdock, Hon. ‘James.. .. pop g 1
Miles, Henry, MLC, Montreai.. <!

Massey. Hon. Vincent. .
Munn, W. C, Momtreal
MecGuire, W. H., Toronto..
Matthews, R. C., M.P.. .
Motherwell Hon. W. R.

Martin, Hon. John S Toronto....

Margosches, Mrs., Ot.taxwa

Monahan, T. L., Toranbo.. .
Mdnie. F, s FROR.. oo e R

Neill; AW sM.P. . .

Odettey B 6. MR L0 o 04T 21

O’Neil, J. Ray, M.P..
Ornstem A, Ottawa..

O’Heir, Ald. "Thos. J., Hamxltons e

Power, Chas. G., M.P
Pettit, G. H., MP..
Pouh‘ot &, P MEP7: s
Preston, Dr. R. e MP
Price, A. B, M.P..

Preston W, T. 2 A Cofbourg
Perley, "Sir George

Perras, F. W.,, M.P..
Prevost, J. E., M.P.. —
Poek, 1. A MP.. b Hlis
Robinson, Col., M.P..

Ross, J. G. MP..

Rennie, Dr. G. S, MP
Rheaume, J. T., MP..

Rinfret, Hon. Fern»and..

Ralston, Hon. J. L..
Raymond, M., M.P..

Robb, Hon. - i
Robltmlle, O’lement MP..
Ross, A. E, MP..
Ryekman, Hon. E. B., ‘MP..

Ryerson,. Be B MP.a s ootied e

Robbins, Major S. J..

Rose, Bernard, K.C., Mon'treal

Rutherford Dr. J. W., M.P..
Smith, R. K., M.P..

Senn, M. C.,, M.P..

Spence, D., MP.. ..
Shipway, Thos., Toronto. .
Stinson, J. H., M.P..
Stevens, Hon. H. H, MP..

MBS, ouiiis
McMillan. Thos., MP" RATLE
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Semple, G. H., Montreal.. .. .. ..
Smblee; sBi: MaP itde 16 s «dnshd 55
Sifton, Harry, Toronto.. .. Pl T
Smith, Hon. Lewis. Fredericton.. ..
Smith, Amold N., MP.. .. .. .. ..
Bt "Pere, B O, M.PL 1V Gi6{ Bl
Simpson, T. E.,, M.P.. ..

Stewart, B A, MiPibn. Sl Jaded i
Baguing Po As MRl b s i
ot e ] O 2 S A it e
Sanderson, F. G, M.P.. .. .. .. ..
Sinvelain ! HoA JIEG X S A0 G0

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. I would like to ask one or two questions in connection with this list.
What is the total?~—A. The total is over the previous number, because 1 went
back to April.

Q. I mean the total in the list?—A. The total in the list is 3,292.

Q. And any one of the 3,292 might be for half a dozen seuls?—A. Half a
dozen souls.

Q. And as to the permits, one permit, as you said before, might include four
or five?—A. Very often in the case of continental families, six seven, eight or
nine,

Q. Another question, is this; were these permits so-called, or letters of
admission from a member of Parliament obtained by the members of Parliament
and others mentioned in the list in a perfectly legal manner?—A. Absolutely.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. I have only one comment to make on the list, and that is, while I made
two applications, I investigated them and took a great deal of trouble; I got
permission in both cases, that they would be admitted, but I do not see them in
the list, and I want an explanation.

By Mr. Arthurs:
v Q. Mr. Egan, the numbers given by you are the numbers admitted?—A.
es.

Q. Are you sure that there were that number admitted?—A. No. Very
often they did not come, for some reason or other.

Q. In one case I had a number of permits for men but before they got here
they had drifted away to other localities?—A. Very often members receive
letters for somebody, and very often they never come, but you have been credited
with them, and I have been asked to give the list.

Q. Is it not true that the railway companies in certain cases advise their
clients; for instance, a man sends money over to bring a friend from a foreign
country through the railway company; they are advised by the railway com-
pany that in order to secure admission of this friend to Canada, the nominee
must go to the local Federal member for assistance?—A. I think that only
:}Il)phes to limited circumstances; ever since the railway agreement came in

ey—

Q. I might say I acted on letters from the Canadian Pacific Railway Com-
pany advising that the party desiring the admission of a friend must secure the
assistance of the Federal member; that is true?—A. To some extent.

Mr. Brown~: I am told that I must apologize, that my nominee did appear.

By Myr. Vallance:

Q. T am credited with six; I am not denying it, but do you require six
letters from me, or would one admit five?—A. I.would have to look that up.
here is not any question about it, that one might mean five.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Mr. McMinraN: There is nothing here that would lead us to believe that
there has been anything wrong in any matter that any of the members have
been engaged in. In my own case, you will notice three. If my memory serves
me right; they were the wife and two children of a Hollander, whose brother
I am well acquainted with, and who has been in this country for seven or eight
years, and they were exceedingly anxious that the wife and two children of
this brother should come out. I think, as has been said already, that there is
nothing in that, but what members of Parliament are entitled to do and did in
these cases.

Wirness: I have tried to make it clear.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. I would like to know whether all these are from non-preferred countries?
—A. I beg your pardon?

Q. The question is, are all these entries from non-preferred countries?—A.
Practically all, but there was a period last year when the railway companies
more or less closed down, from all preferred countries, with perhaps the exception
of—take the Hon. Mr. Euler’s case, arrivals from Germany came in on the pre-
ferred list. If you care to speak of the people from Germany, they were not
on the preferred list, but he had to make applications for these people. They
were then, so to speak, of the non-preferred countries.

Q. Have you any idea of the percentage of the entries where the parties
would be related to persons at the time residents of Canada?—A. Practically
none. All these are related, within the class permitting admission of certain
relationships; there would be remote relationships, such as cousins.

Q. I think Mr. Brown has referred to one or two?—A. But it must be a
relationship, a cousin, a father, brother, or son.

Q. You could not say, without evidence, and finding out?—A. Yes.

Q. Was any effort made to find out how many were related to persons
already in Canada?—A. No, sir.

Q. There is one in the whole list that prompts me to ask the question; if
I remember correctly, the gentleman was from Montreal, and the number was
3007—A. Yes.

Q. What was the name?—A. General Hervey.

Q. Were they all at one time?—A. All at one time.

Q. Have you any idea why they were required?—A. Yes.

Q. Was it in connection with some contract work?—A. It was in connec-
tion with railway work. The application was made by General Hervey in the
original case to Hon. Mr. Stewart. Mr. Stewart sent it to me, and I said to
General Hervey that unless he was able to give me an assurance from the
Labour bureaus that they had tried to get that help but could not—he must
produce something which would warrant my saying to the Italian Government
that these people would have work for at least one year—that I could not
consider it. As you know, things were moving pretty fast just about the year
1926, in the Spring of 1926.

p Q. Is he a contractor? —A. He is a contractor, a member of a contracting
rm.

Q. Do I understand that the whole list was signed at one time and recom-
mended by him at one time?—A. Yes. : \

Q. What was the date of it?—A. That I will have to look up.

Q. You do not remember at all?—A. No. It was in the Summer of 1926.

Q. You mean by that, probably July or August?—A. The change of Gov-
ernment was when? June, 1926. It would be towards the end of July.

[Mr. W, J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Have you a record of what nationality they are?—A. Yes, they are
all ITtalians.

Mr. Hocken: I am not a member of the Committee, but I would ask the
privilege to make a statement.

The CuAmMAN: I hope members of the Committee or members of Par-
liament are not going to feel it incumbent upon them to come before this Com-
mittee and explain the relationship or why they got these letters of entry.

Mr. McPuer: We had better not start this thing.

Mr. Hocken: Mr. Chairman, while I am not a member of this Com-
mittee, I would like to say a word or two. About one-half the people in my
constituency are foreigners.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: I would like to say a word or two on behalf of my
friend Mr. Hocken. He made a lot of applications to me, and they were all
absolutely bona fide.

Mr. Hocken: I would like to have Mr. Egan’s opinion upon that.

Mr. Axperson (Halton): I would like to ask one question right here.

. The Wirness: May I answer Mr. Hocken first? My statement I think
In answer to Dr. Edwards was that neither you nor anybody else could have
got them from me if I had not considered that they were correct. Every per-
mit I have issued, mentioned there, was considered legal either by myself or
by my Minister, and yours, Mr. Hocken, were just as good as the other fellows.

The CmAmMmAN: I think that has been made clear by Mr. Egan, and 1

hope the members of the Committee will let that statement go.

By Mr. Anderson (Halton):

Q. If a member asked for permission for a person to come in, was it not
their duty to certify that they were the proper persons to receive the immi-
grants?—A. Yes. We have confined it practically to that. There is no rule
you can work out at 100 per cent but, it is 99% per cent. Then there was in
each case the member who asked for it.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. The contractor applied for 300?—A. Yes.

Q. Did he specify the names?—A. No, he did not specify the names, it
was to bring in 300 people for this particular railway construction work.
Instructions were issued to the Italian Consul, and the Italian Government
Wwas notified that these men were selected. I do not know that they all came
to the work, but I know that towards the end of their coming perhaps 90 to
100—General Hervey telephoned me one day that with what he had received
and placed at work, and the other help secured, and perhaps a lessening of
what was required, he was not quite in a position to stand by his arrangement,
and wanted to know if I could place them with another industrial company.
I said “yes, provided they are not displacing Canadian labour,” and that they
would guarantee a year’s work at least. i

Q. Are they under any obligation to find work for a certain time?—A.

hey are under a moral obligation to me but not to the individual who is mostly
only too glad to come. ; .

Q. You have no bond or guarantee that they will not become a public
charge?—A. No.

Q. Nor is there any agreement to that effect to hold the contractor
responsible?—A. No.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Lucas:

Q. It is only necessary to have these letters of admission from the non-
preferred countries?—A. Yes, a man must come voluntarily on his own, from
any other country.

Q. So that these are only required for people of the non-preferred coun-
tries?—A. Yes. I am a little confused upon that. I think last year letters
were asked because immigration was stopped, in a general way, and I think
from one or two countries north of the non-preferred, there were a few letters
granted at that time.

Q. Under the railway agreement they can only bring in people from these
non-preferred countries; as agricultural workers or to go on the land?—A.
That is the whole purpose of the railway agreement. These people who come
in under these letters are coming to assured employment elsewhere than on
the farm. Perhaps during that period, when the railway agreement was not
working, as far as bringing people out was concerned, we issued letters of
permit for people to come in, but we never allowed them to come, department-
ally, unless we investigated. If the person came as farm help, we would not
in;’estigate, we would take the member’s word, or whoever’s word we had to
take.

Q. I am looking at your report, at page 11, and I want to get it clear
as to how these people came in.—A. What year is that?

Q. This is the last one I have, for 1927. I did not take down the number
from any particular country that might send agricultural workers. Where are
the people called Magyars coming from?—A. The Magyars are Hungarians
mostly, although they are scattered around in other countries.

Q. They would be more or less agricultural workers?—A. Yes, they
should be.

Q. Arabians 4, Armenians 78, East Indians 62, Greeks 385, Italians 3,466,
Jews 4,863, Magyars 4,940, Maltese 34, Persians 6, Portuguese 18, Spanish 49,
Syrians 241, Turkish 10. I think the Committee will agree with me that it is
not reasonable to expect the people from those countries will go on the land?—
A. No, they have not.

Q. That makes a total of 9,416 for the year—1926-27. How would those
people get in?—A. There must be one or two big bulks in that.

Q. Italians 3466, and Jews 4,863. You will find that on page 11.

Mr. Baxcrorr: Do you say none of these would go on the land?
Mr. Lucas: It is not reasonable to expect those people from the countries
I have mentioned would go on the land.

Mr:s Ross: These Italians are amongst the best farmers we have. The
Ttalians are some of the best farmers. Anybody who says Italians are not
farmers is wrong.

Mr. Lucas: T do not say Italians are not farmers, but they would not go
on the land in large numbers. I think my statement will be borne out by the
census of Canada.

Mr. Bancrorr: I know where 12 Italians came into Manitoba and bought
a piece of land operated by Mr. R. J. Spiers, and those men are farmers.

Wirness: As far as the Italian is concerned, I can only explain approxi-
mately; I have no doubt that at least 35 per cent to 40 per cent of those Ttalians
who came in that year are on the land right now, because I know the different
movements. I believe, in fact I know after inspection, that there are a goodly
number, and I know that the balance came in pretending that they were com-
ing to farm work; so that, as far as we are concerned, after investigation, they
came in legally.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):
Q. In that same period, what was the total immigration to this country?
—A. I have that here; it was 143,991 in 1926-27.
Q. But on the so-called letters of admission?—A. It would be easily 300.-
000; it would be about 265,000. I am speaking of twenty-four months from
April. It would be about 300,000.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

'Q. T would like to ask about General Hervey’s crowd that he brought in;
did he give to you or to the Department any guarantee or undertaking in
regard to the wages paid?—A. No. In the long run, that was my anxiety
while he was dealing with me in connection with it.

Q. I mean in bringing them in, when he said he wanted 300?—A. I inquired
what wages were to be paid, and so forth.

Q. So your Department does take that into consideration?—A. Absolutely.

Q. In regard to the admission of large numbers for construction work?—
A. Yes. We will not sanction it without investigation.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. You often consult with the Labour departments?—A. Yes, and I
_have said that in my evidence two or three times. We always, Dr. Edwards,
Insist upon certain information from the applicants, as to their bona fides and
we insist upon certain documents being produced from the Labour bureaus in
the provinces in the East. I would like to say something about the industrial
company, or the chemical company—I think you mentioned the word
“chemical”. That does not appear here, that 100 do not appear upon this list,
because we investigated it. and we had the Labour bureaus come across with
the information that the help could not be secured, and the department was
satisfied that they were absolutely required for that work.

By Mr. Arthwrs:
Q. There were certain permits in my name; they were practically all for
the chemical companies?—A. Yes, that was previous to the 100.
Q. They were included in the same way?—A. Yours were, so far as I
remember.

By Mr. Ross: 2
. Q. Is it not a fact that any immigrant in the country can without any per-
mit bring in his father or brother, sister or unmarried children, children who
ﬁre single, from any country, without a permit?—A. Yes, if it is within the law,
€ may.

Q. Without any recommendation?—A. They do not have to be recom-
mended. They must produce proof to us of what they state. If that is pro-
duced, we allow them in.

Q. They do not have to come in under the occupational clause?—A. No.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: This occurs to me, Mr. Chairman. For instance, take
the 300 that came in at the request of General Hervey; when the regulations
were fairly tight, I mean under the present regulations. That confirms me in
Iy conviction that previous to the tightening up of the regulations, very large
Dumbers were brought in in some such way as that, and it convinces me that
we should go back and ascertain whether that is the case or not. I am per-
f?Ctly willing to let my meotion rest until next meeting; and the members can
glve it some thought.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Wirxess: May I make that point clear? I am afraid that I did not, in
my answer. From October, 1923, to April, 1926, there was no such movement
of people under my jurisdiction without investigation, and on this particular
movement I was instructed to carry on.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. I am not questioning the propriety of it?—A. Nor am I, in any sense
of the word.

Q. But the change in the regulations had a tendency to tighten things up;
that is the way it struck me. It was a little more open under 183 than it was
afterwards?—A. The railway agreement having come into force, that was the
only reason for the change. The railway agreement having come into force,
we felt that the continental movement was big enough, and that it was helping
up to some extent in so far as we did not have the same number of applications
to contend with. Mr. Stewart and I talked the thing over, and decided that
it would be only where we had an absolute guarantee of employment, or, as
Mr. Forke afterwards did, confine it to members of Parliament and responsible
people.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Would Jews coming from Germany be classed as Jews?—A. Yes. The
Jew coming from Germany is a Hebrew.
Q. Regardless of what country he comes from?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. How did those Jews come in? Did they have letters of admission?—A.
A great many came to relatives. Sometimes a man comes in and leaves behind
him a large family. Perhaps one-half of those were movements to relatives,
people who came in two, three, four, five years, and some even eight to ten
years ago; that would be the greater movement. The next movement was of
those coming, not relatives, but in a special way continental people. Anything
in the shape of a cousin is a relationship with them, more especially if they
are asking for a favour. In that case they would come only where there was an
assurance of employment for them. This may seem strange to you, but it is
encouraging to me, that some of them are coming to farm lands bought by the
Jewish Immigration Society.

Q. A cousin or a relative coming to Canada requires no permit?—A. Yes,
a cousin does. Any Hebrew coming in would be on this list becausc he is
not allowed to come in under the relationship clause. He would have to assure
them of employment without detriment to other Canadian labour,

Q. In looking over this list on page 11, you see the large number I read
there of 9,216 of these people. Of course, there are a large number of others
from the non-preferred countries. So many of these people are coming in, and
yet there is no record?—A. There is no regular permit to a relative coming in;
under the Act, a husband coming to his wife and children is not a matter of per-
mit. I tried to give you the proportion; I would say among the Hebrews a littie
more than one-half easily, and the greater part of the others, perhaps 15 per
cent, because they were coming in to form groups in a farm settlement, and the
balance to assured employment. I said the other day, they were mostly Italians,
Hebrews, Armenians, and others of that kind. ‘

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain) :

Q. These 9,000 are not out of the total of 143,000?7—A. These 9,000 are
out of the 143,991.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Coote:
Q. Would not a lot of those people come in under the railway agreement?
=—A. No, sir. Italy is not in the railway agreement. If these are all the ques-
tions you have to ask on this, I will go on with something else.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. On this list I have here, none of them are under the railway agreement,
they are really from the countries that you might say are almost the prohibited
class?—A. When you tell me that a Northern Italian is non-permissible for
this country, you have not had any experience, I think, because I would just
as soon have a Northern Italian as any Swede, German or Dane that ever
came into the country. I would say we must not move towards too free a
movement among certain Italians, if you need them for settlement; if you
need them for railways or for digging drains you cannot get anything better
than Italians.

Q. Well, leave them out?—A. The Hebrews are next. You mentioned the
Arabians, four in number. I cannot tell you how they are here. I would have
to look that up for you, but probably relatives; Armenians 78, a very small
number when you consider the thousands of applications we have for them to
come in. Austrians 530, a very, very small number; they are from a non-
preferred country, it is true, but they are of the same type as the Germans.
What was the next type you mentioned?

Q. East Indians, 62 In number?—A. I will venture to say that if you
followed us in all of the endeavours made with the East Indians, you would
think that we had done very well in limiting it to 62, and that the 62 were
pretty well limited in their movements. A considerable pressure is brought to
bear in some localities, from the mayor down. What was the next one?

Q. The Greeks?—A. 385 in number. I hardly know a member in the
House or a representative citizen in any town in Canada but who is prepared
to vouch strongly for the bringing in of a Greek to a relative, outside of the
regulation relative to helping him in his particular business. To my mind this
figure is quite limited, when one considers the endeavours that are made to
bring them in. What was the next?

Q. Ttalians.—A. That has been explained.

Q. The next is the Jews?—A. That has been explained.

Q. The next is the Maltese, 34 in number?—A. They are people within
your Empire, and we have held the number down pretty well.

Q. Persians next, six in number?—A. I cannot tell you how they have come
in. I would have to look that up for you. If there was anything astonishing in
it, I would know all about it, because they could not come in without my knowing
something about them.

Q. Portuguese, 18?—A. We have applications for hundreds and hundreds
of Portuguese, and that is the result.

Q. Spanish, 49 in number?—A. That must be to relatives entirely.

Q. Syrians, 241?—A. The Syrian is in the same class as the Armenian,
Practically the same.

Q. Turkish, 10?—A. That I cannot explain, unless it is somebody in
business here making sweets for us.

Q. The point is that must have been a pretty free movement when there
were since April, 1926, in two years, that number?—A. Yes, from April.
3292Q. And there were in two years, practically permits for only, 3,2007—A.

1292,
Q. The point that struck me is that there were 9,000 that came in last
year from the countries I have just named, in one year, so that there are a
large number of people coming in apparently who do not have to get permits.—

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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A. Yes. I would just like to clear that point up. They are coming to their
relatives, which is within the law, and that is one of the very reasons why we
are trying to make these other movements as light or as tight as we possibly
can, because we do not want toc many to come in who have the right to ask
for their relatives.

Q. They are not like the Chinese—everybody they meet is a relative?—
A. Try it and see.

The CuarmaN: We will adjourn until 4 o’clock this afternoon, when we
will consider the Grain Act, and the Committee will meet to-morrow morning
at 11 o’clock to consider Immigration.

Witness retired.

The Committee adjourned.
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House or CommoxNs,
WepNEespay, May 30, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): I want to state again very briefly the
reasons why I submit my motion, seconded by Mr. Lucas. In April, 1919, the
British Government gave free passage to approved ex-service men and their
dependents. That scheme closed at the end of 1922, some 82,000 having been
granted free passage to the several overseas dominions. That was a purely
British scheme. In 1921 there was a conference of Premiers of the Empire
held in the Old Country and they considered this question of immigration
and recommended co-operation between the mother country and the overseas
dominions, and the framing of a policy of Empire land settlement and Empire
directed immigration. As a result of that conference, on the 31st of May,
1922, the Empire Settlement Act became law, although it did not really get
under way for perhaps two or three years, as is shown by the figures. For
instance, under that Empire settlement scheme in 1925 only 8,779 came to
Canada. A few might have come out before; I have not the figures for 1924
or 1923. However, it got under way the next year, in 1926, when 20,862 came
out under that scheme. In the next year, 1927, 29.244. Now that comes in,
as you will observe, since the operation of P.C. 183. In 1924 the Empire settle-
ment scheme involving assisted passage schemes, the Three Thousand Family
Scheme, and the New Brunswick and Nova Scotia Land Settlement Scheme,
all grew out of that; the Clan Donald Scheme, the Alberta Training Scheme,
the Ontario Vimy Ridge, and the movement of the Boys’ Land Settlement
Scheme. A new Empire Passage Scheme was brought into effect on January
1, 1926, as a result of this, between the Department and the Overseas Settle-
ment Commission. The war, as I said yesterday, naturally held up everything
and the figures will show that there was practically no migration during the
years of war. Immediately following the war, in the Old Country and with
the overseas dominions trying to get down to business again, this matter of
migration was actively taken up, not only by the Old Country but by Canada,
Australia and New Zealand, there being a desire on the part of the British
Government, as evidenced by the conference and the subsequent scheme of
assisting their own people, to settle in the overseas dominions, which would
relieve the situation in the Old Country and be of assistance to the dominions
as well. I submit that these new schemes following after the war really
became actively operative with P.C. 183, about the year 1923. T think there
18 ample evidence to show that during 1923, 1924, 1925, and 1926, various
plans were discussed between this country and the Old Country and various
schemes were tried out, and it does seem to me to be a part of our duty as a
Committee to ascertain as far as we can by statistics and other facts just how
these various schemes operated, to what extent they were effective and to
What extent they were ineffective, and it seems to me we should go back to
1923. I have no wish to limit it to February of 1923 when P.C. 183 came
Into operation, if you want to go back, but I repeat that the facts are all there
to show that the activities in regard to immigration and the inculcating of
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various new schemes took place along in 1923, 1924 and 1925 That is the
reason why I make my motion. I think it is our duty to go back and inquire
into these schemes and get the results of the migration under the various plans,
to ascertain why these plans were abandoned or changed for other plans,
whether they worked out better under the new plan than under a former one,
and so forth. That seems to me to be a main part of our work here. If you
want to go back of that I have no objection at all, except the one indicated
by the Deputy Minister, and which I fully appreciate, that it means a good
deal of work and time. Of course if we go farther back it will mean more
work and more time. That is the reason why I proposed my resolution, and
I would like an expression of opinion from the Committee on that resolution.

The CuaamrMan: Would you repeat your motion Doctor?

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): The motion was to the effect that the
information which was contained in the report read to us yesterday by the
Deputy Minister of those who came in under permit or any other way, spon-
sored either by members of Parliament, or by others not members of Parlia-
ment, should be extended and that we should go back to the date of the pass-
ing of P.C. 183, which, I think, was in January although it did not become
operative until February 15th, 1923; so I would change my motion to read
February, 1923, instead of January 1st, 1923.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: I do not know just what my hon. friend considers
necessary now. The motion yesterday was for the filing of the permits back
to 1923. I may point out to my hon. friend that he has not mentioned permits
this morning and all the information that he has spoken of this morning, the
numbers coming under the various schemes, is already in evidence in the reports
of the Immigration Department. There are special files of all these matters.
That is, the numbers who came under the various schemes are here undler our
hands. Any further information I am quite prepared to get but my under-
standing yesterday was entirely different from that suggested this morning. I
understood that what was asked for yesterday was simply the number of permits
that were issued for people who came from foreign countries and were nct shown
on that list that we have there.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Well, I say the same information that was given to
us in the reports or lists that are here.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: May I say that all the people coming from foreign
countries are listed here, during all these years. I understood the information
asked for was the number of people coming from non-preferred countries going
back to a certain date. So far as the information requested by my hon. friend
this morning is concerned, I say that ninety per cent of it is here before,us for
our consideration now. But I have no objection in the world, as far as T am
concerned, because I am as much interested as anyone else—indeed I am prepared
to ask for it in the House of Commons—if we ask for a return showing the
number of people coming from non-preferred countries into Canada; none in
the world, if it is going to help the Committee; but I say it will not help us now
in preparing our report to the House of Commons. But if it is deemed necessary
by anyone, I am prepared to back the motion to bring it. It can be used at
another session. I do not think it can be prepared for this session,
but any further information that cin be got and is urgently necessary
for the Committee—information pertaining to the schemes, asked for by my
hon. friend this morning may be helpful, but I maintain that the bulk of what
he is asking for is already here. If there is anything not included in the bulk
of what is before us, it is on record in the department but it may take some
time to compile it. It has taken a long time to prepare this return and my
information is that it would take 25 or 30 people two or three months to prepare
a return of the character desired. If it is necessary let us have it. But I do
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want to say this, if it is a case of simply showing what the permits were that
were granted under the various governments then I want the motion to call for
the information back to 1912, because that is about the time the migration
started; or after the war.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: I think perhaps, Mr. Chairman, I am to blame for not
expressing myself exactly and hence the criticism offered by the Hon. Mr.
Stewart. What I intended to convey was this, both yesterday and to-day. We
want the information, of the same class and character as that given by Mr. Egan
yesterday, extended back to the date of operation of P.C. 183, which would be
February 15th, 1923. I mentioned these other matters and it appears to me to
dove-tail in with or would have some influence on the permits. I menticn the
date for that purpose. That is the way it appears to me. I want to know, and
I believe others want to know, to what extent permits or letters of admission
such as were referred to in the report given to us yesterday were made back of
April, 1926, not merely by members of Parliament, but my candid view is that
1t was outside of members of Parliament, those not responsible to Parliament at
all. If there was any abuse those were the persons who abused the permit
system, and I want the return to apply back of April, 1926, to satisty rayself
and others in regard to whether or not that which was considered the right
policy was abused previous to that date. Now, that is my motion. I know we
cannot get the information in order to use it for our report at this session, but we
can get it and have it by next session and at least we will show to the public
that we are desirous of cleaning up the whole thing.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: I have no cbjection to that and if the return goes back
to 1920 I will second my hon. friend’s motion.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Very well, then I will be very glad to change the date
as suggested.

Mr. Lucas: I will agree to it if the statements are brought down by months;
the figures given by months. It will not require any more work. We have all
the figures and it will mean simply that each month will be segregated. In
other words, if we get whatever the number is, any bulk figure, we will have no
idea then what it means. :

Hon. Mr. Stowarr: Each permit takes some considerable time' to look
Upl-ch They might have come in three months before they were finally dealt
with.

Mr. Lucas: Then, why not say the number of applications per month?

Hon. Mr. Stewart: Do you mean the applications granted, or do you
mean the number of permits applied for?

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Just the same as this return. We were told distinctly
Vesterday that this contained applications; permits applied for. So follow the
same course as the other; just the same course as you followed with that but
let it go back to the earlier date.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: Mr. Lucas is introducing something new. There is a
considerable difference in compiling them month by month. I think Mr.
Egan will bear me out there. But if you are satisfied with the numbers who
came in between the first and the last of each month, then the return will be
more easily prepared. Am I right in that, Mr. Egan?

Mr. Ecan: Oh, yes, it will entail a lot of work. It is a terrific task.

Mr. Lucas: T understand those returns yesterday were just those granted?

Mr. Ecan: Yes. We might have had more applications.

Mr. Lucas: You may have had more applications during that period?

Mr. Ecax: Very many more.

Mr. Lucas: You only furnished those granted?
Mr. Ecan: That is all.
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Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Then, my confusion was that these applications were
granted, but they did not all come?

Mr. Eean: That is a different point, sir, that he is making here.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: All right, leave it to those granted.

Mr. Lucas: T might make application for a permit and Mr. Egan might
turn it down. Therefore, that was something that was not exercised.

Mr. VaLraxce: An application might be made for several people, say six,
and it might be granted as to five. These yesterday were individuals granted,
not applications. I understood it was said yesterday that one application might
have meant six.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: He said he might make five applications and one
person come in.

Mr. Ecan: 1 cannot answer that back of 1923. I can from 1923 on.

Mr. Brow~: You are introducing another complication. A member or
some individual may apply for a certain number and some of these would extend
over a great length of time, some granted in one month and some in another
and they do not coincide with the time the applications were made. You are
introducing another very confusing factor into the problem.

Mr. Jenkins: I understand the resolution is, those that were granted
month by month.

The CHARMAN: 1 will read the motion as I understand it. It has not
been presented in written form.

It is moved by Hon. Mr. Edwards that the Department file a list of
letters of admission issued, and the names of the sponsors thereof, dating back
to January 1st, 1920.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Just put in, in order to cover that properly; did you
zay, “issued”?

The Cuamrmax: Issued. The list of letters of admission issued and the
names of the sponsors thereof.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: The list of letters of admission issued, and granted?

The CHAIRMAN: And the names of the sponsors thereof.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: If an application is made, is it issued?

Mr. Ecax: Issued by him. Not by us.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: Mr. Egan thoroughly understands the work entailed,
and it seems to me that all the Committee desires would be the number of
entrants from these foreign countries by months. What is the use of dealing
with applications that never were granted and the parties did not come?

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Applications granted.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: Just the ones from which the parties arrived in
Canada.

Mr. BancrorT: It should be the same as the list brought down yesterday
or else it is of no use for purposes of comparison. I understood Mr. Edwards
wanted to extend the time over other years. Now, why not bring down the
same nature of information?

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: It will be of the same nature.

The CuarMAN: Have I this motion correctly worded?

Hon. Mr. Epwasps: Unless you use the word “granted” instead of “issued”.

" {-Ion. Mr. Rawsron: Will you state, Mr. Egan, how long this work will
take? [

Mr. Ecax: Well, gentlemen, my average mail is forty-two thousand letters
a month: forty to forty-two. I have thirty-one men employed on that task,
and to cover that which is asked for to-day will mean engaging temporary
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officials to take their place for at least four to six months. I cannot tell you
definitely what I can do in the shape of giving you facts in detail as to the
sponsors et cetra. What I can do is to prepare a statement of the order of
yesterday’s, in so far as I can, from the files, dating from 1920. If I take ten
or twelve men only to work on the task, it will take at least five or six months.
I notice the all-wise people, in one or two editorials, suggest that our filing
system must be in a very peculiar unbusinesslike shape if we cannot do it in
a very much quicker time. As a matter of fact, we have had only cross entries
for certain purposes. If something is granted within the law it goes in as an
every day affair and filed only under the name of the individual to whom it
18 granted. Therefore, we will have to pull every file in the Department,
which means hundreds of thousands of filles, to take me back to 1920. As long
as it is only for the next session of your Committee, at the next session of Par-
liament I can have it ready for you.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: What I want to get from you is this: can you give
us the number coming in month by month?

Mr. Ecan: I think that is almost an impossible task.

Hon. Mr. Ratston: Can you get it by the usual statistical years?

Mr. Ecan: Yes, I can do that. What we would have to do is to go over
all the files and get certain facts. Then we would have to divide them into
yearly proportions. If you ask me to go over the facts and divide them into
monthly statements I can do it from the very beginning but it would entail a
longer period of time in doing it and I am afraid that it would not be com-
plete, I must plead guilty to the fact that I cannot tell you just what the shape
of all the files is previous to my taking hold of them.

Mr. Browx: Could you make up that information of the total number
fﬁhaﬁ would come in in any fiscal year, with the names of the members or other
Individuals who have made the applications, to provide something for com-
parison with what you have given yesterday

Mr. Ecan: Yes, I can do that, but it will take a long time. It means
pulling every file in the Department back to 1920 and perhaps beyond that,
because it may so happen that an original Continental resident of Canada may
have made an application in 1919 and it may only have been granted in 1922,
after several appeals, or after he had been here a longer time in the country.
To get the results for 1920 and 1921 T may have to back in our files beyond
1920; in fact not may, but I will have to go back.

Mr. Lucas: Mr. Chairman, I was the one who made the suggestion in
regard to month by month. I thought when you were picking out these files
1t possibly would not require any more work to give it month by month than
year by year. Now, after hearing what the Deputy Minister has said, I am
Prepared to withdraw that request for the information month by month, if we
can have it for a vearly period.

Mr. Ecax: Yes. It means eight times the work of doing it as above; and
and it would mean ninety-six times if I do it month by month.

Mr. Lucas: I thought it would not be any more labour, if you had the
figures, to do it month by month; but year by year will satisfy me.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: I may say to the Deputy Minister that while we are
putting a lot of responsibility and work upon him he may probably get some
satisfaction out of the thought that he will be relieving the unemployment
Sltuation to a certain extent.

- teI:Ir. Ecean: I hope you will not forget that if T come to you for extra esti-
ates.
_ Hon. Mr. Fork: I hope the Doctor will not object when it comes to the
estimates.
65927—10
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Hon. Mr. Epwarps: No, not after that.

Hon. Mr. Rarstox: I would like to point out to the Committee that in
the record we have the return which was asked for by Dr. Edwards or by
Mr. Cahan; in the early part of the session they asked for a statement of those
coming in from the continent. It will be found in the record at pages 164 to
169, that is, by fiscal years. It begins with the fiscal year ended March 31,
1920. I suggest that this return be along this line for the same fiscal year begin-
ning with the fiscal year of March 31, 1920, but with the additional feature
Dr. Edwards speaks of, namely, those who are responsible for them.

Wirness: Yes.

The Caamrman: Dr. Edwards’ motion is, beginning with the fiscal year
March 31st, 19207

Hon. Mr. Ratston: Beginning with the fiscal year ending March 31,
1920, and for each year since,

Hon. Mr. Forke: 1919-1920.

Hon. Mr. RaLstox: For the fiscal year ending March 31, 1919.

The Cramrmax: Dating back to the beginning of the fiscal year ending
March 31, 1920.

Mr. Youne (Saskatoon): Mr. Chairman, I am one of those who like to
have any information whatever that will be of service to this Committee, in
dealing with this question, but I would like to ask Dr. Edwards this: What
will really be gained by a matter of this kind? The only thing I am think-
ing of is the endless amount of work, or the almost endless amount of work
that will be involved. It will cost a great deal of money. If there was any
purpose in it, I would say, let us have it by all means. If Dr. Edwards would
let us know what advantage we might, get from this increased work, I think
we would feel much freer in having this large amount of money expended in
this particular thing. If there is something, let us have it. I was not here
before 1925, and I am not familiar with the question before that time, but
we have before us a return made yesterday, which brought down all the per-
mits issued, and all the sponsors, and even now I am not able to see just what
bearing it has on the whole case. What I heard in the way of rumours was that
somebody was trafficking in these permits. I find no evidence of any such
thing happening. I would like to ask Dr. Edwards to be good enough to tell
us what is to be gained by this additional work. :

Hon. Dr. Epwarps: The same question might have been put before this
Committee by the resolution which brought the return, which was brought
down by Mr. Egan yesterday; the same question might have been put as Mr.
Young puts now. I indicated or gave a reason—perhaps it is too strong to
dignify it with the name of a reason or just cause—but I said yesterday or
intimated that I believed that in the past men not responsible to Parliament
at all had obtained admission into Canada, not of ones, twos, or dozens, but of
fifties, seventy-fives and hundreds. I have reason to believe that that is so, and
I want to know whether it is so or not. I cannot make it as a positive state-
ment of fact, but from what I have heard, I believe it to be the case, and I want
to know whether it is true or not. If that is the way we have been getting
our immigration into this country, we want to know it. We had a case yes-
terday where in 1926, when things were supposed to be tightened up, and these
permits were issued to responsible members of Parliament, 300 were brought in
at one crack, Italians. I do not want to say anything against Italians, bub
Italians are Italians. Those from the Northern part of Italy are good farmers,
I believe, and they are very different from the people in the South of Italy,
very different indeed. If we have returns showing admissions granted to
responsible men, 145 members of Parliament, and some not members of Parlia-
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ment, it is my belief that in times past those not responsible to Parliament
at all were allowed to bring in batches of men from 75 to 100, and I want te
find out whether that is so or not. '

Mr. Grex: Mr. Chairman, my recollection in regard to the inquiry into
these permits was on the ground that members of Parliament were interested
in permits, not referring back to 1920, but to present members of Parliament.
I am in the position of not having had any issued to me, and I really do not
see, Mr. Chairman, what possible gain is going to be obtained for the country
in raking up things that happened away back in 1920. What I believed was
the purpose of this inquiry was simply whether we should find some way or
some method by which permits should be regulated in the future. What
was produced by Mr. Egan yesterday showed that there was no trafficking
as was alleged througout the country and for that reason I shall vote against
the motion.

Mr. Brown: I thought, Mr. Chairman, that when this other list was
produced it would tend to allay suspicions that had been aroused in the minds
of the people of the country that something illegal had been going on by mem-
bers of Parliament trafficking in permits. I think the Committee are satisfied
that in the granting of these letters of admission there was nothing illegal, that
there was nothing immoral, and that there was nothing that we should feel
ourselves called upon to condemn. For that reason I thought I should vote
against the resolution at that time. If Dr. Edwards would give us his suspicion
that the permits granted in the past were illegal, then, we will have some ground
for going back and investigating them. I know of course, the danger that con-
fronts us, it will be said that we are afraid to go back; it is only fear of public
opinion that has led us to go back as far as we have gone.

Some hon. MemMBERS: Hear, hear!

Mr. BrownN: Are we prepared to sacrifice or to expend what will mean a
very large sum of money to get information which I think we are pretty well
convinced will be useless information when we get it? We are just in this
position to-day; we are so much afraid of public opinion that we are afraid that
it will be said that we were afraid to go back. That is the situation as I see it.

Mr. Arraurs: Dr. Edwards’ motion is for the purpose of clearing up the
debated question whether permits should be allowed at all or not.

Some hon. MeMmBERS: No, no.

Mr. Artaurs: That is one of the questions we have been discussing, and
the question is whether we made a wise move when we added the present Order
i Council to take the place of or to amend P.C. 183. TUnder P.C. 183, there
were as many, or, as has been intimated, large numbers of permits were issued
under P.C. 183; there is no doubt about that. I think the Committee would
like to learn whether this has been a forward move, or whether the permit
system should be cut out altogether. I think that is the primary idea behind
Dr. Edwards’ motion, and I am prepared to support the motion. I think we
should find out whether we have the best system of admitting these desirable
and undesirable people.

Wrrngss: If T might be permitted to say a word in reference to Dr.
Edwards’ suggestion as to these permits being granted in batches of 25, 30, 40,
50 or 100 by the Department, I can assure him right now that there has been
Do such thing granted by the Department since 1923, in bulks.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: You granted them in 1926, to the extent of 300.

Wrirngss: Those were on ministerial instructions, not departmental.

By Mvr. Bancroft:

Q. Who was the Minister?—A. Sir Henry Drayton. Those were on min-

isterial instructions. I am speaking now of the Department only.
65927—10} :
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Hon. Mr. Epwarps: I would like to say just a word in reply to Mr. Brown.
Since we have already advertised to the world our cowardice, or fear of publi¢
opinion, which amounts to the same thing, in trying to clear the skirts of the
members of the present Parliament, it will not make much difference, so far
as our reputation for cowardice is concerned if we go back and give a clearance
to members of Parliament who have preceded us. If Mr. Brown thinks it was
a shaking fear of public opinion that led us to ask for what we heard yesterday,
if that is so, we are cowards in the sight of public, and we might as well be a
little more cowardly and go back a little farther.

Mr. McMiLLAN: As a member of the Committee, Mr. Chairman, if that is
the idea that prompts us, the fear of public opinion, in going back farther, we
are not fit to be here.

Some hon. MEmBERs: Hear, hear!

Mr. McMiuran: As far as I am concerned, I have lived long enough in
the world to feel that if I am doing what I think is right, public opinion does
not make very much difference to me.

“This above all; to thine own self be true, and it must follow as the
night the day, thou canst not then be false to any man.”

I was rather in favour of Dr. Edwards’ motion before we heard the return
yesterday, but after hearing the return yesterday, and, coming to my opinion
as to the facts elicited, I am not in favour of spending money to go back any
farther..

Mr. VaLrance: As a member of the Committee, Mr. Chairman, I abso-
lutely agree with what Mr. McMillan has said. The inquiry was in regard
to members of Parliament who were supposed to be trafficking in permits. The
evidence yesterday brought down by the Deputy Minister of Immigration
cleared that away, and had this motion of Dr. Edwards not been introduced,
I believe the public at large would have been satisfied with the statement
given yesterday. But now that this motion is made, I question whether they
will be. I see no reason why we should go back and do what Dr. Edwards
suggests.

Mr. Sporron: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that we go back as far as
public opinion in Ontario demands it. We have a Liberal newspaper in
Toronto known as “The Globe”, a wonderful paper, which wants every moral
issue to come out four square. The Toronto Globe’s editorial yesterday tells
us that we should go back of 1919 or 1920, and the independent press and the
Liberal press all through the province of Ontario are demanding that we go
back. Even on the Deputy Minister’s figures, it is only going to cost $3,000,
$4.000, or $5,000 to do it—people can read over files at $50 or $60 a month.

An Hon. MemBer: More like $100 a month.

Mr. Srorron: It does not take a stenographer, a book-keeper or a private
secretary to go over the files, but we will say $100 a month to suit some of the
members of this Committee. Say for five months, it would be about $5,000.
In this age, when we are pouring millions through the hopper, what will a few
thousands of dollars mean in order to clear away this suspicion, to clear away
what the editor of “The Globe” demands should be cleared away.

Mr. CameBern: It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that there is nothing
improper or wrong in this Committee, showing fear of public opinion. I would
be ashamed of this Committee if we did not show some fear of public opinion.
We are here to bow to public opinion in this country, and if we evade this,
we are only going against public opinion, and not doing our duty. Just because
Dr. Edwards has raised the question, if for no other reason, I think we should
go back, because certainly if this motion is defeated to-day, it will create a
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certain amount of suspicion in the minds of people in this country. It will be
asked, “what is the idea of us so far holding this investigation?” It is to allay
suspicion in the minds of the public in regard to the Immigration Department.
It is investigating the whole question of immigration, and, as Dr. Edwards
says, we want to decide whether we have a good system of carrying on immi-
gration or not. Certainly we should go back, as it is proposed. I think we
have a perfect right to go back as far as we possibly can.

Mr. Bancrorr: I do not know all of these independent papers in Ontario,
but I do read some of the papers published in different parts of Canada, and
I have seen newspaper articles bringing up another feature of the matter,
namely, that we have allowed this permit question to drag us away from the
real work of the Committee, and the idea of bringing forward a proposal of
some constructive kind before Parliament, has been lost sight of in pursuing
this question of permits.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: May I say this, in reply to Mr. Spotton, that we will
get evidence that will assist us on the permit question. We have in the return
now the men who obtained letters of admission and we know the number of
people coming in, and we will get this additional evidence if the Committee
says so.

Mr. Lucas: I quoted yesterday from the report showing that a large
number from non-preferred countries came in last year without permits.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: A large number came in under the railway agreement.
We have that to consider. For any gentleman to make the statement that this
1s going to help us to arrive at a decision as to whether we will continue per-
mits or not, that will be of no value at all. I am one of those who are in
favour of getting these returns; I would ask for them in the House of Com-
mons. If they are going to be of any value in satisfying public opinion, or
f’:he press, I am in favour of the proposal. But it cannot be got in three months;
1t can be prepared during recess, for next session of Parliament. I think we are
wasting a lot of time over it; we might as well go ahead and have the returns
brought, down.
. Mr. Brown: I am prepared to let it go, and when the time comes, I will be
In a position to say, “I told you so.”

Mr. Axperson (Halton): The question of permits should not have been
gone into at all unless we mtended to go into it fully and have the returns ready.

am prepared to support the motion.

The CuairmMaN: Is the committee ready for the motion?
On a standing vote the motion was declared carried; 22 for; 7 against.

W. J. Egax, called.

The Wirnmss: Yesterday, Mr. Cahan moved that the file of S. Kolchin
be laid on the table. This is the file; the letter with the corner turned down
refers to the application. Shall I read the correspondence.

Hon. Mr. Ratstox: May I suggest that the original file be left with the
committee and any member can have aceess to it, and then the original can be
taken back by Mr. Egan and a copy substituted later on.

Mr. Campeenn: It will not be embodied in the records?

The CuarMAN: No.

Hon. Mr. Rauston: I saw this file before we met, and there are two
letters there which will give the gist of the whole thing. They might be read.

Letter from Messrs. MeMurray & Company to Mr. Gellay, read and filed.

Letter from Mr. Gellay to Department read and filed.

Letter from Department to Mr. Gellay read and filed.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. Is that the application for which $75 in fees was paid?—A. That I know
nothing of.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Before we leave the permit question I would like to ask a question or
two. The agreement of the railways has been brought before this committee on
several occasions. Does that apply to the western Provinces or to the whole
of Canada?—A. The whole of Canada. !

Q. Then under the terms of the agreement of the railways, all that is
required is assured employment?—A. At farm work.

Q. Oh no. Do you mean to say that none are brought in except farmers?—
A. You are asking about the railway agreement, as to who are brought in?
That is a different thing. The railway agreement calls for the farmers or farm
labourers with assured farm employment to be placed by the railways in Canada
at that work.

Q. Do they follow that work?—A. Not always.

Q. In other words, if an application comes to a member of Parliament,
he can avoid all responsibility—if any—Dby handing it over to the nearest
railway or steamship agent, and have the man brought in through that channel?
—A. Not now.

Q. Since when?—A. This year.

. Q. By what means have you stopped that?—A. Because our officers decide
as to the qualifications of the man for farm work. For the first two years of
the railway agreement, they did not.

Q. What officers?—A. The Canadian Government officers.

Q. Where?—A. At Paris, at Riga, at Danzig, at Rotterdam and at Ham-
burg—five in all.

Q. And by what series of questions does he inquire into and acquire the
knowledge of whether these men are liable to go on the farms or not?—A. It is
not so much a question of liability, as to whether or not in his judgment he is
able to fulfil the task. A man must be physically fit—

Q. That applies under the general law. A man must be physically fit
to get into the country at all.—A. There are two lines of physical fitness. My
purpose 18 to be as concize as possible and yet I am asked questions which
require long explanation.

Hon. Mr. Forge: You had better begin at the beginning; the examination
which takes place by the railway agent, and the immigration officers, etc.

The Wirxess: We have been over that so often that I thought Mr. Arthurs
was familiar with it. In answer to Mr. Arthurs, when I said “physically fit”,
I presumed he received the message I was trying to convey. I mean physically
fit of the farm type, and not tradesmen in some other kinds of work, such as
watehmakers, or clerks behind the counters. The whole proposition works
out in this way, that before he secures the certificate from the railway official
from the country from which he is coming, the railway official has investigated
him as to his ability in that direction, and very carefully this year, because that
man is liable to be sent back from the port at which he arrives on the Continent,
if that officer has any doubts at all as to his intentions. The officer can tell
within five minutes, or even within two minutes, whether this man intends to
go to the United States, and not stay in Canada at all, and he may then ask him
for his documents, or whether he has made an application in the past year to be
vised into the United States, but if a man is apparently fit for farm life and
farm labour, he allows him to pass.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: In the report of the Minister for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 1926, out of the total immigrants arriving at ocean ports, 77,286,

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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only about one-half are designated as of the farming class. There are, roughly,
4,000 labouring class; roughly, 4,000 of mechanics, and only about one-half of
the farming class.

The Wirness: From the continent?

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Arriving at Ocean Ports?—A. Is that British and preferred countries,
. or non-preferred countries?
Q. I presume all of them (handing booklet to witness).—A. That is all of
them. You do not require them to be of the farming class from any preferred
country or the United Kingdom.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. The main entries under the railway agreement are largely from non-
preferred countries?—A. Entirely so.

Q. I have in my room the figures for the C.P.R., which show they brought
in approximately 40,000 under this agreement, of whom less than one-fourth
were British. The balance would be from non-preferred countries?—A. Not
if you are taking the total number they carried.

Hon. Mr. Forke: There are no British under the railway agreement.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. It is no doubt true—and I think the Minister will bear me out in this—
that the large proportion of the men brought in by the railways previous to this
year have been employed in other than farm work. I might go so far as to say
even a majority of them. Do you think that the present agreement will cut
that out?—A. Undoubtedly it will help to.

Q. If s0, in what manner will the railways get the labour they must have
for construction and labouring work on the railways? From what source will
they secure that labour?—A. I think perhaps the balance of the employment
of which you speak as not being labourers will pretty well fit into any industrial
requirements for this year and next year. ‘

Hon. Mr. Forkr: The complaint we have is that the newcomers are going
onto the farms, but as soon as they have been here a year they do not go back
to the farms, but into other employment.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: They get into the country under the plea of going on
the farms, and then leave the land the next year?

Hon. Mr. Forgr: We may as well face it; that is the idea..

Mr. ArTaURs: Does that apply generally to these non-preferred countries?

Hon. Mr. Forge: Oh, yes.

Mr. Lucas: - What is the date of the first railway agreement?

Hon. Mr. RaLstoN: September 1, 1925.

The Wirness: The 1st of September, 1925; it went into operation for the
spring of 1926.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: I might suggest that Mr. Egan has a considerable
amount of information to give to the committee, and some in rebuttal of state-
ments which have been made and I think it would be well to get that information
and then spend some time in questioning him on any matters in which the
members are interested. -

Mr. Fansuer (Last Mountain): Does any of this information touch upon
the railway agreement? ‘

The Wirness: I do not know of anything I am covering now relating to
the railway agreement.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain):

Q. I would like to ask if you have had any instances brought to your
attention in connection with the railway agreement not working out satisfactorily
in any number of instances?—A. Yes, time after time. That is why they have
been checked up.

Q. I drew that from your remarks yesterday, but I was confused by your
discussion this morning. In what respect has that not worked out? These
men have not gone on the land or not been properly accounted for? Take that
case in Calgary where there were five signed by one working in an office who
had no intention to taking these people as they came out.—A. That'is a very
different thing altogether.

Q. I have here a complaint that came to my notice, and I think it should
be placed on the record for the information of the committee. It is a letter
written to me in connection with a village where seven Czecho-Slovakians were
put off at the station, supposed to go on farms, and no one in the vicinity was
there to receive them. This is a letter addressed to myself from the Secretary-
Treasurer of the village of Earl Grey, under date of May 1, 1928. These men
were brought in in May, 1927, just a year ago, and I want to bring this to your
attention because I have had several instances brought to my notice, but this is
the only one with whom I have corresponded. (Reads):

Earl Grey, Sask., May 5, 1928.

“Mr. W. R. FansHER, M.P.,
Ottawa, Ont.

Re Andrew Micklek Indigent Immigrant.

Dear Sir,—I am instructed by the village council to ask you to
bring forcibly to the attention of the Minister of Immigration the posi-
tion this small village has been forced into through the C.P.R. dumping
the above-mentioned in the village in May, 1927, without any provision
for his maintenance and his subsequent admission to the Qu’Appelle
Sanatorium at the expense of the village.

You will note by the copy of letter from the Commissioner of Immi-
gration date April 2nd that he was accepted as an agricultural labourer
and although he has been a year in the country he has not done one tap
of farm work. You will also note by the affidavit of W. H. Wagner that
there were seven men dumped here at the same time. They were all from
Czechoslovakia, could not speak one word of English and were entirely
without funds when they arrived.

Wagner had lived in the Ukraine in early life and was the only man
who could talk to them, hence their dependence on him.

He says of the seven, one is working in Woodstock, Ont., as a machin-
ist, two are in factories in Montreal, Miklek is in the Sanatorium and the
other three may be at farm work, but the C.P.R. is still bringing them
in as farm labourers.

The Commissioner of Immigration was notified by A. B. Cook of
the Sanatorium on February 15, with a view to having the man deported
but apparently the Department is in no hurry so long as the village pays.

In addition to the $350 which has been charged up to the village by
the Sanatorium, we are supporting a Canadian and his family, the father
being sick with diabetes. This makes the Village Aid and Relief bill
since last November some $800 or four dollars for every man, woman
and child in the village.”

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Now this situation, as I understand it, and I have reports from these workers,
is repeated in several localities, and the Railway evidently is not accepting any
responsibility for such cases as this. These people cannot afford to pay $12
per capita in one year for assistance. If it were a case of their own residents,
that would be a different matter, but here is a case where the man was brought
over; it is said that he had tubercular glands and was under the doctor’s treat-
ment within a few days after his arrival. This case is a serious one and I wish
to bring it before the Committee so as to give them some idea of what some
communities have to contend with under this agreement.

Q. I wish to ask Mr. Egan if this has been brought to his attention. I
understand they are doing everything in their power since it was brought to
their attention to rectify the matter—A. There is only one point in connec-
tion with this communication that I would like to clear up, Mr. Fansher. But
before doing that I think it is just as well if I may suggest this: that the
railway agreement came into force not only because the railways were working
towards that particular purpose but because of the desire to co-operate with
the railways in their efforts to get immigrants. I remember so well my first
experience and how nervous I was on the floor of the House with my estimates
and how unanimous every side of the House was and every group in the House
was, that something ought to be done to co-operate with the railways for the
bringing in of people for farm settlement. I know that my Minister discussed
the thing with me on several occasions and I know the railways were working
towards it and I am satisfied that when I received my instructions from my

inister, he was convinced that the spirit of the purpose which seemed to
animate the House in discussing my estimates, as to the desirability of a co-
operation of this kind, would be carried out. I have no doubt that the rail-
ways met with a great deal of difficulty by this everlasting sub-agent in the
back country district over there, just the same as this difficulty you speak of
In Edmonton. I have no doubt at all, I am convinced that the operation of
the railway agreement in the first instance, giving them power of selection, was
a mistake; but like every experiment, on finding the mistake we have checked
it. I think from a business point of view that the railway agreement was a
wonderful proposition. But I think the railways as business men were foolish
from the business point of view; because if they had grasped that opportunity
for rea] farm labour placing, or bringing farmers for settlement, and confined
1t to the four or five or six thousand they would have had by now a working
proposition that would have meant real wealth of farm help required in the
country, and in a bigger way; but they did make the mistake of listening to
the call of a great many of these affidavits on this side, which to them appeared
assured employment. Now after having gone through that experience in the
ﬁrst_year, we had that promised last year that they would guard that and we
continued the agreement as it was, with some little alterations such as you
Will find in your book, and this year the Minister took the stand that the
railway agreement was still a useful proposition, but it would have to be
cheqked up by the officials of this Department in respect to the men that were
ctoming in. It may be that even this year, although the numbers are con-
siderably less from the Continent, we may have some difficulty of that kind,
but we" are really tending towards something which means a co-operation
towards the fulfilling of the requirements. That, T am convinced of, and that
Wwas the purpose of the railway agreement. I think it was a good intention,
and if it had been held in bounds along, to my mind, business lines, it would
have been a better proposition to-day both for Canada and for the interested
transportation companies placing people along their lines. I may have gone
too far afield in giving this practical and policy proposition; I am afraid I
have stepped too far, but T wanted to make it clear from the beginning to the

end what its purpose was.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Carmichael:
Q. Is this the third year?—A. Yes, this is the third year.

By Mr. Fansher:

Q. I appreciate very much Mr. Egan’s remarks but the point I wanted to
raise here was that the railways, as I understood it, were being held responsible
for the people that they brought out, and evidently they are evading their
responsibility in this particular instance, which is duplicated all over the
different communities in my constituency, at least.—A. The responsibility which
they have undertaken is the placement of these men as farm labourers. That,
you heard, they are prepared to undertake here. I am not going to try to dis-
cuss in any way the responsibility of assuming local charges because one could
easily balance the ledger by telling of the two hundred that had been well
settled in one district.

Q. I was not confining it to a specific charge. I was making the general
statement and using this letter to back it up.—A. Your local authorities out
there, in their letter, have suggested in connection with the moving of these
;]nen—you were good enough to let me see those papers—that we were in no

urry.

Mr. Browx: Mr. Chairman, may I make a suggestion? We have had it
indicated to us by Mr. Stewart—and Mr. Egan indicated it himself—that they
had an immense amount of information to give us in a general way concerning
the workings of the department. He has started on two or three occasions to
give us that information and each time he has been side-tracked and led away
on to subjects introduced by different members. Now until Mr. Egan presents
that clear statement of the affairs of his department and what they have been
doing I suggest that the members of the Committee observe a self-denying
ordinance—I know it will be hard for some members to do that—and refuse to
interrupt until Mr. Egan has had a chance to make a general statement of the
affairs of his department, that we are so anxious to hear.

The CuairMaN: I think the suggestion of Mr. Brown is very good.

The Wirness: For the information of Mr. Fansher—and I know he will be
good enough to hand it on to the secretary-treasurer of the village of Earl Grey
—they state that the department is no hurry to deport the man referred to so
long as the village pays. That is again an uncharitable interpretation of the
fact. My officer tells me that this is really ridiculous, that we delayed deporta-
tion. In such cases we deport as quickly as possible. In the present case the
man cannot be moved, that is the reason. We ordered his deportation and we are
prepared to deport him, but if you cannot move him that is the end of it.

Mr. Chairman, I purpose now submitting to you first some data for your
own observation in coming to your conclusions in connection with nominations
and assisted passages as dealt with by the department. I have presumed in
one or two cases to give a little more detail than the actual subject that I am
covering.

TRANSPORTATION AND EMPIRE SETTLEMENT

The cost of transportation is one of the biggest factors affecting
immigration from the British Isles and Europe. Before the war a third
class passage from a port in the British Isles to a port in Canada cost
approximately $32; from continental ports, $33. To-day the cost is
$87.50 from the British Isles and from the nearest continental port,
$112.50.

Before the war a settler, his wife and three children under twelve
vears of age could move from a port in the British Isles to Halifax, St.
John, or Quebec for $112 and to Winnipeg for $160. To-day the cost
[Mr. W. J.-Egan.]
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for the same journey (if unaided under any government scheme) to
ocean ports is $306 and to Winnipeg $381. If the family came from
Europe the pre-war cost was $115 to Atlantic ports or $163 to Winnipeg.
Present costs are $450 to $525 respectively.

Such increases present a serious barrier to both British and European
settlers. To many excellent families, through no fault of their own,
such prices are absolutely prohibitive. Others, in moderate circumstances,
are able to pay the transportation rates, but after doing so they have
little left for settlement in Canada. Families well able to pay present
costs of ocean transportation are not inclined to move in any large
numbers.

Pursuant to the Empire Settlement Act of Great Britain passed in 1922, an
Assisted Passage Agreement was negotiated between the British Government and
the Dominion Government. The first Empire Settlement Agreements provided
for loans, in whole or in part, to farmers, farm labourers and household workers.
Under the present Agreement, loans in whole or in part are still made to families.

There are no loans to single farm labourers who receive the reduced rate.

Where considered necessary and advisable, however, loans to be shared
equémlly by the British Government and the Dominion Government, may still be
made to

(a) families, but not exceeding the reduced rate.

(b) household workers, but only to the amount of the difference between
the minimum ocean rate and the migrant’s contribution to the ultimate
destination, provided that the loan shall not exceed £6. This means that
a migrant who pays an ocean fare of only £2 to Halifax, does not receive
a loan, but a migrant destined to Vancouver may receive a loan not
exceeding £6.

Loans are free of interest and are repayable by instalments as determined in
the circumstances of each case.

The Assisted Passage Agreement is applicable from the 1st of January,
1927, until the 31st of December, 1928. All migrants are approved both by a
representative of the Department of Immigration and by a representative of the
Oversea Settlement Committee.

Assistance is given towards the cost of passages to persons, male and female,
provided that they are—

(a) accompanied overseas in the case of married men by their wives and

children, and in the case of widowers or widows by their children;

(b) have been nominated by the Dominion Government or its Agents, or

by British subjects resident in Canada;

(¢) have been nominated by any Provincial Government in Canada or its

Agents, or by any organization approved for this purpose;

(d) are migrating to settle upon the land or are women approved as house-

hold workers;

(e) have been otherwise approved as suitable settlers;

provided that in exceptional cases where the Secretary of State and the
ominion Government, consider it advisable, arrangements may be made for

married men to proceed under this Agreement in advance of their wives and/or

children, and for widowers and widows to proceed in advance of their children.

Adults.—Assistance towards the cost of transportation of adults takes the
form of a free grant of a proportion of the cost of the lowest third class rate
from the port of embarkation in the United Kingdom to the railway destination

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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in Canada, so that the rate chargeable to the migrant is based upon the follow-
ing schedule to the centres mentioned:—

Destination Amount Regular Fare —

Halifax, St. John and Quebec................... 2 - - 18 15 -
Montreal, via Quebec, St. John or Halifax. ..... 3 - - 19 15 5 |(via Quebec)
20 15 - [(via St. John)
b or Halifax
Toronto, via Quebec, St. John or Halifax. ..... 310 - 21 17 1 ((via Quebec)
22 7 11 |(via St. John, Halifax)
L e ey Sy SRR e A N e 410 - 2319 2
24 14 2 ((Regina)
Regina, Moose Jaw or Saskatoon................ 5 - - 24 15 10 [(Moose Jaw)
25 1 8 [(Saskatoon)
Calgray'or BAMOBton: . osi” 7o Jhicabay ddee 510 - 25 14 2
VaNOCOUVOT ... s« oiissp<scbsonssbagsaens abassionnas 8 - - 28 7 9

(The reduced rate is given only to adults within the meaning of the Agree-
ment, i.e., those over 17 years of age who are coming to Canada to work on the
land or to engage in household work.)

Ezxplanation of the £2 Rate.

The Dominion Government gives a cash contributionof.................... 310 0
The Steamship Companies givearebateof................covviiiiininnn... 4 00
710 0

Bl Covarnment oGBBEION. . o5 210 i dig v iniebdan on segbdeee e s gmdomey 710 0
e S R St TR S ST N NI W e £...15.0..0

In addition to the cash contribution of £3.10. the Dominion Government
also contributes settlement service of an estimated average of £6.0.0 per
migrant on account of aftercare.

Erample No. 1 —Reduced fare for migrant going to Halifax.

Halifax—regularocean fare...........oviiv ieieiinonuiivieiaiie s snnansias. £ 1815 0

Joint equation as shownabove.......................oooo0ae £ 15 0

British cash payment as equation for after-care............... 115 0 16 15 0
£ .2.00

Regular fare to Winnipeg.........ooveueeresiiiiiiiciiminviieeaoiiiineian.. £4.23.18 2

Joint equatION U8 BROWIWADOVE. .. . . .~ ..t 2 v cccvrzsiwscosDiose 21670 0

British cash payment as equation for after-care............... 4,912 1949 £
£ 410 0

In other words, the British Government equates by a cash payment the
rebate of £4.10. by the Steamship Companies, the cash payment of £3.10. by
the Department and aftercare service by the Department on an estimated

average of £6 per migrant.

The reduced rate increased the number of Empire Settlement migrants from
8,408 in 1925-26, to 20,247 in 1926-27.

Ottawa, March 19, 1928.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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NOMINATIONS

Assisted Passage in accordance with the terms set out above may be granted
(inter alia) to approved migrants who have been nominated for this privilege
by the Dominion Government or its Agents, or by British subjects resident in
Canada.

Nominations are of three kinds:—

Personal or Direct,
Descriptive,
Bulk.

A personal or direct nomination is that which a British subject resident
in Canada makes for a known British subject resident in the British Isles, by
name. Residents of Irish Free State territory are not in general eligible for
assisted passages because the Irish Free State 1s not a party to the Agreement.

A descriptive nomination is that which a British subject resident in Canada
makes for a British subject resident in the British Isles, exclusive of the Free
State, giving only a description of the help he requires and not naming any
particular person.

Bulk nomination is the system under which assisted passages are granted
to certain migrants approved by Departmental Agents in the British Isles,
exclusive of the Irish Free State.

The following classes of prospective migrants may be nominated:—

(a) Families who will engage in farming or work on the land.

(b) Single men to be employed as farm labourers.

(¢) Household workers to be employed in domestic service.

From the above it will be observed that “direct” and * descriptive”
nominations may broadly be classified as “ Nominations Arising in Canada,”
and Bulk Nomination “ Nominations Arising Overseas.”

Hereunder is a brief resumé of the procedure now in use by the Department
for dealing with nominations under these headings.

NOMINATIONS ARISING IN CANADA

Special forms for the use of nominators are available on application to all
Dominion Government Immigration and Land Settlement Officials, many repre-
sentatives of Provincial Governments, all chartered banks in Canada and the
representatives throughout the country of the two railroad systems. Copies of
the forms in use are attached.

Publicity is being given to the Scheme through advertising in the Public
Press and through the active efforts of the Field Staff of the Department by
personal contact. In addition the co-operation.of the Transportation Companies,
th\e' Hudson’s Bay Company, the Salvation Army, the Church of England, the
Umtegi Church of Canada, the Eastern Townships Emigration Society and other
organizations has been secured. Attached is a copy of Departmental announce-
ment apearing in the Press, and a copy of an official leaflet issued by the
Department and distributed widely throughout the Dominion.

The procedure in dealing with the individual cases is as follows:—

The nominator, frequently with the assistance of the Departmental staff,
completes and signs the form. The settlement arrangements proposed are
Immediately investigated, if not already known, by the Land Settlement Branch
of the Department, and the form is forwarded with the recommendation of
the District Superintendent to the Head Office at Ottawa. On receipt here
the nomination is perused by an experienced Official, approval or otherwise is
gven, and if the formier the nomination is endorsed and despatched overseas
on the day of its receipt at Head Office.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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The necessity for investigation in these cases may not at once be apparent.
The Scheme, however, is made possible only by the contributions of public
funds from the Treasuries of Canada and Great Britain. Upon the Department,
therefore, rests the responsibility to the taxpayers of both countries to insure
that the Scheme is not abused and that only those properly entitled under the
Agreement are accorded its privileges.

“Nominations Arising Overseas” (Bulk)

Under this heading the Department deals with all cases of prospective
migrants who intend to engage at farm or domestic employment, who have not
been nominated from Canada, but for whom it has reasonable assurance of
immediate placement on arrival at adequate wages.

For the current season the Department is permitting virtually an open door
to all British migrants coming under these classes.

The Department has conducted a survey through its Land Settlement
Branch to determine the absorption power of the community for the types of
worker covered by the Agreement, resulting in a notification to its Overseas
Agents that it will assume responsibility for the placement of all single experi-
enced farm labourers that can be recruited through Departmental media. It has
in addition assumed responsibility for the placement at farm work by its
Land Settlement Branch of 150 married couples without children.

The placement of married couples with children presents difficulties largely
on account of the housing shortage and inability of the average farmer to pay
wages sufficient to board and clothe a family. For families nominated by
Departmental Agents, therefore, the procedure is to send forward full par-
ticulars to Canada and to secure promise of definite placement before sailing.

In addition to the sources of recruitment residing in the Department itself
through its regular representatives in Great Britain, the Overseas Offices of
the Railway Companies, the Hudson’s Bay Company and other organizations
co-operate actively in Bulk Nomination.

During the winter various organizations notified the Department through
its Land Settlement Branch of their ability to place at farm employment families
and single men as under:—

Families Single Men

Canadian National Railways.. .. .. .. .. 200 4,500
Canadian Pacific Railway.. .. .. .. .. .. 500 3,500
TR S A ek el gt g il Sttt (i e 1,350
B MOA(Umbed @hurelt) 25 03 oo vo oo g - 300
31 iy R i e o 173 R e R e s e i 150

This number has been increased since this memorandum was prepared by
another 150.

(Reading) :

Salvation Army, 200.

To insure against overlapping and possible saturation of the market at any
paticular point, the Land Settlement Branch conducted a survey throughout
the country resulting in Departmental approval for recruitment through the
Organizations named up to the full extent of their various requests.

In addition to the above the Department, by special arrangement with the
Province of Ontario, permits the movement to that Province under Bulk
Nomination of as many farm labourers and families as can adequately be
absorbed under Provincial auspices.

Orrawa, March 17th, 1928.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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NOMINATE BRITISH SETTLERS FOR ASSISTED PASSAGES

CanapA WANTS MoORE BRITISH AGRICULTURAL FAMILIES, FARM WORKERS AND
House WORKERS

Take advantage of your privileges as a British subject to nominate and
thus help other British subjects from the United Kingdom who desire to come
to Canada.

The Empire Settlement Passage Agreement offers the following rates to
persons over seventeen:—

To Halifax, St. John or To Regina, Moose Jaw or
Quebec. . SR O Saskatoon: . v €S 040
Montreal.. .. . st B D D) Calgary or :
R OL DN s ne S ol =) Bdmnontons. - e ot 00
WINDIDED o ey ) v i A VanCouver. .. i e aaid. 2 0- 0

Children under seventeen years of the approved classes receive free passage

How T0 NOMINATE

Secure the nomination form from your bank manager, any Immigration or
Land Settlement official, any Provincial District Agricultural representative
or a representative of a transportation company. (There are certain forms
for families, farm workers and house workers).. Fill in the nomination form
and send it to your nearest Land Settlement office (See address below). Nom-
Ination may be made by name or by deseription.

The District Superintendents of the Land Settlement Branch are located
at St. John, N.B.; Sherbrooke, P.Q.; Toronto, Ont.; Winnipeg, Man.; Regina,
Saskatoon and Prince Albert, Sask.; Calgary and Edmonton, Alta.; Vancouver
and Vernon, B.C.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND CoOLONIZATION, OTTAWA

N.B.—If interested in nomination, please keep this advertisement for future
reference.
1928
B, Badile Now 47.183
Imm File No. s G50

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA

NOMINATION OF A BRITISH FAMILY UNDER EMPIRE SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT

Nore:—This form may be used by any British subject resident in Can-
ada. Three copies must be completed and sent to the District Superintendent,
Land Settlement Branch, Department of Immigration and Colonization, at
any of the following addresses. Address the nearest office:

Maritime Provinces: St. John, N.B.
*Quebec: Sherbrooke, P.Q.
Ontario: Toronto, 32 Adelaide St., E.
Manitoba: Winnipeg, Commercial Bldg. e
_ Saskatchewan: Regina, Veteran Bldg.; Saskatoon, Connaught Bldg.;
Prince Albert, Harphill Bldg,
Alberta: Edmonton, Blowey-Henry Blk.; Calgary, Southam Bldg.
British Columbia: Vancouver, Winch Bldg.; Vernon, Megaw Bldg.

———
T x Nominations arising in the Eastern Townships of Quebec may also be sent to the Eastern
ownships Immigration Society at Sherbrooke.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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(1) I, the undersigned British subject, do hereby nominate:—

Names of Adult Persons Age Usual Occupation Names of Children Age

(17 years or over)

Addreds of Migranta B Beitiah (dles. v 2% . o s e A TN s

(Give full Post Office and Street Address)

Lcenpation : of JINOTHMGHOE ae asrwem LB Tz ina BE 1ot Ui kM orvie: #855 ods Ay poagiia
gt Office  Addrems. 1. IWL v oo o $ s «shimen vah 0 s dime ks voityilie
Relationship of Migrants to Nominator...........coviiiineeiiinnnn.
If not related or acquainted with migrants, give name and address of per-
son recommending family as suitable for farm work....................

....................................................................

I agree to become jointly responsible for the repayment of any pas-
sage loan given to the persons I have nominated and hereby guarantee
that provision will be made for their maintenance and housing in addition
to employment.

....................................

Signature of Nominator.
Offer of Employment

1s.. employer murriédlor snglet,. Pl TI U0 A T0 TUIMTA I v o oo v ole
married state whether wife is living and number and ages of children at home)

Describe farm holdmg Owner or renter?........ S{ze ()T 11 it S IR

(2)
(3)

Housing accommodation. Is separate house provided for help?..........
If so, state number of rooms........
Will mxgrants live in same house with employer?......................
If so, state number of rooms........ Furnished or unfurnished?........
(5) What farming experience (if any) must the migrants have?............

(State whether required to milk, handle horse, take care of stock and use agricultural machinery)
per
.month

(4)

(6) Penod of engagement...... Wages per annum....at the rate of...

Must be on yearly basis)

(7) State earliest date help wanted ........................................

Tatest"dafe help~will be aceeptedd 4. .asedc i3 - sanomimril naasimids v o

Employer’s Endorsement

I, the undersigned British subject, resident in Canada for...... years
certify the above answers to be correct. I agree to provide employment on
a yearly basis, pay wages offered, furnish accommodation as above stated
and guarantee such conditions as will enable the persons concerned to make
their way.

Signature .
Posti s OBR08 522 - 000 oo viomew o s oo 5o S8 PIOVITIOS: . 54603 ials g el e il
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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(A) REPORT OF DOMINION OR PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL:—
...1 consider the settlement arrangements. .....oii.ii i et dnnen.

................................................................

(If unsatisfactory give reasons. If insufficient space attach Report)

PIAGEL . oo nosisrmsassisins SILETERE 10 Auall Signature. goitaviiles sebup gavd . ...
135010 s pdiotosgn B, i ety A ) 11101V mrprell uo syt i .+ | | s 711 g i
(8) I recommend this nomination be ...........ccoeiiviiiiiinenernnainnss

(Accepted or not accepted)
Digtriot. Suirirs 13, o BRTE R 0 f et o b ke T2 R el U T el e 20
Dist. Supt. Land Settlement Branch.

ML 4 snniet coneur
(Do not)

Peite 74 gL AR UL LGRS o R 2008 10 N, A RIRI Aanie )

Superintendent, Land Settlement Branch
(p) Director of European Emigration:
Approved and referred for necessary action.

L R ARSI Bt s e i o e e S e
(Date) Commissioner of Colonization.
;04 FilerNolyi iz
Imm. File No.......
1928
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
CANADA

NomINATION FOR BrimisH SiNnGLe FArm Hrrp UnxpER EMPIRE
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

Nore:—This form may be used by any British subject resident in Canada.
Three copies must be completed and sent to the District Superintendent, Land
Settlement Branch Department of Immigration and Colonization, at any of the
following addresses. -(Address nearest office.) (See note on reverse side.)

Maritime Provinces: St. John, N.B.

Quebec: Sherbrooke, P.Q.

Ontario: Toronto, Ont., 32 Adelaide St. E.

Manitoba: Winnipeg, Man., Commercial Bldg.

Saskatchewan: Regina, Sask., Veteran Bldg.; Saskatoon, Sask., Connaught

Bldg.; Prince Albert, Sask., Harphill Bldg. L
Alberta: Calgary, Alta., Southam Bldg.; Edmonton, Alta., Blowey-Henry
Blk.

Br}i3tish Columbia: Vancouver, B.C., Winch Bldg.; Vernon, B.C., Megaw

ldg.

Nominations arising in the Eastern Townships of the Province of Quebee
glay also be sent to the Eastern Townships Immigration Society, Sherbrooke,

'

(1) Name of migrant..........oeeeueunns. Age...... Occupation
(2) Address in British Tsles

.............

..............................................

{8) Rel ationships Ao mn omers s o/ 1552 . Lo o e e esasesassaeaes
(State whether relative or personal acquaintance. If not personally known, give name and address
of person who recommended migrant)

(4) What experience must the migrant have?

..............................

(State whether required to milk, handle horses, take care of stock and use agricultural machinery)
(5) State earliest date migrant. wanted. .. .. Latest. date .migrant -accepted. . . ..
: [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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.......................................................................

(7) Describe your farm holding. Owner or Renter.......... How long engaged
in farmmgsadl danin s Housing+acoommodationy el iivy o s oy sns'es oo
Area under cultivation.......... Class of LaTmINg ..« o iiats Live stock

ORTEI o LT SRR LR O USRS S R ERY . ) SN
(8) Nearest Railway Station.............. Distance from farm..............

(9) Period of Engagement.......... Wages to be paid per annum $..........
(Must be on yearly basis)
at the rate of §.......... PO ) oo Tl S L s e T s e

(State whether offer includes board, lodging and laundry)
(10) Is migrant aware of this offer?........ If so, is he willing to accept.......

(11) I, the undersigned, a British subject resident in Canada for..............
years, certify the above answers to be correct.

Data, 0cipecn | o NREIGRIEESI0M, 2 Sgnaturer . LY e s e s tel
POt SO0 5 1 i e s e e e Provinee:::-sisers deveir.s «BNIUY

Nore:—This form is prepared for the convience of farmers requiring immi-
grant help and who may know of some person in the British Isles likely to suit.
Those unacquainted in the British Isles may nominate by deseription and every
effort will be made to secure the help required. In descriptive nominations the
religious faith of the nominator may be stated if it is desired to secure a migrant
of the same faith. Those making descriptive nominations will not answer ques-
tions 1, 2, 3, 6 and 10.

(A) REPORT OF DOMINION OR PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT

OFFICIAL
I consider the settlement arrangements are.............c.ccveeeicevineennnns
(Satisfactory or unsatisfactory)
If ) ulisatisfactory,  «@IWe s TEABOTN . cvim wmisie b sssiore vkt RMPUILTHGHE WSUPIL L o .
(If space insufficient, attach report)
S8 T e e SR TIRE ok SIS RR
Dalel Ui, 8205 IS TIUNER, B (G R S SRR Lt AN
(B) I recommend this nomination be........ccoevieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniininnn.
(Accepted or not accepted)
Ty o R Y e e P i S i O A e . et
(Dist. Supt. Land Settlement Branch)
18 Py LR R s SR VSN 3 BRI
{C) I concur.
(do not)
Dateinuibs S, b o sl S SORI o 0 Sa i vis # o i leate s ¢ s b s

Superintendent, Land Settlement Branch

(D) Director oF EUROPEAN EMIGRATION
APPROVED AND REFERRED FOR NECESSARY ACTION,

Oblawaye. sxausionadal Sondad . . Lok T EABATY it b dsailiaa odald, 8 3
(Date) 2 Commlsswner of Colomzatlon
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 131

1928
B8 b T TR 0 s o R
Imm. File No..coteeeeins
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
CANADA

NominaTioN oF A Britise HousexHorp WORKER UNDER EMPIRE SETTLEMENT AcT
Nore:—This form may be used by any British subject resident in Canada.
It is for the convenience of those requiring household help who may know of
someone in the British Isles likely to be suitable. Those unacquainted in the
British Isles, may nominate by description, using this form, but will not answer
questions 1 to 5 on this side of the form. In descriptive nominations, the
religious faith of the nominator may be stated if it is desired to secure a
migrant of the same faith. In the Provinces east of Manitoba two copies
must be completed and sent to the Department of Immigration and Colonization,
Ottawa. In the Western Provinces three copies must be completed and sent
to the District Superintendent, Land Settlement Branch, Department of Immi-
gfrféiltlon and Colonization, at any of the following addresses. Address nearest
office.
Manitoba: Winnipeg, Man., Commercial Bldg.
A British Columbia: Vancouver, B.C., Winch Bldg.; Vernon, B.C., Megaw
g.
Saskatchewan: Regina, Sask., Veteran Bldg.; Saskatoon, Sask., Connaught
ldg.; Prince Albert, Sask., Harphill Bldg.
" Alberta: Edmonton, Alta., Blowey-Henry Block; Calgary, Alta., Southam
g.
I, the undersigned, a British Subject, resident in Canada for...... years,
do hereby nominate:

HiNsme of Migranb. .ivi i o6 oo ave. Age...... Usual Occupation. .......
SRV IRRE ON 1  aleredhdi e gy b G b - B U e R

(Give full post office and street address)

3. Is she married, single, OF & WIGOW?. .. tvuerueeneerneeneesneenaenneennnne
(If married, give husband’s occupation and present address)

4. Is she a relative, acquaintance or intended wife?............oovvuneeennnn.
(If not personally known give name and address of person who recommended her to you)

......
.................................................................

fé Has she been in Canada before?....If so, state when she left and for what
reason <

.................................................................

-----
.................................................................

)
" (will or will not)
fé:lgr_ant for the repayment to Government of any passage loan the migrant may
uire,

..
-----
............................................................

®ie
‘e
.............................................................

(Post Office Address) (Date)
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYER AND SITUATION OFFERED
(To be completed by Employer)
L. Are you married, single; or 8 Widower?. co.ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinenn
2. Give number of rooms in YOUL BOTEB L. o 4 o0 600k a v sns sininsin wom USRAIEY < o 8

85027—113 [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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3. Give below particulars of persons living with you:—

Adults (over 17) Relationship Children (under 17)
(Numbers only)

................. Boys

................. Girls
W e N T IV i ST AT DTN o v s v et e gt e T o TS
........................................... Will you take a girl without
Ekpeifence T NousSwarkl . SRS, T UL Bl o o oL L E0S
Period of Engagement............. Wages offered per month..............
. Do you usually employ household help?....State number usually employed

1) gis BTy CMER ATt et Whparl puk o ry P T R g

7. State earliest date help wanted. . .... Latest date help will be accepted.......
1, the undersigned, a British Subject, resident in Canada for...... years,

certlfy the above answers to be correct. 1 agree to employ the migrant on the
terms stated and to provide proper home conditions.

.................................................................

.................................................................

(Occupation of Employer)

(a) Report of Dominion or Provincial Government Official:—
I consider the settlement arrangements.............cooiveunninneunnnnns

.......................................................................

(If unsatisfactory give reasons. If insufficient space attach report)

1o G g B peimg s Lot TS M
) M S i e
Signature ........ 8 ol oiricaotin Panitaich b
Olfioe . HO0S . . sosdame basam int st ins ral ,
(b) I recommend this nomination be...wiliviliviiiiiiiiniiieinrninines
(Accepted or not ncoepted)
Phistateh, 2svais o sinic soiais 1D 77 17 R T e s o i S e >
(Dist. Supt. Land Settlement Branch)
(£,) o I coneur
(Do not)
1) T N R et L o VRl g o e N et v SRt

(Superintendent, Land Settblement Branch)

(d) Director of European Emigration:—
Approved and referred for necessary actlon

¥ B I o . (Date) (Commissioner of Colonization)
[Mr. W. J. Egan.] o3
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DePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND CoronNizaTioxn CANADA
ASSISTED PASSAGES

FOR
BRITISH SUBJECTS
1928
RATES
To:— .
Halifas ST ohT Or ICIEEDEE. & s o i Bt » me s rearismen s 2 0
I T T e PN I S b s e A R el s B 5 i
JVe oo g L UL Rt LIS f s Sl b e e b e A SR 2 e
WinRIPEE Laane A1 R, 3 ANE TR i) I T ekl
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THE DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
IMEE OTTAWA
(1) Nominations

Any British Subject resident in Canada may nominate any British Subject

In the British Isles, excepting one resident in the Irish Free State which is not
a party to the Agreement. ;

(2) How to Nominate

Nomination forms may be secured from Dominion Immigration and Land
Settlement Officers and from Bank Managers. Nomination may be made by
hame or if the nominator has no suitable person in mind, by description using
the regular form but omitting name and similar personal details.

() Passage Rates

Rates payable by adult migrants are set out on the cover of this pamphlet.
The rates quoted are for Third Class Transportation from any Port in Great
ritain to the Centres mentioned in the Schedule. Adult migrants are required
to pay rail fares from such centres to ultimate destinations. An adult is a
person 17 years of age or over.

(4) Passage Assistance is available to the following:—

(a) Families who will engage in farming or work on the land. Passage
assistance takes the form of a free grant of part of the transportation
cost for adults and free passage for children under seventeen. When
necessary and advisable, the amount payable by the adult may be
advanced in whole or in part as a loan, to be repaid in instalments
after arrival in Canada.

(b) Single Men to be employed as farm labourers. Assistance takes the
form of a free grant of part of the cost of transportation. No passage
loans are available to single men.

(c) Household Workers to be employed in domestic service. Assistance
takes the form of a free grant of part of the transportation cost. Every
Household Worker must pay £2 towards cost of her passage, but if
necessary and advisable, a loan of the balance of the fare may be
made, provided that in no case the total loan exceeds £6.

(5) Repayment of Loans

. . Nominators of families or household workers who receive passage loans are
Jomtly responsible with migrants for repayment of loans. Loans to House-
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



134 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

hold Workers are repayable in monthly instalments of $5.00 beginning one
month after arrival. Loans to Families are repayable in quarterly instalments
beginning three months after arrival and must be completed in one year after
first payment is due.

For INFORMATION AND ADVICE

APPLY TO

TuaE DeEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND CoLONIZATION, OTTAWA

Any Dominion Immigration Official—Any District Superintendent or Field
Supervisor, Land Settlement Branch

Land Settlement Branch Offices:—

Maritime Provinces: St. John, N.B.

Quebec: Sherbrooke, P.Q.

Ontario: Toronto, 32 Adelaide street, E.

Manitoba: Winnipeg, Commercial Bldg.

Saskatchewan: Regina, Veteran Bldg.; Saskatoon, Connaught Bldg.; Prince
Albert, Harphill Bldg.

Alberta: Edmonton, Blowey-Henry Block; Calgary, Southam Bldg.

British Columbia: Vancouver, Winch Bldg.; Vernon, Megaw Bldg.

1 have really prepared this memorandum more for the observation of the

members when reading over the minutes of the meeting. I have here memo-
randa in connection with the procedure in Canada. Shall T read it all?

Agreed to.
This is under date of November 11th, 1927, and reads as follows. (Read-
ing):
Copy/Fr.
Orrawa, 11th November, 1927.
Memorandum:

PROCEDURE TO BE ADOPTED FOR THE MOVEMENT OF BRITISH IMMIGRANTS
UNDER THE ASSISTED PASSAGE SCHEME IN 1928

1. Procedure in Canada.

1. Departmental placing—Instead of fixing Departmental quotas
as last year, for experienced, partly experienced and inexperienced farm
workers, the Department, will assume responsibility for the placement of
all the experienced farm workers and houseworkers that can be secured
and of the inexperienced farm workers and houseworkers that may be
nominated.

2. Nominations—In view of the importance of this branch of the
work, every effort will be made to increase nominations both personal
and descriptive. The Department will give publicity to the scheme so
that British subjects in Canada will be encouraged to nominate.

Nominations will include agricultural families, single farm labourers
and houseworkers. = The Department will not insist on the person
nominated having had any particular experience in the occupation they
are to follow in Canada provided their general fitness in other directions
is satisfactory.

Nomination will include agricultural families, single farm labourers
Division Immigration Commissioners at Winnipeg and Vancouver, from
District Superintendents and Supervisors of the Land Settlement Branch,
from chartered banks, from any official of the Colonization Depart-
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ments of the C.N.R. and C.P.R., from any Immigration organization
operating under the auspices of religious bodies and from certain Pro-
vineial Government representatives who will be named later.

In order to remove any cause for delay in handling these nomina-
tions, the papers when completed should be forwarded to the nearest
District Superintendent or Field Supervisor of the Land Settlement
Branch or to any Provincial Government official who may be named later.

Nomination of houseworkers destined to points west of Ontario should
be sent to the nearest District Superintendent or Field Supervisor of the
Land Settlement Branch and those destined to points east of the Mani-
toba Boundary should be forwarded to the Supervisor, Women’s Branch
of the Department at Ottawa. Nominations, whether for farm workers
or houseworkers arising in the Iastern Townships of Quebec, may be
sent either to the Land Settlement Branch or to the Eastern Townships
Immigration Society, Sherbrooke, Que.

Nomination papers will be examined immediately and if approved
will be forwarded by first mail to the Director of Emigration for Canada
in London. All those interested in promoting immigration are invited
to co-operate in encouraging employers in Canada to complete nomina-
tion papers if they wish to secure British farm workers or houseworkers,
experienced or inexperienced.

The Department urges the widespread development of the nomina-
tion system with its offer of satisfactory placement and yearly employ-
ment, in preference to bulk nomination which experience shows results
in a small percentage of satisfactory settlement and in adverse criticism,
both of which tend to impair immigration effort in the British Isles.

3. Bulk Nomination—In order to meet any demand for farm labour
which may not be taken care of by Departmental placing and nomina-
tions described above, immigration and colonization organizations in-
cluding those operating under the auspices of religious bodies, are in-
vited to place in the hands of any District Superintendent of the Land
Settlement Branch, information as to the number of experienced or in-
experienced farm workers they think they can place in that district.
The District Superintendent if satisfied that the demand exists will wire
the Department and authority will be immediately cabled to London
for whatever movement is approved. In this way delays will be elimin-
ated and group movements can be increased or reduced from month to
month as the circumstances require.

Sailings under bulk nomination will end on the 15th of May, unless
it is shown there is a demand which is not then being met by Depart-
mental placings and nominations.®

4. Provincial Governments—The Department will continue to co-
operate with any Province desirous of assisting in the selection overseas
or in the placement in Canada of families, single men or houseworkers,
experienced or inexperienced.

5. The Department will continue to co-operate with all the Societies
and organizations engaged in promoting juvenile immigration, including
lads under seventeen, for farm placement.

II. Procedure in the British Isles.

1. Efforts will be made in every legitimate way to increase the
flow of British migrants under the Empire Settlement Scheme. All other
interests are invited to co-operate in recruiting suitable persons. With
the establishment of the Canadian medical inspection which will come
into effect shortly after the New Year, the regulation calling for a
Sailing Permit for unaccompanied women will be abolished.

* Bailings under Bulk Nomination will continue until June 15th.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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2. While co-operation in recruiting will be welcomed from every
source, control of selection of all those receiving Empire Settlement
assistance will be in the hands of the Department. The necessary addi-
tions to the Departmental staff of interviewers will be made so that there
will be no undue delay in conducting interviews.

Wirness: I have here a letter written to our Director in connection with
the same thing. Shall I read this, or will it be accepted as read?

The CaamrrmMaN: Does the Committee accept it as read?
Agreed to.

Wirness: This is a letter to our Director, covering the details of this last
memorandum which I have read, in connection with Empire Settlement. It will
be printed in the record so that you gentlemen will have it before you when
you come to consider your judgment. (Reading):

Copy/FR.
17th November, 1927.

Dear Mr. WaLkeEr,—You were advised by cable under date of the
11th instant regarding Empire Settlement nominations for 1928. We have
also received your cable asking for a definite limitation of numbers for
bulk nomination.

If you will refer to our cable of the above date you will notice that
the Department is prepared to accept responsibility for the placement
not of a limited number, but of all experienced farm workers and house-
workers who can be secured and of such inexperienced migrants as may
be nominated by residents of Canada. You will also notice by the above
cable that the Department will allow bulk nomination® for sailings up
to the 15th May next by Immigration and Colonization organizations
who establish the demand and ability to place experienced or inexperi-
enced farm workers. There is no bulk nomination for domestics.

Direct and Descriptive Nominations—Under this category you will
receive nominations of married farm labourers and their families, single
farm labourers and household workers,

Under this heading the Department will determine whether the
settlement arrangments are satisfactory and you will be advised to that
effect. Last year, as you are aware, there were unnecessary delays both
on this side and overseas by the Department and by other Immigration
and Colonization organizations. It has, therefore, been decided that as
soon as settlement arrangements have been determined and the nomina-
tion is accepted by the Department, the form of nomination will be trans-
mitted to you for completion. There will be no covering letter. The
nomination will simply be by concise instructions which will be applicable
to every case. It will be necessary for you to determine whether the
nominee is a suitable migrant and is likely to accept and remain at farm
employment. In the case of a direct nomination it will also be necessary
for you to determine whether the nominee has the qualifications required
by the nominator as set out in the nomination form. It will also be
necessary to exercise great care in completing descriptive nominations,
i.e., to select a person having the qualifications required by the nominator.

Bull: Nomination—You submitted a memorandum under date of the
18th of August last in which you denounced the Railways’ Quota system
and gave evidence in support of your statement that the quota system
had been anything but satisfactory both with respect to quality and
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quantity. It was, therefore, decided to discontinue the quota system
en bloc as established last year. The procedure will now be as follows:—

In order to meet any demand for farm labour which may not be
taken care of by direct and descriptive nomination and other placement
under the auspices of the Department, Immigration and Colonization
organizations, including those operating under the auspices of religious
bodies, have been invited to place in the hands of District Superinten-
dents of the Land Settlement Branch information as to the number of
experienced or inexperienced farm workers they think can be satisfactorily
placed in each district. The District Superintendent, having regard to
his knowledge of local requirements, will at once advise the Department
and you will be instructed by cable. By this method delays will be
eliminated and group movements can be increased or reduced from month
to month as the circumstances require without interfering with general
recruiting.

Provincial Governments—The Department will continue to co-operate
with any Provincial Government, the officials of which desire to assist
in selection or in placement of families, single men or houseworkers,
experienced or inexperienced.

Selection.—You stated in your memorandum of the 18th August last
that it was a mistake to substitute for trained officers of the Department
traffic canvassers of the Canadian Railways. It has, therefore, been
decided that the Oversea officials of the Department shall control selec-
tion. A number of trained officials will sail about the middle of December
and a second party will leave so that they may arrive at as early a date
as possible in January, 1928, for the purpose of assisting in interviewing
and selection until the 1st of April.

Procedure—The Information Form must be transmitted, as formerly,
in duplicate to the Department. The result of the interview must be
written on the back of the form. You have already been advised that we
cannot accept stereotype endorsations such as the C.P.R. submitted in
the case of the Salvation Army migrants from Hadleigh. This is regarded
as worthless and a mere waste of time. The interview should show in
brief form the industrial record, adaptability of the migrant and a state-
ment, of character as disclosed by the confidential reference. This pro-
cedure is to be adopted in the case of families or farm labourers, experi-
enced or inexperienced, who are interviewed or accepted by our officers.
You will continue to send, as at present, the Information Form of all
those interviewed and selected by agents of Provincial Governments,
who should also be asked to endorse similar information on the back of
the form. You will continue to use the prospect Form for household
workers.

Co-operation by Booking Agents.—It will be left to the discretion of
any of our regular Agents in the United Kingdom to accept the interview
of a thoroughly reliable booking agent, but our agent will be held respons-
ible for selection on the submission of a booking agent. This is not a
new procedure because if you will refer to Circular No. 40 of the 4th
September, 1925, you will notice that a similar latitude was given at that
time. In determining whether the interview of a thoroughly reliable
booking agent should be accepted our agent should be guided by:—

(@) The particulars on the Information Form;

(b) The source and character of the references;

(¢) The ability and reliability of the booking agent who submits
the case;

(d) The medical certificate.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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You will notice it was set out that the booking agent could
render valuable co-operation in determining character, physique, industry,
adaptability and experience. It must be left, however, entirely to the
judgment of our agent to determine whether or not any special submission
by a thoroughly reliable booking agent should be accepted or whether a
further interview should be made. An interview under such circumstances
must be signed by the booking agent and endorsed by our agent, because
a thorough record will be kept in the department of the result of all
Empire Settlement work. You will be advised at an early date of the
survey which has already been made of the nomination work of last year.
Every Information Form must show the origin of the business. It is
imperative that this information be shown, otherwise it will involve
correspondence in every case between the department and your office.

Yours very truly,
J. Bruce WaLKER, Esq.,
Director of Emigration,
The Canadian Building,
Trafalgar Square,
London, S.W. 1,
England.

* Sailings under bulk nomination will continue until June 15th.

Wirness: I have a memorandum here which I think will be interesting to

the Committee even now. It is in regard to Administrative procedure. (Read-

ing).

Adminmistrative Procedure

The following is the procedure regarding applicants under the 3,000
Family Scheme:—
The form of application gives the names and addresses of at least
two references. If the information on the application form indicates
a good prospect the agent at once advises the applicant that the
references are being taken up. Ocecasionally persons who are given
as references do not reply and this necessitates considerable delay.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You know better than the Committee whether it is important for us to

know; it is more a matter of procedure than of policy.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: I think any one interested in the evidence will look

this up and read it.

Mr. DoxxeLLy: Could you not have it filed, and printed in the record, then

if we have any questions to ask, we will have it before us.

Wirness: I can do that.

Mr. Dox~ELLy: I cannot follow you at all.

Wirness: Am I reading it too fast?

Mr. DonnELLY: If you will just file it and have it printed in the record, it

will save time.

The CuARMAN: It can be filed and printed in the record.
Wirness: It is headed “Administrative Procedure.”

As soon as a reply is received from the references the Immigration
Agent at once fixes a date and time to interview the applicant who can
change the date and time if unsuitable. The applicant is interviewed and
the result of the interview is endorsed on the form of application which is
submitted to our London office for the approval of the Oversea Settlement
Department of the British Government. Under the Roster doctor system,
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as soon as the case was approved, the applicant was advised and was
urged to arrange for medical inspection so that the case could be com-
pleted. In many cases applicants delayed medical inspection for weeks
and, consequently, were themselves responsible for the delays which
occurred. Under the new system of inspection arrangements are made,
where possible, to have the medical inspection at the time of the interview
by the agent so that the whole case is completed much quicker than
under the Roster doctor inspection.

Considerable evidence has been given to show the difficulty in
obtaining a reference from the present employer of a migrant. Question
“21" of the Information Form (which is the form of application for a
migrant) reads as follows:—

21. Give names and addresses of two farmers for whom you have
worked, and how long with each. If you have not been employed on

a farm state so, and give names and addresses of your last employers.

You will notice that the applicant is not requested to give the name
of his present employer. References have been required ever since the
date of the first Assisted Passage Agreement because moneys are being
loaned by the Department and the British Government and since the
Reduced Passage Rate moneys are being contributed by both Govern-
ments on account of the transportation of the migrant.

References are required in the case of families under the 3,000
Family Settlement Scheme because families are being settled on vacant
Soldier Settlement farms which are sold to the settler by the Soldiers
Settlement Board and the British Government advances $1,500 for stock
and equipment. The object of the reference is to determine the
applicant’s character and industrial record which constitute the only
security available on the part of the settler for the sale of the farm and
for the moneys advanced by the British Government on account of stock
and equipment.

The Supervisor of the Women’s Division states that it is very difficult,
if not impossible, to satisfactorily place household workers who are not °
in possession of references.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Again that is assisted passage?—A. Yes.

Q. I understand the 3,000 Family quota has been filled?—A. We hope it
will be completed this year. So many people have made statements; for
Instance, we have the provineial scheme coming on, and this shows the policy of
the Government.

Q. Unless something new is adopted by Parliament, the 3,000 Family
Scheme is through?—A. Yes, but we are working on a New Brunswick and a
Federal Scheme, and we are making progress along that line.

I have here a memorandum headed “Juvenile Immigration”, which contains
a full list of societies working in co-operation with us, with some statistics as
to arrivals, and the number each society has handled from as far back as 1868
in some cases. Shall T read it?

Some Hon. MemBERs: File it.

Document filed.
JUVENILE IMMIGRATION

Juvenile Immigration—that is, the immigration of boys and girls unaccom-
panied by parents or guardians—is a phase of immigration work so important
that it has long been assigned to a special branch of the Department under a
supervisor of Juvenile Immigration with headquarters at Ottawa. The
Juvenile Immigration Branch works in the closest co-operation with the volun-
tary Associations under whose auspices the children come to Canada from the
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British Isles. All these Associations maintain Training Homes in the British
Isles and Reception Homes in Canada. Before leaving these Homes the children
are carefully inspected by Canadian officials to determine their fitness for
Canada. From the Canadian Homes they are placed in selected farm homes.
To these Receiving Homes they may return in case of change of employment,
illness, or for other reasons. Since the commencement of the movement over
85,000 boys and girls have come to Canada, a great many of whom have
become prominent and successful citizens of the Dominion. The large majority
are engaged in agricultural pursuits.

Every boy and girl is subjected to medical examination before migration is
permitted. Employers in Canada are selected with a view to giving the child
a good home and opportunity to acquire a useful training. The Department has
a staff of experienced men and women exclusively for the supervision and in-
g)ec;iém of these young migrants and the homes in which they are placed in

anada.

The importance and. value of the juvenile immigration movement are fully
appreciated by the Department which has been and is working to increase this
movement along practical lines to conform with new conditions.

CHILDREN MIGRATING UNDER THE AUSPICES OF VOLUNTARY SOCIETIES

For children who migrate under the auspices of Voluntary Societies, as-
sistance is given at the rate of $80 per head towards the cost of transportation,
etc. of children (male and female). This assistance is given in respect of
children who reach their fourteenth birthday prior to sailing and who had not
reached their seventeenth birthday before the first day of April in the financial
year in which they sail, provided that in exceptional cases, assistance may be
given to children who had not reached their fourteenth birthday prior to sailing.

The Voluntary Society is paid $80, or £16.9.9 per head for those who are
destined to points east of Manitoba. The ocean fare is £11.10.0, or $44.97, for
a child who migrates under the auspices of a Voluntary Society. This leaves a
margin to the Voluntary Society of £4.10, or $21.90, per child which is retained
by the Voluntary Society for railroad fare and other administrative expenses.
In other words, for every one hundred children, the Voluntary Society receives
the sum of £450 or approximately $2,250, for railroad fare and administrative
expenses.

STATEMENT SHOWING THE TOTAL ARRIVALS OF PARTIES OF CHILDREN BROUGHT
TO CANADA BY JUVENILE SOCIETIES DURING THE YEAR WHICH
ENDED MARCH 31, 1927.

. Batnerdc’s Bomes, TOTOMD 5. ... s oecos obhe g s s s s do s o o8 (Boys) 121

(Girls) 6

M3 W CaFeamr AT OTonta. S T it SRt cis As O Bt s e G o 36

National Children’s Home and Orphanage, Hamilton....................... Elgo_sis) 65

ir s) 2

Catholic Eriigration AssoCIBEION. . sl s susd s sinide 501050 ents ansaatiit s <o s éBoys) 172

Girls) 28

Church of England Society, Sherbrooke, P.Q...........ccoiuiiiiraniins. (Boys) 63

Church of England:Society, TOTomb0 .« iue. .1 85 0 5hirn s hia e oot o s ablds v sds o (Girls) « ..

Fairknowe Home (Mr. Quarrer’s), Brockville...........ooiveeerireinnnnnn. (Bo;is) 34

(Garls) 13

The Salvation Army, Montreal, P.Q............ 30 50 (0h. .50 Ganaddun. . (Boys) 256

(Girls) 45

Sir J. T. Middlemore, Farrview Station, Halifax, N.S......cc.c0vvniuninann. (goys) 3

irls) 5

Cossar Training Farm, Lower Gagetown, N.B....cov.ovvineiiniininneaenenns . 83

Dakeyne Farm, Windsor, N.S.......couiuuimiemrueiniiieiiisoienenncnees 9

British Immigration and Colonization Association, Montreal................ 489

The Church Army, Winnipeg, Manitoba. . .......uueuroreeroneenssensnenons Ego%s) 122
wwls

The Church of England Council of Empire Settlement, Edmonton, Alberta . ) 19

The,Armenian Relief Fund, TOTOBEO . .cuivns. + seaihvimiisnes § s bivmesniols - 8

LBjE G010 ) e syl et A0 s ki - st S i e (Boys) 73

(Girls) 78

17 e ey ot o g Y. e Rt A <o | 1,741
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TasLe showing the juvenile immigration during a period of five years:

Fiscal year Number immigrated
LOROERY S (X TR L Ko S3 4 INARAR AN BT RIS T IS 1,426
1821728 s mngdads i S tapt. 1tk fad o wndids duy At R kS 6ok valid s Ds T e 1,211
$it e, o | SRR TR e N A P Sy om e S e 1,184
WHRORBE L X . FE T o R S e SATEA £ ot e Worera s 4 s St s W e L P s s 0 s W 2,080
14200, | irials s ik Sl NS PARY - il o ol o 4 D R s AR R e MG Taiihe R 2,000
AN R0 A SR o T, S RN SO, LGSR T AR R MRV, B MDA, 1,862

b3S G SRR AR SRR (Y A AT A R SRS RS ot L O g Y 1,741

ConpEeNsED statistical history of the Juvenile Immigration Movement since the year 1868

Number of
Society or Agency Year children
sent to
Canada
Miss Macpherson and Mrvs. Birt, London, Liverpool (Canadian Headquarters,

Marchmont Home, Belleville, Ont.). ... ...covivirimiiiiiieiirininannns 1868 to 1926 14,578
Miss Rye and Church of England (Niagara-on-the-Lake and Sherbrooke,

PGS, B F SRR IR | OVETS TGO SOM S alFpeC B A T 1868 to 1927 4,142
Mr. (now) Sir J. T. Middlemore, Fairview, Halifax, N.S..................... 1873 to 1927 5,007
The National Children’s Home and Orphanage (formerly Dr. T. Bowman

Stephenson), el an T L R i s S ol B s it g s 13 1873 to 1927 3,172
Mrs. Bilbrough-Wallace (Marchmont Home, Belleville, Ont.)................| 1878 to 1915 5,529
Cardinal Manning (Ottawa and Montreal)... ... .oiueuiiererniiisnannioennns. 1880 to 1888 1,403
Dr. Barnardo, Toronto, Ont., and Winnipeg, MaN. .......euneuernenennenenn.s 1882 to 1927 26,682
Mt 3 WG Fean, Toronto Onl st it st . bt dods s v Aditbedh + oo s Hor mh 1884 to 1927 3,036
Mt Wl Qiarien, BroclEville, Ontd b i delis b T0A S8 Tk 5. B0 a0 0ass Ll 1890 to 1927 4,274
The Catholic Emigration Association and amalgamated societies, St. George’s

HOME SOt AWAFORLF . SHERLE | BEFR Ty S LA AT TR, 1897 to 1927 6,999
The Salvatiot ATy, 0 RRCLERR k. Suas, Lo, e g, JTne atngy 1905 to 1927 3,046
Dr, Cossar, Lower GagetoWn, INuB. . seusis s sis baois o vins eias sins s e sninssansns 1810 to 1927 646
Captain Oliver Hind, The Dakeyne Farm, Falmouth (near Windsor, N.S.)..[ 1913 to 1927 91
British Immigration Aid and Colonization Association, Montreal, P.Q....... 1923 to 1927 958
The Church ATray, WInnipeg, MAIL. .. .o oo cassse sinons sionsssssimmeasssiosssss 1925 to 1927 279
Church of England Society, Council of Empire Settlement, Edmonton, Alta. 1927 19
e T RNV TRy T i e 1897 to 1927 5,678

iy v e T IS el O PG oo mere s ik oy 1o oiae g Somlt I RdgS © N i 85,629

Church of England Council of Empire Settlement—The Church of England
Council, in co-operation with the Council for Social Service of the Church of
England in Canada, has established Hostels in Alberta and Saskatchewan for
the reception of Church of England boys aged 14 to 17 years. The boys travel
from the port of embarkation in the United Kingdom to the Hostel free of
cost, and under proper supervision. They are then placed in employment with
farmers approved by the superintendent of the Hostel, at the standard wage
of the district plus board and lodging. The Council for Social Service helps and
advises the boys and guards their welfare during their first years in Canada.

Church Army.—The Church Army also have established a training farm
(at Hempstead, Essex) where boys between 14 and 20 years of age who wish to
farm in the Dominions are given up to three months’ free training in general
farm work, with maintenance. Those who go to Canada, and who are approved
by the Canadian Government Immigration Authorities, travel at the special
passage rates shown on page 5 to the Church Army’s reception hostel at Winnipeg,
Manitoba. They are then placed in employment with farmers chosen by officers
of the Church Army, who are responsible for the boys’ welfare for at least three
Years after arrival in Canada.

. Catholic Emigration Association—This Association undertakes the migra-
tion and settlement of Catholic bovs and girls of 14 to 17 years of age. A
reception hostel (St. George’s Home) has been established in Ottawa, to which
the young settlers proceed from the United Kingdom under the care of an agent
appointed by the Association, and from which they are placed in employment
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with Catholic families approved by the Parish Priest. A reasonable amount of
pocket money is allowed to each child and the balance of their wages is banked
by the Association and repaid to them when they are 21 years of age. The
Association is responsible for the welfare of the children until they reach the age
of 18 years.

Salvation Army Training Farm —Boys aged 14 to 20 years can be trained
in elementary farming, carpentry, ete., at the Salvation Army training farm
at Hadleigh, Essex. The course extends from six to twelve weeks, and both
training and maintenance are given free of cost. During the voyage and after
arrival in Canada the boys are under the care of Salvation Army officers, who
place them in emplovment with selected farmers and to whom they can turn
for help and advice during their first three years in Canada.

Wirness: I have an interesting document here. It is in the shape of an
Order-in-Council, dated May 29th, 1920, providing for assistance to juvenile
societies prior to the date of the assisted passage agreement, with subsequent
orders-in-council.

ORDER IN COUNCIL DATED 29tz MAY, 1920, PROVIDING FOR AS-
SISTANCE TO JUVENILE SOCIETIES PRIOR TO THE DATE OF
THE ASSISTED PASSAGE AGREEMENT WITH SUBSEQUENT
ORDERS IN COUNCIL RENEWING THIS ASSISTANCE TO END OF
FISCAL YEAR 1922-23 (SALVATION ARMY ON ACCOUNT OF
LARGE GENERAL GRANT DID NOT GET THIS ASSISTANCE FOR
FISCAL YEAR 1922-23.

P.C. 1190
PRIVY COUNCIL—CANADA

Cerririep Copy of a Report of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved
by His Excellency the Governor General on the 29th May, 1920.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a report, dated
May 20th, 1920, from the Minister of Immigration and Colonization, submitting
that for many years the Department of Immigration and Colonization has
encouraged a movement of juvenile immigrants from the United Kingdom to
Canada, the net result of which has been of great value to the Dominion. This
movement is undertaken by various philanthropic societies and organizations
of the United Kingdom, which also maintain Receiving and Distributing Offices
and Homes in various parts of Canada.

The Minister observes, as an indication of the extent to which this move-
ment has grown, that during the past seventeen years the total immigration
of this class has amounted to, approximately, thirty-four thousand boys and
girls. The children are transferred in parties from training centres in the
United Kingdom to Canadian Receiving and Distributing Homes, through
which they are placed in selected situations. The course of training prior to
emigration is intended to fit boys and girls for farm work and domestic ser-
vice. In very few cases are boys placed otherwise than in farm homes, the
girls being placed, either in farm homes or in the smaller centres of population.

These juvenile immigrants belong (so far as concerns care and training in
the United Kingdom) to two classes,—

(a) Poor Law Children, who are a charge upon the Local Government

Board, and
(b) Children whose care, training and maintenance have been undertaken
by philanthropic societies.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Both these classes are emigrated to Canada by the same societies and,
during the past two decades, the Government has, by an arrangement with the
Imperial Government, carried on an annual inspection in their Canadian homes
of children belonging to class (a) the cost of such annual inspection being
borne largely by the Imperial Government. The societies are required to main-
tain receiving and distributing centres in Canada and also to provide for a
regular inspection of their wards.

Recent enquiries indicate that, as a result of conditions largely growing
out of the war, there are many thousands of most desirable boys and girls in
the United Kingdom who might be secured for Canada and whose immigra-
tion would be of great advantage to this country. 4

The Minister, after careful consideration of the history of this movement
and the results of federal inspection of juvenile immigrants, is of opinion that
the system of Federal oversight and inspection should be extended to all
Juvenile immigrants from the date of their arrival in Canada until they attain
the age of eighteen years, or such further period as may be considered neces-
saryfh Only by maintaining oversight and inspection can the Federal Govern-
ment,—

(a) Offer that protection which is due these orphan children.

(b) Detect those who, within the first few years after arrival, show their
unfitness to become permanent residents of Canada, and

(¢) Assure philanthropic societies and individuals in the United Kingdom
interested in this movement, that every reasonable safeguard is taken
to insure the success of those for whose immigration to Canada they
have contributed so generously.

The Minister further observes that the cost to philanthropic societies and
organizations for maintenance of Receiving and Distributing Offices and Homes
has entailed a greatly enlarged expenditure, which burden is further increased
by recent advances in transportation both by land and water. For a number
of years a bonus of Two Dollars per capita has been paid to these Receiving
and Distributing Homes on all approved juvenile immigrants. The Minister is
of opinion that the time has arrived when, in the interests of this movement,
some further assistance should be granted to these Homes and Agencies.

The Minister, therefore, recommends that the bonus be discontinued and
a grant be made, for the present fiscal year, to such Receiving and Distributing
Homes or Agencies as bring to Canada within the fiscal year, one hundred or
more juvenile immigrants (no grant to be paid to Homes or Agencies which
bring to Canada less than one hundred juvenile immigrants); the grant to be
one thousand dollars, on the basis of the first hundred juvenile immigrants,
and an additional grant of Five Hundred Dollars for each additional hundred,
or fraction thereof (providing such fraction is fifty or more); these sums to be
paid out of the Vote for Immigration Contingenices.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recommendation and submit the
Same for approval.

(Signed) RODOLPHE BOUDREAU,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

GRANT

A grant of $1,000 i_s made by the Department to each Home immigrating |
100 chlld.ren and an additional grant of $500 for each additional 100 or fraction
thereof, if the fraction is over 50.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



144 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

The following table shows how the grant is computed:—

Children

151 1,500
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S8tk 2nisihooncde Mueat e daiagt dhiaipal 20 ugpi2 500
d5kodn. ; baa., shaen’) oubht byarogs, o idnisa i mm ..3000
BOBEL) 3 i dioads An abcieto e . I 16t s . 194 3500
Blkodis . asl. Dlsds abitihangs Dits -dduisigve lembol . 14,008
Faliangs ad VAol rd. G0 ISUAL daie A J2TenT . ass i b0
T e D N R e S e 1 8 1 3
Q0T OGNS DATETL 20t MAY, 2000, LRIV ISR di
951 . 5,500
1001 . 5,500

Copy
P.C.. 2276

CertiFiED copy of a Report of the Committee of the Privy Council, approved by

His Excellency the Deputy Governor General on the 27th June, 1921.

The Committee of the Privy Council, on the recommendation of the Min-
ister of Immigration and Colonization, advise that a grant be made for the pres-
ent fiscal year to Receiving and Distributing Hemes or Agencies bringing
juvenile immigrants to Canada, on the same basis as was authorized for similar
purposes by the Order in Council (P.C. 1190) of the 29th May, 1920.

(Signed) G. G. KEZAR,
Asst. Clerk of the Privy Council.
The Honourable
The Minister of Immigration and Colonization.

Copy File 3115
Orrawa, 5th May, 1922.
The Secretary
Immigration and Colonization

Memorandum.
Mr. Black

From year to year the Salvation Army receives a grant for their genera:
work. Last year they were paid a total of $25,000 authorized by P.C. 2693
Aug. 1, 1921, and P.C. 4493, Deec. 1, 1921. I have marked these two orders in
-council on file 17480 in case you wish to get the exact wording of them.

For the last two years the receiving and distributing Homes for juvenile
immigrants have been assisted by a form of grant, the amount of which is gov-
erned by the number of immigrants they bring. The first order in council passed
in this matter was 1190, May 29, 1920, copy of which is immediately under-
neath, and this has been renewed from year to year. Under this arrangemen?
the Salvation Army were paid for the fiscal year 1920-1921 the sum of $1,500,
and if we deal with them on the same basis for 1921-1922 they will receive a
further $1.500.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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This means that in addition to the $25,000 covering their general work
for 1921-1922 they received $1,500 more for one particular department of the
work. This does not seem quite right to me and for that reason I am calling
your attention to it. Under the terms of the orders in council above mentioned
they may be legally entitled to it, but even this is doubtful. The question I
would like decided, however, is whether the Department wishes to continue pay-
Ing both grants.

(Signed) A. R. MORISSET,

Accountant.
File—3115
The Secretary Orrawa, May 17th, 1922.
Immigration and Colonization.
Memorandum.

Mr. Smart

Please note the decision given on our memorandum of the 5th instant,
regarding the grant or grants to the Salvation Army. I was ’phoning Mr.
Featherston this morning as to whether the grant for Juveniles should be paid
for the last fiscal year 1921-22. In view of P.C. 2276 the Department may
be under obligation to pay for last year and we are, therefore, putting through
the payment of $1,500. When preparing the memorandum to Council to cover
the Juvenile grants for this year, I presume you will exclude the Salvation Army

participating. ST & TR B
ed. G. F. b
Asst. Accountant.

P.C. 2078

CerTiFmED copy of a Report of the Committee of the Privy The Deputy of
Council, approved by His Excellency the Governor General on the 6th
October, 1922.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a Report, dated
Ist August, 1922, from the Acting Minister of Immigration and Colonization,
submitting that by Order in Council of the 29th May, 1920 (P.C. 1190, copy
attached), authority was given for certain grants to Receiving and Distributing

omes or Agencies bringing juvenile immigrants to Canada.

The Minister recommends that the same privilege or arrangement be
extended for the fiscal year 1922-23 to all Receiving and Distributing Homes or
Agencies bringing juvenile immigrants to Canada, with the exception of the
Salv.ation Army, who are receiving Government assistance for their general immi-
gration work.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recommendation and submit the

same for approval.
Sgd. G. G. KEZAR,

Asst. Clerk of the Privy Couneil.
The Honourable N o

e Minister of Immigration and Colonization.

By Mr. Carmichael :

Q. 'Mr. Egan, have you filed any memorandum which shows the grants paid
to provinces, societies and such like for immigration?—A. It seems to me that
Somebody did ask that question. I cannot think of it for the moment.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

¢ Q. You further mentioned that you had in that list all the voluntary
Socleties engaged in the work?—A. Yes.
65927—12 [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Q. How many are there?—A. Fifteen.
Q. Are there any to whom you make a grant, that is to say, a bulk grant,
excepting the Salvation Army?—A. Not in those children’s societies.
Q. The Salvation Army is the only one?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. What about the British Emigration and Colonization Society ?—A. There
is no grant to them, except what they all secure.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. I spoke of a bulk grant, and I was then coming along to this: What is
the assistance given in which these societies benefit; is that the $80 grant?—
A. Yes.

Q. You pay a grant of $80, as I understand it, towards the transportation
and general expenses, and their actual cost of transportation is something like
$56.7—A. Yes.

Q. So that they get the benefit of $24.?—A. Yes. Previous to this they
paid the fares of all children themselves. That is why I have brought this grant
before you.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. You paid that, you gave that before, for the Salvation Army?—A. Yes,
before the assisted passages came into force, towards their general work, and we
continued to pay it. I shall be glad to make a statement later on in regard
to that.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. There were a lot of grants made to these different societies, but the only
bulk grant for juvenile work is to the Salvation Army, besides their other work?
—A. Yes.

Q. But others, and the Army too, are only assisted by way of a contribution
of $80. towards the transportation and expenses of each individual?—A. That
is all.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. Some of the organizations get a larger grant?—A. No, sir. :
Q. What about the Clan Donald?—A. That is not children. I am speaking
of children only, juveniles only.

Hox. Mr. Epwarps: There was a question as to what grants were made.

By Mr. Carmichael :

Q. I thought that information would be useful to the sub-Committee to
know what money was paid by the Department to various organizations or to
provinces. That is information I thought would be useful?—A. How far do
you want me to go with that? '

Q. We had better finish up with what you are on?—A. I might point out,
Mr. Ralston, if I may, that you will have some idea of the subscriptions to the
societies before the grant was given. There was a grant before we gave this
contribution of $80 outright, which came in under the Empire Settlement.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. There was no grant under one hundred?—A. I do not remember. It is
some time since I read it. This says:
A grant of $1,000. is made by the Department to each Home immi-
grating 100 children, and an additional grant of $500 for each additional
100 or fraction thereof, if the fraction is over 50.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Hon. Mr. Ralston:
Q. It is all over now?—A. Yes.

By the Chairman.:

Q. Have you anything more, Mr. Egan?—A. I have a lot more, sir. The

next proposition I have for the consideration of your Committee is our Women’s
ivision,
By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. I think it will be well for us to know just what you have.—A. I propose
submitting to you information in regard to our Women’s Division, our Publicity,
and some facts in connection with certain evidence given re “How Australia
Handles its people” with references, ete., from their own Blue Books; answers
to several of the witnesses in connection with material that they submitted,
such as Mr. Corbett, executive of the Society in Montreal; Canon Burd, instanced
one individual. I also have a memorandum here in reference to part of the
evidence of Mr. Beatty; something in connection with Mr. MacAlister, and in
connection with Canon Vernon. I have prepared a statement for submission of
my own—whether you want it or not I do not know—in reference to foreign
born, and I want to submit to you something in connection with Canon Vernon’s
statement in reference to the 3,000 family scheme. I also want to submit some
facts in reference to that, and some facts in reference to the Salvation Army,
and in connection with which we did try a year ago to give certain institutions
the right of selection of people rather than actually within the Government.
and our reasons for not continuing it, because it has not worked out to advantage.

That covers about all I have to submit.

By Mr. Carmichael:
Q. You do not know whether the information asked for has been given?—
A. I am not just clear upon that. All of them are assisted on the passage
money. Do you want that indicated?

. Q. What I have in mind is, I would like to know how much money has been
paid by Department of Immigration to each and every society, or province that
has had anything to do with bringing in immigrants—A. The contributions
towards their work, not so much our assisted passage work?

Q. You have them separately?—A. We have them separately.

Q. Possibly you can give them separately ?—A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. RaLston: The assisted passage is what he has dealt with, namely,
showing that the immigrant used to get two pounds, and it is now three pounds.

. Wirness: It was just the reverse. There was first the loans; then we
naugurated the £3, and it is now £2.

Hon. Mr. RaLsToN: A contribution by the Federal Department to anybody
brought in by these societies, stands, it is just the same. The other thing, in
Connection with juveniles, is granted to organizations or provinces in a Jump
sum, -

By Mr. Carmichael;

Q. It was more in reference to grants of lump sums?—A. To what date
do you want me to go back?

. Q. T do not know that that one year will serve much purpose; I have in
mind that I wanted to get an idea of how much money was expended by the
epartment in this way.

Hon. Mr. Raiston: Subsidizing?

Wirness: We can boil that down to a few things.

Mr. GLex: Is there any that we can file without having them read?

The Cramman: We can take that up this afternoon.

05027—124 [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. When a man is coming out here under an assisted passage, does he
designate the point to which he is coming, on the other side, or is that done at
the port of entry?—A. If he is nominated by a relative he knows where he is

oing.
? %Q But suppose he said he was going to Toronto; the assisted passage would
cover it to that point; he drops off there, and he then asks for further assistance
in order to go farther west?—A. No.

Q. There is nothing like that?—A. No, sir.

The CuarmanN: The sub-Committee will meet at 9 o’clock to-night,
and this Committee will meet at 4 o’clock this afternoon.

Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned until 4 p.m.
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AFTERNOON SESSION

The Committee resumed at 4 p.m.
W. J. Egan recalled.

The Wrrngss: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I have here a review of the
Department’s position in reference to the Salvation Army. I have covered some
of the statements given in evidence. It is an explanation all the way through of
the Department’s stand and part of the correspondence to bring about a clear
un.dersta.nding for the members of the Committee, the whole purpose of course
being to explain that while we are now working in co-operation and on clear-
cut lines with the Salvation Army it is just as well to clear up, from a depart-
. mental point of view, the evidence we have. Shall I submit it or read it?

The CmamrrMan: I think it should be tabled.
Several MemBERs: Take it as read.

SALVATION ARMY

I quote the following extracts from the evidence of Colonel Thos. R. Tudge
of the Salvation Army on page 477 of the minutes of proceedings and evidence
of the select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization respecting
an Order of Reference—Immigration Inquiry (No. 17—Wednesday May 9, 1928
—Thursday, May 10, 1928).

I am here to-day at the invitation of this Committee, I understand,
to make a statement in regard to the work of the Salvation Army Migra-
tion and Settlement Department, especially relating to that of Canadian
et blernenticla e di wruie i bkt

The Salvation Army Migration and Settlement Department came into
being in 1903 as the result of many calls for help and assistance received
in Great Britain from pecple who desired to migrate..................

and on page 482:—

........ In addition to these Territorial Divisions the Migration and
Settlement Department (Chief Office, Montreal) is represented by a Resi-
dent Secretary with suitable assistants. The Resident Secretary, whose
sole business is Immigration and Settlement, is responsible for the Immigra-
tion and Settlement work throughout the whole of the Dominion and while
closely co-operating with the Territorial Commissioners is responsible
directly to Migration House in London................

I quote the following extract from the evidence of Staff-Capt. Owen Culshaw
of the Salvation Army which appears on page 503:—

Q. Do you keep your accounts in this connection separate? Is there

a line clearly drawn between the money received and spent for immigra-
tion and the money received and spent for other purposes? i

A. Absolutely. The Salvation Army acts under two separate deed

polls, one for the general organization, which is the religious side and then

there is the social side which is operated under what is known as “the

Darkest England Trust”. The accounts are entirely separate and pub-

lished balance sheets are supplied each year. The central fund’s balance
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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sheet, which ineludes the religious side, is issued on the 30th of September
and the Darkest England, which embraces the Immigration Department
and the other social activities, is issued as from the 31st of March each
year.

I desire in the first place to emphasize the fact that the Department has
had no dispute with the Salvation Army as a religious and social organization.
The difficulties which have arisen are entirely between the Immigration Branch
of the Salvation Army and the Department of Immigration and Colonization.

These disputes may be summarized as follows:—

1. Grants of money for carrying on immigration work;
2. The Army’s custom of collecting from immigrant boys;
3. The movement of women for domestic service.

1. Grants of Money for Carrying on Immagration Work

With reference to grants of money to the Immigration Branch of the Sal-
vation Army for carrying on immigration work, annexed hereto is a statement
of amounts paid by the Department of Immigration and Colonization to the
Salvation Army for a period of twenty-three years from the fiscal year of
1904-05.

It will be observed from this Statement that during the period mentioned,
ie., from 1904-05 until 1926-27, the Salvation Army received an annual grant
which varied from $500 plus bonuses amounting to $9,052.50 in 1906-07 to
grants of $35,000 in 1923-24. It will also be observed from this Statement that
the total sums paid to the Salvation Army from April 1, 1904 to March 31,
1927 was $555,268.91.

The Empire Settlement Act, 1922, was passed on the 31st of May, 1922.
The first Assisted Passage Agreement between the Department of Immigration
and the Oversea Settlement Department of the British Government was executed
on the 11th April, 1923. Under the Assisted Passage Agreement loans were
made in whole or in part to immigrants coming to Canada to work on the land
and to household workers.

When passage assistance was under discussion the then Acting Minister of
Immigration, the Hon. Charles Stewart, took the view that the offer of passage
assistance by Canada in conjunction with the British Government would neces-
sitate a revision of the whole policy of making grants to organizations especially
as the Assisted Passage Agreement provided not for a loan but for a grant on
account of the transportation of children who migrate under the auspices of
juvenile societies. Prior to the first Assisted Passage Agreement the transporta-
tion of these children to Canada was paid by the Juvenile Migration Societies.
Under the various Assisted Passage Agreements which have been in effect since
the 11th of April, 1923 the sum of $80 has been paid jointly by the Department
of Immigration and the overseas Settlement Department to Juvenile Societies
for the transportation of each juvenile immigrant within the meaning and in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Juvenile Emigration Societies, which of course include the Salvation
Army, obtain a rate of £11.10.0 or $55.96 which leaves a margin of $24.04 to
the Juvenile Migration Society for railroad and other incidental expenses. This
means that for every 100 children brought forward to points East of Manitoba
by the Immigration Department of the Salvation Army or any other Juvenile
Migration Society, the Department pays $8,000 of which amount the sum of
$5,600 is expended on account of ocean transportation and the balance of $2,400
is retained by the Juvenile Society for railroad and other incidental expenses.

Under date of the 11th of April, 1927 a supplementary Passage Agreement
was executed to provide that in the ease of children proceeding to destinations
in Canada, West of Ontario, the assistance would be at the rate of $100.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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The grant was not discontinued to the Immigration Branch of the Salvation
Army on the date of the Assisted Passage Agreement because it was claimed
some previous promise had been made that the grant of $25,000 would be given
for a period of four years, but some time before the four-year period expired
the Army was advised that the grant would not again be renewed inasmuch as
the Immigration Branch of the Army and other Juvenile Societies had been
relieved of all expenditure on account of ocean transportation.

The above grant of $25,000 was, therefore, paid annually to the Salvation
Army Immigration and Settlement Department for a period of four years
commencing with the fiscal year 1923-24 but this grant was discontinued on
account, of the Assisted Passage Agreement. During the four-year period men-
tioned, the Salvation Army Immigration and Settlement Department, therefore,
not only received $25,000 per annum or grants totalling $100,000 but also grants
on account of transportation for juveniles amounting to $106,748.87 of which
amount the sum of $45,220.19 was paid by the Oversea Settlement Department.
Apart altogether, however, from the sums paid by the Department to the Salva-
tion Army Immigration and Settlement Department on account of transporta-
tion, it would have been necessary to reconsider the whole policy of giving grants.
In the first place the Immigration and Settlement Department of the Salvation
Army is a booking agency and very strong representations had been made by
Booking Agents in the United Kingdom who vigorously protested against the Sal-
vation Army receiving preferential treatment in the form of cash subsidies. There
are in the United Kingdom several thousand Booking Agents who do much
of the spade work in recruiting immigrants and the Department is not pre-
pared to incur the hostility of the individual Booking Agent in the British
Isles. In the second place several Provincial Governments were making grants
to the Salvation Army, the result being that the Immigration and Settlement
Department of the Salvation Army were placing their immigrants largely if
not wholly in those Provinces from which they obtain financial assistance.

The Immigration and Settlement Department of the Salvation Army now
receive:—

(a) A grant of $5,000;

(b) A grant of $10 per boy for training at Hadleigh;

(c) A per diem allowance for household workers in Salvation Army Hos-

tels. (We have not yet been advised as to whether the Salvation
Army will accept this contribution.)

(d) A joint grant of $80 for the transportation of each juvenile migrant
whose destination is east of Manitoba and $100 when the destination
is west of Ontario. Of this grant the Salvation Army or any other
juvenile migration society receives a margin of $24.04 per migrant for
railroad and other incidental expenses;

(¢) The benefit of the reduced ocean rate given under the Assisted Passage
Agreement to every adult migrant approved by Oversea Agents of the
Department.

Paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) are contributions by the Dominion Govern-
ment; paragraph (d) is a joint contribution on a fifty-fifty basis by the British
and Dominion Governments.

2. The Army’s Custom of Collecting from Immigrant Boys

The movement of juvenile immigrants to Canada under the auspices of
Various organizations has been going on for something like sixty years. The
Army became interested in this work in 1905 and out of the total of upwards
of 90,000 children brought to Canada in the period of sixty years, the Army
has brought about 3,000. '

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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There is a Branch of our Department whose business it is to visit and
otherwise look after these juvenile immigrants. These officers discovered that
the Army was collecting from the boys placed on farms, an amount equal to
and sometimes larger than the passage grant. In the summer of 1924, the Hon.
Margaret Bondfield headed a delegation on which were representatives of the
British Government, for the purpose of studying the child migration movement
to Canada. Miss Bondfield’s report, issued at the conclusion of the visit of the
delegation, referred to the practice of collecting moneys from boys. The ques-
tion was taken up both by the Department of Immigration and the Oversea
Secttlement Department and it was understood that the practice would be dis-
continued. Instead of discontinuing the practice, however, the Army merely
changed the form of doing it and instead of calling it a refund they called it a
contribution and represented that it was a voluntary contribution on the part
of the boy to the work of the Army, so that some other boy might have an
equal chance.

Onr Inspectors gave considerable care to this system and in the early
autumn of 1926, having received evidence that the Army was enforcing the
refund of money and that the boys believed they were refunding passage and
were in ignorance of the fact that the British Government and the Canadian
Government were sufficiently interested to give them a free passage to Canada
in order that they might make a start in agricultural life here, we notified the
Army that the practice must be discontinued and sums recovered in this manner
must be refunded to the boys and further that until this was done, no further
movement of boys under their auspices would be allowed.

While the Minister and the Deputy Minister were in London during June,
1927, Mr. T. C. Macnaghten, Vice-Chairman of the Oversea Settlement Com-
mittee who had been negotiating with Commissioner Lamb as representing the
Salvation Army, advised the Minister that the Oversea Settlement Committee
were agreeable to permitting the Salvation Army to recover £5 from each boy
instead of the larger and varied amounts they had previously been collecting.
The Minister’s decision is embodied in the following letter dated the 14th June,
1927, addressed to Mr. T. C. Macnaghten by Mr. W. J. Egan.

Jas. L. MancoLm,
Canadian Government Emigration Agent.

DEePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND CoLoN1zZATION, CANADA,
107, Hope Street, Glasgow,

June 14, 1927.

Dear Mr. MacNAGHTEN,—Referring to the recovery of £5 by the Salvation
Army from boys who are trained at Hadleigh, the Minister desires me to say
that he cannot endorse, and does not approve of, this transaction, especially as
no collections are made by other organizations and substantial contributions are
made by Governments.

In view of the representations which have been made by the Chairman of
the Overseas Settlement Committee and yourself to the effect that your Com-
mittee consider the Salvation Army should be permitted to collect £5 from each
boy so trained, the Minister has decided to raise no further objection for the
time being but reserves the right, without prejudice, to re-open the whole ques-
tion at a later date.

The Minister is also firmly convinced that boys of tender years should not
be asked to sign Contracts or so-called Agreements. He suggests that such

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Documents should be signed or executed by the Parent or Legal Guardian, and
I enclose a sample copy of the form which the Minister has in mind. 4

Yours faithfully,
Deputy Minister.
T. C. Mac~nacuTEN, Esq.,
Vice-Chairman,
Oversea Settlement Committee,
Caxton House, Tothill St.,
London.

TS0y dn bt Tl poideving, sl od 0018 viBather (Mother sorGuardiamn)
B ..o vt oot dal Siatl e Do o bersie vow duidw whodsimigratingte
CANADA under the auspices of the Salvation Army understand that the ocean
passage, and rail fare in Canada, have been paid by the Imperial and Canadian
Government. I also understand that the cost of his training at Hadleigh and
Settlement Overseas is being paid for, by the said Government and the Salva-
tion Army.

EURE e b0/ permiG Dy [ SOTECOT BT ¢ s tr s Sis s ona bob- o Ban s pun sows aia iuls
to pay to the Salvation Army the sum of £5 as a contribution towards the
Army’s Migration Fund, and I authorize the Army to recover this sum from my
son’s (or Ward’s) employer as a deduction from his wages over a period of not
less than siz months or more than eight months from the date on which my son
(or Ward) is placed in work Overseas.

Provided that the Authority hereby conferred shall be null and void unless
my son (or Ward) is earning at least the sum of T'en Dollars per month in addi-
tion to room and board.

Parent (or Guardian).
On page 499 of the “ Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the Select
Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization (No. 17—Wednesday,

May 9, 1928), Mr. Cahan asked that the letters from the boys, who stated that
hey were repaying back their passage money, should be produced.

The correspondence shows these boys were under the impression that they
owed their passage to the Salvation Army, e.g., the boy E. Bradshaw stated he
was told that the paper he signed was an agreement to pay £16 to the Army for
his transportation.

Annexed to the correspondence are samples of reports of the Juvenile
Inspectors of the Department. After the report of the Bondfield Delegation,
which visited Canada in 1924, the Department inserted in the form of report the
following questions:—

Is child required by Agency to repay any sum of money?
If so, state the amount and cause of the indebtedness.

As a result of these reports, it was decided to write direct to about fifty of
these boys. It was decided not to write to all the boys who had been brought
forward by the above organization lest they might be made restless. These let-
ters conveyed the same information that was given to the Inspectors on their
regular visits, but instead of being replies to question, the letters are voluntary
statement by the boys, in their own handwriting and bearing their signatures.

The difficulty regarding collection has been adjusted by the letter dated
June 14, 1927, which I have already read and which was addressed to Mr. Mac-
naghten by W. J. Egan, Deputy Minister of Immigration.

) [Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Copy
231117
July 24th, 1926.
Dear Frienpo,—When Mr. Scobie visited you on the 5th of July, you
informed him that you had to repay $100 to the Salvation Army in connection
with your migration to Canada. I have taken this matter up with the office
of the Salvation Army, 341 University street, Montreal, and have been informed
that you are not indebted to the Salvation Army for your transportation to
Canada but that you have written to General Booth offering to contribute to
the Army funds so that other boys might have the same kind of a chance that
you have had. Would you kindly let me know whether you signed any docu-
ment pledging yourself to repay $100 to the Salvation Army and if you have
a copy of the paper which you signed, would you kindly let me have it. For
your convenience in replying, please find enclosed an addressed envelope, which
requires no postage. Kindly include in your answer a statement as to whether,
prior to your coming to Canada, you were on a training farm in England and if
so for how long.
With best wishes,
Yours very truly,

Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
[Leoxarp Harpy, Esq.,
¢/o George Brown,
R.R. No. 1,
Richmond, Ontario.

Sir,—In reply to your statement which I received on the 26th inst.

I signed a document agreeing to pay to the Salvation Army the sum of $100
with the understanding that it was for my transportation to Canada and not as
a contribution to Army funds.

This document is in England. I think other boys are repaying the money
with the same idea.

Those who enter farther into Canada have more than $100 to pay; there-
fore it must appear to be the cost of passage.

1 was on a training farm for three months but this was termed to be free.

I have been in Canada for six months and during that period have learnt
what farm life really is. I can’t stand it any longer, so I am going to do my
utmost to get back home.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) LEONARD HARDY.
I have notice to leave Mr. G. Brown on August 3rd.

Copy
225189
June 12th, 1926.
Dear Frienp,—You will no doubt recall the visit of Mr. D. M. Morrison,
on the 11th of May last. On that occasion you gave Mr. Morrison to under-
stand that you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of $19, on
account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up with the
office of the Salvation Army at 341 University street, Montreal, and have been
informed that you received no loan from the Salvation Army, but that you have
written to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army Fund. In this
connection would you kindly let me know whether you signed any document
pledging yourself to refund any sum of money to the Salvation Army on account
of your migration to Canada, also whether you were advised by the Salvation
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Army or by any other person that the two Governments make a grant to the
Salvation Army in connection with the migration of boys coming to Canada
under the auspices of the Army, also whether prior to your coming to Canada
you were on & training farm in England and if so, the period. If you have a
copy of any documents signed, would you kindly let me have a copy.

For your convenience in replying, please find enclosed an addressed envelope
which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,
G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor, Juvenile Immigraiion.

Wum. J. Brar, Esq.,

¢/o H. Delong,

R.R. No. 1, Elgin, Ontario.

Encl.

Copy
¢/o Mr. H. P. Delong,
R.R. 1, Elgin, Ont.

_ DEar Sir,—1In reply to your letter I am sending you full particulars of my
emigration to Canada. Before I was accepted for training at the Army’s
training farm, I signed and filled in forms, in one of which I stated that I would
pay £1 to the Army and pay the rest of my debt while in Canada. The other
forms merely requested particulars about myself. I was at the Army’s training
farm seven (7) weeks and there I signed two papers one pledging myself to pay
a debt of £19 (English not dollars) for my emigration to Canada and the other
to stay on the farm work at least 2 vrs.

. On the day of sailing T got a complete outfit of clothes from the S.A. con-
sisting of 1 suit, 1 overcoat, 2 shirts, 2 sets underwear, 1 pr. boots, 1 pr. gloves,
3 pr. socks, also collars, ties, brushes, ete. With regards to my sending a letter
to General Booth saying I would contribute to the Army’s fund I sent no such
letter and T understand my emigration fees to be a debt to the Army. Altogether
the cost to myself amounts £20 or nearly $100.

I remain,
Yours truly,
(Sgd.) W. J. BOAL.

Copy 243936

DePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
1st June, 1926.

DEear Friexp:—Mr. Morrison, who visited you on May 19th, has reported
that you informed him you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent
of $100 on account of your migration to Canada. In this connection we took the
matter up with the officers of the Salvation Army, No. 341 University street,
Montreal, and have been informed that you are not indebted to the Salvation
Army, but that you have written to General Booth offering to contribute to the
Army Funds.

Would you kindly let me know whether you were informed by the Salvation
Army that the two Governments paid a sum of money to the Salvation Army on
account of your coming to Canada. Would you also kindly let me have, if avail-
able, a copy of any document you may have signed in regard to the repayment
of any money to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada.

Thanking you in anticipation of your early reply.

Yours very truly, TR
Mr. Wu. E. FRANKLIN, Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
c¢/o Samuel Steacy, Esq.,

R.R. No. 3, Augusta, Ontario.
[Mr. W. J..Eg_an.]
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Copy
¢/o Samuel Steacy,
R.R. No. 3,
North Augusta,
Ontario.
8.6.1926.

Dgear Sir:—In answer to your letter dated 1.6.1926, I would state that I
was not informed by the Salvation Army that the two Governments paid a sum
of money to the Salvation Army on my account of coming to this country. Also
that I did not write to General Booth offering to pay the sum of $100 towards
the Salvation Army’s funds. I regret that I cannot let you have any document
concerning payment of any money to the Salvation Army as I, only signed one
of which I did not read, being told by the Salvation Army Officer that it......
asking me to place my signature, promise that I would repay the loan, and would
stay where they placed me for at least one year. This paper the Salvation Army
kept.

' I am,
Yours respectively,

(Signed) WILLIAM E. FRANKLIN.

¢/o Mr. Sam Steacy,
R.R. No. 3, North Augusta, Ont.,
15, 2, 1928,

Dear Sir,—Received your letter dated 28th of January and would like to
say that I am well and happy here. I am progressing with my work very well
and have paid my debt to the Salvation Army of a $100 and have $41 to my
name in the bank. Thanking you for your kind enquiries after my welfare,

I remain,
Yours truly,
W. E. FRANKLIN.

The above was in reply to a letter from the Supervisor of Juvenile Immigra-
tion as to how he was progressing.

Copy 248667
July 27, 1926.
Dear Frienp:—When Mr. Pennock visited you on the 7th of July, you
informed Mr. Pennock that you had to refund $85 to the Salvation Army on
account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up with the
office of the Salvation Army, and have been advised that you are not indebted
to that organization for the cost of your transportation to Canada, but that you
have written to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army fund, so that
other boys may have the same kind of a chance as you have had. In this con-
nection would you kindly let me know whether you signed any document pledging
yourself to refund a sum of money to the Salvation Army, and let me have a
copy of the paper if you have one. Would you also let me know, whether prior
to your migrating to Canada you were on a training farm in England.
For your convenience in replying, please find enclosed an addressed envelope
which requires no postage. With best wishes.

Yours very truly,

G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
Andrew Allen, Esq., ‘
¢/o Edward Dyer, Esq.,
Wheatland, Manitoba.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Copy

¢/o Mr. E. O. Dyer,
Wheatland,
Manitoba.
3/8/26.

Dear Sir:—In answer to your letter dated July 27, it is quite true I
informed Mr. Pennock that I had $85 to return to the Salvation Army, but I
have since discovered that it is 90 dollars for my passage to Canada. I signed
a paper pledging myself to return the above sum to the S.A. Further, I never
had a copy of it as they kept it. I was on a training farm in England for six
weeks, perhaps these letters will help you to find out, also this receipt for the
money which Mr. Dyer, my employer, has kindly paid over. Please return letters
and receipt.

Yours sincerely,

(Signed) ANDREW ALLAN.

248621
July 23rd, 1926.

Dear Friexp,—When Mr. Morison visited you on the 23rd of June, you
informed him that you had to repay £6 to the Salvation Army on account of
your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up with the Office of the
Salvation Army at Montreal and have been informed that you are not indebted
to that Organization for the cost of your passage to Canada but that you have
written to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army Fund so that other
boys may have the same kind of a chance as you have had. Would you kindly
let me know whether you signed any Document pledging yourself to repay a
certain sum of money to the Salvation Army and if so would you kindly let me
have a copy of the Document if you have one. In replying would you kindly
let me know whether prior to your migration to Canada you were on a training
farm in England. For your convenience in replying please find enclosed, an
addressed envelope which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,

G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Groree Dovcras, Esq.,
¢/o Mr. S. R. Joyece,
Wales, Ontario.

Copy/Fr.

¢/o Mr. S. R. Joyce,
Wales, Ontario.

Dear Sir,—Just a few lines to let you know I got your letter. I did sign a
paper saying that I would pay back £6 and also a paper to say I would stay at
farming 2 years. I was at Hadleigh Colony six weeks before I came to Canada.
The Colony is in Essex and I never wrote no letter to General Booth. I signed
the papers before I left for Canada. When the Salvation Army man was down
to see me I asked him if I could send money to mother, and he said it was better
to pay of your debt. That is all I did.

I am,
Yours obediently,

(Sgd.) GEORGE DOUGLAS.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



158 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

248610-Imm,
Copy

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

July 19th, 1926.

DEear Frienp,—When Inspector Scobie visited you on the 26th of June, you
informed Mr. Scobie that you had to refund £16 to the Salvation Army on
account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up with the
office of the Salvation Army at 341 University Street, Montreal, and have been
informed that you are not indebted to the Salvation Army for your transporta-
tion to Canada, but that you had written to General Booth offering to contribute
to the Army fund, so that other boys may have the same kind of a chance that
you have had. Would you kindly let me know whether you signed any docu-
ment pledging yourself to repay any sum of money, and in case you have a copy
of the paper signed would you kindly let me have it. In reply would you also
kindly let me know whether prior to your migration to Canada, you were on a
training farm in England. For your convenience in replying, please find enclosed
an addressed envelope which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,
Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
TroMmAs BeaTTIE, Esq.,
¢/o Mr. Archie Ritchie,
Woodlawn, Ontario.

Memorandum:

The report of Inspector of Juvenile Children John A. Gillies who saw
Thomas Beattie on the 5th October, 1927, states,—

Thomas said, “ I have a good home. It is a fine place. I am staying
another year. Yes, we were told in England we owed the Salvation Army
£16 for our passage out to Canada.”

248622

Copy/Es.
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

Otrawa, July 27, 1926.

Dear Friexp,—When Mr. Morrison visited you on the 28th of June, you
informed Mr. Morrison that you had to refund £13 to the Salvation| Army on
account of your migration to Canada. Would you kindly let me know whether
you signed any paper pledging yourself to repay this money to the Salvation
Army, and let me have a copy of the document if you have one.

We have taken the matter up with the Salvation Army and have been
advised that you are not indebted to that Organization for your passage to
Canada, but that vou have written to General Booth, offering to contribute to
the Army funds so that other boys may have the same kind of a chance as you
have had. In reply would you kindly let me know whether prior to your migra-
tion to Canada you were on a training farm in England.

For your convenience in writing me please find enclosed an addressed enve-
lope which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor, Juvenile I'mmigration.
Ber~arp McMaHoON, Esq.,
¢/o Wm. Docksteader, Esq.,
Ormond, Ont.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Copies.
Ormond, Ont.,
August 4, 1926.
Mr. G. B. Smagr,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—In regard to your letter of July 27, I would state that I signed
the paper pledging myself to repay the sum of £13 to the Salvation Army, but
the Salvation Army hold this paper. I haven’t it in my possession. I have a
receipt signed by H. E. Saunders, Cashier, showing the £3 paid by my father.

Previous to my migration to Canada I spent six weeks on a training farm
in England.

Hoping this will be satisfactory, I am
Yours respectfully,

(Sgd.) BERNARD McMAHON,
(Sgd.) Per J. DOCKSTEADER.

N.B.—On the back of this sheet of paper you will find a copy of the cash
acknowledgment held by me.
BERNARD McMAHON.

Copy:
Feb. 8/1926.

Received from Bernard McMahon the sum of three pounds for passage.

H. E. SAUNDERS,
(Cashier).

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
Orrawa, July 15, 1926.

. Dgar Sir,—When Mr. Scobie visited you on the 26th of June you informed
h}m that you had to repay £16 to the Salvation Army on account of your migra-
tlon to Canada. We have taken this matter up with the office of the Salvation
Army at 341 University Street, Montreal, and have been informed as follows:—

With reference to his indebtedness he is not indebted to our organi-
zation for his transportation to Canada. He has written to General
Booth offering to contribute to the Army Funds so that other boys may
have the same kind of a chance that he has had.

Would you kindly let me know whether you signed any documents pledging
yourself to refund any sum of money to the Salvation Army and if you have a
copy of the paper would you kindly let me have it. Would you also kindly let
me know whether prior to your migration to Canada you were on a training
farm in England. For your convenience in replying, please find enclosed an
addressed envelope which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,

G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
Eric Brabsuaw, Esq.,
C/0 Wm. Gordon, Esq.,

Woodlawn, Ont.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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C/o Wm. Gordon,
Woodlawn, Ont.,
July 23, 1926.

Dgear Sir,—In reply to your letter of the 15th inst. No. 249611, I was led
to understand that I was to pay the Army £16 for my passage and outfit.
1 signed a paper agreeing to this at Hadleigh Colony, Essex, England, where
I was in training for six weeks, but I have not written any letter whatsoever to
Gen. Booth to say I would contribute to the Army funds, all I was told was that
the paper 1 was signing of which I have no copy, was an agreement to pay £16
to the Army for my transportation.
Yours truly,
E. BRADSHAW.

DEePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

Otrawa, 7th June, 1926.

Dear Friend—When Inspector Morrison visited you on the 25th May you
informed him that you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of £16
on account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up with
Brigadier E. J. Pinchen of the Salvation Army, 341 University St., Montreal,
and have been informed that you are not indebted to the organization for your
actual passage to this country, but that you have written General Booth offering
to contribute to the Army funds. In this connection would you kindly let me
know whether you signed any document, pledging yourself to repay any sum of
money to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada and if
so, would you kindly let me have a copy; also whether you were informed by
the Salvation Army, or by any person that the two Governments made a grant
to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada. I would also
be obliged if you would let me know whether you were on a Salvation Army
Training Farm prior to your migration to Canada, and if so, for what length of
time.

For your convenience in replying you will find enclosed an addressed
envelope, which requires no postage.
Yours very truly,

G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
Mr. Wirriam McQUIRE,
C/o Neil Morrisey, Esq.,
Jasper, Ont.

R.R. 2, Jasper, Ont., Can.

Dear Frienp—Just a few lines to let you know that I received your wel-
come letter and was glad to get it.

I must let you know that I never signed any document concerning money
matters for my coming to Canada and nobody ever told me that the two Gov-
ernments made any grant to the Salvation Army on account for me coming out
here.

I was in Hadleigh, Essex, England Land Colony for training to come abroad
for farming. I was there for three weeks.

Yours truly,

WM. McGUIRE.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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237083-Imm.
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

24th June, 1926.

Dgear Friexp,—You will no doubt recall the visit of Mr. D. M. Morrison,
on the 10th May last. I understand that you told Mr, Morrison you were
indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of $100.00. We took this matter
up with the office of the Salvation Army at No. 341 University street, Montreal,
and we have received the following statement:—

Re—Amos Hawker

I beg to acknowledge receipt of yours of May 15th, and in reply
would state that this boy is not indebted to us for his passage over. He
has written to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army funds
so that other boys can have the same kind of a chance that he has had.:

I note from this statement that you are said to have written to General
Booth offering to contribute to the Army funds. Would you kindly let me
know whether you have a copy of any paper which you signed in this connec-
tion, and if so, would you kindly let me have a copy of it. Would you also
kmdlv let me know whether you were informed by the Salvation Army that the
two Governments made a contribution to the Salvation Army on account of
their bringing you to Canada.

Thanking you in anticipation of your early reply. With best wishes,

Yours very truly,
" Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Mr. Amos HAWKER,
¢/o Frank Barker, Esq.,
R.R. No. 2, Lombardy, Ont.

No. 237083

AMos HAWKER,
¢/o Frank Barker,
R.R. No. 2, Lombardy, Ont.

Dear Sir,—I received your letter dated June 24th, which I am sorry to say
I did not answer. I was told on Hadleigh Colony that I had to pay back the
sum of £20 or $100 in return for bringing me to Canada and I signed a paper
in this connection. They did not tell me that I was not indebted te them for
my passage over. As for signing a paper offering to contribute to the Army
funds I have no recollection and I have no copy of such a paper. The Salva-
tion Army did not tell me that the two Governments had made a contribution
to them on account of bringing me to Canada.
I hope this will satisfy you and make it quite plain to you the conditions
under which I came to Canada.
I remain,
Yours truly, 4
(Sgd. AMOS HAWKER.
250757

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
May 13th, 1927.

Drar Frienp,—I note from the report of our Inspector, who called to see
you on the 28th of April, that you state you wrote to the Salvation Army and
that a representative of the Army called to see you and that your account was

65927—13
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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reduced from $80 to $42. Does this mean that the total amount of your account
with the Salvation Army is $42 or does it mean $42 is the balance of your
account? Perhaps you have already paid the difference between $42 and $80.
Would you kindly let me hear from you in connection at your early con-
venience.

The enclosed envelope requires no postage.

With best wishes,
Yours very truly,

StanLEYy UnsworTH, Esq., Supervisor, Juvenile Immagration.

¢/o Mr. William Overholt,

R.R. No. 4, Simcoe, Ont.

Dear Sir,—The total amount of my account which I owe the Salvation

Army is $42.50.
Yours truly,
(Sgd.) S. UNSWORTH.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION 243450

17th August, 1926.

Dgear Frienp,—On the 1st June I wrote you asking if you would kindly
advise me whether you were informed by the Salvation Army that the two
Governments paid a sum of money to the Salvation Army on account of your
migration to Canada. As I have not heard from you in reply, my letter may
not have reached you. Would you also let me have, if available, a copy of any
letter or paper you may have signed in regard to the payment of any money
to the Salvation Army on account of your migration.

I will be pleased to hear from you at an early date, and enclosed please find
stamped envelope for reply. -

Yours very truly,
Mr. Jor~N FisH, Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
¢/o Mr. Charles J. McGuire,
R.R. No. 2, Spencerville, Ont.
Sept. 8th, 1926,
5 Hanson St., Off Greenacre Rd.,
Oldham, Lanc., England.
Your Ref. 243450.

Sir:—Just a few lines in regard to my boy which sailed for Canada Jan.
23rd, 1926, from Liverpool after training at Hadleigh Essex for farming, my
boy sent me the letter what you sent to him so I have sent him a book and
letters to let you see I have paid money to the Salvation Army when they ask
for it we was only in poor circumstances when my boy begged for us to sign for
him, his father was not working at the time and we have two more children,
a little girl 3 years old also a boy 14 years last Jan. 6th, 1926, so you will under-
stand the reason why I let my boy go with the Salvation Army as I could not
pay all the money I wrote to them and asked them the reason why my boy had
to pay more money back and yet have less wages than the other two boys
which left Oldham a month later for Canada they sent me a letter to say I
could not expect my boy to get the same on g little farm as a big one but I am
glad to know my boy has got a good home also a good master and mistress.
He gives them great praise for their kindness to him. I hope you will not be
offended at me for taking the liberty in writing to you as a mother’s love I
felt it my duty to do so from. :

Yours,

(Signed) MRS. E. T. FISH.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

Orrawa, July 23rd, 1926.

Drar Frienp,—When Mr. Scobie visited you on the 9th of July, you
informed him that you had to repay £16 to the Salvation Army on account of
your migration to Canada. Would you kindly let me know whether you signed
any document pledging yourself to return this sum of money to the Salvation
Army and if you have a copy of the paper signed, would you kindly let me
have it. In replying, would you also let me know whether prior to your mi-
gration to Canada you were on a training farm in England. For your con-
venience in replying please find enclosed an addressed envelope which requires
no postage.

Yours very truly,
G. BOGUE SMART,

Frank Covne, Esq., Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.

¢/o Ernest A. Caldwell,

Bells Corners, Ontario.
. PS—We have communicated with the Salvation Army and have been
Informed that you are not indebted to their organization on account of your
bassage to Canada, but that you have written General Booth offering to con-
tribute to the Army Funds so that other boys may have the same kind of a
chance that you have had.

Mr. F. COYNE,
¢/o Mr. E. Caldwell.
Bells Corners, Ont., 27 July, 1926.
Dear Sir,—I received your letter Monday and was very much surprised at
Your information. I certainly signed two papers one of which I understood was
an agreement to pay £16 but I have no copies neither were they given to me
to read. Before migrating I was on their training farm at Hadleigh England for
a period of one month and I did not write any letters to General Booth offering
to contribute.
Yours truly,
F. G. COYNE.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

OtTAawa, July 19, 1926.

Dear Frienp,—When I visited you on the 23rd of June, you gave me to
understand that you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of £14
on account of your migration to Canada. I have taken this matter up with
the office of the Salvation Army at 341 University Street, Montreal, and have
been informed that you are not indebted to the Salvation Army for your passage
to Canada, but that you had written to General Booth offering to contribute
to the Army fund, so that other boys may have the same kind of a chance that
you have had. Would you kindly let me know whether you signed any docu-
ment pledging yourself to repay £14 to the Salvation Army. In case you have
& copy of the paper signed, would you kindly let me have it, together with
nformation as to whether you were in a training farm in England prior to your
migrating to Canada. For your convenience in replying please find enclosed
an addressed envelope.

Yours very truly,

G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor Juvenile Immigration.
Tromas Anprrson, Esa.,

¢/o Mr. George Newman, .
Muirkirk, Ontario.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
65027133
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Thomas Anderson,
¢/o G. B. Newman, MUIRKIRK, ONT.
Drar Sie—I signed a document, prior to sailing, stating that I would pay

dalvation Army £14 (fourteen pounds). I regret I haven’t a copy of paper
that T signed. Prior to sailing I had seven weeks training at Salvation Army

Colony, Hadleigh, Essex.

Yours very truly,
THOMAS ANDERSON.

243937.
DePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

Orrawa, 7th June, 1926.

Dear Frienp,—When Inspector Morrison visited you on the 19th May, you
‘informed him that you were indebted to the Salvation Army for a certain sum
of money on account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter
up with Brigadier E. J. Pinchen, of the Salvation Army, 341 University street,
Montreal, and have been informed that you are not indebted to the Organization,
but that you have written General Booth offering to contribute to the Army
funds. In this connection;, would you kindly let me know whether you signed
any document pledging yourself to repay any sum of money to the Salvation
Army on account of your migration to Canada, and if so, would you kindly let
me have a copy; also whether you were informed by the Salvation Army, or by
any person, that the two Governments made a grant to the Salvation Army on
account of migration to Canada. I would also be obliged if you would let me
krow whether you were on a Salvation Army Training Farm prior to your migra-
tion to Canada, and if so, for what length of time. .

For your convenience in replying you will find enclosed an addressed
envelope, which requires no postage.

: Yours very truly,
(Signed) G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.

Mr. Wum. J. WALLACE,
¢/o Mr. Charles Whitley,
Spencerville, Ontario.

SPENCERVILLE,
Ontario, 11th June.

Dear Sir,—In reply to your letter received, I wish you to know that before
emigrating to Canada I signed a document to the effect that I was indebted to
the Salvation Army for the sum of £20—$100, towards my passage. I was allowed
two years in which to repay the money. I was never informed before concerning
any grant made between the two Governments. I was working on the Hadleigh
Training Farm, Essex, for six weeks prior to migrating. I hope I have answered
your questions satisfactory and I am very much indebted and grateful to all
who have taken an interest in my welfare.

I remain,
Yours thankfully,

(Signed) WM. L. WALLACE,
¢/o Mr. C. WHITE,
Spencerville,
Ontario.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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243951.
DePARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

Orrawa, 8th June, 1926.

Drar Frienp,—When Mr. D. M, Morrison visited you on the 20th May
you informed him that you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent
of $78 on account of your migration to Canada. We took this matter up with
the office of the Salvation Army, at No. 341 University street, Montreal, and
have been informed by that Organization that you are not indebted to the Salva-
tion Army, but that you have written to General Booth offering to contribute
to the Army funds so that other boys can have the same kind of a chance that
you have had. In this connection would you kindly let me know whether you
signed any document pledging yourseélf to repay any definite sum of money to
the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada. In case you did
would you kindly let me have a copy of the paper you signed. Would you also
kindly let me know whether the Salvation Army or any other person advised you
that the two Governments made a grant to the Salvation Army on account of
your coming to Cenada under the auspices of that Organization; also whethér
You were prior to your coming to Canada on a Salvation Army Training Farm,
and if so, for what length of time.

For your convenience in replying please find enclosed an addressed envelope
which requires no postage.
' Yours very truly,

(Signed) G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
Mr. WiLLiam Dobp, ,
¢/o E. E. McKendry, Esq;,
Mountain, Ontario.

¢/o E. E. McKENDRY,
R.R. 3 Mountain, Ontario, 11-6-26:

DEar Sig,—I did not write at all to General Booth offering to contribute
any sum of money to the Salvation Army but I did sign a paper pledging myself
to repay £16—about $78 which I understood was towards my passage, ete.

I have no copy of the paper that I signed. :

The Salvation Army or any other person did not advise me that the two
overnments made a grant to the Salvation Army on account of my coming to
anada under this organization. % :

I was on the S.A. training farm for 7 weeks.

I remain,
Yours truly,

(Signed) WILLIAM F. DODD.

File 243441.
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION '

Ortawa, June 2nd, 1926.

Drar Frmexp,—Mr. Morrison, who visited you on the 12th of May, has
Teported that you informed him that you were indebted to the extent of $100 to
the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada. We took this mat-
ter up with the office of the Salvation Army and we have been informed that you
are not indebted to their Organization, but that you have written General Booth

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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offering to contribute to the Army Fund. Would you kindly let me know
whether you have a copy of any paper you signed to this effect, and if so, would
you kindly let me have a copy of it.

Yours truly,

(Signed) G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Wirniam J. Geppes, Esq.,
¢/o Mr. L. Kilbourn,
R.R. No. 4,
Athens, Ontario.

Wwum. JouN GebppEs,
¢/o Mr. L. Kilborn,
R.R. 4, Athens, Ont.,
8/6,/26.

. Dear Sik,—When coming to Canada by the Salvation Army I understood
that I would have to pay back to them my passage. I signed a form agreeing
to pay £20 which I understood was for my passage and some clothes. I know
nothing of the Fund you speak of in your letter, and I have no copys of any kind.

Yours truly,
(Sgd.) WM. JOHN GEDDES.

File 243952
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

OrTAwWa, 7th June, 1926.

Dzar Friexp,—When Inspector Morrison visited you on the 20th May, you
informed him that you wee indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of
£14 on account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up
with Brigadier E. J. Pinchen, of the Salvation Army, 341 University street,
Montreal, and have been informed that you are not indebted to that organiza-
tion, but that you have written General Booth offering to contribute to the
Army funds. In this connection would you kindly let me know whether you
signed any document pledging yourself to repay any sum of money to the
Salvation Army, on account of your migration to Canada, and if so, would you
let me have a copy; also whether you were informed by the Salvation
Army, or by any person, that the two Governments made a grant to
the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada. I would also
be obliged if you would let me know whether you were on a Salvation Army
Tfraining Farm prior to your migration to Canada, and if so, for what length
of time.

For your convenience in replying you will find enclosed an addressed
envelope, which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.): G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.

Mr. Louis J. Guass,
¢/o Allison Cook, Esq.,
R.R. No. 4, Spencerville, Ont.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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SPENCERVILLE, 10th June, 1926.
G. Bocue Smart, Esq.,

Dgar Sir,—I cannot say much but all T know is that I have the mentioned
sum (I made a mistake I payed £3 not £2 as I thought I did leaving £13) to
pay back. All T know is that I signed a form (of which I was not given a
copy) agreeing to pay back the above sum. I heard about the grant but I
thought the fare was £20, £4 being granted by the Government as I (or I
believe we) were not told about it. I was for the period of seven weeks at the
Colony at Hadleigh, Essex, England. I should like to know the full details
about things as I am in the dark about the things you have mentioned. Please
let me know if I should ask for the copies that I am supposed to have.

I remain, yours truly,
(Sgd.) L. J. GLASS.

File 243956
DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

OrrawA, June 8th, 1926.

Dear Sir,—When Mr. D. M. Morrison visited you on the 25th of May,
you gave him to understand that you were indebted to the Salvation Army
to the extent of £16. We took this matter up with the officer of the Salvation
Army at 341 University street, Montreal, and we have been informed that you
are not indebted to their organization, but that you have written to General
Booth offering to contribute to the Army funds so that other boys may have
the same kind of a chance.

In this connection, would you kindly let me know whether you signed any
paper pledging yourself to repay any sum of money to the Salvation Army. If
s0, would you kindly let me have a copy.

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) G. BOGUE SMART,
Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Mr. GEORGE SHAPCOTT, -
¢/ E. Niblock,
Jasper, Ontario.

GrEORGE JOHN SHAPCOTT,
¢/o 8. E. Niblock,
R.R. No. 4, Jasper, Ontario.
13/6/26.

Drear Sir,—In your letter of the 9th instant, you said you were informed
that I had written to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army Funds
so that other boys may have the same kind of a chance. I have never written
to General Booth on this matter but I signed a paper in England which (I
was told) compelled me to pay back £16 to the Salvation Army.

As I was not given time to read the paper I signed and a copy was never
given to me, I do not really know what I was signing.

Yours truly,

(Segd.) GEORGE JOHN SHAPCOTT.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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May 13, 1927,

Dear Friexp,—I note that when our Inspector visited you recently, you
inquired about paying the Salvation Army for your passage to Canada. Under
the circumstances vou may wish to write to the Salvation Army and ask for an
itemized statement of their expenditure on your behalf.

Yours very truly,

G. BOGUE SMART,
: Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Avrrep SamueL Fisaer, Esq.,
¢/o Mr. Ernest A. Lindsay,
Tilsonbury, Ontario.

Extract from report of Inspector of Juvenile Immigration, J. A. Gillies who
visited Alfred Samuel Fisher on the 20th April, 1927:—

This boy is quite contented but asked me if he had to pay the Salva-
tion Army for his passage over. He said I was told in England by the
S. A. officer we had to pay our passage over, one third of the amount
had to be paid back to the Dominion Government, the other two thirds
to be paid back to the Salvation Army. That is what he told me. I am
very sure of course I guess I have to pay the Army the $77.00 and that is
all there is about it.

July 27, 1926.

Dear Friexp:—When Mr. Duncan visited you, on the 7th of July, you
informed Mr., Duncan that you had to repay £20 to the Salvation Army, on
account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up with the
office of the Salvation Army, in Montreal, and have been advised that you are
not indebted to that Organization, for the cost of your transportation to Can-
ada but that you have written to General Booth and offered to contribute to the
Army fund so that other boys may have the same kind of a chance as you have
had. In this connection would you kindly let me know whether you signed any
document pledging yourself to refund any sum of money? In case you did
would you kindly let me have a copy of the paper signed, if you have one, also
let me know whether you were on a training farm in England prior to your
migrating to Canada. :

For your convenience in replying please find enclosed an addressed eénvelope
which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,
G. BOGUE SMART,

Supervisor of Juvenile Immaigration.
A. C. Tonwmorg, Esq.,
" ¢/o Alex J. Burnett, Esq.,
R.R. No. 1 Branchton, Ont.

Eztract from report of Inspector of Juvenile Immigration, John A. Gillies
who visited A. . Tonmore on the 12th May, 1927 :—

~ He said: T have a good home in every way. Yes I paid the Army

$100 for what T was told was for my passage and clothes. I was in their

school at Hadleigh for eight weeks. I got 9 shillings a week and had to

work harder than I have here. The clothes I got were very cheap stuff,

what they call shoddy, so if I had not to pay for my passage out what
- are they taking all our money for.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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File 231133.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

Orrawa, June 17th, 1926.

Dear Frienp,—No doubt you will recall the visit of Mr. M. J. Scobie on
the 5th March last. On that oceasion you gave Mr. Scobie to understand
that you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of £16 on account
of your migration to Canada. We have written to the Salvation Army and have
been advised that you are not indebted to that organization but that you have
written to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army Funds.

Would you kindly let me know whether you signed any document pledging
yourself to return any definite sum of money to the Salvation Army on account
of your migration to Canada and if so, would you kindly let me have a copy of
the paper signed if it is available. In replying, would you kindly let me know
whether prior to your coming to Canada you were on a training farm in Eng-
land and if so the length of time, For your convenience in writing me please
find enclosed an addressed envelope which requires no postage, with best wishes.

Yours very truly,
(Signed) G. BOGUE SMART,

Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Avert J. WoopMman, Esq., -
¢/o Mr. Jas. Fleming,
Woodstock, Ontario.

No. 231133.
R.R. 3 WoopsTock, ONT.

Dear Sir,—In answer to your letter I cannot recall any document concern-
ing money being signed in England. As I was told it would cost me £20 to
migrate and my mother paid back £4 last December I thought I had £16 to pay
back. If you wish to have some copies of the documents signed please send to
Mrs. A. J. Woodman, 2 Tregoll’s Rd. Truro, Cornwall, England. I was at Had-
leigh Colony, Hadleigh, Essex, for eleven weeks.

I remain,
Yours truly,

(Signed) A. J. WOODMAN,
¢/0 Mr. Jas. Fleming,
R.R. 3 Woodstock.

File 243935.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
Orrawa, 1st June, 1926.

Drar Frienp,—Mr. Morrison, who visited you on May 19th, has reported
that you informed him that you were indebted to the Salvation Army for a
certain sum of money on account of your migration to Canada. In this con-
nection we took the matter up with the officers of the Salvation Army, No. 341
University Street, Montreal, and have been informed that you are not indebted
to the Salvation Army, but that you have written to General Booth offering to
contribute to the Army Funds. 2

Would you kindly let me know whether you were informed by the Salvation

Army that the two Governments paid a sum of money to the Salvation Army on
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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account of your coming to Canada. Would you also kindly let me have, if avail-

able, a copy of any document you may have signed in regard to the repayment of

any money to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada.
Thanking you in anticipation of your early reply.

Yours truly,

(sgd.) G. BogUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immigration.
Mr. LioNerL COPPLESTONE,
¢/o Morton Steacy, Esq.,
North Augusta, Ontario.

LioNeL COPPLESTONE,
¢/o Mort Steacy, North Augusta, Ont.

Dear Sir,—1I have just received your letter and I am sorry to say that I have
got no copy of the document I signed in England, and that I did not send any
letter to General Booth saying that I would contribute to the Army’s funds.

Yours truly,
(Signed) L. COPPLESTONE.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
File 243955.

OrTAWA, 7th June, 1926.

Dear Frienp,—When Inspector Morrison visited you on the 25th May you
informed him that you were indebted to the Salvation Army to the extent of
$90.00 on account of your migration to Canada. We have taken this matter up
with Brigadier E. J. Pinchen, of the Salvation Army, 341 University Street,
Montreal, and have been informed that you are not indebted to the Organization
for your actual passage to this country, but that you have written General Booth
offering to contribute to the Army funds. In this connection would you kindly
let me know whether you signed any document, pledging yourself to repay any
sum of money to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada,
and if so, would you kindly let me have a copy; also whether you were informed
by the Salvation Army or by any person that the two Governments made a
grant to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to Canada. I would
also be obliged if you would let me know whether you were on a Salvation
Army training Farm prior to migration to Canada, and if so, for what length of
time.

For your convenience in replying you will find enclosed an addressed en-
velope, which requires no postage.

Yours very truly,

(Signed) G. BoGUE SMART,
Supervisor of Juvenile Immagration.
Mr. RaY SARGINSON,
¢/o Edwin Holmes, Esq.,
R.R. No. 4, Smith’s Falls,
Ontario.
19th June, 1926
¢/o E. HoLMES,
R.R. 4 Smith’s Falls, Ontario.

DeAr Sir,—I am in receipt of your letter of the 7th inst and herewith beg
to say that I did not write to General Booth offering to contribute to the Army
Funds, the only paper that I signed to was to state that I had to pay back £16
or $80.00, but as you state that I do not owe anything to my actual passage

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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would you kindly state whether I owe anything or not. I cannot furnish a copy
of the paper as I did not get one. Would you kindly send me a copy showing
where I signed to pay General Booths Fund. Prior to migrating, I was on a
farm at Hadleigh Essex England for one month. Hoping this letter meets with
your requirements.
I remain,
Yours faithfully,

(Signed) R. SArGINsON,

Extract from a report on Thomas Bolan ¢/o Alex Dodds, R.R. No. 3, Perth,
Lanark County, Burgess Township, Lot 10 Concession 10, by M. J. Scobie,
dated 3rd June, 1926.

The boy states he did not have a chance to read agreement which
he signed as all was done in a hurry but was told it was £16 repayment
for passage.

Extract from a report on Stanley Thorpe c¢/o G. E. Rowson, R.R. No. 2,
Mount Elgin, P.O., Oxford County, Dereham Township, Lot 20 Concession 4,
by Inspector D. M. Morrison, dated 2nd September, 1926,

With regard to his indebtedness to the Salvation Army, he said “We
(boys) signed a lot of papers they would not let us read ‘Come on you
are not signing your death warrant,” they told us.”

Year of arrival, 1926.
Union, Non.

Report Noid . wwv. dsds sid
Inspection No. ..........

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA

INSPECTION OF BRITISH IMMIGRANT CHILDREN

Name of child, Bernard Boom. Date of birth, Oct. 15, 1919.
By whom brought to Canada, Salvation Army.
With whom placed, James Wood.
P.O. address, Smith’s Falls. Occupation,
Lot 12, Con. 6, Township N. Elmsley.
County Lanark. Province Ontario.
Date child was placed in situation, 3 weeks ago. ;
Date of most recent inspection by representative of agency, last week.
General character of home and surroundings, good.
Has child a room to himself? Yes. A bed to himself? Yes.
Work in which the child is engaged, general farm.
Health, good.
General appearance, dark, slight, tall boy.
Supply of clothing, good.
Church and Sunday school attendance, S.A., regular.
Day school attendance, Progress,
Supply of suitable reading matter, good.
Recreations, varied.
Pocket money allowance,
Wages and terms of indenture, no agreement as yet.
Does child understand wages to be paid? Yes. What portion of wages is paid
directly to child?
Is child required by the agency to repay any sum of money? Yes.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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If so, state amount and the cause of the indebtedness, Father paid £4; still owes
£12.

Complaints by child, none.

General character and behaviour of the child, good.

Complaints by employer, none.

INSPECTOR'S REMARKS

This boy states 60 boys were in line and each one was told to sign and move
on. He says he may have signed a contract to farm for 10 years for all he
knows. He states he understands this money is paid the Army to be refunded
to the Government for the amount that they put forward.

Date of Inspection, June 2, 1926.

Inspector, (Sgd.) M. J. ScosiE.

Copy

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
Orrawa, 16th June, 1926.

Dear Friexp,—You will no doubt recall the visit Mr. Scobie paid you on
the 2nd June. On that occasion I understand you informed Mr. Scobie that your
father had paid £4 to the Salvation Army on account of your migration to
Canada, and that you still owed £12. I took this matter up with the office of
the Salvatlon Army, No. 341 University Street, Montreal, P.Q., and in this con-
nection 1 have been advised that vou are not indebted to the Salvation Army,
but that you have written General Booth offering to contribute to the Army
funds.

Would you kindly let me know whether you signed any document pledging
yourself to repay a sum of money to the Salvation Army on account of your
migration to Canada, also whether you were advised by the Salvation Army or
by any person that the British and Canadian Governments made a per capita
grant to the Salvation Army on account of certain boys coming to Canada under
the auspices of the Salvation Army. In case you were on a training farm prior
to your migration to Canada, would you kindly advise me.

For your convenience in replymg you will find enclosed an addressed enve-
lope which requires no postage.

Yours very .truly,
- (Sgd.) G. BOGUE SMART,

Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
Mr. BErNARD BooM,
c¢/o James Wood, Esq.,
Smith’s Falls, Ontario.
: Copy

B. Boom.,
¢/0 Mr. James Wood,
Smitk’s Falls, RR. 2, 22/6/26.

Sie—I have received your letter to-day and thank you for taking so much
trouble on my behalf.

When Mr. Scobie came on the 2nd June I told him that my mother paid £4
in England before I left and got a receipt for it.

My business with the Salvation Army dates from February 4th, 1926. On
the night of February 3rd I received a letter from the Army 1nform1ng me that
I was to report for training the next day. I enclose the same letter which I have

[Mr. W. J. Egan:]
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saved. I was there for six weeks and some odd days. I sailed on 26th March,
1926.

During my stay at Hadleigh farm Colony Adjutant Phibbs, the officer what
is in charge of the immigration section came to Hadleigh and myself and about
30 others signed two papers, one he said was a landing paper we could not land
without it, the other he told me was saying that I agreed to pay back what
money I owed that money I concluded was for my passage. I have already paid
$10 to Mr. Brace.

As to the question whether the Government loan the Army any money.
That was talk among the boys at Hadleigh.

Would you mind asking for a facsimile of the papers I have signed and then
we will know exactly how I stand.

l Would you mind asking what the $50 I now owe them is for and let mé
KNOwW.

I remain,
Yours sincerely,

(Sgd.) BERNARD E. BOOM.

Year of arrival, 1926.
Union, None.

Report. N.
Inspection No.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA
INSPECTION or Brimisg IMMIGRANT CHILDREN

Name of child, James McDonald. Date of birth, 18/2/09.

By whom brought to Canada, Salvation Army.

With whom placed, Joseph Hyland.

P.O. address, Jarvis, occupation, farmer,

Lot 22, Con. 7, Township, Walpole.

County, Haldimand, province, Ontario.

Date child was placed in situation, February 28th, 1926.

Date of most recent inspection by representative of agency, around August 1926,
but missed seeing him.

General character of home and surroundings, good.

Has child a room to himself? Yes. A bed to himself? Yes.

Work in which the child is engaged, farming.

Health, good.

General appearance, tall youth, comfortably clothed.

Supply of clothing, yes.

Church and Sunday school attendance, attentive to church obligations.

Day school attendance, no. Progress.

Supply of suitable reading matter, yes.

Recreations. :

Pocket, money allowance, given when wanted.

Wages and terms of indenture, yearly wages $150 with board.

Does child understand wages to be paid? Yes. What portion of wages is paid
directly to child?

Is child required by the agency to repay any sum of money? See remarks.

If so, state amount and the cause of the indebtedness.

Complaints by child, none. :

General character and behaviour of the child, satisfactory.

Complaints by employer, no complaints. :

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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INSPECTOR'S REMARKS

From Mr. Hyland I received a good report regarding the young man; he
was always willing and furthered matters to the best of his ability.

In regard to money repayments to the Agency: James said he signed papers
before sailing along with other lads, to pay around $120, covering passage and
clothing outfit which Mr. Hyland informed him sometime ago he did not have
to do.

As the lad seemed puzzled in the matter, he asked for an explanation.

Date of Inspection, April 20th, 1927.
Inspector (Sd.) James Duncan.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION
Otrawa, April 26, 1927.

Dear Frienp:—I note that when Mr. James Duncan visited you on the
13th April, 1926, you informed Mr. Duncan that you had to repay £20 to the
Salvation Army on account of your passage and outfit and that when Mr.
Duncan visited you on the 20th April, 1927, you said you had to pay about
$120, covering passage and clothing. I feel that under the circumstances it
might be well for you to write to the Salvation Army and get an itemizzed
statement in regard to the amount which you are expected to pay.

Yours truly,

(Sd.) G. BoGUE SMART,
Supervisor, Juvenile Immigration.
James McDonald, Esq.,
¢/o Mr. Joseph Hyland,
Jarvis, Ontario.

James McDonald,
¢/o Joseph Hyland, R.R. 1 Jarvis,
County Haldimand, Ontario.

Dear Sir.—Please find enclosed the reply from the Salvation Army after
enquiring as to the amount I was expected to repay and hope it is of value.

Yours truly,
(Sd.) JAMES McDONALD.

BurnsoE LopGE,
808 Dundas Street, Woodstock, Ontario, May 3, 1927
Mr. James McDonald,
¢/o Joseph Hyland,
R.R:. No. 1, Jarvis, Ont.

Dear Frienp—I have your letter of April 30th to hand and note the contents.
I beg to say that everything, your passage, outfit, travelling in the old country,
supervision, etc., was $100, of this amount $52.13 has been paid, this leaves
$47.87 outstanding and I am sure you would have no difficulty in clearing this
off this year and saving considerable money.

I trust this will be satisfactory, to you.
Yours sincerely
(Sd.) Lours H. SmirH,

Commandant.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Year of arrival.. .. .. :
Uil it tiefd S04 ERd e o pp
SREROED WA URENT £ 30
Inspection No.. .. ..

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA

InsprEcTION OF BRITISH IMMIGRANT CHILDREN
Name of child, Philip Ross. Date of birth, 1,/4/09.
By whom brought to Canada, S.A.
With whom placed, E. M. Nethercott.
P.O. address, R.R. No. 1, St. Thomas. Occupation, farmer.
Lot 25, Con. Talbot Road, Township Southwold.
County, Elgin. Province, Ontario.
Date child was placed in situation, 8/6/25.
Date of most recent inspection by representative of agency, June, 1926.
General character of home and surroundings, Good home, clean.
Has child a room to himself? Yes. A bed to himself? Yes.
Work in which child is engaged, farm work.
Health, good.
General appearance, medium sized, bright, alert.
Supply of clothing, good.
Church and Sunday school attendance, yes. Yes.
Day school attendance, no. Qualifying.
Supply of suitable reading matter, yes, paper and magazines.
Recreations, yes, usual on farm.
Pocket money allowance, gets some, no stated amount.
Wages and terms of indenture, $125 a year. Board and washing.
Does child understand wages to be paid? Yes.
Is child required by the agency to repay any sum of money? Yes.
If so, state amount and the cause of the indebtedness. Paid $100 for passage and
some clothes.
Complaints by child, none.
General character and behaviour of the child. Good. Good.
Complaints by employer, none. This boy cannot be beat. He is a dandy.

INSPECTOR’S REMARKS

Philip said this home is about right in every way and has been. I have
read in the papers we did not have to pay for our passage over. I have paid $100
for passage and clothes. I got clothes about $15 worth. Yes, I was six weeks
in the Army School. I read the agreement, I would not sign it until I read it, it
said passage, clothes and other things. I did not get a copy. I know a fellow
who did get a copy or said it was a copy.

Date of Inspection, April 6, 1927.

Inspector, John A. Gillies.

St. Tromas, R.R. No. 1,
ONTARIO, CANADA,
Monday, July.

Dpar Sir—I am just writing to find out and awaiting your instructions
regarding the payment due the Salvation Army. I have enclosed copy of typed
letter which I received from the Salvation Army and my year finished up on
July 8th. I have not drawn my pay yet and will be glad to receive your letter
of advice, thanking you.

I am yours truly,
(Sgd.) PHILIP ROSS.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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Dear Friexn,—I have your letter to hand and beg to say we are unable to
send you a receipt for the amount of $78.14 paid In your interest by Mr. Nether-
cott as the receipt always goes to the man paying the money, but this letter
will serve as your receipt as you will note it states above that $78.14 has been
paid on account. There is a small balance of $21.86 now outstanding. Your
loan account was of course for your passage to Canada and for your kit and
training at Hadleigh, ete. 1 trust this explanation will be satisfactory to you
and we are glad to know that you are getting on real well.

Yours sincerely, y
LOUIS H. SMITH,

Commandant.
Year.,pioammival,; 1926. . wicid. wsise
Ui o INONE: . F it - ng v bibisho. sbat
Rep QR I Ota s cived. duimvasts fsestsre-1os i =
IONRGCTION: ARG For- < breists Laniny >

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA
INSPECTION OF BRITISH IMMIGRANT CHILDREN

Name of child, John Wilfred Jones. Date of birth, 20/1/12.

By whom brought to Canada, Salvation Army.

With whom placed, Harold Style=

P.O. address, R.R. No. 3 Kinburn. Occupation, farmer, lot 16, con. 8, township
Fltzroy, county Carleton, province, Ontario.

Date child was placed in eltuatlon 7/6/26.

Date of most recent inspection bv representative of agency, May, 1927

General character of home and surroundings, good home, clean.

Has child a room to himself? Yes. A bed to himself? Yes.

Work in which the child is engaged, farm work.

Health, good.

General appearance, well developed, bright.

Supply of clothing, good.

Church and Sunday school attendance, not regular. No.

Day school attendance, no. Progress, 7th standard.

Supply’ of suitable reading matter, papers.

Recreations, yes, goes out.

Pocket money allowance, $2 a month.

Wages and terms of indenture, $10 a month, board, ete.

Does child understand wages to be paid? Yes. What portion of wages is paid
directly to child?

Is child required by the agency to repay any sum of money? Yes.

If s0, state amount, and the cause of the indebtedness, $80 for passage over.

Complamts of child, none.

General character and behaviour of the child, good. Good.

Complaints by employer, non.

INSPECTOR'S REMARKS

John said “I am well pleased with my home.”

When asked as to the cause of his indebtedness to the Army he said, “We
were told in good plain English before we came over by the High Officials of the
Salvation Army that we would have to pay them back the passage money that
they were paying for us. I see by the newspapers that was free. Well mine
is paid all but $10. I suppose we will not get any back.” <

Date of inspection, October 5th, 1927.

Inspector (Sd.) John A. Gillies.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]

/
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Year of arrival; 1926.:.....00.....
LIniHR. Nane v N el e i e
oyl e L [ NIRRT ol S
IORDECION N0 o d . e e e

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA

INSPECTION OF BRITISH IMMIGRANT CHILDREN

Name of child, Samuel McDonald. Date of birth, 1/10/10.

By whom brought to Canada, Salvation Army.

With whom placed, Earl Fentie.

P.0O. address R.R. 3 Springfield. Occupation,

Lot 1, Con. 8, Township Dorchester.

County, Elgin, Province, Ontario.

Date child was placed in situation, 4/9/26.

Date of most recent inspection by representative of agency, Fall 1926.

General character of home and surroundings, good home, clean.

Has child a room to himself? Yes. A bed to himself? Yes.

Work in which the child is engaged, farm work.

Health, good.

General appearance, well developed, bright boy.

Supply of clothing, good.

Church and Sunday school attendance, yes regular, yes regular.

Day school attendance, no. Progress, 1st year High School.

Supply of suitable reading matter, yes, papers and books.

Recreations, yes all I want.

Pocket money allowance, $2 a month.

Wages and terms of indenture, $120 a year, board, ete.

Does child understand wages to be paid? Yes. What portion of wages is paid
directly to child?

Is child required by the agency to repay any sum of money? Yes.

If so, state amount and the cause of the indebtedness, $80 for passage over.

Complaints by child, none.

General character and behaviour of the child, good, good.

Complaints by employer, none.

INSPECTOR'S REMARKS

Sam said he was well pleased with his home and treatment; he further said
“T see that the Government paid our passage over. We were told we had to pay
part or all our passage. Yes we signed a paper but we had to sign it or stay at
home—we were not even allowed to read it. I do not like paying for something
I do not know what it is.”

Date of inspection, April 7th, 1927.
Inspector (Sd.) John A. Gillies.

On page 500 of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the Select Stand-
ing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization, Staff Captain Owen Culshaw of
the Salvation Army, made the following statement:

The position of affairs led up, on October 4th, to a letter being re-
ceived by our headquarters in London stating that unless we ceased to
collect the money from those boys, by promise or otherwise, we could not
continue in this work of migration. At that time, we had about 80 boys
on our farm colony at Hadleigh who had been promised to go to Canada,
subject to Government permission. We were practically committed to that.

65927—14
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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We had brought them from their homes and we appealed, asking that
judgment might be stayed until Commissioner Lamb had an opportunity
of making personal representations to the Minister on the business, How-
ever, the embargo held and these boys were left on the farm there, left on
our hands. Negotiations were taken up with the British Government and
through their good offices, it is now being arranged that the boys will repay
the sum of $25 as a voluntary contribution towards the work that the
Army is doing on their behalf.

The above statement leaves the impression that no boys were brought to Can-
ada by the Salvation Army until arrangements had been made for the repayment
of $25.

Annexed hereto are copies of letters showing,—

1. That Salvation Army boys were brought to Canada during the calendar
year 1927 and placed by the British Immigration and Colonization Asso-
ciation and by the Salvation Army.

2. Correspondence between Mr. J. Bruce Walker, Director of Emlgra’uon,
London and Mr. W. C. Noxon, Agent General for Ontario, regarding
Salvation Army boys who were brought from the Salvation Army Train-
ing Farm at Hadleigh and placed by the Provincial Government of
Ontario during 1927.

3. Boys over 17 years of age (designated as adults within the meaning of
the Assisted Passage Agreement) who were brought from the Salvation
Army Farm at Hadleigh during the season of 1927 under the Canadian
Pacific Railway quota and placed not by the Canadian Pacific Railway,
but by the Salvation Army in Ontario.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION

CANADA
Ortawa, 12th May, 1928.

MEMORANDUM :
Mr. W. J. Ecan,
Deputy Minister.

I beg to inform you that the following parties of Salvation Army boys were
brought to Canada during the calendar year 1927 and placed under the auspices
of the British Immigration and Colonization Association:

M Arche E3L1. TROD T Sl Tose] £, butin o 2.0 | T3 34
Manelu2%the 1027 Joo, o0, 1 07 B, 0l Dawolin Jade. 490 13

RERI I7Eh, PO L T N N L L e Ml vag 59

In addition to the above the following parties were officially
listed as coming under the auspices of the British Immigration and
Colonization Association but were received and placed by the
Salvation Army:

Augush 66D, LOBL.vo vt 1 e ol 538l As i s Yo T
Septemabey,; 1G5 A0, i Contedn. T of o RN il Bl Sgine 2 49
TIOR8} s rewid daststond LIS G AT ab e A 108

G. BOGUE SMART,

Supervisor, Juvenile Immaigration.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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W. C. Noxon,
Agent-General in the British Isles,
163 Strand, London, W.C. 2,
February 15th, 1927.
J. Bruce WALKER, Esq.,
Director—Migration,
Canadian Building, Trafalgar Square, S.W. 1.

Dear Mr. WaLkER,—We have received through the Salvation Army applica-
tions from 82 boys under 17 yvears of age who desire to sail at the earliest possible
date. We have treated these applications in every respect as though coming
direct from the boys, and judging them on this basis a considerable number have
been rejected on first perusal. We have verified the references of the others, and
I am arranging for our Mr. Percival to interview them on Thursday and Friday
of this week. These considered suitable at interview, and for whom satisfactory
references have been obtained, will be asked to submit- medical certificate, and as
all the boys are at present at the Salvation Army Training Farm at Hadleigh,
this will be very much facilitated. It is quite possible that we will let you have
the Requisitions complete early next week.

I am advising you this now as this will naturally mean a considerable lot of
work for the time being for your office, as we will be desirous of having the Party
sail as early as possible. We had not anticipated these applications, but now
that we have them we are anxious to have those who prove acceptable sail and
be cleared out from Vimy Ridge Farm before our “Letitia” Party which sails on
March 12th arrives.

Yours very truly,

(Signed) WM. C. NOXON,
Agent-General for Ontario.

Tae Caxapian Burnping,
TRAFALGAR SQUARE, Loxpon, S.W. 1, February 16th, 1927.

Drar Mr. Noxon,—I beg to acknowledge the receipt of your letter
(SEP/EIN) of February 15th, advising me that you have received, through the
Salvation Army, applications from 82 boys under 17 years of age who desire to
sail at the earliest possible date.

I understand it is your intention to place these boys through your Govern-
ment on the Vimy Ridge Farm, and that they shall be distributed from the Vimy
Ridge Farm in the same manner as boys sent out under your own direct Govern-
ment efforts.

You are probably aware that the Department has taken strong objection
to the Salvation Army boys, trained at the Salvation Army Camp at Hadleigh,
being required to pay a contribution of $80.00 from their wages after settle-
ment in Canada, the amount so paid being understood to be the necessary trans-
portation for the boy’s passage and a contribution towards assisting a succeed-
;I‘llg boy, the contribution for the succeeding boy amounting to £8, or roughly

0.00.

As all these transportation charges are met by a joint contribution from
the Oversea Settlement Committee and the Dominion Government, the Dom-
inion Government has taken pointed exceptlon to any condition that requires
the boys to make a payment for such services, and the Department further
objects to a boy having to undertake over his own signature, a promise to repay
a sum of money under the impression that such sum of money is to be used for
paying the transportation or other expenses of himself and a succeeding boy.

The Salvation Army have been asked to give the Department a written
assurance that no such funds for that or any other purpose will be deducted

Mr. W. J. Egan.
65027—14% ¢ gen]



180 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

from the earnings of boys after they get to Canada. So far the Salvation Army
have declined to give the Department the required assurance, and in the absence
of that assurance the Department has decided not to accept boys trained by the
Salvation Army at Hadleigh and for placement by the Salvation Army in Canada.

As these boys are going to Vimy Ridge Farm—as I understand it, to be dis-
tributed from there by the Ontario Government—the matter assumes some-
what of a different aspect, but in order that my instructions may be carried out
and that the boys may be safeguarded with respect to future financial commit-
ments, I shall be glad to have your assurance that the boys accepted from the
Salvation Army have not been asked, either verbally or by document, to make
any contribution for any purpose after they arrive in Canada, and that in
future no such request for a contribution under this head will be made from
these boys.

If you are able to assure me on these points there seems to be no reason
why the movement of these boys should not proceed as if it had been business
that originated entirely through themselves.

Yours faithfully,

(Signed) J. BRUCE WALKER,
Darector.

W. C. Noxon, Agent-General in the British Isles,
163 StraxDp, Lonpon, W.C. 2, February 17th, 1927.
Dear Mr. WALKER,—
Re Salvation Army Boys

Replying to your favour of the 16th instant. When Commissioner Lamb
spoke to me about these boys, I told him I would take them in the same manner
and under same conditions as boys from any other source and that we would
not permit, for a moment, any contribution by the boys towards the Salvation
Army any more than from boys taken in the regular way, and that they would
be handled in exactly the same way as our own lads. We are doing this to
help out a situation in which the Army find themselves at Hadleigh. I might
say for your information that out of the number which they submitted to us a very
large proportion were turned down without any further investigation whatever,
and respecting the balance we sent out our own information forms in order that
everything would be satisfactory according to our method and requirements.
Mr. Percival is at Hadleigh to-day and to-morrow interviewing each boy that
we .consider favourable. I understand the situation from your point of view
thoroughly, and can assure you that we will not allow any of the boys’ wages
to be used as a contribution to the Army. Their money will be handled in
exactly the same manner as our own boys’, namely the boy to receive one-half
of his wages and the other half to be placed to his credit with the Government. -

Sincerely yours,
(Signed) WM. C. NOXON.
J. Bruce WALKER, Esq.,
Director, Department Immigration and Colonization,
The Canadian Building, S.W. 1. .

P.S—Recently the Canadian Pacific Railway took some thirty boys to
British Columbia from the Salvation Army at Hadleigh and we presume under
same conditions as we are doing.

Orrawa, May 12th, 1928.
Memorandum

During the season of 1927, there were, according to the Departmental record,
149 single men varying in age from 17 to 19, who came to Canada under the
(BJanadJan Pacific quota after recruitment by Salvation Army sources in Great
ritain. - _
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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They sailed in groups as follows:—

i o) i e R S AR L e e, Sl o T R Y ot 35
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149

One hundred and twenty-one files have been examined and show that 96
of these youths gave their addresses in Great Britain as “S.A. Farm, Hadleigh”,
or “Hadley, Essex”. The remaining 25 gave addresses at various points in the
British Isles.

It is clear, therefore, that at least 96 were definitely Hadleigh trained
boys, but it is desirable to pursue the inquiry a little further as to the balance
of 25. In 23 cases of the 25 the Information Forms with the exception of per-
sonal details, were completed in the same hand as those which are clearly
Hadleigh cases. All the forms in response to the questions 15 and 15A, “Is
such occupation assured ” and “ By whom ” give “ Yes ”, “ The Salvation Army”.
In response to 19, “ How many years have you farmed?” the reply is given, “ In
training 7, and in response to 24, “ If you are in communication with a Ship-
ping or Booking Agent, give his name and address ”, the name “ Commissioner
D. C. Lamb, 3 Upper Thames St., London, E.C.4 7, is put in with a rubber
stamp. All these forms bear endorsements in exactly the same phrase signed
by Major A." Ewan Moore of the Canadian Pacific, “ Interviewed applicant to-
day, he is partially trained and I consider that he is suitable for farm work ”.

Except for the personal details there is nothing which shows the cases of
those who gave their addresses as other than Hadleigh, to be different in any
way from the definite Hadleigh cases. It is quite apparent that all were in fact
Hadleigh boys who were just over the juvenile age and could, therefore, be dealt
with as single men under the Canadian Pacific quota.

On page 503 of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the Select
Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization, No. 17, Staff Captain
Culshaw of the Salvation Army gave the following replies to questions regarding
contributions and expenditures on boys:—

“By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain):
Q. How much money from voluntary subseriptions or from your
treasury do you have to pay on the average?—A. £10 per head.
Q. That is found from other sounces than from the British Govern-
ment, the Canadian Government and what the boys pay back?—A. After
pooling all the resources we can get it costs our funds £10 per head.

“By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. The total amount received by the Salvation Army from all
sources, government grants, sums repaid by the boys and so forth, does
not as a matter of fact come anywhere near meeting the amount
expended by the Army per head on the boy?—A. Absolutely not.”

The following statement shows the contributions to, and collection by,
the Salvation Army in the case of boys:—

The Salvation Army receives:
Per boy
1. Difference between grant of $80 from British and
and Dominion Government and actual cost of
ocean fare £11.10 being £4.189 or............ $ 24 02
2. Grant by Dominion Government to Hadleigh Farm. 10 00
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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3. British Government training grant from £3 to £18
per capita. Maximum contribution............ 87 60
(See note to this memorandum)

4. British Government cost of outfit £3 per capita. 14 60
5. British Government aftercare £2.10 per capita.... 12 16
6. At least one Provincial Government grant of.... 35 00
1. CONPetIon TroI, DOV XD .- oo ©.x e snesiaio; satuissiomr 25 00

R i il v vk ARk o $208 38

8. Joint grant by British and Dominions Governments
on account of transportation of each boy east of
Manitoba—$80 less $24.02 as shown by item No.. $ 55 98

$264 36
Fare allowed for each boy West of Ontario is
$100, ie., $20.00 additional to points West of
LINBOT R i bty <creb B oo Badbty vhbie waingsle spubs LEg 20 00

Nore—The contribution by the Oversea Settlement Department on account
of training is as follows:—

(a¢) In respect of the first 500 boys trained under this Scheme to pay
one-half of the net ascertained expenditure incurred in maintenance
and training at the Farm provided that the Department will not pay
more than 15/ per week per poy.

(b) Inrespect of boys over and above the first 500 trained under this Scheme
to pay the whole of the said net ascertained expenditure on mainten-
ance and training provided that—

The Department shall not pay more than 30/ per week per head
for such boys at the Farm.

The training under the above Scheme does not extend over a period of
less than four weeks or (without the prior approval of the Oversea Settlement
Department) more than twelve weeks.

For the information of the Committee I also desire to submit the following
information regarding contributions to what are designated Provincial Training
Farms:—

1. The Provincial Government supplies the farm.

2. The cost of operation is divided as follows:—

Per boy
Provincial Government ........cooiiveviinenaonas $ 10 00
Department of Immigration........covoeeeeieacn. 10 00
Oversea Settlement Department.................. 20 00
i 1 e e it PURSET D, HEln $40 00

Assuming actual average cost of transportation—

joint grant by British Government and Dominion
Government east of Manitoba................. 80 00
TRoballoh s s R A ST by B el $120 00

West of Ontario—$100 i.e., $20 additional to points
west -.of 0 Onfario 0255, D57 AR T0) ROl ging 20 00
Aol DN Lo DRRrrrrosl poloipet L. $140 00
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The following is a comparative statement of cost per boy as between a
Provincial centre and the Salvation Army:—

East of Manitoba West of Ontario

Salvation Army.......... 0000 $264 36 $284 36
PRl B0 L0 EA%0 BULL B IO 48 66 48 66

$313 02 $333 02
Provincial Centre. .. ... 0 i cvann $120 00 $140 00

Maximum expenditure per boy by
Salvation Army in excess of
expenditure per boy by Provineial
Coentrgnasstiragsi adil Ingritis, $193 02 $193 02
The minimum wage paid to a boy who comes to Canada under the Provincial
Training Scheme is the same as the minimum wage paid to a boy who is brought
to Canada and placed by the Salvation Army notwithstanding the fact that
the Army received a training grant of from £3 to £18 per boy for training
on what is known as the Hadleigh Farm near London, England.

3. The movement of Women for domestic service

The Immigration Branch of the Salvation Army has been quite free to move
houseworkers with experience in house work and of a suitable type, regardless of
the numbers. The offer of a £2 ocean passage, with corresponding low rail rate
to destination in Canada is a great incentive to misrepresentation and our
experience is that many young women, unaccustomed to house work, but accus-
tomed to factory or other industrial or shop employment, are willing to declare
their intention to take housework in order to get the cheap rate. We have
developed in connection with the Empire Settlement Agreement a nomination
scheme, by which prospective employers in Canada, whether agriculturists or
householders in towns or cities may nominate by name of by description any
experienced or inexperienced houseworker. In order to protect the cheap rate,
which is but another way of saying protect Canada against the payment of
passage of those who are not of the class eligible for passage assistance, we move
the inexperienced girl enly on nomination. We inquire into the circumstances
of the nominator on this side and if we find that the nominator wants inex-
perienced help, we get that help for them. We do not ourselves bring to Canada
any number of inexperienced women without having nominations and we do not
and cannot allow anyone else to do it.

It was only late last autumn that the Army decided to develop nominations
in Canada for the inexperienced hcuseworker. Forms of nomination for inex-
perienced houseworkers have been submitted during the current year by the
Salvation Immigration and Settlement Department. Many of these descriptive
nominations have been turned down upon the following grounds:— .

(a) Employers had already secured help. A number of them did not wan

help when they signed the nominaticns, but stated the nomination forms
were signed to oblige the Army and because the Army said that other-
wise they would not be able to move women. . ! _

(b) Some employers said that they would not take the inexperienced girl

if she had been in industrial employment.

(¢) Some homes were found unsatisfactory.

Our own experience is that girls coming from homes that in many cases
consist of two or three rooms, who have never had any experience outside their
own homes, but who on the other hand have been wage-earners in other occupa-

* Staff Captain Culshaw stated %a,ge_ 503 that the Salvation Army paid on the average £10
per head per boy from voluntary subscriptions. (M. W. J. Egan]
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tions, are not qualified for house work here and frequently are not content to
remain at the unaccustomed work and longer hours and incidentally smaller pay
than that to which they have been accustomed. They, therefore, leave domestic
service, if indeed some of them ever accept such employment, and seek other
work. Now Toronto reports many hundreds of this class of girls seeking indus-
trial work and refusing to take domestic work and the Army proposes to move
most of these classes to Toronto.

What the Army want is a quota of what they call “domesticated women”
which means women without domestic experience, but who are willing to say
they will be domesties in Canada and thus secure the cheap rate. No quota of
that sort has been given to any person or organization since the Empire Settle-
ment Passage Scheme became effective.

Under the Assisted Passage Agreement the Department of Immigration
agreed to give aftercare during a period up to five years estimated at £6 or $29.20
per migrant as an equation against a similar cash contribution by the Oversea
Settlement Department on account of transportation in the case of an Empire
Settlement adult migrant, i.e., over 17 years of age. The Salvation Army also
have an Agreement with the Oversea Settlement Department of the British Gov-
ernment for the aftercare of single women who migrate under an Agreement
between the Salvation Army and the Department.

Under the Agreement between the Salvation Army and the Oversea Settle-
ment Department the Army shares equally in the net approved expenses of
the reception, settlement and aftercare in Canada provided that, in the case of
women assisted under the Agreement between the Department and the British
Giovernment, an amount, of £5 or $24.33 is deducted from what is designated as
* approved expenses "’ before calculating the contribution to the Salvation Army
by the Oversea Settlement Department for aftercare. This amount is deducted
on account of the aftercare service rendered by the Department.

The aftercare by the Department extends for a period of five years and the
aftercare by the Salvation Army is for a period of not less than two years or more
than three years from the date of arrival. This arrangement means that the
Department gives aftercare during a period of five years so that the migrant can
receive the benefit of the equation up to £6 or $29.20 for ocean passage whereas
the Salvation Army give aftercare for two or three years within the five year
period which, of course, means over-lapping in aftercare as between the Depart-
ment and the Salvation Army. After deducting the sum of $24.33 on account
of aftercare by the Department the Army then receives £1.17.6 or $9.11 during
the first year and 6s.3d. or $1.52 per annum for two subsequent years.

For women who are not considered eligible for assistance under the official
Agreement, ie., the Agreement between the Department of Immigration and
the Oversea Settlement Department—but who are eligible under the provisions
of the Immigration Act and who are coming to Canada under the category of
“ Domesticated Women ” which means clerks, factory workers, shop girls, ete.,
employed or unemployed, the Salvation Army receive for aftercare from the
Oversea Settlement Department the sum of £4 or $19.46 per woman in the first
year and 10s. or $2.43 per annum for two subsequent years for aftercare.

Commissioner David C. Lamb of the Salvation Army interviewed the Deputy
Minister and other officials of the Department of Immigration at Ottawa on the
21st and 22nd of December 1926.

During the discussion of the Machinery in Canada of the Immigration
Branch of the Salvation Army, the following information was developed regard-
ing Salvation Army hostels and their operation: —

(1) Moncton. This is for boys and young women. During this season 47
boys and 45 women have been brought to this hostel and the operating
costs for the year are placed at $6,750.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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(2) Smith’s Falls and Woodstock. These lodges are for boys. 479 boys
are said to have been brought out this year. The maintenance cost
of these two institutions is $19,100 for the year.

(3) London and Toronto. These institutions are for young women. There
is ‘another one in Toronto for women and Ichildren. The number of
young women brought during the year was 696. The maintenance
cost for the year was $30,100. Apparently $12,000 of this was for one
of the Toronto institutions for women and chlldren

(4) Winnipeg. This hostel is for women and 32 young women are sald to
have been accommodated during the year with a maintenance cost for
the institution of $9,000.

(5) Brandon. The hostel is for boys. Maintenance cost for the year
was $9,400, but no boys were brought to Canada.

(6) Vancouver. The Vancouver lodge accommodates both women and
boys. During the year 23 women and 12 boys were accommodated
and five families in addition. The maintenance cost was $6,300.

We regard the cost of the upkeep of the Salvation Army system of Hostels
as entirely too high. We advised the Salvation Army that we would take over
all the houseworkers and handle them through our Hostel system without any
cost to the Salvation Army. This offer has several times been repeated but
refused by Commissioner Lamb of the Immigration Department of the Salvation
Army. We have a system of Hostels, each run under local management, but
each supported by a Federal grant and most of them by a Provincial grant.
These Hostels are not full. They could easily accommodate the few hundred
houseworkers brought by the Army without any appreciable cost to us. The
Department take the view that the tax-payers of this country should not be
called upon to meet the demand of the Salvation Army for a grant of $1,000 to
each of some eight or ten or more Salvation Army Hostels merely because the
Army prefers to run a separate Organization parallel to the one recognized and
supported by the Department of Immigration. The basis of the proposal by °
the Department was closer co-operation between the Department and the
Salvation Army and to eliminate the duplication of effort and expenditure. As
a matter of fact it is in direct line with the suggestion of co-ordination of effort
and expenditure.

The following is a brief description of what are known as Canadian
Women’s Hostels:—

Memorandum

1. Canadian Women’s Hostels.
2. Institutions which receive per diem allowance.
3. Hostel machinery of the Salvation Army.

—_—

On page 504 of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the Select Stand-
ing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization, (No. 17), dated Wednesday,
May 9th, 1928, Staff Captain Owen Culshaw of the Salvation Army gave evidence
rega,rdmg the case of one Mary Dickson. In reply to a question by the Honour-
able Mr. Edwards, Captain Culshaw replied as follows:—

“Q. The Government claimed that you had been asking improperly
for repayments from Mary Dickson?—A. We did not ask for a penny.
Q. You say you did not ask for a penny?—A. No, Sir, and I think
we have satisfied the Government to that effect.”
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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An Inspector of the Juvenile Branch of the Department called several times
to see Mary Dickson but was not successful until the third visit which was on
May 4th, 1926. The following is an extract from Juvenile Inspector’s report in
this case:—

“Q. Is child required by the agency to repay any sum of money?
A. Yes.

Q. If so, state amount and the cause of the indebtedness.

A. Believed to be $100 for transportation.”

Under date of the 20th of August, 1926, the Supervisor of Juvenile Immigra-
tion wrote Mrs. Dickson and asked for a statement as to indebtedness of this
girl. Mrs. Dickson’s reply, which is dated the 24th of August, 1926, reads as
follows:—

“With reference to your letter of the 20th instant regarding my
daughter Mary’s immigration to Canada, I beg to mention that she did
get a loan of $100 from the Salvation Army, which she promised to re-
fund by monthly instalments. She also signed a form regarding same.

You inquire as to whether I signed any forms agreeing to refund the
money. I signed only one paper as I sailed a few weeks before my
daughter. It referred to the general rules of immigration.

Should further information be required, it will be furnished by Mrs.
George Dickson, 5 Brachelston Street, Greenock, Scotland.

Thanking you for your kind consideration in my case.”

The Director of Emigration in London was instructed to inquire and submit
a report on the statement that Mary Dickson was indebted to the Salvation
Army. The following reply, dated the 14th of September, 1926, was received
from the Director:—

“If you will kindly refer to your file number 85203 you will find that
the practice of allowing children other than wards of Societies to take
advantage of the free passage under Schedule A. of the Empire Settlement
Agreement, came to an end in April, 1925, and only a few of such children,
in respect of whom we considered we were committed, sailed at a later
date, and Mary Dickson was not one of these.

If the Salvation Army took Mary Dickson for the purpose of sending
her straight to her mother instead of placing her from their hostel, they
deliberately misled us, and they may have done the same thing in many
other cases.”

A further reply was received from the Director under date of September
28th, 1926, who stated that Mrs. George Dickson had been interviewed at
Greenock and had stated that she knew of no agreement with the Salvation Army
for the payment of Mary’s passage to Canada.

Annexed hereto is a copy of a report, dated the 5th of November, 1926, from
our Agent at Toronto who had been instructed to inquire further into this case.

The evidence before the Department which appeared to establish conclusively
that Mary Dickson was required to repay the cost of her transportation to the
Salvation Army was:—

(1) The statement of Mrs. Dickson when questioned by an officer
of the Department on May 4th, 1926, to the effect that she expected to
have to repay $100 to the Salvation Army for Mary’s transportation as
she had come with that understanding.

(2) Mrs. Dickson’s written statement dated August 24th, 1926, that
Mary had got a loan of $100 which she promised to refund and had signed
a form regarding the same.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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(3) Mrs. George Dickson’s statement that she had received letters
from Mrs. Dickson saying the Salvation Army was asking for payments
which she told them it was impossible to make at the time but would do
so later.

(4) Mrs. Dickson’s statement to an officer of this Department on
November 5th, 1926 to the effect that—

(@) When she paid a deposit of £1 on Mary’s passage it was put down

on the paper that the amount of the loan was over $100 and Staff
Captain Layne asked her if she would be willing to pay ten
shillings a month back. She states she agreed to this.
(b) When a Salvation Army Officer called after Christmas, 1925, she
(Mrs. Dickson) asked if the officer had come for a payment.
The officer replied that he had just called to see if Mary was in
a proper home and working. .

(¢) A Salvation Army Officer called late in October, 1926, to make
a collection on the daughter Marion’s loan and asked Mrs. Dick-
son if she had started to pay anything on Mary’s loan.

On November 13th, 1926, cable advice from the Assistant Deputy Minister,
who was then in London, indicated that a loan had been granted to Marion
Dickson, a sister of Mary Dickson, and that the collection by the Army doubtless
referred only to Marion.

The record of the Department shows that Mary Dickson joined her mother
in Toronto and obtained factory work instead of taking household work as a
ward of the Salvation Army.

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION, CANADA

46-50 ApeLamE St., E.
ToronTo, 2, ONTARIO, November 5, 1926

(Rush)

Sr,—In reply to your letter of the 3rd instant regarding the immigration
to Canada of one, Mary Dickson; I have located Mrs. Dickson residing at 72
Shudell Ave., Toronto.

I had an interview with Mrs. Dickson, and as it was thought Mary could
recollect the dates better, I interviewed both parties on the night of the 4th
instant. I took a statement from Mrs. Dickson and she advises me that she
called at the Salvation Army Officers on Hope Street, Glasgow, Scotland, about
January, 1925; she does not know the name of the officer she interviewed, but
she was advised they might be able to get her a loan, and that possibly they
might be able to get her a loan without the necessity of a refund for her daughter
Mary Dickson. She states she did not bother any more about the matter until
the 1st of October, 1925, when she was booking her own passage at the Salva-
tion Army Offices on Hope Street, Glasgow. At this time she spoke to the lady
stenographer and asked her if she could get a free passage for her daughter
Mary; the lady stenographer stated she had never heard anything about it;
Mrs. Dickson says she had the interview of some ten months previous in mind.
The lady stenographer advised Mrs. Dickson she had better see the Canadian
Government Office; she went to our office on Hope Street and was advised there
that they did not give free passages.

Mrs. Dickson then returned to the Salvation Army Offices and spoke to the
lady stenpgrapher again, advising her that they did not seem to know anything
about free passages. She asked the lady stenographer if it would be possible
for Mary to get an assisted passage, seeing as she could not get a free passage.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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The lady stenographer asked her Mary’s age, what she was working at, and
Mrs. Dickson told her that Mary was working in an office, and the lady steno-
grapher said she would try to have Mary sail on the ss. Doric. Mrs. Dickson
states she booked her own passage paying $20, and that she deposited £1.0.0 on
Mary’s passage. She was advised that two photographs would be required; one
for the Canadian Government, and one for the Salvation Army, also two char-
acter references; further that her papers had to be signed by a J.P. or a Min-
ister, The papers she signed, Mrs. Dickson states, were of foolscap size, and
when at fhe Hope Street office of the Salvation Army, they gave her some
papers to get signed by Mary; these papers referred to her age, height, whether
she was married or single, etc., also what her father died of.

It appears Staff Captain Layne was there at this time, and Mrs. Dickson
states that it was put down on the paper that the amount of the loan was over
$100, and he asked her if she would be willing to pay ten shillings a month
back; she states he agreed to this. Mrs. Dickson then received a letter from the
Salvation Army to say that they were very sorry Mary could not go with her.

. Mary Dickson states that the day before she left she was called to the Salva-
tion Army Offices, Hope Street, Glasgow, and the stenographer asked her a
number of questions; her name, address, and where she was going to; she told
the stenographer she was going to 56 Milverton Blvd., Toronto; she was also
asked what kind of work she would like and she answered a nurse maid; Mary
states she wrote this herself, and on Monday she had to go to a doctor.

Mrs. Dickson states that when she was going on the tender to go on the
ss. Doric, she was met by Staff Captain Spicer of the Salvation Army and he
said “I have your daughter’s papers back O.K., and she will be sailing on the
6th of November.” Mrs. Dickson states that she kept in touch with the Salva-
tion Army until Mary was in Toronto, and that her daughter Marion Dickson,
who had come out under the auspices of the Salvation Army previously, went
to the Toronto station; apparently she knew the officer who was looking after
them through paying back her money; she states she told the officer Mary
might as well go home to their place, and the officer asked her their address and
she replied 36 Seymour Street, and allowed her to proceed.

Mrs. Dickson states the next she heard was a telephone call to see if Mary
was quite all right, but that this was after Christmas; that about one month
later she had a visit from a Salvation Army Officer, and she asked the Officer
if she had come for a payment; the Officer replied that she had just called to
see if Mary was in a proper home and if she was working. ;

It appears that Mary secured work with the T. Eaton Co., during the
Christmas rush, and that after Christmas Mrs. Dickson took Mary to the Salva-
tion Army where they secured her a position with a Mrs. Burns, 5 Somerset Ave.,
Toronto, It appears Mary got very homesick and wanted to go home every
night; they believe she was there for three months. Mrs. Burns, it seems, required
some one who would stay every night, and Mary then got a position with a Mrs.
Layne whom she had made the acquaintance of in Eaton’s; she undertook to
look after this woman’s child, and was allowed to go home every night; Mrs.
Layne was employed with the T. Eaton Co. In August, this year, she secured
a position with the Currie Neckwear Co., where she worked for two months, next
securing a position, a permanent one, with the Benjamin Electric Mfg., Co., in
their factory, where she is at present employed.

~ Mrs. Dickson states further that a Salvation Army Officer called again on
her when she had just been out at a day’s work, and she found her card; that
the Salvation Army Officer called a week ago to make a collection on Marion’s
loan, and she asked her if she had started to pay anything on Mary’s loan, and
Mrs. Dickson replied, not yet. She has had no letters from the Salvation Army,
and she claims to have no letters of any kind. Mrs. Dickson advises me that
the stenographer at the Hope Street office of the Salvation Army, Glasgow, told
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her, “ You will understand that when we emigrate Mary to Canada she will be
under the Army’s charge, and even if she goes on the same boat, she will be
under the Army’s charge until she is eighteen years of age”; further that when
she arrived in Toronto she might be sent out of Toronto; she claims that as she
was getting the loan for Mary and had the money to pay back, she thought she
could claim her after her arrival, and that it was made quite clear by the Army
that Mary was under their charge until she was eighteen years of age.

Mrs. Dickson had in her mind the idea that if she could get Mary out to
Canada she could claim her; she is quite clear in the matter that she was to
- repay to the Army Mary’s loan, and she states “ there is no doubt about it ”;
she was prepared to agree to anything they would ask in order to get Mary out
to Canada, and she denies that there was any agreement, directly or indirectly,
that Mary was to be brought out to be delivered to her.

From Mrs. Dickson's statement, it would appear that she had in mind, get-
ting Mary out to Canada and repay the loan; but the only reference to the loan
since Mary arrived was when the Salvation Army officer inquired a week ago
as to whether she had started to repay Mary’s loan as yet. | Mrs. Dickson
advises me that she thinks that Staff Captain Spicer of the Salvation Army mav
have had the idea that she was going to meet Mary; but the only reason she can
give for this is her persistency and willingness to agree to anything that might be
suggested.

It would appear to be a case where, Mrs. Dickson was emigrating to Can-
ada; she had three children and she did not wish to leave them with her son who
was recently married, and she had in mind securing Mary’s emigration to Can-
ada,—and was, therefore, agreeable to signing anything. It would appear that
the Salvation Army had advised Mrs. Dickson pretty definitely that Mary was
to be in their charge until she was eighteen years of age, and Mrs. Dickson
declares that there was no suggestion by anybody that Mary was to be brought
out here and handed over to her, and that she definitely understood that Mary
was to be a ward of the Army until she was eighteen years of age.

It would appear that the Salvation Army office at Toronto and the Army
Officers in Toronto have been very lax in looking after this young woman, who
was brought out as a ward, and paid for by the Department.

I would suggest that we endeavour to secure any papers Mrs. Diskson
might have signed at the Salvation Army Office, Hope Street, Glasgow; you will
note that this young woman is not working as a domestic and would appear to
be in full charge of the mother; further that the only reference to payments was
a week ago when the Army Collector asked if she had started to pay as yet on
Mary’s loan.

* Your obedient servant,
JAS. C. MITCHELL,

Dominion I'mmigration. Agent.
W. J. Ecan, Esq.,
Deputy Minister of Immigration and Colonization,
Ottawa, Ontario.

~ The Wirness: The next I wish to submit to the Committee for their consi-
deration is a review of the women’s settlement, making some reference to the
hostels and people which were handled last year.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: Give us a short resume of that.

The Wirness: It really describes the formation of the women’s branch and
the functions of the Department, where and how they operate, the different
hostels we operate through on account of provincial and federal co-operation in
all cases but two, and the names of the national organizations working in
co-operation with the departmental officials in connection with the settlement of

‘women.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Are they our own hostels?—A. That I have covered in some data in
connection with the Salvation Army. I go to show the whole contribution.

Q. I think we should have a resume of the Salvation Army. What we want
to know is, what the agreements are?—A. The Canadian Women’s hostels—giving
you the figures, Colonel Ralston—have been established in the provinces to
which houseworkers seeking domestic employment are destined: (Reads):—

CANADIAN WOMEN’S HOSTELS

Canadian Women’s Hostels have been established in Provinces to which
house workers, seeking domestic employment, are destined. These hostels are
non-denominational and receive grants from the Dominion Government and in
most cases they also receive grants from the Provineial Governments. Each
hostels is under the manazement of a local committee who appoint a President,
Treasurer and Secretary, e.g., Montreal—

Committee
1. Honorary President, 7. 1,O.D.E.,
2, 0 Treasurer, 8. Lutherans,
3, > Secretary, 9. Montreal Women’s Club,
Representatives of the— 10. Presbyterian Church,
4. Baptist Church, 11. United Church,
5. Catholic Women’s League, 12. Y.M.CA.,,
6. Church of England, 13. National Council of Women.

These hostels received the following grants during 1927-28 from the Dom-
inion and Provincial Governments,—

Hostel Federal | Provincial

o 6L R PR
800700 4o b, Huam'
8,000 00. 5 v imesvas
2,000 00 5,000 00
750 00 1,500 00
1,000 00 750 00
2,500 00 1,000 00
e R B o

These hostels also derive revenue for board and lodging from house workers
who have already received the free accommodation and who may subsequently
require temporary accommodation.

In additicn the Dominion Government pays each hostel east of Manitoba
the sum of $1.50 for the accommodation of each house worker for twenty-four
hours, and each hostel west of Ontario receives the sum of $3 for the accommo-
dation of each house worker for forty-eight hours.

The Department also pays the above per diem allowance for the accommo-
dation of houseworkers in the following Institutions,—
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Province City Institution
Nova Bootiasa.. o dh. BRI AN, Haliax. i85, 00 00 Sisters of Service Hostel.
New Brunswick & Btedobn aia e Rosary Hall Hostel.
U R T N T R e St i ¢ Montreal............|Catholic Women’s League Hostel.
L Lo S (s WL P IR A Ottawa Y.W.C.A.
L8 T o PR T A B e T e Ottawa.. King’s Daughters Guild.
L Lo R N Ottawa Rosary Hall Hostel.
OItato:, Sy ey v o A NN AT Toronto Catholic Women s League Hostel.
L0 g Yot GO R AT e e T Y London Y.W.C.A
L0031 T R RO B T R T e Hamilton.. Y. W.CA.
N s . S e A Winnipeg. . .|Catholic Women's League Hostel.
SUIBBEIR. Lo Bl Lo B o3l Edmonton.......... Y.W.C.A.
BUSEPOR, . « oo sl it il bt ». b i Edmonton..........|Rosary Hall.
British Coltabin. . . .5} it Tt s s Vancouver.......... Y.W.C.A
BritisheColombiai i oy .. « & S350 L ik b Vancouver.......... Queen Mary s Coronation Hostel.
Betiah. ColUInbIa. . «rymssha i st Fros i Victoria.......cou.. Y.W.C.A.
BAGRD COlUmDI, et o s ss ne Apioas S NV IOUOTER . vie s o o Joyce Hostel.

The Immigration Branch of the Salvation Army has been offered the same
per diem allowance that is paid to the above institutions.

STATEMENT OF AMOUNTS PAID BY THE DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND
COLONIZATION TO THE SALVATION ARMY FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY-
THREE YEARS FROM THE FISCAL YEAR OF 1904-05

Fiscal Year Grants Bonuses Sundries Total

$§ cts $§ cts. $ cts $ cts.

RODAROE.: . 2o d W MRS - i Feasntie . dara A, gp e LRES . S DET BV Cai bin s e 3,947 57
1905-06 1,500 00 8,124 90 267 94 9,892 84
1906-07... 500 00 9,052 50 890 60| 10,443 10
1907-08. .. 24,560 01 1, 896 58I 105 i s sban 36,456 59
1908-09. . 24,166 67 Za bl B U 26,800 67
1909-10 8,387 49 1,086'00]. . .. . 2808 9,433 49
1910-11 1051804111018 7)1 2. Jaspz .- ¢ 26,528 61
1911-12 18,887 481" 10,781 001, . .ovinnes 24,148 48
1912-13 17,645 86 CHLY S PN S 26,575 26
1913-14 22,516 68 9,170 60 214 62| 31,901 90
1914-15 21,516 67 S 146 B0). Jorkt Balii 24,662 57
1915-16 10,000 00 926 835t vim e o 10,926 63
1916-17 7,500 00 157 30 597 87 8,255 17
1917-18 0Dl O0L. s bras o 63 87 7,563 87
1918-19 @ 1 R SNT N AR e et e 7,500 00
1919-20 M SRR T B e PLO ARSI 5,000 00
1920-21 15,000 00 BB VA, N 15,274 67
1921-22 26,500 00 157 62 51 00f 26,708 62
1922-23 AL R e e I S e P P 26,500 00
1923-24 8600000} & s Naddinaaise 35,000 00
1924-25. ... 20,000 OUE,, 5450 555 ldandBanncs o sat 25,000 00
1925-26. ... O D DBE. . 4 e Loy 25,000 00
1926-27 SH000000L. 2. o1 Lt IR, Bt 25,000 00
365,197 50| 81,236 64 2,085 90| 448,520 04

In addition to the above amounts, the Department has paid the Army for
passage grants on account of children, the following amounts:—

$ 61,528 68

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



192 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

The Department also paid the underlisted amounts to the Salvation Army
for transportation of class “A” children on account of British Government’s share
for which we obtained refund from that Government.

B T P ini e vl ha vt “xr ¥ A A ST LS g Rl n B s &V e $ 719 96
L T o e R S Ay S PSR e R e e e S e o 20,422 54
L e 2ol o p e bk nu EPR TP WIS, o s ey N E IR | S e R R 14,239 19
[ o R sty FN IS, - WA LI R TR Y Byt | o A RS RS TR R 2 8,838 50

$ 45,220 19

Total paid to Salvation Army from April 1st, 1904, to March 31st, 1927,—
$555,268.91.
Nore—These figures based on Auditor General’s reports.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. Mr. Egan, why is there a difference in the different provinces? In some
places I notice there is no provincial grant at all and the federal grant covers
the whole thing. Why is there any discrimination between the various prov-
inces?>—A. There is no discrimination on our part. If the provincial govern-
ment will not make a grant we cannot help that.

Q. As I understand it, the work is carried on in the different provinces,
but in some cases the Dominion Government pays for the whole thing?—A., Yes.

Q. And in other provinces they do not? In some provinces the Dominion
Government is willing to assume the whole load. Why is it not assumed by
the Dominion Government in all cases?—A. The purpose of the whole proposi-
tion was that it would be a provincial and federal co-operation, and Ontario
and Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Alberta have contributed. The amounts to
the other provinces that do not contribute are not large because the movement
is small; in British Columbia $350 and in New Brunswick $500. That is the
total the federal Government subscribed to those provinces. I am mistaken
to this extent, as to Quebec. Quebec does not subscribe but Montreal is a
clearing house for thousands, I may say, each year, where they remain for a
day or two, and therefore we feel that we must keep up the hostel there, but
the Quebec Government has not seen its way to contribute. We have to keep
up the hostel there.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:
Q. There are a number of persons passing through?—A. Yes, that is the
way it is established, according to the work that they develop.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. In connection with these hostels I have heard complaints to this effect:
In Saskatchewan the hostel is at one point and the domestic help coming to
that point is distributed in the neighbourhood of the place where the hostel is,
but in other portions of the province they do not receive the domestic help
which they believe they require. How is the distribution made after
the domestic help comes to a hostel?—A. It is made really most of the time
through the provincial authorities. In the provinces that are not co-operating
with their provincial officials, it is made through the medium of the local wel-
fare societies looking after women and their placement.

Q. Just what function do these women’s hostels perform?—A. They are
clearing houses. First of all the girls go there and before they are sent to any
private house there is a full report made on the home they are going to, then
if perchance they are in difficulty with their employer, it is a medium for finding
a new position. And if they are in town and want to rest for a day or two
they use the hostel as a sort of clubhouse.
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Q. In Saskatchewan the hostel is at Regina. Is the local committee there
composed of people from that locality?—A. Yes, representing various provin-
cial welfare societies.

Q. And they allocate any group of domestic help that comes in, to the
various points?—A. According to the demands made previously on them from
different centres.

Q. Complaint has been made by various people that they find it impossible
to get the domestic help they require, at other points. That seems to be one of
the objections that has been raised for a long time. I have been wondering
whether or not the complaints were justified or not?—A. I think up to a certain
point there must be some justification for the complaints, but it means estab-
lishing other hostels in other centres, if you want to overcome the largest part
of the complaint. I have not heard anything as yet from any of the provincial
officials as to complaints being in evidence with them. I am speaking now of
the western provinces. I meet the officials from time to time and they have
not submitted any complaints of that kind to me.

By Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw):

Q. In the province of Saskatchewan, the provincial government maintain
agencies and would not these people work in very close co-operation with them?
—A. They do. There is the closest co-operation between all these societies. I
gave you an example of ten different welfare or church societies in Montreal,
acting on the part of these societies in co-operation with the Department.

: Hon. Mr. Forkr: I think Mr. Ross refers to the provincial employment
ostels.

The Wirness: Yes, there is wholehearted co-operation in respect to these
societies, and their requirements are also submitted to the provincial labour

office. {
By Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw):

Q. As a matter of fact it is pretty hard to get them. They cannot get a
sufficient supply of domestic bhelp. Have you anything to say about that?—
A. That is a fairly universal complaint.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon) :

Q. If, for instance, there are two hundred required in Saskatchewan, are
those allocated by the local committee?—A. Yes.

Q. So they could, if they so desire, allocate those arriving amongst the
people they know best?—A. That is possible, but after all a local committee is
formed from what I think is about as fair as you can find in this world. Most
of them are people who devote their time to the welfare of others and I think
they would look at that problem with some sense of proportion.

Hon. Mr. Forke: In Saskatoon they complain that the Regina people get
them all and they never get as far as Saskatoon.

The Wirness: I admit that there must be something to that complaint, to
a certain extent.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon) :

Q. Would it not be possible to have this committee composed of represen-
tatives from various parts of the province in order that the needs of the whole
province might be more adequately observed?—A. I am quite sure the Provin-
cial Labour Bureau do look after that end of it. I will be glad to go into it in
more detail and advise vou, and I will suggest to Miss Burnham when she goes
west on her next trip to look into it.

Q. Who appoints the local committee?—A. The local welfare institutions.
They nominate their own president, vice-president and manager; and a com-
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mittee, representative of each special society, act as directors, or a certain num-
ber of them. In Montreal, it is ten directors as well as the president and vice-
president. The thing has been working to wonderful advantage up to now and
this is the first I have heard of this complaint. It has never been submitted to
me before. I can quite understand that it would come to you locally on account
of your very large centres perhaps not getting all they require; but I think Regina
is in the same position. It does not receive half the experienced domestic help
it should have.

Q. That explains perhaps what I want. If Regina is not getting half what
it requires, and there is a local committee there, they would be more familiar
with the local complaints and would probably attend to them first. I have had
many serious complaints along this line and it might possibly assist if the hostel
were located in the central portion of Saskatchewan, and they might be more
distributed through the province in that way?—A. You would have to influence
the provincial government and not us. We are willing to do whatever the pro-
vincial government want in that respect.

- Hon. Mr. Forge: I do not like to interrupt but I do not think you have
touched the real difficulty of the situation in regard to domestic help. We get
the women, but not the domestic help.

The Wirness: That is quite right. I have not touched on that.

Hon. Mr. Forke: The trouble is that the experience of the Department is
this: the women come out as domestic help and in a month or two they have
drifted into the city and are not to be found where they were expected to go at
all.

The Wrrness: That is our general experience. I was answering more along
the lines of location which I thought was what was asked.

Hon. Mr. Forge: The western plains could take thousands of women of
that kind, if they would come out and do the work, but we cannot get them. That
is, we cannot get domestic help.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. Will you instruct Miss Burnham to look into this problem that I have
mentioned and see whether a reasonable solution can be arrived at?—A. I will
submit it to the Saskatchewan authorities as it has been suggested to-day, and
I will have Miss Burnham look into it as I have previously stated.

I would now like to submit to the Committee a memorandum in detail as
to what constitutes the publicity work of the Department.

(The Chairman left the Chair which was assumed by Mr. Brown, M.P,,
as Acting Chairman).

Mr. DoxNerLy: I do not see why this paper should not be submitted the
same as others were this morning, and printed in the record. We can read the
record.

The Wirness: If I may be privileged to say so, I think those interested in
this phase of our work will be able to get it in the printed form. T quite agree
with the suggestion.

The Acting CuARMAN: Is that agreed to?

Carried.

The Acting CaamrMaN: The paper will be taken as read and printed in the
record.

PusLiciTY

Immigration business is developed in the British Isles in the United States
by our representatives in these countries. The origin of immigration business
in both countries is advertising and publicity and exhibits at fairs or shows.
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Our Agents in the British Isles also give lectures where prospects are established
and business is also developed by booking agents. A

The Department of Immigration and Colonization carries on publicity in
those countries from which may be secured settlers of the type likely to succeed
in Canada, and where such activities are regarded without disfavour by the
national government. These conditions limit the field mainly to the British
Isles and the United States of America. In some of the countries of North-
western Europe a more favourable attitude toward Canadian publicity has
recently been observed, but, generally speaking, these countries do not regard
with favour any pronounced emigration activities by other lands.

The publicity work of the Department is carried on through a Publicity
Branch at Ottawa; through the general organization of the Department in the
British Isles and the United States, and, to a lesser degree, through its organ-
ization in Europe.

Every Immigration official in Canada outside of Ottawa is a news con-
tributor. Items of interest touching every branch of agricultural development,
successful individual settlement or any other items of news which are likely to
be accepted for publicity purposes are forwarded by Immigration officials to
the Director of Publicity who prepares and contributes the material to news-
papers or farm journals outside of Canada.

There is a special service to 500 newspapers in the United States about twice
a week, and a weekly bulletin of over one thousand circulation contributes news
for the use of editors. This service also feeds certain newspapers printed in
foreign languages.

A similar news service is also forwarded to our London Office where it is
put into shape for circulation to the metropolitan, provincial and rural press
in the British Isles.

The attitude of the Department with regard to its publicity is, that while
Canada’s attractions shall be vigorously presented, they must not be exagger-
ated, and the statements in every instance must be such as can be supported by
actual facts. The charges sometimes heard that Canadian publicity is too
optimistic when run to their source invariably disclose that the publicity com-
plained of was not issued by the Department of Immigration and Colonization.

e more important avenues of publicity utilized by the Department are:
newspaper and farm journal advertising; the preparation and distribution of
news and feature articles; the preparation and distribution of booklets and other
literature; illustrated lectures; the placing of exhibits of Canadian products at
agricultural fairs; the maintenance of attractive show windows at strategic
points, and special visits to Canada of editorial parties.

ADVERTISING

The purpose of the advertising and other publicity activities of the Depart-
ment, is to make known in other lands the opportunities which Canada affords
to new settlers, and to make available to the better classes of prospective immi-
grants reliable information about the Dominion.

Advertising is carried in periodicals circulating in farm communities in the
British Isles and the United States. It is confined mainly to the late autumn
and winter months, this being the season in which farmers are most receptive
to this kind of appeal. Its object is to give information about and create an
interest in Canada as a field of opportunity for the classes to which the appeal
1s directed. The advertising invites enquiries for more detailed information and
these enquiries, when received by the Department either at headquarters or at
any of its agencies, are answered by letters covering the subject in some detail
and accompanied by appropriate literature. In the course of an ordinary year
the Department distributes between a million and a half and two million copies
of its publications.

Mr. W. J. 5
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The Department advertises in 47 papers in the United States. These
Jinclude the leading farm papers of that country such as “Country Gentleman,”
“Successful Farming,” “Farm and Fireside,” “Farm Journal,” Farm Life,” etc.,
and the leading farm papers in those States from which we are encouraging
immigration.

The Department also advertises in 454 papers in Great Britain reaching
the principal rural and farming populations of that country. °

Exua1BITIONS. —UNITED STATES

Exhibits depicting the growth, progress, and resources of Canada, with
special emphasis upon the country’s agricultural possibilities, are an important
feature of the work of making Canada known to other countries. These exhibits
may vary in magnitude from the splendid presentation of Canada at the Wem-
bley Exhibition to a portable stand at some agricultural fair in the British Isles
or the United States. They are also a means of bringing the public of other
countries and, in the case of agricultural fairs, particularly the farming classes,
into direct contact with representatives of the Department.

3UMMARY

Average
Good Cost per
Agency Prospects | Prospect
Established| for the
Agency

$ cts

49 38 82

48 46 51

12 103 83

27 53 96

264 13 50

18 30 42

70 21 48

66 45 26

24 101 10

94 58 33

37 30 77

64 15 85

182 11 42

16 30 84

During the last fiscal year, the department was represented at 70 exhibitions
in the United States. Our agents reported an aggregate attendance at the Can-
adian exhibits of 2,239,400 persons.

Exumitions—UNITED KIiNGDOM

Ezhibitions.—The usual exhibition work of the department was considerably
interfered with during the season by the prolonged labour unrest, and a series of
outbreaks of foot and mouth disease, which caused the cancellation of a large
number of these fixtures. Nevertheless, it was found possible to have the depart-
ment, represented at 108 agricultural shows, the total attendance of which
amounted to 986,186, of whom 215,586 visited the Canadian Government exhibits.
At these fixtures 209,267 pieces of literature were distributed. Names of prospec-
tive settlers were obtained at these shows wherever possible, and the total pros-
pects secured were as follows:—

Families Single Men Domestics
222 294 27

A new feature this year, which may be deseribed as a sequel to the Wembley
Exhibition, was a large number of Empire Displays, Empire Shopping Weeks,
Empire Fairs, ete., to which we were able to send displays of Canadian produce,
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although the department was not well equipped for this class of exhibit, owing
to the demand being more for trade products, such as tinned salmon, bottled fruit,
honey, butter, cheese, etec. Nevertheless, we sent displays and distributed
literature. At four of the larger of these fixtures a complete Canadian exhibit
was erected. The sum expended on exhibitions and exhibits was £2,198.9.0.

The objective of the Department’s publicity—to excite an intelligent interest
in Canada and to bring interested persons into direct contact with a representa-
tive of the Department. Whether that contact be established as the result of
advertising, or of news matter distributed through the Press, or of lectures or
exhibitions or any other of the many forms of publicity, the first objective has
been accomplished when the enquirer is placed in contact with the departmental
representative. He then becomes the subject of personal attention and, if he
proves to be of the type likely to become a successful settler every co-operation
18 extended in supplying him with detailed information and in facilitating the
migration of himself, his family and his effects to the Dominion.

The cumulative value of publicity is very generally recognized in the
business world. Trade marks and slogans, popularized by advertising, are
regarded as among the most valuable assets of many business enterprises. While
it is impossible to place a specific value upon the cumulative effect of the Depart-
ment’s publicity, it is certain that it has done and is doing a great deal to make
Canada better known in other lands, and that this increased knowledge is bene-
ficial to Canada, not only in connection with her immigration work, but along
many other lines as well. It may fairly be claimed that the publicity conducted
by the Department has not only promoted immigration but has contributed to
a better understanding with other countries and has been of value to every
branch of Canadian industry.

The Wirness: Then, I have something to submit in connection with the
evidence given by Mr. George H. Corbett. (Reads):—

Mr. Geo. H. Corbett, Executive Secretary of the Society for the Pro-
tection of Women and Children, Montreal, referred to the case of Arthur
Charlton and family having become public charges in Canada and no
action being taken to effect deportation.

Departmental record shows that in September, 1925, the Society for
the Protection of Women and Children made a complaint with regard to
the said family. It was reported that Arthur Charlton and family arrived
in Canada by the SS. “Doric” on July 11th, 1925. On October 10th the
Deputy Minister’s order was issued for the examination of this family
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 40 and 42 of the Immigra-
tion Act. On October 19th 1925, Mr. Corbett, Executive Secretary of
the Society referred to, wrote our Agent at Montreal as follows:—

“We wrote you in above connection on September 25th last.

On the 2nd inst. efforts to obtain a position for this man were
successful. Charlton and his wife are now acting as janitor and
janitress of the Auditorium Building, Ontario St. West, for which
they receive $20 per week, and all the usual perquisites.

I have your letter on the 16th inst. and under the circumstances
am asking you to suspend examination. Both the Charltons seem
very anxious to make a go of their position but owing to the very
restricted accommodation, they may find it difficult-to continue.
We are, however, endeavouring to make arrangements for the care
of the two younger children in an institution. As the parents will
be able to pay the moderate charges entailed, these children will not
be subjects of application to the Quebec Public Charities list.

If, for any reason, Charlton is not amenable to your rules in the
future, I will take the matter up with you at the time.”

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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On the above letter being transmitted to the Department, the Division
Commissioner advised our Agent at Montreal that in view of the state-
ment of the Society for the Protection of Women and Children no further
action was to be taken unless further complaint was made. No further
complaint has been received to date.

May 9th, 1928,

That is, no further complaint until he spoke at this meeting. What I have
read explains why the deportation was deferred; it was at the request of the
society.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. On that deportation question, Mr, Egan, what is necessary before a man
is deported? What is the procedure?—A. If he is an illegal entry into the
country, or is becoming a public charge any time within five years, which must
be a full five years—if perchance he has been in hospital for four months, then
he must serve as a full fledged citizen of five years and four months before he is
free, that is has acquired a domicile. We never take any action in respect to
public charges unless the municipalities report to us the fact that the man is a
public charge.

. Q. Then, do you investigate the case, or do you take their word for it?—
A. Oh, no, we do not take their word for it; we send our officers and we have a
Board on them before we order the deportation. That also applies, of course,
to notification from penal institutions as to eriminals et cetera.

I should now like to refer to a case mentioned by Canon Burd on page 280
of his evidence. (Reads):—

7th May 1928,
Memorandum

Canon Burd on page 280 of his evidence, no. 11, Thursday, April 26,
1928, referred to the case of a Mr. Sparrow whose application was rejected
as unsuitable under the 3,000 Family Scheme. The evidence showed that
Mr. Sparrow had paid his own passage to Canada, that he was employed
on a farm near Prince Albert and that his services were acceptable. It
would further appear that his two boys are now employed on a farm in
Ontario.

We cabled the Director of Emigration in London for an explanation
and the following cable reply has been received: —

Cables exchanged Sparrow could not qualify under Family

Scheme lacking farming experience stop made no application for

reduced rate for himself to our agent stop overseas refuses grant

reduced rate men proceeding Canada advance families therefore

Sparrow could not obtain reduced transportation.

Under date of the 30th ultimo we cabled our London Office as
follows:—

Yours thirtieth forward original application and all case papers

regarding George W. Sparrow. .
and received the following reply:—

Mailing original complete file George Sparrow case registered
mail to-day.

Under date of the 9th of January 1928 we received and accepted the
nomination of Mrs Emily Sparrow and her two children who were destined
to Prince Albert. On the 17th of February 1928 we received notification
that Mrs. Sparrow and her two children would sail by the SS. Andania
on the 24th of March, 1928.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. Is that the same case where the man was not physically fit?—A. Yes,
the man Sparrow with the bad eye. I have given you the evidence as against
the Canon’s complaint that we had not accepted the man. It was impossible
to accept him.

For the information of the Committee, I have a memorandum here which I
might read. (Reading):—

7th May, 1928.

In replying to a question by Mr. Cahan on page 239 No. 10, Wed-
nesday, April 25, 1928, Mr. E. W. Beatty pointed out that there was one
aspect of the situation which was sometimes overlooked and that was the
great number of privately owned lands in the West. Mr. Beatty’s evidence
on this point reads in part as follows:—

I have always felt that if the Government looks with favour upon

greater assistance there must be a method found of bringing in to such
a scheme these many, many acres of privately owned land in the three
Prairie Provinces, and if the Government assists in the settlement of
these lands, then the advances made by the Government should be
prior to any existing charge against that land. No effective scheme
has been worked out, because it can only be done by agreement between
all of the thousands of owners of private lands who would come in to
one great land selling pool. I have never heard that one has been
attempted, and it would have to be a part of the government policy,
and the Government itself perhaps is the only influence sufficiently
strong to bring that about. These lands should be made available
on terms to which the Government, itself would agree were fair to the
incoming settler. That has never been approached in this country,
so far as I know, and I have always thought it was one of our greatest
difficulties.

In this connection I shall read a letter dated the 22nd of June, 1926,
which I wrote to John Appleton, Esq., Secretary, The Dominion Mortgage
& Investments Association, Canada Life Bldg., Bay St., Toronto, Ontario,
containing certain proposals for the colonization or settlement of improved
farms and lands owned or controlled by the companies which comprise the
Dominion- Mortgage and Investment Association:—

Orrawa, Canapa, 22nd June, 1926.

Drar Sir,—Referring to our conference of the 8th instant, I have
now much pleasure in submitting, as requested by Mr. G. H. Smith, a
memorandum covering the suggestions which I made regarding colon-
ization schemes which would involve the settlement of approximately
2,000 families annually on farms in Canada.

The proposals embodied in the enclosed memorandum sre made
without prejudice and for the purpose of determining whether it is
possible to formulate a colonization scheme on a co-operative basis.

These proposals are of course applicable to improved farms and
lands owned or controlled by the companies which comprise the
Dominion Mortgage and Investments Association.

If it is possible to formulate a scheme fior British settlement I
shall then submit another memorandum regarding the settlement of
continentals.

I shall be glad to hear further from you regarding these proposals.

Yours faithfully,
(Signed) W. J. EGAN.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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The Secretary of the Dominion Mortgage and Investments Associa-
tion replied on the 8th of July 1926 and stated that the suggestions would
be considered at a meeting of the Executive. Another letter dated the
8th of December, 1926 was received from the Secretary-Treasurer of the
Association who stated that it was intended to discuss this matter fully
at, Edmonton in September but pressure of other business had interfered
and that it was found necessary to refer the matter back to the Executive.

I quote the following extract which appears on page 15 of the Year
Book 1927 of the Dominion Mortgage and Investments Association and
Affiliated Associations:—

LAND SETTLEMENT AND COLONIZATION

This question has from time to time received the attention of
your Executive. Each member company was asked, in July, 1926,
to suggest practical means of bringing unoccupied lands under
remunerative cultivation. A great variety of opinions were received
and these were remitted to a Special Committee for consideration.
The personnel of this Committe is as follows: Messrs. J. C. Brecken-
ridge, C. S. Macdonald, E. M. Saunders, George H. Smith, W. G.
Watson, J. F. Weston and G. B. Woods.

The opinion of the Special Committee was that the most prac-
tical step would be to discuss the problem with the Minister of
Immigration with a view to determining in what respects the lending
organizations could advantageously identify themselves with some
general policy. With that end in view it was thought best to have
the Minister of Immigration speak directly to the members and, also,
to have brought directly to the attention of the members the views
of some of the more active colonization organizations.

One of the results of this decision is that the Hon. Mr. Forke is
to be with us at this meeting.

No further reply has been received.

My purpose in submitting this is to show that we have made an endeavour
along these lines.

Hon. Mr. Forke:
Q. What is the date of the letter?>—A. The date of the letter is the 22nd of
June, 1926.
Q. June, 1926?—A. Yes, sir. Then we go on with the proposals. Shall T
submit this for your consideration without reading any further?
Agreed to.
(Documents filed.)

Memorandum

LAND SETTLEMENT PROPOSALS

1. The proposals for any land settlement or colonization scheme for
the settlement of British families would involve co-operation with British
and Dominion Governments under the provisions of the Empire Settle-
ment Act of 1922.

2. The primary requirements for any colonization scheme are,—
(a) The number of improved farms available and suitable for the
settlement of British families.
(b) The prices and terms upon which such farms can be purchased
by settlers.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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(¢) What arrangements can be made with the British Government
for an advance on account of stock and equipment.

3. The basis of co-operation may therefore be summarized as fol-

lows:—

(a) That the Land and Mortgage Companies furnish a list of the
farms suitable for British families. This list should contain the
following information:—

(i) Area of each farm, acreage under cultivation, area of
waste land, or land unfit for cultivation, also area of
swamp, stony and bush land.

(i1) Description of land, nature and quality of soil.

(iii) Improvements,—description of house and other farm
buildings, when built and state of repairs, fences, roads,
wells, ete.

(iv) Distance from railway and name of nearest station, mar-
kets, churches and schools.

(v) Total amount of original mortgage and amount now out-
standing, excluding interest and taxes.

(vi) Interest accrued.

(vii) Taxes.

(viii) Present assessed value.

N.B.—Farms suitable for British settlement should be within
reasonable distance of other British settlers and not in
any foreign settlement, should consist of reasonably good
land and buildings and not far removed from railways,
churches, schools, ete.

(b) The Department is prepared to negotiate with the Oversea Set-
tlement Office for an advance on account of stock and equip-
ment for each settler.

(¢) The Department of Immigration and Colonization of the Govern-
ment of Canada is prepared to,—

(1) Undertake recruiting and selection in the United Kingdom.

(i1) Share with the British Government the cost of transporta-

tion by loan or grant to immigrant.

(111) Undertake placement and supervision.

Supervision may be defined as follows: After a family has been
placed on a farm, officials of the Department will obtain
employment for adult members on farms in the vicinity so
that they may gain local farming experience. Officials will
will also watch the progress of and advise new settlers until
they are well established on their own farms.

4. Tmproved farms to be inspected and valued by officials of the
Land Settlement Branch of the Department of Immigration and Coloniza-
tion.

5. The advisability of constituting a Settlement Board to determine
the suitability and prices of farms.

6. Loans to be repaid in fifteen equal instalments with interest at
five per cent per annum.

7. The head of each family should have at least twenty-five pounds
after arrival at destination.

8. Any passage loans to be repaid within two years.

9. During the first two years the settler shall not be called upon to
pay anything on account of purchase price or interest.

10. The settler to pay taxes from the date upon which he signs the
Agreement of Sale.

11. Provision for an option on all farms for settlement.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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I have here a memorandum in regard to the evidence given by the Rev.
Canon Vernon, and I have requested Colonel Rattray to submit a memorandum
pointing out to him what the Canon had submitted to me in reference to the
3,000 family scheme. This memorandum reads as follows (Reading):—

DEPARTMENT OF IMMIGRATION AND COLONIZATION,
CANADA

LAND SETTLEMENT BRANCH

Ortawa, May 8, 1928.
Memorandum

Mr. Egan

With reference to Reverend Canon Vernon’s evidence before the
Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization.
In report of evidence (No. 12, page 304) Canon Vernon says:—

Perhaps the greatest weakness of the Three-Thousand-Family-
Settlement Scheme lay in the fact that the farms used were mainly
those turned back to the Government by soldier settlers. The Govern-
ment had what looked like a big problem, with a lot of farms on their
hands. Sometimes the farms were turned back because the settler would
not or could not make good; many times because the farms themselves
were poor. . . . 1 do not think people have been intentionally
put on poor land, but I think it is a big mistake to let people go on
poor land without some warning from some government representa-
tive that this farm is a farm perhaps in a dry belt where you get good
crops one year and then go five years without a crop, and just as you
are ready to dig out along comes another crop, and you become
encouraged to carry on a little more. Many of these settlers have
been placed on farms which are absolutely impossible as a means of
making a livelihood.

Again on page 308, Mr. Arthurs questions Canon Vernon:—

You advocate a land survey and you gve an instance of land
taken back from soldier settlers, some of which land was not really
good land and on which it was not advisable to place families.—
Answer: Yes.

In reply to the statement of Canon Vernon:—

1. The farms which reverted to the Board from soldier settlers were
carefully appraised and only those which it was felt offered a reasonable
chance of success to a British family were used for the Three-Thousand-
Family Scheme.

2. The farms were classified according to their general character, and
in all cases where any apparent obstacles to success existed, the families
were informed of such so that as far as possible they knew before sailing
the general nature of the property allocated to them and the particular
problems that would have to be met. While families were placed in some
cases on farms which required clearing, cleaning up, ete., no farms were
assigned in so-called dry districts or in districts which presented really
difficult obstacles.

3. Of the 2,669 families which had arrived up till March 31, 1928,
259 withdrew after being established, many of them for reasons which
had nothing to do with the character of the land. They came out with
the evident intention of taking up farming under the scheme, but a num-
ber of them decided to purchase farms entirely on their own acecuunt,
withdrawing from the scheme.
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Reports from settlers under this scheme indicate that in most cases
they are making good progress and the Board is satisfied that they are
going to succeed. During the visit to Canada of the Right Hon. the Earl
of Clarendon, Chairman of the Overseas Settlement Committee, in 1926,
he drove over 6,000 miles in all parts of Canada and inspected the opera-
tions of 200 British families settled under the scheme. His report stated
the opinion that “the Three-Thousand-Family Scheme promises to
become the most successful effort in colonization undertaken by any Gov-
ernment in modern times.”

Superintendent.
W. J. Eean, Esq.,
Deputy Minister, Department of Immigration and Colonization,
Ottawa.

I have just one or two more for the information of the Committee. We
have heard evidence here in reference to our system of having more than one
reference for the applicant, requiring two, while Australia requires only one.
Let me read the official document from the Overseas Settlement, that is, the
document in connection with this, approved by Australia. This is the system
under which they work; it is more for your information than anything else.
(Reading) :—

AUSTRALIA
REFERENCE REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH PASSAGE ASSISTANCE

For the information of the Committee I beg to quote from instruc-
tions issued in reference to this question in connection with Australia
Schemes.

Section 52 of these instructions reads:—

“The Australian Authorities require at least two separate original
references from responsible persons vouching for the applicant’s char-
?g,e)r "to be produced by each applicant (see paras. 77 (2), and 81
Section 77 s.s. (2) of the instructions reads:—

“The attention of the applicant must be called to the necessity
of his obtaining two references from persons of the classes specified
on the form.”

While Section 80 s.s. (3) reads:— :

“0.E.B. 19 should not be used, but the attention of the appli-
cant should be specially directed to the requirements of the Austral-
ian Authorities that at least two original references (copies not accep-
table) from responsible persons as to character, experience (if any)
and suitability for domestic or other work, must be obtained and
attached to the completed form in support of the application. In
the case of women covered by para. 107 (4) (c), at least two refer-
ences must testify to the applicant’s capacity for domestic work.”

The hand-book for men contemplating C_)Versea settlement and
published by the Oversea Settlement Board, revised to January 1, 1928,
states:—

“These forms should be returned, when completed, accompanied
by two original references to the office from which they were received.”

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Our recommendation is practically the same?—A. It is practically the
same. It was said that Australia required only one. That is why I submit this
for your information.
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Q. It is not necessary to have a signature or a recommendation from the
authorities?—A. No; we do not say his last employer—which does not neces-
sarily mean his present employer.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon) :

Q. I take it then that the evidence given before in that regard was not
accurate?—A. I am afraid they were stating what they had heard rather than
what they knew.

Q. You are quoting now from the Overseas Settlement Board?—A. I am
quoting from the Overseas Settlement Board for Australia. It is the Empire
Settlement Act, dividing it up, and this is an extract from the Australian end

of it.
By. Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. One of the references would be from his last employer?—A. His last
employer does not mean his present employer.

Q. His present employer would not be his last employer?—A. He cannot
be, until he has left him. He will accept this man’s reference, but it does not
necessarily call that his present employer. If he had never had any other
employer, I presume he would have to submit his name. If he has not left him,
he is not his last employer.

Q. I do not agree with you—A. That is not my interpretation of it. I am
speaking now of our practice. We do not insist upon the present employer sub-
mitting a reference. It is to avoid that, in case he gets into difficulties with his
present employer.

Q. That is exactly the point. I can see how an intending emigrant could
get into difficulties by going to the man for whom he is working and asking for
a reference. His employer might ask “Why do you want a reference?”’ He
would reply, “I am going to Canada.” The employer might then say, “In that
case, I will look around and get somebody else.”

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):
Q. In this Committee there is a difference of opinion upon that word, and
I suggest that that might be clarified in future regulations.—A. Quite right.
Now, in reference to the examinations and the distances, a good deal of evidence
was given in connection with Canada requiring people to travel a certain distance.
I have here the instructions of the Overseas Settlement Board in connection with
the Australian movement, which read as follows:—(Reading) :—

INTERVIEWS FOR APPLICANTS IN CONNECTION WITH MOVEMENT
FOR AUSTRALIA

The following are the official instructions:—

In order that recommended applicants may be conveniently inter-
viewed by representatives of the Australian Government, interviews are
held at more or less regular intervals in the following centres:—

South-Eastern division—London.

South-Western Division—DBristol. Gloucester.

Midlands Division—Birmingham, Leicester, Nottingham, Wolver-
hampton.

North-Eastern Division—Newecastle, Sunderland, Middlebrough,
Leeds, Sheffield, Bradford.

North-Western Division—Manchester, Liverpool.

Scotland Division—Glasgow, Edinburgh, Dundee, Aberdeen.

Wales Division—Cardiff, Newport, Swansea.

The Area covered by each interviewing centre is not the Exchange
area only, but the district comprised within a ten-mile radius of the
“ Interview Exchange” including the areas of all other Exchanges and
Branch Offices within that radius.
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You will thus see that Australia does not carry on, and of necessity
cannot, carry on, without their prospective immigrants meeting at a given
centre, which centre is always the recognized British labour bureau for
a given district and which covers a radius of ten miles of travel. You
will have already noted from the evidence given that Canada covers more
directly at certain points and that we have, all told, for interviewing in
connection with society and land settlement work 42 officers which speaks
for itself in so far as an endeavour to meet the convenience of the people
in the British Isles is concerned.

I am putting this in for general information only.

That is all I have to submit, gentlemen, unless you have some questions to
ask me.

The ActiNg CHalrMAN (Mr. Brown): Are there any questions anyone
wishes to ask of Mr, Egan?

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Just for information, Mr. Egan, I see on page 54 of your Annual Report
for 1927 a report by Exhibition Commissioner, Mr. J. O. Turcotte, of Canada’s
exhibit in New Zealand. Do we get any settlers from New Zealand?—A. No.

Q. What is the object of this man making a report and holding an exhibi-
tion under Immigration in New Zealand?—A. Mr. Turcotte was the Commis-
sioner of Immigration, and the Canadian Government decided to co-operate
in their exhibition in Dunedin, New Zealand, the request coming from New
Zealand, not from the New Zealand Government, but the request had the
approval of the New Zealand Government. The Government decided to exhibit
there. It was really more than an industrial exhibit, a foods’ exhibit, and what
might be termed a general exhibit. He was loaned for this particular work, and
carried on that particular work. I have not got the details in mind very clear,
%ut that was his object in going there, the same as the exhibition at San

rancisco.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. There was also an exhibition at Ottawa?—A. He took charge of that,
and we heard of the result, if we did not see it.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. I was under the impression that it was more under the Department of
Trade and Commerce and not the Immigration Department? —A. There was &
separate vote in the estimates for this particular exhibition. I have forgotten
the amount now.

Q. What are the restrictions in regard to literacy >—A. They must be literate.
We do make an exception now and then, depending upon the conditions surround-
ing them, but they are required to be literate.

Q. On page 30 they give a table showing the number of illiterates, and, there
were something over 700 last year?—A. 700 illiterates, more particularly after
a war condition such as we had. You will often find now a boy of 10 or 12, or
very often continental families, and even others, where the wife or the mother of
the family is not literate, and the 700 includes all of those. Exceptions have
been made in all these cases, but they have to be submitted to us.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. It was to be submitted to you?—A. It has to be submitted to us. It
would not be done otherwise.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. We are nearing the close of this investigation. In considering the fact
that our immigration policy has been such a failure—

Hon. Mr. Forke: Hear, hear!

Mr. McGiseoxn: I say that advisedly.

Hon. Mr. Forge: I said hear, hear!

Mr. McGiBgoN: Can you give us any ideas for the future? I notice the
Hon. Mr. Forke’s sarcastic way. If I were the Minister of Immigration, and
could not show any better results that we have heard of here, I would be ashamed
of it. We used to get 300,000 or 400,000 people ten years ago; now we are getting
less than one hundred thousand.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: We got more than 100,000.

Mr. McGisBoN: Yes, such as they were. With our forests, and with our
industries, with the advertisements we got in the war, there is no question at
all but that Canada was pictured on the battlefields as a land flowing with milk
and honey. That was because our soldiers were paid so much more; they were
paid $1.10 per day, while others were paid about 25 cents or less.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Mr. Egan, looking to the future, with which we are concerned, can
you give us any light as to how to improve the siutation?—A. As a matter of
policy, I shall have to leave that to the Government to develop.

Q. But we have to make a report?—A. I am prepared to answer any
specific questions. I would be prepared to argue with you on your first state-
ment, that the policy was not successful. If you are submitting that Canada
should be absorbing 400,000 peopie to-day, irrespective of continental and
other world conditions, I am prepared to discuss that with you, and I think
I could convince you of the difﬁ}?:ulties that we see, and that your idea of 400,000
is not a healthy one for Canada, particularly if you have to go to the continent
and bring in that many, which i1s being objected to so seriously, with 60,000
people from the continent or less. ‘

Q. I am not asking that question. That has nothing to do with it. You
are the man in charge and I am asking if you can give us any light on how
to improve the immigration policy for the future. This country has to have
people; there is no question about that. It is the very life blood of our existence,
and we have to get British or American stock if we can get them, or reclaim the
people who are out of the country, if we can get them.—A. That is the very
task we are on.

Q. Can you give us any light on it?—A. Tt was laid down at the beginning
of this conference that I was not to submit anything in the shape of policy in
my talks or discussion, and I propose to stand on that unless there is some
direct question from you with reference to any part. When it comes to
developing anything in the way of policy, in view of the fact that the Committee
is here to make suggestion as to policy after hearing the evidence—

Mr. McGiBBon: Nearly every witness has given us his idea of what would
help the situation.

The Wirness: I think you mentioned “the man in charge”. If you read
the Act and the duties of the Deputy you will notice that it is “to advise his
Minister when called upon.” T ask you to look at it from this point of view.
It is possible, having had five or six Ministers, that I have not agreed with
some of them; it is possible that I have had ideas which have not been carried
out. I am sure you would not want me to start propounding anything that
has gone on between us and I cannot develop anything without that picture
being in evidence.
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Mr. McGisBon: I thought you might give us some light as to how to
improve the immigration condition.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Mr. Egan, if a Canadian goes to the Old Country for a holiday and
comes back, what must he do to get back?—A. You mean a Canadian born?

Q. Myself, for instance. Supposing I go to the Old Country for a holiday.
Must I do anything before coming back?—A. Buy a ticket. When you go to
purchase your ticket the transportation company will require you to fill out
a certain form.

Q. What is that form?—A. It is the manifest of the steamer.

Q. Have you a copy of it?—A. No, I am afraid not. I had it for many days
with me, but I am afraid I have not got it now.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: The Secretary says it is in the record.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Have you finished the answer to my question?—A. There are some 25
or 26 questions on the form which are required for the statistics of the country.
A Canadian of British birth having gone back and remained there for six months
or a year must answer many more questions than the Canadian born. It is done
by every citizen of every country under the same circumstances. The manifest
form must be filled out when going into the United Kingdom. I may say that
it sometimes appears difficult to returning Canadians. So much depends on the
ticket seller and on his rush at that particular moment, because I have seen many
of them advised in such a way that inside of three minutes they had gone through
the form and filled out that which was required of them. If it is left as a
mystery it seems like a burden. Very often they are filled out on board ship,
but for the convenience of the staff on board the ship the forms are generally
filled out before the ship sails. A Canadian born would fill out nine only of
these questions.

Q. On what page of the record does that appear?—A. Pages 609 and follow-
ing.
By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. Mr. Egan, may I state a case to find out whether I am correct or not?
John Brown, we will say, emigrates from England or Scotland to come on the
land in Canada as a farm worker. He gets employment here and the time arrives
when he feels he can bring out his family under assisted passage.—A. If he is a
farmer, yes.

Q. Now, John Smith comes out to Canada and gets employment otherwise
than on the land. He is a workman, we will say, in a factory. He establishes
himself here in Canada and is in a position to bring his wife and family out.
Can he bring his family out under reduced passage?—A. No. If he is in diffi-
culties there is a society which is now part and parcel of the Overseas Settle-
ment Board for the assistance of such families, by loaning them money and
sometimes contributing toward the fare.

Q. Quite a number of foreigners from continental Europe come into Canada
by way of the United States? Is that correct?>—A. No, very few.

Q. There are some?—A. There are some, yes.

Q. If an immigrant comes from the United States do we not accept the
medi?cal certificate of the United States officers?—A. You mean via an American
port

Q. Yes. An immigrant coming into Canada—what medical examination
would he have to pass?>—A. Via the United States?

Q. Yes.—A. He would have to be vised by the Canadian officer before he
leaves the Continent— '
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Q. No, I am referring to any person coming into Canada with the intention
of settling in Canada. Supposing they are American citizens?—A. No medical
examination along the American border.

Q. None whatever?—A. If the civil officer examining feels there is necessity,
he immediately calls a doctor in that particular district.

Q. Otherwise there is no medical examination for immigrants coming in from
the United States, whether they are native born or naturalized Americans?—A.
None.

Q. And if they came by way of the United States from continental Europe—
A. That must be examined on the Continent.

Q. But no examination at the border?—A. No.

Q. They accept the examination made on the Continent of Europe?—A. By
a Canadian doctor, which is registered on his passport. He must have that pass-
port with all the facts stated on it before he would be admitted at the border.
As a matter of fact he would have considerable difficulty since the quota
regulations have come in, of doing anything of that kind.

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain):

Q. In reference to what Mr. Glen was asking: If a Canadian going over to
Britain from here had a passport good, we will say, for two or three years, does
he have to fill out this form just the same?—A. He would have to fill out the
nine questions, and if he did that and referred to his passport number, he would
have no difficulty whatsoever.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. The British born would also have a passport and have a large number
of questions to answer?—A. Yes, because he would have to give the date when
he first came to Canada. My procedure is to submit my passport and ticket and
any information I have, and then I come back and everything is filled out for me,
—the manifest form—and I look that over and I check it back with my knowl-
edge of the facts and sign it at the bottom. It has happened every time I have
been over since I first went over thirty-five years ago.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards.:

Q. This morning Mr. Fansher brought up a case of a man out west who went
to a hospital there and was a charge on the municipality to the extent of several
hundred dollars, to which the municipality very naturally objected. That brings
to my mind the case of the MeGran family, with which you are probably
acquainted, which were brought out by Father McDonell for the Clan Donald
settlement, and one man named Watson spent, considerable money in providing
relief for that family, to the xtent of over $600, and so far as I can tell from the
correspondence which I have in my room the colony, or those in charge of the
colony, seemed to think that the responsibility for taking care of that family
rested with the Government, and I gather that the Government felt that the
responsibility rested upon the organization which brought them out. As a matter
of fact, private individuals were providing relief which it does seem to me should
have been provided either by the organization bringing this family out or by the
Government. Now, upon whom should the responsibility rest? It seems to me
there was some laxity in the examination of this family by the doctor over in
Ireland, a Canadian doctor—A. No, it was a roster doctor.

Q. —because five of the family were in hospital within a year after they
came to Canada for treatment, and when you think of a child ten years of age
weighing only thirty pounds, and the doctor reporting the worst case of adenoids
he ever saw and one child with miasma, with its eyes turned right in so he could
not sec out of them at all, I wonder how in the world that family was ever induced

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 209

to come here. The correspondence shows the family was visited by the head of
the organization himself. What I want to get at is upon whom does the respon-
sibility for that properly rest? Somebody neglected that family.—A. After
arrival. Our contention is that the Scottish Immigration Aid Society was respon-
sible for that family. You must remember that the mother died shortly after
the arrival of the family in Canada.

Q. And her husband claims she practically died of neglect.—A. I brought the
file up here for the Committee’s benefit. The stand we took right along was that
the Society was responsible, and they have assumed the responsibility. I have
never heard of any $600 expenditure; I heard of some $60. I understand now
that the family is comfortably settled—

Q. That must be recently?—A. Three weeks or a month.

Q. The responsibility rested on them and not with the Government?—A. As
far as these people were concerned, because they were brought in under those
particular auspices for settlement.

Hon. Mr. Forke: I made a ruling in connection with that family—I do not
know whether it was taken advantage of—In regard to a grant they were sup-
posed to get.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: If my information is correct that organization has over
1,100 acres of land, which they get for a dollar a year. Not a dollar.an acre, but
one dollar a year for the whole location.

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain):

Q. In reference to the case I cited this morning, is there any way in attach-
ing responsibility to a railway company for bringing in people of that sort and,
I might say, dumping them on a community?—A. There is only cne way and
that is to restrict their efforts if they do too much of it.

Q. But after it is done there is no way of attaching responsibility to them
for it?~-A. Where it is a clear-cut responsibility of their’s, they do respond very
fairly towards taking charge and returning them.

Q. They have returned some, have they?—A. Yes, they have in some cases.
Only quite recently I know of a case where they immediately arranged; they
acknowledged the corn, so to speak, but on general principles they do not, nor
do we assume responsibility for someone that takes ill a month after they get
here. :

Q. That was not my point at all. This man who was such a charge upon a
particular village, was brought there under the railway agreement and had no
place to go. In fact he had no destination at all, and became a charge within a
few weeks—A. Our information is that he worked for some time. I have not all
the facts but I would be glad to send them to you.

Q. You have the fact that the doctor of the village was in attendance upon
him while he was working?—A. I cannot speak from memory. I just glanced
over it.

Q. I think you will find that he was under the doctor’s care a very short
time after he arrived and he must have been in bad condition for many months
previous to his arrival in order to be in the condition in which the doctor found
him.—If we had had him early, we would have sent him home.

Q. Is the company responsible or can it be attached in any way for that?
They have an inspection and are responsible in some degree.—A. They are not
responsible except in this way: they pay all the charges of taking him back and
landing him in his own country. If we bring him to them the cost is on them
for taking him back.

[Mr. W. J. Egan.]
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By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. What organizations, Mr. Egan, are being given the use of land at a
nominal rental to carry on their work? I mentioned one, the Scottish Immigra-
tion Aid, I think is the name of it?—A. Yes.

Q. They established a colony and have been granted a leasehold of land,
some 1,116 acres, I think it is, at one dollar a year, for five years in the first
place; and a couple of years before the term expired it was extended for a
further period of five years, which if I remember correctly would terminate about
1933. Are there any other organizations that have been granted similar privi-
leges?—A. No, sir, not that I know of.

The CHAIRMAN: Any other questions?

The WrrNess: May I be discharged, Mr. Chairman?

The CuAmRMAN: I think so.

Witness discharged.

The CrHARMAN: Does the Committee wish to call anyone else?
Mr. Guex: That is all the evidence, Mr. Chairman, is it not?
The CuAmrMAN: If no one else is being called.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Mr. Chairman, may I ask if it would not be possible
to expedite the printed report. I suggest that those in charge of the printing
put forth a little extra effort to have it in our hands. What Mr. Egan gave
}IS to-day, we should have at the earliest possible moment, as our time is very
imited.

Mr. Gren: If there are no further witnesses, I move that the Committee
now close so far as evidence is concerned, to meet again on the call of the
chair for consideration of the report of the sub-committee.

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: Mr. Chairman, I think it would be of assistance in
preparing the report, if we had expressions of opinion from some members of
the Committee and I would suggest that another meeting of the Committee be
called for that purpose. It can be without the presence of the reporters, if need
be, so that everyone will be at perfect liberty to express his opinion, and then
we can get the opinion of the various members of the Committee as to what
improvements are desired or changes suggested in the report. I, therefore,
suggest now that we meet for that purpose.

Hon. Mr. Epwagns: I would support that. I presume you do not intend
to have a shorthand report of the meeting?

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: No, it is for general discussion in camera. To discuss
the report or anything that anyone wants to bring up. I think it would be of
great help to the sub-committee who are responsible for drafting a report if
they can get any ideas upon which they can act. I think it will facilitate the
work very much. I can quite well understand that when the report is drafted
there will likely be considerable difference of opinion about it and if we can
compose as much of that as possible, it will be very helpful to the sub-committee.

Mr. Gren: Then I move that the Committee close its deliberations now as
far as evidence is concerned and meet again to-morrow for discussion.

The CrarMAN: Is it the pleasure of the Committee to adopt Mr. Glen’s
motion?

Carried.

The CuarrMAN: The Committee is now adjourned until to-morrow at 11
o’clock, to sit in camera.

The Committee adjourned until Thursday, May 31, at 11 o’clock.
[Mr. W. J. Egan.]



House or CoMMmoONS,
Turspay, March 13, 1928

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The committee proceeded with the consideration of the Immigration Act
and Regulations, and the general subject of immigration.

Dr. J. A. Amyor, deputy minister of the Department of Health, called and
sworn,

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: Mr. Chairman, I presume the doctor will follow the
procedure followed by Mr. Egan, and give us a short résumé of the work of
gle medical health officers in connection with the admission of immigrants to

anada.

Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): If I may, I would suggest that he start as
Mr. Egan did, with a general outline, beginning at the head office here.

The Wrrness: The function of the Department of Health, so far as immi-
gration is concerned, is that of an advisor to the Department of Immigration
as to the physical and mental condition of candidates who present themselves
for emigration to this country; to classify those found to be certifiable accord-
-ing to the classes of the prohibited classes of immigrants coming to the country.
Advice only is the service of the Department of Health; we have no
executive power whatever. It is not the Department of Health which rejects
the immigrants; the only thing we say is “ This immigrant is insane ” or that
he is classed under “A” in the third clause, and that by the Act he is in the
prohibited class. If he has tuberculosis he comes under another clause or sub-
section of clause 3, and as such is a prohibited immigrant, when he is classified
as such within the Immigration Department’s meaning of the Act. Then the
Immigration Department, under the Act, have the executive power to deal with
that individual. That is the first relationship.

As to the organization of the medical service in this Department of Health:
it is part of what we call the division of foreign quarantine; immigration,
medical examination, and the care of the lepers in Canada. This division is
the one under which they fall, and it has at its head Dr, Paget, an old officer
of the previous Department of Immigration and of the Department of Agri-
culture dealing with this particular question. One of his functions is that of
choosing medical officers, training them so that they will be qualified to make
a medical examination of an immigrant coming into the country, because up to
this time the final examination was held on this side where we are on our
own grounds and where we have the legal right. Previous to 1903 there was no
medical examination; everybody was allowed to come in as they wished, except
when the quarantine stopped them for quarantinable diseases.

The United States instituted medical examinations of immigrants coming
into their country, and Canada followed suit. Our first medical officers were
part-time medical officers at the ports of entry in Canada, Halifax, Quebec,
St. John, Vancouver, and Victoria. Later on about 1919 or 1920 the officers
were made permanent because of the difficulty of getting regularly qualified
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men, and the difficulty of having them there at all times—permanent officers
were appointed, who could be trained. At that time directions and instructions
to medical officers were prepared as to what they should look for, the significance
of symptoms, what these svmptoms indicated, and why these medical examina-
tions were to be carried out. Canada asked from her former experience, that
certain people should be kept out of this country—people who were medically
unfit to come into the country, because later on these people might become
public charges, and if they bred true might give us calycax. That is the general
demand of the country for that sort of thing. The demand has come from all
the provinces and all of the people dealing with those who had to go to
hospitals and sanitaria and places of detention and to the police force who
wanted to keep out those who were not considered fit to come into the country,
and this little book of instructions (indicating) is to indicate to the medical
officers, so far as the medical side was concerned, what they should look for,
what the intentions were, the significance of them, and as to enable them to
come to a judgment of whether they fell under the prohibited classes or not.

If T may presume to give them to you, the prohibited classes include the
following:—

No immigrant, passenger or other person unless he is Canadian
citizen, or has Canadian domicile, shall be permitted to enter or land
in Canada, or in case of having landed in or entered Canada shall be
permitted to remain therein, who belongs to any of the following classes,
hereinafter called “ prohibited classes”:—

(a) Idiots, imbeciles, feeble-minded persons, epileptics, insane
persons and persons who have been insane at any time previously;

(b) Persons afflicted with tuberculosis in any form or with any
loathsome disease, or with a disease which is contagious or infectious
or which may become dangerous to the public health, whether such
persons intend to settle in Canada or only to pass through Canada
in transit to some other country.

Those are the two medical ones; those are the prohibited classes who,
under no consideration, should be allowed into Canada.

Now, there is a third class which, in their judgment, might be held out.
They are:—

Immigrants who are dumb, blind, or otherwise physically defective,
unless in the opinion of a Board of Inquiry or officer acting as such they
have sufficient money, or have such profession, occupation, trade, employ-
ment, or other legitimate mode of earning a living that they are not liable
to become a public charge, or unless they belong to a family accompany-
ing them or already in Canada, and which gives security satisfactory
to the Minister against such immigrants becoming a public charge.

Those are the prohibited classes—under our own Act of Parliament.

Now, these medical officers, under the older system, examined the immi-
grant as he came off the boat. In Quebec sometimes two or three boats are
there with 1,500 to 2,000 passengers on board—we have had as many as three
or four boats at a time, with passengers waiting to depart. We arranged so
that three or four medical officers would stand in a row, as the individuals
came up the ramp, and the medical officers would do the best they could to
catch those who were idiots, imbeciles, insane, epileptics, tubercular, or suffering
from loathsome diseases, and so on. That was his chance, and the only one he
had. They become more or less accustomed to looking for certain things, and
if he saw certain indications, he would pick them out and examine them after-
wards. That is what we call “ catching them on the ramp”, and in many
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cases they had to pass about 300 an hour to get them off the ship. They
picked as many as they could; we trained them as well as we could; we got
as good men as we could. We always had back in our minds that if we missed
them, and they got out and got back in the country, it would be possible, when
the local authorities objected to them, to find them, and if we found they were
suffering from a certain disease at the time they landed, they could then be
deported. In order to strengthen and help out the service, the steamship com-
panies were held responsible for a medical examination of their own. We had
no legal position at all. It was stated that if a steamship company brought
to this country individuals who could, by a competent medical examination,
have been found to come under one of these prohibited classes, the steamship
company had to take them back, refund their fare, and pay a fine of $200;
so that we had that check behind us for holding them back.

Then there were certain immigrants, who came over on assisted passage,
assisted by either the British Government or certain societies aided by the
British Government, or certain societies in our own country who went and
picked out the immigrants and brought them to this country, and in both Canada
and Great Britain assisted them in contributing towards the cost of their trans-
portation to Canada and their settlement here. Those were assisted passage
cases. It was insisted upon that all of these should be medically examined on
the other side before they started, but no regular organization was established
for it, and they went to this doctor and that doctor, and the other docter, to
have that examination; oftentimes it was the doctor of some society. They
picked out a lot. That method picked out a number whom, otherwise, we
would have had to deport from Canada, but it was unsatisfactory because their
point of view was not ours.

May I be permitted to explain that a little? A doctor looking at a
patient may look at him from two different standpoints; one of these is, as a
practitioner does, “ What is wrong with you? 7 “ Well, a little temperature up;
a little restless; coughing a little; I do not think there is much wrong with
you, but a trip to Canada will do you good; get away from here; perhaps a
little irritable; does not place himself well 7, and so on. Well, get him out of
these surroundings and send him to Canada. That is the medical standpoint.
But that is not what we want. When an insurance company sends an individual
to a doctor, they say to the doctor, “ Is that man a good risk for our Insurance
Company; we are going to put money up on him; how long is he likely to
live; has he anything wrong with him which will make him a bad risk?”  We
are in the same position, and we want the medical examination made from
that standpoint. It is the same thing in the army; is a man fit to stand the
gruelling military life; is he fit to stand the heavy-service of civilian life, such
as the Postal Service and so on? There are two standpoints and two points of
view in examining a patient.

Now, many of the examinations which were made over there by the medical
officers were made by the first class of doctors who were looking on the im-
migrants as patients, not as risks for Canada. What we are after is the view-
point of the risks for Canada, so that the medical examination for those assisted
passages was not as thorough as it should be, principally because of that idea.
There were others in the backs of their minds, but we need not discuss them.

Now, some five or six years ago—I cannot give the exact date—the medical
service, acting for the immigration services of Australia, New Zealand, South
Africa, and Canada in Great Britain, came together and said, “ Could we not
devise some agreement whereby we could get these medical examinations by
men who had been instructed as to how to examine the individual, when they
are coming to the various countries?” So the four countries got together,
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and they picked out what we call the “ Roster ” which is simply a list of doctors.
These doctors which they picked were doctors who were accustomed to examine
for insurance, who were examining for the Civil Service and for the army service.
That was the object they had in view, and that was agreed to by these four
countries, to make their examinations in the various parts of Great Britain,
and 1,750 doctors were chosen, and placed on this Roster.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. When was this, please?—A. About four or five years ago. Everyone of
them were furnished with a book of instructions which is uniform for the four
countries.

Q. May I ask sir, if the instructions issued to the doctors overseas are now
the same as they were then?—A. Yes, the same ones; it is all in the same
form, This form is a compilation of instructions given by the various govern-
ments I have mentioned, and also by the United States, and a compilation to
suit our own situation in Canada. They were furnished with those instructions;
every one of these doctors were circularized, and then we said that the assisted
passages should have these particular doctors to make these examinations so as
to get over the difficulty of the doector’s attitude concerning the patients. The
assisted passages amounted to approximately one-sixth of the immigrants who
were coming to Canada. These had to be medically examined and the other
five-sixths were optional; they were going to be examined on this side, but over
in the old country they did not necessarily have to be examined. The Immigra-
tion Department said if any of these immigrants or prospective immigrants
came within the prohibited clauses, they could not enter Canada; the Depart-
ment said to them, “If any of you have any doubt as to your condition, go to the
medical man and get his advice.” The Immigration Department said, “The
medical service is picked out, and we have this Roster of doctors; go to one
of them; he is one who knows, and he will go over you, and if he finds that, you
were in any of these prohibited classes he will tell you not to go to Canada, or
not to go to South Africa, or any of these four countries, because if you do when
the medical examination is made finally, you may be rejected, and will be sent
back, and you may have sold all of your belongings, and you will have this
stigma of having been deported, upon you. So go to these officers and find out
first of all if you come under any of these prohibited classes. You can do it.
cheaply; it will only cost you 10/6 for each adult to have this examination made;
mind you, it is voluntary. It will only cost you 10/6, if you are an adult; and
2/6 for each child.” This amount is very small, but it was regularized. Many
physieians who went on this Roster charged much more for their examinations
and we had some difficulty in getting them to accept that situation, but they
finally accepted it, a fee of 10/6 for adults, and 2/6 for each child, and the pros-
pective immigrant paid the fee.

Mr. Garranp (Bow River):

Q. To whom was that paid?—A. To the Roster doctor. He was a private
practitioner and nothing more; he had no official capacity. He was engaged to
make the examination and advise with the individual who might go to him for
an examination.

Now, not all of the immigrants went to these Roster doctors, and we had
to examine those on this side. When they went to the Roster doctors, it made
no difference, as we had to examine them anyway, and we examined them on
this side, but were never able to hold up those we felt ought to be held up. In
consequence of that, last year, I believe somthing like 500 had to be deported
from Canada, out of the hundreds of thousands of immigrants who got through
into this country. We looked upon that as a failure of our system which we
had developed as well as we could, and we could not get it any better. We could
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not develop it any more; we had done the best we could; we had worried day and
night to get the right kind of men to examine these immigrants, and we could not
do any differently. Many of them had to be deported, and go back and pick
up what was left, if it was to be picked up, and I can assure you gentlemen
there were hardships. If any of you have experience with the municipalities
which have to look after these people, and have noticed how kindly they are
treated, you will not have much sympathy with them. But, in the long run, the
patients had to go back to the Old Country.

The Medical Service of the Department of Health was then faced with one
of two alternatives. One of these was that we should improve the service on
this side to make the examination more perfect—better. We could not do that
with what we had. We might have established an Ellis Island. Now, the
principle of the Ellis Island system is this: Immigrants coming to the United
States with no examination at all are taken off the ship in lighters and brought
to Ellis Island, sometimes at the rate of 3,000 or 4,000 or 5,000 or 10,000 a day.
You can imagine that in making examinations of that number, they may not
be handled any too gently; they are hustled around, and may be held there three
or four or five days. Of course, they are fed there. When they have finished
the examinations, if the immigrants are allowed to come in, they are again loaded
on to lighters and sent to the wharves in New York City and sent off to the trains.

We were faced with that condition as a possibility in Canada. That system
has received a great deal of criticism on the other side. Great Britain has sent
deputations and parliamentary committees out to see what the situation was,
and they did not like it. The United States said to them, “If you want to avoid
that, if you want to avoid the milling your people get at Ellis Island we have a
proposition to make to you; we will establish in England at strategic points, where
there are United States Consuls, United States Medical officers, who will
examine every individual who comes up for a passport previous to entry into
the United States, and the examinations shall be made there. If they are passed.
the signature of the officer shall be put upon the pass-port, and the photograph
of the individual shall be punched by this officer with his personal punch, which
means that the individual has passed. Those who shall be rejected will be set
back for further examination, and if, later on, they are found to be passable
they will be reconsidered. But if they are within some prohibited class”—
“and they have the same prohibited clauses that we have,”—“they will not be
allowed to go forward.” Great Britain said, “Yes, we will do that”, and to-day,
starting with a few officers, the United States has some thirteen officers in
Great Britain doing this work in certain centres like London, Birmingham,
Liverpool, Glasgow, and so on. In many of these offices they have two or three,
and sometimes four officers. They have, altogether thirteen in Great Britain.

Now, everybody has to go to these officers. There is the quota law in the
United States, and there are only a fixed number permitted to leave eachi
month. These have to appear at these consular offices. If they are passed
there, the doctor puts his signature on the pass-port and punches the photo-
graph. They are all examined there, and they have a regular flow. Each
medical officer has been handling on an average of between 6,000 and 8,000
individuals a year. When you have a man sitting in front of you, you can
tell much better what his condition is, but even then you cannot always do it.
The best experts in the world cannot tell some of the intermediate stages of
paranoia, or dementia precox, or some forms of insanity, but he can catch a lot
of them, and get their trend of thought and so on from a general conversation
with them, and perhaps a physical examination, although not an extensive one.
Of course, where he is in doubt, he puts them in a separate room, and makes a
thorough examination, for the good of the individual himself.
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Then the United States said to Great Britain, “If we do that, these indi-
viduals who come over on the boats, and this medical examination having been
previously made, and with the signature of the officer on the pass-port, and the
photograph properly punched, when they land at the wharves in the United
States, the medical officer”—in the same relationship to Immigration as our
medical officers are to our Department of Immigration—‘will look at a man
as he comes off the boat; he will say, ‘yes, that is the man’s photograph; it looks
like the individual; his pass-port is in order; we will pass him on.” That is all
the medical examination that is made, unless the officer on this side sees that
something has happened in the meantime. An immigrant may by this time
have developed a further stage of his mental condition, kicking everybody
around, “flying his kite,” all through the place, as some crazy men do, and
they of course, will be held for a further examination, but ordinarily the immi-
grants are passed right through, and no further examination is made.

As I said, we were faced with two alternatives, either the establishment of
an Ellis Island or a system of medical examinations more perfect. than we had.
We are in a different position from the United States, inasmuch as we are look-
ing for immigrants; we are dealing with our own people in Great Britain. We
have to go to them, and our service is a little more complicated than the service
of the United States, where everybody has to come to the consular office.

The advice was given to the Immigration Department and to the Govern-
ment, and the Privy Council decided that the principle to be adopted was that
instead of the establishment of an Ellis Island, a medical examination on the
other side would be made to avoid people leaving their country without an
examination, to make that examination as thorough as possible to protect our
country against the entrance of those people who were undesirable, and to admit
only those whom we really desired. That was accepted by Council. An Order
was made instituting the medical service overseas. At first, we thought we
could do with twenty officers. We had two officers in Great Britain, Doctor
Jeffs, our medical officer, and his assistant, Dr. Parney, who had been there for
three or four years.

The Civil Service Commission advertised for medical officers. The salaries
to be paid to these medical officers was, for Grade 1, $3,000 a year,—which is
not a magnificent salary—and because they would be jumping around from one
place to another, $660 was added for expenses, so that the salary really was
$3,660 for each man. That is Grade 1. They were raised $120 each year, with
the expense allowance remaining the same. This was raised four times; and
then they started on the second grade, with an allowance of $700, with the third
grade starting at $4,000, raised $120 each year, with an expense allowance of
$900 a year.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac): ’

Q. Do you mean that the Canadian doctors all started in Grade 1 and then
were raised to grades 2 and 3?—A. We had some over there who were familiar’
with the situation, and we put them on in Grade 3, and one in Grade 2. The
new ones all started in Grade 1.

Q. The inspections there are all done by Canadian doctors?—A. Yes, since
the 14th of February; and, as a preliminary canter, before the 14th of Febru-
ary.

By Mr. Millar:

Q. Were these doctors permitted to engage in private practice?—A. No,

they were full-time doctors.

By Mr. Boys:
Q. Was that examination precautionary or final>—A. By the medical

officer?
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Q. The one to whom you are referring?—is that precautionary or final?

A. No; the final examination is made here, the same as it would be in the
United States. We are following their method of doing it, but the immigrants
will not be held for examination here when the doctor’'s name is on the identifi-
cation card. As we have no passports from Great Britain, we have an identifi-
cation card with a photograph of the individual. These doctors will punch the
cards, and our doctors here will recognize the punch marks. They can identify
the photograph as being that of the same individual, and will pass him right
along.

Q. Supposing, as a matter of fact, there is a rejection on the final examina-
tion in Canada; who pays the transportation back?—A. If he is a prohibited
immigrant, the steamship company would be held responsible for taking him
back; if there is any doubt, this country pays it.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. Even if he has passed in the Old Country?—A. The doctors in the Old
Country have no legal status; I am not speaking of the doctors we have now.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. Even if he has passed one of them in the Old Country?—A. We are
hoping that will not occur too often. We are probably not perfect and may not
catch them all, but we think we will be in a position to catch them much better
than we have been.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Does that examination by our doctors in England apply to all immi-
grants or only those of assisted passage?—A. All immigrants coming to this
country will have to be medically examined since the 14th of February, 1928.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You said that all of these examinations were conducted by these doctors
whom you have deseribed. We had the impression the other day that there were
some prospective immigrants in outlying districts who would still be examined
by these Roster doctors?—A. I will come to that.

We had 68 applications for the first 19 doctors selected. We sent over Dr.
Margaret Parkes, a female doctor who was in our service, so we would have
the female doctors represented. Nineteen others were to be appointed, because
the Order in Council called for twenty. There were sixty-eight applications
for these positions. '

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. Dr. Amyot, I can understand that you may not have the information
now, but it just occurs to me to ask you if you know whether any rejections
have taken place on this side in the case of immigrants from the United King-
dom who have been examined since our Canadian doctors were appointed?
—A. No, I do not know that yet. Our arrangement is to get these men over,
and we commenced sending them over shortly after Christmas. The ground
has been gone over in England, and we have a certain number of picked situa-
tions. These big centres are the following: The London area, Birmingham,
Bristol, York, Londonderry, Liverpool, Glasgow, Inverness, Belfast, Paris (on
the Continent) Hamburg, Antwerp, Rotterdam, Riga, and Danzig. Those are
the centres upon which these medical officers will be centred. On the Con-
tinent these medical officers will be in the same position as the medical officers
in Great Britain; people will have to come to them except in very exceptional
instances. There will be central offices, very carefully picked, and the outlying
places will be visited sometimes twice a week, sometimes once a week, some-
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times once a month, depending on the number of prospective immigrants.
These places have been chosen upon the advice of the local people, the depart-
ments of labour, the departments of health, and the labour organizations. We
have chosen 334 situations outside of our central station in Great Britain.
We have provided them with cars to enable them to go to these outlying places.
We have found places for them to have their offices. We have the offices in the
immigration building when we can; we have them in the town halls when we can;
we have them in the hospitals and clinics when we can; and we have them
in special buildings when we can, and in some cases we have had to go to the
hotels—

Hon. Mr. Forke: Those are what they call the public houses?

The Wiryess: Yes, those are the public houses, which, in Great Britain,
are totally different from the public houses here. They are homes or clubs
in Great Britain and people have not the horror of them that they have here.

Hon. Mr. Forke: 1 interjected that remark, because we are experiencing
considerable eriticism in regard to public houses.

The Wirness: We found there was some objection and at the present
time—or on the 1st of April—there will only be six out of the 334— and per-
haps only four—in these public houses which have been recommended to us
by the automobile clubs, by the town councils, and by authorities who know
the local conditions. We have picked the best of them for the purpose of
these examinations. If I may be permitted to read a letter, I would like to
put it on the record. This is a letter from the Ministry of Health in Great
Britain in support of this very thing, and after I read it, you will be enabled
to see the support they are giving us. This letter is dated the 31st of August,
1927, and is signed by H. W. S. Ferris, the assistant secretary of the Ministry
of Health. It is addressed to the clerk of the Council and reads as follows:—

I am directed by the Minister of Health to acquaint you that it
has been decided by the Government of the Dominion of Canada, in
conjunction with His Majesty’s Government, to establish in Great
Britain a Canadian Medical Service, under which the medical examina-
tion of prospective settlers in that Dominion will be carefully systema-
tized and conducted free of charge. The present practice, under which
the medical examination is conducted by private medical practitioners,
who are not always familiar with the requirements of the Dominion
authorities, has in some cases proved inconvenient. Moreover, the fact
that the intending settler has at present to pay a fee for the examina-
tion has been found to act as a deterrent on migration, as many other-
wise desirable settlers are unable to provide the fee or are unwilling
to spend money which will be wasted in the event of the medical exam-
ination being unfavourable. For these reasons, the Canadian Immigra-
tion authorities have decided to arrange for the medical examination
in this country, by officers responsible to the Canadian Government,
of intending migrants to the Dominion.

With a view to diminishing as far as possible the inconvenience and
cost to the intending migrants of attending for medical examination, it
is proposed to hold the examinations in a number of different centres, and
it has been suggested to the Minister that the county and county Borough
Councils would in many cases be able to afford facilities for this pur-
pose in premises belonging to them, and would, also, where this is not
possible, be able to assist the Canadian Government by referring their
Medical Officers to sanitary authorities and others who would be able
to provide the required assistance. The examinations would be held at
fixed intervals and at pre-arranged times and the persons to be examined
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would be notified by the Canadian Immigration Authorities of the time and
place at which to attend.

His Majesty’s Government attach great importance to any arrange-
ment which will have the effect of removing obstacles in the way of the
settlement in the overseas Dominions of suitable persons from this
country, and it has long been their desire to relieve the intending settler
of the expense of the medical examination required by the Dominion
authorities.

In these circumstances, the Minister is sure that he can rely upon
the co-operation of the “Councils and their staffs in this matter, and has
requested the Canadian representative in this country, Dr. H. B. Jeffs,
Chief Medical Adviser, the Canadian Building, Trafalgar Square, Lon-
don, S.W. 1, to communicate directly with the Clerks to the Councils
in cases in which their assistance is sought.”

I might say that in Northern Ireland the same thing, in practically the
same words, has been passed in regard to their various people.

Now, the Department of Health in Great Britain had to deal with sending
immigrants,—migrants—to Canada and they had a lot of trouble with them,
and, to use an ordinary street term, they are “tickled to death” over this
arrangement. This will relieve them of a great deal of difficulty. It was
said that the medical men of Great Britain would object to this. There were
some objectors to it, but the General Council said, “ Canada has the right to
make these examinations, and has a right to make them by their own people ”,
and there has been no objection from the General Council, so that with their
approval the number of examinations which have been made amount to some-
thing over—12,000—.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon) :

Q. Dr. Amyot, will you tell the committee what the General Council is,
although some of us happen to know?—A. In Great Britain there is a licensing
body, as there is in Canada. In Canada, we have the Dominion Counecil, which
is the licensing body for medical men having certain examinations for the
various provinces of Canada. KEach province has its own medical body known
as the College of Physicians and Surgeons in each province, and they examine
the medical men to see if they are fit to go into practice. It is the same thing
in Great Britain. Over there it is one of the oldest and best organized bodies
imaginable, and takes up a lot of questions relating to medical men and their
complaints, acting on them and endeavouring to regulate them. The British
Medical Journal is their publication. It is the most representative body of
medical men in Great Britain. We have their approval in regard to our work.

Now, up to the 5th of February of this year, 12,000 have been examined.
On the 14th of February it became obligatory, so that any who left Great
Britain on or after the 14th of last month, or landed in this country on or after
the 14th of February, have been examined. That is the service we have in the
Old Country and we are hoping it will reduce a lot of the ills we are heir to.
Canada has every justification for keeping out these prohibited classes, and
parliament has passed the Act to insure that they will be prohibited. They
have designated certain prohibited classes, and we are here to help the Immi-
gration service in that particular respect.

That is an outline of our work. I hope wou will pardon me for my long
dissertation, but that is an outline of the relationship of the medical service to
the Department of Immigration.

Hon. Mr. StewArT: Now, what about the Continent.
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By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. Before you leave that angle, doctor, may I ask how many rejections
there were out of the 12,000 examinations?—A. There were over 500 rejections.
The largest number of them were for physical defects, such as blindness, deaf-
ness, heart disease, or something which would prevent an immigrant from being
able to earn a living; diabetes, Brights disease, or some physical defect of that
kind. If a man has an arm or a leg off, the Minister has the power to judge
whether or not he is able to do certain work. For the other defects, such as
tuberculosis, insanity, epilepsy and so forth, there is no choice; they are
absolutely prohibited.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. 1 think you said you were going to take up another point; that is, the
possibility of being examined by other than Canadian doctors?—A. Although
we have 334 stations where the medical officers can go, there are other places
which it is difficult to reach. For instance, down in Cornwall; our experience
has shown us that six, or eight or ten immigrants come from that section in
a year, and arrangements have been made there with certain Roster doctors
whom our officers know are reliable and who know what the Act calls for,
and they will be able to make the examinations there, and we will pay them
rather than have the patient pay them. Then, another.thing: there will neces-
sarily be times when one or two officers in a station cannot examine all of the
individuals who present themselves, and we propose to take temporarily, on
part-time, with a set schedule of fees, certain medical officers of Great Britain
probably off that old Roster, and we will have them come in and make examina-
tions. But even then their examinations will be checked over by our own men.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Do I understand that previous to the appointment of these Canadian
doctors overseas, the Minister had a latitude which he does not now possess
in the way of admitting people?—A. No, it is the same thing; the law has not
been changed.

Q. If an intending immigrant was rejected after a medical examination as
being insane or feeble-minded or any of those other things mentioned in section
3, the Minister had no authority to over-ride that medical decision?—A. No;
he has no authority to over-ride it.

Q. Just one other question; do I understand that the medical doctors confine
themselves entirely to the physical and mental condition of the intending
immigrants; that somebody else inquires into their previous history? For
instance, & man might be physically and mentally all right, and yet have
criminal tendencies; does the doctor inquire into that?—A. No, except in so far
as it might appear in his mental attitude.

Q. It is not up to the doctor to look for that?—A. No, although that is
often supplied to him by inquiry from other people around about. It might
appear in a medical examination, and what they find out would then make it
a subject for determination by the Immigration Department.

- Q. Is there a list of questions put to an intending immigrant?—A. Medi-
cally, no.

Q. Apart from that, can you say whether there is a regular list of ques-
tions submitted to intending immigrants which they have to answer?—A. Medi-
cally, no. I do not know anything about the others, but medically there is
nothing. A patient comes before a doctor and the doctor makes his examination.
It has been said somewhere that there were 94 questions asked of prospective
immigrants, but there are none medically.
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By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. A few moments ago you said that of the 500 rejections, the Minister
had a certain discretion following those rejections. Will you explain to the
Committee what discretion he has and where it can be exercised?—A. I would
have to go back to the prohibited classes. We will call them “A” and “B?”,
idiots, embiciles, feeble-minded persons, epileptics, persons insane, or persons
who have been insane at any time previously. Then the next, Class B, the
tubercular in any form and loathsome diseases. Those are prohibited. Now,
the prohibited immigrant comes to the Minister:

Q. We understand the Act perfeetly, but you must have had something
in your mind when you said there were 500 rejections by your doctors but that
the Minister still had power to let some of them in?—A. The Minister has
power, through his officers, to deal with physical defectives. If they find,
for instance, that a man has both of his legs off and is a good watchmaker,
the Minister could say there was a man physically defective, but is able to
earn his living. If he were thrown on the general labour market, he would be
of no value, and might become a public charge, but as he is a good watch-
maker, he would, perhaps, admit him.

By Mr. Boys:
Q. Under what section do you find that?—A. I cannot give you the number
of the section.
Q. Is it in section 4?—A. I think it is.

“(1) The Minister may issue a written permit authorizing any
person to enter Canada, or having entered or landed in Canada to remain
therein without being subject to the provisions of this Act. Such permit
shall be in the form A of the schedule to this Act, and shall be expressed
to be in force for a specified period only, but it may at any time be
extended or cancelled by the Minister in writing. Such extension or
cancellation shall be in the form AA of the schedule to this Act.”

& YQ. I merely wanted to know if that was the section you had in mind?—
. Yes.

. Q. Is there any other section which gives the Minister the authority to
issue permits, with which you are familiar?—A. No. ,

Q. Then where, in that section, does it say that he can deal with a man
with one or two legs off, or with any person he chooses?—A. You are asking
me a question which deals with the immigration side. As a medical man, I
prefer not to answer that question.

Q. I want to make it plain so that the Committee will understand my
attitude. If I am in any way breaking into your statement at this stage, in
a way you do not want, I will not press it for the moment, but if you are
through, I would like to ask a question or two as to the authority of the Minister
under section 4—A. I will have to leave that to the Immigration Department.

Mr. Coore: Before you leave that, doctor, are you not perhaps referring
to subsection 3 of section 3 of the Act, which reads:—

Immigrants who are dumb, blind, or otherwise physically defective,
unless in the opinion of a Board of Inquiry or officer acting as such they
have sufficient money, or have such profession, occupation, trade, employ-
ment or other legitimate mode of earning a living that they are not liable
to become a public charge or unless they belong to a family accompany-
ing them or already in Canada and which gives security satisfactory to
the minister against such immigrants becoming a public charge.

A —Yes, that is the one in which he has discretion.
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Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw): I submit that these questions are not proper ones
to be put to the medical authorities at all.

The Wirness: All the medical officers can say to the Immigration Depart-
ment, is that there are certain conditions present in the individual, and then it is
up to the Immigration Department as to whether the man may be admitted or
not. The medical service does not exclude him at all.

The Cuamman: I think the members of the Committee should confine
their questions to Dr. Amyot to the medical end of the immigration question.

Mr. Boys: I think that is correct. The only reason I asked the questions
was because Dr. Amyot himself made the statement concerning the authority
of the Minister. -

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. I understood you to say that if anyone were rejected under sections A
or B and prohibited by the medical men, the Minister has no power whatever
to override the decision?—A. The medical man does not prohibit it. He simply
says he is suffering from a certain condition.

Q. And the Minister would have no right?>—A. The Immigration Depart-
ment deals with that, but in certain cases the Minister has no right to admit that
immigrant.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. Are you not venturing a legal opinion there?—A. Every day we have
that in our mind.

Hon. Mr. StewarT: I think we should get on with the evidence.

Mr. Coore: Yes, then we will hear about the Continent.

The Wirness: On the Continent the arrangement is that the prospective
immigrants come through certain ports; for instance, Riga, where they come in
from Latvia, and where such Russians who can escape through there appear.
Danzig handles chiefly the Polish and the Central Europeans, with some Ger-
mans; the free port of Hamburg and Bremen, and then Antwerp and Paris.
They come from the southern countries usually through Paris; that is our stra-
tegic point. Examinations are made there, and they get their passports there
because they must have passports to come from the Continent, and a medical
officer’s signature is put on the passports there.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. You say usually?—A. They nearly all come through that way. None
of them can come without medical examination. I suppose there are some cases
where they escape, but if they have not their card or their passport when they
land here, they will be medically examined here.

Q. Would you go into more detail on that, in regard to the immigrants
who come to this country«from south of that line referred to by the Minister——

Hon. Mr. StewarT: You mean the Deputy Minister?

Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): No, I mean the Minister, in his speech in the
House.

The Wirness: I know nothing about that at all. I heard the evidence
given the other day, and they asked about that line. All we do is to examine
what is handed to us and the examination is made in Paris of those coming from
the south, usually from Italy; or if not, it is made at the port of debarkation
in Canada.

Q. I had Italy or Greece in mind. Do they have to come to the Paris office?
—A. Not all of them.
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Q. What is the system? What about the examination of those from
southern and southeastern Europe?—A. They would have to pass through there,
and would have to be examined by our own officers. So far, that has not been
provided for. There are certain difficulties in the way. For instance, Italy did
not want her people to go out, and when they were deported from another country
they would not take them back. But they have receded from that position
recently, and have asked that a medical examination be made. They have here-
tofore refused to have any examination made by any foreigners in their country,
claiming it was an insult to their flag, but the probabilities are that within a
very short time such examinations will be held in Italy, the same as in Paris, at
some strategic point.

Q. At the present time those from Austria-Hungary, Greece, and Italy,
except those who go through Paris, take their chances on this side?—A. Yes.
Norway and Denmark have asked ‘that medical officers be established in their
countries, but that is for the Department of Immigration. When the offices are
established we will send officers there.

Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Have you finished now with the continent?—A. Yes, that is about all I
can say ahout that.

Q. Getting back to Great Britain again, and the 500 rejections; what were
they for?—A. Up to Saturday, February 18, the number of examinations con-
ducted by Medical Officers overseas was 13,700; that was up to February 18.
I was speaking previously of February 5, when I said, 12,000. Of these 13,700,
4,700 were from the Continent and 9,000 from the British Isles. I am afraid
I have not the exact figures with me.

Q. I wonder if you have a classification of the physical defects.—A. I
thought I had it, but I am afraid I have mislaid it somewhere.

Q. Can you give it to us approximately?—A. The physical defects run
somewhere about 470; there were some 500 and some certified, but we will say
470.

Q. Can you state the classifications of those?—A. The rest were all the other
classifications either under A. and B.

Q. Can you sub-classify the physical defects at all?—A. No; we have not
subclassified them to that extent.

Q. Have you, in the department?—A. Oh, yes, I think we could.

Q. For instance, how many tuberculars?—A. Yes I would not like to ven-
ture the exact number however,

Q. Can you put that in later, doctor?—A. Yes, I will do that. (Statement
requested follows) :

Certifications out of 4,937 British and 2,852 Continental migrants
examined by our Canadian doctors during November and December
1927 and January 1928, under the Prohibited Classes of Section 3, of the
Immigration Act, are as follows under each subsection:

(a) 59 mental and Nervous,

(b) 31 Tuberculous and loathsome diseases,

(c) 408 Physically defective interfering with their ability to earn
a living,

(k) 47 Constitutionally psychopathic inferiors,

(m) 111 So mentally defective as to affect their ability to earn a
living.

Total, 656.

[Dr. J. A. Amyot.]
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By Mr. Millar:

For the benefit of those who might read this evidence out in the country,
more than for the benefit of the Committee, I would like to ask a question, Out
in the country where there are so many agitators at work, they have made some
very silly charges, and one of them is that a Scotch girl was deported because
she had bow-legs. That has been repeated on many platforms and amongst
hundreds of people, and some of them have taken it quite seriously? You
never heard of such a thing?—A. No, T never have.

Hon. Mr. RaLston: You would not have known that five years ago, until
the styles changed.

The Wrrxess: There are such extreme cases of bow legs where a gir
might not be able to earn a living. :

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. I know you have deseribed certain diseases and I also know that you
" cannot check everybody up, but I would like to ask you your opinion of what
happened in a certain case. About 1923, a young man came to Western Can-
ada suffering from tuberculosis affecting one lung. He was not in a very serious
state thén, but there was a distinct lesion. He stayed in Canada for about a
vear, and then went to South Africa. He finally returned to Ireland, and came
back to Canada in 1926, very much worse. He went back to Treland last year,
and I understand he is dying. How was he able to get into Canada twice,
suffering from tuberculosis?>—A. Well, it is true that we must sometimes fail,
and even tubercular people will come. The vetinerary profession have the same
experiences that we have. This disease cannot always be diagnosed except by
making some very delicate tests, and it is difficult in many cases to find tuber-
culosis. Sometimes even extreme cases get through. We have had them get
through and die of hemorrhage within four or five weeks after they came into
Canada. It is a failure of diagnosis and even the most expert will miss that on
occasion. Then, examining at the rate of 300 an hour, I suppose even some of
our medical officers get tired and an immigrant might very easily escape through.
Then, too, the patients themselves, sometimes become very expert in getting
through, and they find ways of doing it. For instance, I have heard of men carry-
ing their bags in such & way as to cover up their lameness.

Q. I could understand how that could be in 1923, but it seems to me
that in 1926 the facial appearance of the man would indicate to a mere tyro
in diagnosis that he was suffering from tuberculosis?—A. It must have escaped
the medical officer in some way.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You said the 13,000 went up to February 18th? What is the commence-
ment date for that number of examinations?—A. Since the beginning of the
year.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Are you through with your survey?—A. Yes. -

Q. I want to know more about this MecConachie case. What is your infor-
mation in the Department about that?—A. I cannot give you the dates. I
believe in the McConachie case, it was in connection with the fifth child in the
family. It was examined by a Roster doctor, and our latest information is that
he examined this child in July when it was about eight months old.

Q. July, 1927?—A. Tt arrived in this country when it was fourteen months
old. He saw it in July, and it has only arrived within the last six weeks, we
will say, although T do not know the exact date. The report does not say more
than that he examined it. That is the last word we have. They came across
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on the ship. We have that blunder-bus over the medical officers of the ship
that if they let anybody through that a competent medical examination could
have discovered as coming within the prohibited classes, they will be fined,
so their medical officers are wide-awake. In this case, the ship’s medical officer,
reported to our medical officer in Halifax that he did not like the looks of this
child and asked our medical officer to examine it. Our medical officer at Halifax
examined the child in the regular routine. He picked up this child fourteen
months of age, and suffering from physical defects which drew his attention
to it. It had a big heavy jowl; its eyes were slanting; its mouth was half
open; its tongue lolling out, with saliva running all over its cheeks; distinctly
what we would call an imbecile. Because its eyes were on a slant, and running
up in a slanting direction or almond-eyed as we call it, we would say it is of the
Mongolian type, because its eyes looked like the eyes of a Chinaman. The
child had a pronounced receding forehead, what they sometimes call a sliced
head, sometimes they are sliced on one side. This was sliced backwards. In
every way, it was an imbecilic looking child.

Q. Who was the doctor?—A. Dr. Rutherford. The child was examined
in the ordinary routine and the medical officer’s report given to the Immigration
Department. They immediately formed what they call their Board, to see
what to do with it then. They determined that this child undoubtedly fell
under Class A of Section 38 of the Act, as a prohibited individual.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. How many were on the Board?—A. T don’t know. A board may be
composed of two or three; it usually is three.

Q. Does not the Act say three?—A. That is an Immigration- matter. Let
me explain to you about the Board. The Board took the medical officer’s report
and deported this individual. Dr. Clarke, our Assistant Deputy Minister, was
in England at the time this child arrived in the Old Country, and with Dr.
Jeffs and Dr. Parney, he saw the child, and he confirms absolutely Dr. Ruther-
ford’s diagnosis.

He said, there was the child with its tongue hanging down the side of its
face, undoubtedly imbecilic looking, clearly within the scope of the pro-
hibited classes, and he said that Dr. Rutherford’s diagnosis was correct. ~Since
then, an examination of this individual has been made and we have a telegram
this morning from Professor Kirkpatrick Anderson, of Glasgow, one of the
best men they could get, and he went farther than we did and calls this child
an imbecile with Mongolian features. That is his diagnosis. This is the type
that the law was made to cover, to exclude them from this country. (Telegram
here read into the record): '
2 Telegram received from Dr. Jeffs, London, England, this a.m., March 13th,

28,
Doctor Kirkpatrick Anderson Professor of Psychiatry Glasgow ex-
amined McConachie baby and diagnosed imbecility with features mon-
golian idiot.

By Mr. Minrar: A moment ago you said, “ They deported it.” Who de-
ported it?

The Wirness: The Immigration Department. The law is there; they
were justified. You made the law for them. The law is there, and in the execu-
tion of their duties they deported this individual.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:
Q. Who are Dr. Jeffs and Dr. Parney?—A. Dr. Jeffs is our Chief Medical
Officer in Great Britain. He has been there for five or six years. Dr. Parney

yoh.
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is his assistant in Great Britain. Both of them are as astute medical officers
as we have in our services.

By Mr. Boys:
Q. I gather that the child is adjudged imbecilic?—A. Absolutely. .
Q. Then how in the world could one of your Roster doctors, ever pass it?—
A. When I said Dr. Rutherford examined this child, he said it was feeble—mmc}ed.
In his report he said that the tongue of this individual was normal. By the time
the child got over to the Old Country, he said, its abdomen—as often happens
in these feeble-minded cases, (their bellies stick out like this (indicating)—by

. the time this child got back to the Old Country the protusion of the abdomen

was extreme, the tongue was already fissured; and the pupilla was standing
up prominently on the tongue; typical of that condition. Dr. Clarke said
it had every appearance of imbecility, and apparently it was more pronounced
than when Dr. Rutherford examined it and called it feeble-minded. Now Pro-

. fessor Anderson makes the report that the child is an imbecile. Cases of this

kind progress, and progress very rapidly in the early years of a child’s life.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. I think you failed to bring out the time between the examination by
the Roster doetor and the examination by Dr. Rutherford?—A. In the case
of Dr. Rutherford’s examination it was made quite recently—within the last-
six weeks, I understand.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. One was at eight months and the other at fourteen months?—A.
Exactly.

Q. You have not quite answered my question. It may be that the changed
condition took place between the examination when the child was eight months
old, and that at the age of fourteen months. If that is your opinion, that is
what I want to find out?—A. Yes.

Q. The point I had in mind was this; would you mind giving me the best
opinion you can in regard to such a palpable case as you depict? One would
wonder how any Roster doctor could have passed this child at eight months
of age?—A. I do not think he made a careful examination because, even if it
did progress in a few weeks, we would have had to deal with it. Perhaps in
July he was not as bad as he looks now, because when a child is that age, and
is just sitting around, or being carried around, it is not noticed so much, and
tlll)e doctor might very well have passed it over, and not thought very much
about it.

Q. But if a child’s tongue was hanging out and saliva was running down
its checks, I do not see how even a layman, much less a doctor could have
failed to notice it?—A. As it stands now, there is no doubt about the condition
of the child.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. What the country is interested in is not the condition it was in at five
months of age, but the condition it was in at the time it was excluded by the
Department. That is the thing which has aroused the indignation of the
country, which, it is true, may show the humane nature of the people here.

By Mr. Ross (Moose Jaw):

Q. Is it possible that this child, at eight months, might not show any
very great signs of imbecility, but still show it at fourteen months?—A. It
is very much worse.

[Dr. J. A. Amyot.]



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 227

By Mr. Glen:
Q. Am I correct in saying that there was a Board of Inquiry on this par-
ticular child?—A. I should call it rather, a “Board of Action.” It belongs to
the Immigration Department.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. Under that Act, Section 13, this so-called Board of Inquiry is to con-
sist of any three officers?—A. Yes.

Q. Was there such a Board held?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you a report of that Board?—A. No.

Q. When the Roster doctor examined that child, were the parents of the
child given any certificate or memorandum of any kind?—A. No, I don’t
think so. They were simply told it might go on.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. There was a Board of Inquiry held, and the report was made to your
Department. Now has the Minister any authority, under the Act, to admit
that child?

Mr. Boys: Mr. Chairman, if we are going into this matter, I most cer-
tainly want to go into it. I have purposely refrained to-day.

The Crarman: That seems to be a question dealing with immigration.

Mr. Guex: No, that is dealing with the Board of Inquiry.

The CaamrmMaN: That is under the Immigration Department, not under
the Medical Department.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. If T understand your evidence correctly, it was to this effect; that when
you made any recommendation with regard to any person who was unfit, under
Section 3, Subsections A. B. and C. there is no appeal?>—A. Under A. and B.

Q. What I want to know is, has anyone any authority over the recom-
mendations of the Board of Inquiry?—A. Not over the Board of Inquiry. At
least that is our impression, knowing the Act, that when the Board sits and
makes a decision the Minister has no discretion whatever.

The CmairmaNn: That is an Immigration matter?

The Wirness: Yes.

By Mr. Boys:
Q. You mean there is no appeal from the decision of the Board to the
Minister?—A. It means you cannot go back of that.
Mr. Boys: I thought we were going to leave the legal end alone to-day.
The Cramman: I would be glad if you would leave it alone.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. I was told that several doctors in private practice in Nova Scotia saw
this child and proclaimed it normal. How do you explain that?—A. I do not
know anything about that at all.

By Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. T do not know whether this is going into the Immigration part of it or
not, and I do not want to do that, but since the matter has been brought up by
my friend here, (Mr. Millar) I would refer you Dr. Amyot to page 39 of the
Act, where it says:—

In all other cases you may appeal to the Minister of Immigration
and Colonization against any decision of the Board of Inquiry or officer
in charge whereby you are ordered to be deported, unless such decision
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is based upon a certificate of the examining medical officer that you are
affected with a loathsome disease, or a disease which may become
dangerous to the public health.

The Cuamrman: I think that is an Immigration matter. Are there any
other questions to ask Dr. Amyot?

Mr. Sporron: I would like to ask the doctor a question in regard to

immigrants going to Australia being medically examined. There is an organi-
zation there, which I understand has said, “We sent 200 to-day to Australia,
but were held up in sending them to Canada, and we only sent 65.”—I may not
have the figures correct. I saw a newspaper despatch from London, England,
which stated that the Salvation Army was sending a large number to Australia
but were being held up in some manner in sending immigrants to Canada and
we only got a limited number. Would that be because your departmental
regulations are too rigid?>—A. No; I think probably when they were going to
migrate, they felt that Canada was closer.
, Q. No, the statement, was clear; they had an equal chance to go to Canada,
and the article read as if they preferred to go to Canada, but found it was easier
to get to Australia—A. It is the general impression that Australia does not
put as much restriction on their people coming in.  New Zealand puts on very
much more.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. There is an impression in some quarters that the medical inspection,
which immigrants must pass, is not as close and exacting coming from the
Continent as from Great Britain?—A. I do not think there is any difference
between them. There is this factor, that they do not speak the language; and
there is a certain diffieulty about the language. For example Czecho-Slova-
kians; the medical officers cannot ask them all the questions they would like,
and he has to judge somewhat by appearances, and from what he can see. As
a matter of fact, there are not as many rejections coming from the continent.
They are better physically developed individuals.

Q. But there were quite a few thousands of Czecho-Slovakians, or people
from that neighbourhood coming in last year; would the bulk of those be
examined in Europe?—A. No; last year they were all examined here.

Q. Would the doctors have to pass on them?—A. Just as thoroughly as on
any others. u

Q. At the rate of several hundred an hour?—A. Yes, and that would be
one of the difficulties.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Are they not examined by the steamship doctors, before they leave their
own country?—A. They were not obliged to be; now, they will have to be
examined on the other side. But up to the 14th of February they were mot
obliged to be examined. We said to the steamship doctors, “If you let any-
body in, where a competent medical examination would have stopped them, we
will fine the steamship companies, because they are the ones interested in
bringing them out; we will make them refund all that they have charged in the
way of fares, and bring them back to their homes. “Originally the fine was $200
on top of all that, so that the steamship company will make some kind of sorting
of these people. They are especially careful in order to save themselves the
possibility of a fine by bringing those people out here.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Have the steamship companies been fined very often?—A. More fre-
quently than they would like to be. I eannot give you the exact number, but
[Dr. J. A. Amyot.]



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 229

they do not like it very well. The United States fines them $1,000, we only
fine them $200.

Q. Do you know whether there was any examination made by a medical
man on behalf of the steamship company in connection with the McConachie
case?—A. I do not know, but we have the fact that the doctor of the ship drew
the attention of our medical man to this child.

Q. You have made reference to the precautionary measures taken by the
steamship companies to avoid paying fines. What companies are they?—A.
I do not know that.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. What provision is made for the examination at Ellis Island of intend-
ing immigrants to Canada?—A. The United States medical officers do the
examining, and they say to our Immigration Department that these people
are fit, and the Immigration Department has been accepting their examination.

The Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned until Wednesday, March 14, at 11 a.m.
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House or CoMMONS,
Webpxespay, March 21, 1928,

J. N. K. MacauisTer called and sworn.

By the Chairman:

Q. Mr. Macalister, what is your occupation and position with the C.P.R.?
—A. My title is Assistant Commissioner, Department of Colonization and
Development. I am assistant to Colonel Dennis, the head of the Department.

Mr. Camax: Shall we ask questions or will the witness make a statement?
Mr. McMrirax: Let the witness make a statement.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): I think it would be a good idea to follow
the line followed with Mr. Egan, and let the witness give a general outline of
the work, which will suggest questions we may ask later.

By the Chairman:

Q. Are you prepared to make a statement?—A. Do you want a statement
of the organization of cur Department, and the activities we are carrying on?

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. In connection with immigration?—A. That is what we are organized
for. I am not thoroughly prepared to make a complete statement, but I will
do the best I can to outline what we have, what we are, and what we are doing.
I will start in with our organization at headquarters in Montreal Windsor
Station. First of all, I would like to point out distinctly that the Department
of Colonization and Development of the Canadian Pacific Railway is a distinct
department organized by itself and apart entirely from any other department of
the Company’s service, under the administration of Colonel J. S. Dennis, who
has spent some 55 years in colonization activities in the Dominion. He has
complete jurisdiction of the Department, reporting to our Chairman and
President. As I said, I have the privilege of assisting him, trying to make myself
generally useful.

Mr. H. C. P. Cresswell, our superintendent at Montreal, is in charge of
what might be called a clearing house for the obtaining of settlement opportuni-
ties, nominations of colonists, and applications for colonists, either approving or
refusing these various applications, under regulations, of course, laid down by
Colonel Dennis, and of our staff in receiving and distributing colonists as they
come forward to fill the places obtained. These various openings for the recep-
tion of colonists are obtained by eight district offices maintained by our
Department in various parts of the Dominion and which I will describe in some -
detail a little later. Our Mr. Cresswell also has charge of our port staff, meeting
incoming ships, assisting colonists in the operation of landing, putting their
baggage through the customs, boarding proper trains for the destinations from
which they will be distributed. He also has jurisdiction over our Montreal and
Toronto district offices.
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The Department maintains a publicity branch in charge of Captain Ashley
Edwards—who was, for a number of years, private secretary to Colonel Dennis
and consequently has a very wide knowledge of colonization affairs in Canada,
the United States, the British Isles and on the continent—with an assistant at
London, England. This Department has, of course, charge of the preparation
and issuance of all booklets prepared by the Department, the placing of our
newspaper advertising in Canada, the United States and Great Britain. There is
some other technical information in connection with that department, and I
have a very short statement here that I would like to read, if I may take the
time.

The Branch also issues a publication called “Agricultural and
Industrial Progress in- Canada”, going to forty-five countries of the world
in monthly issues of 12,000. It consists of twenty pages and articles
relating to agricultural and industrial progress in Canada—covering the
latest reports of agricultural and industrial conditions, and trade outlook,
dealing in a comprehensive way with individual industries. Articles are
about seven hundred words in length and may be copied with or without
credit by the press.

A weekly supplement to the Bulletin is issued—6,000 copies weekly,
going to forty-three countries of the world. This consists of short para-
graphs touching upon commercial, industrial, and agricultural conditions,
and based upon news received from correspondents in all parts of the
Dominion. It is printed on a strip of about 18 inches long and 6 inches
wide—a handy form for use by newspapers. These items, while technic-
ally known as “fillers”, are of such a nature that they play an interesting
part in outlining the progress of Canadian agricultural and industrial
progress in what might be termed “capsule” form.

A daily news sheet of ten items is compiled and sent each day to
certain newspapers and periodicals and to press correspondents in Canada,
London, England, New York, and Chicago. These items are of a similar
nature to those mentioned in the supplement and are disseminated through
publicity sources in the abovementioned places. These sheets are mimeo-
graphed, eighteen copies being issued daily. These also serve the same
purpose as a Supplement and are compiled from reports received by tele-
graph and mail from correspondents all over Canada.

The Bulletin and Supplement were inaugurated in 1919, the original
mailing list being one hundred. Shortly after its inception, it was decided
not to distribute these publications promiscuously but to send them only
to those who write requesting their names to be placed on the mailing
list. Its object, of course, is to interest capital in Canadian affairs and to
promote desirable immigration into Canada.

A large library of motion picture films illustrating agricultural,
industrial, and colonization activities in Canada is maintained at Mont-
real, the headquarters of the European Organization at London, also at
Winnipeg and in fhe United States. These cover thirty-five topics
involving fifty-three original reels—and with copies distributed through-
out, of the offices of the Department approximate 250 reels. These are
available upon application by schools, theatres, clubs, societies, boards of
trade, and other organizations, and are, of course, used by our own staff
in lecturing campaigns.

During the past few years the Department has maintained a Bureau
of Information at Montreal with branch libraries at London, England,
and Chicago, and has advertised its willingness to supply information on
Canadian conditions. [ts slogan is “Ask the Canadian Pacific about
Canada” and, as a result, thousands of inquiries reach headquarters and
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branches every year. The information asked for covers all phases of
Canadian activities. The libraries endeavour to keep abreast of the times
by keeping up-to-date data and statisties. The requests come from widely
separated countries, commercial and industrial organizations of all kinds,
from individual students, and from a variety of other sources.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Can you give approximately the number of your 20 page circular dis-
tributed last year, and is that circular revised and brought up to date year
by year?—A. You mean the booklet to which I have just referred, “ Agricul-
tural and Industrial Progress”?

Q. Yes—A. It has a circulation of 12,000 a month with a new issue each
month.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Is it printed in more than one language?—A. Just in English, sir.

We also maintain in Montreal an Exhibits Branch in charge of Mr. E. T.
Noltie as Acting Director. He has, for many years, acted as Assistant to the
late E. R. Bruce. I have a very short statement of the activities of our Exhibits
Branch.

The Branch is now maintaining and keeping in first class up-to-
date shape seventeen permanent agricultural exhibits in Canada, 13
in the United States—in addition, maintaining 12 portable display cases
used by our staff in the United States—six portable display cases used
by our staff in the British Isles, and three permanent exhibits in Europe.
In addition, it maintains window displays at London, Glasgow, and
Paris.

At the present time, arrangements are being made for twenty-
seven addifional window displays in the British Isles, a permanent
exhibit at the Imperial Institute, London, England, and a permanent
exhibit at Stockholm, Sweden.

During the past few years this Branch has participated in various
international exhibitions held in various parts of the world.

A Section of the Branch is maintained in the West, which is con-
stantly busy in collecting and arranging agricultural products with which
permanent exhibits mentioned may be kept renewed.

It also co-operates to a considerable extent with our Traffic Depart-
ment in various hotel exhibits, and various exhibits at large and small
fairs held within Canada, but in these you are, of coure, not interested.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. At what places on the continent are your permanent exhibits main-
tained? I think you mentioned Stockholm as one.—A. Brussels, Rotterdam
and Oslo are the permanent exhibits, with window displays in London,
Glasgow and Paris.

We still further maintain a development branch in charge of Major
Ommenney as Director of Development, with a branch office at Winnipeg and
representatives in our London sub-headquarters. This branch is maintained
to further the development of natural resources, industrial resources, raw
materials and minerals along the Company’s lines.
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Mr. Macauister (Reads):

The staff of the Development Branch under the Director of
Development includes a number of experts, geologists, and mining
engineers, for special work in the field, examining the resources along
the Company’s lines and obtaining information and preparing reports
on possibilities of development as preliminary information for those
interested. This service is given free of charge under certain conditions
such as the responsibility and genuine interest of the parties seeking it
and their inability for one reason or another to secure other profes-
sional advice.

Through the wide-spread organization of our Department through-
out Canada, the United States, and Europe, the Development Branch
is in an excellent position to obtain and give out information and get
in touch with individuals, organizations or firms interested in Canadian
development.

During the year this Branch handles a very large number of
development inquiries on widely diversified subjects. In addition, it
is continually adding to the store of information on the resources along
the Company’s lines, the classifying and filing of which is an important
feature of the work.

This information has been compiled in a set of brief synopses each
dealing with some particular resource, which now cover 59 different
subjects. These are compiled by special authors, edited and revised
up-to-date each year, and issued by the Branch, and published and
printed through the Department’s Publicity Branch.

Started in 1923, the issue of these publications has to the end of
February, 1928, reached a total of 197,300 copies all issued on request.

In all of its work the Development Branch receives the finest
co-operation and assistance from the various Federal and Provincial
Government Departments with whom its work brings it in contact, as
well as from technical associations such as the Canadian Institute of
Mining and Metallurgy, The Engineering Institute of Canada, The
Pulp and Paper Association, ete.

Now, the Department maintains sub-headquarters at Winnipeg and at
London, England. Our district offices in Canada are located at Montreal,
covering Quebec and the Maritime Provinces, at Toronto, covering Ontario, at
Winnipeg, covering Manitoba, at Saskatoon with a sub-office at Moose Jaw
covering Saskatchewan, at Edmonton, covering central and northern Alberta,
at Calgary, covering southern Alberta and a portion of British Columbia, and
at Vancouver, covering the balance of British Columbia. These offices are
organized with Assistant Superintendents of Colonization in charge. These
men have been in the service of the Company and of our Department for long
terms of years, averaging from ten to twenty years each. Each office has, of
course, the necessary office staff, and in addition, has attached to it a staff of
travelling colonization agents. Their duties are through their own efforts,
through the efforts of various affiliated organizations and through the efforts of
our station agents, to seek out and develop settlement opportunities for agri-
cultural colonists, opportunities through which they can be settled upon farms,
nominations from farmers in Canada covering their friends or relatives on the
other side, and applications from farmers in Canada for the agricultural help
or agricultural domestics they wish to employ. This campaign starts in the early
Fall. The country is thoroughly combed by the various officers in their respec-
tive districts. It continues throughout the Fall and Winter, and at this time of
year they are extremely busy meeting the colonists coming forward to fill the
opportunities previously developed and seeing that they reach their proper
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destinutions. Our district offices in western Canada are supervised and directed
by Mr. C. A. Van Scoy, our Superintendent of Colonization at Winnipeg, who
is in charge, under direction from headquarters, of our department in western
Canada. Mr. Van Scoy, from our Winnipeg sub-headquarters, also directs the
activities of our western United States offices. With headquarters in Winnipeg,
our Department also maintains the Canada Colonization Association, which
is organized for the purpose of placing incoming families without capital, or with
limited capital, or with capita{), upon privately owned lands in the Dominion,
both improved and unimproved, although their particular activity has been
in placing families either without capital or with limited capital upon developed
and equipped farms.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell :

Q. Is that organization still in operation?—A. Yes, sir. Since we took
the Canada Colonization Association over exclusively we have located 2,423
families upon farms, and this number of families are now under the supervision
of the Association.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :
Q. Have you under your hand, Mr. Macalister, information as to how
they have been distributed as to provinces?—A. I have not that with me, but
I can give you an approximate idea. I can get it for you exactly.

By Mr. Spence (Parkdale):

Q. Can you tell us where these families come from originally?—A. The
majority of them come from the continent. I would say we located 50 per cent
in Manitoba, 30 per cent in Saskatchewan, and 20 per cent in Alberta. That is
only an approximation.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. During how many years of operation?—A. Since January 1st, 1925.

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. Under what conditions do you settle them on the land—the families
without much money?—A. Families without money have been settled on these
farms under what is known as the “Joint and several liability contract.” The
majority of these families have been settled upon farms which have been farmed
on a large scale, and perhaps rather indifferently farmed. They are farms of
rather large acreage. If a group of from three families up settle on this bloc
of land, they all sign the contract, and each family is responsible for the other.
That system was brought about by the vendors insisting upon that protection
when turning these farms over to the families—not only the farms, but the
equipment and live stock.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. Am I right, Mr. Macalister, in assuming that your activity along this
line of placing families has been directed especially to the western provinces,
rather than to Ontario and the East?—A. Yes, particularly in the western
provinces up to the present time. The Canada Colonization Association has a
branch office at Saskatoon, and a branch office at Calgary, and have now opened
a branch at Toronto. Since last Fall there have been a very considerable
numbers of families settled in Ontario, and our activities there do not show any
sign of decreasing. We expect that will develop into a very considerable
movement. v

By Hon. Mr. Guthrie:

Q. Are these families settled upon unoccupied farms, or abandoned farms,
or what?—A. Both. :
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Q. What acreage would be granted?—A. From 160 to 320 acres. It varies.
It depends on how much land is under cultivation on the farm at the time
they go in to occupation.

Q. These families are of a class which has no capital?—A. Not alto-
gether, sir. Some of them have some capital—the more the better.

By Mr. Arthurs:

Q. Has this scheme been successful financially so far?—A. It has been
very successful. Our reports, very carefully compiled, indicate that more than
95 per cent of these families show every indication of being ultimately suc-
cessful.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. From what countries do they come?

the British Isles, the Scandinavian countries—

A. Germany, Poland, Russia,

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. Do 1 understand that the individual families in these groups are
jointly responsible?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Glen:
Q. Are any of them Mennonites?—A. A large number of them.
Q. The majority of them are?—A. I believe so.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River) :

Q. How do you locate the families without capital?>—A. I have just
explained how we did it through the Canada Colonization Association.

Q. You just stated that each individual family unit is jointly responsible
with the others. Supposing a family of five comes in without capital: will
you select all of those without capital and put them on one bloc?—A. Fre-
quently we are able to group families which come in as individual families
into a group for settlement, but we cannot establish an individual family
without capital on their own equipped farms, because the vendors would not
take them. We can establish individual families without capital in farm
employment, and we do establish a large number of them in that way.

Q. I understood you to say you placed families without capital on the
land, and you repeated both “with” and “without capital”’?—A. Under joint
and several liability.

By Mr. Dubuc:

Q. What number of families do you include in a group—three or five?—
A. Yes, sometimes more.
Q. Would that group grow up to twenty?—A. Twenty would be a very
}iarge group. It is more workable to hold them to a group of from three to
Ve.
By Mr. Brown:

Q. Under a scheme of this kind do you get the people from the British
Isles to co-operate?—A. It is very difficult.

Q. I think it is necessary to bring out that it is practically only those
people who are accustomed to, communal life whom you can get to settle in
this way?—A. Not altogether. You can get various continental nationalities
to undertake these responsibilities, because they realize that is the only way
they can hope to establish themselves upon their own farms upon their arrival
here, but it is very difficult to get the Scandinavians or the British to under-
take the joint and several responsibility.
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By Mr. Glen:

Q. You say you have been successful in settling these families in Mani-
toba. You said that this scheme has been in operation since 1925.—A. The
Canada Colonization Association has quite a long history behind it. First of
all, it was organized as a national movement, then it was administered, I
believe, by the Canadian Government, the Canadian National Railways and
ourselves. Then the Canadian National and the Canadian Pacific administ-
ered it, and eventually it was taken over by the Canadian Pacific and we have
been carrying on alone since 1925.

Q. Have any of the settlers been able to pay anything on the principal?
—A. Very large payments.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. It is really a specific branch of the C.P.R.2—A. It is part of the
Department of Colonization and Development of the Canadian Pacific Rail-

way, which we use to the greatest possible extent in establishing families upon
‘the farms.

By Mr. Banceroft:

Q. What steps do you take to acquire these farms for the settlers who have
little or no capital? Do you buy the land?—A. No, we simply act as a go-
between for the vendor and the colonist. The Colonization Association does not
buy any land, nor does it own any; it acts entirely without compensation of any
kind. It cannot retain one penny for the services performed. Every dollar it
costs to coperate the Canada Colonization Association is supplied by the Depart-
ment of Colonization and Development of the Canadian Pacific.

Q. And you or the Colonization Association exercise some discretion in
settling these farmers on a certain piece of land, that is, they advise the settlers
as to whether these farms are worth the money that the venders are asking for
them?—A. No settler is sent to any farm until the farm has been thoroughly
inspected by the field staff of the Association, and on many occasions is re-
inspected by representatives of various organizations working in co-operation
with the Canada Colonization Association.

Q. But you would practically advise the settler that in the opinion of your
Department the farm is worth the money the vendor is asking?—A. Yes, we
would advise the settler that in our opinion he had a good opportunity of being
successful upon that particular farm.

Q. Does the Canada Colonization make any profit?—A. It does not make
one cent of profit. I want to make that very distinct and very clear, that the
Canada Colonization Association does not retain one cent for any of its
activities. The cost of operating the Association is paid by the Canadian
Pacific Railway.

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. In this communal system of settlement, is it so arranged that the
individual may finally become the sole owner of his own farm?—A. Yes.
In many of these agreements there iz an understanding that after a certain
proportion of the purchase price has been paid, the bloc of land will then
be split into individual contracts.

Q. That is your ultimate aim?—A. The ultimate aim is that after each
of the five families has demonstrated the fact that they are a good agricultural
family and are endeavouring to make a success, and treating the vendors
honestly, they will be given an individual contract. The joint and several
contract constitutes a daily inspection by each member of the group over the
other members of the group.
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By Mr. Fansher (Lambton East):

Q. Is this system of colonization somewhat the same as that in vogue in
Denmark?—A. I am not familiar with the Danish situation.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. What do you do when one of the group proves a failure? Do you give
the group an opportunity of bringing in someone else?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. Mr. Macalister, may I ask if the Colonization Branch of your railway
is establishing any farm such as they had at one time at Wilkie and Vanguard?—
A. No, they are not, not at the present time.

To indicate how closely the Association is a part of our Department, when
we took it over we placed Mr. T. O. F. Herzer from our own staff—he had been
in our Department, I think, since 1914, and had been very active in all our
various activities in the west, as well as in the United States and had been
thoroughly trained in the Department—in charge as manager of the Association.
The Association is administered by Colonel Dennis as President, Mr. P. L.
Naismith, formerly of our Department of Natural Resources, as Vice-President,
and its activities are supervised and managed by an executive committee of
the Board of Directors consisting of the officers, together with Mr. D. C. Cole-
man, Vice-President of Western Lines, Mr. F. W. Russell, of our Lands Depart-
ment in Winnipeg, and Mr. Gerow of our Lands Department in Saskatoon and
Mr. C. A. Van Scoy of our Department, Winnipeg. I may say that members
of the executive committee which actually meet monthly to supervise its affairs
are Mr. Coleman, Mr. Russell, and Mr. Van Scoy, our superintendent of Coloniza-
tion at Winnipeg, Mr. Herzer as Manager, attends.

Now, of course, the Association is constantly, through its headquarters staff,
through its branch offices, and through organizations affiliated with it, seeking
out new settlement opportunities and trying to have blocs of land prepared prior
to the arrival of the colonists to take care of additional families as they come in,
and at the present time we are in a position to receive and place under the
system I have just deseribed 1,400 families.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. On privately owned land?—A. On privately owned land, sir.  The
Association does not deal in anything excepting privately owned land. I mean
by that, land either owned by an individual or a corporation...

j Q. In every case the individual or the corporation has to supply the funds,
where the settler cannot supply his own?—A. Of course, Mr. Stewart, that would
vary. It is quite true, that is where the settler cannot supply his own.

Q. I mean in every case, the owners of the properties take the chances on
the contracts? No money is supplied by the railway or anybody else?—A. Not
a dollar.

By Mr. McMillan.: :

Q. Are Canadians given an equal opportunity or any opportunity, the same
as you have deseribed?—A. Yes, there is no reason why we would not take care
of a group of Canadians if they would come and sign the same contract which
the vendors insist upon being signed.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You do not ask them to sign the contracts?—A. Not as principals; we
act for the vendors.

AQY You are intermediaries between the vendors and the proposed settlers?
—A. Yes. ;
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By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. Under this system do you carry on very much the same system of farm-
ing as is done by others, such as dairy farming, beef cattle and so forth?—A.
That varies with the district and the character of the particular farm. Some
farms are suitable for dairy farming or for beef cattle, or grain farming. It
all depends on the district.

Q. I presume most of these farms would be suitable for one particular line
in a certain district?—A. Yes.

Q. Then your aim is to rather encourage a certain line of farming?—A. You
mean the families of one group to carry on a certain line?

Q. Yes?—A. Yes, we do.

Q. I am thinking of the opportunity for installing creameries, for instance,
and to co-operate in the selling—A. Of course, the vendors are particularly
anxious to make every effort to have their groups undertake diversified farm-

ing.
By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Do you keep men in the fields to inspect these colonists which you
settle?—A. Yes.

Q. How often do they make that inspection?—A. That varies. If they are
having a very difficult time, probably once a week; if everything is going on
nicely and smoothly, perhaps not more than once every two or three months.

Q. How long do you keep this up?—A. Until the group has indicated they
are on their feet and everything is all right, and on the way to success.

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:
Q. Are these inspectors also instructors?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Donnelly:
Q. Do you settle them on C.P.R. lands?—A. No.

By Mr. MacKenzie:

Q. Does one inspector inspect the land and also the equipment, or have
they different inspectors?—A. Well, that is a difficult question to answer, be-
cause the vendors are particularly interested in the stock and equipment, and
many of the vendors for whom we have settled large areas of land, are able to
keep an inspector of their own, or have an inspector of their own drop around
occasionally, looking after the stock and equipment.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. Have you any offices soliciting the immigration of eastern Canadians to
such lands?—A. Our Department, feels that it is not properly one of our functions
to move colonists or farmers from one province of the Dominion to another.

Q. That is not my question. You have the machinery-—A. I will answer
your question by saying No, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Tolmie:

Q. How many of these are in British Columbia, and where are they located?
—A. I know we have a settlement in the Okanagan Valley, but I am afraid
I will have to plead inability to answer your question fully, because I do not
keep in touch with those close details.

Q. But you have some in British Columbia?—A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):
Q. Let us get this matter cleared up. Have you ever dealt individually
with any of the eastern Canadian farmers to put them on the Western lands
under this agreement?—A. Not that I know of.
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Q. Have you any machinery in eastern Canada through which you are
encouraging the immigration of the eastern Canadians under this agreement?—
A. To the west?

Q. Yes—A. In our Department?

Q. Yes.—A. No, sir.

By Mr. Motherweil:

Q. You give special freight rates—or you formerly did?—A. That is not in
our department.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. In your opinion would not the eastern Canadian—we will say the northern
French Canadian habitant make an ideal type for grouping? Have they not
developed the communal life to a high degree, and would it not be possible for
them to undertake this form of settlement?—A. It is quite possible, sir, but you
must understand that we have been extending the activities of the Canadian
Colonization Association gradually. It has been branching out. As I men-
tioned a short time ago, we have come into Ontario, and I may say that the
Maritime Provinces are on our backs constantly trying to get us down there,
and we expect to go as soon as we can extend to that extent. You will appreciate
that these things have to progress more or less slowly.

By Mr. Spotton:

Q. The objeect of your association is to bring immigrants to Canada? You
are not interested in interprovincial transplantation?—A. Not at all.

Q. Your primary object is to bring immigrants to Canada?—A. To assist
to the fullest possible extent in the settlement of Canada.

Q. You are not interested particularly in taking people from Ontario and
planting them in the west, or in the Maritime Provinces?—A. No. Now, there
is one other branch of our department upon which I would like to touch. I have
referred to affiliated organizations. There are, at the present time, 25 major
colonization associations in various parts of the Dominion co-operating with
our department. In the colonization activities, to which I have referred, they
are co-operating with us. I refer to them as major organizations because their
activities either extend throughout a province or throughout several provinces.
The headquarters of the 25 are located four in Alberta, eight in Saskatchewan,
seven in Manitoba, six in Ontario, three in Quebec. In addition to that, we have
138 local colonization boards affiliated with the department. -

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Can you file a list of the 25 major ones?—A. I could, yes, but I cannot
to-day. Of these 138, two are located in British Columbia, 36 in Alberta, 58 in
Saskatehewan, 24 in Manitoba, 15 in Ontario, 1 in Quebec, 1 in New Brunswick
and 1 in Nova Scotia.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Who finances these various organizations?—A. They either finance them-
selves to some considerable extent, or receive assistance from our department.
These local boards are formed by public spirited citizens in their respective
districts, men who recognize and realize that their districts cannot reach the
ultimate of prosperity until the agricultural lands available are brought under
cultivation and developed. They consist of bankers and merchants and farmers,
organizing themselves into local boards, prepared to do what they can to help

in the development of their own distriets.
[Mr. J. N. W. Macalister.]
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By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. Especially in the distribution of settlers?—A. They make a survey of
the settlement opportunities in their district, farms which are available for
sale or for rent or on assisted settlement terms. They carry. on a campaign
amongst the residents of the distriet and get them to get in touch with their
friends or relatives in the United States, or on the British Isles, or on the con-
tinent, who may be induced to come forward and settle in their districts. They
get from the farmer applications for the farm help that they require, or for
domestic servants. These applications, and these nominations, and this informa-
tion, which they have gathered is sent to our district office in the particular
distriet in which they may be situated, and by us is passed on in the regular
routine of the department.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. Mr. Macalister, these organizations to which you have referred are not
being conducted with any view to financial gain to the members comprising

‘them?—A. Not at all. It is a voluntary service. They not only perform the

functions I have deseribed, but when colonists come forward to fill the oppor-
tunities obtained, they receive them and assist in their distribution. They do
that in various ways. We reimburse them for part of the expense or actual
money outlay, but there is no intention of personal profit in the plan. If I may,
I will just branch from our own department for a moment. Under the so-called
Continental Railway agreement, which has been referred to at the meetings of
this committee, our department deals with all nominations for colonists from
so-called non-preferred countries. Our steamship organization, the steamship
passenger department, assists in the obtaining and gathering and transmits to
our department nominations of that character. Our station agents throughout
both the eastern and western lines also assist us, and they are in very close touch
with the farmers of the community. They accept applications and nominations
and forward them to our department. That is not merely a passive assistance.
1 went to the trouble of getting a list of our active agents in Saskatchewan, and
there are 215 station agents in the Province of Saskatchewan, who are actively
and energetically co-operating with the Department of Colonization and Develop-
ment.

Now, that covers in a general way our organization in Canada, particularly
for the obtaining of settlement opportunities, nominations and applications.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. You just mentioned the nomination plan. Would you mind telling us
the terms under which you accept immigrants on the nomination plan? For
instance, do you require the farmer nominating an immigrant for transportation
to Canada to file with you the number of months he is willing to employ the
immigrant, and the rate of pay?—A. Yes. The nomination form covering
single men is an established form now, approved by the Department of Immi-
gration and Colonization. The man signing it agrees that he will provide the
:mmigrant with work for one year.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. If a man makes application for a servant or for hired help, and the
immigrant comes to this country and the farmer does not take him, what do you
do?—A. Get them a job some place else.

Q. You take care of them?—A. Our organization in western Canada, not
only sends the man forward to the destination for which he is intended, but
if for any reason the employer does not like him, or he does not like the em-
ployer, or if for any other reason, he leaves that job and wants another one,
our organization, all our district offices and all our travelling staff, are avail-
able for replacing that man any time, winter or summer.
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By Mr. Heaps:

Q. What steps do you take to see that a man arrives at his destination?—
A. When he arrives at the port he is met by our Port Colonization Agent. We
also have a corps of colonist conductors who accompany our trains of colonists
from the port of arrival to the distributing centres. The majority of the
colonists, of course, go west, and they accompany them to Winnipeg. At
Winnipeg, they are met by our western organization. Each man has an
identification card showing where he is going. They are gathered into groups
and placed upon the proper trains to take them to their destination and if the
number going to a certain destination is not large enough to justify our sending
a conductor to accompany them, the district office in which that destination is
located is telegraphed that these colonists are on the train, and they are met on
arrival. If one man should be nominated by an individual and put on a train
at Winnipeg to go to that individual, we advise that individual of the train he
is on and its due arrival time.

Discussion followed.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. I would like to ask one question. I think the witness is endeavouring
to show us the method they use for distributing the immigrants who come out
under an assisted passage scheme. What method is being taken by the railway
to see that these persons get to their destination? It came to my attention last
year that quite a number of them were dumped at a siding in the west, with
nobody there to look after them. Were any of those facts brought to your
attention?—A. I do not know of a single colonist or immigrant who was dumped
by the Canadian Pacific Railway or by our Department.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. I think you will perhaps remember the situation which took place
in Calgary last spring when there was a large number of Austrians brought over
by the Canadian Pacific Railway and left on the hands of the city. Several
of them came over under the nomination scheme, but the late season prevented
them Trom getting work on the farms. Do you know anything about that?—
A. I do not know of any colonists, for whom we were responsible, that were on
the hands of the city; I have no recollection of it.

Q. At that time, the member for East Calgary, for his Board of Trade,
sent down a violent protest to the Government to ask if the Canadian Pacific
Railway were bringing further immigrants before they settled that situation?
—A. Do not misunderstand me. I am not attempting to deny that there was
-a congestion of colonists last spring, due to the late season, but I have no
recollection of any party of Austrians that were dependent on the city of Calgary
for food and lodging during that period, and I do not think there were.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. That is, for which you were responsible?—A. People that we had
brought in.
By Mr. Totzke:
Q. This Association, that you are speaking of, does not apply to points
on the Canadian Pacific Railway?—A. Oh, yes.
By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Can you give us an idea of the percentage of those people who actually
stayed on the farm after they got there?—A. It is impossible to give an accurate
estimate of the number of single men that stayed on the farm. You cannot
follow the single men, unless you put a policeman with each one of them.
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Q. You do not know whether they stayed on the farm?—A. I know a very
" large number of them stayed on the farm. I also know that some of them
did not.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Under this nomination scheme, is it part of your contract to guarantee
employment, for one year to these men?—A. The certificate that is issued by
our Certificate Issuing Officers on the Continent, contains this sentence,
“Occupation in the service stated is guaranteed by this Company.”

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. Would you submit to this Committee the nomination form used by the
railway companies and also the certificate to which that refers, and any other
documents in connection with it?—A. I believe that has been filed.

Q. What about the certificate?—A. We can file a copy of the certificate.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. It is not very long, and you might read it?—A. There is an agreement

" stamped on this certificate in the language of the particular colonist to whom

it is issued. I have a translation of that here. I do not know who translated

it, because it does not read very smoothly. I would like the opportunity of

having this translation checked up before it goes into the Minutes of this com-
mittee. The certificate reads as follows:—

No. 31833

Original. (In duplicate)

THE CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY

DEPARTMENT OF COLONIZATION AND DEVELOPMENT
28, 1, 1928.

To the Department of Immigration and Colonization of Canada:— |

The bearer Mr. Karpluk Jan, sex F, age 27, of Ksaweréwka, Sokal,
being of Poland, where signature is endorsed below, belongs to a class
whose admission to Canada is provided in P.C. 183 and is proceeding
to Canada by ss.Minnedosa, scheduling to sail from Liverpcol on 10/11,
1928, for the purpose of engaging in farm labour in Canada. Occu-
pation in the service stated is guaranteed by this Company.

Passport vise is hereby requested for the above named.

(Seal) W. A. DRELEMKZ,
Signature of Certificate Issuing Officer.
KarpPLUK JAN,
Signature of Holder.
Office, Warsaw.
By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain):
Q. How long has that certificate been in vogue?—A. Since September,
1925
By Mr. Totzke:
Q. Could you actually deport a man if he did not accept that employment
when he came to Canada?—A. I believe so. There would be representations
if he did not accept that occupation.

By Mr. Donnelly:
Q. Do you deport him?—A. We do not deport anyone, the Department of
Immigration and Colonization do that.
Q. Do you know whether they have deported anyone for misrepresenta~
tion?—A. I could not say.
[Mr. J. N. K. Macaliste=.]
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By Mr. Glen:

Q. Supposing a farmer is asking for hired help, how do you get his nomina-
tion?—A. In various ways. He might write to us and say that he wanted a
couple of farm helpers, and we would mail him an application, which he would
fill out and return to us. He could get in touch with one of the district officers,
fill in an application and hand it to him, he could also get in touch with the
various organizations that are affiliated with us.

Q. Do you officers go through the country asking for nominations?—A. You
mean, to go out and solicit nominations?

Q. Yes—A. No.

By Mr. Garland (Bow Rwer):

Q. In yvour railway stations, you post signs soliciting applications for
nomination?—A. I am afraid you have got applications and nominations mixed
up. We refer to an application for farm help where a man makes an applica-
tion for an unnamed person, and nomination where it covers a named person
that they want brought over.

Q. But in your stations in Western Canada, you do actually have notices
posted, inviting the farmers to apply for unnamed workers?—A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. I think you said that some of the officers of the railway companies—I
am not saying it is the Canadian Pacific Railway—are getting commissions for
%ominations?—A. Not officers of the railway, sir, not of the Canadian Pacific

ailway.

Q. Officers of steamship companies?—A. No, not speaking of an officer as
being a salaried employee; no, they do not.

Q. What form of publicity do you use in the newspapers in the Old
Country to induce settlers to come to this country?—A. What country?

Q. What advertising do you use in the Old Country to induce settlers to
come to this country, and is it framed in conjunction with the Immigration
Department?—A. You are speaking of the British Isles?

Q. Yes. Is it framed in conjunction with the Immigration Department?—
A. T know we do a lot of advertising in the British Isles, and I am under
the impression that our Traffic Department does some advertising.

Q. You advertise in the Scandinavian countries?—A. We advertise in the
Scandinavian countries to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of those
countries.

Q. And in conjunction with the Immigration Department.-of this country?
Do they know of that advertising, and have they proofs of it?—A. No, it is
not submitted to them.

Q. Could you submit to this Committee a copy of the advertising used in
the Scandinavian countries?—A. I do not think there is any display advertising
in the Scandinavian countries; I do not think it is permitted.

Q. Could you supply copies of the advertising in the British Isles?—A. I
presume we would have it in Montreal. I might have to send to London for it.

By Mr. Fansher (Last Mountain):

Q. I would like to know the regulations regarding an application by a
farmer for unnamed help, and how long those regulations have been in vogue?—
A. The regulations of the Department of Immigration and Colonization?

Q. No, the application of the Canadian Pacific Railway that is filled out
by the station agent, to which you made reference some time ago, where the
farmer applies for an unnamed person from Europe as a farm labourer. What
regulations govern the filling out of that application, and how long have they
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been in vogue?—A. I am sorry, but I do not understand what you mean by the
regulations governing the filling out of it.

Q. I will give you a case in point. A farmer, with whom I am well
acquainted, applied for two Scotch farmers. The Department notified him
that this application was accepted, and that they would be on hand by the
30th of March, or the 5th of April. The fifth of April came round, and no
help arrived. He communicated with the Department by wire, and, as there
was no likelihood of them arriving very soon, he proceeded to get help. In
June, these parties arrived, and they turned out to be two men from London,
England, that had never seen a horse or a farm, or had never been in Scotland.
Now, what regulations govern the farmer making out that application? He
carries opt his part of the contract morally, and then finds that he is left
in the lurch after help has been picked up from the sources available, at that
time?—A. Well, I think I can answer that question by saying that we are
never able to recruit a sufficient number of farm labourers in the British Isles
to fill the applications obtained in Canada.

By Mr. Donnelly :

Q. These men coming from the countries in Europe, do you put them
through a medical examination, and, if so, what is the character of it?—A. Oh,
yes, we do.

Q. Can you give us an idea of what examination you put them through?—
A. I will read you a paragraph contained in a statement prepared by Mr.
William Baird, our Steamship Passenger Traffic Manager and, up to the past
thirty days, our Assistant European Passenger Manager. This was prepared
at my request, and touches on the medical examination. Mr. Baird has been
in intimate touch with conditions on the Continent for a great many years, and
his information is up to the minute. I am reading this because he is more
familiar with the subject than T am. (Reads):

Every immigrant is medically examined, by a local doctor, in the
country of origin, under the direction of the Canadian Pacific. Another
medical examination takes place at the Continental port, under the aus-
pices of the Canadian Pacific, by a Continental doctor. Those immi-
grants who travel to England for embarkation are again medically exam-
ined in England, by the Canadian Pacific, by a British doctor. All
examinations are thorough, and in case of immigrants being deloused
and disinfected, the examination is of a stripped nature. Women attend-
ants are available for the examination of women.

By Mr. Totzke:

Q. Going back to that clause referring to deportation. I understood you
to say that if a man came in, under this scheme of yours, to take work as a
farm labourer, and did not stay at that work, he could be deported?—A. I did
not say that. I am not a lawyer, nor am I an official of the Immigration Depart-
ment, but I believe that the Act provides for deportation in the case of a man
coming into the country through misrepresentation. He signs this statement
on that certificate, a statement in his own language stating that he is coming
here to enter into the occupation of farm labourer, or domestic. If they are
admitted to Canada on that statement, and understanding that that is the only
reason they are admited, if they fail to follow that out, 1t is misrepresentation.
I am not a lawyer, but it looks like misrepresentation to me.

Q. I have a particular case in mind of a man who came into this country—
I do not know whether it was under this scheme or not—but he took employ-
ment as a farm labourer. He left the farm and went into a little village and
started up as a shoe-repairer, and he is making good. Would you consider
that man as being liable to deportation?—A. I understand from you that he
went on the farm whep he first came here?

[Mr. J. N. K. Macalister.]
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Q. Yes.—A. He actually worked on the farm?

Q. I would not say that he worked for any length of time. I think he did
go on the farm when he first came here. Would you say that he was subject
to deportation?—A. No, I do not think so.

Q. He is making good in a little town as a shoe repairer?—A. I do not
think that he is subject to deportation.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. Is your advertising prepared by your Colonization Branch?—A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Acting in conjunction with the Department?—A. No.

Q. Do the Department of Immigration supervise it?—A. No.

Q. It is done entirely on your own responsibility ?—A. Yes.

Q. Is the advertising prepared in Canada or abroad?—A. Our advertising
in the United States is prepared in Canada. The advertising we place in Canada
is prepared in Canada. The advertising used in the British Isles is prepared
at our London Sub-Headquarters.

Q. And your Continental advertising?—A. You cannot advertise in news-
papers, on the Continent, except in Holland.

Q. You have just told us that you advertise, as far as you are permitted,
in the Scandinavian countries?—A. I said we advertised, but I did not mean
that we used newspaper space, because they do not permit it.

Q. Do your branch offices, we will say in Great Britain, refer copies of the
advertising sent out in England to your Department here?—A. Before it is

laced?
p Q. Yes.—A. No. I think I am probably quite correct in saying that almost
every year, when that advertising is placed, Colonel Dennis is abroad, and no
doubt it is submitted to him.

Q. You have copies of the advertising used in your departmental files?—
A. I feel confident that we have.

Q. You will be able to file that?—-A. Yes.

Q. Can you give the Committee any idea of the number of men brought in
by your department last year who were not placed on farms? For example,
those placed in railway work?—A. I could give you that information, sir, but
I am sorry I have not got it here.

Q. You can give us that at the next meeting?—A. Yes.

Q. Do not confine that to railway work—I just gave that as an illustration.
Let us have the number of persons brought in by you last year, and have them
separated according to the employment they took up in Canada.—A. I cannot
give you the exact figures, or the exact total of the men that came to Canada
under our auspices and who did not go into farm work. I can give you the num-
ber that our department placed in other than farm employment, owing to the
exceptional season last spring.

Q. You did place a number of continental immigrants in other work than
farm work, last year?—A. We did.

Q. That is what I am interested in. If you can give us the approximate
number in proportion to the total.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. Does your company consider that they have filled their obligation
when they put a man in contact with farm employment?—A. No, sir.

Q. I think you said before that if the first situation was not satisfactory,
either to the employer or the man, you would endeavour to make a second
arrangement?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. If you do not hear anything about that man, after he has left his first
situation, you have no means of tracing him or knowing what he is doing?—A.
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Every continental colonist brought to Canada, by our department, is given a
pamphlet, in his own language, urging him and telling him that if he needs
another job, rather than going hither and thither on reports of places available,
to communicate with us. We give a list of the distriet offices, and say that
these offices are at his service.

Q. If he does not communicate with you, you cannot follow him up in any
way; you have no means of tracing him?—A. That is a pretty broad statement.
Many of them can be traced, and many cannot.

Q. But you do not follow him up and see how far he is fulfilling his obliga-

_tion, when he expressed a willingness to take up farm employment?—A. We
cannot attempt to follow up individuals. If we do not hear from a man want-
ing further employment, or we do not hear any kicks about that particular man,
from the Department of Immigration and Colonization, or from other sources,
we feel that he has found his place and that he is all right.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Are you under any obligation to find other employment for those men
who do not find farm employment?—A. No, sir.

Q. But you do find them other employment at times?—A. Oh, no, we are
only interested in placing them in farm employment.

Mr. GLe~: It is nearly one o’clock, and I presume we will be adjourning,.
We will probably have the opportunity of hearing this witness again, and I
would like this witness to address himself to this question. There is some feel-
ing throughout the country that there is indiscriminate immigration into Can-
ada of help which is not required. For instance, there is the question of farm
help after the season of the year has passed. A number of people are brought
from the British Isles, or elsewhere, into this country. We can maintain in our
own country the labour that is required for, say, the harvest period, and those
people coming from these other countries, of necessity, become members of the
unemployed. I would like you to address yourself to the question of what rela-
tion this indiscriminate immigration into this country has in connection with
unemployment, and also in connection with the emigration from this country to
the United States. I think there is a general fecling throughout the country
that a good deal of the unemployment is caused by people coming in from these
countries. The feeling is that the railway companies are in this position, that,
when they fulfil their obligation of providing employment for one year, then
they divest themselves of all responsibility, and ultimately these people become
a charge on the country. The feeling is that where there is immigration, it
should be selective immigration of people who are likely to stay in the country
and not swell the ranks of the unemployed. I would like Mr. Macalister to
address himself to that the next time he appears before the Committee.

Mr. Youne (Saskatoon): There have been some suggestions made, and
made pretty widely, that the colonization agents are not making a sufficient
attempt to get immigration from the British Isles. Would Mr. Macalister tell
us something about what his department does in regard to getting immigration
from the British Isles?

The Wirness: That is a long story, and I would rather not go into it
unless I could do so thoroughly.

Mr. Youne (Saskatoon): I would like you to give us a statement on that -
question when you are before the Committee at another time.

Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned until Friday, March 23, at 11 o’clock.
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House or ComMONS,
Tuespay, March 27th, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock, a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The CHalrMAN: At our last meeting we were examining Mr. Macalister
of the C.P.R.

J. N. K. MAcaLisTER recalled.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): Mr. Chairman, before Mr. Macalister
passes on, I would like to clear up, if I may, a matter brought out by a question
asked by Mr. Lucas. The question was, “ Who finances these organizations?”

The CuARMAN: What page is that?

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): Page 144 of March 21st. Mr. Macalister
answered, “ They either finance themselves to some considerable extent, or
receive assistance from our department.” I want to ask Mr. Macalister if that
statement should not have been, “ They finance themselves to some considerable
extent, and receive assistance from our department?”

The Wirness: That would be more correct, yes, sir.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. I have previously asked you regarding certain organizations in Canada
who are not in the thing for progt or personal gain for their organizations, and
you said that there were none; but is it not a fact that there are organizations
in the west—for instance, the Atlantis Colonization at Regina, which is Hun-
garian, I believe, and the Ukranian Organization at Edmonton and Winnipeg,
and I think also at Saskatoon—which get paid $5 on each application they
receive for persons coming out?—A. Well, Dr. Edwards, I cannot give you a
yes or no answer to that question. I think you have it a little mixed up. If
my memory is correct, I was speaking particularly of the local colonization
boards when I said that they were not performing this service for personal gain.

Q. But there are such organizations as I have mentioned, such as the
Atlantis, out there?—A. Yes.

Q. And the Uranian?—A. Yes.

Q. Do they make cash nominations?—A. Yes.

Q. Do they get $5 apiece?—A. What do you mean by “ cash nominations?”

Q. Do they make nominations of persons to come to this country?—A. No,
they do not.

Q. Do they receive a fee for each application?—A. Not applications made
by themselves, no.

Q. They are not making any money out of it?—A. That is rather a com-
plicated subject.

Q. If you do not know whether they are or not — —A. I answered your
question. I said that they are not making applications themselves. Let me
-éxplain that to you. There are organizations and individuals who obtain nomin-
.ations from friends or relatives living in Canada of people on the continent
whom they desire to come forward and join them in Canada. If those individuals
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complete the nomination and hand it to an individual or a company or an
ssociation for the bringing forward of that continental, and he does come
forward and joins them, they are paid a commission for their service.

Q. By whom?—A. By the steamship line.

Q. Which is a part of your colonization organization?—A. No, sir.

Q. It is under the C.P.R.—A. We have a steamship department, yes.

Q. Why do you apparently put the steamship lines in a different class from
your railway lines in your immigration activities’—A. We do not.

Q. From your answer that they were under the steamship lines, I was under
the impression that that is true, so far as the colonization policy is concerned.—
A. The Department of Colonization and Development has no connection with
either the steamship department or the rail department.

Q. You cannot get along without them in connection with your immigration
work?—A. Yes, there are other steamship lines and other railways.

Q. You mean by that of course that the C.P.R. could carry on immigration
activities and bring the immigrants out by C.N.R. steamship, for instance, and
run 1t(,ihem over the C.N.R. lines. Of course, you could, but I doubt if you
would.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Has it come to your notice on any occasion that nominations made to
bring in immigrants have been found on the arrival of the immigrants to be
fictitious nominations, resulting in immigrants being dispersed generally, and
not, to the names and addresses of the alleged nominations under which they
were brought in?—A. Well, I can only say in reply that I cannot name any
particular instance at this moment, of which I have personal knowledge, but
there is no doubt that that has happened.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. What is the amount paid?—A. On nominations?

Q. Yes—A. $5, after the arrival of the colonist in Canada.

Q. Paid by the C.P.R.?7—A. Paid by the Steamship Department.

Q. How many of these organizations have you working in the west on that
commission basis?—A. I cannot tell you, sir.

Q. Approximately.—A. That is a function of the Steamship Department.
The Steamship Department do pay this commission to certain individuals and
certain organizations who are interested only in colonization work. That is
they are not interested in any other phase of steamship activities other than the
bringing forward of colonists or immigrants. Therefore, they pay that com-
mission to them, and they also pay it to their own steamship agents. All other
steamship lines do the same thing.

Q. Are not the steamship lines under the general C.P.R. system—the whole
big organization of the C.P.R.?—A. Yes.

Q. And any moneys paid out in this way in commissions are really out of
the funds of the C.P.R.?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Mr. Macalister, there is no doubt but what these boards have been
organized on the railway’s initiative?—A. Largely, yes.

Q. There has been no concealment about it?—A. None whatever; we are
proud of it.

Q. With the idea of colonization?—A. Yes.

Q. Who is the gentleman who has been acting in connection with your
colonization boards in the west?—A. In the west, the whole colonization organi-
zation is supervised and superintended by Mr. C. A. Van Scoy, our Superinten-
uent of Colonization at Winnipeg. '
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Q. Mr. Komer was the first man to do the work of organizing the
Colonization boards?—A. No, he was not the first. He was interested in part
of our organization at one tlme

Q. Did he engage in the work of organizing these colonization boards?—A.
Yes.

Q. Then Mr. Williams took it up?—A. You are speaking of Saskatoon?

Q. Yes.—A. Yes.

Q. In Saskatchewan?—A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Van Scoy— —A. He is Superintendent of Colonization. Mr.
Williams reports to Mr. Van Scoy at Winnipeg.

Q. And is it the general arrangement that these organizations are given
office space by the Canada Colonization Association?—A. Very, very few of
them.

Q. Some are and some are not?—A. Yes.

Q. Is there any allowance made to them for cables, telegrams and so forth?
Will you tell the Committee the arrangements between the Canada Colonization
Association and these local boards?—A. There are only three or four coloni-
zation associations which are functioning directly with the Canada Colonization
Association. The only connection between the Canada Colonization Associ-
ation proper and those boards is that the Association gives them office space and
functions in the settlement or the establishment upon farms of families that they
have been instrumental in bringing to Canada.

Q. Who have been instrumental?—A. The Colonization Boards.

Q. The local boards?—A. These are more than local boards affiliated with
them. They are more or less engaged in a country-wide campaign.

Q. You mean the Canada Colonization Association?—A. No, I mean the
Colonization Boards, we will call them, to differentiate from the Colonization
Association. :

Q. The Canada Colonization Association is the Association you described
the other day, which was taken over, if I can put it that way, by the Canadian
Pacific Railway ?—A. Yes.

Q. The Colonization Boards are boards which were established, largely on
the initiative of the Canadian Pacific colonization agents, or Colonization
Department?—A. Yes.

Q. In order to assist in placements, and to ascertain what the demand for
immigrants would be in the various localities?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is the assistance given by the Colonization Association, or by the Cana-
dian Pacifie, direct to these various Colonization Boards?—A. It varies, but,
as a rule, I would say that we give them a monthly grant, which is used in
defraying the expenses of the Board; we assume the travelling expenses of certain
officials of the Board. Now, we w111 have to branch away from the Coloniza-
tion Department, and come to the Steamship Department. The Steamship
Department pay them a commission upon such prepaid tickets as their organiza-
tion, throughout the provinces, may obtain for the bringing of colonists from
the Continent to Canada. They also pay them a commission upon such
nominations as their organization may obtain from friends or relatives in
Canada, to bring colonists forward from the Continent, and after they arrive
in Canada.

Q. That commission is conditional on the nominee actually becoming an
immigrant?—A. Yes, exactly.

Q. Is there any ‘other assistance that the Canadian Pacific Railway glves"
—A. No, I think that covers the Boards, in a general way.

Q. Is the Colonization Association, or the Canadian Pacific Railway, con-
nected in any way with the Lutheran Immigration Board?—A. Yes. They have
their office in the offices of the Canada Colonization Association, and we assist
them in the way I have outlined.
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Q. Have you an agent, or a board, at Regina, and, if so, who is in charge?—
A. There is an association at Regina, co-operating with our Department, the
Atlantis Hungarian Board, with Dr. Ujvary in charge

Q. Could you give us an idea of the number of those boards? Are there
not fifty, or sixty, or seventy, something like that?—A. If I remember correctly,
there are 138 active at the moment.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. I thought you said the other day, that sixty per cent of the immigrant
families, that come in and settle in Manitoba are Mennonites?—A. No, I did
not say that.

Q. Could you give us a list of the families settled on farms in Manitoba,
with the countries from which they come, and the nationalities?—A. I cannot
give it to you now; I would have to go to our records for that.

Q. Could you supply a list of the families that are settled on farms in
Manitoba?—A. The names of the families?

Q. Yes. Those brought in by your Company?—A. Are you referring to
our whole Department, or are vou referring to the Canada Colonization Associa-
tion?

Q. T would presume it would be through your Canada Colonization Associ-
ation, as well as through your own Company?—A. I think I can give you the
number of families right now, for last year. Last year, there were 164 families,
settled by the Canada Colonization Association, in the province of Manitoba.

Q. I asked you a question the other day, if you could tell me where the
families come from originally, and your answer was that the majority of them
come from the Continent. I want to know if you can supply a list of the
families settled on the farm, showing the country from which they came?—
A. In Manitoba?

Q. Yes—A. Yes, I can obtain those figures from Winnipeg.

Q. How does your Company arrive at the number of men that are wanted
in any district?—A. By the applications received.

Q. I asked you a question the other day with regard to the payment of
five dollars to the Organization, for every application for people coming from
the Continent, and one dollar for those coming from the British Isles. Have
you addressed yourself to that question, since the last meeting, as to whether
that is true or not?—A. I do not remember the question.

Q. I repeat it only as information received, that some of these organiza-
tions, if they send applications in to your Company, will get five dollars for
every nomination of an immigrant from the Continent, and one dollar for
immigrants from the British Isles. Have you any knowledge of that?—A.
Well, I explained it a few moments ago. The payment of five dollars on
nominations is by the Steamship Department. I am not just sure that I
understand your question.

Q. I am told that your agents will ask some of these organizations that
have been formed in Manitoba for nominations, and if they provide nomina-
tions for immigrants from the Continent they will be paid five dollars, but
for nominations from the British Isles they will only be paid one dollar?—
A. If they obtain a nomination from a farmer farming a farm in Canada,
and the individual named in that nomination arrives in Canada and goes to
‘the nominator, they are paid a five dollar commission for their service in that
connectic, by the Steamship Department.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. That is from the Continent, from the so-called non-preferred countries,
under the railways agreement.
[Mr. J. N. K. Macalister.]
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Q. And if they come from Great Britain, what are they paid in that case?
—A. I am not quite positive, but I believe that there is a regulation that for
every nominated colonist from the British Isles, coming under the assisted
passage rate, there is a commission of $2.50 paid. The commission is smaller
because of the contribution made by the Canadian Pacific Railway to effect
the £2 rate. You must understand that this is a steamship matter.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Why should there be a discrimination? You pay five dollars for
immigrants from the Continent, and $2.50, as you say, for those from the
British Isles? What is the reason for that diserimination?—A. You are ask-
ing me to answer a question that pertains entirely to the Steamship Depart-
ment. I presume the reason is that the colonist arriving from the Continent
pays us an average of from $125 to $140 for a ticket, and the colonist arriv-
ing from the British Isles pays £2, or $10; it would seem quite reasonable.

Q. Have you taken the position, in Manitoba, that with these organiza-
tions who make the nominations— —A. Pardon me, sir, they do not make
the nomination. The only man that can nominate is the farmer farming a
farm;- the organization cannot nominate.

Q. But, as a matter of actual fact, is it not true that these nominations
really come through the organizations that are formed in the particular dis-
tricts in the provinces; is that not what actually happens?—A. Some of them
do.

Q. Is it not the practice for the parties to come to the organization, and
the nominations are made by it?—A. No, the majority of them do not come
in that way.

Q. Have you any instances of a single individual writing to your com-
pany and nominating a person, and getting five dollars for the nomination?
—A. No, because we do not pay the individual the five dollars.

Q. Whom do you pay?—A. The Steamship Department pay their agents.

Q. And who are they?—A., Scattered throughout the west.

Q. Are they appointed as secretaries of these organizations?—A. No. The
Steamship Department has nothing to do with them. The Steamship Depart-
ment’s agents are men in the steamship agency business through the west, or
throughout the east, for that matter.

Q. My information is that agents from the Colonization Department will
go through Manitoba and ask that organizations be formed in districts. They
are formed and secretaries are appointed, and the secretary gets fifty cents
for each nomination, and also gets free transportation in the province, and
all nominations come through that organization to this man, who is, in effect,
your agent. Is that a true statement of the organization?—A. That is a
true statement of part of the organization, part of our Colonization Depart-
n}xlent,ﬂki)ut it is not a true statement of the manner in which nominations reach
the office.

Q. But you are admitting that where an organization is formed, and the
secretary appointed, in all probability the nominations come through that
organization and not through the individual farmers; you admit that that is
the practice?—A. Well, it is not a question of admitting it. I will try and
explain it to you, if I can. The organization you have described is the local
Colonization Board?

Q. Yes?—A. That local board has a secretary, or a Colonization Agent, as
we call them. He is the man that looks after the detail work of the local
Colonization Board, handles the applications and the office work, and he is more
active than the other members. TIf a farmer wants to bring a friend from the
Continent, and there is a local Colonization Board in his neighbourhood, he
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naturally goes to the secretary of that Board. He says to that secretary, “there
is a man in Poland that I want to bring to Canada, how will I go about it?”
The colonization agent of that Board has nomination forms, and he says, “here
is the way it is done.” He writes up that form and the man signs it, He then
goes before a Notary Public and makes an affidavit, and he has it endorsed
by a bank manager or a justice of the peace. The colonization agent then
sends it to either the district office, or to our sub-headquarters at Winnipeg.
Winnipeg sends it down to Montreal, and the Montreal office either approve or
refuse it, and from there it goes to the Continent.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. And he gets his five dollars?>—A. Goes to the Continental office, and
they endeavour to get in touch with the man that is wanted, or the family that
is wanted, or the woman that is wanted. If they are successful in getting in
touch with that colonist, and the colonist proceeds to Canada, then the Coloniza-
_ tion Board is paid the five dollars on that nomination.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. The Colonization Board?—A. Yes; by the Steamship Department.

Q. The local Colonization Board?—A. Yes.

Q. They are paid the five dollars?—A. Yes.

Q. So it might happen that if the local Colonization Board wished to create
a fund for themselves they could get as many nominations as they liked, send
them in to you, and then you will follow them out, bring in the immigrant, and
they will get the five dollars? Do you not see the abuse that is likely to occur
with such a procedure?—A. I would, if you could explain to me how they will
get as many nominations as they liked.

Q. If the nomination is made, say, from outside of Winnipeg, for a citizen
coming from the Continent, a period of two, three or four months is likely to
elapse before he comes in, and he is just in the position, as actually does happen,
of being simply a labourer. Then you come along and your Colonization Board
places him on the farm—you know, you have already said that you do not know
where they go—and your duty is then fulfiled?—A. No, you do not understand
it, if you will pardon me, sir.

Q. I asked you at the last meeting if you would address yourself to this
question: What is the cause of a good deal of the unemployment throughout
Canada to-day, and what is the cause of a good deal of the exodus that takes
place from Canada to-day, if it is not through immigrants coming in here who
are only under your authority for a year, and then go to fill the ranks of the
unemployed in the cities?—A. The nomination is not executed, it is not signed,
or it is not made by the local Colonization Board; the nomination is made by
the farmer farming a farm in Canada. He states that he wants the nominee
to come to his farm; he agrees to employ him on his arrival, and the local
Colonization Board only enters into it as the instrument through which the
transaction is brought about, in having the nominations prepared, ready for the
farmer’s signature; in passing it on to wus, after it is signed, and in assisting
in the general work of seeing that the nominee goes to the farmer when he
arrives.

Q. Do you place annually, with the same men, immigrants from the Conti-
nent? That is, you will get a nomination from A.B. one year, and you get
another nomination the following year from the same man; have you any
record of that?—A. No, I do not know of any.

Q. Can you make inquiries and find out if the same parties have made
nominations, and obtained men, annually; could you find that out from the
records of your Department?—A. For how many years back?
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Q. I do not want to go back very far. All I want is the general principle
of it. I believe that men are making nominations, get the men out here, and
then pay no attention to them, and they go to fill the ranks of the unemployed.
I want to find out if the same men are doing it, and thus abusing the practice?
—A. In the thousands of nominations that are made each year, there is no
doubt that there are some repeats, it cannot be otherwise, but I can say that
every possible restriction and care is being taken to sece that it does not happen.
Our whole organization is bent towards that end, to have that nomination system
work on a practical and proper basis.

Q. I believe that is the intention of your Department, but I am anxious
to know if the co-operation between your Department, and the Immigration
Department, is such that there will be no flooding of this country with men
that do not go to work on farms. I want to know if you can give us a list of
the men who have made nominations annually for immigrants, say, in the
an have our records checked, and see if
there were men that made nominations this year, who also made them last
year; that is physically possible.

Q. Say, for a period of five years?—A. This has not been in operation
for five years.

Q. How long has it been in operation?—A. Since the late fall of 1925;
say, 1926 and 1927.

Mr. Cauan: I would like very much if Mr. Macalister were permitted
to address himself to the general questions which were asked by Mr. Glen at
the last meeting. I understood that Mr. Macalister was to give us a general
statement as to the means employed to secure immigrants from the British
Isles.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: Mr. Macalister has said that when a farmer makes
an application to one of the agents, acting for one of these Colonization Boards
in the West, that he wants a Pole, we will say, if the man comes out and is
placed on the farm, then a commission of five dollars is paid. If he asks for
a man from the British Isles, and that man is brought out and placed on the
farm, the commission is $2.50.

The Wirness: I qualified my $2.50 statement, Dr. Edwards, by saying
that I believed that was correct. That is a steamship function entirely, and
something about which I cannot speak positively.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. Would not the same organization, bringing men from the Continent,
be also bringing men from the British Isles? Would they be likely to confine
themselves to any particular nationality?—A. So far as nominations are con-
cerned, I have tried to make it clear that it is not the organization that brings
about the nomination, it is the farmer. The organization accepts the nomina-
tion from the farmer desiring a man from the British Isles, or from the Con-
tinent.

By Mr. Carmichael:

Q. You have stated that the Steamship Department pays that commission
to the local Colonization Board. What disposition is made of that, more
particularly with regard to the farmer that nominates the immigrant; what
proportion of that $5 fee gets into the hands of the farmer doing the nominat-
ing?—A. My best information is that these commissions are expended by the
local Colonization Boards in their colonization activities, and that these fees
do not nearly cover the ordinary expenses they are put to in receiving and
caring for the colonists that come in to their districts.
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Q. Your statement is that the farmer who does the nominating of the
immigrant, either from the Continent or Great Britain, gets nothing for such
nomination?—A. Oh, absolutely, he does not; he gets the Colonist.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Is it not true that previously the fee used to be paid on nominations,
and it is only within a year or so that the fee has been paid conditional on the
arrival of the immigrant?—A. Our Company never paid a nomination fee
until the arrival of the colonist.

Q. Never did?—A. No.

Q. I thought you said there was some condition attached to the immigrant
from Great Britain, and also to the immigrant from the Continent, and that
it was only since March 1st, a year ago, that the fee was made conditional
on the arrival of the immigrant?—A. Not so far as I know, Mr. Ralston.

Q. When you were telling us about these things, I suppose you were telling
.us what your general ins‘ructions were? Do you know, personally, about
these matters, or are you teliing us what, your general plan is as a working
project?—A. I think I am rather familiar with the working of the whole
organization. I spent a good many years in the West, as Superintendent of
Colonization at Winnipeg, and I had direct supervision over all of these organ-
izations.

Q. And you say that a fee has never been paid on the nomination itself?—
A. Not by our Company, sir.

Q. By your Company, by the Steamship Department, or whoever it is
gaygﬁthe fee?—A. When I say, “by our Company,” I mean the Canadian

acific.

Q. Are you sure that nominations are always made by the farmer on
written forms?—A. Oh, they must be.

Q. Is it not the practice to ascertain from the farmer, say, by telephone,
during the winter; what men he wants, and then to make some sort of a requi-
sition on your Company, without the formality of an actual signature?—A.You
are getting away from the question of nominations.

Q. Perhaps I am.—A. That is an application for unnamed persons, as we
call it. In that way we arrive at what we call blanket orders, which are sent
to our Headquarters in Montreal, and from there to our organization on the
Continent. The total is arrived at by the number of applications gathered by
our organization in various parts of the Dominion.

Q. The application need not be in writing?—A. When it comes to us, it is
in writing.

Q. T am talking about the application from the fellow who is supposed to
want the man?—A. I could not say that it must be in writing, but I will say
that it usually is in writing.

Q. Have you made an investigation of the various Boards to ascertain
if it is in writing?—A. Yes, we have.

Q. Have you not had a good many disappointments? That is to say,
the Board would send in a written application to you saying they wanted
150 men, based on the verbal applications which they had received, and then
you would find that you were not able to place those men?—A. We have only
found that to be the case in exceptional circumstances; it is not at all usual.

Q. What do you mean by exceptional circumstances?—A. One exceptional
circumstance was the late season last spring. It was not that the men were
not wanted and needed in the particular distriet, but they arrived at an earlier
date than they were required, owing to the lateness of the season. Let me go
a little farther back. These men have got to be recruited in the British Isles,
or on the Continent, and it takes months, from the time of the application to
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the arrival of the colonist. We can only judge, or the applicant can only judge,
the probable date at which he will require that colonist.

Q. I suppose the number of applications greatly exceed the number of
nominations?—A. Very much.

Q. Do you not think that it would be better to have an actually signed
application from the farmer, to give an additional assurance that the proposed
immigrant would be placed when he arrived?—A. Well, it would reduce immi-
gration to Canada very materially.

Q. T understand that, but would it not prevent this difficulty of having more
people than jobs, when they come to Canada?—A. It would probably result in
there being more jobs than there were people.

Q. I am asking you if it would not correct what is complained about,
namely, that people who come here are not able to be placed as the Colonization
Boards expected?—A. Well, Colonel Ralston, I will say this: if you insist upon
an application from a responsible farmer being signed before any effort is made
to recruit or bring forward that farm labourer, there certainly will not be any
unemployment of farm labour in Canada, because the farmers of the Dominion
will not have anywhere nearly the number they require.

Q. Then, you do not think that it is practical to have written applications
for famm labour?—A. In all instances, I do not.

Q. In what instances do you think it is?—A. I think it is desirable to
get them to the fullest possible extent.

Q. That is the thing which creates the difficulty, namely, the surplus of
farm labourers over the number of positions, the fact that the farmer has not
made a written application, and there has been a misunderstanding perhaps
and the job for which he made application for a man has been filed—A. I do
not think there has been a surplus.

Q. Do you find many Colonists’ Boards not taking the quota for which
they asked?—A. During the past winter we have not had an application at
any of our district offices from men desiring employment on farms to whom
we have not been able to give a job on a farm within a reasonable length of
time, providing they would work for the going wages for winter employment.

Q. What do you mean by “district offices”?—A. The ones I mentioned the
other day, Toronto, Montreal, Winnipeg, Saskatoon, Moose Jaw, Edmonton,
Calgary and Vancouver.

Q. You do not mean the Colonist Boards?—A. No, the district offices.

Q. Have you not had a number of Colonist Boards which were not able
to absorb anywhere near the number of applications that they sent to the head
office? Of course, it would be in the Spring when the men would come.—A. Last
spring there were Colonization Boards which could not absorb or place the
number of men that they had applied for at the time these men arrived. They
were able to place them later.

Q. Are you quite satisfied about that?—A. Yes, quite.

Q. Have you any idea of the number of these men temporarily employed
in railway work, who were afterwards placed in farm work, and who are still at
farm work?—A. No, I have not.

Q. You have never checked up the percentage?—A. Of the particular men
placed in railway work?—A. No. ;

Q. Of the men for whom farm jobs were not available when they came,
and who were placed in temporary work and afterwards placed in farm work:
have you any idea of the percentage of these men still in farm work?—A.
Almost all of them were placed in farm work, and we have not checked them
since to know whether they are still on the farms.
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By Mr. McMillan:

Q. You have no means of knowing if they are still on the farm?—A. Nor
have I any means of knowing that they are not.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. How many single farm workers did your railway and steamship com-
panies bring out in 1927 from the non-preferred countries?—A. I cannot give you
the number.

Q. Can you supply that information?—A. I can supply you the number
of souls who moved from non-preferred countries to Canada under our occu-
pational certificates, but I cannot tell you the particular proportion of those who
came for farm labour.

Q. My question is, can you tell me how many single—that is, unmarried—
farm workers were brought out by the C.P.R. railway or steamship lines from
non-preferred countries during the year 1927, and can you also inform me how
" many families were brought out in 1927 from non-preferred countries?—A. That
is available from our records, yes.

Q. You do not have it here?>—A. No.

Q. Will you take note of that and supply the record with it?—A. Yes.

Q. I would also like to have you give me this information, if you pagssibly
can: How many British farm labourers experienced and inexperienced, did your
railway and steamship companies bring to Canada, and also how many families,
exclusive of those brought out for settlement under the government’s 3,000
family scheme, did you bring out? You will see from these two questions and
from those 1 asked at first that one applies to the Continent and other applies
to the British Isles, and I am sure that my object is apparent to you. I under-
stand you have not that information under your hand?—A. I have not.

Q. You can obtain it.—A. It must be available from our records.

Q. How did the British farm workers that you brought out turn out? That
is, how satisfied were they to conform with the settlement arrangements that
vou made for them? If you made settlement arrangements for them to go on
the farm, did they conform fairly well to them, or did they show a disposition
after getting here not to conform with the original idea of bringing them out?
Did they disappear or show a disposition not to carry out that end of the arrange-
ment?—A. You are speaking of the British?

Q. Yes, the British farm workers—A. Oh, I would say that by far the
greater majority of them went into the employment for which they were brought
out.

Q. There would be some who floated away, of course?—A. Yes, some. There
must, be some leakage.

Q. Did you bring out as many farm workers last year from Great Britain
as you desired?—A. We brought all we could obtain.

Q. Could you have found places for more if you could have obtained them?
—A. Yes, sir. I will say that we brought all the experienced and partly ex-
perienced men that we could obtain.

Q. How many families do you expect to bring out this year from the
British Isles?—A. I cannot tell you, now.

Q. Are you having any difficulty in recruiting in the British Isles? Do you
meet with any difficulties over there?—A. Lots of them. :

Q. Perhaps an answer to this question will give me an answer to another.
What, in your opinion, stands in the way of British emigration to Canada?
You say that you are meeting with lots of difficulties there in connection with
a large number of British people—A. In making the statement that we are
meeting with lots of difficulties, I refer to the fact that when you go to solicit
colonists in any country you meet with lots of difficulties. It is hard work.
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Q. What, in your opinion, stands in the way of getting British immigration
to Canada? Are there any outstanding things that face you as impediments,
which could be removed? Ior instance—--and perhaps I can make myself more
clear—take the case of a man who has been a farm worker on a farm in England
and who has been attracted by the literature and propaganda concerning this
country, and he wants to come to Canada. Does he have to get references?
I understand that he has to get two references from former employers.—A. I
believe so

Q. That would be one difficulty?—A. It might.

Q. He would not want to go to the man for whom he was working at the
time and ask him for a reference, or probably he would be entirely out of a
job. That would be one difficulty. Then, in regard to the medical examination:
do any of them complain about that? Are there difficulties in that regard?—
A. The present medical examination has been in effect slightly over thirty days,
and I personally am not familiar with it.

Q. Yes, it has hardly been in effect long enough to test it thoroughly, but
under this scheme a man is examined medically, and then he is examined again
at a different time for his civil examination. They do not take place at the
same time, by the same person?—A. I believe they take place sometimes at
the same time, and sometimes at different times.

Q. Would that not be a difficulty, in your opinion? Supposing a man is
a working man and has to get leave from his job and go and take the civil
examination. Then he has to get leave to take his medical examination, and has
to take his family with him, his wife and children, taking the children from
school, and all that sort of thing. Are those not difficulties which might be
overcome?—A. That is a broad question. I know what you are after, Doctor.
Mr. Chairman, might I answer that in my own way?

The CuAmrMAN: 1 think so.

The Wirness: When I was here before I described to you our manner of
getting together applications and nominations for colonists, and I think I
moved them down to Montreal. Now, we could move them to London. I would
like, first of all, to have given you an idea of the organization we have in the
British Isles for obtaining colonists. We have the applications and the nomina-
tions from residents in Canada for people, agriculturists they desire brought
from the British Isles. We have the organization to get in touch with the people
in the British Isles. We have obtained inquiries by various means—large num-
bers of them. It becomes a matter of salesmanship. If T might use an ordinary
expression I believe that we all know that the agriculturists of the British Isles
are not “falling over each other” in an effort to get to Canada. We have to
persuade them to come to Canada; we have to sell Canada to them; we have
to sell the idea of their going to Canada and we have to sell the advantages to
be obtained by migrating to Canada. The members of our staff call on the
inquirers and endeavour to do what I have told you, that is, to convince them
that it is to their advantage to go to Canada, and they finally get them to the
point where they say, “Yes, we will go to Canada,” and they sign the applica-
tion, That brings you squarely up against this contentious subject of medical
and civil inspection, and what I want to say on this subject is not said in any
sense as a criticism of any man, or any set of men, or any department. Any
suggestion I may make is made purely as a constructive suggestion and emanates
from my long experience in this work. I have spent the last twenty-one years
of my life in trying to induce colonists to come to Canada, and I want to say
this, that just as you reduce the time between the time that the man signs his
application or says that he wants to come to Canada, and the time. that he is
civilly and medically examined, and you tell him he can go—to that extent
you are increasing the percentage of the men who come. :

8592719

[Mr. J. N. K. Macalister]



258 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac) :

Q. That is exactly the point I am after— —A. I presume, in view of the
fact that the present arrangement has been in effect for only slightly over thirty
days, it is more or less only being tried out and is subject to revision. I make
that suggestion from my experience as a way in which conditions may be
improved. If you shorten the time, it will help.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:
Q. You mean when the notion is still with them?—A. Exactly.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards (Frontenac):

Q. My information is—and correct me if I am wrong—that in the case of
Australia there is less “red tape”, if I may use that expression, that is, that
the time between the application being received and the whole thing dealt with
and the man ready to go on the boat, is in the case of Australia very, very much
less than in those coming to Canada.—A. You are going beyond me, Doctor;
I do not know.

Q. I understand, for instance, there is only one reference required.—A. I
don’t know.

Q. The point in my mind, Mr. Macalister, is this; that just as you extend
the time, with the medical examination one time and the civil examination at
another time, and then the reference of the whole matter down to London to
the head office, and the time coming back, keeping the applicant in a state of
suspense—as you lengthen out that time you are adding red tape to the whole
business and decreasing the chance of getting that man. It seems to me that the
shorter the time between his application and the time that you can get him on
the boat, or knows he is going, the more you will favour immigration. My own
view is that there is too much red tape, which I believe could be considerably
lessened.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. I would like you to tell me what the qualifications are for a farm
labourer.—A. You mean what a man must be?

Q. There has been a good deal of talk this morning about bringing out
farm labourers. How do you decide a man is a farm labourer? Must he have
any qualifications?—A. A man is a farm labourer who wants to work on a farm
and is physically able to do so.

Q. Whether he had ever been on a farm or not?—A. Well, in that case he
would be a “ would-be ” farm labourer.

Q. Then all the qualification that is necessary is for him to say that he
wants to work on a farm?—A. Oh, no.

By Mr. Spotton:
Q. You do not take him out to see whether he can plough, or shear sheep?—
A. Do you want the qualifications of an experienced farm labourer?

By Mr. Coote:

Q. No, I want to know what you mean when you say that a man is a
farm labourer. I understand you bring people out here because you have
applications for farm labourers. How do you know that these people are farm
labourers?—A. My definition of a farm labourer would be a man who is work-
ing or has worked on a farm for wages.

By Mr. Glenn:
Q. For how long?—A. A month.
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By Mr. Coote:

Q. May I ask you another question? Are all these people who are brought
out as farm labourers able to meet the qualifications you have just stated?—
A. No, because we have many applications from people willing to accept inex-
perienced men as farm labourers.

Q. Then, would it not be right to say that the only qualification you require
from them is to have them say that they are willing to work on a farm?—A. No,
I would say the qualification we require is that they meet *he qualifications
demanded by the applicant.

By Mr. Glenn:

Q. Mr. Macalister, in regard to immigrants coming from the Continent:
are all these immigrants on nomination or application?—A. Both.

Q. I think you said the other day that you would endeavour to get some of
the advertisements which were put out on the Continent. Have you been able
to get them?—A. No, I said we were not permitted to advertise on the Con-
tinent.

Q. Do you advertise?—A. Not on the Continent, except in Holland. I
presume you mean newspaper advertisements?

Q. Yes. You do that?—A. Not on the Continent, except in Holland.

Q. In the Scandinavian countries?—A. I believe I can say no to that. We
may be permitted to use some certain forms of newspaper advertising in certain
Scandinavian countries, but as a rule we are not permitted.

Q. You do advertise in Great Britain?—A. Yes, I have a bundle of those
here.

Q. Will you file them?—A. Yes.

Q. In regard to those coming from the Continent, how do they get their
applications or nominations confirmed? Is it done by your office there?—
A. You are speaking of non-preferred countries?

Q. Yes.—A. These nominations are either approved or refused at the head-
quarters in Montreal.

Q. How do you arrive at the number of men annually required in Canada?
You have your nominations from Canada and know these are to be placed?—
A. Yes.

Q. Are there not a great many people for whom there is no nomination—
—A. Yes.

Q. How do you arrive at the number required?—A. We start in about the
1st of October and make a careful survey, and start out our various organiza-
tions and staffs to accept applications and get in touch with various means
of placing farm labourers, and we finally arrive at an approximate number.
We never arrive at a definite total figure. The requisitions are sent overseas
from time to time, as the various numbers are arrived at here.

Q. You set your organization to work to secure the number of immigrants
to come to this country?—A. Yes.

Q. Is any communication given to the Department of Immigration as to
the results at which you arrive, and as to what you think the necessities for
Canada are?—A. So far as the British colonists are concerned, yes. We are
in conference constantly with the Department of Immigration and Coloniza-
tion, but if you mean to ask if we go to them and say that we are going to
bring in a certain number of men from the Continent during the year 1928,
I would say no.

Q. There is no payment made to anybody on the Continent for immi-
grants?—A. In some Continental countries, not our Department, but our
steamship department pay a commission to the local agents for gathering up
and handling these men.
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Q. The same way as they do in this country?—A. I do not know what the
commission is over there.

Q. But there is a payment made?—A. In a majority of the Continental
countries, there is not. I believe that only in Roumania, and possibly in Jugo-
Slovakia—but I am not positive of that—our steamship department may use
commission agents to some extent, but I think in the other non-preferred
countries, they are prohibited by law.

Q. Is the nomination made by the residents in Europe or only by residents
of this country?—A. There are no nominations made in Europe.

Q. There are only the applications?>—A. There is the application of the
man who wants to come to Canada, who comes to our office and says that he
wants to go.

Q. Where is the 85 paid?>—A. On the Continent?

Q. Yes—A. It is paid to the steamship agent to whom he goes. In
Roumania, I know the steamship department use commission agents. The
Colonist who wants to come to Canada might go to that steamship office and
if, after going through the usual routine, he was finally accepted and bought a
ticket to Canada, the commission agent would obtain a commission on that
ticket.

Q. As a general proposition—supposing there are applications from men
in Europe who wish to come to Canada, and they are dumped down in Canada,
having fulfilled the requirements for entry: would that not mean that there
would be an overflow of these for the jobs which were likely to present them-
selves in Canada? I asked you at the last meeting if you would address
yourself to this question as to whether or not the overflow which you are
bringing into this country has not a considerable effect on the unemployment
in this country.—A. To start with, in your question you are assuming some-
thing that does not happen, because no matter how many colonists there are
on the Continent who may make application to our steamship department
to come to Canada—speaking of non-preferred countries—none can come
until they have passed our Certificate Issuing Officer—in speaking of “ ours”,
I mean our Department of Colonization and Development—and can convince
them that they are of the proper class to fill the applications which are avail-
able, and are sent forward only with his consent to fill those applications.

By Mr. Totzke:

Q. And you bring no immigrants from the non-preferred countries except
those for which you have either applications or nominations?—A. What do
you mean by ‘ applications ”.

Q. You have a certain number of applications for farm labourers from
non-preferred countries?—A. What do you mean by “ applications ”.

Q. A farmer would take an application to your Colonization Board,
saying he wants a man on his farm, and you place that with other applications
and send them to the head office, and they govern you as to the number you
are to bring from the non-preferred countries?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. You do not bring in any except the number covered by the applica-.
tions?—A. The number which are covered by applications, but if you are
asking me to say that we have in our hands a signed individual application
for each man—

By Mr. Totzke:
Q. No, I don’t mean that—A. No? All right.
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Q. The idea is that you have a certain number of applications for farm
labourers gathered by your local board, say, a thousand, then you would bring
no more than the thousand?—A. That is quite right.

By Mr. Carmichael:

Q. Does your Association receive any grant from the Immigration Depart-
ment, for carrying on this work?—A. No.

Q. You are financed in what way?—A. By the Canadian Pacific Railway.

Q. Does the Canadian Pacific Railway receive any grant from the Immi-
gration Depariment?—A. No.

Q. You receive a return, for the expenses you are put to in connection
with colonization, in an indireet way, by having the settlers on your own lands,
or on your own lines?—A. By building up the agricultural districts along our
lines.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. They will be prospective freight producers?—A. Exactly.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. The question was asked you a while ago as to whether the farm
labourers you brought out were satisfactory, and I think you said that they
were in general. I wonder if you have any means of ascertaining that, or just
how much information you have on that point?—A. Well, the ones that are
not satisfactory, we hear about.

Q. A case was brought to my attention this winter—I may say that it is
not, by any means, a new one—where six men were trying to find refuge in
one of the railway pumphouses—that is a place that is always warmed up in
the wintertime. These men were all brought in last year by the railway, as
agricultural workers. They claimed that they could not get any work, and I
think, probably, they were right. In your opinion, are cases like that unavoid-
able, if we are to have sufficient agricultural workers?—A. Well, yes, broadly
speaking, those instances must occur if we are to colonize this country. I
think that those men would be there, not because there was no work available,
but because of their inability to understand or speak our language, and their
strangeness in the country. They were unable to get in touch with any pos-
sible work. :

Q. A great many of them are not really competent agricultural workers,
and in slack seasons they are the ones that find it difficult to get employment.
Does that agree with your opinion?—A. Are you speaking of British colonists,
or Continental? i

Q. Both—A. T do not think that there are many Continental colonists
coming in that have not had experience in agricultural work. There is no
doubt that some slipped through, but I think the number is very small. They
were strange to our farming methods, and, of course, they are not as competent
farm help as the man that has farmed, or has been a farm labourer, in Canada
for a period of years. :

Q. And they cannot speak English?—A. Many of them cannot.

Q. That is a handieap, is it not?—A. It must be. ,

Q. Would you maintain that there are as many jobs for farm labourers
in the wintertime as there are in the summer or fall, and if there are not as
many, is it not true that there is going to be unemployment in the wintertime,
if they are only capable of accepting jobs as farm labourers?—A. Well, of
course, we all know that there are more farm jobs in the summertime in Can-
ada than there are in the wintertime, particularly during the harvest season.
Many of these men are able to bridge the period between late fall and early
spring by going into *he woods. '
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Q. I think you made the statement that there should be no unemployment
for farm labour. I would like you to square those two statements up, if possible?
—A. I do not remember saying that.

Q. I am pressing this point, because instances are continually coming to
my attention, and I am powerless to do anything in regard to them. It is just
the case I mentioned a few moments ago, they are out of employment, and are
trying to get shelter in pumphouses, or farmhouses, or some place, during the
winter time. It is really a case of hardship, as these poor fellows are really
not. competent to hold a job.—A. I can only answer that question by saying,
as I said a few moments ago, that if these men, during this past winter, had
got in touch with one of the officials of our Department, or with one of our
District Offices, they would have been provided with farm work.

Q. If cases like that are brought to my attention in the future, and I
bring them to the attention of your District Office, will you see that they are
given employment?—A. I will see that every possible effort is made to give
them employment, and I think I can almost promise you that they will be
given employment.

By Mr. Spotton:

Q. There is one point that I think should be cleared up, in justice to yourself
and the institution you represent. You mentioned that a commission of $5 was
paid for Continental immigrants, and only $2.50 for British. There is a business
principle in connection with this. For the Continental immigrant, who pays
about $130 for his fare, you pay $5, or about four per cent. For the British
immigrant, you pay $2.50 on a fare amounting to about $10, or twenty-five per
cent. Nobody can say that you are opposed to the British immigrant, or that
you are putting any obstancle in their way?—A. We are exerting twenty times
the effort, and, paying, I think, twenty times the money to get colonists from the
British Isles, than we are to get colonists from the Continent. This matter of
commissions on nominations, or commissions on tickets, from the British Isles,
is purely a Traffic Department matter, and is something that the Colonization
Department have nothing to do with.

Discussion followed.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. I would like you to tell me, if you know, how many immigrants were
brought out last year, under the designation of farm labourers?—A. Some gentle-
man has asked me to supply that information, and I have agreed to do it.

Q. Do you not bring out some thousands of farm labourers every year,
and expect them to be absorbed in Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. I wonder if you have any idea of how many we are able to absorb each
year?—A. Those that we receive applications for.

Q. The farming industry in Canada is not expanding very fast, is it?—
A. Well, it seems to be making some progress.

Q. What will become of all the labourers brought out this year? Will they
be held over until next year?—A. Some of them will be held over as labourers,
and some of them will get located on farms, or homesteads.

Q. It seems to me that the number we are bringing out would go to prove
that the great bulk of these people do not remain as farm labourers, they go.
off somewhere else. You bring in, very often, inexperienced people, under the
designation of farm labour, to take the place of those who have gone; is that
not true?—A. Take the place of whom?

Q. Take the place of the ones you brought out, perhaps, two years before,
and who have now gone into the towns and cities?—A. They may have gone
on homesteads or farms of their own.
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Q. Of course, we can find that out. Do you know how much your Com-
pany has spent on immigration during the last three or four years; do you know
how much they spend per year?—A. Our Company?

Q. Yes—A. I know exactly what we spent last year.

Q. Would you care to give us those figures?—A. It was published in our
é&nnual Report yesterday. Seven hundred and fifty-one thousand, and some odd

ollars.

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. That includes all the ramifications of your Department?—A. That is the
Department of Colonization and Development.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Could I refer to the question I asked some time ago, as to what measures
are being taken to bring colonists and settlers from Great Britain. We have
been confining ourselves, almost entirely, to the Continental countries, and I
have waited patiently while others have asked questions?—A. We maintain
sub-headquarters of our Department at London, England, in charge of Major
A. E. Moore, our European Colonization Manager. Major Moore has been
associated with our Department since 1907, I believe. Previous to that time
he had had long Canadian experience. He visits Canada very frequently,
usually once a year, to keep in close touch with affairs here. In addition to our
sub-headquarters at London we maintain a district office at London, to deal in-
timately with the territory in that district. We also maintain district offices at
Liverpool, Glasgow, and Belfast. Each of these offices is in charge of men who
have spent a great many years with our Department in colonization activities,
and who have each had considerable Canadian experience and are thoroughly
familiar with conditions in Canada. Each office has it usual office staff, and a
field staff. Under our London sub-headquarters we maintain a boys’ section, in
charge of Major W. H. Hayward, for the recruitment of what is commonly known
as “’teenage boys”. We maintain a women’s section, in charge of Mrs. Waite,
for the recruitment of domestics. Mrs. Waite has under her direction assistants
at each of the distriet offices. At our London sub-headquarters we also main-
tain a publicity agent, who deals with advertising and publicity in the British
Isles, and in such portions of the Continent as is permitted. We maintain an
exhibit truck, with a permanent exhibit, in charge of a lecturer. That truck
is on the road, probably, nine or ten months in the year, travelling constantly
from town to town, and from marketplace to marketplace, showing the exhibits
and the moving pictures that accompany it. Lectures are given by the lecturer
on the advantages of Canada. In addition to that organization of our own
Department, our Traffic Department maintain eleven district offices in the
British Isles, and under those district offices, there are some twenty-five
hundred agents. They function with our Department, to the extent that any
prospective agricultural colonists, that they come in contact with, are dealt with
through us. We have the advantage of their activities in getting in touch with
prospective agricultural colonists for the Dominion. As I said a short time ago,
after we know the number of each class of colonists that we want, our London
sub-headquarters are advised, our district offices and their staffs are advised.
we also have the inquiries received from newspapers advertising, from agents,
from the traffic officers, and from the lecturers, and our organization goes out and
gets in touch with the inquirer, and endeavors to induce him to come forward to
fill an application for settlement in Canada. In addition to the above men-
tioned activities, I might say that each fall and winter we send a number of
special lecturers to the British Isles from Canada. They ecarry on intensive
lecturing campaigns throughout the country, in an effort to interest colonists in

coming to Canada.
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Q. Do a number of those who are brought in under the auspices of the
Canadian Pacifie, from Great Britain, come in under the Three Thousand British
Family Scheme? Is that scheme being operated in connection with the Canadian
Pacific’—A. We have brought forward a large number of families for that
scheme.

Q. Outside of that scheme, is there any other scheme, whereby provision
is made for assisting those who come from Great Britain to settle on farms in
Canada?—A. You mean, arranging settlement placements for them here?

Q. Do these people, that you are bringing outside of the Three Thousand
British Family Scheme, do they pay their own passage and railway fare, and
merely get settlement through the instrumentality of your Department, or is
some provision made for assistance in respect of passage?—A. If they are coming
to settle upon farms, or for domestic employment, or coming as farm labourers,
and have been approved by the Department of Immigration and Colonization
for the assisted passage, they receive the £2 rate.

By Mr. McMillan:
Q. They come in under the assisted rate?—A. Yes, the assisted passage

rate.
By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Outside of the Three Thousand British Family Scheme, what form of
assistance is given to immigrants from Great Britain?—A. They receive this
reduced passage rate.

Q. What are the reduced rates that the Canadian Pacific provides for those
coming in outside of the Three Thousand British Family scheme?—A. The
Empire Settlement rate, the £2 rate—I believe that is the technical term for it—
is the rate arrived at by contributions from the British Government, the
Dominion Government, and the Steamship Lines.

Q. But outside of this Three Thousand British Family Scheme, where the
rate is provided by contributions from the British Government and the Cana-
dian Government, is there any other form of assistance given to British immi-
grants coming to this country?—A. In the way of reduced rates?

Q. Yes.—A. That reduced rate does not apply only to the Three Thousand
Family Scheme; it applies to agricultural colonists approved by the Department
of Immigration and Colonization, and to domesties.

Q. Who contributes to support that rate, outside the Three Thousand British
Family Scheme? A. The British Government, the Dominion Government and
the Steamship Lines. '

Q. Under the arrangement at present existing between the British Govern-
ment, the Steamship Lines and the Canadian Government, is there any limit
to the number who are given assisted passage?—A. No, I do not believe so, so
long as they comply with the regulations and pass inspection.

Q. And, under the regulations, must they be destined for farm settlement,
or farm labour alone?—A. Or domestic service.

Q. Or domestic service?—A. Yes, sir,

Q. Outside of those coming in under the British Family Scheme, and outside
of those coming in, as you have just stated, for farm labour, farm settlement,
and domestic service, are there reduced rates given to other immigrants?—
A. Not that I know of.

Q. From Great Britain?—A. Not that I know of.

Q. They pay the ordinary steamship rate?—A. So far as T know.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):
Q. You stated a moment ago that the Canadian Pacific Railway spent seven
hundred thousand dollars last year?—A. The Department of Colonization and
Development, of the Canadian Pacific Railway.
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Q. Does that include the settlement on the land, and everything else, and
your expenses in connection with this co-operative understanding you have with
the Colonization Boards, and so on?—A. Yes.

Q. It includes everything?—A. It does not include the commissions that
have been frequently referred to, the commissions on nominations.

Q. Can you give us the proportion of that amount that is spent on British
immigration, for the United States, and on Continental immigration?—A. I
could have our auditors go through the statement and dig that out, I suppose;
it would be a long job.

Q. You have not got the information with you now?—A. No.

Q. It would be too much trouble to get it?—A. Well, it would mean a lot
of work.

Q. You stated some time ago that advertising was carried on in the countries
where you are allowed to advertise. Some countries prohibit you in that respect,
and do you issue pamphlets in those countries, or circulate literature?—A. That
can be answered in a general way. In the Scandinavian countries, for instance,
we do issue pamphlets in their own language. In all countries where we are
permitted to issue pamphlets, we do so.

Q. Would you have any of those pamphlets available for filing?—A. I
will be glad to supply them, provided we have them here. They are prepared
on the other side, and if we have any in Montreal it would be because samples
had been sent over. I can get them from London, if you want them.

By Mr. McMillan:

Q. Supposing a farmer makes an application to your office here for help,
and you supply him with that help, is there any commission accepted on the
part of the farmer?—A. On the part of the farmer?

Q. Yes. Supposing a farmer applies to one of your offices for help, and
1{ouI\Iare able to fill that application, is any commission accepted from him?—

. No.

By M. Yodng (Saskatoon):

Q. I would like you to be a little more specific as to the amount of effort
that your Department puts forward in the British Isles. It has been stated,
on many occasions, in Western Canada, that there was not much effort being
made to bring settlers from the British Isles. I would like to have you state
just exactly how far you are concerned in this matter?—A. I can tell you, very
briefly, in connection with the non-preferred Continental countries. Our Depart-
ment maintain, in each non-preferred country, an official called a Certificate
Issuing Officer. That is the only official maintained by our Department in that
country. The colonists present themselves, or are presented to that official.
He examines them as to their qualifications, for the class under which they
desire to go to Canada, and either approves or refuses them, so far as our
Department is concerned. They are then prepared to be presented to the
Government Visa Officer, for visa of their passports, or for civil examination.
That is the extent of our organization in the so-called non-preferred countries.

Q. And what about Great Britain?—A. I have given you a brief outline
of what our organization is. It is a large organization, and it costs a lot of
money. We are exerting every possible effort to solicit and sell the idea of going
to Canada, to the classes of people in the British Isles that we are prepared to
‘accept.

&
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By Mr. Brown:

Q. I think you made that general statement that you were putting forth
twenty times the effort in Great Britain—A. I said twenty times, but it might
be one hundred times. It is very largely in excess of any other effort.

The witness retired.

The Committee adjourned until Wednesday, March twenty-eighth, at
11 am.
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House or CoMMONS,
WepNESDAY, March 28th, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The Committe proceeded with the consideration of the Immigration Act and
Regulations, and the general subject of immigration.

J. N. K. MacAuisTeR recalled.

Mr. Canman: I would like to make a suggestion, not by way of precluding
any questions on any particular branch of the Immigration subject, but rather
that Mr. Macalister tell us frankly, from his point of view, the difficulties
encountered in the present immigration system, and the suggestlons that he has
to make with respect to improvements.

Discussion followed.

The Wirness: Might I take a few minutes to put in some statements that
I have prepared, relating to previous evidence. I was asked at a previous
session to submit information as to the number of colonists brought in by us
from non-preferred countries, and the percentage of those placed in work other
than farm labour. 1 would like to submit this information at this time.

(Reads) :

Approximate number of souls admitted to Canada

for period December 1st, 1926, to November 30th, 1927,

from non-preferred Continental countries under the

Railways’ Agreement, holding Occupational Certificates

issued by the Canadian Pacific.. .. .. .. 18936
Number of men first placed durmg Sprlng 1927 in

farm employment and released by farmers on account

bad weather, and then placed by us temporarily in track

work. . 405
Men placed in track work temporanly, who we were

unable to place in farm employment because of unsea-

SO I | B AT IO e s b e e Bt ST B e b P e i TS

643

Nore: These men were needed for work on extra gangs, such work
being largely unexpected and due to the heavy rainfall necessitating early
track work, and they did not displace local labour and were, of course,
employed at the schedule rate of wages.

These men were later released from track work, and practically all
placed- in farm employment,

Then there is the translation of the statement on our occupational certi-
ficate, which is signed by the colonist from non-preferred countries on the Con-
tinent. The one I read a few days ago I found had first been translated from
English to Polish, and then from Polish back to English, and in the process it
had become a little mixed up. (Reads):
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Wording of Statement on Face of Occupational Certificate in Language of
Colonist and Signed by Colonist

This Certificate is issued without charge and is valueless unless signed

and stamped by an accrediated Agent of the Canadian Pacific Railway.

The Undersigned hereby certifies that he (she) understands the conditions

under which he (she) is accepted as a colonist to Canada; that he (she)

is proceeding under the distinet understanding that he (she) is going as

an agriculturalist, agricultural labourer or domestic servant and that he

(she) must undertake to follow one of these occupations. In the case of

farm labour or domestic serviee, he (she) will accept the current wages

paid such help. The undersigned recognizes that refusal or failure to

engage in one of the occupations mentioned will subject him (her) to
return to the country of his (her) origin.

Then a question was asked, I believe by both Mr. Brown and the Hon. Mr.

Tolmie, dealing with settlements effected by the Canada Colonization Associa-
tion. I would like to read this memorandum:

Memorandum

Both Mr. Brown and the Honourable Mr. Tolmie in questions dur-
ing the Proceedings, March 21st, in referring to settlements effected by
the Canada Colonization Association referred to “ communal system ”.

This may have conveyed the idea that each individual group car-
ried on its operations jointly. This is not correct, as each family of
each group usually operates its own farm. Whenever it can possibly be
arranged, each family is issued a separate contract covering its own
farm, although there is a joint and several liability agreement attached,
making all other families in the group equally responsible.

I would like to say, in reference to Dr. Edwards’ remarks this morning,
that the figures which I will submit, covering Continental colonists brought to
Canada by the Canadian Pacific, and colonists brought to Canada from the
British Isles, will not in any sense indicate the effort made by our Depart-
ment in these respective districts to get colonists. It seems to me ludicrous
to compare the effort we are making in the British Isles with the effort made
on the Continent. We have an immense organization in the British Isles, and
we spend an immense amount of money there, in an effort to bring colonists
to Canada, which is really ridiculous when compared with the results. No con-
cern could do it on a business basis, it would be impossible.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. You are spending more money, and have a greater organization, in the
British Isles than on the Continent?—A. Many, many times over.

Q. Why do you find it easier to get them on the Continent, with less
activity and less expense on your part, than in Great Britain, where you have
a better organization; what are the difficulties?—A. Well, the first and prin-
cipal reason is that the people on the Continent are anxious to come to Can-
ada. They want to come here and make their homes in Canada. Apparently
there is not the same desire on the part of the people in the British Isles. That
would be the first explanation. In the second place, there is an immensely
greater percentage of the inhabitants of those countries on the Continent who
are agriculturists, than in the British Isles. As we are only inviting, and
endeavouring to obtain, agricultural colonists, it naturally follows that there
is a greater number coming in from the Continent. The difficulty in bringing
to Canada an equal number of so-called single men for farm labour—in refer-
ring to single men, we in colonization work, mean either single men, or a man
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that is not accompanied by his family, because many of them are married but
come without their families from the Continent—you cannot obtain an equal
number of experienced British farm labourers, and it is difficult to place
inexperienced Britishers in farm employment in Canada. Our organization
has, particularly during the last fall and winter, made a strenuous effort to find
places for inexperienced Britishers, and we have met with a very fair measure
of success. We have been able, through our organization, to induce farmers
to agree to accept and train inexperienced Britishers, with the result that we
are in a position to receive far more inexperienced Britishers this year, than
we have ever been before.

Q. Why 1is it easier to find locations for inexperienced Continentals?—
A. No, Dr. Edwards, we do not make an effort to find places for inexperienced
Continentals.

Now, as to what can be done to speed up immigration from the British
Isles. I have a pet theory of my own—it is not original; it has been tried out
in a small way—that I believe would be a very great help. In placing it
before this Committee, I am afraid that I will have to ask you to accept it
as my own personal suggestion, and not as a suggestion from the Canadian
Pacific Railway, because I have not discussed it with my superiors and have
not authority for suggesting it as coming from the Company.

I am firmly convinced that Canada could receive, and absorb in agricultural
employment, and eventual settlement, a very large number of British families,
both experienced, and those who could not be called experienced agriculturists,
but who have more or less knowledge of gardening and agriculture in a smaller
way. I think, in order to do that, this country should embark upon a program
of building ten thousand cottages, and have them scattered throughout the
country. I am speaking particularly of the prairie provinces. According to the
government statistics of 1926, there were approximately 250,000 farms in the
three provinces. I believe ten thousand cottages could be located in well
developed districts, properly selected, so that the head of the family, and the
boys of workable age, could obtain farm employment, whether experienced or
only partly experienced. The daughters of the family could obtain domestic
service, and the family would be able to make a good living. My suggestion is
that there should be three thousand cottages built this year, three thousand the
following year, and so, until you get ten thousand of them. Then you could
bring in the first three thousand families and place them in the first three
thousand cottages.

By Mr. Millar: )

Q. Where would those cottages be located?—A. In the districts where there
was farm employment available.

Q. In the farming districts?—A. Located on the farms. I would get two
acres on the corner of a farm, either by lease or purchase, or at a nominal rental.
I think the cottage could be built for a thousand dollars. There would be a
lean-to barn or shed that would take care of a cow. The family would have a
garden, and be able to raise a few pigs, and have some chickens. The mother,
and the younger children would be able to take care of that garden and do what
work there was to do around the home. The father and the older children
could work. I believe that they would make a good living the first year, and
a still better living the second year, because they would have greater experience.
At the end of the second or third year that family is an experienced agricultural
family, ready to be moved into a permanent agricultural settlement, and estab-
lished as farmers in Canada. As the first three thousand move on to permanent
settlement, you bring in another three thousand, and you will have a steady
stream of British immigrants coming into this country. It would cost about
three million dollars to build three thousand cottages, but I have no doubt that
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the British Government would pay half. Therefore, it would cost this govern-
ment a million and a half, and 1 think it would be the best investment they
could possibly make, if they are earnest in their desire to bring British immi-
grants to this country.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Father McDonell had that scheme tried out, and it was not entirely
successful.—A. I can tell you the reason I think it was not successful. I do not
think the Scottish Emigrant Aid Society had the funds or men available to
properly administer the plan. The cottages were badly scattered, and they
had not the staff to go around and inspect them, and take care of those families.

Q. I know there was a great number of them empty?—A. That is true,
but there should not have been any empty.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Would the cottage and the two acres of land remain in the right of
Canada?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. They would continue the ownership of it?—A. Yes, sir. I would not
contend that the man would be supposed to work for the farmer upon whose
farm the cottage was established. He would have the whole district as his
source of emnloyment. I think that scheme would have to be extended by
evolving some scheme of assistance, say at the end of two years, to establish
these farmers wgon farms of their own. I believe that after a family of that
kind has spent two or three years in Canada, at agricultural employment, the
whole family being in agricultural employment, except the younger children
and the mother of the home, that they could be established upon a farm at
much less capital expenditure than a family that is picked up in the British
Isles, brought over here and put on a farm. I do not think there is any doubt
about it. The Three Thousand Family Scheme has demonstrated it, that ycu
cannot find and bring any volume of agricultural families to Canada, and place
them immediately upon farms. It would be courting disaster to take a
family, that had never farmed, and bring them over here and put them down on
a farm, unless they had a large amount of capital. 'We have got to bring these
families in, whether they know anything about farming or not, and this country
has got to turn to, and the farmers have got to help, to see that they are settled
and make agriculturalists of them.

By Mr. Millar:

Q. Would not this man be at the mercy of the man on whose farm he
resided, as he would generally be a mile or so from any other work?—A. He
would not necessarily live at home. During the period he is working for a
farmer two miles away, he could live with the farmer.

Q. Would it not be as desirable to have these houses in the towns nearby,
where the family would have the advantages of town life?—A. Well, Mr. Millar,
in this whole scheme there is no doubt there will be considerable leakage. If
you bring three thousand families in in one year, and put them in cottages, a
percentage of those families are going to leak to the city. We may as well
recognize at the start that they will not all go on farms. I think that if you
established your cottages in the towns you are only inviting a greater leakage
than you would otherwise have.

Q. There are a lot of people that work that way.—A. I think if they got a
job in town they would take it, in preference to the farm job.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:
Q. Has that been tried in Ontario, to any extent?—A. Not that I know of.
Q. About four years ago there were a few cases of cottage settlements in
'Mr. J. N. K. Macalister.]
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Welland County, in the fruit distriet; I was wondering if you knew about that?
—A. No, I do not.

Hon. Mr. EpwaArps: A scheme, such as outlined by Mr. Macalister, has
received some consideration from the Ontario Government in settling one
hundred acre farms up in New Ontario.

Hon. Mr. Forkr: We have a scheme under discussion, not quite along these
lines, but aleng similar lines.

The Wirness: I am trying to steal your thunder, Mr. Forke, I did not
know of it. As I said, there iz nothing original about this plan, and I am not
presenting it «s an original plan. As Mr. Stewart said, it has been tried out by
Father McDonell. I might say, Mr. Stewart, that I happen to know, at the
moment, that there is a very strong demand for those cottages this spring, and
there is not any doubt that they will all be filled.

Hon. Mr. StewarT: It may have been a mistake to bring in the class of
settlers that he was bringing, and settle them in a more or less French Canadian
district; that may have been the reason why these cottages were not used. All
I know is that they were not being made use of.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Is it not a fact that agricultural labour is scarce, at the present time, in
the British Isles?—A. I believe so.

Q. I saw a speech by the Minister of Agriculture of Great Britain, who
stated that there were more white people living off the farms in France than there
were in the whole British Empire. It went on to say that ‘experienced farm
labourers were very few in Great Britain, and not sufficient to meet the actual
demand there. Therefore, I would suggest that some scheme—I am not endors-
ing your scheme—such as Mr. Macalister suggests, is worth trying, if we are to
bring in from Great Britain any large number of men who are eventually going
on the farms. In going over Europe, I noticed that they have sort of communal
settlements. A farmer may have a farm three or four miles away, but he likes
to live in a village, where he can associate with others, and where his children
go to school, and all the rest of it. He will take his team out and work a farm
three or four miles away from his place of residence.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Is it not a fact, too, that the rate of wage for farm labour in Great
Britain is quite comparable with the Canadian wage?—A. Yes.

Q. That is one of the serious difficulties?—A. T believe that the rate of wage
is established by law. I think it is approximately $30 a month for an eight hour
day, and a half day on Saturday. We all know that we would not get very far
on that basis in Canada.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Are you not up against this problem, in trying to get labourers for farm
work from Great Britain? That is a country that, before the war, only produced
thirty per cent of its own food. Does it not seem to be more or less impossible
to go to a country, where there are so few farm labourers, and where they have
to import sixty or seventy per cent of their food, and try to steal those people
away to come to this country? Is not the whole thing prefaced on a wrong
foundation?—-A. Frankly, it has always semed so to me. If has always seemed
and impertinence on our part to go over there and try to take away their
thoroughly cxperienced farm labour. Therefore, I say that the plan that I
outlined, of taking the family that is not possibly a fully experienced agricultural
family, but that wants to engage in an agricultural occupation—
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Q. Would it not be better to train them over there?—A. It would be better,
theoretically, but, practically, I think we have got to bring them here, put them
in cottages, and send them out to work, and supervise them and bring them up
to the point where they are capable of taking over farms of their own.

By Mr. McPhee:

Q. I am informed, on pretty reliable authority, that only five per cent of
the people in the British Isles are engaged in farming activities; have you any
statistics on that?—A. I think that is possibly right. I believe seven per cent is
the figure, but I have no definite statistics.

Discussion followed.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: Would it not be better to let Mr. Macalister give us an
idea of the difficulties of getting British immigrants? We know how easy it is
to get Continentals, and Mr. Macalister may have other suggestions concerning
British immigrants.

The WirNess: I can only tell you that our organization exerts every possible
. effort to carry on an intensive campaign. We are spending an immense amount
of money in advertising, in lectures, in pamphlets, and in moving picture shows
to place before the people of the British Isles the advantages of coming to Canada
for agricultural occupation We have a very large staff, and we do, as I have
said, everything we possibly can to induce them to come here. You will have the
result when I produce the figures for Dr. Edwards.

I did not attempt to outline the family scheme in any detail, but I do not
think we will get anywhere until we adopt something of that kind. A movement
of that number of families to Canada will naturally bring with it a large move-
ment of the single mep. It is accumulative, and always will be, as is any
colonization movement. You get the movement started and it grows and con-
tinues to grow until eventually it stops and flattens out.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Do you find, in your canvass for immigrants from the British Isles, that
there is a disposition, on the part of the immigrants to want to be assured of
assistance?>—A. You mean in establishment upon the land?

Q. Yes, or a guaranteed assistance of some sort?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. Is that invariably true? Do they want to be assured that they will not
have to depend entirely upon themselves?—A. My experience is that the
colonists—I will not specify any class—coming to Canada to-day expect much
more assistance than they did in the old days; they expect to be taken care of
and helped.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. It would be expected that they would have that attitude, in view of the
fact that you are asking them to come?—A. Possibly.

Q. They are likely to say, “well, you make it worth our while”.—A.
Possibly.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Does he simply want work, or does he want some monetary assistance?
—A. Tt is hard to specify, but there is that atmosphere. They want to be
taken care of and helped along.

By Mr. Caham:

Q. Would your scheme of providing cottages also imply that advances
would be made to assist in the purchase of one or two cows, and getting some
farming implements?—A. Not at the start. I think the man should have a cow,
and a few chickens and a couple of pigs, and this acre or so of garden should be
broken up for him, so that he can put in a garden. He may have some garden
tools.
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Q. Would you provide that, or would he be expected to come with sufficient
financial resources to enter into farming modestly?—A. I would provide him
with what he would have to have, because, if we wait for the fellows that are
able to provide for themselves, we will not get them.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. If you provided too much work on his own piece of land, would there not
be difficulty in a farmer getting him to work for him?—A. I would not provide
him with more work than his wife and younger children could do. His wife and
children can milk a cow and gather a few eggs, and do a small bit of gardening.

By Mr. Boys:

Q. Does a man find any difficulty in getting work all the year round in the
West?—A. That question cannot be answered yes, or no.

Q. Are the farmers in the West prepared to employ a man all the year
round ?—A. A great many of them are, yes.

Q. Would you say that that was general?—A. With diversified farms, or
mixed farms, yes. On a purely wheat producing farm, where the work is
carried on mostly with power tractors, and so on; no cattle or pigs, and no
work during the winter except to haul grain, no.

Q. When requisitions are made for assistance, are they for work all the
year round, or seasonal? When a farmer makes a request for assistance, is it,
as g rule, for the harvest months, or does he undertake to engage the man all the
year round?—A. The majority of the applications state for one year.

By Ar. Brown:

Q. In connection with your scheme, have you thought of the necessity, or
perhaps the desirability, of entering into an arrangement with individual farmers
who might enter into a contract to employ a man settled on the farm?—A. No.

Q. My own opinion is that a good deal can be said in favour of the scheme.
I know that many farmers would be prepared to employ a man and his family
all the year round, if they had a house to put them in—A. Exactly, that is the
point.

By FHon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. You have been talking about the British immigrant from the agricultural
standpoint. Do you find the same difficulty in inducing mechanics, and the
other classes of British immigrants, to come to Canada—A. You are getting out
of my sphere entirely.

By Mr. Spence:

Q. You have been endeavouring to get experienced agriculturists from Great
Britain?—A. We have been endeavouring to get the class of people from Great
Britain who were willing to enter into an agricultural occupation in Canada.

Q. You would not have so much difficulty if you made up your mind to
bring in inexperienced help? I do not mean mechanics, I mean inexperienced
people that would engage in farm work?—A. We could get a large number, yes.
(Discussion followed). |

By Mr. Spotton:

Q. Have you any suggestions to make with regard to the present regula-
tion?—A. This plan has only been in operation for slightly over thirty days, as
I said yesterday, and I do not pretend to be familiar with all the details. .

Q. How does it differ from the old plan?—A. Under the old plan they went
to the roster doctor in their neighbourhood and were examined. You men-
tioned the life insurance man. When you put your signature on the dotted line,
the life insurance agent does not let any grass grow under his feet before he
gets you to the doctor.

65927—20

[Mr. J. N. K. Macalister.]



274 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Hon. Mr. Forke: I do not like to interject, but when you realize that a
family leaving Great Britain is doing something that will affect their whole
after life, do you think it is such a serious thing that they have to wait a week
or two to think about it?

The Wirxess: I do not wish to suggest that it can be done the same as a
life insurance examination can be done; that was only to illustrate the advantage
of doing it as quickly as it could be arranged.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. If the immigrant has made up his mind to come here, why should he
have any difficulties put in his path?—A. My whole theory is that when he has
once made up his mind to come to Canada we should perfect machinery that
will enable him to come as quickly as possible. There is always the danger that
he will change his mind, and either stay at home or go some place else. I feel
very earnestly on that subject. In the Colonization service we speak of the
solicitor as the man out on the firing line. I have been out on the firing line
and I know what I am talking about. Twenty-one years ago, when I first

* became connected with the Colonization Department of the Canadian Pacific,
they started me out in the State of Iowa, driving from farm to farm, trying to
induce the farmers to move to Canada. I want to tell you that it is hard work,
and I commend to your sympathy the men in the Government Service, or any
other service, who are trying to induce people to come to Canada, because they
have not got any snap. 1 can recite case after case of families in Western
Canada, who are to-day prosperous farmers and good Canadians, who had been
called upon by colonization agents and induced to agree to come to Canada.
‘They will tell you to-day that they would never have made their first trip of
inspection, had it not been that the colonization agent drove to their farm the
day they had agreed to go to Canada and induced them to get in to his auto-
mobile, and took them to the train for Canada. They had decided one day that
they would go to Canada, but two or three days later they decided they would
not go. The only reason they did go was because they were again persuaded,
and when they said they would go that time, they were gotten into the auto-
mobile and on to the train, and taken to Canada.

Discussion followed.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Are *here any delays or inconveniences, in connection with the medical
examination of the immigrants from the British Isles, which might be removed
or lessened ?—A. At the present moment, Dr. Edwards, I think there are. From
what I gather, from conversations I have had with Mr. Forke, and officials of
the Department of Immigration and Colonization, the whole scheme is being
revamped. They are trying to get this into workable shape, and I do not see
any object to be gained by my standing up here and telling you that they did
so and so a month ago, or they did so and so six months ago. Those things are
passed and gone.

Q. You say that there are delays or inconveniences which, in your judg-
ment might be removed or lessened. I would like to get your view as to what
way you consider that those inconveniences or delays might be removed?—A.
That is exactly the thing that I have been dwelling upon, to get this machinery
oiled up and working to lessen the lapse of time. In asking that, I think you
have covered the whole thing.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Assume that you have canvassed a man, you have him signed up to
go to Canada; what difficulty do you encounter?—A. Suppose we have called
on John Jones. We have got him to agree to say, “Yes, I will go to Canada.”

[Mr. J. N. K. Macalister.]



AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION 275

He has signed the application presented to him by the Canadian Pacific, we
will say, or the Canadian National, or any of these other societies. That
application is sent to a Canadian Government Immigration Agent, and dealt
with by him from that point on. He notifies the applicant where to appear for
his medical examination, and when to appear, and where to appear for his
civil examination, and when.

Q. What do you mean by civil examination?—A. To see whether or not
he is of the proper class, whether he has had experience in agricultural work,
we will say, to see whether he is of the proper class to come over to Canada.
I am speaking now, by the way, of the assisted passage. There are some
eighteen or twenty or twenty-five doctors in the British Isles that are covering,
I think, Mr. Egan said the other day, three hundred and thirty-four points. I
do not think that number of doctors can visit that number of points and inspect
these applicants, so that each will receive an examination or inspection within
a reasonable limit of time after he has made application.

Q. Your criticism, if it would be a ecriticism, or your suggestion is that
there should be less delay in the medical examination?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Something in the way of having the medical examination assist them,
rather than having the possibility of them coming to you and being rejected
afterwards?—A. When these men get their photographs on a card, and it has
been signed, they think they are going to get in to Canada all right.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. The whole idea of the medical inspection is to prevent them from
tg)e%.tmg over here and being returned on account of physical unfitness?—A. I
elieve so.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. When we had the evidence of the medical men, regarding these examin-
ations, it proved conclusively that it was not an examination at all, it was only
an inspection. Do you not think that the old system of doing that at least
facilitated things much more than at present?—A. To have them examined
in Canada?

Q. No, by the roster doctor over in Great Britain?—A. Oh, yes, I think
that system was less objectionable on the part of the colonist, and I think they
got quicker service.

Q. It facilitated the movement of the immigrant?—A. Mechanically, yes.
I am not competent to speak from the medical standpoint.

Q. The medical standpoint was that it was practically an inspection, with-

out an examination at all. One doctor is just as capable of doing that as
another.

Mr. BrownN: There was a possibility of his being returned when he got

here.
By Mr. Cahan:

. Q. Have you any further suggestions to make?—A. Well I have an idea
In my head that I can place before you. It is not in connection with British
Immigration, but with Continental.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You have discussed the question of agricultural colonists from the British
Isles altogether. There is no restriction on any other sort of immigration from
Great Britain?—A. Except the medical examination.

Q. No occupational restrictions?—A. I do not believe so.
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By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Let us have your suggestion?—A. I do not presume that there is any
likelihood of its ever being adopted, but, in my opinion, it should be. We are
bringing out a lot of so-called single men to Canada from the continent. I
believe I am safe in saying that seventy-five per cent of these men are married,
and arrive in Canada without their families. Many of them have borrowed
money in Europe to purchase their tickets to Canada, while others have used
their entire liquid capital to arrive here, and are depending upon money earned
in Canada to finance the arrival of their family a year or two years hence.
I think that very faet is responsible for a considerable portion of these men
leaving farm employment. They hear stories of men who are earning five,
six, or eight dollars a day in industries, and they feel that they could earn and
save far larger amounts in that employment. It brings before them the picture
of their family arriving six months or a year earlier, than they otherwise would,
and the temptation is too great for them. I think that some plan or scheme
should be evolved whereby, after one of these men has been in Canada for
a year, and has stayed in an agricultural occupation, and demonstrated his
intention to become an agriculturist, that he is honest and is reasonably depend-
able, and has saved a certain amount of money, say twenty-five per cent of
the cost of transporting his family from the Continent to Canada, that some
plan must be evolved whereby he can get credit for the balance of the trans-
portation cost of bringing his family here. This is another thing that is not
original. This scheme is being worked out to-day by various organizations
in Canada, in a small way. I have in mind one particular society that has
followed along this line for five years. They have advanced probably $150,000
to $200,000, with an operating loss of $180 up to the present moment The
money was repaid by the man in Canada after the arrival of his family I do
not think that these men will ever be contented, or permanently estabhs.hed
in this country, until their families come out and they feel that they are reunited
and have something to work for.

Q. Why do you think that that is not likely to be adopted?—A. Because
I doubt if the Government would undertake it in view of the sentiment there
appears to be, relative to Continental immigration. I would like to see it
adopted, I think it should be adopted, and I hope it will be adopted.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Do you think that any of these organizations paying out money, as
you say, to the extent of $150,000, to bring immigrants out here, are making
any profit out of this? That is, suppose they put up $100 to bring a man here,
is he obliged to pay them back $200?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you not think that is being worked?—A. I know it is not, in the
instance I referred to.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. What would be the cost of bringing a family of five, say a wife and
four children, out from a Continental country?—A. It would depend on the age
of the children, but I would say that the cost of the tickets, plus the cost of their
incidental expenses, would be, roughly speaking, about $750, for a family of five.

Q. And you would suggest that there should be some supervision of those
who come out, for the first year, and then, if they turn out well, that the
Government should advance sufficient to bring out their families, and enable
them to settle?—A. I would not go to the expense of supervision. I would tell
that man when he came into this country, “you go to this farm job. If you
lose it, get another one. You stay at flarm employment and then come around
at the end of the year and show me what you have been doing for the past
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twelve months.” Put the obligation of proof upon him, and not have the burden
rest with us. ;

Q. And you would work that in connection with your cottage scheme?—
A. I was thinking of the cottage scheme only in connection with British im-
migration.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. It might very well be used to supplement the other?—A. Oh, I think
they would both work at the same time, if that is what you mean.

Then I would go still further. After that continental and his family were
here, then I would provide a small amount of credit for his establishment upon
the farm. We are doing that, not only in connection with continental colonists,
but with any colonists. We have set aside large areas of our lands that we let
the man farm. We loan it to him for four years. He makes application for a
piece of land at a definite price to-day. There is no interest accumulates or
accrues, and no principal payments due until four years have passed. The only
thing he does is to pay the taxes on that land in the meantime, and agree to
develop and improve it. In other words, we loan him the land for four years,
and he has four years to make a farm out of it and bring it to a state of pro-
duction before he begins to pay the Canadian Pacific anything. I think these
continental families could be established with a credit of $500.

By Mr. McPhee:

Q. You mentioned one case where families had been financed to the extent
of $200,000, with only a loss of $180. Have you considered the fact that the
transportation companies might do that financing rather than the Government?

Mr, Caman: Why should the transportation company do it?

Mr. McPuee: Because they get the money.

By Mr. McGibbon:
Q. What security was given?—A. Notes.
Q. No collateral security?—A. Endorsers.
Q. Do they get that-endorsement from the man they are working for?—A.
In many instances.

By Mr. McPhee:

Q. What is the cost of passage to Winnipeg from, first of all, the British
Isles, and, secondly, from the continent, when a man pays his own way, and when
he gets assisted passage?—A. The assisted passage rate you will find in your
Department of Immigration literature, and it is in the report of the meeting
also. I am not a traffic man, and I cannot quote the rate from the continent,
except to say that for the majority of non-preferred countries it is about $137
to port, plus $25 railway fare to Winnipeg.

By Mr. McGibbon:

Q. Just to clear up that last point. Were any of those endorsers ever called
upon to ’Ipay?-——A. I would say a few of them were. )

Q. The number was small?—A. I have a recollection of discussing that
point, and I think in some few cases it was collected from the endorser.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Have you any further suggestion to make?—A. Yes. I think our work
would be greatly facilitated, and that the Department of Immigration would
have fewer criticisms from the residents of Western Canada, and the members
of Parliament would have fewer criticisms from their constituents, if the estab-
lishment of additional immigrational halls could be brought about in Western
Canada. At the present time we have two of them in Winnipeg. I think it
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would be a very great advantage, in handling the large number of colonists that
are coming, and that we hope will come, if adequate immigration facilities could
be provided at Saskatoon, Regina, Calgary, Edmonton and various centres of
distribution.

Q. What is the nature of that accommodation?—A. There is a hall with beds
and bedding. There are separate quarters provided for families, and men or
families are permitted to go in and occupy these quarters during the night.
They live there temporarily while they are passing through, or waiting distri-
lI)ution. The officials of the department will tell you much more about it than

can.
By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. It is the same idea as the sheds at the ports?—A. On the same order.
It is to provide temporary accommodation. Where you are bringing in thousands
of colonists, and particularly at one season of the year, as we have to in the
Dominion—the biggest volume of our immigration comes in during the spring
months—I think it is physically impossible to handle those men, bring them in,
and distribute them to their destinations without commotion and without com-
plaints from the towns and cities. Complaints are made of surplus people
being brought in, simply because they see mobs hanging around. You cannot
bring them in and get them all on the train for their destination the same day
they arrive in Winnipeg, or any other centre.

By Mr. Spence:
o5 Q. Even though you have places for them?—A. It is a physical impossi-
ility. :
By Mr. Carmichael:

Q. Just a question regarding that ten thousand cottage proposition. I under-
stood you to say that it would require an expenditure of three million dollars.
Was that per year, or for the whole scheme?—A. I estimated that it would
cost a thousand dollars each to build these cottages. If you are going to supply
three thousand of them this year, it will cost you three million dollars. I
suppose that the British Government would pay half of that.

Q. That would be $1,000 expenditure for the cottage, and $500 on the
transportation?—A. Oh, no.

Q. For a family of five?—A. No. I am speaking of British settlers and
the Canadian Government pays £3.10 on that transportation.

Q. I am referring to your suggestion to assist families to come out from
the Continent, when the father has been out here a year?—A. I am not speak-
ing of these cottages for Continentals at all.

Q. There was a suggestion that the two schemes might work together?—
A. T said that they might be dealt with at the same time, but they do not
interlock.

Q. I want to find out the total expenditure that would be required for the
settling of one family in Canada. There would be $1,000 for the housing
scheme, about $500 for the transportation, and another $500 to establish that
family at farm work. Two thousand dollars would be the total amount to
be expended to get one family established. Is that the correct figure?—A. No,
not at all. When you build a cottage you have got a capital expenditure that
‘should be in existence, with reasonable care, for many years to come. It -
would be able to receive new families constantly.

By Mr. Brown:

Q. There would be no payment of $500 to establish them on the farm?
—A. That family is not costing you $500 for transportation; they are coming
out under the Empire Settlement Scheme.
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By Mr. Carmichael:

Q. I understood you to make the statement that when a man had earned
about one quarter of the cost of transportation— —A. Pardon me, you insist
on mixing up these two schemes. One is British colonization, the other is the
families of Continentals who have been in Canada and proven themselves
desirable agricultural colonists. They do not interlock at all.

Q. You would spend $500 for bringing out the family of a Continental,
is that correct?—A. That has nothing to do with the cottages at all.

Q. Is that $500 correct?—A. I think I said that a family of five from the
continent would probably cost, for transportation and with incidental expenses,
and so on, from the time of their departure to their arrival in Canada, approx-
imately $750.

Q. You stated that the person in Canada should have one quarter of that,
the balance to be advanced, which would be approximately $500, and you sug-
gested an additional $500 for establishing that family on the farm?—A. Yes.

Q. That is independent of the purchase of any land?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Millar: :

Q. Have you any suggestion to make regarding the great handicap of
seasonal occupation?—A. With the cottage scheme for British colonists, the
family would have earned sufficient money to carry them through the winter.
Their food is not costing them anything, outside of what little meat they
eat; their cottage does not cost them anything, so where is the expense?

Q. A married man would have a hard enough time to keep his family dur-
ing the summer months?—A. The man himself would be getting his food else-
where; his adult children would be getting their food elsewhere, and the only
people to feed during the summer time would be the mother and minor children.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. In your experience in the West, have you found any general feeling
of indifference or opposition to bringing in a large number of farm settlers
to the West? Have you met the feeling that you should leave the agricultural
development in the West to develop along its natural lines, and not to stimu-
late the settlement of districts in the West?—A. Well, it would not be true to
say that I have not heard that sentiment expressed, but it is not the predom-
inant sentiment.

By Mr. Millar:
Q. Not very much of it?—A. No, very little.

By Mr. Spence:

Q. Do you not think that the excessive passage rate charged by the steam-
ship companies retards immigrants coming to this country? I am referring to
the people who pay their own passage. The rates are exorbitant at the
present time, compared to what they used to be—A. I am not competent to say
what the rates should be.

Q. If you are familiar with your work I would judge you would be able
to answer that—A. I can say that if I was on the Continent and was con-
sidering coming to Canada, I would probably be more likely to come if the
rate was $50 than I would if it was $150.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. The same thing would apply to the British Isles?>—A. Well, of course,
they are getting a cheap rate now. There seems to be a very strong sentiment,
particularly in Ottawa, against Continental immigration. You should bear in
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mind that there is a desire, on the part of agriculturists on the Continent, to come
to Canada at the present time. We have the opportunity to get desirable agri-
culturists from those countries, and there is nobody living that can tell you how
long that movement will continue. Colonization movements usually start and
acquire volume, and all at once they flatten out. You cannot tell whether that
is going to happen next year or in five years. :

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. You are speaking now of Northern Europe?—A. Yes, I am speaking of
the portions of Europe where we are bringing colonists from.

By Hon. Mr. Edwards:

Q. Are not a number of those from Northern Europe, or from the preferred
countries, coming out here with the intention of working in mines, and that sort
of thing?—A. They do not express that intention.

Q. But they do, as a matter of fact?—A. I do not know.

, Q. We could get lots of that class of people from the British Isles, who are
aeeded in the mines here.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Have you any other suggestion to make?—A. When I first appeared
before your Committee you asked me to outline the organization that our Depart-
ment had for bringing colonists to Canada. I would like to touch, just for a
moment, on the organization that we are maintaining in the United States,
so that we can get a complete picture, if possible. We are maintaining offices
at St. Paul, with sub-offices at Chicago, and Omaha; an office at Portland,
Oregon and an office at Spokane, Washington. These offices are each in charge
of an expert colonization official, with a travelling staff and office staff. Each
office has under its jurisdiction a large number of agents who assist in interest-
ing and bringing colonists to Canada. Our Toronto district office in Canada
stiperintends our activities in the United States from the Eastern boundary of
Ohio to the Atlantic. Our district office at Montreal superintends our
activities in the New England States. We spend a very large amount of money
in newspaper advertising. Our travelling staff carry on lecture campaigns, at
seasons of the year when they are not engaged in trying to move individual
colonists. We have large libraries of moving pictures that are shown by our
own staff, and loaned to various organizations. In that way inquiries are
obtained, and the names of people interested, or who it might be possible to in-
terest in coming to Canada. Our travelling stafl are supplied with automobiles,
and they and our agents go out into the country and call on these people. They
talk to them and endeavour to induce them to get on the train and go to Canada
and make an inspection. When they are gathered together in parties of two or
three, or more, one of our staff accompanies them, and goes to Canada with them
and stays with them while they inspect the country. They endeavour to interest:
them, or convince them that they should either rent a farm, or buy a farm, or
come to Canada and establish themselves as farmers. The movement from the
United States is comparatively small at the present time, but it is gradually
improving. Our organization for the past four years has shown a steady increase
in colonists obtained from year to year, but I do not see any hope of a large
movement, from the United States for some years to come.

By Mr. Arthurs:
Q. Have you any figures as to how many have been brought over from the
United States?—A. I have not that with me. '
Q. Can you give any comparative figures for last year, or for any other
year?—A. I had not got it here, but I could get it. We used to bring them over
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from the United States in special trainloads, and it dwindled down to nothing.
It is gradually on the up-grade now, but it is coming very slowly.

Q. That is the period around 1911 you are referring to now?—A. 1911, 1912
and 1913.

Q. You say that the movement is satisfactory to your people?—A. Pardon
me, you misunderstood me, the movement is not satisfactory to us.

I would just like to touch for a moment on the organization that we have
on the Continent. At our sub-headquarters in London, England, Mr. Charles
DeMey, our Continental Superintendent, has charge of the organization, both
in preferred and non-preferred Continental countries. Mr. DeMey has been
in this work for a great many years. He has been with our Department since
1912, T believe, and I think he is recognized and looked upon as being as familiar
with colonization affairs on the Continent as any other man on the other side.
We maintain offices of the Department of Colonization and Development of the
Canadian Pacific in Rotterdam, Holland; Oslo, Norway; Gothenburg, Sweden;
and in Copenhagen, Denmark. The Managers of each of these offices were
born in the country in which they are now working, but they are all Canadian
citizens. They have each had many years of experience in Canada, have
become naturalized, and have gone back to the country of their origin as
Managers of our offices. They know the conditions of the country in which
they are working, and they also are intimately familiar with the conditions in
Canada. They carry on such publicity as they are permitted to, under the
laws of the country in which they are located, and do everything they possibly
can, both themselves and their staff, to induce emigration to Canada.

I touched briefly, yesterday, on our organization in the non-preferred
countries. We have our Certificate Issuing officers at Antwerp, Prague, Buchar-
est, Warsaw; and we are sending an assistant officer to Warsaw; and at Zagrab
in Jugo-Slavia, and one at Riga. These men were also born in the countries in
which they are now representing us. They have all had long residence in Canada,
and they are all naturalized Canadians. They have intimate knowledge of the
country in which they are working, and intimate knowledge of Canada. I think
they have all Had actual farming experience in Canada, except one. The
colonists, coming from the non-preferred countries, are presented to these
officers. It is their duty to talk to them and to determine whether they will make
proper colonists for Canada, and whether they are of the class they represent
themselves to be. As far as our Department is concerned, the decision of the
respective Certificate Issuing Officer is absolutely final, if he says, “No, I will
not 'approve that man,” that man is not brought out under our auspices. If
he says he will approve him, then he is presented to the Canadian Government
official for either approval or objection.

Q. In the case of a resident of Canada, from one of these countries, who is
desirous of bringing some friend of his, and who prepays the passage to the
Canadian Pacific Railway, it is forwarded in the ordinary course, I presume,
to your agent at Prague, or wherever you may have the agent; is that correct?
—A. You are speaking of nominations?

Q. Nominations, yes?—A. Nominations made by residents of Canada for
men from Checko-Slovakia? 150 %

Q. We will say that a man wants a woman, as is the case I have in mind?
~—A. A resident of Canada makes a nomination of a family from Cheko-.
Slovakia to come to Canada. e ’

Q. He buys the pre-paid tickets; what is the procedure then?—A. He, first
of all, makes his nomination. That nomination, and the prepaid ticket, would
be delivered to one of our steamship offices, at the time he purchased the ticket.
The steamship office forwards the ticket to Prague, and forwards the nomination
to our office in Montreal. Our Headquarters will then investigate the nomination,
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and eventually either approve or refuse it. In the event of approval, it is sent
by us to our officer in Prague, who informs the traffic official that there is an
approved nomination for a certain individual. The procedure is then followed
out, as I have described.

Q. Does the Immigration Department figure in this matter at all?—A. After
our Certificate Issuing Officer says, “Yes, I will pass them, ” They are presented
to the Canadian Government Immigration Inspector, and he has the final say
as to whether they shall go, or whether they shall be turned back.

Q. Does he have a personal examination?—A. Does he meet the man
personally ?

Q. Yes.—A. Oh, yes. ‘

Q. I have grave doubts about that.—A. I have not any doubt.

Q. I will give you a case in point.—A. He does not meet him in Prague, he
meets him before he gets on the boat.

Q. This man was a stranger to me, but he is apparently all right. He had
a couple of hundred acres, partially cleared, and was going well. He wanted
a woman to come over to marry him, some girl that he knew in his native
country. He sent a pre-paid passage by the C.P.R. and the answer came back
that in order to have that done it would be necessary for him to have a Federal
member make an application to the Immigration Department?—A. That was
not necessary, he could have made it himself.

Q. What was the reason for doing that?—A. Because fiancees are not
covered under the Railway’s Continental Agreement. She was not coming out
as a domestic servant under our Continental agreement.

Q. In other words, this woman would have been accepted as a domestic, but
not as a wife, had that man nominated her as a domestic?—A. No, because if
he had shown as a single man, and nominated this woman, the nomination
would not have been approved.

Q. I looked into this case myself, and the outcome was that there was so
much delay with the Department, that in the meantime she had married some-
body else. However, he nominated another one, and the Immigration Depart-
ment forwarded that one a little quicker—A. I do not presume that I will be
called upon again, and I would just like to say that during the time I have been
before you I have made an earnest effort to give you an idea of the organization
of the Department of Colonization and Development of the Canadian Pacific.
It is quite natural for me to think and I do believe that we have the finest
colonization organization that was ever gotten together. I do not think that
in the history of the world there has been a colonization organization in existence
equal to ours. I have given you an idea of what it is and I want to say
earnestly that that organization is available to the Dominion of Canada for
the carrying out of any practical colonization scheme, or plan, that this Com-
mittee, or this Government may evolve.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps: There are two pieces of information I would like to
get from the Minister, or his Deputy. We all know that Father McDonell
brought a number of settlers out here, and established them, and apparently
earned his money in bringing them out. First of all, I would like to know how
many settlers were brought out by Father McDonell and successfully settled
here, and at what cost to the Government. Secondly, I would like to know the
cost to the Government in repatriating French Canadians from the United
States and bringing them back to Canada.

Witness retired.
The Committee adjourned.
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House or CoMMONS,
Fripay, March 30, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock, a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The Committee proceeded with the consideration of the Immigration Act
and Regulations, and the general subject of immigration.

The CmamrmaN: Gentlemen, we have with us to-day Dr. Black, who was
summoned to appear as a witness to give evidence this morning. Before calling
on Dr. Black I want to say that unless the Committee can gather a little more
punctually, I will adjourn this Committee at 11.15 if a quorum is not present.
It is now 11.25 and we have not got a quorum. It is not fair to the members
who are here to expect them to sit around and wait for the others to come in,
after this I will adjourn the Committee at 11.15 if we do not get a quorum.

Wirtiam J. Brack called and sworn.

By the Chairman:

Q. What is your position with the Canadian National?—A. I am Director
of Colonization, of Agriculture, and of Natural Resources.

Q. Will you make a statement of your organization to the Committee?
—A. I shall be glad to. The Department of Colonization of the Canadian
National Railways was organized in the year 1923. It has associated with it
a Department of Agriculture and also a Department of Natural Resources.
The activities is to some extent occasionally interlock. I wish, first of all, to
give you an outline of the principles of policy which were drawn up to guide
the Department first in the development of its organization, and afterwards in
its activities. These were drawn up at the beginning in the year 1923, and
they have been followed as closely as possible since that time.

1. To influence the immigration and satisfactory settlement in Canada of
the largest possible number of people of productive capacify that the country
can absorb and assimilate;

2. To promote the land settlement of new Canadians under conditions that
will ensure the maximum possibility of success in their farming operations, and
enable them to enjoy such social and religious institutions as are necessary to
individual happiness and contentment.

3. To encourage improvement in agriculture so that more diversified
methods may be used in farming, and that crop, live stock and dairy production
may be increased in accordance with market demands and prospects.

4. To assist by organized effort in the immigration of young people of
desirable type and character, especially from Great Britain, and in their place-
ment in respectable rural homes where they may become qualified to participate
in constructive activities and acquire citizenship of distinet value to Canada.

5. To aid in the development of new opportunities for service and to
facilitate every effective means of selecting immigrants physically fit and anxious

for work.
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6. To co-operate with the Federal and Provineial governments and business
organizations throughout the Dominion in promoting all measures calculated to
contribute toward an increase in immigration of adaptable people and in their
settlement under the most favourable conditions possible.

7. To contribute to the dissemination of information concerning the vast
and extensive natural resources of the Dominion and the widespread opportuni-
ties for industrial development, so that capital may be attracted from other
countries and invested where enterprise will be legitimately rewarded.

Following these principles as outlined, the following primary purposes were
adopted for guidance in operating the Department.

1. To hasten the occupation and cultivation of vacant lands adjacent to
Canadian National Railway lines.

2. To ensure that districts served by the Railway shall have advantage of
the maximum number of new settlers arriving in Canada.

3. To make certain that farmers adjacent to our lines shall have adequate
labour to the end that their production shall be increased.

In our organization there are three sections, the Canadian, United States,
and Overseas, the headquarters being at Montreal. In Canada we have two
divisions, Eastern and Western.

The Eastern Division is administered from Montreal. In addition to the
local office there, which co-operates with the Provincial Government organiza-
tions of Ontario and Quebec, we have a sub-office at Moncton for the Maritime
Provinces.

Our chief office for the Western provinces is at Winnipeg, with sub-offices
at Saskatoon and Edmonton. At Vancouver we have an office, in association
with the Industrial Department which is devoted more largely to natural
resources. We give very little attention to the placement of people in Vancouver,
for reasons which I will indicate later.

In the United States our organization is centred at St. Paul. It is not large
as we only have a few on our staff. Over there our effort is necessarily a ques-
tion of land selling. 'We are not duplicating anything that the Canadian Depart-
ment of Immigration is doing. It is not a question of getting Americans to
come to Canada to engage as farm workers because they are not available for
that employment. We had an office at Boston, but it was closed a year or two
ago because we were not able to do really effective work in that area. We also
had an office at Seattle but it was closed, largely for the same reason. The
American situation, in general, I shall deal with later.

In Canada, we are working in the closest possible co-operation with the
Federal Department of Immigration and Colonization. We aim to co-operate
for the reason that we recognize it would be undesirable to have any duplication.
They assist us occasionally, wherever it is convenient for them to do so. In
a general way we harmonize our efforts with those of the Department in the
placement of new settlers throughout the country. I do not wish to infer that
we are loading, or attempting to load on the Federal Department of Immigration
any responsibilities for the activities that are initiated by ourselves, or are
entirely under our control. That is not the case.

We also co-operate, as closely as possible, with the various provincial
departments of immigration, where such exist. This applies to Ontario and to
a considerable extent to Quebec. The Governments of the Maritime Provinces
also co-operate with us and so do the Governments of the Western Provinces,
in so far as they are taking an active and direct interest in this particular
- question.

i In addition to these offices and the officers directly associated with them
we have a number of field men who work for us when occasion requires, but
who are not regularly on our pay list. We have not followed the practice of
organizing associations, or clubs, or boards at local points throughout the
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country to any extent. We try to interest what would usually be the Chairman
of such a local organization, or the Secretary, or the most active individual.
With organizations of that class in rural districts, it usually devolves upon
some one individual to do most of the work. That has always been my experi-
ence, when living in the country, and I think that is the experience of most of
FOUL.

- Hon. Mr. MorHERWELL: You interest the President or Secretary of an
already existing organization?

Dr. Brack: Not necessarily the President of an existing organization.
We select some individual in that community who is willing to assist us; who
is thoroughly familiar with the conditions and the needs of that district, and
who can spare sufficient time to look after our interests, when we have occasion
to call upon him.

That service is confined almost altogether to first determining the amount
of help that will be required in a district adjacent to our railway line, and also
to the development opportunities that there may be in that community for the
settlement of families. When the workers arrive, these men meet the trains
at Winnipeg, or at their own station, and received them and distribute them.
They do the same thing with families.

We have some 418 such men upon our staff who are giving us service and
who are paid for the particular service which they perform, and for nothing more.

Then we also have our regular station-agents. They are working in close
association with us. There are 2,221 of these agents, and while all are not
actively engaged, a large percentage of them are. They assist us, when required,
by looking after people at any particular point. In the three prairie provinces,
where the services of the station agents are of the most value, we have some
seven hundred.

Then we are working in association with several religious organizations.
There is a certain work which we find church organizations can do, that probably
cannot be done so well by any other kind of organization. Invariably the church
organization takes a special interest in looking after the people when they
arrive, and, if need be, in the case of a family, they take them into their own
homes and look after them in that way. Not only that, but they see that they
get settled in districts where they will be within reach of a church of their own
faith, which is a very important matter with most of the new people coming to
this country. We have been able to assist them considerably in facilitating their
activities, and some of the very finest settlement work that is being done to-day
in Canada is being done under these auspices.

Passing to our overseas organization. Just on this point, I wish to point
out that the most important question, with regard to the dctual settlement of
people in Canada, is right here in Canada and not overseas. Apart, possibly,
from the difficulties that we encounter in interesting enough of the right kind
of people in the British Isles to come to Canada the effort on the other side of
the Atlantic is small in comparison with the effort that it is necessary to make
in this country, in order to settle people into homes of their own, under the
conditions that necessarily exist here at the present time.

The headquarters of our organization covering the Continent and the
British Isles is at London, At the same point we have a local office, and others
at Liverpool, Glasgow and Belfast. For the Continent, we have a superintend-
ent whose office is at London and who operates under the European Manager.
There are district offices in Norway, at Oslo; in Sweden, at Gothenburg; in
Denmark, at Copenhagen and also at Rotterdam in Holland. These are the
only offices that the Colonization Department of the Canadian National Rail-
ways have on the Continent of Europe.

We have Certificate Issuing Officers, in connection with what is known as
the Railways Agreement—which, I understand, has already been explained to
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you, and with which you are already familiar. We have two such officers
at Warsaw, one of whom spends part of his time in the Baltic States.
Another is at Prague in Czecho-Slovakia, and a fourth at Zagreb in Jugo-Slavia.
Then, we have three other officers on the Continent who give part of their time
to this class of work; one at Paris, another at Antwerp, and a third at Rotterdam.

On the Continent our regular offices act as information bureaus. We dis-
tribute literature from these points, but, with the exception of Holland, there
are no lectures being given. Holland has been less rigid, insofar as refusal to
allow Canadian officers to conduct propaganda is concerned, than any other
Continental preferred country.

In the Scandinavian countries, until the last couple of years, it has been
practically impossible to attempt any kind of propaganda. When we started in
Denmark the Danish authorities made it very clear that they did not wish us
to do any advertising, give lectures, or otherwise to attempt to induce the Danish
people to go to Canada. They did, however, make it clear to us that they
would be very glad for us to give information to all who were interested in
-Canada and who desired to come to this country. We started in there very
quietly, and, I am glad to be able to say, we gained the confidence of the Danish
people. We have followed the same course in Norway, and again in Sweden,
with equally satisfactory results.

Our offices were opend in Norway and in Denmark in 1924, and in Holland
during the same year. Our office in Sweden two years later.

Before referring further to the question of lectures, I wish to speak of a
special branch of our service in Canada. I have said that the great problem is in
looking after the people when they arrive in this country. We have organized,
and have had in existence for two or three years, what is known as the Canadian
National Land Settlement Association. I believe Mr. Macalister mentioned in
his statement that we were associated with the Canadian Department of Immi-
gration and the Canadian Pacific in the management of the Canada Colonization
Association.

About 1923, or 1924, it became apparent that most of the settlement work
that, the Canada Colonization Association was doing was the settlement of Men-
nonite people. As we were not, at that time, engaged at all in the movement of
Mennonite people, there was not a great deal to be gained by the Canadian
National Railways continuing with the Canada Colonization Association, and
so we struck out on a line of our own, and we organized and incorporated what
is known as the Canadian National Land Settlement Association, to which I
have referred. This Association is controlled entirely by the Canadian National
Railways, as a division, or subsidiary, to the Department of Immigration and
Colonization.

The object of this Association is: 1, to increase settlement in Canadian
National Railway territory; 2, to advise, assist and place new settlers to their
own best advantage; 3, to supervise activities of new settlers in purchase of
stock, equipment, etc., preparation of land, crops sown, and general work; 4,
constant activity, finding, listing and handling desirable farms for newcomers.
There is no commission whatever retained in connection with the activities of
this organization. It exists for the purpose of fitting families on to farms
under such conditions as farms may be obtained, and settlement thereon
arranged. We have found that when a family, suitable for Canadian life, with
farm experience, showing evidence of thrift, arrives in this country, that if the
have a little money, the amount depending largely upon the country from whic
they come, there are available a great many farms where they can be started
v;ith little capital. We have located and established a great many families in
this way.

In 1927 the Canadian National Land Settlement Association placed 1,228
families, either directly or indirectly upon the land. Of that number we placed
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eight families in the Maritime Provinces; eleven in Quebec; ninety-five in
Ontario; 106 in Manitoba; 427 in Saskatchewan and 581 in Alberta. You will
probably be interested in the origin of these families. There were 306 families
who were British or Americans; the majority being from the United States;
187 were from Scandinavian countries; 303 were of the German race, or German
nationality, and 372 were from Continental non-preferred countries.

As a result of this activity, many abandoned or neglected farms have been
successfully settled. However much we may desire to increase British settle-
ment, we find that certain Continental people—as I think those of you who are
actively engaged in that life in Western Canada know—make a success on farms
which have been abandoned by others, or upon which others find difficulty in
succeeding. We have formed some new - settlements, and some old ones have
been rejuvenated.

We know of 119,600 acres of new land that has been broken in Saskatchewan,
adjacent to the Canadian National Railways line; and in Alberta 419,500, or a
total of 530,100 acres in those two provinces. About fifty per cent of that area
was scrub, or more or less treed.

Mr. Caman: Was that broken by new settlers?

Dr. Brack: Not entirely by settlers who came out in 1927, but largely by
settlers who have come to Canada within the last two or three years. Of course,
the farmers who are already established there, in many instances, had a good
deal of breaking done, but, to a large extent, this breaking was done by people
who had come to Canada within the last two or three years.

In connection with this settlement activity it may be of interest to you
to know that we have an arrangement whereby when we locate a family in 2
non-preferred country, or even in the preferred countries on the Continent of
Europe, whom we consider are suitable people and would make successful
settlers in Canada, we induce them to buy a Canadian National Money Order
for the minimum amount which will be necessary, in our opinion, for them to
have in order to start farming. They buy that Money Order payable to us
at Winnipeg, and we direct the expending of it in the interests of the settler.
It may appeal to some of you as being a rather extraordinary way of handling
business of this kind, but, under the Railways Agreement, we have no desire
to be parties to the introduction to Canada, or to be responsible to the Immi-
gration Department of Canada, for the bringing in of families that will not
become settled on the land. Notwithstanding the assurance which they always
give in Europe that they have absolutely no other intention than that of
settling on the land in Canada when they get here they occasionally indicate
a desire to enter the cities. We overcome that by insisting on this Money
Order before they leave the district in which they live, and it has a very con-
siderable influence in ensuring that the individuals do not change their minds
when they reach this country. As far as I am aware, and I think I know the
facts, we have not had a single complaint from any settler whose money we
have handled, that we have been unfair, or have not treated him honestly.

Mr. Torzxe: To what extent has that been carried on?

Dr. Brack: It has been done in nearly all cases of families coming from
non-preferred countries. As I said before, we handled 872 families from non-
preferred countries. We have been endeavouring to do it in the other countries
as well. We got it going a little over a year ago, and I think that we will -
have it working practically everywhere this year. In some preferred countries
where there is competition in securing desirable families other organizations
than ours may take them without a deposit and as we are anxious to hold
our own business we might not always insist upon it there. However, in the
non-preferred countries, we insist on the money being put up.

[Dr. W. J. Black.]




288 SELECT STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. CampBeLn: Your real object is to know that you are going to sell
them your own land?

Dr. Brack: We have no land to sell these people, as a rule. We have
not sold Canadian National Railways land to three per cent of these people.

Mr. CampBELL: You have no interest whatever in land?

Dr. Brack: Except the interest of a railway serving that particular land,
and our desire to see that land producing in order that we may have traffic
from it. That is the fundamental reason. It is of no advantatge whatever to
the Canadian National Railways to settle any man adjacent to our line, unless
he is settled under conditions which, in our opinion, give him a reasonable
chance of succeeding. Otherwise he will be of no good to the railway what-
ever, and he only encumbers the ground. In other words the settler’s own
interest is identical with the railway’s in that respect.

Mr. GarLanp (Bow River): How much do you ask the settler to put up?

; Dr. Brack: That varies, to a certain extent, according to the country.

Some of these people can settle with less than others. We have settled some
Continental families with as low as $300. We like to get $500 but where we
can get a farm with probably twenty or twenty-five acres under cultivation
with a house that is habitable and we know that the individual can find
employment in the neighbourhood, also if the settler has a family who can,
to a large extent, take care of whatever farming operations there are, he can
get through with $300. Almost invariably we find that they have far more
than that, but we insist on that as a minimum. Most of them have twice
as much as we ask for, but we are able to start some families with $300. We
have a lot of German families that we have settled in that way and they are
successful beyond a doubt. I can direct you to the settlement if you wish so
that you can examine them at any time. I will name some of the settlements
in a moment.

Mr. Caman: Before you are through will you tell the Committee what
steps you take in the way of procuring actual settlement, as to where they
settle, whether they have contracts for buying land, what arrangements are
made that they may become permanently located in these places where you do
locate them?

Dr. Buack: I will explain that now. One of the activities of our Land
Settlement Association is in finding places, that is farms that are available on
easy terms. There have been a great many available in the last six or seven
years. We ascertain that the farm can be obtained without any cash pay-
ment, and arrange that the individual may be given from twelve to fifteen
years to pay for it. We satisfy ourselves as to the price, whether it is reason-
able and fair. Indeed we do not allow a settler ‘o go on a farm, under our
auspices, unless we are sure it is a fair and reasonable price.

Mr. CauaN: Are there a considerable number of such farms?

Dr. Brack: There have been a great number, but they are becoming fewer.
You have to have some kind of a house that is habitable. If it is in wooded
country, the settler can very soon get protection for a cow and horse, and other
shelter as necessary. Our whole effort in this connection, is to get the settler
started with as little financial overhead as possible. Our experience has been
that the less the settler has hanging over his head from the start, the better it
is for him. Theoretically, we can argue that if a man has a good farm, that 18,
a piece of land that is going to be productive, with a healthy family able and
willing to work, he will succeed. You can figure that out on paper and show an
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exceedingly fine return. But in actual practice, considering the human limita-
tions, if we are going to succeed as a railway organization in an enterprise of
this kind, we find we must aim to keep down the overhead to the minimum.

An Hon. MeEmBER: What is the average size of the farm?

Dr. Brack: For those families who have limited means, they are usually
160 acre farms. That does not mean that 160 acres could be broken, but with
sufficient arable land to provide a living from the start. If they have reason-
ably good luck, they may do better than that, as the family grows up.

Mr. Lucas: What would be the average price per acre?

Dr. Brack: I would like to give you that accurately. As a matter of fact,
I did not think of bringing that before the Committee.

Mr. CampBELL: It would not be more than $15 or $20 per acre?

Dr.-Brack: Where the family has limited means, sometimes it is even lower
than that. In most cases it would be below $12. Where they have more money
than the minimum indicated they would be able, of course, to pay more.

Mr. Lucas: How far would it be from the railroad?

Dr. Brack: That varies.

I will read you this list of settlers, giving a sample of the groups we have
settled. There are, in Saskatchewan, Eston, Richlea and Eatonia districts.
The settlers there are not the class of families about which I have been speaking.
They are mostly Americans, and they have money. At St. Walburg, Sask., we
have settled a number of families of the class of which I have been speaking.
They are located some distance out from St. Walburg and generally in a direc-
tion in which the railway is expected to go. Also, at Kuroki we have settled
families, at Cold Lake and St. Paul in Alberta; at Pass Lake in Western Ontario,
east of Port Arthur. The latter is a Danish settlement and the people there have
gone on homesteads and are doing well. 'Then, at New Denmark in New Bruns-
wick, there is a prosperous new settlement, also of Danes. At Ochre River and at
Minitonas we have placed some families of the kind I have described. These
have been placed on farms which had formerly been abandoned, and the settlers
are doing well. -

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. They are mostly Germans?-—A. Yes.
Q. Who abandoned the farms?—A. Very largely Canadians.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. But were they not abandoned in a very bad period—-during 1921 and
1922?—A. There is something in that.

Q. The same people might do better now?—A. Yes, they might come back
and succeed.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River):

Q. Would you mind telling the Committee what arrangements you make
to sgcure payments upon this land? Do you act as the intermediary?—A. No,
we do not. . "

Q. Assoon as you have found the settler, you turn him over to the owner and
let him make what contract he can?—A. No, we never leave him. We walk
by his side until the transaction is settled to our satisfaction—always. Not
only that, but we provide some supervision in regard to his farming activities
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for a year or two until we are sure he is getting along well. We make it very
clear to him that at any time he may have any difficulties in the matter of pay-
ments or anything of that kind, we are prepared to act as his intercessor,
because, we do not wish him to be disturbed if he is progressing at all.

Q. What is the nature of that supervision?—A. Our men call from time
to time, depending upon the evidence of necessity for calling upon them.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Do you sell mostly by crop payments or cash payments?—A. We our-
selves do not actually sell. We act as the intermediary. The system of pay-
ment depends upon the conditions. ILet me here emphasize that our function
is to negotiate as between the owner and the settler in order that the latter
may secure the best conditions of payment possible. We have such a vast
country and such a variety of conditions that what we can do successfully in
one district may not be best for another district at all, and so the nature of the
activities of any Canadian-wide organization must vary in different districts to
a very large extent.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Just a question in regard to these American families who had money,
which you said you brought in. Are you settling them on vacant land or
abandoned land?—A. No. There is a case—and I am sorry I did not think
of it when the other question was mentioned—where we have sold some Canadian
National Railways land. I think practically all of the land that the Canadian
National has had a monetary interest in selling in 1927 was sold to Americans,
and those of you who are familiar with the American settler coming into Canada
know very well that he always has his eyes open and can usually take care of
himself. It is not a common thing for any American settler to pay more for the
land than is being paid in the district for similar land.

Q. Are the majority of them settled on improved farms?—A. No, mostly
vacant land. To a large extent these settlers are men who have been renters
in the United States. Some of them had small farms and have sons who are
requiring land. They sell out over there and are able for what they get, say
in Minnesota or Towa, for the land which they owned, to buy four times as great
an area in Western Canada, and have their sons settle adjacent to them. That
has been happening for many years, and is still happening to some extent.

Q. In regard to these families that you bring out from Europe under your
supervision: can you tell the Committee the average cost to you of bringing
these families out, settling them and supervising them for a year?—A. 1 cannot
give you that, because we have never actually estimated that. It would be
rather a difficult thing to do. It is not unduly great, however, for this reason:
on the Continent of Europe there is not very much difficulty in getting a large
number of people to come to Canada.

By Mr. Campbell: . -

Q. They do not generally have much money?—A. They do not generally
have much money, but still we are getting more and more people with a fair
amount. We had one group of 193 families last year come to us, not all from
the same territory, but under the same auspices, who landed in Winnipeg with _
an average of $745 per family.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Were they Britishers?—A. No, not one of them. Quite a large percent-
age of them were Germans.
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By Mr. Campbell:

Q. You get a good many Germans from these Slovakian districts, for in-
stance, East Galicia, and so forth?—A. What has happened in this connection
is this: there are many German families, or families of German race, who for-
merly lived under the flag of Germany or the flag of Hungary, but who now find
themselves under the flag of Roumania or under the flag of Poland, and as they
feel they are being oppressed politically and otherwise, and seeing no hope for the
future, they desire to migrate. Their families in some cases experienced oppres-
sion generations ago and they fear a repetition of what has happened. They
endeavor therefore to sell out, and they do sell out when they can get a reason-
able price for their lands, and locate in another country. One of the chief
difficulties they encounter in getting away is securing a reasonable price for their
property. We are consequently getting many families that are exceedingly fine
settlers. We have settled some in Western Canada which had as high as $20,000.
We handled $230,000 last year in the way I have described; that is, $230,000
were laid down on our counter in Canadian National money orders, and these
settlers brought to us a capital altogether of over $1,000,000 of which we know.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River) :

Q. I was very much interested in your deseription of the types you bring
out. You mentioned, with some approval, the thrifty family. Would it be
fair to say that your description of a thrifty family from Europe would be one
who was willing to accept a lower standard of living than the average Western
Canadian farmer?—A. When you are dealing with the standard of living you are
dealing with a matter that is comparative. I am only expressing an opinion,
although I realize that I am under oath. What you call a standard of living in
this country would, I fancy, have been considered extreme extravagance by our
grandfathers. I am not suggesting for a moment that the farmers of Canada to-
day have a standard of living that is too high. I am not sure at all that they
have. There are some who have, undoubtedly.

Q. But the thrifty farmer of which you spoke is of the type which is willing
to accept a lower standard of living than the average Western Canadian farmer?
—A. T am not quite sure what you mean by “a lower standard of living.”

Q. T mean the average which the Western Canadian farmer possesses any-
where?—A. T am not sure whether I know that.

Q. You know the Western Canadian standard of living at the present time?
You know the state in which the average Canadian farmer lives in Saskatchewan
and Alberta? Knowing that, surely you can compare it with the standard of the
Immigrants?—A. It is a very comparative matter. If you mean that a man is
going— #

Q. To own an automobile?—A. I think it is all right for a man to have a
motor car on the farm. In fact, I do not know of any class of men who has a
better right to a motor car than a farmer, because he is living out from the centre
of population, but I do not think that very many of the farmers who to-day have
motor cars throughout the country—and as I say have a right to them—would
have started the first year with a motor car. If they had, they would not be
on their farms to-day.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. In other words, their standards have risen with their ability to pay ?—A.
I consider the standard of living of the people we bring out is just as high as was
that of the homesteader of twenty years ago in Western Canada. In addition,
We must not forget this, that the individual from the Continent to-day—the
heads of the families and the members of the families—are just as ready to work
as our fathers and grandfathers were, when they came to this country and settled,
and after all that is one of the main reasons why they are so successful, just as
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our forefathers were so successful under the same conditions. The trouble is
that too many people come here and expect to start in where the others have left
off and make a success, and no man with a little capital, or with borrowed
capital, or with money handed to him will succeed if he is not willing to work.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Does the Canadian National Railways expect the farmers to put up with
the standard of living from the Canadian National point of view? I think that
would be very interesting.—A. I am sure they would. I want to say in answer
to that question that we are not expecting any new settler who is settling under
our auspices to live and work under any condition different from that under which
I myself lived and worked as boy.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. Did not the Canadian National Railways have its shack days too?—
A. I think so.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Are they willing to work under this policy of thrift? That is, do you
expect them to settle and put up with whatever they can find in the way of
housing, or equipment, or do they think they should have all the latest equip-
ment to work with, or are they willing to go on and not assume a large over-
head?—A. You are getting outside of colonization and are asking a question
which should be answered by our president, and not by me. I am not speaking
for the whole railway, but only for my Department.

By Mr. Howe:

Q. Is it not a fact that the standard of living of a settler is on a basis
that absolutely discourages farm settlers from the British Isles?—A. No.

Q. Is it not a fact that about 10 per cent of those taking up land settlement
schemes in Canada are Britishers?—A. I will come to that a little later on.
There are a good many British being settled on their own account, but a
deterring factor in preventing the British coming here to settle is the fact not
so much that there may be a difference in the standard of living in Canada as
the attitude of these people generally. No one regrets this more than I do,
but the reason why the Continental European going on the land is easier to
settle than my own flesh and blood coming to this country is because the
Continental is a little more ready to work. Of course, there are exceptions to
that. There are British people coming to this country who are as fine as any
who ever came, but the rank and file are not as ready to work and put their
backs inte the kind of work in which pioneers have to engage, as are the people
from the Continent. There is a decided difference there. There is no question
about it.

Q. Is it not a matter of selection? The earlier pioneers, of which we
were speaking a few moments ago, were principally British, and no class
worked any harder than the British pioneer. Is it not merely a matter of
selection? Do you mean to say that the British type is not as ready to work,
if you find the right working class among them, as any other class?—A. I am
sorry that my notes, which contain something of interest on this question, have
been carried from the desk in mistake. I shall deal with that later.

By Mr. Garland (Bow River): 4
Q. Do you think it is true that the average English tenant farmer, apart
altogether from the actual land owner, the average English a.grlcultural
labourer with his minimum hours law and reasonable social standard, is dis-
inclined to undertake the hardships of pioneering in Western Canada as we
[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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know them?—A. The questioner has asked me whether it is a fact that the
English tenant farmer, for example, is not, as I understand it, so favourably
situasted that he is not particularly interested in coming to Canada. That is
largely true—very largely true. I wish to say at this point that the question
of getting Britishers is not an easy one at all.” Less than 5 per cent of the
population of the British Isles to-day are engaged in agriculture, and Great
Britain requires these people to remain there. There i1s no question about
that. Although Great Britain is politically willing to let us take them if we
can get them, the farmers’ organizations over there are not, especially when it
comes to endeavouring to induce their farm labourers to come out. They are
opposed to their farm labour being canvassed. Then, again, there is going on
in the British Isles a movement which is going on in every other country which
is a joint agricultural and industrial country, and that is a movement from
the country to the city. I lived in England for the calendar year 1924 and
was in close contact with what was happening. I found that in the year
previous—1923-—the Ministry of Agriculture report showed that 60,000 people
left the farms of England, Ireland, and Scotland, and went into the towns
and villages. Now, we have that comparatively small population of farmers
to draw from, and the wages are very nearly as good on an average as they
are in Canada. They are paying as high as 32s. a week for experienced workers
in such counties as Norfolk; they have their eight hour day and they have a
half day on Saturday. Not only that, but they have ahead of them their old
age pensions, which we have not got here. One of the questions which we arc
asked when we are endeavouring to get these people to come out is, “What
can you assure us for the future?” Then, in addition to that there is a certain
atmosphere since the war. Some day it is the dole—more properly called
unemployment insurance—which leads people to think that it does not make
much difference whether they work or not, as they will be looked after anyway,
and there is not the same sense of pride in being independent that there was
in the older days. In other words, it is a fact that the British race in the
British Isles does not display the same genius for pioneering that they did in
the days of old. )

Q. Then the Committee may take it that your opinion is that if there is to
be any rap:d settlement in Western Canada, the bulk of it will have to come
from other countries than England or the British Isles?—A. That is tying me
down definitely to a direct assertion on an important question. I appreciate—

Q. It follows on your own statement.—A. If there 1s to be rapid settlement
of Western Canada, a large percentage of it—I do not know just what the per-
centage would be, but it would be considerable—must come from the continent
of Europe. I myself would like to see 75 per cent of it come from the British
Isles, but if there is to be a rapid settlement of Western Canada, that is im-
possible. I am sorry to say that that is true, but it is. We must face the facts.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Is it possible to have a rapid settlement of Western Canada?—A. It is
hard to say what you mean by so-called “rapid settlement.” That is a com-
parative matter as well. We had 159,000 people come into Canada last year,
and most of them were supposed to go on to farms. If we were getting 400,000
or more, as we were in 1911 and 1912, that would afford an answer to your
question as to rapid settlement.

Q. My point there is this: In those days we were opening up the country;
we had good homesteads available close to the railways; there were jobs on the
railways and work in all the little towns. That gave us a power to absorb
immigrants which we have not got to-day at all—A. You are quite right, and
before T have finished I hope to have the opportunity of giving you the benefit
of my observations as to some things in general which might be done.
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By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. You said if rapid settlement were to take place you would require to
get, your settlers from various sources. What do you call “rapid”? In the last
ten years the wheat production has doubled from 200,000,000 to over 400,000,000.
Is that “rapid”?—A. I should say so, but that does not necessarily mean rapid
settlement. That is due to a large extent to the farmers increasing quite con-
siderably the cultivation of the land under their control, and to the use of
machinery as well.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. On that point I think you perhaps will have an idea. Do you think
it wise to double our wheat production in the next ten years?—A. Well, of
course, do you not think you are getting as good a price now as you did before
it was doubled?

Q. I am asking for information, and I think the Committee have the right
to expect that you would have an opinion, as you are engaged in the work in
the west.—A. Some of the scientific people are greatly concerned with the fear
" that in the next hundred years the population of the world will be so great that
we will not be able to raise food to feed them. Personally, I do not think there
is any danger of that.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Is there not a danger from over-production?—A. I think we ought to be
more concerned with what will happen in Russia.

By Mr. Rowe:
Q. would it not be wiser to increase our consumption rather than our
production?

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Just a question arising out of your answer to Mr. Garland’s question
about the difficulty in getting people from the British Isles. Would you say that
if our desire is to secure a very rapid settlement of the vacant land in Canada,
we could secure it much easier if we devoted the energy we are now putting
into Great Britain to Continental Europe?—A. An answer to that calls for
some explanation. If we wish to take people from the Continent.in larger
numbers that we are taking them now, we do not need to put forth any special
effort to do it. It is a question more of letting down the bars than of making
a special effort.

Mr. Ecan: You have your railway agreements now, and—

The WrirNess: I said “letting down the bars.” Perhaps that calls for
some explanation as well. We have the railway agreement and we are able to
bring forward all the families we can be sure we can handle properly at the
present time, but I believe if it were not for the fact that we have a restricted
area over there, or at least that there are certain countries which we class “non-
preferred countries”-——we would be getting people from them much faster than
we are at the present time. That is what I had reference to.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Would the National Railways like to have that done?—-A. The National
Railways is a British institution.

Q. I think it is a Canadian institution, if I may differ with you. I am
asking for information, and I hope you will be good enough to answer my ques-
tion. Would you prefer that we allow them to bring these immigrants from
non-preferred countries as freely as from Great Britain?
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Mr. Caman: I object to that question. I think it is an unfair question,
and to persist in that will provoke a very unpleasant discussion.

The Wrrngss: I should like to answer that question. I should like to say
that as far as the regulations laid down by the Department of Immigration are
concerned, the Canadian National Railways is able to bring all of the people
from these non-preferred countries that we want to bring at the present time.
We are able to work within the regulations laid down and we are not bringing
a single person from continental countries unless we are perfectly sure he can be
placed on arrival.

By Mr. Coote:

Q. You are not asking that the bars be let down?—A. No, I do not wish
to leave that impression at all. We are perfectly satisfied with the present
arrangement in that regard.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Do you find that the average person coming from the cities and towns
in England, not of the agricultural type, makes a good farm labourer when he
comes to this country?—A. I will answer your question in a moment, in con-
nection with our activities in the British Isles. In our organization overseas,
the Canadian National Railways has a Canadian organization. The men on
the other side who are running our affairs are Canadians. Two or three of them
were born on the other side, but they spent most of their lifetime here. Our
present Manager at London, Mr. Johnston, was at Winnipeg many years. I
believe that most of you know him. He was born at Headingly, Manitoba.
He had six or seven years’ education in the Old Country, has been in Canada
ever since, and identified with agriculture. He is a graduate of an agriculture
college. The members of our staff are nearly all of that type. They are all
Canadians, excepting a few of the clerical staff, which must necessarily be
employed in England. Not only that, but our men are kept closely in touch
with conditions in Canada. When a man has been over there for a length of
time, there is a change made in the organization so that he can come back here,
and some man from here takes his place. Our men on the other side are all
thoroughly conversant with the actual conditions that exist in this country.

I have found this, as a result of experience many years ago in Western
Canada that when the average Britisher comes to Canada he will have difficulties
in fitting himself into conditions here during the first two- or three months.
- Usually when he gets through the first two or three months he is able to manage
very well after that. It is the first period that is the trying time. I came to
the conclusion some time ago that if the attitude of the men, and the slant he
takes towards his new life, and new job, could be changed to some extent, it would
be a good thing. We devised a correspondence course in agriculture for pro-
spective British immigrants. That may appeal to practical farmers present
as being a ridiculous idea and I claim to be a farmer as practical as anyone else.
We decided that by putting on a course of ten lectures dealing with an important
subject of this kind and placing it in the hands of the individuals coming to this
country it would get him thinking about the business of farming which they
would need to understand and that in consequence his attitude towards his job
would be different when he arrived here. We decided that we would charge ten
~ shillings for the course so that there would be some value put on it, and when the
lectures arrived they would not be thrown in the grate. We further decided that
when the individual bought a ticket for Canada, we would apply the ten shillings
on his ticket.
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Here is a sample of the bound velume of the 10 lectures. We had to bind
these in one volume for distribution in Canada, owing to the insistence of
requests for them. This is regularly sold at $1, but if there are any members of
this House who would desire a copy, I shall be very glad to forward one to
them, in order that they may see just what it contains. We do that for educa-
tional purposes only. The subjects are quite practical in character. The first
is: Selecting a Farm and Erecting Farm Buildings; the next, Care of Live stock;
Handling Farm Machinery; Dairying; Poultry; Grain Growing and Soil Man-
agement; Forage Crops; Fruit Growing in Canada; Home and Farm Manage-
ment.

These lectures were written by an immigrant who was brought up on a
farm in Ireland. He came to this country some years ago and worked on a
farm in Manitoba in the summer time, and taught school in the winter. He
went through Manitoba Agricultural College and was a Gold Medalist of that
institution. The lectures were prepared from the standpoint of the beginner,
because this man knew how the immigrant thinks, and he also knew the real

. problems facing a man when he arrives in this country.

That course has been running now for about four years. During last year,
or from August 1st, 1926, to July 31st, 1927, we had 1,521 enrolled as students
in the British Isles. There were also a few on the Continent, who could read
English. We have had over 4,000 students study the lectures in the last four
years,

By Mr. Coote:

Q. Do you not have schools in the Old Country where you teach these
students, as well as correspondence courses?—A. There are schools, but they
are not ours; they are under the supervision of the British authorities. 'We have
been providing this correspondence course and many who took it have come to
Canada. 1 cannot give you the exact figures, but a great many of them have
come to engage in farming and we had no trouble with them. Not that they
know perhaps any better how to harness a horse or milk a cow but they have
become mentally related to their new job, so that he is not hard for the farmer
to train. We have had many farmers who have employed these men tell us
that they would rather have a man who had never worked on a farm, a reason-
ably good type of fellow, who had taken this course, than one who had worked
on a'farm and had not taken it. We find it very effective, and it does not cost
a great deal.

The courses that are being given, under the auspices of the Ministry of
Labour and the Ministry of Agriculture, on the other side, are very practical.
They have taken advantage of the Canadian views, and have Canadian and
Australian machinery. They are sending men out to Australia as well as to
Canada. In some instances, they have lectures delivered by Canadians. Mem-
bers of our own staff, who are agricultural graduates, have given occasional
lectures at these institutions. However, the difficulty is that you soon run up
a heavy expense there. They are shortening their courses now and making
them largely preparatory, simply long enough to determine whether a man
is going to like farming, and long enough for the organization to find out whether
he is going to be fitted for farm life. '

Q. You were going to answer the question asked by Mr. Donnelly?—A. 1
meant, to answer that in what I have just said, that it depends on the attitude
of the man. Of course, if any kind of training has been given to the individual,
before coming here, on an average the man who has worked on a farm ought
to be more useful than the man who has come from the town or city. We must
bear this in mind that in the British Isles there are a lot of people in the towns
and villages who are only one or two generations removed from the farm. A
lot of them are closely in touch with what is going on on farms over there.
They know the life a farmer has to live.
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I have samples of some of the literature that we use on the other side.
Any advertising matter that we have not got, we have cabled for, and I hope it
will be before you before these sessions are over. We have absolutely nothing
to withhold from the Committee in regard to our activities. We have some
samples here, and they could be spread around, so that if there are any ques-
tions to be asked at the next meeting, I shall be glad to attempt to answer them.
We have a booklet here that is used in the British Isles entitled “Helping Settlers
to Start in Canada.” If the picture is too rosy of farm life, if there is any
misrepresentation in it, or if any of the members of this Committee consider
that it is unfair to the settler, I shall be pleased to hear from them at the next
sitting.

By Mr. Vallance:

Q. Has not the tendency been to make the picture too rosy? 1 know how
it was when I came out to Canada?—A. If it was extremely rosy in your
case perhaps it was justified. I, perhaps, should speak for our own organiza-
tion only. I can say that we are not engaged in painting any rosy picture for
very good business reasons. Every time you paint a picture too rosy there is
a reaction, and it comes back on you and you have to pay the piper. Insofar
as painting the picture too rosy is concerned my observation has been that
while it has undoubtedly been done, and may even occasionally be done yet, it
is not being done by the Canadian Department of Immigration, or by the
Canadian National Railways. I think I can be generous and say that I do not
think it is being done by our competitor either. Most of the difficulties that
we have encountered in Canada, in one form or another, in connection with
immigration due to misrepresentations were traceable to steamship agents
overseas. You may have a steamship agent out in a little village, somewhere
in the British Isles, who has no interest in Canada at all. He is representing a
steamship company and his only interest in Canada is to sell a ticket to Tom
Jones to get on the boat. He may see that he has to say a little more that
is favourable about the country, whether it is true or not, in order to make a
sale, and a great deal of misrepresentation has taken place in days gone by
at the instance of certain steamship agents. It is very hard to control that.
We have discussed this question many times in London, as to what might
be done. We have conferred with the British authorities on the question,
because they could not be controlled by Canadian interests, being citizens
of England, Ireland and Scotland. If the immigrant would always go to a
recognized Canadian Immigration or Colonization institution, there would be
no room for complaint. It may have been true in the old days, but it is not
happening in our case, for the very good reason that we could not afford to
let it happen.

By Mr. Spotton:

Q. That would only cover a limited number. The most of the immigrants
come in touch with some of your officials, or those of the Canadian Pacific,
or Immigration Department; these are only isolated cases, I presume? The
other day I met a man who was having his hotel bill paid by a minister. This
fellow said that the High Commissioner of Canada in London told him that
if he came out here he could get a school to teach immediately. That may
be correct, or may not be correct, but it is one case that will have to be
examined.—A. I have had occasion, both when T was in the Department of
Immigration and Colonization, as Deputy Minister, but more particularly
since that time, in my present capacity, to investigate and have investigated,
many cases of that kind. I never have a case reported to me in which it is
alleged that any agent of the Canadian National Railways has misrepresented
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facts to an individual, but it is immediately investigated. We will not keep
any man in our employ who does that kind of thing. I have never yet found
one of these cases to be true.

Q. How do these steamship agents operate?—A. They are men whose
business it is to sell steamship tickets, and they usually represent all the steam-
ship lines. They are professional steamship agents, and every man who comes
to this country from the British Isles has to go to them to buy his ticket.
They are trying to sell tickets all the time, and the steamship lines cannot
always control them. If they censure a man for doing that kind of thing, he
might discontinue selling tickets for that particular line, and sell them for
another instead. There is no system for controlling them.

Q. The steamship lines are responsible for the actions of any person, or
individual, that does business for them; they cannot escape that responsibility?
—A. That is quite true. Following up what I said a moment ago, I have
never found one of these cases yet that was true.

Q. Then it does not exist?—A. It does not exist, insofar as the responsible
-officials of Canadian institutions are concerned. But here is a peculiar thing
about this that I should like to mention while we are on this point. It is
the extraordinary tendency of the public mind to believe the story of the
individual when there is a big corporation, or a government institution involved,
we are always wrong, and the individual is always right.

Q. You are just speaking for the corporation, you are not speaking for
the government; you are speaking for the Canadian National colonization.
scheme?—A. Tt is a matter of concern to all these institutions. Do you want
me to confine myself to my own experience while with the Railway only or
give you what I know of the subject.

Q. The Canadian National Railway, not the Government?—A. Of course,
my experience is not confined to the Canadian National Railways.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: I think we may just as well understand now that Dr.
Black was formerly the Deputy Minister of Immigration, and I think he is quite
competent to give us his experience.

The Wrrness: I do not need to speak on behalf of the Department of Immi-
gration at all, because the officers of it are quite capable of speaking on their own
behalf, there is no doubt about that. I have every confidence in their being able
to do that.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. I only had reference to that period when you were Deputy Minister, and
your experience on that occasion—A. I was speaking of this literature. We have
samples here of the literature from the Scandinavian countries. I shall be glad
to let anyone, who can read either Danish, Swedish, or Norwegian, see them, in
order that you may know the care that we exercise in regard to our literature.
Before the manuseript of each of these booklets was printed, it was submitted to
the Government of the respective countries. This literature here, for Denmark,
was submitted to the Department of Social Affairs of the Danish Government,
and they went over it. I might say that the Government of all these countries
are very jealous that there shall be no misrepresentation of the conditions in
this country, that will cause any imposition to be suffered by their people who
came here. As a result of this, we have been permitted to circulate this literature
quite freely, in these countries, and it has had an exceedingly fine effect. We
have been able to do some advertising but practically no lecturing is permitted
in the Scandinavian countries. Sometimes there are lectures describing Canada,
but not for the special purpose of trying to induce people to come to this
Dominion. Most of the European countries, as T have said, are very careful in
that regard.
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In the non-preferred countries, we do no propaganda work at all, and we
would not be permitted to do so. Someone asked the question a while ago, but
I do not know whether the answer was clearly understood or not, as to the cost
of our effort to get immigrants from these countries.

On the Continent, in the non-preferred countries, very little effort is
required. The steamship lines with which we are associated, have applications
from, or are able to locate far more people than we can take. Our Certificate
Issuing Officers, whom I described to you a moment ago, examine these in-
dividuals to determine whether they are suitable for settlement in this country.
We have very little expense, only that of maintaining these Certificate Issuing
Officers, and we only have four who give all their time to the non-preferred
countries. We have been able to get all the people from the non-preferred
countries that we can handle.

By Mr. Rowe:

Q. Do you use the same literature in all countries?—A. It is practically the
same, but, of course, we use different languages. We also have pamphlets pre-
pared, describing different districts. If anyone would care to see these, I will
leave them here. These are used in our offices in the Scandinavian countries,
and in Germany, not only by ourselves, but by the steamship lines. Here is
one, for instance, “ Opportunities for Settlement of Scandinavians in Central
British Columbia.” There are photographs here of different points in the district,
the homes, and a description of the farms. Here is another one, “ Opportunities
for Scandinavian Settlers along the Lines of the Canadian National Railways in
Northern and Central Saskatchewan.” Then we have one covering the German
families in the St. Walburg district. “ Opportunities for Swedish Settlers in
the Maidstone District.”

By Mr. Millar:

Q. Apparently we are spending a very great sum of money, through the
Government and the railway and the different organizations, in order to induce
settlers to come to Canada. In your opinion, would we get as good results if
some of the money were expended in improving the condition of the farmer when
he arrives here?—A. We will come to that later. I have a statement which
will probably take half an hour to give, and I presume that there will not be
time to deal with it to-day. I shall be glad to present it at the next meeting,
if you desire it. :

By Mr. Rowe:

Q. Do you give any assistance to industrial workers?—A. The Canadian
National Railway are not giving any encouragement at all to any except agri-
cultural workers. We are not making any effort, or spending a single dollar
to induce any class of individual to come to Canada, except the agricultural
and domestic classes. Notwithstanding the best effort, and the most careful
selection that can be made, and the most complete assurance one can get that
they will engage in farming, there is still a high percentage of these people who
drift over into other occupations to about take care of the demand therein.
The question is often asked why arrangements are not made to bring people of
other classes from the non-preferred countries. I do not think that we need to
do that at the present time. Of course, anyone may come from the British
Isles who pays his fare, there is no difficulty about that, providing he is
physically and mentallv fit. Anyone may come from the Scandinavian countries,
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and engage in mining, or anything else, if he is' physically and mentally fit.
The same applies to Germany, France, Belgium and Switzerland.

Q. But they get no assistance?—A. There is no assistance given by any
institution that I know of.

Q. Or supervision?—A. Or supervision, for any occupation other than
agriculture.
Witness retired.

The Committee adjourned until Thursday, April 12th, at 11.00 a.m.
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House or ComMoONS,
Frioay, April 13, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at 11
o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay, presiding.

The CumamrMAN: Gentlemen, we have Dr. Black again this morning.
W. J. Brack recalled.

The Wrirness: Gentlemen, at the meeting on the last day it was intimated
to me that I would be expected to present to you my views as to what might be
done toward solving the great problem of colonization. I have prepared and
have here a brief outline which I should like to read to you if possible without
interruption, and afterwards we might go over it clause by clause, if you wish.
The reason I suggest this is that no doubt at the beginning some questions would
be asked, which might not be raised if it were known that statements appearing
later in the outline provided an answer.

I wish to say, too, that in presenting this outline I am doing so for the
purpose of contributing, if possible, to a constructive consideration of the subject.
I am not here to criticize anyone or any institution, because I do not feel like
doing so.

I am familiar, to a certain extent, with the activities of the Canadian
Department of Immigration but 1 do not know what the immediate plans of the
Department are. I have no doubt that plans for improvement of conditions are
under consideration and if there are features which are not to-day what this
Committee might feel are just as they ought to be, I have no doubt but the
Department is endeavouring to improve them.

Moreover, I am not going to present this outline to you with any pretense
that it is entirely original. While the Department is no doubt dealing with this
question in a manner which they have not communicated to me—and I have no
right to expect that they would—much that I am about to present has been dis-
cussed more or less in other places heretofore.

My first statement is in relation to the present opinion of British people
generally, in the British Isles, regarding what they consider Canada’s attitude
toward British immigration. There is public sentiment over there at the present
time which has to be dealt with, and when we are discussing this clause later I
shall explain more fully what I mean. The statement is &s follows:—.

1. That since the public of Great Britain appear to be of opinion that
Canada is not anxious to encourage Britishers to come to this country, a special
effort be made to convince them to the contrary. In this connection it is recom-
mended: —

(@) That the medical and civil inspection be made as easily obtainable and
as simple as possible, consistent with reasonable protection to Canada’s
interests. d

(b) That the reduced passage rates be continued for the movement of
juveniles and families migrating to engage in farming, but that for
single men arrangements be made for a flat rate of £10 or £12, and
that to this class there be no occupational test. This will enable
single men to move freely, the only restriction being the medical and
general examination. The same rate should apply to transportation
in the reunion of families where the father or head of the family is

established in Canada.
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2. In order that opportunities for engaging successfully in farming may be
increased and the lack of housing accommodation for such families in rural
districts may be partially met, it is proposed that the Federal government of
Canada establish a fund of $4,500,000 to be made available $1,500,000 per
year for each of the next three years to provide for loans for the erection of
workers’ cottages on the farms of those who will apply for such loans and who
may be considered elegible for such consideration.

Under this scheme farmers desiring British farm help would make appli-
cation for loans for the erection of cottages. An agreement between the farmer
and the Federal Immigration Department would be necessary and would
include the setting aside of one acre of land for the purpose, the erection of a
family cottage and a small shed providing accommodation for one cow, a few
poultry, and two or more pigs; no loan to exceed a maximum of $1,500 and to be
repayable in equal annual instalments over a period of from 5 to 10 years with-
out interest if paid when due; otherwise interest to be payable at the usual
rates. .

These cottages would provide homes for families while gaining Canadian
experience who would later take land on their own account, and this they
would be expected to do within a period of two years in order that the cottages
might become available for other immigrants.

3. For the purpose of greatly increasing the number of families becoming
settled on new lands it is recommended that so long as the public lands of the
prairie provinces are under the control of the Federal government, they be
placed under the administration of the Department of Immigration and Coloni-
zation instead of the Department of the Interior as at present. Public lands
form one of the main attractions for prospective land settlers and obviously
should be administered by the Department primarily interested in immigration
and land settlement. While undeveloped they constitute a dead asset; if made
to produce they become of great value to the state and its institutions.

With the publie lands under the control of the Department of Immigration
I would recommend:—

(a) That the present homestead regulations be cancelled and that all
public lands close enough to a railway row existing or projected to
justify their use for farming be examined and a physical description
made available; only those lands on which a settler can be expected
to succeed to be offered for settlement.

(b)_ That there be reserved seventy-five per cent of the lands for Canadians
and immigrants from the British Isles.

(c) That lands be available to those only who are shown by examination
to be physically and financially qualified to make progress in farming,
preference being given to married men with families able to help.

(d) That negotiations be undertaken with the Overseas Settlement Com-
mittee of Great Britain for loans for qualified immigrants from the
British Isles to be settled on the public lands, loans amounting to a
maximum of £250 to be desirable.

4. As affecting lands privately owned, whose owners desire assistance to
find settlers therefor, and within reasonable distance of railways either built
or projected it is recommended as follows:—

(a) That they be listed and settled as and when owners agree to dispose
of them at prices considered reasonable by the Department of Immi-
gration and when this Department has suitable settlers who desire
them, the terms of sale to be on a suitable standard contract; no cash
[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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payment; taxes only for the first two years, and the purchase prices
under amortized payments at six per cent interest covering 15 or 20
years.

(b) That the Overseas Settlement Committee be approached with a pro-
posal to assist in settling British families on such lands by providing
loans amounting to £300 in each case, the loans, expenditures and super-
vision to be provided and dealt with as in the case of the 3,000 families
scheme.

5. As affetting continental immigration of single men from non- preferred
countries and in order to avoid congestion and consequent unemployment in
Canada, it is recommended:—

(¢) That the nomination system be confined to the following degrees:
Father or mother, husband or wife, son or daughter, brother or sister,
uncle or aunt, of persons now engaged in farming in Canada.

(b) That all steamship agents or persons engaged in soliciting signatures
to applications for admission of immigrants from non-preferred coun-
tries be licensed, and that a proper penalty be applied in case of
mmepreeentatlon

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. You said you were going over that outline paragraph by paragraph?—
A. Yes. No. 1 again:—

“ That since the public of Great Britain appear to be of opinion that
Canada is not anxious to encourage Britishers to come to this country a
special effort should be made to convince them to the contrary.”

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. How do you account for them having obtained that impression when
we are giving them more assistance than we have ever done before?—A. T will
explain that, and T am conscious that I am only giving my views, as well
as being under. oath. ‘A good deal of the feeling which has grown up in the
British Isles—

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. Before you start on that: there is an assumption there that that is
true. Will you give us, first, why vou make that assumption? What evidence
have you that that is a fact?-—A. Yes, that is a fact, and I consider that a very
proper question. Anyone who has been reading the British papers in the last
three months has no doubt whatever of that. I do not know whether we have
them here or not, but we can produce a great many clippings from leading
papers of the British Isles showing that that is true. It is clearly being indi-
cated and is a source of disturbance to all of us who are engaged in this work.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. By pr1vate le't;tlers?—A No, in the press. I am not referring to private
letters. It is appearing in statements of incidents occurring which the press
consider indicate this situation.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. Do you think it is systematic propaganda from any source to try to stop
immigration?—A. There always is apparent from time to time evidences of

ropaganda, more or less organized.
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Mr. Ecan: May I ask a question, although not a member of parliament,
but having been a witness?

The CrairmaN: What is the wish of the committee?

Several MEmBERs: Carried.

The Cuamrman: You may ask the question, Mr. Egan.

By Mr. Egan:

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Black, that that which has been in evidence in
the old country press in the last two months is more or less of a repetition of a
certain letter originally appearing in the TWmes of London? I do not know
whether your reading has put you in a position to answer that—A. I think
there is something in that, too. I do not think, however, it is due mainly to
that. T will give you my view as to why I think public opinion is as it is.
} believe conditions arising from the reduced passage rate are largely responsibie
or it.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. And the regulations connected with it?—A. Yes. Now, no country
should be expected to subsidize the entry of people within its borders as we do
in this case, without being expected to examine these people carefully. I think
that is generally conceded. I believe it is generally conceded also by the people
in the British Isles who really think about this matter and are devoid of
prejudice. The best possible effort must be made to ensure that the individual
1s of a type who can succeed in farming when he comes here, and that, generally,
he is physically and mentally fit—I do not mean by that that a man must not
be mentally weak, but rather that his mental attitude is right. I spoke of that
the last day. It is also necessary to make reasonably sure that the individual
will engage in farming when he gets here. 1 do not recall whether it has come
before you yet or not in this committee, but it is a fact that a good many of
those single men who were assisted last year, notwithstanding careful selection,
refused to go on the farms when thev arrived. My own Department had that -
experience, I am sorry to say, notwithstanding our best efforts made to avoid
it. A certain percentage will not go on farms when they arrive notwithstanding
their promise to do so. This feature has to be considered, and there has to be
a careful examination in any case. I am not making this statement in defence
of the examination which the Canadian Department of Immigration is conduct-
ing over there. I am not here to defend at all. That is not my business. In
fact, I am not quite sure but I might change it in some respects. I have not
made up my mind just at the moment to tell you wherein I would do so, but
the fact is that the examination has to be of a character such as indicated and
enough applicants have been turned back to leave the impression that Canada
does not want these people. After living over there for a year and being
in close contact with the situation all the time, for the last five years, that is
my conclusion as to the chief reason why residents of the British Isles believe
Canada does not want them.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. Do you think that entry examination, which we all admit is necessary,
more than offsets the advantage we get by reason of the assisted passage which
necessitates the examination?—A. I think perhaps it does. I have already
mentioned to you the reduced passage rates, but I want to say, first of all, -
this: that since the people of Canada are interested in getting as many British
people to settle here as possible, for reasons which I need not discuss, I think
we ought to conmsider going the limit” toward endeavouring to overcome the
particular sentiment to which I refer. We should not only go our limit in that
regard, but do everything also within reason to make it perfectly clear that
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we do want the British people to come to this country, people who can be settled
into our lives and activities under existing conditions.

I think everything possible should be done, and that is why I have suggested
—as you will find in another clause—that there should be a flat rate for trans-
portation of single men as it is there that most of the trouble lies. Most of the
families who are passed to come here go on the land. A family can not run away,
as a single man can, so there is not much difficulty in regulating the movements
and effecting the proper placement of families from the British Isles subsidized
to come here. The system of juvenile immigration also which has been built
up is, I consider, pretty generally satisfactory.

I know that the Department has plans—I do not recall whether they have
been placed before you yet or not, but I know they are public—for the purpose
of encouraging young men, who come to Canada to work, to eventually settle
on farms of their own. All that is constructive and to the good. The family,
scheme also is commendable as far as it goes, but when it comes to single men
the situation is different. We will have to have, in my judgment, a flat ocean
rate that will justify eliminating the occupational examination and enable a
greater number to come forward. ;

I wish to say to you that there has not been a time either in winter or sum-
mer in nearly five years, since the Canadian National Railways established its
colonization department, when we have been able to fill the demand for British
farm help.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. I had a question asked me in the House of Commons about eight men
who were sent to Kingston for farm work, and not one of them went. That is
the trouble.—A. That occurs notwithstanding the best efforts of those engaged
in this business. It is bound to occur. It is a very disappointing feature of our
activities—but it ocecurs.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Mr. Black, do you think that the best investment the government can
make is to be able to assure the farmer of British farm help, and do you think
that such rigid examination would be needed inasmuch as we are making this
investment?—A. I do.

Q. Do vou think that it should be less rigid?—A. I want to make myself
clear, Mr, Stewart, in answering your question, in which the phrase * rigid
examination ” is used. I think that we must be careful to see that we do not
encourage people to come here who are physically unfit to éngage in farming,
There must be a sufficient medical examination to see to that, and we must
make reasonably sure that they are mentally sound. I have said, in my notes
here, that I think the examination should be made as simple as possible. By
> sinflplle ” I do not necessarily mean that the medical examination should be less
careful.

Q. Are you of the opinion that that reduction in passage rates, a portion
of which the Government must pay, should be extended to all classes of unmar-
ried men coming to Canada?—A. I am not in favour of that reduction being
extended to all-comers, because I think that Canada’s contribution per indi-
vidual is too great to be applied to all and sundry.

Q. If it is to be applied simply to farm help, wherein is the advantage of
the examination, having in mind the large number that you admit, and every-
body else admits, do not go into farm employment, but simply take advantage
of the low rate to get to Canada?—A. Well, there are many to-day who object
to the examination.

[Dr. W. J. Black]
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By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. Why do they object?—A. There are various reasons at the present time,
Mr. Forke.  Two references are required, and I find that, in my experience, to
be a serious restricting factor. For instance, & man may be working on a fmn
and he has to get two references, He probably has worked on this farm ewvier
since he started to work, and there may be very few persons to whom he can go
for a reference. Obviously, he should go to his employer for it, but he does not
wish his emplover to know that he would like to migrate to Canada. He does
not know whether he might not be turned down later on, and, in that case, his
boss would probably have found somebody else to take his job.

Q. It is not a medical examination?—A. I am not speaking aflone of the
medical examination. If you wish me to speak of that, I will do so.

By Mr. McMillan:

Q. Just follow up that line—A. He hesitates about putting in an applica-
tion at all, for that reason. He feels that he may get into trouble, if he does,
_ and finds himself out of a job.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Is that simply a reference as to character alone?—A. Yes, it is mainly
a reference as to character, but it calls for the names of previous employers I
am sorry I have not a copy here.

Mr. Ecan: There are only two references asked for, and he may never men-
tion his employer.

The Witness: We find that that is one of the chief restricting factors.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. How do you get over the fact that the reference must be given by the
applicant, and then the agent makes inquiries to find out if the applicant is all
right?—A. My own opinion is that one reference is just as good as two. If one
is bad, two will be bad, or just about as likely to be.

Q. Would you make the agent responsible for finding out if the party is
all right?—A. Tt would be a good thing if he could do that in all cases, but where
you are handling a big movement it is difficult to have enough agents to go
around and look after all cases. The application is made, and then the indi-
vidual is told about the medical examination and where he can see the agent of
the Department. After the examination is complete, each, case has to be dealt
with from London. When the examiner is through with a case he cannot tell
the individual whether he will be able to come to Canada. Although he has
passed him, the references still have to be considered at London, and a delay
occurs there. The delay is not always entirely due to the Department, although
it may be criticized for it, but is often due to individuals themselves. These
individuals are apt to be slow in the handling of their correspondence, and there
is a good deal of delay that the Department is not responsible for. It would be
a good thing if the whole thing could be simplified, so that Canada’s interests
could be adequately protected. This might be arranged by giving the agent of
the Department, in the field, authority so that when he completes his examina-
tion he would be in position to tell the individual that he could come to Canada.
That is done by Australia.

Q. Just what would you suggest in the way of simplifying that, so that
when a man makes his application he would be assured, within a week or ten
days, that he could get his passage to Canada?—A. You cannot exactly assure
him that in a week or ten days his application would be through, because, under
the system of medical inspection, he probably would have to wait until the
medical examiner would appear in his nearest district.
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By Mr. Donnelly :

Q. Could you tell us how our system differs from that of Australia and New
Zealand, so that we can understand why there is a feeling that we do not want
them in Canada, and yet they want them in Australia and New Zealand?—A.
The chief difference between Australia and Canada, as I see it, is just along the
line I am speaking of. The Australian system appears to be more simple. They
only ask for one reference, and there is only one examination for applicants
going to Australia. Their medical examination takes place at the same time as
the examination to determine whether an applicant is qualified with regard to
occupation. The whole thing is co-ordinated.

Hon. Mr. Forkn: 1 have the returns from the eivil examinations, and the
medical examinations, and perhaps seventy-five per cent of all examinations
take place at the same time.

The Wirness: I knew that you would be coming to that, and that is why I
made the reference, at the beginning of this statement, that the Department was
working toward improvement of these things. A good deal of the difficulty that
has occurred in the past has been due to lack of co-ordination. I am not sure
that it would be possible to have one hundred per cent co-ordination, but your
Department has undoubtedly made improvement in the last few weeks, there is
no doubt about that. But I do think that, on the same day that the agent of
the Department of Immigration and Colonization makes his examination, it
should be possible for the Distriet Agent to say whether an applicant is to be
permitted to come to Canada, instead of referring it to London.

Mr. Ecan: Have the Australians district agents?

The Wirness: They have agents that examine in the districts but not resi-
dent agents. They go out into the districts, but they are not resident, as our’s
are, but the effect is the same in that regard.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. With a man going to Australia, when the medical examination is com-
pleted, the examination by the agent of the Australian Government takes place
at the same time, and the agent of the Australian Government can tell the appli-
cant, at that moment, whether or not they are going to accept him?—A. Yes,
he has the authority to say to him right there, before he leaves the office, whether
or not he will be admitted to Australia. That system has been, to a large extent,

responsible for the popularity of the Australian method of handling this busi-
ness in the Old Country.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. Have you any ecriticism to offer with regard to the medical examina-
tion that is made of British immigrants, and if so, what is it?>—A. The medical
examination of British immigrants has not been going on very long. As far as
answering the question as to whether it may be too rigid, or not rigid enough, I
have no criticism to offer regarding that; I do not know whether it is or not.

By Mr. Spotton:

Q. The public opinion, as it exists in Great Britain, was created by the
regulations as they were, not as they have been in the last few weeks?—A.
Are you asking me that question?

Q. The public opinion in Great Britain, which we all know is more
favourable to Australia and New Zealand than to Canada, was created through
the past regulations, which apparently were more rigid and more personal?
Visits had to be made by the applicants to doctors, and so on, but things have
been improved within the last few weeks. I just want to mention that it is
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the old regulations that have created this public opinion. While I am on this
subject, 1 might say that the Salvation Army, which knows as much about
immigration as the Parliament of Canada, or any other institution, have stated
that if it was left to them they could get 100,000 immigrants. I think Commis-
sioner Lamb made that statement. Perhaps the Minister would consider getting
in touch with Commissioner Lamb, and getting some suggestion from him. When
you were going along and stating what the public opinion is in Great Britain,
the Minister was very careful to check you up. During the last few weeks there
have been changes made. I was on the train the other day with a young man
from Wales, who was coming up to a farmer in my riding. He and his chum
simply walked off the boat at one of the Canadian ports, and they were not
examined, but he was examined twice in the Old Country. I understand you

to say that Australia only examines them once, and only asks for one reference -

from the employer, not two. In the Old Country, people work 30, 40, or 50
vears for the one man; they are very conservative. Australia only asks for
. one Teference, and you say that we ask for two; is it from two employers that
you ask references?—A. Not necessarily two employers.

Q. One employer, but two references?—A. Two references, but not
necessarily employers. It has been suggested that someone get in touch with
Commissioner Lamb. I might say that T am in touch with him at the present
time, in fact, very much so, in regard to the very matter to which reference
has been made. Commissioner Lamb took exception tothe statement which
1 made before this Committee the last day, that the British race was not show-
ing quite the same genius for pioneering that they had showed in the last
generation. This statement was transmitted by Reuters to the Old Country,
and it was transmitted correctly, because I had it checked. I have been
endeavouring to get Commissioner Lamb’s statement as to the number of
settlers that he ean supply, are qualified to settle on the land in Canada, under
existing conditions. That was the problem I was dealing with when I made
that statement. I am not aware that Commissioner Lamb has had any experi-
ence in putting people on the land in Canada, or in settling people under
pioneering conditions; I have never heard of it. The Salvation Army, in my
judgment, has done very excellent work, and I have no criticism to make of
that at all. However, when we enter this particular field, I want this matter
kept straight, and I want it understood. If Commissioner Lamb has any
number of families that can be settled, under conditions as they exist at the
present time, the Canadian National Railway will be delighted to lend itself
to assisting them in getting settled, insofar as reasonable assistance is con-
cerned. I do not mean that they would be supplied with money; I mean assist-
ing the people who can settle under pioneering conditions? Pioneering condi-
tions are not conditions where the individual is supplied with a certain amount
of money, provided with a house and equipment, and all that kind of thing;
that is not pioneering at all. Anyone can settle under those conditions, but
where they have to go out and settle themselves after they get here, after
receiving reasonable direction. That is another matter.

Q. You hav notified Commissioner Lamb?—A. I have been trying for a
week, to get him to cable an answer to my question. g

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Do the Australians employ more agents in the Old Country than the
Canadian Government?—A. Australia has a different system altogether. You
can hardly say that they have agents, in the same sense that Canada has.
The Canadian system of having district agents is, in my judgment, superior to
that of Australia. Canada’s effort to actually get close to the people in the
Old Country, and to be near them so that they the people, can come to them at
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any time to get information is, in my judgment, a better system than that of
Australia. Australia has one central institution in London, and they send
field men out all over the British Isles, but they are not stationed at particular
places outside London.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. Your last statement, in connection with examinations, was a little mis-
leading, though I do not think it was intentional. There is a difference between
a centralized system in London and one where the agents are always situated:
in the one district, where they are in closer touch with the people?—A. The
Australian system, as far as examinations are concerned, is not inconsistent at
all with our Canadian system and organization.

By Mr. Young (Saskatoon):

Q. What is the comparison between the number going to Australia from
Great Britain, and the number coming to Canada?—A. I do not believe I could
give you that correctly.

Q. Approximately—A. I have not the figures. I believe that Australia
has gained on Canada in the last year or so.

Mr. Eean: It is in one of the reports.

The Wirness: My impression has been that Australia has been very much
behind Canada, but it is also my impression that Australia has been gaining
on us.

Mr. EcaN: There was one three-month period in the last four years.

The WirNess: We must bear in mind that Canada is much closer to the
t]ilritish Isles. We have a very decided advantage; there is no question about

at.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. You are satisfied that the procedure now adopted by the Canadian Gov-
ernment is more satisfactory than that adopted by the Australians, but you
wish that to be simplified in some degree, so that the applicant can come before
the agent and be assured in a very short time that he can get passage to Can-
ada?—A. You have not got what I intended to say. I said that the Canadian
system and organization, in so far as district offices are concerned, is superior
to that of Australia, but I prefer the Australian system of examlnatlon to the
Canadian system.

Q. You think that there can be a further simplification?—A. Yes. 'The
examination has to be made, in order to be sure that those who are coming to
- this country, under the reduced passage rates, are going to engage in agriculture.
I believe that this has been more respon51b1e for the present feeling than any-
gnng else. Then there is the question of rates, and I make this recommenda-

on:—

“ That the reduced passage rates be continued for the movement of
juveniles and families migrating to engage in farming, but that for single
men arrangements be made for a flat rate of £10 or £12, and that to this
class there be no occupational tests.”

By Mr. Spotton:
Q. What is the present rate?—A. The present rate is $82.50.

By Mr. Vallance:
Q. What is that in pounds sterling?—A. I have not the figures in English
currency; it is $82.50.

Mr. Grex: It would be £16 something.
[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Do you know what the rate to Australia is?—A. I have not that here.
Australia has been subsidizing the movement more heavily than Canada, and
has been spending more money to try to get people. It want to make myself
clear when T say that I do not believe that Canada should spend any more
money than she is spending at the present time. I am not in favour of the
expenditure of large sums of money for purposes of this sort.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. Does it not work out that the more we subsidize the less we get? —A.
That is what I would get away from. My own judgment is that Canada has
gone as far as she ought to go in the way of subsidizing people to come here. I
am connected with a railway in the settlement business, and we have a side line
in the traffic department, but we are not concerned with the money to be made
out of hauling immigrants from the seaboard to their destination. However,
. when there is any of that business to be done we intend to have our share of it,
but it is not the policy of the Canadian National Railways to make money out
of hauling immigrants inland. One of our difficulties, and one that has a great
bearing upon British immigration, is the cost of getting to Canada. I am not
here to criticize the rates, nor to deal with the question of whether they are too
high. I have no opinion to express on that, but the fact is that the rates are
about three times as high as they were in the days before the war. The people
overseas who ought to come to Canada have not got any more money than they
had in those days, if they have as much. Every dollar that they spend to get
here, over what they spent in days gone by, means that they have just that
much less when they arrive here to get settled. My own opinion is that our
steamship lines have gone a little too far in their race to provide fine accommo-
dation. The third-class accommodation that is supplied to-day to the new-
comers to this country is very much superior to what anybody, of any class,
looked for a generation or two back. In other words, our immigrants coming
here would be better off if they had accommodation that did not cost so much,
or that did not cost the steamship companies so much to supply. I do not know
whether the steamship companies can give lower rates or not, but I would like
to see an average rate of from £10 to £12 for people coming from the British
Isles. In this connection, I should say that only about one-third of the people
brought to Canada from Great Britain by the Canadian National Railways in
1927 received the reduced passage rate. In other words, two-thirds of them
came here and paid the regular fare because they were not eligible under the
reduced passage fare. A good many of these people were coming to friends, and
settled with friends. Just while I am on that point, I want to make an observa-
tion which I did not make last day, and which I think has a direct relationship
to this whole matter. A large percentage of the best people who come to this
country, from either the British Isles or anywhere else, come to it through the
influence of friends or relatives who are already here. They are the easiest
people to settle, and we never have much' trouble with them,. They do not
usually become public charges. Sometimes the question is raised as to why the
British people are so anxious to get into the United States. I was not able to
answer that question to my own satisfaction until I lived over there. There
are at least four times as many people born in the British Isles now resident in
the United States, as are resident in Canada. In other words, there are about
four times as many families in the United States to-day who have relatives in
.the British Isles, and who are ready to interest them in the opportunities foor
better living in the United States, than there are in Canada.

[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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Hon. Mr. Forke: I do not wish to put you off there, but I would like to
remark right here that the immigrants from Great Britain to the United States
this year are well within the quota.

Mr. Ecan: It has been less than half for the last two months.

Hon. Mr. Forkr: There have not been as many going to the United States
as could get in under the quota.

The Wirngss: I am very glad to hear that. Of course, one reason for that is
the lack of opportunity in the United States in the last few months, as far as
work is concerned. Nevertheless, that feature must be considered. We have
had comparatively few people come to Canada from Ireland in the last twenty-
five years, particularly from the south of Ireland. When you look for the
reason why they are not coming now you will find that the reason is lack of
close family relationship between Canada and Ireland.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Does the Australian government subsidize immigrants from the United
Kingdom who go to Australia? Do they give them cheap passage rates?—
A, They give them cheap passage rates.

Q. For the single individual?—A. For the single individual.

Q. For farm labourers or otherwise?—A. Farm labourers.

Q. Just farm labourers?

Mr. Egax: All immigrants.

The Wirnxess: Mr. Egan says “all immigrants”. I was not aware of
that. However, he knows that better than I do. I was not quite sure on that.
point.

As an example of the competition in that regard, New Zealand, for instance,
has been giving free passage to domestics. Any young woman who will enlist
for domestic work in New Zealand and who is physically and medically fit,
gets free passage to that country. They have been spending a good deal of
money over there for that class of business.

If there are no further questions on this clause, I will go on.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. In regard to the two-thirds who come “ off their own bat” from the
British Isles: is there any complaint about their examination?—A. I have
nothing specific to give you on that voint.

Q. It is less strict?—A. It has been.

Q. There has been no particular complaint about that?—A. No.

By Mr. Bancroft:

Q. The medical examination would not be less strict?—A. No. No matter
what their occupation is, if they are paying the full passage they are entitled
to come.

Now, I come to the ciause referring to housing. This matter was brought -
before you a few days ago by Mr. Macalister. This is the only proposal
I have to make for providing a fund from the treasury of Canada. I do not
care very much about doing that, as I have already indicated to you, because
I am not in favour of spending large sums of public money for purposes of
this kind. This is not, however, a case of spending money; it is a case of
providing a loan, and I have no doubt that the Overseas Settlement Committee
would be quite prepared to assist Canada in so far as a scheme of this kind
for the settlement of British people is concerned. The amount I have suggested
is not large and would not take care of probably more than one thqusand
families a year. If we could assure the farmers of this country who wish to
employ British help that they would get it, many would bl;;l'd‘ QO?eglthsgnselves.

[Dr. W. J. Black.
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We have been working on this particular problem for a couple of years
to see if we could not find a solution of it without spending money, and we
now know that if we could assure farmers that they would get British families
for employment from year to year, they would erect houses themselves. There
are a great many cases of that kind.

My suggestion under the proposed scheme is that the cottages be erected
under the control of the farmer; that is, that farmers themselves should have an
interest in them, because if you do not do that they will not be protected when
they are vacant and will become more or less destroyed.

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:

Q. And the only man to do that is the owner of the property?—A. Yes, the
owner of the property. Of course there will arise a difficulty occasionally
wherein the farmer will not find the worker congenial and will not care for
him, or the worker will not care for the farmer. In these cases it will be the
business of the representative of the Department of Immigration—perhaps the
Land Settlement field men—to adjust the difficulties and move men to places
- where they may get on better. All these things have to be done, but it is
quite practicable to do it. g

I come now to the question regarding the transfer of public lands—

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Where would you build these houses? Would you build them all over
the country, in every province, or have the farmer borrow the money, or what?
—A. They would have to be built in any province of Canada where a farmer
made application, and where it would appear to be desirable that such a scheme
should be encouraged.

Q. Would you take a mortgage for that loan?—A. From the farmer?

Q. Yes—A. There would have to be a mortgage. The lending party
would have to be secured, of course—.

By Mr. Egan:

Q. On two or three acres of ground?—A. I do not think it should be 2
large amount of land, but the security would have to be on the land and on the
buildings. I am not suggesting that the security would be of the very best,
but you would be encouraging a scheme for the settlement of British people, pro-
viding a base where they could settle and afterward go on the land of their own.

Our great difficulty at the present time is to find houses wherein to house
British families. It is the “piece de resistance” of our whole effort to find
houses in which to place people who can be obtained, and who have not money
or capital enough to settle on their own account. There are very few obtain-
able in the British Isles who have.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Mr. Black, I have not got it quite clear in my own mind what you
propose. Is it this? That the farmer make application, if he is desirous of
having a cottage on his farm, and then the Government would undertake to
k)arrlr lllmgl the money which he would employ for the erection of that cottage?—

. That is it.

By Mr. Vallance:

Q. Mr. Black, would you state that he must place a British immigrant
in that cottage? The condition in western Canada at the present time is that
many of use are not able to take on married men. What would we do with
a man who would avail himself of a job, we will say, with me, but who is not
British, if T have not the accommodation for him?—A. You mean not British?

[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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Q. Good Canadians?—A. I think this scheme would have to be made
elastic in that respect. I think if they were Canadian citizens and you were
employing them to work on your farm, this system would have to apply to
them as well.

Q. That is the big difficulty to-day. Pick up some of the western papers,
the Grain Growers’ Guide or The Northwest Farmer, and you will see many
instances of married men applying for jobs, where separate cottages are pro-
vided, and they cannot get them.—A. It is a question, when you come to deal
with the Canadian citizens, whether the provincial governments’ responsibility
does not arise in so far as the loan to the farmers is concerned. That is a
question, however, which I am not prepared to discuss just at the moment, but
these cottages should be built for a specific purpose, that is, for the settlement
of British settlers. I think the plan should be limited to that class.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:
Q. Have you any more details of this scheme?—A. I have a memorandum

which elaborates it a little, but I had not intended reading it. However, I will
if you wish. j

By Mr. Glen:

Q. What actually happens in the West is this: supposing a farmer wishes
to build one of these cottages, and he has a mortagage on his farm. How do
you propose to give title to the Board and get that land away from the mortage?
Then, if you get to that point where a farmer can give title to the Board, and
the cottage is erected and later on it is found unnecessary for the farmer to
continue using it because he has sons coming up, what will you do with the
cottage? Will it be taken off that land and put somewhere else?—A. There
will be occasional cases of that kind arise. :

Q. No “occasional”, no. That will invariably happen all through the
entire West.—A. That the farmer’s son would take charge of the place and not
require help? i

Q. A farmer has his own farm and has his sons coming up, and the cottage
becomes useless so far as that farm is concerned. It would then become useless
as far as the Board is concerned?—A. I do not think these cottages would be
so large that they could not be moved without difficulty if desired.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:
Q. Does your note deal with the principle at all?—A. It deals with the
details. I will read it if you wish. &
Q. That perhaps is a matter which will cause more discussion than any-
thing else—the question of housing assistance.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Mr. Black; I take it that your idea is that the farmers would repay
these loans and then own the property.—A. Yes.

Q. The details for protecting these loans, and so forth, you are not familiar
with?—A. I had not intended going into those details at the present time.

Q. You made the suggestion here of the action you would have to take in
regard to British families coming to this country during the period when the
loan was still on the property.—A. Yes, to give the British family a home.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Do your details meet the suggestion that the Canadian farm workers
should be entitled to the same privileges?—A. I do not recall that. I will read
these details if you wish.

Mr. DoxNELLY: Yes, let us have them.
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The Wrrxess (Reading): “It is an axiom of colonization work that the
successful placement of one family is of greater value than the placement of a
great many single men. The single man is footloose, comes often as an experi-
ment, is easily tempted to move on, and can in no case be counted as a perman-
ent settler until he takes up land. Even then he cannot be regarded as definitely
settled on the land until he is married; bachelor farmers seldom succeed. The
essence of real colonization is the establishment of homes, and homes require
families. True, single farm labourers do in many instances eventually establish
homes on the land, but the wastage into the cities and into industrial occupa-
tions is enormous. Schemes entailing assistance, financial or otherwise, should
therefore be mainly directed to the recruitment and placement of families.
Employment is required for at least a year in the case of families with little
experience or capital, and even families with some experience and capital will
have a better chance of eventual success if found farm employment during their
first year in Canada.

Considering first British families it may be taken for granted that under
- present conditions only those with fairly extensive experience and at least one
thousand dollars available capital have a reasonable chance of success on land
of their own. Such families are few and far between. I doubt in fact if more
than three hundred per year can be recruited in Great Britain by all agencies
working there, but if complete arrangements for reception and placement can
be made we could expect at least ten times as many inexperienced or partly
experienced families with little or no capital. It is for the accommodation of
this class we must provide if we intend to increase our permanent British farm
po%ulation. Their requirements are: 1. Farm employment; 2. Housing accom-
modation. :

In surveying the farm employment field it has been found that every year
there is a large demand for British farm help from almost every province in
Canada. In some cases inexperienced men are required and in most cases such
men will be accepted if experienced help is not available, and a large propor-
tion of these applications cannot be filled as the supply of British farm labour-
ers is always less than the demand. Those farmers who are not successful in
obtaining British workers are forced to accept help of some other nationality
or in the alternative curtail their seasons’ operations, and get along with tem-
porary help in the rush seasons. An increase in the movement of British single
men would to a large extent meet this situation from the employers’ viewpoint,
but it would not result in any proportionate increase in permanent land settle-
ment and in any case the supply of single men ready and willing to come appears
to be limited. Even the low rates granted during the last two years have not
had the desired effect. On the other hand quite large numbers of married
couples and families, large or small, experienced and inexperienced, present
themselves to various offices in Great Britain for employment in Canada. As
matters now stand very few of these can be aceepted although there is undoubt-
edly employment on our farms for thousands. And the only important reason
for refusing these desirable settlers, or rather for refusing to accept the responsi-
bility for their placement, is lack of housing accommodation.

The average farmer has only one set of buildings and realizes the incon-
venience of keeping a strange family in his own home, even if it be large enough;
consequently he asks for a single man although if accommodation could be
provided he would prefer the married man as being less likely to leave him
without good cause, and more interested in making progress towards eventual
indépendence. Any proposal to provide or assist in providing separate housing
accommodation in rural districts for working families is therefore worthy of
serious consideration. A solution of this difficulty will surely be an important
step in the direction of increasing British settlement. Officers of my Depart-

[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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ment have been aware of this situation for some time, and about a year ago
did outline to an organization specially interested in British immigration a
scheme to provide such housing. At that time quite a large number of
responsible farmers expressed their willingness to erect separate buildings if it
could be done cheaply, the cost spread over a few years, and some assurance
given that they would get a suitable family. Some financing is required, how-
ever, which has not yet been arranged and as a fairly large investment will
be needed it is hardly likely that private interests could handle it on a big scale.
The main provisions of the scheme as we have recently revised it are: 1. An
intensive canvass of all farmers likely to need British farm help for yearly
employment, but unable at present to do so on account of lack of adequate
housing accommodation. It is fully expected that this will reveal opportunities
for the placement of at least one thousand families per year during the next
three years. 2. The establishment of a fund of $4,500,000 to be made avail-
able $1,500,000 per year during the next three years to be used in making loans
to such farmers for the erection of separate buildings on the following con-
ditions:—

Loans—(a) To cover the actual cost of material and supplies used in
constructing, fitting and furnishing the proposed buildings and in no case to
exceed $1,500 to any one farmer.

(b) To be conditional on the execution of an approved agreement to allow
free occupation of the buildings to a family of British or Canadian origin, and
to employ such family on his farm on fair conditions to be agreed upon with
the controlling organization.

(¢) To be repayable in equal annual instalments over a period of from
five to ten years as desired without interest.

Buildings—(a) To be erected on the employer’s farm in a convenient place
with water supply; one acre of land to be fenced with the buildings and to be
prepared for planting a garden.. The organization advancing the funds to
have a lien (similar to a seed grain lien) on the one acre, the buildings and furni-
ture until all advances have been repaid.

(b) Buildings to comprise a house suitable for a family of five persons
and a shed or barn sufficient to accommodate two head of stock, one litter of
pigs and a small number of chickens, both to be erected according to plans
prepared or approved by the controlling organization. The maximum loan
1s provided for farmers who could give employment to more than one worker
and who would therefore erect a house to accommodate a larger family.

(¢) Buildings to be insured in favour of the controlling.organization which
should have all the usual rights of a mortgagee.

Supervision.—The controlling organization should have charge of: (a) Can-
vassing for prospective employers; (b) Investigating responsibility and suit-
ability of prospective employers; (c) Arranging and paying out loans;
(d) Directing suitable families, either British or Canadian; (e) Arranging
employment contracts; (f) Moving unsuitable families; (g) Adjusting disputes
between employer and worker; (h) Collecting payments on loans.

Advantages of Scheme.—(a) Materially enlarges field for employment of
British and Canadian farm help;

(b) Provides for employment of families likely later to take land on their
own account and available for any land settlement schemes operated in the
future;

(¢) Provides farmer with dependable, all-the-year-round help;

(d) Employer will have personal interest in buildings (his labour and

eventual ownership) assuring that they will be well cared for;
[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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(e) Low cost, being interest only on funds employed, plus cost of super-
vision;

(f) Annual repayments after three years should constitute a revolving fund
for continued operation on the same lines if results justify;

(g) Assures worker satisfactory treatment and security for wages, as
employer found to be satisfactory borrower should for some reasons be satis-
factory employer. Controlling organization holding contract with employer
should also be in a position to insist on proper treatment of worker;

(h) Provides for the same assistance to British or Canadian families
already here as is offered to new-comers.

Co-operation—The scheme entails active recruitment of British families
by the controlling organization or some other responsible agency co-operating
closely with it, as it will be necessary to maintain a constant balance between
the number of families available and the number of building and employment
contracts entered into in order to insure help for every employer who builds.

) It is anticipated that active assistance would be given in Canada by many
organizations interested in British settlement to induce suitable farmers to take
advantage of the scheme and to assist families on arrival. '

Financing—Such a scheme if sponsored here by the government- would
appear to come within the scope of operations of the Overseas Settlement Com-
mittee, who might therefore be expected to share in providing the funds on a
50-50 basis.

Rates—All British families brought forward under this scheme should
have the benefit of the assisted passage rate.

These are all the details we have worked out regarding this scheme.

The next question before us is that referring to the transfer of public lands,
from the Department of the Interior to the Department of Immigration. I
appreciate that probably I am treading on rather thin ice when I bring that up—

Hon. Mr. Forge: I will tell you that you are on thin ice indeed. Be
careful.

The Wirness: Yes, but since it is my opinion, and I regard it as one of the
important, factors in the consideration of this question, I thought it proper I
should place it before you.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. Mr. Black, as I understand your suggestions, as I have listened to them,
they are in respect to the utilization of the land still available in the northwest,
and I think you might fairly give us your frank opinion without regard to the
question of whether it is expedient to transfer the land from one Department to
another, or as to the rights of the province, because if your suggestions are per-
tinent, no doubt there could be complete co-operation in regard to this.

The Wirxess: Yes. The fourth question is in regard to assistance on land
privately owned. There is nothing new about that. I told you on the last day
when appearing before you of the activities of our own Land Settlement Asso-
ciation, in placing people on privately-owned lands.

The only addition to that outline is the suggestion here that the Overseas
Settlement Committee might be induced to assist in the settlement of British
people on such lands, where it is desirable that they should be settled. Generally
speaking, British families who have no money of their own ought to be settled,
if possible, on public land. There is a lot of public land yet available in various
districts not very far distant from railways which is of good quality, and I con-
sider arrangements might be made to facilitate their settlement.

[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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Now, [ come to the question of continental immigration. I am very strongly
of the opinion that we should check the system that now prevails of soliciting
applications for people from non-preferred countries. The representatives of
the steamship companies are all in competition in this business. A sum of money
is paid for securing the applications and my experience last year was—and T
anticipate the very same condition this year if there should be continued bad
weather in Western Canada during the early part of the summer—that a large
percentage of the congestion and unemployment in our towns and villages was
caused by individuals who had come out on nominated applications from non-
preferred countries. There are very few farmers—comparatively speaking—
who sign these applications who expected to employ the individuals named in
the applications. There is a traffic in that class of business in people from non-
preferred countries, which, in my judgment, is not legitimate and ought to be
held in check.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. We want that specific. A trafic by whom?—A. As I have already
suggested it is in competition by the steamship lines.

Q. That is all right; that is what I wanted.—A. Yes. I know that some
of the steamship lines at least—maybe all of them, but at least some—who are
associated with us would very much prefer that the business were given up and
stopped, because they know it leads to disaster. In other words, we get too
many people of this class who have no definite destination.

Now, the people whom we—the Canadian National Railway—bring in on
our own order from any of these countries, we place. I am not saying in all
cases they stay placed on the land because there is amongst them the same
h}uman tendency to go elsewhere which exists with other classes but we place
them.

Q. That is very important, and I want you to make that statement plain.
You say that the steamship coempanies with which you are associated would
be as well pleased if it were stopped—A. I said some of them; I do not know
about all of them.

Q. That is a very important statement?—A. I considered the importance
of it before I made it. I realize it is important. T think that would simplify
some of the serious difficulties of the Department of Immigration, as well as
being a good thing for the Dominion of Canada, if it were handled in that way.
That, in my judgment, is the source of most of the trouble. The competition
is very keen. Men go out and solicit signatures to applications. That is going
on all the time, and we all know it. The individuals who are soliciting usually
get from somewhere a sum of money for getting the signatures to the appli-
cations, because the passages are valuable. That is the basis of this business
which, in my judgment, should be held in check.

By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Would you suggest putting on a board in this country?—A. No. If this
arrangement were effective, as T have suggested, the Department of Immigration
could hold the two railway organizations directly responsible under the rail-
ways agreement. We are supposed to be responsible at the present time for
this very business about which I am telling you, and that is the reason I bring
it up, because it is one of the features which we, as the Colonization Depart-
ment of the Canadian National Railways, find it very difficult to control, and,
therefore, I would like to see it stopped. If under the Railways’ Agreement we
bring more people to this country than can be absorbed we are exposed at once
to public view, and we should be prepared to take responsibility if they cannot

be assimilated.
MMr W. J. Black.]
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By Mr. Vallance:

Q. Would you read that recommendation again?—A. (Reading). “As
affecting Continental immigration of single men from non-preferred countries
and in order to avoid congestion and consequent unemployment in Canada, it
is recommended:—

“(a) That the nomination system for people from non-preferred
countries be confined to the following degrees: father or mother, husband
or wife, son or daughter, brother or sister, uncle or aunt, of an indi-
vidual now engaged in farming in Canada.”

By Hon. Mr. Motherwell:
Q. Or prospective wife—sweetheart? You must include that?—A. You
are on thin ice now, sir, although I think you are right.
Mr. Sporron: The hon. minister is -a skilful skater.
The Wirness: In addition to that I also suggest—

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Mr. Black, that would mean in effect that no one could come from the
continental countries unless they are of the agricultural class and have relatives
in Canada?—A. No, it does not mean that, Mr. Stewart. It means that this
traffic that is carried on by steamship lines in soliciting would be stopped, but
it would not prevent the colonization departments of the Canadian Pacific
Railway and the Canadian National Railways saying how many people they
themselves could actually place, and it would mean that all the people brought
in would be brought in to definite destinations.

Q. That does not conflict with the operations of the railway companies?—
A. No. The next is the suggestion in connection with licensing—

By Mr. McMillan:

Q). That would mean that no one could come from these countries unless
they had relatives in this country?—A. Oh, yes; we would bring them ourselves
and know exactly where we were putting them. In other words, we are in the
colonization business. The steamship lines can hardly be expected to have the
same interest in building up the interior of Canada that the railways have.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. But the people which the steamship companies are bringing out are
being brought out under the railways agreement.—A. I know that. That is
what I said a moment ago. They are coming under the railways agreement
and that is a phase we cannot control as we would like to, and we want you to
help us.

Q. And the railways are responsible for the people they bring. I want to
make that point clear—A. I know that quite well Mr. Forke, but you know
I recommended to you last Fall that this business be discontinued and that you
assist us to live within the terms of the railway agreement to this extent.

Q. Yes, I know that, but you are responsible for the people you are bring-
ing out. Have you any way of knowing the people for whom you are directly
lilesponsible, and the people the steamship companies bring out?—A. Yes, we

ave.

Q. Then why not refuse to bring them out?—A. That is just the difficulty
sir. The system is just this—

Q. I know the system all right?—A. You say to us, “Do not pass any
application along, under the railway agreement, which the steamship company

{Dr. W. J. Black.]
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distributes”, but if we say we will not take them, somebody else will, and the
only way it can be regulated is to stop that kind of thing altogether. It is not
stopping or preventing the supplying of what is a real need in this country,
because there is a legitimate way of supplying it, and we want that assistance,
so as to be able to live within the terms of an agreement which we consider is
sound.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Mr. Black, I want to know if I have this clear in my own kind. You
would suggest that permits only be issued to relatives, outside of the activities
of the Department itself and the two railway companies?—A. Yes.

Q. I see now?—A. That is it. That, gentlemen, is the outline. It includes
practically everything I desired to say to you by way of recommendations.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. I would like to ask you whether, from your knowledge of the existing
sentiments in the agricultural districts of the three prairie provinces, there is any
strong desire to have a larger extension of agricultural settlement in those prov-
inces at the present time—A. It is difficult to answer that question Mr. Cahan,
by any general statement without explanation, because the conditions vary
very much in different agricultural districts and in different parts of the country
Of agricultural districts there are some in which public sentiment is opposed
to bringing in more people for se.tlement. There are other places again where
sentiment is very markedly in favour of immigration and there are all degrees
in between. It varies a great deal. My own conclusion is that taking the
country in general the sentiment in favour of settling more people on the land
represents the major sentiment, that is, there are more people in favour of immi-
gration than there are against it.

Q. Can you give us any of the underlying conditions which induce a different
sentiment in one locality from that which exists in another, one being favourable
to increased agricultural settlement, and the other either against it or indifferent?
—A. No. I cannot give you a satisfactory answer to that. It varies very
much. A community assumes an attitude toward a public question which is
very different from the attitude assumed by another community similarly
situated. It is very hard to account for the reason why one community looks
at it another way.

In the West there is sometimes sentiment expressed by British people against
too many people from continental countries coming as they fear there will be
developed a competition which is not to their own interests. Generally speak-
ing, the opposition to new settlement is due to the belief that increased pro-
duction means lowering the market value of or the demand for farm products.

Q. Would it not be fair to state that in the older agricultural communities
a feeling exists against a larger immigration of agricultural or farm labour,
while in the newer and less developed districts the sentiment is not as hostile?—
A. No, it would not be correct to assume that, because I would say there is a
stronger feeling against immigration in some parts of Western Canada, than in
the province of Ontario.

Q. I was dealing solely with the west?—A. Oh, yes, our towns and cities,
and our urban people, are practically all in favour of more immigration in
Western Canada.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. Is it not a fact that the big drive for immigration comes from the urban
centres, such as Montreal?—A. No, I would not say that. In judging that, you

[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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have to take the expressions you find in the public press of the country all over
Canada. I am inclined to think that the press of Canada, as a whole, has been
favourable to incresed immigration.

By Hon. Mr. Forke:

Q. There is nother question I would like to ask regarding the nominations.
In our agreement with the railway companies, it is specifically stated that no one
who has any connection with a steamship company, shall solicit immigrants and
that the railway company will employ men for that purpose who are on a stated
salary, getting no commission, and who have no connection with the shipping
agencies?—A. I have not a copy of that agreement here, but the reference in
the agreement wherein we obligate ourselves to employ a specific type of agents,
applies only to the Certificate Issuing Officers whom we employ in Europe for the
examination of these individuals. They examine the steamship applicants, just
the same as the settlers we ask for. I do not recall that there is anything in the
. agrcement affecting those who go forth in Canada to get the men to sign the
application.

Q. That he shall not be connected with the shipping agencies, and will be
e}?tirely separate from the shipping agencies?—A. I did not know that it was
there.

Mr. Ecan: In the railway’s agreement, the railways are responsible for
these nominations. .

The Wirness: Yes, I know that, but do you say that we are tied up so
that no one can solicit these applications?

Mr. Ecan: Not on this side, but you are responsible for the nominations.

The Wirness: That is what I said before. That is why I make this recom-
mendation, because I want the agencies to be able to live up to it.

By Mr. Cahan:
Q. You want to be able to live up to your responsibilities?--A. That is

right.
By Mr. Donnelly:

Q. Is it not true that in the agricultural districts the agitation is to get
the immigrant who has some money, rather than the poorer class that are not
able to provide farms, or anything like that?—A. Every district in Canada
is willing to see men come in who have enough money to buy farms that are
already going concerns.

Q. And if we have to finance them, and put them out on the land, there is
not much desire to have that class?—A. There is not much public sentiment
to support that kind of thing.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Throughout the whole Dominion?—A. Generally, as far as farm people
are concerned.

By Mr. McMillan:

Q. They want the people to come in who have a little money?—A. Yes,
and there is great difficulty to get people with money from the British Isles.
It is very hard to find people with money who will settle on the land.

[Dr. W. J. Black.] 1
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Hon. Mr. Forge: I will just read that clause in connecti n with the nom-
inations:—

“That cash nominated and prepaid applications fir the admission
of single men and men not accompanied by their famnilies, shall be
restricted to nominations and applications by persons actually engaged
in farming in Canada who desire to bring relatives or others to join
them and be employed on the land. As a further safeguard to the trans-
action of this business, it will be necessary to use the nomination and
affidavit forms annexed hereto.”

The Wirness: That is quite right. That means that the applications
shall be restricted to persons engaged in farming. You can go out aud get these
applications signed by.many men engaged in farming, but my idea is to confine
it to the relatives only of those who are farmers.

By Mr. Cahan:

Q. From your knowledge of the Australian system, can you tell us whe-
ther the immigration into Australia is under the control and direction of a
national commission, or whether it is under the control of a department? I
understood that in Australia the whole matter was under the control and direc-
tion of a national commission on immigration, or internal development, I do
not know just what name?—A. I cannot give you as definite infermation on
that as I should like. Something has been done in regard to a national com-
mission. I do know that the respective states of Australia are insisting
upon the control of all aspects in which they have a financial interest. One of
the difficulties in connection with Australian immigration, has been ‘because
the different state governments have had their agreements, usually with the
Overseas Settlement Committee at London. There have been a number of
such agreements.

By Hon. Mr. Stewart:

Q. As a matter of fact, the states insist on controlling the population? A.
That is practically it..

By Mr. Lucas:

Q. Can you tell the Committee the amount of money your company is
spending on immigration and colonization?—A. In answering that question, as
to the amount expended on immigration, I am sorry that it is impossible to
give you the exact amount that we have spent on immigration alone. I can
give you the amount that was spent by our department in 1927. As I explained
at the beginning, we have really three departments operating under one heading,
Colonization, Agriculture, and Natural Resources. The total expenditure in
1927, under these three headings, was $560,000. Of course, the major part of
that would be for colonization.

By Mr. Glen:

Q. Do you spend more money in the United Kingdom than on the Conti-
nent?—A. It costs about four times as much to get immigrants from the British
Isles as it does from anywhere else.

Q. Have you larger agencies in the United Kingdom than you have on the
Continent?—A. Yes. We cover the United Kingdom more fully. In fact, the
only other places where we have regular agencies are Norway, where we have
one, one in Sweden, one in Denmark, and one in Holland. You will understand
that where we have only one agency in each of these countries we could not
cover the countries very fully. In the British Isles we have quite a large organi-

zation, spread all over the country.
[Dr. W. J. Black.]
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By Mr. Spotton:

Q. What is your thought, at the present time, as to the prospeet of increas-
ing the number of permanent immigrants from the United States to Canada?—
A. For the last five years we have been anxious to believe that the next year
would show a considerable increase in the number of residents of the United
States, or farmers, who would come to Canada to settle. The increase has not
materialized as we expected, and the hope for the immediate future is not ad
great as we would like it to be. Just what effect the change in the industrial
conditions in the United States may have is hard to say. It looks as though
there may be a slight increase this yvear over last year, but it is not as encour-
aging as we would like, and the prospect for the immediate future is not as
bright as we had expected. .

Q. There is a slight increase over last year?—A. It looks as though there
will be an increase over last year, but it will not be very great. ;

Q. Tt will not be a flood?—A. No. We are conducting a very active can-
vass in the central Western States, which are the agricultural states, for settlers
- for Canada. Of course, as I said to you before, that is a land purchase proposi-
tion. The American, who comes to Canada to settle, comes to buy a piece of
land. He settles down at once, and if you did not know he was a new-comer
you would not know but. that he had been there for some time. He is farming
in just the same way, and generally entering into the life of the country, just
the same as our own people. :

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:

Q. Would you summarize generally the activities that are so much greater
in Great Britain than on the Continent? How is it that those activities are so
much greater?—A. The chief reason is because in these other countries there is
a higher percentage of agricultural people who are anxious to migrate, and there
is a higher percentage of people who are easy to settle on the land in this
country.

By Mr. McMillan:

Q. And there are men with money that would like to come fromi those
countries?—A. Some of them with a good deal of money. We can get more
people with money from some of the Continental countries than we can from
the British Isles, and they are willing to settle on the land.

By Hon. Mr. Ralston:
Q. Is that largely the reason why it costs so much more?—A. That is the

chief reason, I would say.
Q. When you say it costs more, do you mean per capita?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Vallance:
Q. When you were before the Committee last time you gave the percentage
of agriculturalists in Great Britain; what was that percentage?—A. It was
under five per cent.

‘Witness retired.
Discussion followed.

The Commiftee adjourned until Tuesday, April 17, at 11 a.m.
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House or CoMmMmONS,
THURSDAY, April 19, 1928.

The Select Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colonization met at
11 o’clock a.m., the Chairman, Mr. W. F. Kay presiding.

The CualrMAN: Gentlemen, we will now come to order.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): Mr. Chairman, before we commence
our proceedings this morning, there is a small matter to which I would like
to call the attention of Mr. Egan, the Deputy Minister, whom I understand is
here. At the conclusion of a former meeting I asked him for certain infor-
mation regarding the number of immigrants brought out and placed through
the efforts of the Department. I think he supplied that information. I also
asked him for the number brought out to be specially engaged in special work,
for some years back. I do not notice that that is on the records. Mr. Egan
promised to give it to me, but perhaps he has not had time to secure it.

Mr. Egan: It has been in for some time.

i The Cmamrmax: The clerk informs me that it is now in the printer’s
ands. :

Mr. Grex: Mr. Chairman, in accordance with the wish of the Com-
mittee at the last meeting the Chairman nominated a sub-committee to con-
sider communications received from different organizations and individuals
who wished to attend before this Committee. We went through the communi-
cations, and found that a large number of them were from individuals. We
have left them in abeyance for the present, and we will not trouble you with
those now. There are, however, a number of organizations which we thought
should be asked to attend and give evidence. The Committee was composed
of Messrs. Cahan, Edwards (Frontenac), Garland (Bow River), Hon. Mr.
Ralston and myself. The organizations which we decided to ask to attend
are the Anglican Synod, the Canadian Legion of the British Empire Service
League, the British Welcome and Welfare League, and the Salvation Army.

I move, Mr. Chairman, seconded by Mr. Cahan, that representatives from
these organizations be asked to appear before this Committee at one of our
meetings. I would also ask, at the same time, for permission from the Com-
mittee authorizing the sub-committee to again meet, because there are some
further communications we have received since we met, and which have not
been taken into consideration, and we should consider further those which we
are now holding in abeyance.

The CuamrrmaNn: Gentlemen, you have heard the motion—

Hon. Mr. Stewarr: What is the British Empire League?

Mr. Guex: The Canadian Legion of the British Empire Service League.

kI-?Ion. Mr. Stewarr: Have they an organization doing general immigration
wor

Mr. GarvanD (Bow River): I think I can answer that question. The
British Empire Service League in the province of Alberta has undertaken
through a sub-committee to make an extensive study of this problem. They
have the responsibility for calling the attention of the Department to the
overflow of central European immigrants into Alberta last spring. Their alle-
gation is that the same conditions exist in an even more aggravated form this

65927—23%
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year, and they have made applications formally to this committee to be heard
mm the matter. Your sub-committee, as Mr. Glen has announced, thinks it is
fitting that we should hear the representatives of the Legion.

Hon. Mr. StewarT: Mr. Chairman, I am perfectly willing to listen to
anybody who can throw any light on the subject, but if this is an organiza-
tion localized in one province, it will cost us considerable money—

Mr. Garuanp (Bow River): The request has come from the central
Legion situated at Ottawa.

Hon. Mr. Forke: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Garland has made a statement
that is news to me, that they have made representations I am not aware of
any information that has come to the Department of Immigration. Does my
Deputy know of any?

Mr. EcAan: No sir.

Hon. Mr. Forke: It appears that no information—

Some Hon. MewmBers: Carried.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: It is all right to say “ carried” and “ carried.” My
hon. friends seem to be in a dreadful hurry. All I want is information, and
I am going to get it before I agree to carry anything. This Committee has
rather important work to do, and if we are going to sit here listening to every
organization, whether interested in immigration or not, we will keep on sitting
here without securing any report. I am perfectly willing to listen to anybody
who ean throw any light on this question, but I want to know what particular
interest this organization has. If it is a soldier organization interested in immi-
gration, if it comes from a central organization, I have nothing more to say.

Mr. Caman: Mr. Chairman, the sub-committee met and it represented all
shades of opinion in this Committee. You would be surprised at the number of
applications brought before us and how modest we have been, but we thought
an organization such as this which is making a protest throughout the length
and breadth of this country, and which asked through its headquarters to be
allowed to send its representative to express their views, could not very well be
turned down without giving the impression that this Committee was trying to
prevent evidence coming before it wich might be useful. Therefore, our recom-
mendation was that one representative of this organization be allowed to come
and give evidence before us. I think it is a fair suggestion made by the sub-
committee, and I am prepared to stand by it.

Hon. Mr. Stewart: As far as I am concerned, I withdraw my objection.
I regret I “butted in” on what the sub-committee has decided upon but we
have requests made from all quarters, to come and give evidence. Apparently
it is a pleasant task to travel a couple of thousand miles to give evidence before
the Committee, and I wanted to know what they knew about it. If they have
any information of value, we ought to have it.

Hon. Mr. Forge: Mr. Chairman, just one word: No doubt this organi-
zation has made a very exhaustive inquiry into the whole situation. They have
made a report well worth reading. 1 have read it carefully, and while I do
not agree with some of their conclusions I think that their evidence will be of
value to the Committee.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): That is precisely what we are after. The -
Minister may have made up his mind from what he has read regarding the
activities of this organization, and I hope he will allew us to make up our
minds. There is no doubt but what there is a difference of opinion; and there
is more than one person differing from the Minister in opinion, and it is our
purpose to resolve those opinions. I would like to say to the Minister of the
Interior that the sub-committee had before it a great many requests and we
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used the best judgment God gave us to weed out those, and reduce the number
which we would call. If that is not satisfactery the only alternative is to
appoint another Committee and allow us to retire.

Mr. Youna (Saskatoon): My only submission is this: If we had a repre-
sentative from the whole organization it would seem to me to be much more
proper than to simply have a representative from one branch. Apparently they
have not submitted this for the approval of the other branch as even in the
province of Alberta. I would like to think that the Legion itself was behind
this whole thing, as a Legion. I think if we issue an invitation we should
issue it to the Legion in Canada rather than to any particular branch, whether
it comes from Calgary or Edmonton or any other point.

The CramrrMAN: Gentlemen, you have heard the motion. Is it the pleasure
of the Committee to adopt it?

(Motion agreed to).

The Cuamman: At our last meeting it was decided to ask Sir Henry
Thornton, Sir Joseph Flavelle, and Mr. Beatty to appear before this Com-
mittee. We are glad to have Sir Henry Thornton with us this morning. Sir
Joseph Flavelle is in California, but will be back next week, and Mr. Beatty
will be here on Wednesday next April 25. We will be glad to hear from Sir
Henry Thornton now.

Sir HeNry TrOrRNTON, K.B.E., called.

The CualrmaN: Sir Henry, tlm Committee on Agriculture and Coloniza-
tion is studying the question of immigration to this country, and is seeking
information. We have asked you to appear before us to give us the benefit of
vour advice. We will now be very glad to hear from you.

Sir HeENry THOrNTON: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: What I have to say
of my own volition with respeet to the question of immigration will be rather
shortly and simply told. This is apart from any question of a specific nature
which might be addressed to me by members of the Committee.

Dr. Black, who is.in charge of the administration of our immigration and
colonization departments, has given evidence before this Committee and has
made certain statements which, generally speaking, might be regarded as dealing
with the details of the proposition which confronts all of us. I am entirely in
accord with all of the statements which he has made.

If I may presume, I should like to have the privilege this morning of deal-
ing with the question from perhaps a broader point of view than that with which
it has already been dealt.

Now, we all admit that one of the essentials to the achievement of the ulti-
mate destmv of the Dominion is the introduction to our country of immigrants
who are sound in mind and body, and especially those who are prepared to dwell
in tranquillity under our social scheme and under our system of government,
providing those who come to the country, after having fulfilled mental and
physical qualifications, can find useful employment and become self-supporting,
which is to say that we do not wish to bring to this country those who after
artival will become publie charges or objects of charity or require assistance in
the working out of their economic destiny.

Within those limits and with those reservations, I take it there can be no
question but that the larger number of people we can bring into the country the’
more the country will prosper and, therefore, our problem becomes this—having
regard for the reservations which T have just stated—what secheme can be
developed which will accomplish that objective?

We have to-day the two larger railway companies in Canada who are
actively engaged in the immigration and colonization business, and which are

[Sir Henry Thornton.]
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striving to their utmost to bring into the country useful settlers. We have in
addition to the two railway companies, a number of excellent organizations
which are striving to achieve the same end. That work is being carried on with
a good deal of competition and with a good deal of duplication. It seems to me
that two things are essential to the full development of a sound immigration
policy, that is, a policy which will produce the maximum results. First, we
must, I think, spend more money on immigration in the future than has been
spent in the past. Immigration is like anything else; it has to be financed. It
cannot be accomplished without the expenditure of money.

Secondly, it seems to me—and I am looking at it now from quite a national
point of view, or at least trying to look at it from the national point of view—
that the thing which is lacking to-day is co-ordination of effort. Each one of the
instrumentalities, including the government, which is pursuing the immigration
question, is doing the best it can within its Imitations, but my feeling is that
the immigration question is a national question. It is not a political question;
it is not a sectional question, except in so far as each section of the country
- would naturally strive for and wish to secure its fair proportion of immigrants,
but the whole question of immigration is so bound up in the welfare of the coun-
try itself that it rises, or should rise, far above the plane of sectionalism or
EOIMSS or religion. It is a movement which affects vitally all of the people of

Janada.

Now, as I pointed out a moment ago, all of those who are interested in
immigration are doing their best within their limitations. Certainly, from my
knowledge of the activities of the two larger transportation companies, namely,
the Canadian Pacific Railway and ourselves, I feel that we are doing as much
as we can and to the best of our ability, but I think our immigration problem
would be materially less difficult and would more nearly approach a solution if
the government—and when I use the word “ government” I am not speaking
of the government in a political sense; I am speaking of the instrumentality
which, under our laws, governs this country, and which may be one kind of a
government to-day and another kind of a government to-morrow, and I am
speaking of the government in connection with its administrative functions—
as I say, I think the situation would be considerably improved if the govern-
ment, and, under it, the Department of Immigration, co-ordinated entirely and
had control of the fforts of all who are to-day ardently striving to accomplish
certain objectives. In any movement of this sort I think the best results come
from centralized leadership. I do not think it is the kind of thing you can turn
loose a number of organizations upon, no matter how sincere they may be, nor
how ardent they may be in their efforts. If that be done, inevitably competition
devlops and in the pursuit of competition there is always a repetition of work.
We get in each other’s way. Therefore, my feeling is that the whole of our
immigration movement ought to be led, consolidated, and brought into co-opera-
tion by the Department of Immigration, and in that Department I think it
ought to be looked upon as a great national question, a question which merits
the very best effort that can be brought to bear.

Speaking for the Canadian National Railways, I will say that we will be
happy to accept such leadership. We might conceivably lose a little here or
gain a little somewhere else, but so far as the Canadian National Railways
are concerned, we are interested in seeing to it that at the end of the year the
maximum number of people who can be usefully employed are brought into
the country, and while we have a certain pride in settling our own lands and
in promoting settlement along our own railways, every immigrant who comes
to Canada, no matter where he is located or not matter who brings him in, will
indirectly prove of advantage to the Canadian National Railways. So that I
should, in the last analysis, look at it from the larger point of view of not so '
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much trying to compete with others who are in the same occupation, but in
t‘x'yingltol lend an effort to assist the accomplishment of the maximum results,
as a whole.

I do not see that any instrumentality can so successfully or satisfactorily
impart that leadership to the movement as the government. It is a national
question, as I have said. It is not a question which can be successfully admin-
istered for the whole of the Dominion by any other instrumentality than the
government.

If T might make a recommendation, I should say that the government
should be empowered with such authority as will permit it to give that leader-
ship, but at the same time I think steps should be taken to provide the expen-
diture of a larger sum on this proposition than has been spent in the past.

With respect to the expenditure of money, you will probably ask “ How
should that money be expended?” Well, of course, there is propaganda abroad;
there is advertisement; there is making known to prospective immigrants the
opportunities which Canada affords. There is, secondly, assistance in bringing
these immigrants to Canada. Thirdly, there is a field—which I think is a useful

" field—in the provision of partly prepared or entirely prepared facilities for
prospective, agricultural immigrants.

For example, in the United States—in certain parts of the West of that
country—there are a large number of farmers who are experienced, hard-working
and industrious people. For many years they have been only one or two jumps
ahead of the sheriff. They have to do the bst they can with the situation which
confronts them. They will not come to Canada and go through the toil and—
in some cases—the distress of clearing land, living perhaps in an unsatisfactory
habitation until such time as they can get on their feet and provide themselves
and their families with suitable houses, and if those farmers were offered a
prepared or semi-prepared farm, my opinion is that a fair number of them at
least would come to Canada. They are experienced farmers and men who would
become self-supporting forthwith.

That is merely one indication of the way in which funds might be expended
to bring to Canada a desirable agricultural population.

The number of immigrants which come to this country must necessarily be
limited by our powers of absorption, and by “powers of absorption” I mean the
number of individuals who can find useful, self-supporting occupation in this
country. Our powers of absorption to-day are represented by a certain number,
and in the last analysis we must fix the number of people who can be usefully
brought to the country. But we might, very likely, increase our powers of
absorption quite legitimately by the expenditure of more money.

That, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, is briefly the only contribution which I
can make at the moment, which I hope may be constructive; first, a greater
degree of co-operation, in fact complete co-operation between all these instru-
mentalities which are now engaged in promoting immigration; secondly, the
expenditure of larger sums, but only to the extent that those sums will provide
a larger degree of ahsorption.

I think that is all I can say, but I will be happy to answer any question
any member of the committee may wish to ask, if I can.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac) : Sir Henry, in your opinion what nationali-
ties and from what various countries are most adaptable to our needs in
establishing men on the land, and in getting agricultural immigrants properly.
established? How would you classify the countries from which you would obtain
such immigrants from the standpoint of their adaptability for such work.

Sir Henry TuHorNTON: I think the answer to that is pretty obvious.
Naturally—and quite rightly—we would prefer to bring to this country a
maximum number of people from the British Isles. those who speak our own
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language, who are citizens of the same commonwealth of British nations, who,
more or less, have that psychology which is similar to our own. I think pre-
ference should be given so far as possible to bringing English-speaking people
—those whom I would describe as having our psychology—to Canada first.

Hon. Mr. Epwarps (Frontenac): Would I be right in saying to you, Sir
Henry, something along thiz line: the British settlers first, those from the
United States second, the Seandinavian countries third, and then the other
parts of continental Europe? Would that be in accord with your view?

Sir Hexry THorxTON: That is roughly it. Along with the Scandinavian
countries, I would include the Dutch, who are a fine, sturdy people.

Mr. DoxNeLLY: And the Belgians?

Sir Hexry ToorxTON: And the Belgians, who are particularly thrifty
individuals. Also the Frenchmen if you can get them, but there are not very
many of them—very, very few. Then there are the Swiss who are also useful
citizens. Also the Germans—if we will forget for a moment the feeling of the
. late war—because whatever we may or may not think of German psychology
the German is a good, hard-working citizen. Then the Czecho-Slovakians,
who are more or less German in a way. The Northern Italian is a good citizen
also. I would say that probably represents in a general way what one would
call “preferred continental countries.”

Mr. Doxxerny: Sir Henry, in regard to those immigrants which we get
from the United States: is it not a fact that most of them are Europeans?

Sir Hexry THorNTeN: I do not think so. Perhaps Dr. Black could answer
that question.

Dr. Brack: Quite a large percentage of them are of Scandinavian extrac-
tion.

Sir Henry THorxTON: I cannot answer that question myself offhand.
May I make this statement? In bringing what I shall call “foreigners” to this
country—and a witty ambassador once said that “all the world is divided into
three classes, Americans, Englishmen and foreigners”’—so speaking of foreigners
in that sense, when you bring foreigners into this country I do not believe it is
possible to make a good Canadian out of the first foreigner who comes here.
If he arrives here at the age of thirty, or something of that sort, his psychology
is pretty well fixed, and while he would make a useful citizen, he is not really
going to be a Canadian and I do not see how you will ever make a Canadian
out of him. My notion is to play for the second generation, and those become
just as much Canadians as the families who may have lived in this country for
some generations. They forget their native language; they probably do not
ever speak it; they beecome absorbed in our population, and I think it is a waste
of time to spend too much effort on catching the old man and the old woman.
But get the children, and you will keep them automatically.

Mr. Caran: Just one or two questions, Sir Henry. I read with interest your
address at Toronto on February 13, and I presume that the reference you there
made to increased freight rates for the railways in Canada, under which your
Board of Directors will contribute for immigration purposes $10,000,000 a year
and take the whole job off the people of Canada as far as financing was con-
cerned, was purely facetious.

Sir Henry TuorNTON: I can only say that it was not entirely facetious.
What I meant, and the picture I wished to paint, and the point I tried to bring
home was this: that we would be justified in Canada in spending more money
on immigration than we are now spending, and that money has to come from
somewhere. It occurred to me that one way to drive that point home and to
paint that picture was that if there was a tax levied—to call it such—through an
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increase in freight rates it would pretty accurately and justly distribute the
burden and provide a fund which could be used for the purpose named.

Mr. Caman: But it would be more evenly distributed if it came from the
Dominion treasury in the ordinary course?

Sir HeNrYy TrorNTON: That is probably true, Mr. Cahan.

Mr. Camax: I do not wish to discuss it, but I want to know under what
conditions your statement was made with regard to the statements you made
then and have made to-day in connection with the co-ordination of effort: that
must be very seriously considered by this Committee, but I would like to direct
your attention to this, that in Australia I understand that co-ordination of effort
is obtained through a national commission which is independent, to a certain
extent, of the Department of Immigration and is independent of government,
occupying nearly the same position relative to immigration in Australia as, for
instance, the Canadian National Railways, as an instrument of government, is
related to the Dominion government of Cansda. Now, in your opinion, could
not this co-ordination of effort be better obtained through the organization of
a national commission dealing with it and having full powers, of course under
government regulation and government direction and government control, to deal
with this matter, rather than that the workings of immigration should be laid
to a mere department which is often surrounded with a great deal of red tape
from the fact that it is limited in power and does not come in contact with all
the elements of society throughout the length and breadth of the country? Would
you give us your view of a national commission formed for that purpose?

Sir Henry THORNTON: One of the functions of government is the adminis-
tration of national affairs. Presumably the national government is in the best
position, because of its legislative authority, to administer national affairs and it
would make small difference to those of us who are interested in the problem cf
immigration, how it is accomplished, provided there is some central body armed
with sufficient authority to take charge of the movement in the larger sense.

Any national committee or body which might be set up could presumably
do the work quite as satisfactorily as the government providing it has the sup-
port of the government, but it would be quite useless I think for any national
organization such as that to which you refer to satisfactorily administer this
immigration problem unless they had full governmental support and full govern-
mental authority. The two come to the same thing in the last analysis. I take
it that perhaps what one would say is that this is a question of such importance
that it ought to be placed in the hands of an independent commission which
would be above suspicion—if one can use such a term—with respect to politics,
with respect to religion, and with respect to sections of the country.

Mr. McGisson: Would not such a commission have to have on it repre-
sentatives of the provinces, of the railways, of labour, agriculture and the
financial organizations of the country?

Sir Henry TwmornTOoN: Well, there would be, I take it, an immediate
request on the part of provinces, religious bodies and others, to have proper
representation on that committee. I do not myself believe much in committee
work. Disraeli once said that the “ best committee was a committee of three,
one of whom was ill all of the time, and one who attended no meetings what-
ever.”

If such a committee as has been suggested were not too big and were not
too cumbersome, it would undoubtedly get satisfactory results, but the moment
you get to the committee proposition then at once there is a demand for all sorts
of representation on that committee, and each representative on that committee
necessarily strives to promote the particular thing in which he is interested.
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Mr. Camax: Your suggestion is that a commission if appointed should
be a small body, which would co-operate for the one general objective.

Sir Hexry THorNTON: I should say, Mr. Cahan, that the smaller com-
mittee and the more power it has, the more successful the result.

Mr. Caman: I believe in one-man government myself. (Laughter.) Now,
I would like to ask you one other question, just to follow this a little further.
That commission or that body which had charge of immigration in the sense
you have outlined, would have to take into consideration, would it not, first,
the question of land settlement as one department of its work, and, secondly,
you have suggested the creation of more employment in the country for the
purpose of giving employment to those who do come in, apart from the question
of land settlement. Have you any suggestion to make other than those made
by Dr. Black—to which we have listened with a great deal of attention—with
regard to land settlement, and, secondly, have you any definite idea as to the
work of such a commission in the development of employment generally in the
country for the purpose of giving employment to our own people and to those
" who may be brought in?

Sir Hexry THOrNTON: I do not think I can add anything to what Dr.
Black has already said in detail in that respect, Mr. Cahan. I do, however,
feel that such an instrumentality, whether it be a commission or whether it be
a department of the government with enlarged powers year by year, would
unquestionably find greater opportunity for employment as the years went on.
Naturally when they got face to face with their problems, and in touch with
them, there would appear avenues which may be unsuspected by any of us
to-day which would create the opportunity for bringing useful immigrants to
Canada. The whole thing I am trying to make clear is a centralized, strong,
capable control of this whole situation, with all the rest of us who are now
working somewhat at cross-purposes as the servants of that organization, and
that organization would be like the man in the Bible, he would say to one “ Go,”
and he goeth, and to another “ Come ” and he cometh. We would all do the best
we could to work loyally together in supporting one central orgamzatmn to
assist in carrying out such duties as may be assigned to us.

Mr. Casax: I notice in connection with the Australian system in regard
to land settlement, which is land development, that they have also what we
might call another department, making a complete investigation of the oppor-
tunities throughout the length and breadth of the various states of Australia,
and the commission which deals with it also has the power to deal not only
with investigaion of the possibilities of employment, but the creation, as it
were, of new sources or possibilities of employment.

Sir Henry TrHorNTON: That is to say, they give attention to increasing
the absorption power of the country?

Mr. CauaN: Quite so.

Sir Henry TuaornToN: That certainly is one of the functions which ought
to be carefully developed.

Mr. Cazan: I remember when the Canadian Pacific Railway first reached
the Pacific about 1885 hearing the late Sir William Van Horne discuss with
other business men the possibility of giving a greatly increased business to that
railway, and he went on to show how between Montreal and the Pacific he had
found various opportunities for the creation of industrial employment through-
out the length and breadth of the railway, and subsequently to bring in settlers
and bring in incomes for the railway in connection with agricultural develop-
ment. I would like to know if you have any views with regard to that—and
you must have—in regard to the development of the Canadian Na.tlonal lines
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developing employment along your own line, and as to what opportunities
there are in this country for the creation of employment in other than the
agricultural industry.

Sik Henry TaOrNTON: Well, we have in Canada in addition to our own
great agricultural potentiality, which one may describe as representing Can-
ada’s meal ticket, because it is the largest single industry, a very great asset
which in generations to come will prove of untold advantage to the country,
and I refer now to our cheap water-power, or cheap energy which exists in
Canada as the result of harnessing our water powers.

One of the things which any manufacturer looks to and must look to is a
cheap source of energy. We have that in abundance in Canada and I visua-
lize the day—perhaps in the next generation—when eastern Canada will take
advantage of that cheap water-power and will become a very, very great manu-
facturing district. That is a thing which necessarily must develop somewhat
slowly. Capital must be attracted to the country for the construction of
manufacturing plants, and we are seeing the beginning of that to-day. We see
in the Lake St. John district, north of Quebec, an enterprise which is capital-
ized at several million dollars, which has deliberately come to Canada and
invested a very large sum because of the advantageous shipping conditions,
because of a good labour supply, and especially because of a large quantity
of cheap water-power. That is one thing which has happened, and I am refer-
ring now to the location of the International Aluminum plant at Arvida. That
is one indication of what will happen in eastern Canada with greater numbers
and with greater opportunities in the future.

Mr. Camax: Naturally, but Sir Henry, may I direct your attention to
one other aspect of it? I am no expert, but T go from one end of this country
to the other almost as much as anybody else, excepting railroad men or men
who have more business activities than I at the present time, but I would like
your opinion dealing with the Canadian National Railways about this feature.
Take the great mineral belts which we find from the Atlantic to the Pacific,
which are vast possibilities as for employment in the future for both capital
and men. Is the Canadian National Railway, through any of its departments,
making an effective effort to make known to the world at large the particular
opportunities for mineral development which rise from time to time, and plac-
ing that before the investing public to the extent necessary to.bring in capital
and to create employment? In other words, to use your own expression—
which I commend—are we selling Canadian opportunities to the world to-day
in an effective and efficient manner?

Sir Henry TaorNTON: So far as our efforts are comncerned, Mr. Cahan,
we are sparing nothing to accomplish the objective you have mentioned. We
have an industrial department which is administered by a competent officer
of the company who has his representatives throughout the length of the Cana-
dian National railway and who is addressing his entire time and attention to
attracting new industries to Canada and to, as far as possible, assisting in the
extension of existing industries. The success of that is evidenced by the fact
that, as mentioned in our annual report—and I am speaking now from memory
—somewhat more than four hundred new industries were located on lines of
the Canadian National railway last year, with a capital expenditure of rather
more than $40,000,000. This is an indication that the field in which we are
working is a fertile one and is in the direction you have pointed out. '

In addition to that we have our Department of Resource Development
which is making an intensive study of the industrial opportunity in all sections
of the country, and especially in the district to which you refer—this mineral
area—In the latter part of the year before last we published a pamphlet explain-
ing the opportunities for mineral development and mineral exploration in
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Canada, and that pamphlet was given a wide circulation and was very fav-
ourably commented upon. (To Dr. Black): Do you happen to have a copy
of that pamphlet with you?

Dr. Brack: No, Sir Henry.

Sir Hexry TaorNTON: Perhaps you would be good enough to send one to
Mr. Cahan so he can see what is being done.

Mr. Canan: I would suggest that one be sent to each member of the Com-
mittee.

Sir Henry TrorxTON: Yes, send one to each member of the Committee.

Dr. Brack: Very well, sir.

Sir HExry TuorntoN: It was a very exhaustive treatise on the mineral
condition of Canada and drew a great deal of favourable comment. I may say
also that we have resource engineers at some of our agencies in the United States,
who are available to prospective investors and who seek prospective investors
and endeavour to give them information with regard to the opportunities in
Canada.

Mr. Cauax: Sir Henry, my point is this. I know something of your
efforts in that respect, and I have some knowledge of what is being done by the
Canadian Pacific. We all know that the Ontario government is making efforts
in that direction, and also the British Columbia government. In line with the
policy of co-ordinated efforts toward one efficient end, is it not practically pos-
sible, in your view, for a national commission—I will call it that for want of a
better name—to co-ordinate all those efforts of the C.P.R., the Canadian
National Railways, the respective provineial governments, and so forth, so that
all my work in accord with one single commission or one single head for the
purpose of securing the general industrial development of the country along
the line you suggested? Would it not be better if the Canadian National Rail-
way were in co-operation with the central organization, and through it in co-
operation with the Canadian Pacific and with the provincial governments and
other institutions of a like character to carry out a concerted plan for the
development of the internal resourees of Canada and to give employment to our
own people and to the people we bring in from abroad.

Sir Hexry THorNTON: That is carrying the functions of a commission to
which you refer rather farther than immigration. The question is where to
draw the line. Whether it be a department of the government or whether it
be a national ecommission, the objective is to bring to Canada the maximum
number of useful immigrants, and the only way to increase the number of
useful immigrants is to provide employment for them in the way you state,
but that may carry you very, very far afield. It might conceivably absorb
the present Department of Immigration, the Department of Trade and Com-
merce, and perhaps even other departments. Now, that is a very large question
and it is going a long, long way afield. In its bigger sense that is a question I
would not like to answer offhand, Mr. Cahan.

Mr. Caman: Well, Sir Henry, T understand it is a large question but we
all have been impressed during the last few weeks with the breadth and import-
ance of this question of immigration. It is not merely a question of land settle-
ment, but in its broader aspect it means giving employment to people. But along -
the line of your recent, discussion—take the one in Toronto which I have before
me, which was a very, very important suggestion correlating the efforts of all
instruments of government to the private endeavours toward one end: now,
is it not possible to have a commission, or department—ecall it what you like—
that will co-ordinate the efforts of the Canadian National Railway, the Cana-
dian Pacific Railway, and all these other instruments to secure the development
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of the internal, natural resources of this country, not only water-powers but
minerals and mining and forestry and all the rest, so that we would create
employment in this country which would bring people here without bonuses to
any great extent, but bring them here by giving them a fair standard of living
and ample employment for their labour, after they are brought in.

Sir Hexry TaorNTON: You have stated, Mr. Cahan, a sound academic
proposition, but I am doubtful as to whether it could be carried out with prac-
tical success to the extent you have stated. I think it would be preferable that
this commission, or the enlarged powers of the Department of Immigration, or
whatever it may be, should focus its efforts, first, on a simple immigration pro-
position. When I say “simple’” I mean the single immigration proposition.

Mr. Caman: For land settlement only?

Sir Henry TrHORNTON: For land settlement only. Now, after measurable
progress has been made in that direction, and the commission, or whatever it
may be, has found its feet, and knows more about the situation, then there might
well be considered an expansion of its powers, an expansion of its activities.
But T am just a little doubtful—in fact, I am considerably doubtful—about
giving this commission so much to do that it can not accomplish anything. I
would rather see it concentrate—if I may put it—on an immediate problem
rather than to undertake the whole of the economic development of the country,
which is a very big and serious proposition.

Mr. CamaN: Not exactly the whole economic—

_ dSir Hexry TrorRNTON: When I say that, I mean whatever you had in your
mind.

Mr. Caman: Sir Henry, let me put this to you—and I think I am stating
it clearly. As an outsider I came into this discussion, net only in the committee
but outside of it, amongst the members of Parliament, and I put this to you on
the part of a considerable number of the representatives from the prairie prov-
inces in this House. There is a feeling that land settlement must be very slow
in development, and there is a very widespread feeling in_the three Prairie
Provinces that no unusual effort should be made to develop those districts agri-
culturally more rapidly than they are being developed at the present time. Have
you met with that feeling?

Sir Henry TiorxToN: I cannot say that I have exactly met with that,
but I have heard it said that the land settlement should be limited lest we get
too many farms and get to much acreage under cultivation and raise so much
as to break the price of the things produced. But I think the extent of the world
absorption of our agricultural products is such that we meed not be worried
about that particular problem. I think we can market all of the agricultural
products we can produce in Canada at remunerative prices.

Mr. CamaN: One more question, Sir Henry, and I am done. Would you
give us your opinion with respect to the question of land settlement as suggested
by the two gentlemen, one representing your immigration department of the
Canadian National Railways, and the other representing the Canadian Pacific
Railway immigration department, with regard to providing a fund to assist in
settling immigrants so as to give them homes at a moderate cost, and place
them upon the land so that they may from the start do something in the way
of agricultural work which will bring in a revenue sufficient to maintain them?

Sir. HeNry THORNTON: In reply to that question I can only say that I
heartily endorse all that Dr. Black has said in the evidence he has given before
this Committee.

Mr. DoxNELLY: You said that in the Western part of the United States
there were a great body of farmers who were just one jump ahead of the sheriff.
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Sir Hexry THORNTON: I think so.

Mr. Don~NeLLy: Have we not in Western Canada, and in fact throughout
the Dominion, a great body of men who are just one jump ahead of the sheriff?

Sir Henry THorNTON: I do not think so. If they are, they are jumping
with considerable success. I would say this: I think our farming population
in Western Canada, and in fact the whole of western Canada